
Planning Commission 

Meeting Packet 

FOR 

May 10, 2022 

at 7:00 PM 

Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
 
How to Provide Citizen Comments and Public Hearing Testimony:  
Community comments and public hearing testimony may be provided in person, in writing, or by by telephone, as 
described below. 
 
Community Comments – You may provide comments to the Commission on an item/issue not on the current agenda. 
Written comments must be submitted at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting start time. Please clearly state that 
your comments are intended as community comments for the Planning Commission meeting. You can also attend the 
meeting in-person and provide up to four minutes of comments. Finally, you can provide up to four minutes of comments to 
the Commission via telephone during the live meeting. To provide written comments, please send to the Planning 
Department at the address above oremail PlanningCommission@SherwoodOregon.gov To receive telephone instructions, 
please email or call Colleen Resch at ReschC@sherwoodoregon.gov or 503-625-4223 at least 24 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting. 
Public Hearing Testimony – You may provide comments to the Commission on a particular hearing item. Written 
comments must be submitted at least one hour prior to the scheduled meeting start time. Please state that the comments 
are intended as testimony for a public hearing and specify the public hearing topic for which it is intended. You can also 
attend the meeting in-person and provide up to four minutes of verbal testimony. Finally, you can provide up to four minutes 
of comments to the Commission via telephone during the live meeting. To submit written testimony, please send to the 
Planning Department at the address above or email PlanningCommission@SherwoodOregong.gov.To receive telephone 
instructions, please email or call Colleen Resch at ReschC@sherwoodoregon.gov or 503-625-4223 at least 24 hours prior 
to the scheduled meeting. 
 
How to Find out What's on the Planning Commission Schedule: Planning Commission meeting materials and agenda 
are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, generally one week  prior to a Commission meeting. When 
possible, Planning Commission  agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall/Senior Center, YMCA, and the 
Sherwood Post Office 
 
ADA Accommodations: If you require an ADA accommodation for this public meeting, please contact  Colleen Resch at 
(503) 625-4223 or ReschC@Sherwoodoregon.gov at least 48 hours in advance of the scheduled meeting time. 
 
Regular Meeting  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of April 26, 2022 regular meeting minutes  
 

3. COUNCIL LIAISON ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
4. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 

o Next Planning Commission Work Session and Regular Meeting May 24, 2022 
o Sherwood West CAC meeting is tentatively scheduled for June 9, 2022 

  
5. COMMUNITY COMMENTS 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

I. Public Hearing Case File LU 2021-025 MM, Major Modification to Site Plan, Cascade Columbia 
Distribution.   
Proposal: The applicant is proposing a new 12,000 SF warehousing building, and 8,400 SF covered storage 
building on an existing industrial site located at 14200 SW Tualatin-Sherwood Rd. The site is occupied by Cascade 
Columbia Distribution and Northstar Chemical, two chemical storage and distribution companies. The existing 

 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

May 10th,  at 7:00 PM 
 

This meeting will be held at City Hall, 22560 SW Pine St, 
Sherwood, OR 97140. It will also be live streamed at 

https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood 
 

Packet Page 1

mailto:PlanningCommission@SherwoodOregon.gov
mailto:ReschC@sherwoodoregon.gov
mailto:PlanningCommission@SherwoodOregong.gov
mailto:ReschC@sherwoodoregon.gov
mailto:ReschC@Sherwoodoregon.gov
https://www.youtube.com/user/CityofSherwood


 

Page 2 of 2 

development was approved by the City in 1992 under Site Plan Approval 92-7. The proposed expansion will support 
Cascade Columbia Distribution's growing food and beverage industry business. Access to the site is proposed from 
the existing driveway along SW Tualatin-Sherwood Rd. 
 

II. Public Hearing Case File LU 2022-004 MM, Major Modification to Site Plan, Sentinel Storage II 
Proposal:  The applicant is proposing a new 3-story self-storage building in an existing self-storage development 
located at 21900 SW Langer Farms Parkway. The original site improvements were reviewed and approved 
through City of Sherwood land use approvals SP 16-06 and MLP 16-02. The site is zoned Light Industrial Planned 
Unit Development (LI-PUD) and currently contains four storage buildings, a recreational vehicle (RV) storage 
canopy, site landscaping, paved circulation, trash service, lighting, and other improvements. The facility is 
accessed by a gated entrance and a private driveway on the east side of SW Langer Farms Parkway; both 
access points are planned to remain unchanged. The scope of the site plan modification application is limited to 
the removal and replacement of the existing ±14,850 square-foot RV storage canopy with an enclosed three-
story, 74,177 SF self-storage building containing 575 storage units.  
 

 
7. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 
8. ADJOURN 

 
 

Meeting documents are found on the City of Sherwood website at www.sherwoodoregon.gov/meetings  or by contacting 
the Planning Staff at 503-925-2308. Information about the land use applications can be found at 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov/projects. 
 
 

Packet Page 2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/meetings
file://///cos-file01/Shares/CityHall/CityCouncil/Boards%20and%20Commissions/Planning%20Commission/Planning%20Commission%20Meeting%20Agendas/2017%20PC%20Agendas/www.sherwoodoregon.gov/projects


Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 1 of 8 

 

City of Sherwood, Oregon  
Planning Commission Meeting 

April 26, 2022 
 
Planning Commissioners Present:               Staff Present:     
Chair Jean Simson     Erika Palmer, Planning Manager 
Vice Chair Justin Kai      Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner 
Commissioner Rick Woidyla    Josh Soper, City Attorney 
Commissioner Greg Lampros    Colleen Resch, Planning Technician   
Commissioner Teresa Montalvo 
 
Planning Commissioners Absent: 
Commissioner Dan Bantz 
 
City Council Liaison Present: 
Councilor Taylor Giles 
 
 
REGULAR SESSION: 
 
Chair Simson called the regular session to order at 7:00 pm and introduced the recently appointed Planning 
Commissioner Teresa Montalvo.  
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of March 22, 2022, Regular Meeting Minutes 
b. Approval of April 12, 2022, Work Session and Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Motion: from Vice Chair Kai to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Commissioner 
Woidyla. Motion passed 5:0. (Commissioner Bantz was absent). 
 
2. COUNCIL LIAISON ANNOUNCEMENT 
Council Liaison Taylor Giles said the City Council completed the first reading of LU 2022-002 Housing 
Choices for middle housing. He said Trashpalooza was very well attended this weekend and thanked the 
participants. The Police Department will be having a “Coffee with the Force” at Dutch Bros. this Saturday 
from 10 am to 1 pm.   
 
3. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
• Next Planning Commission Meeting is May 10, 2022, with Public Hearing LU 2021-025 

Major Modification Cascade Columbia 
 
4. COMMUNITY COMMENTS 
Jim Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, came forward and provided a handout (see record, Exhibit A). He 
said they will litigate. He said he has been in litigation like this once before and he said to the Fish and 

Packet Page 3



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 2 of 8 

 

Wildlife and those advising him that he wanted to jail the guy responsible for it. He referred to the Abrams 
case that prevented the first amendment and he wrote a code that the American Civil Liberties Union 
picked on to protect our rights that had not been protected before that. Ted Olsen later became the 
Attorney General, so he pretty much agreed with it. From that they were able to sue citizens that got out 
of hand under the Tucker Act and Title 42 USC 1983-1984. In a democracy everybody should be 
responsible if they break the law. Previously in this town we got away with libeling and slandering Bill 
Middleton and the County City Insurance picked up the sum million dollars that we had to pay because 
the City Manager and the Assistant City Manager thought they were above the law. He wished they would 
have had to pay it personally, and some cities do that. He said the Commission is getting into very deep 
water now and the statute says you can promote and protect public safety, health, welfare, morals and 
occasionally aesthetics but you can’t sell zoning and they are very rapidly moving into that area. He said 
tonight he will provide materials and said read them carefully because people are saying things as if they 
think they are true, and he said he has had a couple of attorneys look at this and they asked where this 
came from. He noted the reason he is cautioning the Commission is because it is wonderful that they are 
serving along with Mayor Mays, who he can haul into court. He stated he just finished with a bank, and it 
took a long time to get there, and they noted that he was just trying to get them to play by the rules. He 
agreed and said he does not like it when the bank thinks they can break the law and stretch the rules. 
Luckily, they have cleared themselves financially and that is the manner he will be pursuing, personal 
responsibility for remarks like “you don’t like Chinese people”. He said he does not have to take that kind 
of remark.   
 
Susan Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, approached the Commission and alerted them to the fact that the 
wording on the agenda needs to be revised and clearly state that people can show up to the meetings. She 
said the top part of the notice states that it will be electronic and if you don’t read the whole thing, you 
don’t realize that you can go to the meeting. She said it also says that things need to be entered 24 hours 
in advance and that is wrong. She encouraged staff to review and make it friendly for the community to 
show up to meetings. She said Sherwood has always been friendly and we need that openness. She asked 
staff to review the agendas. She referred to the ADA accommodations and said the agenda says contact 
staff at least 48 hours in advance and that it tricky when the meeting is on Tuesday and if people decide to 
attend the day before and see that arbitrary notice of 48 hours in advance is needed, they may decide to 
not attend. She said this is aggressive against normal everyday Sherwood person trying to attend and not 
knowing what the rules and regulations are and taking this at face value. She asked staff to make this 
friendly and open and welcoming so people know they can come back to City Hall again.  
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

a. Public Hearing Case File, LU 2022-004 MM, Major Modification to Site Plan Sentinel 
Storage II  

Chair Simson read the public hearing statement and said this is a quasi-judicial matter and the Planning 
Commission is the hearing authority, and any appeals will go before the City Council. She asked members 
of the Commission to expose any ex parte contact, biased or conflict of interest. Vice Chair Kai, 
Commissioner Woidyla, Commissioner Lampros, and Commissioner Montalvo stated none. Chair Simson 
said the only ex parte contact she has had are on the record for previous hearings she has participated in. 

Packet Page 4



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 3 of 8 

 

Chair Simson asked if there were any challenges. Jim Claus challenged Chair Simson ability to participate.  
* Recorder’s Note: Mr. Claus did not speak into the microphone and his challenge is inaudible.   
 
Chair Simson said Mr. Claus challenged her ability to participate impartially and claims she had ex parte 
contact with Mayor Mays. She said she has not communicated with Mayor Mays on this matter. She restated 
for the record that she has not communicated with Mayor Mays on this item and does intend to participate.  
 
Associate Planner Eric Rutledge recapped the staff report and provided a presentation (see record, Exhibit 
B). The applicant is requesting approval of a Type IV Major Modification to an Approved Site Plan for a 
new 3-story self-storage building located at 21900 SW Langer Farms Parkway. He stated the application is 
being processed as a Type IV land use application with the Planning Commission as the Decision 
Authority. The application was routed to affected agencies on April 4, 2022. Public notice of the application 
was provided in accordance with City code including mailed notice to property owners within 1,000 ft. of 
the site. One public comment was received on the application, and we will be accepting testimony during 
tonight’s hearing. He discussed the application timeline and said this is the initial evidentiary hearing and 
if there is a need to continue the hearing he recommended continuing to May 10, 2022. He referred to the 
applicable criteria and reminded the Commission that the applications are weighed against applicable 
criteria and their role is to judge whether the application complies with the criteria. He said if a criteria or 
standard has not been met through the application, staff can place a condition of approval that the 
application can comply after the land use approval but before final site plan approval. He stated this 
application is for a major modification to an approved site plan. He said this is a major modification because 
the proposal in an increase in the floor area by more than 10 percent and the scope of the review is limited 
to the modification request.  
 
Mr. Rutledge said the site is located at 21900 SW Langer Farms Parkway and is approximately 6.14 acres. 
The site is fully developed as an RV and self-storage facility including buildings, drive aisles, utilities, and 
landscaping. The adjacent roadway, SW Langer Farms Parkway, is fully developed to City standards for a 
3-lane collector. The property is zoned Light Industrial PUD. Self-storage is not a permitted use in the 
today’s Light Industrial zone; however, the use is vested on the property until August 28, 2022, based on 
the previous land use approvals. Self-storage was permitted in the Light Industrial zone in 1995 when the 
Sherwood Village PUD was approved. In 2012, the western portion of the PUD was subdivided to create 
new lots for commercial and industrial development. The subdivision approval vested the allowed uses on 
the site for a period of 10 years pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes 92.040. The state law permits the 
owner of the land to utilize the land use regulations in effect at the time of subdivision approval for a 
period of 10 years, in this case until August 28, 2022. He discussed the site plan and access and said the 
proposed building replaces a covered storage area and will be a three story self-storage building. There will 
be a covered parking and loading area and an elevator. He referred to development standards and building 
design and said any new industrial development that is on an arterial or collector status road is required to 
comply with the City’s industrial design standards. He stated Langer Farms Parkway is a collector status 
road and buildings within 200 feet of the road and visible from the road have comply with the standards. 
He noted there are six design criteria, and a proposed industrial development must meet four of the criteria, 
and this application meets five of the criteria. He stated the only criteria not being met is the 15% window 

Packet Page 5



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 4 of 8 

 

glazing for all frontages facing an arterial or collector. 
 
Mr. Rutledge referred to public comments and said Jon Rievley (no address provided) submitted testimony 
in opposition to the project based on the location and design of the building.  
 
Mr. Rutledge provided revisions and additions based on feedback.  
• Condition of Approval E8 – Prior to Issuance of Building Permits, the applicant shall contact PGE 

to coordinate any required service upgrades to the existing electrical panel serving the site.  
• Additional findings SZCDC 16.154.010 Heat and Glare – “The preliminary lighting plan (Exhibit A 

– Sheet P08) shows new exterior lighting will be attached to the building at a height of 15 ft. As the 
height of the existing storage building along SW Langer Farms Parkway is 15 ft., the new lighting will 
not be visible from ground floor of the residential neighborhood across SW Langer Farms Parkway.  

• Voluntary Condition of Approval: E9 Prior to Issuance of Building Permits, the applicant shall 
provide a light fixture detail for the proposed lighting. The lights shall be directed towards the ground 
and not towards the residential development across SW Langer Farms Parkway.  

• Additional findings SZCDC 16.31.020 Uses – “The proposed self-storage is a light industrial use and 
conforms to the Sherwood Village PUD standards and Conditions of Approval.” 
 

Mr. Rutledge said staff recommends approval of LU 2022-010 MM subject to the findings and conditions 
in the staff report dated April 19, 2022, as revised by the above revisions.  
 
Vice Chair Kai asked about additional parking. Mr. Rutledge said the proposal includes under cover parking 
spaces (3) for loading and unloading.  
 
Marie Holladay and John Christiansen with AKS Engineering, 12965 SW Herman Road, Ste. 100, 
Tualatin, OR 97062 came forward and provided a presentation and introduced the project team (see 
record, Exhibit C). She provided a project overview and said the total site area is 6.14 acres and zoned 
Light Industrial Planned Unit Development. She said the extent of the modification is limited the removal 
and replacement of an existing RV canopy which is 14,250 square feet. The new proposed storage building 
is 75,000 square feet and existing site improvements will remain unchanged. The two existing accesses will 
remain and the new enclosed storage building will be 3 stories and 32 feet high. The plan involves relocating 
a fire hydrant and existing emergency bollards. There will be a new covered loading area and pavement 
and wall mounted lighting will be replaced. She referred to adequate circulation and said the building 
footprint will increase from 14,000 square feet to 24,000 square feet and adequate fire apparatus and 
emergency vehicle access is provided. She stated the building is planned to be located interior to facility 
and behind existing building frontages. She commented on the conceptual view section and said the 
existing buildings are 15 feet high and from the street you will be able to see about 3 feet of the planned 
building. Because Langer Farms Parkway is a collector roadway the industrial design standards do apply. 
She said the architectural elements will match the existing facility. She commented on parking concerns 
and said the nature of the facility is people generally drive up to the building, roll up their door, and load 
up their vehicle. She stated with the proposed building it was necessary to provide an area for people to 
fully park and they provided three oversize parking spaces. She said the lighting will be mounted at 

Packet Page 6



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 5 of 8 

 

approximately 15 feet.  
 
Ms. Holladay said the applicant concurs with the staff findings and conditions of approval as well as the 
voluntary condition.  
 
Commissioner Montalvo asked what the clearance for the covered loading is. Ms. Holladay said 16 feet. 
 
With no further questions for the applicant, Chair Simson stated the applicant has 21:41 available for 
rebuttal.  
 
Chair Simson opened the public testimony.  
 
Jim Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy approached the Commission and provided documents (see record, 
Exhibit D). He said the Ms. Holladay made some legal conclusions and he will be filing a complaint with 
the Bar. He said they are wrong and said read the material he provided. This was a contract that was signed 
off and it has been gone and a condition in a contract that there is hiding stops this process. Number two, 
do you understand we built Langer Parkway and paid for the dirt and in front of this monstrosity you have 
32 feet curb to curb, and you have a turn lane in the middle of it and there is no parking. This has no 
restrooms, and it is almost 600 units, and it is the size of a small mass merchandiser. This is huge and 
doubling their space in this town and there is no restroom. This brings no employment, and it uses the 
space. Secondarily, when you read the materials I presented you will see repeatedly they are misrepresenting 
the facts of law. They are telling you that these LLCs are the same and said Mr. Rutledge must have checked 
with a different Secretary of State and real estate office than he did because they are not the same that he 
is seeing, and he would like that proof in the document. He said this is giving the Langer’s on this 
application hundreds of thousands of dollars. They have no development costs, we paid for the street out 
of the Urban Renewal grant, and they are now asking to ride in on that retroactively because apparently 
these small storage spaces make more money. But try to understand this is on an acre and ugly. There is 
no landscaping, and they are trying to escape from all regulations. More than that, you have an attorney 
going back and finding a fact as an urban planner that this is allowable. Their research points out this is 
signed off with the condition in the development agreement that in 2017 it went away and is not there 
anymore. He does not see any counter or extension and he wants to see some attorney’s opinions. He said 
this is a major no no for us. It is not adding jobs. We already built Langer Parkway and got taken in Home 
Depot by Clarence Langer and Reinecke. They tried to fight it and couldn’t. Then ODOT went after 
citizens that objected to it. He can’t make any sense out of this, and he is a professional in this area. He 
said they prepared this document and suggested that the Commission take the 7 days and read it and come 
back with questions and make their vote. He said what you have here is legal opinions and this surprises 
him. He said they have LUBA cases supporting what they are saying. He stated his information in the 
documents is opposite of what everything this group is saying. His point is maybe we want to do this but 
what do we get out of this. This is 74,000 square feet which is the size of Target, and they are telling you 
that is a collector street, and it is not. It has a turn lane in the middle and no park lanes and is 32 feet curb 
to curb. This will bring trucks and no employment into the area and what do we get out of it. Excess land 
value, yes. In Walmart we stood aside and got the excess land value and it allowed us to pay off the bonds 

Packet Page 7



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 6 of 8 

 

and give away this apartment building over here. What are we getting out of this, nothing. You are just 
botching the town up with an ugly building that meets the Langer’s need for money. You don’t have legal 
opinions on this, and Josh Soper can’t give them because he works for the City Council, and I caught him 
screwing around with the Urban District and he had to recuse himself. He said you need to get outside 
legal counsel to find out if these conclusions are right. Other than that, let him go to LUBA. He does not 
understand what we are doing in this town. We changed the central business district and ruined it. This 
was a true CBD town and we have not cleaned up the cannery pollution because of Langer Parkway. We 
have not done any of this building and nobody is asking any hard questions. He said read the brief and 
they took a lot of time on it. He said somebody is pulling another swift move in his opinion.     
 
Susan Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, came forward and said the document submitted by Mr. Claus 
requests a continuance and the record left open for additional information and she is requesting the same 
(see record, Exhibit E). She commented on the vesting and an ORS statute that was sited and said the 
contract they are relying on is a contract … if you look at Exhibit A Page 1 of the amended and restated 
development contract … it reads the parties to this amended and restated development agreement are the 
City of Sherwood, Pamela and Clarence Langer as to Phase IV which is the original Sentinel Storage Phase, 
and the Langer Family LLC as to the remainder of the PUD collectively. She said those are the parties to 
the agreement. That is one issue. We must compare apples to apples and oranges to oranges and a Langer 
isn’t a Langer isn’t a Langer isn’t a Langer isn’t a Langer isn’t a Langer. She said because one part of their 
business may want to do something it does not give them the right to come in on an agreement that was 
very specifically tailored toward Pam and Clarence on Phase IV, not even the annex area and that is an 
issue that needs to be taken care of. She submitted a copy of a lot of the Langer’s LLC and said you can’t 
tell who is what and what is what (see record, Exhibit F). Just because we have one agreement doesn’t 
mean that all these people get to participate and claim that they have a vesting. She said that is what they 
are asking, and it is not clear in the record. She said the application is referring to Langer Storage II as the 
owner of this property and that is not Clarence and Pam Langer or Langer Family LLC, that is a different 
business entity, and they are asking for something that is not legal on that anymore with the currently code. 
She said it wasn’t even legal and they are trying to go back to a 27 year old code. She stated this request 
might not even have the advantage of this agreement and this agreement ended January 1, 2017. We are in 
2022 and they are trying to boot strap an ORS statute that doesn’t apply but may look like it applies but 
we don’t even have an attorney’s opinion. He said you have one planner talking to the other planner saying 
it looks good and Erika was even nodding her head that whole time Eric was giving his presentation about 
the vesting still being good. She said we don’t know if the vesting is good and it’s not in the record and 
they have additional information they want to submit into the record. She asked what the process is and 
said this Type IV process may not be right and what is the appeal process and deadlines.   
 
Chair Simson referred to the question regarding the process and said this is the first evidentiary hearing 
and there will be a continuance (if Planning Commission agrees) to a date certain which is the next hearing 
date, May 10, 2022, and the record will remain open and testimony will be accepted at the May 10 hearing.  
She asked Mr. Rutledge to explain the appeal process.  
 
Mr. Rutledge discussed the timeline and said there will be a second hearing on May 10 and the staff will 

Packet Page 8



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 7 of 8 

 

issue a Notice of Decision on May 11 and there could be a potential appeal to City Council on June 21. He 
said those who have testified will receive the Notice of Decision at the address provided and there is a two 
week appeal period and appeals will be due May 25 at 5 pm. Public Notice for Appeal will be issued on 
May 26.  
 
Chair Simson said the applicant has 21:41 minutes remaining for rebuttal. Ms. Holladay said they will 
respectfully wait for the deliberation at the next hearing through the continuance.  
 
Motion: from Vice Chair Kai to continue the public hearing for LU 2022-004 MM Sentinel Storage 
II to May 10, 2022, seconded by Commissioner Woidyla. Motion passed 5:0 (Commissioner Bantz 
was absent).  
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Sherwood West Concept Plan Re-look Project Update 
Planning Manager Erika Palmer provided a presentation and said the City is updating the 2016 Sherwood 
West Preliminary Plan (see record, Exhibit G). She said Sherwood West is approximately 1,200 acres and 
is one of Sherwood’s four designated urban reserves, which are designated for potential urbanization over 
the next 50 years. Sherwood West is near existing development and infrastructure and is the most logical 
direction for Sherwood to grow. Sherwood is required to have a 20-year land supply for housing and 
employment uses and asked if the area wants to grow up withing the existing city boundary or grow out 
into the growth area. It is anticipated that the City will request that all or some of the Sherwood West urban 
reserve area be brought into Metro UGB to accommodate future housing and employment needs. To make 
the request to Metro, the City needs to develop a Concept Plan for the area.  
 
Ms. Palmer explained why the 2016 Preliminary Plan is being updated and said in 2021 the City received a 
Metro grant to re-look at the plan. Technical and Community Advisory Committees were formed, and they 
just had their 8th meeting and are developing land use scenario maps to take out to the community for 
feedback and input.  
 
Ms. Palmer said the theme concepts include mixed-employment areas, great neighborhoods, livable and 
connected streets, SE Elwert road design concepts, active transportation, and chicken creek greenway. She 
said there is project page on the City website with all this information. Discussion followed.  
 
Ms. Palmer said there will be another CAC and TAC meeting and then an open house for community 
feedback. After community feedback, a preferred land use scenario will be selected, and additional analysis 
will be reviewed. She said there has been community engagement at every step of the way. The plan will 
be complete by fall and accepted by Council in Winter 2022. Discussion followed about the timeline for 
future development  
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Chair Simson suggested gathering emergency contact information for each Planning Commissioner. Staff 
agreed.  

Packet Page 9



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 26, 2022 
Page 8 of 8 

 

Chair Simson adjourned the meeting at 9:00 pm.  

Submitted by: 

 

Colleen Resch, Planning Technician 

Approval Date:    

Packet Page 10



From: Maria Miller
To: Eric Rutledge
Cc: Chris Goodell; Kathrine Lindsey
Subject: RE: 120-Day Extension Form
Date: Monday, May 2, 2022 3:00:10 PM
Attachments: image001.png

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
are expecting this email and/or know the content is safe.

Hi Eric –
 
 
The attached time extension form requests an extension until 9/20/22 to allow us to resubmit the
project, including existing improvements that have been completed since the last site permit. For
the planning commission hearing, we would like to request a continuance to a date certain of June
28.  
 
Thank you,
 
Maria Miller, AICP 
AKS ENGINEERING & FORESTRY, LLC
P: 503.563.6151 Ext. 259 | www.aks-eng.com | mariam@aks-eng.com

 

From: Eric Rutledge <RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov> 
Sent: Monday, May 2, 2022 11:42 AM
To: Maria Miller <mariam@aks-eng.com>
Subject: 120-Day Extension Form
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside AKS Engineering & Forestry.

 
Hi Maria,
 
Here’s the 120-day extension form. The owner or owner’s rep (AKS) can sign and send back.
 
Thanks,
 
 
Eric Rutledge
City of Sherwood
Associate Planner
rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov
Desk 503.625.4242
Work Cell 971.979.2315
 
 

Packet Page 11

mailto:mariam@aks-eng.com
mailto:RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov
mailto:chrisg@aks-eng.com
mailto:lindseyk@aks-eng.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/RiHhCrko2Wi7yWWIzt1zT?domain=aks-eng.com
mailto:mariam@aks-eng.com
mailto:RutledgeE@SherwoodOregon.gov
mailto:mariam@aks-eng.com
mailto:rutledgee@sherwoodoregon.gov



 

This email may contain confidential information or privileged material and is intended for use
solely by the above referenced recipient. Any review, copying, printing, disclosure, distribution, or
other use by any other person or entity is strictly prohibited and may be illegal. If you are not the
named recipient, or believe you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the
City of Sherwood at (503) 625-5522 and delete the copy you received.
 

Packet Page 12



Packet Page 13



  MEMORANDUM 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

 
 

                                                   

City of Sherwood 
22560 SW Pine St. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
Tel 503-625-5522 
Fax 503-625-5524 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To:  Chair Jean Simson and City of Sherwood Planning Commission  
 
From:   Eric Rutledge, Associate Planner 
 
RE:  LU 2022-004 MM Sentinel Storage II Major Modification  
 
Date:  May 3, 2022 
 
 

 
Background 
On April 26, 2022 the Planning Commission (Commission) held the first evidentiary 
hearing on LU 2022-004 MM Sentinel Storage II Major Modification. Staff presented 
the staff report and written and verbal testimony was accepted from the public. A 
member of the public requested the hearing be continued and the record left open 
to provide additional testimony. The hearing was continued to a date certain of May 
10, 2022. The record is open until the continued hearing and the Commission will 
also be accepting testimony during the hearing.  
 
Application Timeline 
The Commission is required to issue a decision at the continued hearing on May 10, 
2022, unless a 120-day extension is granted by the applicant.  
 

• Application Complete   March 16, 2022 

• Initial Evidentiary Hearing  April 26, 2022 

• 2nd Commission Hearing  May 10, 2022  

• City Council Appeal Hearing  June 21, 2022  

• 120-Day Deadline     July 14, 2022  
 
Additional Exhibits as of 5/3/22 at 12:00pm (attached to memo)  

• Exhibit D5 Resolution 2007-081  

• Exhibit D6 Resolution 2010-033  

• Exhibit D7 Testimony from Jim Claus dated April 26, 2022  

• Exhibit D8 Testimony from Jim Claus dated April 26, 2022  

• Exhibit D9 Testimony from Susan Claus dated April 26, 2022  

• Exhibit D10 Testimony from Jim Claus dated April 29, 2022  

• Exhibit D11 PUD 95-1 Sherwood Village PUD - Notice of Decision  

Packet Page 14



 

 Page 2 of 2 
  
  

 

• Exhibit D12 SUB 12-02 Notice of Decision including Appeal Decision  

• Exhibit D13 Planning Commission Meeting Packet and Minutes from August 
28, 2012  

• Exhibit D14 Light Industrial Zoning Code Text in Effect on March 30, 2012  

• Exhibit D15 Light Industrial and other Municipal Code Update on August 7, 
2012 

 
Staff Recommendation  
Additional testimony is anticipated from the public and applicant after release of this memo. 
Staff will provide a final recommendation to Planning Commission during the continued 
hearing, after reviewing all testimony in the record.  

Packet Page 15



sÉð'{nãoä
Oregon

Ho,ft Ql rl'c'Iítalátiil Ri'pt Ndliøel Wíldlife Rejtqc

RESOLUTTON 2007-081

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PUD O7.OI, A MINOR MODIFICATION TO THE LANGER PUD
(PUD 95-997) TO MODTFY CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL RELATED TO PHASES 4, 6, 7
AND 8, CLARIFYING THE ALLOWED USES, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER
INTO A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH RESPECT TO DEVELOPMENT OF THESE
PHASES.

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood originally approved the Langer PUD (PUD 95-997) April 25,
1995; and

WHEREAS, The decision approved development of the property in eight (8) separate phases
and assigned specific uses to each phase, including High Density Residential (HDR),
Retail/Commercial (RC), and Light lndustrial (Ll); and

WHEREAS, The portions of the PUD designated Ll have not yet developed, except for a portion
of Phase 4, which was developed as a mini-warehouse use under the General Retail Trade
category of allowed uses in the Ll zone; and

WHEREAS, both the City and the property owner would like to see the property develop in the
interest of economic vitality of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City's Zoning and Community Development Code ("ZCDC") 16.32.020.H,
provides the following: "Approved PUDs may elect to establish uses which are permitted or
conditionally permitted under the base zone text at the time of final approval of the PUD": and

WHEREAS, to help facilitate economic development of Phases 4, 6, 7 and I of the original
PUD, the City and the property owner have negotiated a Development Agreement, attached
Exhibit 2, stipulating commitments for public improvements, clarification of uses and providing
clarity on how certain fees would be reviewed and applied as development applications were
submitted; and

WHEREAS, upon negotiating the Development Agreement, it was determined that modification
to the original conditions of approval was necessary to adjust the timing and requirements in
order to be consistent with the Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the applicant submitted a request for Minor Modification of the PUD and
clarification of allowed uses which has been reviewed in the attached Exhibit 1 and findings
made that the proposed modifications in fact meet the minor modification standards; and

WHEREAS, the Council has considered the Development Agreement, the request for
clarifícation of allowed uses and PUD modification as submitted by the applicant, the Staff
report, and considered public testimony submitted at the public hearing held on October 16,
2007 and during the written comment period through October 30, 2007 with final applicant
statements submitted prior to November 6,2007; and

Resolution 2007-081
December 4,2007
Page 1 of 3, with Exhibits 1 (5 pgs), 1-A (1 I pSs), 2 (1 1 pgs) 2-A (10 pgs) and 2-B (2 pgs)

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 16



WHEREAS, after due consideration of all public comments, applicant response and staff
comments, the Council determined that as proposed, the continuation of the PUD would be in
the best interest of the public and the City and Citizens of Sherwood.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. After full consideration of the applicant submittal, the criteria and findings of
fact contained in the Staff Report attached as Exhibit A and all related testimony included in the
record, the original Langer PUD 95-997 conditions of approval shall be modified as follows:

Modifv Findinq B. 1. of the July 25, 1995, City staff report, which was adopted by reference
in the City's decision to approve the PUD, to delete the following language: "Remove the
Century Drive extension of Adams Avenue." Add a new Condition of Approval requiring that
Century Drive be extended east of Adams Drive to connect with the existing terminus of
Century Ðrive east of the PUD at the time of the completion of the combined development of
Phases 6 and 7.

Modifv Condition of Approval 3 to read as follows (new language is underlined): "Adams
Avenue shall be constructed from Century Drive north to Tualatin-Shenruood Road prior to
completion of Phase 3. These improvements shall include curbs, gutters and sidewalks and
28 feet of paving on the west side of the street. Adams Avenue shall be constructed by the
developers to connect to Oregon Street (not across the railroad tracks) upon completion of
the combined development of Phases 6 and 7, and where necessary the City will acquire
road right-of-way to complete the connection. Sidewalks on all portions of Adams Avenue
shall be constructed in the same meandering design as approved for Century Drive."

Modifv the Conditions of Approval to add the requirement that Adams Road be extended
from Tualatin-Sherwood Road north to the east end of the existing stub road connecting to
Highway 99W near Home Depot prior to issuance of occupancy permits for any structures
included in the redevelopment of Phase 4,

Modifv the Conditions of Approval to add a new condition requiring the applicant and the
City to enter into a Development Agreement detailing the parties' respective obligations with
respect to the off-site transportation improvements required and memorializing the
developer's election pursuant to CDZC 16.32.020.H. to develop Phases 4,6,7, and I for
uses allowed under the Ll base zone text applicable on August 3, 1995 (when the City
approved the PUD Final Development Plan).

Section 2. The City acknowledges and accepts the applicants decision to elect to
develop Phases 4, 6,7 and I under CDZC 16.32.020.H, including the ability to develop those
phases for General Retail Trade under Section 2109.02 of the 1995 CDZC. Accordingly, the
City Council interprets that the current provisions of CDZC 16.32.030.k which restrict retail uses
in the Ll zone to a maximum of 60,000 square feet, will not apply to site plan review of the PUD.

Section 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the Development Agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

Section 4. The City Council determines that, as conditioned, the continuation of the
PUD is in the public interest consistent with Sherwood Zoning and Community Development
Code 16.40.040.A.2.

Section 5: This Resolution shall be effective upon its approvaland adoption.

Duty passed by the City Council this 4th day of December 2007.

Resolution 2007-081
December 4.2007
Page2 of 3, with Exhibits 1 (5 pgs), 1-A (1S pSs),2 (11 pgs) 2-A(10 pgs) and 2-B (2 pgs)

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 17



Resolution 2007-081
Deeember4,2007
Page 3 of 3, with Exhibits 'l (5 pgs), 1-A (19 pgs), 2 (11 pgs) 2-A (10 pgs) and 2-B (2 pgs)

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 18



DEVBLOPMBNT AGREEMENT

PARTIES

The Parties to this Development Agreement ("Agreement") are the City of
Sherwood, Oregon ("City") and Pam and Clarence Langer, as to Phase 4, and the Langer
Family, LLC, as to the remainder of the PUD (collectively, "Langer").

RECITALS

1. On April 26,1995, the City approved a Preliminary Development Plan for a

Planned Unit Development ("PUD") on property owned by Langer. The
subject property is located generally southeast of Hwy 99W and south of the
Tualatin-Sherwood Road, in the City.

2. The decision approved development of the property in eight (8) separate
phases. The decision contemplated and assigned specific uses to each phase,
including High Density Residential, Retail/Commercial, and Light Industrial
(LD.

3. The portions of the PUD designated LI have not yet developed, except for a
portion of Phase 4, which was developed as a mini-warehouse use under the
General Retail Trade category of allowed uses in the LI zone. Since the
approval of the PUD, the City has amended its list of permitted and
conditional uses in the LI zone, subject to the City's Zoningand Community
Development Code ("ZCDC') I6.32.020.H, which provides the following:
"Approved PUDs may elect to establish uses which are permitted or
conditionally permitted under the base zone text at the time of final approval
of the PUD."

The PUD approval contained conditions of approval including: a requirement
for a wetlands delineation prior to development of Phase 8; the construction of
Adams Drive at the time of development of Phase 6; and the elimination of
the then-proposed extension of Century Drive east of Adams Drive.

The Final Development Plan was approved August 3,1995. Neither the
Preliminary Development Plan nor the Final Development Plan approvals
related to a site plan. Thus, site plan review is required for each phase as

development is proposed for that phase.

Phases 1 through 3 and 5 have been developed, and a portion of Phase 4 was
developed as above-described and is anticipated for future redevelopment.
The purpose of this Agreement is to clarify and refine the intent of the Parties
regarding:

Page I of 12
\\Cos-dc1\shared\Sherwood City Council\Electronic Packets\Electronic Packets 2007\12.04.07 WIP\10 Resolution 2007-081
Exhibit2 - I¿nge¡Development Apreement 11 29 07 redline.DoC@

4.

5.

6.

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 19



(a) The allowed uses of Phases 4, 6,7 and 8 of the PUD, all of which are
designated for LI uses;

(b) The timing of related improvements, including the construction of
Adams Drive and Century Drive;

(c) The cost-sharing of public improvements, including the construction
of Adams Drive and Century Drive; and

(d) Certain related matters.

7. In consideration of City's approval of Langer's election to develop the
remaining phases of the PUD as set forth in this DA, Langer is making a
companion request for Minor Change to the PUD that will increase the
number and type of transportation improvements adjacent to those phases of
the PUD, in addition to accelerating the timing of the construction of Adams
Drive south of Century Drive. This Agreement is a condition of approval for
the PUD modification and is made a part of that decision by this reference.

8. This Agreement represents only the agreement between the City and Langer
with respect to the PUD modification and does not preclude or require any
conditions that may arise from a subsequent application for site plan review.
It is the intent of the parties that the site plan review conditions should not be
inconsistent with this Agreement.

9. This Agreement is only between the City andLanger and does not affect any
conditions or improvements that may be required by other jurisdictions.

AGREEMENT

A. PUD USES

1. Applicable Code. ZCDC 16.32.020.H, provides that "Approved PUDs may
elect to establish uses which are permitted or conditionally permitted under
the base zone text at the time of final approval of the PUD." The Langer PUD
was approved and Phases 4,6,7 and 8 were assigned the Light Industrial
("Lf') base zone designation on August 3,1995.

2. Permitted and Conditional Uses. Accordingly, Langer elects to establish uses
on the Ll-designated phases of the PUD that were permitted or conditionally
permitted under the LI base zone text applicable on August 3, 1995, including:
"IJses permitted outright in the GC zone Section 2.109.02, except for adult
entertainment businesses, which are prohibited." A copy of the uses permitted
in the LI and GC zones on August 3,1995 is set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

3. Election of Uses and Acceptance. The City acknowledges and accepts
Langer's decision to elect to develop Phases 4, 6,7 and 8 under ZCDC
I6.32.020.H. including the ability to develop those phases for General Retail

Page2 of 12
\\Cos-dc1\shared\Sherwood City Council\Ëlectronic Packets\Electronic Packets 2007\12.04.07 WIP\10 Resolution200T-081
Exhibit 2 - t¿nger Develooment Agreement I 1 29 07 red-line.DOC@

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 20



B.

Trade under Section 2.109.02 of the 1995 ZCDC. Accordingly, the current
provisions of ZCDC 16.32.030.K, which restrict retail uses in the Ll zone to a
maximum of 60,000 square feet, will not apply to site plan review of the PUD.

l.

ADAMS DRIVE SOUTH EXTENSION

City Commitments. Except as otherwise provided in this section, as soon as

reasonably practicable and in any event prior to Langer's construction of any
portion of Adams Drive south of the PUD's southern boundary, the City, at the
City's sole cost and expense, will take the following actions:

Acquire the necessary right-of-way (except that portion located within the
PUD) and complete the design and engineering for construction of the
extension of Adams Drive ("South Extension") south from its present
terminus up to but not including the railroad crossing between the southem
PUD boundary and Oregon Street ("Rail Crossing");

Obtain all necessary permits for the construction and operation of the South
Extension, including without limitation, all permits associated with allowing
impacts to wetlands;

Provide for the mitigation of any impacts to wetlands related to the alignment
and construction of the South Extension; and

Pursuant to the City's standard timeline and procedure in such instances,
accept Langer's dedication of that portion of the South Extension located
within the boundaries of the PUD following final inspection approval and
thereupon assume maintenance obligations for all of the South Extension.

Lanser Commitments. Subsequent to the City's performance of its obligations
set forth in Section 8.1. of this Agreement but prior to issuance of final
occupancy permits for any structures included in Phase 6 and Phase T,Langer
will substantially construct the South Extension, including the traffic circle
and island at the intersection with Century Drive. The street will be aligned
and constructed in a manner consistent with the "_-percent drawings"
prepared by Hopper Dennis Jellison, PLLC dated and on file
with the City. Upon completion of the construction of the South Extension,
Langer will dedicate and record a public right-of-way easement to the City for
Adams Drive south from its present terminus to the southern boundary of the
PUD.

ADAMS DRIVE NORTH EXTENSIONC.

Page3 of 12
\\Cos-dcl\shared\Sherwood City Cormcil\Elect¡onic Packets\Electronic Packets 2007\12.04.07 WIP\10 Resolution 2007-081
Exhibit 2 - t¿nger Development Agreement 11 29 07 redline.DOC@

a.

b.

c.

d.

2.

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 21



City Commitments. Except as otherwise provided in this section, as soon as

reasonably practicable and in any event prior to Langer's construction of any
portion of Adams Drive north of the PUD's northem boundary, the City, at the
City's sole cost and expense, will take the following actions:

Acquire the necessary right-of-way for and complete the surveying, design,
and engineering for construction of an extension of Adams Drive ("North
Extension") from the north side of the intersection with Tualatin-Sherwood
Road, north to the existing stub road connecting to Highway 99W, with the
alignment to curve east around the PGE substation and connect to the east end
of the Home Depot stub road. The tentative, non-binding alignment and cross-
section of the North Extension are set forth in Attachment B, attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference. The rigürt-of-way. desisr and
engineering shall anticipate and include at least 43 p.m. peak-hour vehicle
trips per acre from Phase 4 to accommodate redevelopment of Phase 4.

-Any substantial changes to thgis alignment and cross-section shall require an
amendment to this Agreement. Such amendment shall only relate to this
section of the Agreement, and all other terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall remain in fulI force and effect. A "substantial change" may
include but is not limited to an increase in the number of lanes, an increase in
the right-oÊway width by 10 or more feet, requiring additional landscaping,
medians, or pedestrian paths, shifting the alignment east or west by fifty (50)
or more feet, and/or any other changes that will substantially increase the cost
of construction.

Obtain all necessary permits for the construction and operation of the North
Extension, including without limitation, all permits associated with impacts to
wetlands, all approach andlor signal permits required by the Oregon
Department of Transportation for the intersection of Highway 99W and the
existing stub road, and all approach permits required by Washington County
for the connection of the North Extension and Tualatin-Sherwood Road.

Provide for the mitigation of any impacts to wetlands associated with the
alignment and construction of the North Extension

Otherwise remove any legal or planning constraints to the construction of the
North Extension*

Pay any extraordinary labor costs associated with Langer's performance of its
obligations under Section C.2.,where "extraordinary labor costs" means any
costs required by law to exceed an arms-length privately negotiated rate solely
due to the nature of the improvement

Page 4 of 12
\\Cos-dcl\shared\Sherwood City Council\Electronic Packets\Electronic Packets 200n12.04.07 WIP\10 Resolution 2007-081
Exhibit 2 - l¿nger Development Aereement 1l 29 07 red-1ine.DOC@

eemæt t t 29 07 red line,

1.

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 22



f. Pay any extraordinary construction costs associated with Langer's
performance of its obligations under Section C.2. that are attributable to
extraordinary environmental or geographic conditions,;-and

g. Pursuant to the City's standard timeline and procedure in such instances,
assume maintenance obligations for all of the North Extension following the
City's final inspection approval of the North Extension.

h. Permit Langer to assume. for purposes of completing the required traffic
study. that the North Extension has been planned and funded for construction
prior to development of Phases 6 and 7 pursuant to Langer's altemative
commitments to construct the North Extension or make a pa)¡ment in lieu
thereof pursuant to Section C.2. below.

i. Permit Langer to assume. for purposes of completing the required traffic
sfudy. that the North Extension has been planned and funded for construction
prior to the redevelopment of Phases 4 pursuant to Langer's alternative
commitments to construct the North Extension or make apayment in lieu
thereof pursuant to Section C.2. below.

j. The City will not require the closure of any residential access to Phase 4 from
Tualatin-Sherwood Road until redevelopment of Phase 4. The City will
reimburse Langer for the cost of relocatine and rebuilding any access to and
from the existingcommercial uses on Phase 4 resulting from the closure of
anv access due to the construction of the North Extension. includins the
relocation of anv administrative facilities associated with the commercial use.

k. In the event Laneer pays a fee in lieu of construction as described in Section
C.2. below. the City will:

(A) Place the payment into an existing or newly-created interest-bearing City
Trust and Agency Fund:

(B) Grant credits for transportation S]¡stern Development Charges ("SDC's")
otherwise payable by Lanser as if Langer had constructed the North
Extensionl and

(C) Use the pavment-in-lieu exclusively for the construction of the North

construction of the North Adams Extension or anlr portion thereof within five
(5) years after Laneer deoosits the fee with the Citv. the City shall return the
fee-in lieu. together with any interest thereon to Lanqer. Lanqer successor or a
person desienated by Langer's successor. minus an.'ø amount provided as a
credit asainst transportation SDC's under paraeraph (B) above. This
Ageement does not constitute a "contract for construction of the North
Extension" for purposes of this subsection.

Page 5 of 12
\\Cos-dc1\shared\Sherwood Cig Council\Electronic Packets\Electronic Packets 2007\12.04.07 WIP\10 Resolution 2007-081
Exhibit 2 - t¿nger Development Ageement l1 29 07 ¡edline.DOC@

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 23



2. Lanser Commitments. Langer agrees to take the followine actions with
respect to the North Extension:

a. Subsequent to the City's performance of its obligations set forth in Section
C. 1 . of this Agreement but prior to issuance of the final occupancy permit
for any structure included in the
Phases 6 and T,Langer will substantially construct the North Extension
consistent with the alignment and cross-section described in Section C.1.a.
of this Agreement.

b. Alternativelv. in the event the Citv has not substantiall)¡ performed the
obligations set forth in Sestion C. 1.a. to d. of this Aqreement by a date
that is sixty (60) days after Langer submits construction drawines for
public improvements associated with the development of Phases 6 and 7
to the City. Langer shall submit a fee in lieu of construction in an amount
equal to the cost estimate for the construction of the North Extension prior
to the issuance of an occupancy permit for any structure included in the
development of Phases 6 and 7. Langer's timelli deposit of a fee in lieu
under this paraÊraph shall fullv satisfy Langer's obliqations under Section
C.2.a. of this Agreement and shall trieser the Citv's performance of its
commitments under Section C.l.k of this Aereement.

c. In the event the City refunds the fee-in-lieu as described in Section
C.2.k(C) of this Aereement prior to the redevelopment of Phase 4. and
subsequent to the performance of the City's other obligations under
Section C.1.. Langer wiil substantiallv construct the North Extension
consistent with the aligrment and cross-section provided by the Cit)¡ prior
to the issuance of an occupancy permit for anlu strucfure included in the
redevelopment of Phase 4. [n the event the Cit]r is still in possession of the
fee-in-lieu at the time Phase 4 redevelops. the Cit)' will refund the fee to
Langer. including any interest thereon. or will not require the construction
of the North Extension as a condition of redevelopment.

D. RAIL CROSSING

1. City Commitments. As soon as reasonably practicable, the City, at the City's
sole cost and expense, will take the following actions with respect to the Rail
Crossing:

a. Acquire the necessary right-of-way for the Rail Crossing;

b. Obtain all required crossing or other permits from ODOT Rail and any other
applicable agencies associated with the Rail Crossing;

c. Complete the design, engineering, and construction of the Rail Crossing; and

Page 6 of 12
\\Cos-dcl\shared\SherwoodCityCouncil\ElectronicPackets\ElectronicPackets200T\12.04.07WIP\10 Resolution200T-081
Exhibit 2 - t¿nger Development Agreement l1 29 07 ¡ed-line.DOC@

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 24



d. Use all reasonable best efforts to complete these actions and connect the South
Extension to Oregon Street via the Rail Crossing no later than the date of
issuance of occupancy permits for the development of Phases 6 andT;
provided, however, the failure to complete these actions by such date shall not
be grounds to deny the issuance of such occupancy permits.

2. Langer Commitments. None.

E. CENTURY DRTVE

1. Lanqer Commitments. Langer agrees to take the following actions with
respect to Century Drive:

a. Prior to issuance of final occupancy permits for any structure located in Phase
6 or Phase 7, design and substantially construct a reasonably direct vehicular
connection between the existing terminus of Century Drive on the western
boundary of the PUD and existing Cityright-of-way at the eastem boundary
of the PUD ("Century Drive Connection"). The Century Drive Connection
shall be constructed to the adiusted street standard described in SectionB.2.a.
below.

b. Following construction, dedicate a right-of-way easement to the City for the
Century Drive Connection.

c. Provide the City with copies of receipts of eligible expenses where "eligible
expenses" is defined to include all hard and soft costs of labor and materials
associated with all aspects of the design, engineering, and construction,
including applicable consultant fees, of the Century Drive Connection that
exceed the cost of designing and constructing the Century Drive Connection
as a standard parking lot drive aisle ("Eligible Expenses").

2. City Commitments. The City agrees to take the following actions with respect
to Century Drive:

a. To work with Langer to achieve an adjustment to the relevant City street
standards so that the nature, location, and design of the Century Drive
Connection requires the minimum necessary right-of-way to provide a

vehicular connection and includes traffic calming measures such as
restrictions on through traffic for trucks.

b. Reimburse Langer for all undisputed Eligible Expenses within thirty (30) days
after the City receives the receipts described in Section E.1.c.. City will
immediately contact Langer regarding any disputed expenses and attempt to
resolve the dispute within 90 days of the date the receipt containing the
expense is received by the City. Any disputed expense that remains

PageT of 12
\\Cos-dcl\shared\SherwoodCitvCouncil\ElectronicPackets\ElectronicPackets200T\12.04.07WIP\10 Resolution200T-081
Exlibit 2 - I¿nger Development Agreement 1l 29 07 ¡ed-line.DOC@

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 25



F.

uffesolved after 90 days shall be submitted to mediation as provided in
Section I.12. of this Agreement; and

Pursuant to the City's standard timeline and procedure in such instances,
accept Langer's dedication of the Century Drive Connection following final
inspection approval and thereafter assume maintenance obligations for same.

STORMWATER FACILITY

Lanser Commitments. Prior to issuance of f,rnal occupancy permits for all
structures located in Phase 6 or Phase 7,Langer will design and substantially
construct a stormwater facility ("Stormwater Facility") on Phase 8 (including
any necessary portions of Phase 6), to accommodate existing stormwater
detention and treatment for the PUD, any additional detention and treatment
associated with development of Phases 6,7 and 8, and any detention and
treatment associated with the South Extension and the Century Drive
Connection. In conjunction with this construction, Langer retains the right to
terminate use of the existing stormwater facilities currently located on Phase 7
and Phase 8 ("Existing Facilities"), provided the stormwater detention and
treatment functions of the Existing Facilities are incorporated into the
Stormwater Facility. Langer retains the right to expand the Stormwater
Facility to serve other public rights-of-way and uses outside the PUD in
Langer's sole discretion, provided such expansion otherwise complies with
City standards, including without limitation, awarding credits for SDC's.

Citv Commitments. The City agrees to work with Langer, to the extent
allowed by law, to issue any land use approvals related to termination of the
Existing Facilities through an administrative process and to facilitate any
related process for the vacation of any prior public dedications associated with
the Existing Facilities.

RENAMING OF ADAMS DRIVE

Lanser Commitments. Prior to Langer's dedication of any portion of Adams
Drive as described in this Agreement , Langer will submit a petition to the City
to rename the completed portion of Adams Drive in accordance with the street
name standards of ZCDC 16.108.010.4.4-C. Langer agrees to select a single
name for Adams Drive from the southern end of the South Extension to the
northern end of the North Extension.

City Commitments.

Provided the petition is submitted in the manner described inZCDC
16.108.010.3, the City will support a petition received from Langer to rename
the completed portion of Adams Drive.

Page 8 of 12
\\Cos-dc1\shared\Sherwood City Council\Electronic Packets\Electronic Packets 2007\12.04.07 WIP\10 Resolution 2007-08 I
Exhibit 2 - I¿nge¡ Development A$eement l1 29 07 red-line.DOC@

1.

2.

G.

1.

2.

a.

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 26



H.

If the petition is approved by the City Council, the City shall install standard
City street signage identiffing Adams Drive by its new name.

TRANSPORTATION CHARGES. FEES" AND CREDITS

Transportation Impact Fees. The calculation and assessment of any
Transportation Impact Fees, including any TIF credits, will be made according
to the current Washington County TIF ordinance. Improvements to Tualatin-
Sherwood Road will be creditable towards Washington County TIF's as

allowed in Washington County's ordinance. It is the parties'mutual
understanding that this ordinance provides full TIF credits for turn lanes and
50o/o or 66.67% for traffic signals for a four- and three-leg intersection,
respectively. The City's commitment to this provision is a material
inducement for Langer's agreement to complete the various public
improvements set forth in this Agreement.

For the purpose of determining the number of weekday trips generated by all
commercial land uses in Phases 4, 6,7 , and 8 of the PUD, the land use
category "Shopping Center" from ITE Trip Generation, 7th Edition, shall be
applied to the Washington County TIF Ordinance for the calculations of the
Washington County TIF. The shopping center size to determine the trip rate
will be based on the total square footage of "Shopping Center" in Phase 6, 7,
and 8 combined. The shopping center size to determine the trip rate for Phase
4 will be based on the total square footage of "Shopping Center" in such
Phase 4.

2. Transportation SDC's. The City shall calculate and assess the Project with
SDC's and credits for SDC's, pursuant to the City's Municipal Code, as it may
be amended from time to time, and subject to any resolutions adopted by the
City implementing same.

For the pufpose of determining the number of weekday trips generated by all
commercial land uses in Phases 4,6,7, and 8 of the PUD, the land use
category "Shopping Center" from ITE Trip Generation, 7th Edition, shall be
applied to the City's SDC ordinance for the calculations of the City's SDC's.
The shopping center size to determine the trip rate will be based on the total
square footage of "Shopping Center" in Phase 6,7, atd 8 combined. The
shopping center size to determine the trip rate for Phase 4 will be based on the
total square footage of "Shopping Center" in such Phase 4.

3. Hiehway 99W Capacitv Allocation Program. For purposes of calculating
whether the trips associated with the regulated activities in Phases 6,7, andS
of the PUD exceed the trip limit of CDZC 6.306.D.4,the City shall aggregate
the trips and acreage of all such phases. As a result, the trips associated with
the regulated activities of a single phase may exceed the trip limit that would
otherwise apply if that phase were calculated individually, provided that the
trips associated with all regulated activities for Phases 6,7, and 8 do not

Page9 of 12
\\Cos-dcl\shared\Sherwood City Cor¡ncil\Electronic Packets\Electronic Packets 2007\12.04.07 WIP\10 Resolution 2007-08 I
Exhibit 2 - t¿nger Development Asreement l1 29 07 red-line.D0C@

b.

1.

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 27



exceed the trip limit in the aggregate. At each phase of development of the
PUD, the number of reserve trips for the remaining phases will be identified in
the applicable Trip Allocation Certificate.

I. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Further Assurances. Each party shall execute and deliver any and all
additional papers, documents and other assurances, and shall do any and all
acts and things reasonably necessary in connection with the performance of its
obligations hereunder in good faith, to carry out the intent of the parties
hereto.

2. Modification of Amendment. No amendment, change or modification of this
Agreement shall be valid, unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

3. Relationship. Nothing herein shall be construed to create an agency
relationship or a partnership or joint venture between the parties.

4. Waiver of Default or Condition. ln the event aparty defaults in the
performance of one or more of its obligations under this Agreement or in the
event of the failure of a condition precedent to be satisfied under this
Agreement, the nondefaulting party or beneficiary of the condition may, in its
discretion, waive, as applicable, the default or satisfaction of condition
hereunder and rescind any consequence ofsuch default or failure ofa
condition, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, the parties shall be
restored to their former positions and rights hereunder respectively, but no
such waiver or rescission shall extend to or affect any subsequent or other
default or condition precedent, or impair any right consequent thereon. No
such waiver or rescission shall be in effect unless the same is in writing and
signed by the nondefaulting party.

5. Burden and Benefit: Assienment. The covenants and agreements contained
herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
successors and assigns and shall run with the land. Neither party may assign
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

6. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the
State of Oregon.

7. Notices. All notices, demands, consents, approvals and other communications
which are required or desired to be given by either party to the other
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be faxed, hand delivered, or sent by
overnight courier or United States mail at its address set forth below, or at
such other address as such party shall have last designated by notice to the
other. Notices, demands, consents, approvals, and other communications shall

Page 10 of12
\\Cos-dcl\shared\SherwoodCityCouncil\ElectronicPackets\ElectronicPackets200T\12.04.07WIP\10 Resolution200T-081
Exhibit 2 - t¿nger Development Agreement 1l 29 07 redline.DOC@

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 28



be deemed given when delivered, three days after mailing by United States

Mail or upon receipt if sent by courier; provided, however, that if any such
notice or other communication shall also be sent by telecopy or fax machines,
such notice shall be deemed given at the time and on the date of machine
transmittal.

8. Merger. This Agreement contains the entire agreement among the parties
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and cannot be amended or
supplemented except by a written agreement signed by all parties.

9. Riehts Cumulative. All rights, remedies, powers and privileges conferred
under this Agreement on the parties shall be cumulative of and in addition to,
but not restrictive of or in lien of those conferred by law.

10. No Third Partv Beneficiaries. None of the duties and obligations of any party
under this Agreement shall in any way or in any manner be deemed to create
any rights in, any person or entity other than the parties hereto.

11. Force Majeure. The parties shall use reasonable diligence to accomplish the
purpose of this Agreement but shall not be liable to each other, or their
successors or assigns, for damages, costs, attorneys'fees (including costs or
attorneys'fees on appeal) for breach ofcontract, or otherwise for failure,
suspension, diminution, or other variations of services occasioned by any
cause beyond the control and without the fault of the parties. Such causes
may include but shall not be limited to acts of God, acts of terrorism or the
public enemy, acts of other governments (including regulatory entities or
courts) in their sovereign or contractual capacity, flres, floods, epidemics,
quarantines, restrictions, strikes, or failure or breakdown of transmission or
other facilities ("Force Majeure"). If any party is delayed, hindered, or
prevented in or from performing its respective obligations under this
Agreement by any occuffence or event of Force Majeure, then the period for
such performance shall be extended for that period that such performance is
delayed, hindered, or prevented.

12. Mediation. Should the parties arrive at an impasse regarding aîy of the
provisions of this Agreement, the parties agree to submit to the dispute to
mediation prior to the commencement of litigation. The mediator shall be an
individual mutually acceptable to both parties, but in the absence of
agreement, either party may apply to the Presiding Judge, Washington County
Circuit for appointment of a mediator. Each party shall share equally in the
fees and costs of the mediator. Each party shall be responsible for its own
attorneys fees and other expert fees. Mediation shall be at Portland, Oregon
unless the parties agree otherwise. Both parties agree to exercise their best
effort in good faith to resolve all disputes in mediation. Participation in
mediation is a mandatory requirement of both the City and Langer and failure
to comply with this requirement is a material breach of this Agreement. The

Page 17 of12
\\Cos-dcl\shared\SherwoodCityCouncil\ElectronicPackets\ElechonicPackets200T\12.04.07WIP\10 Resolution200T-081
Exhibit 2 - t¿nger Development Aereement I I 29 07 red-1ine.DOC@

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 29



schedule and time allowed for mediation will be mutually acceptable. If the
dispute is not resolved by mediation, either party may file a lawsuit to resolve
the dispute in a court with proper jurisdiction located in Washington County,
Oregon. Any trial shall be to the court without a jury. In the event of any
such mediation or litigation, each party shall bear its own attorneys' fees and
costs.

Conditions Precedent to Langer's Performance. * Langer's commitments set

forth in this Agreement are conditioned entirely upon the City's performance
of all of its commitments that are precedent to the City's commitments under
and in accordance with this Agreement, and the City's timely issuance of a
PUD modification for the subject property.

U, Netwi&star¿ing any s&ff
ther$t, in its sole dis
the PUÐ ineroverrents by eivift

is

Conditions Precedent to City's Performance. City's commitments set forth in
this Agreement are conditioned entirely upon Langer's performance of all of
its commitments that are precedent to the City's commitments under and in
accordance with this Agreement.

Duration. This Agreement expires not later than January 1,2015.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF.

For the City of Sherwood:

Title

Ross Schultz, City Manager

For Langer:

Page 12 of 12
\\Cos-dc1\sha¡ed\SherwoodCityCouncil\ElectronicPackets\ElecoonicPackets200T\12.04.07WIP\10 Resolution200T-081
Exhibit 2 - I¿nger Development Agreement I I 29 07 red-line.DoC@

13.

t4.

15.

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 30



Date

Page 13 of 12
\\Cos{þ1\hared\Sh€rwood City Council\Electronic Packets\Electronic Packets 2007\12.M.07 WIP\10 Resolution 2007{81
Exhibit 2 - þnger Owelooment Agreemmt I I

Exhibit D5

Packet Page 31



od
Home oJ- the'Iital'úirt Nttt Ndtiotul lyíuft[e lÌcjgc

RESOLUTTON 20r0-033

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR
THE LANGER PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 95-997) AND RELATED pUBLtC
IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood originally approved the Langer Planned Unit Development
(PUD 95-997) April 25, 1995; and

WHEREAS, The decision approved development of the property in eight (8) separate phases
and assigned specific uses to each phase, including High Density Residential (HDR),
Retail/Commercial (RC), and Light lndustrial (Ll); and

WHEREAS, the Langer's subsequently applied for a Minor Modification of the PUD to clarify the
allowed uses and adjust the timing, requirements and sequencing of the PUD phases, which
was approved by the City on November 6, 2007; and

WHEREAS, at the time the City approved the Minor Modification, the City and the Langers
entered into a Development Agreement regarding the development of the Langer property and
the surrounding public improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement committed the Langers to, among other things,
constructing Adams Avenue from Highway 99E south to the intersection with Tualatin-Shenruood
Road ("Adams North"), as well as south from Tualatin-Sherwood Road to intersect with Oregon
Street.

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement committed the City to related activities including,
among other things, completing the planning and zoning for the Adams North area, acquiring
right-of-way, preparing design and engineering plans, and obtaining permits to reconstruct the
railroad crossing at Oregon Street.

WHEREAS, since the Development Agreement was executed economic conditions for
development and public facility financing have changed significantly such that the Parties find it
necessary to re-evaluate their respective commitments.

WHEREAS, the City has secured funding sufficient for the construction of Adams South and
wishes to move construction fonvard in a timely manner to complete that section of the
roadway.

WHEREAS, the construction of Adams South is vital to development of the PUD and the
economic vitality of the City; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to the Development Agreement allow the construction
of Adams South in a manner consistent with the Parties obligations under the Development
Agreement and existing land use approvals; and

Resolution 2010-033
July 26, 2010
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (16 pgs), Exhibit 1 Attachment A (10 pages) Exhibit 1 Attachment B (2 pages)

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 32



WHEREAS, after due consideration of the Development Agreement, the proposed amendments
to the agreement, the existing land use approvals and staff comments, the Council determines
that the proposed amendments to the Langer PUD Development Agreement are in the best
interest of the public and the City and Citizens of Shenruood.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

Section l. The City Council approves the Amended and Restated Langer Development
Agreement as shown in the attached Exhibit 1.

Section 2. The City Manager is authorized to execute the Amended and Restated
Development Agreement on behalf of the City.

Section 3: This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption

Duly passed by the City Gouncit this 26th day of July 2010

Keith Mays, Mayor

ATTEST

C
Murphy, CM City er

Resolution 2010-033
July 26,2010
Page2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 (16 pgs), Exhibit 1 AttachmentA (10 pages) Exhibit 1 Attachment B (2 pages)

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 33



AMENDED AND RESTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

PARTIES

The Parties to this Amended and Restated Development Agreement
("Agreement") are the City of Sherwood, Oregon ("City") and Pamela and Clarence
Langer, as to Phase 4, and the Langer Family, LLC, as to the remainder of the PUD
(collectively, "Laîgef ') .

RECITALS

On April 26,1995, the City approved a Preliminary Development Plan for a

Planned Unit Development ("PUD") on properly owned by Langer. The
subject property is located generally southeast of Hwy 99W and south of the
Tualatin-Sherwood Road, in the City.

The decision approved development of the property in eight (8) separate
phases. The decision contemplated and assigned specific uses to each phase,

including High Density Residential, Retail/Commercial, and Light Industrial
(LD.

The portions of the PUD designated LI have not yet developed, except for a
portion of Phase 4, which was developed as a mini-warehouse use under the
General Retail Trade category of allowed uses in the LI zone. Since the
approval of the PUD, the City has amended its list of permitted and
conditional uses in the LI zone, subject to the City's Zoning and Community
Development Code (ZCDC") 16.32.020.H, which provides the following:
"Approved PUDs may elect to establish uses which are permitted or
conditionally permitted under the base zone text at the time of final approval
of the PUD."

The PUD approval contained conditions of approval including: a requirement
for a wetlands delineation prior to development of Phase 8; the construction of
Adams Drive at the time of development of Phase 6; and the elimination of
the then-proposed extension of Century Drive east of Adams Drive.

The Final Development Plan was approved August 3,1995. Neither the
Preliminary Development Plan nor the Final Development Plan approvals
related to a site plan. Thus, site plan review is required for each phase as

development is proposed for that phase.

Phases I through 3 and 5 have been developed, and a portion ofPhase 4 was
developed as above-described and is anticipated for future redevelopment.
The purpose of this Agreement is to clarify and refine the intent of the Parties
regarding the following issues (collectively, the "PUD Issues"):

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
Iuly 26,2010
Page I of16

2

J

4

5

6.

1

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 34



7

I

9

(a) The allowed uses of Phases 4, 6, 7 and 8 of the PUD, all of which are
designated for LI uses;

(b) The timing of related improvements, including the construction of
Adams Drive and Century Drive;

(c) The cost-sharing of public improvements, including the construction
of Adams Drive and Century Drive; and

(d) Certain related matters.

The City and Langer previously set forth their respective commitments
relative to the PUD Issues in that certain Development Agreement dated
January 3,2008 ("2008 Agreement"), which was a condition of approval to a
companion Minor Change to the PUD approved contemporaneously by the
City.

Subsequent to entering into the 2008 Agreement, economic conditions have
changed such that the Parties find it necessary to re-evaluate their respective
commitments under the 2008 Agreement. The City and Langer now desire to
amend and restate their commitments relative to the PUD Issues set forth
below.

This Agreement represents the only Agreement between the City and Langer
with respect to the PUD Issues and does not preclude or require any
conditions that may arise from a subsequent application for site plan review.
It is the intent of the parties that the site plan review conditions should not be
inconsistent with this Agreement.

This Agreement is only between the City and Langer and does not affect any
conditions or improvements that may be required by other jurisdictions.

10.

AGREEMENT

A. PUD USES

I

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (16pgs)
July 26,2010
Page 2 of 16

2.

Applicable Code. ZCDC 16.32.020.H, provides that o'Approved PUDs may
elect to establish uses which are permitted or conditionally permitted under
the base zone text at the time of final approval of the PIID." The Langer PUD
was approved and Phases 4, 6,7 and 8 were assigned the Light Industrial
('ol-f') base zone designation on August 3,1995.

Permitted and Conditional Uses. Accordingly, Langer elects to establish uses

on the Ll-designated phases of the PUD that were permitted or conditionally
permitted under the LI base zone text applicable on August3,1995, including
"IJses permitted outright in the GC zone Section2.l}9.02, except for adult
entertainment businesses, which are prohibited.o'A copy of the uses permitted
in the LI and GC zones on August 3,1995 is set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

2

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 35



Election of Uses and Acceptance. The City acknowledges and accepts
Langer's decision to elect to develop Phases 4,6,7 and 8 under ZCDC
16.32.020.H, including the ability to develop those phases for General Retail
Trade under Section 2.109.02 of the 1995 ZCDC. Accordingly, the current
provisions of ZCDC 16.32.030.K, which restrict retail uses in the LI zone to a
maximum of 60,000 square feet, will not apply to site plan review of the PUD

B. ADAMS DRIVE SOUTH EXTENSION

Citv Commitments. Except as otherwise provided in this section, as soon as

reasonably practicable and in any event prior to Langer's construction of any
portion of Adams Drive south of the PUD's southern boundary, the City, at the
City's sole cost and expense, will take the following actions:

4.. Acquire the necessary right-of-way and complete the design and engineering
for construction of the extension of Adams Drive ("South Extension") south
from its present terminus up to but not including the railroad crossing between
the southern PUD boundary and Oregon Street ("Rail Crossing");

Obtain all necessary permits for the construction and operation of the South
Extension, including without limitation, all permits associated with allowing
impacts to wetlands;

Provide for the mitigation of any impacts to wetlands related to the alignment
and construction of the South Extension; and

Pursuant to the City's standard timeline and procedure in such instances,
accept Langer's dedication of that portion of the South Extension located
within the boundaries of the PUD following final inspection approval and
thereupon assume maintenance obligations for all of the South Extension.

Langer Commitments. Subsequent to the City's perfoünance of its obligations
set forth in Section 8.1.a. to B.1.c. of this Agreement but prior to issuance of
final occupancy permits for any structures included in Phases 6 or 7, Langer
will substantially construct the South Extension, including the traffic circle
and island at the intersection with Century Drive and the twelve-foot (12')
wide multi-use path extending the length of the South Extension as identified
in the City Transportation Systems Plan (the "Path"). The street will be
aligned and constructed in a manner consistent with the " 9O-percent
drawings" prepared by Hopper Dennis Jellison, PLLC dated April2008 and
on file with the City (the "South Extension Plans"). Upon completion of the
construction of the South Extension, Langer will dedicate and record a public
right-of-way easement to the City for Adams Drive south from its present
terminus to the southern boundary of the PUD (the "South Extension Right-
of-Way").

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (16pgs)
July 26,2010
Page 3 of l6

J

b.

c.

d.

2

J

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 36



J.

a.

Alternative Commitments.

Alternatively, in the event the City has completed the obligations set forth in
Section B.1.a. to B.l.c. of this Agreement and the City receives or accrues
funding equal to the cost estimate for the construction of the South Extension
prior to the time Langer has substantially commenced the obligations set forth
in Section B.2. of this Agreement, the City may, in its sole discretion, elect to
construct the South Extension, including the traffic circle and island at the
intersection with Century Drive, the Path, and if warranted, the traffic signal
at Tualatin-Sherwood Road, at the City's sole expense. In the event the City
undertakes construction of the South Extension, the City will deliver written
notice ("Written Election") to Langer of the City's intent in accordance with
Section I.7. of this Agreement prior to undertaking construction of the South
Extension.

The City will issue a Notice to Proceed to the selected bidder(s)
("Contractor") for completion of the physical construction of the South
Extension within ninety (90) days after delivery of the Written Election to
Langer ("Commencement Date"). In the event the City fails to issue the
Notice to Proceed by the Commencement Date and Langer has obtained final
site plan approval for either Phases 6 and/or 7 by said date, the City will
forfeit its right to undertake construction of the South Extension, and Langer
will re-assume the obligation to substantially construct the South Extension in
accordance with SectionB.2. of this Agreement, unless Langer agrees in
writing to extend the Commencement Date. If the City has not forfeited its
right to undertake construction of the South Extension, the City will
substantially complete the construction of the South Extension within fourteen
(14) months after the Commencement Date ("Completion Date"), and in any
event, prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit for any structure included
in Phases 6 or7.

To ensure the Completion Date is met, the City will include the required
Completion Date and penalties for late completion in the contract ("Contract")
the City enters with the Contractor. The penalties shall be an amount
calculated to reimburse Langer for any losses incurred by Langer due to
Contractor's failure to substantially complete construction by the Completion
Date when such failure prevents the reasonable use of Phases 6 or 7 for retail
commercial pu{poses, but in any event not less than $10,000.00 per day
Langer is unable to make reasonable use of Phases 6 or 7 for commercial
retail purposes. The City shall take all necessary and appropriate action to
enforce the penalty provision in the Contract and forward any amounts
collected to Langer within 30 days of the date the City receives payment.

If the City elects to construct the South Extension under this Section 8.3, the
City will perform its construction activities in a manner that minimizes
obstruction or interference with access to, from, or within the PUD and

b

c.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
Iuly 26,2010
Page 4 of l6

d

4

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 37



Langer's construction, ifany, and use ofthe subject property in accordance
with the PUD. The City will mobilize, conduct, and maintain all construction
activities, equipment and materials on and around the PUD in such manner to
allow use of the South Extension and access between the PUD and the South
Extension through all access driveways. The City's agreement to perform its
construction activities consistent with this section is a material inducement for
Langer to enter this Agreement as it will facilitate Langer's timely completion
of the PUD in accordance with Langer's agreement with its end users of the
PUD.

If the City elects to construct the South Extension, Langer will take the
following actions prior to the City's coflrmencement of construction:

(A) Grant the South Extension Right-oÊWay to the City, provided the City
shall bear the expense of preparing the legal description for the South
Extension Right-o f-Way.

(B) Grant to the City reasonable temporary construction easement(s) to allow
the City to complete its construction commitments, provided Langer's grant of
an easement(s) may be conditioned to ensure that the City's use of the PUD
property does not unreasonably interfere with Langer's use and development
of the PUD.

(C) If Langer has not yet constructed the stormwater facility on Phase 8 as

provided in Section F.1 of this Agreement ("Stormwater Facility"), allow
temporary location of stormwater detention and treatment from the South
Extension on Phase 8 in either a temporary facility ("Temporary Facility") or
the existing stormwater facilities located on Phase 7 and Phase 8 ("Existing
Facilities"). To the extent that the Temporary Facility or the Existing
Facilities will require any expenses for engineering, construction, design,
maintenance, or modification to existing land use approvals, the City will bear
the expenses. If applicable, Langer and the City shall execute and record
appropriate easement documents or amendments to the existing easement for
the Existing Facilities to formalize the parties' respective obligations under
this subsection (C).

(D) Use reasonable best efforts to avoid damaging the Path during
construction and development of the PUD, provided that if Langer causes any
such damage, Langer shall, at its sole expense, repair and replace the Path
back to its original condition.

C. ADAMS DRIVE NORTH EXTENSION

Citv Commitments. Except as otherwise provided in this section, as soon as

reasonably practicable and in any event prior to Langer's construction of any

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit 1 (16pgs)
Iuly 26,2010
Page 5 of 16

e.

5

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 38



a.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (16pgs)
July 26,2010
Page 6 of 16

b

portion of Adams Drive north of the PUD's northern boundary, the City, at the
City's sole cost and expense, will take the following actions:

Acquire the necessary right-of-way for and complete the surveying, design,
and engineering for construction of an extension of Adams Drive ("North
Extension") from the north side of the intersection with Tualatin-Sherwood
Road, north to the existing stub road connecting to Highway 99W, with the
alignment to curve east around the PGE substation and connect to the east end
of the Home Depot stub road. The tentative, non-binding alignment and cross-
section of the North Extension are set forth in Attachment B, attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference. The right-of-way, design and
engineering shall anticipate and include at least 43 p.m. peak-hour vehicle
trips per acre from Phase 4 to accommodate redevelopment of Phase 4.

Any substantial changes to the alignment and cross-section shall require an
amendment to this Agreement. Such amendment shall only relate to this
section of the Agreement, and all other terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. A "substantial change" may
include but is not limited to an increase in the number of lanes, an increase in
the right-of-way width by 10 or more feet, requiring additional landscaping,
medians, or pedestrian paths, shifting the alignment east or west by fifty (50)
or more feet, and/or any other changes that will substantially increase the cost
of construction.

Obtain all necessary permits for the construction and operation of the North
Extension, including without limitation, all permits associated with impacts to
wetlands, all approach and/or signal permits required by the Oregon
Department of Transportation for the intersection of Highway 99W and the
existing stub road, and all approach permits required by Washington County
for the connection of the North Extension and Tualatin-Sherwood Road.

Provide for the mitigation of any impacts to wetlands associated with the
alignment and construction of the North Extension.

Otherwise remove any legal or planning constraints to the construction of the
North Extension.

Pay any extraordinary labor costs associated with Langer's performance of its
obligations under Section C.2., where "extraordinary labor costs" means any
costs required by law to exceed an arms-length privately negotiated rate solely
due to the nature of the improvement.

Pay any extraordinary construction costs associated with Langer's
performance of its obligations under Section C.2. that are attributable to
extraordinary environmental or geographic conditions.

c.

d

e.

f.

6

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 39



ûÞ'

h.

Pursuant to the City's standard timeline and procedure in such instances,
assume maintenance obligations for all of the North Extension following the
City's final inspection approval of the North Extension.

Permit Langer to assume, for purposes of completing the required traffic
study, that the North Extension has been planned and funded for construction
prior to development of Phases 6 andT pursuant to Langer's altemative
commitments to construct the North Extension or make a payment in lieu
thereof pursuant to Section C.2. below.

Permit Langer to assume, for purposes of completing the required traffic
study, that the North Extension has been planned and funded for construction
prior to the redevelopment of Phases 4 pursuant to Langer's alternative
commitments to construct the North Extension or make a payment in lieu
thereof pursuant to Section C.2. below.

The City will not require the closure of any residential access to Phase 4 from
Tualatin-Sherwood Road until redevelopment of Phase 4. The City will
reimburse Langer for the cost of relocating and rebuilding any access to and
from the existing commercial uses on Phase 4 resulting from the closure of
any access due to the construction of the North Extension, including any
necessary relocation of administrative facilities associated with the
commercial use.

In the event Langer pays a fee in lieu of construction as described in Section
C.2. below, the City will:

(A) Place the payment into an existing or newly-created interest-bearing City
Trust and Agency Fund;

(B) Grant credits for transportation System Development Charges ("SDC's")
otherwise payable by Langer as if Langer had constructed the North
Extension; and

(C) Use the payment-inlieu exclusively for the construction of the North
Extension. However, if the City has not entered into a contract for the
construction of the North Extension or any portion thereof within five (5)
years after Langer deposits the fee with the City, the City shall return the fee-
in lieu, together with any interest thereon to Langer, Langer's successor or a
person designated by Langer's successor, minus any amount provided as a

credit against transportation SDC's under paragraph (B) above. This
Agreement does not constitute a o'contract for construction of the North
Extension" for purposes of this subsection.

Lanser Commitments. Langer agrees to take the following actions with
respect to the North Extension:

1.

J.

k.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (16pgs)
July 26,2010
Page 7 of 16

2

7

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 40



a. Subsequent to the City's performance of its obligations set forth in Section
C.1. of this Agreement but prior to issuance of the final occupancy permit
for any structure included in the development of Phase 6, Langer will
substantially construct the North Extension consistent with the alignment
and cross-section described in Section C.l.a. of this Agreement.
However, in the event the City exercises its option to construct the South
Extension under Section B.3. of this Agreement, Langer will substantially
construct the North Extension prior to issuance of the final occupancy
permit for any structure included in the development of Phases 6 or 7.

b. Alternatively, in the event the City has not substantially performed the
obligations set forth in Section C. 1.a. to C.1.d. of this Agreement by a
date that is sixty (60) days after Langer submits construction drawings for
public improvements associated with the development of Phase 6 to the
City, Langer shall submit a fee in lieu of construction in an amount equal
to the cost estimate for the construction of the North Extension prior to the
issuance of an occupancy permit for any structure included in the
development of Phase 6. Langer's timely deposit of a fee in lieu under
this paragraph shall fully satisf' Langer's obligations under Section C.2.a.
of this Agreement and shall trigger the City's performance of its
commitments under Section C.1.k. of this Agreement. In the event the
City exercises its option to construct the South Extension under Section
8.3. of this Agreement, the references to "Phase 6" in this subparagraph b.

shall be replaced with "Phases 6 or 7."

c. In the event the City refunds the fee-in-lieu as described in Section
C.1.k(C) of this Agreement prior to the redevelopment of Phase 4, and
subsequent to the perforrnance of the City's other obligations under
Section C.l., Langer will substantially construct the North Extension
consistent with the alignment and cross-section provided by the City prior
to the issuance of an occupancy permit for any structure included in the
redevelopment of Phase 4. In the event the City is still in possession of the
fee-in-lieu at the time Phase 4 redevelops, the City will refund the fee to
Langer, including any interest thereon, or will not require the construction
of the North Extension as a condition of redevelopment.

D. RAIL CROSSING

1. City Commitments. As soon as reasonably practicable, the Crty, atthe City's
sole cost and expense, will take the following actions with respect to the Rail
Crossing:

a. Acquire the necessary right-of-way for the Rail Crossing;

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
Iuly 26,2010
Page 8 of 16

I

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 41



Obtain all required crossing or other permits from ODOT Rail and any other
applicable agencies associated with the Rail Crossing;

Complete the design, engineering, and construction of the Rail Crossing; and

Use all reasonable best efforts to complete these actions and connect the South
Extension to Oregon Street via the Rail Crossing no later than the date of
issuance of occupancy permits for the development of Phases 6 andT;
provided, however, the failure to complete these actions by such date shall not
be grounds to deny the issuance of such occupancy permits.

2. Lanser Commitments. None

E. CENTURY DRIVE

Langer Commitments. Langer agrees to take the following actions with
respect to Century Drive:

Prior to issuance of final occupancy permits for any structure located in Phase

6 or Phase 7, design and substantially construct a reasonably direct vehicular
connection between the existing terminus of Century Drive on the western
boundary of the PUD and existing City right-of-way at the eastern boundary
of the PUD ("Century Drive Connection"). The Century Drive Connection
shall be constructed to the adjusted street standard described in Section E.2.a.
below.

Following construction, dedicate a right-oÊway easement to the City for the
Century Drive Connection.

Provide the City with copies of receipts of eligible expenses where "eligible
expenses" is defined to include all hard and soft costs of labor and materials
associated with all aspects of the design, engineering, and construction,
including applicable consultant fees, of the Century Drive Connection that
exceed the cost of designing and constructing the Century Drive Connection
as a standard parking lot drive aisle ("Eligible Expenses").

Citv Commitments. The City agrees to take the following actions with respect
to Century Drive:

To work with Langer to achieve an adjustment to the relevant City street
standards so that the nature, location, and design of the Century Drive
Connection requires the minimum necessary right-of-way to provide a
vehicular connection and includes traffic calming measures such as

restrictions on through traffic for trucks.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
Iuly 26,2010
Page 9 of l6

b.

c.

d.

1

a.

b.

c

2.

a

9

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 42



Reimburse Langer for all undisputed Eligible Expenses within thirty (30) days
after the City receives the receipts described in Section E.1.c. City will
immediately contact Langer regarding any disputed expenses and attempt to
resolve the dispute within 90 days of the date the receipt containing the
expense is received by the City. Any disputed expense that remains
unresolved after 90 days shall be submitted to mediation as provided in
Section I.12. of this Agreement; and

c. Pursuant to the City's standard timeline and procedure in such instances,
accept Langer's dedication of the Century Drive Connection following final
inspection approval and thereafter assume maintenance obligations for same.

F. STORMWATER FACILITY

1. Langer Commitments.

Prior to issuance of a final occupancy permit for the first structures located in
Phases 6 or 7, Langer will design and substantially construct the "Stormwater
Facility on Phase 8 (including any necessary portions of Phase 6), to
accommodate existing stormwater detention and treatment for the PUD
(including development of Phases 6,7 and 8), and any detention and treatment
associated with the South Extension and the Century Drive Connection. In
conjunction with this construction,Langer retains the right to terminate use of
the Existing Facilities and any Temporary Facility constructed pursuant to
Section B.3.c. of this Agreement, provided the stormwater detention and
treatment functions of the Existing Facilities and any Temporary Facility are
incorporated into the Stormwater Facility and subject to any written
agreements relating to the Existing Facilities. Langer retains the right to
expand the Stormwater Facility to serve other public rights-of-way and uses
outside the PUD in Langer's sole discretion, provided such expansion
otherwise complies with City standards, including without limitation,
awarding credits for SDC's.

Following construction, Langer will dedicate the Stormwater Facility to the
public for use as a stormwater detention and treatment facility.

Citv Commitments.

The City agrees to work with Langer, to the extent allowed by law, to issue
any land use approvals related to termination of the Existing Facilities through
an administrative process, to facilitate any related process for the vacation of
any prior public dedications associated with the Existing Facilities, and to
modify the existing recorded easement document among Langer and the City
relating to the Existing Facilities.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
Iuly 26,2010
Page l0 of 16

b

a.

b

2.

a.

10

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 43



b The City agrees to accept the dedication of the Stormwater Facility following
final inspection approval and thereafter assume the maintenance obligations
for same.

G. RENAMING OF ADAMS DRIVE

Langer Commitments. Prior to Langer's dedication of any portion of Adams
Drive as described in this Agreement, Langer will submit a petition to the City
to rename the completed portion of Adams Drive in accordance with the street
name standards of ZCDC 16.108.010.4.4-C. Langer agrees to select a single
name for Adams Drive from the southern end of the South Extension to the
northern end of the North Extension.

Citv Commitments.

Provided the petition is submitted in the manner described inZCDC
16.108.010.3, the City will support a petition received from Langer to rename
the completed portion of Adams Drive.

If the petition is approved by the City Council, the City shall install standard
City street signage identiffing Adams Drive by its new name.

H. TRANSPORTATION CHARGES, FEES, AND CREDITS

2.

a.

b.

I Transportation Development Tax. The calculation and assessment of any
Transportation Development Tax ("TDT"), including any TDT credits, will be

made according to the Washington County TDT ordinance. Improvements to
Tualatin-Sherwood Road will be creditable towards Washington County
TDT's as allowed in Washington County's ordinance. It is the parties'mutual
understanding that this ordinance provides full TDT credits for turn lanes and
50Yo or 66.67% for traffic signals for a four- and three-leg intersection,
respectively. The City's commitment to this provision is a material
inducement for Langer's agreement to complete the various public
improvements set forth in this Agreement.

For the purpose of determining the number of weekday trþs generated by all
commercial land uses in Phases 4, 6, 7, and 8 of the PUD, the land use

category "Shopping Center" from ITE Trip Generation, 7th Edition, shall be

applied to the Washington County TDT Ordinance for the calculations of the
Washington County TDT.

2. Transportation SDC's.

The City shall calculate and assess the Project with SDC's and credits for
SDC's, pursuant to the City's Municipal Code, as it may be amended from
time to time, and subject to any resolutions adopted by the City implementing
same.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit 1 (l6pgs)
July 26,2010
Page ll of16

l1

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 44



For the purpose of determining the number of weekday trþs generated by all
commercial land uses in Phases 4, 6, 7 , and 8 of the PUD, the land use

category "Shopping Center" from ITE Trip Generation, 7th Edition, shall be
applied to the City's SDC ordinance for the calculations of the City's SDC's.

Credits.

Langer shall be entitled to seek SDC credits from the City and TDT credits
from Washington County for all qualifying improvements and right-of-way
dedications made by Langer, subject to the then applicable provisions of
Oregon law and applicable ordinances. To the extent allowed by law, the City
shall apportion SDC and TDT charges in the manner that maximizes the
beneficial use of any resulting credits for Langer. In the event the City
amends its SDC ordinance to eliminate the Transportation SDC prior to
Langer's redemption of otherwise valid SDC credits, the City shall exercise
good faith and best efforts to provide Langer a financial benefit in an amount
equal to the value of any unredeemed credits in a manner consistent with
applicable law, provided the City is not obligated to ensure such benefit or
other return on the unredeemed credits.

The City hereby determines that, for purposes of qualifuing for and
administering SDC and TDT credits, Langer's construction of public
improvements and dedication of right-of-way to the City pursuant to this
Agreement are existing condition(s) of approval of the PUD, as it has been
modified by the Minor Change approved in2007.

Highway 99W Capacitv Allocation Program. For purposes of calculating
whether the trips associated with the regulated activities in Phases 6,7 , and 8

of the PUD exceed the trip limit of ZCDC 6.306.D .4, the City shall aggregate
the trips and acreage of all such phases. As a result, the trips associated with
the regulated activities of a single phase may exceed the trþ limit that would
otherwise apply if that phase were calculated individually, provided that the
trips associated with all regulated activities for Phases 6,7, and 8 do not
exceed the trip limit in the aggregate. At each phase of development of the
PUD, the number of reserve trips for the remaining phases will be identified in
the applicable Trip Allocation Certificate.

I. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 Further Assurances. Each party shall execute and deliver any and all
additional papers, documents and other assurances, and shall do any and all
acts and things reasonably necessary in connection with the performance of its
obligations hereunder in good faith, to carry out the intent of the parties
hereto.

2. Modification of Amendment. No amendment, change or modification of this
Agreement shall be valid, unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
July 26,2010
Page 12 of 16

J.

a.

b

4

T2

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 45



5

J

4

I

9

Relationship. Nothing herein shall be construed to create an agency
relationship or a partnership or joint venture between the parties.

Waiver of Default or Condition. In the event a party defaults in the
performance of one or more of its obligations under this Agreement or in the
event of the failure of a condition precedent to be satisfied under this
Agreement, the nondefaulting party or beneficiary of the condition may, in its
discretion, waive, as applicable, the default or satisfaction of condition
hereunder and rescind any consequence of such default or failure of a
condition, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, the parties shall be

restored to their former positions and rights hereunder respectively, but no
such waiver or rescission shall extend to or affect any subsequent or other
default or condition precedent, or impair any right consequent thereon. No
such waiver or rescission shall be in effect unless the same is in writing and
signed by the nondefaulting party.

Burden and Benefit; Assignment. The covenants and agreements contained
herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
successors and assigns and shall run with the land. Neither pafi may assign
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the
State of Oregon.

Notices. All notices, demands, consents, approvals and other communications
which are required or desired to be given by either party to the other
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be faxed, hand delivered, or sent by
overnight courier or United States mail at its address set forth below, or at

such other address as such party shall have last designated by notice to the
other. Notices, demands, consents, approvals, and other communications shall
be deemed given when delivered, three days after mailing by United States

Mail or upon receipt if sent by courier; provided, however, that if any such
notice or other communication shall also be sent by telecopy or fax machines,

such notice shall be deemed given at the time and on the date of machine
transmittal.

Merger. This Agreement contains the entire agreement among the parties

hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and cannot be amended or
supplemented except by a written agreement signed by all parties.

Rights Cumulative. All rights, remedies, powers and privileges conferred
under this Agreement on the parties shall be cumulative of and in addition to,

but not restrictive of or in lien of those conferred by law.

6.

7

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
Iuly 26,2010
Page 13 ofló

t3

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 46



10 No Third Partv Beneficiaries. None of the duties and obligations of any party
under this Agreement shall in any way or in any manner be deemed to create

any rights in, any person or entity other than the parties hereto.

l1 Force Majeure. The parties shall use reasonable diligence to accomplish the
purpose of this Agreement but shall not be liable to each other, or their
successors or assigns, for damages, costs, attorneys' fees (including costs or
attorneys' fees on appeal) for breach ofcontract, or otherwise for failure,
suspension, diminution, or other variations of services occasioned by any
cause beyond the control and without the fault of the parties. Such causes

may include but shall not be limited to acts of God, acts of terrorism or the
public enemy, acts of other govemments (including regulatory entities or
courts) in their sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics,
quarantines, restrictions, strikes, or failure or breakdown of transmission or
other facilities ("Force Majeure"). If any party is delayed, hindered, or
prevented in or from performing its respective obligations under this
Agreement by any occuffence or event of Force Majeure, then the period for
such performance shall be extended for that period that such performance is
delayed, hindered, or prevented.

12. Mediation. Should the parties arrive at an impasse regarding any of the
provisions of this Agreement, the parties agree to submit to the dispute to
mediation prior to the commencement of litigation. The mediator shall be an

individual mutually acceptable to both parties, but in the absence of
agreement, either party may apply to the Presiding Judge, Washington County
Circuit for appointment of a mediator. Each party shall share equally in the
fees and costs of the mediator. Each party shall be responsible for its own
attorneys fees and other expert fees. Mediation shall be at Portland, Oregon
unless the parties agree otherwise. Both parties agree to exercise their best
effort in good faith to resolve all disputes in mediation. Participation in
mediation is a mandatory requirement of both the City and Langer and failure
to comply with this requirement is a material breach of this Agreement. The
schedule and time allowed for mediation will be mutually acceptable. If the
dispute is not resolved by mediation, either party may file a lawsuit to resolve
the dispute in a court with proper jurisdiction located in Washington County,
Oregon. Any trial shall be to the court without a jury. In the event of any
such mediation or litigation, each party shall bear its own attorneys' fees and
costs.

13. Conditions Precedent to Langer's Performance. Langer's commitments set

forth in this Agreement are conditioned entirely upon the City's performance
of all of its commitments that are precedent to the City's commitments under
and in accordance with this Agreement, and the City's timely issuance of a
PUD modification for the subject property.

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
July 26,2010
Page 14 of 16

T4

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 47



Conditions Precedent to City's Performance. City's commitments set forth in
this Agreement are conditioned entirely upon Langer's performance of all of
its commitments that are precedent to the City's commitments under and in
accordance with this Agreement.

Nature of Asreement. The City hereby confirms that it has approved and
executed this Agreement pursuant to its governing charter and not pursuant to
ORS 94.504 et seq., and does further confirm that this Agreement does not
constitute or concern the adoption, amendment, or application of the
Statewide Planning Goals, a comprehensive plan provision, or a land use

regulation, the City and Langer acknowledging and agreeing that any and all
land use approvals required for the PUD are to be obtained (or have been

obtained) in due course on another date in accordance with all applicable laws
and regulations.

Amendment and Restatement. The Parties intend that this Agreement acts as

a full and amended restatement of the original2008 Agreement. Upon this
Amended and Restated Agreement taking effect, the original2008 Agreement
shall no further force or effect.

Duration. This Agreement expires not later than January I,2015; provided,
however, the expiration date of this Agreement shall be automatically
extendedto January 1,2017 inthe eventthatonJanuary 1,2015, Langeris
not in material default of any provisions of this Agreement, has substantially
built out Phase 7, and has obtained a certificate of occupancy for at least one
(1) structure in Phase 6.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

For the City of Sherwood:

Jim Patterson, City Manager

Date:

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (l6pgs)
July 26,2010
Page 15 ofló

t4

15

16.

t7.

15

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 48



For Langer:

Pamela and Clarence Langer, as to Phase 4

Print Name:_

Date:

Print Name:

Date:

Langer Family, LLC, as to remainder of PUD:

By:

PrintName:

Title:

Date

Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit I (16pgs)
J',tly 26,2010
Page 16 of16

t6

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 49



Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit 1-A
July 26, 2010
Page 1 of 10

G.

I.

Temporary uses, íncl
construction offlces

but not limited to portable
real estate sales offices,

2.109 GENERAL COMMERCTAL (GC)

2.109.01 Purpose

The GC zonlng dlstrfct provfdes for wholesale and commercial
uses whlch require larger parcels of land, and or uses whlch
involve products or actlvltles whlch requlre special attention
t,o envlronmental lmpacts a6 per Chapter 8.

2.1O9.02 Pernitted Uses

The following uses are permft,ted outrlght, provÍded such
uses neet the appllcable envl.ron¡nental performance standards
contained in Chapter 8:

À, ProfessÍonal servlceg, fncludÍng but not limlted to
flnanclal, ¡nedfcal and dental, soclal servlces, real
estate, legal, artistlc, and similar uses.

B. General retall trade, lncluding bakeries where product
dlstrlbutlon Ls ltmlted to retaÍllng on the prenÍses
only.

c. Personal and business services, including day cares,
preschools, and kindergartens.

Postal substatlons when located entlrely wit,hin and
incÍdental. to a use perrnltted out:itght,.

D

E

r

uding
and

subject t,o Section 4.500.

Farn and garden supply stores, and retail plant
nurserlesr but excludlng wholesale plant nurserLes, and
commerclal farm equipment, and vehLcle sales whlch are
prohtbtted.

Àgrlcultural uses such as truck farnlng and hortlculture,
excludlng comnercial bulldlngs and structures, otr the
ralslng of anlmals other than household pets.

.t

H. Commerclal trade schools.

Motion pLcture and lfve theaters, but excLudlng drlve-ins
whlch are prohlbited.

J. Restaurants, taverns, and lounges.

CHAPTER 2
35

Resstutier+2€07-084;Extr'ibit 2-A
Novernåerê-2€O7 - - - - - - - -
Page-l-of-l€-- AÎTACEUENT A

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 50



Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit 1-A
July 26, 2010
Page 2 of 10

K. Automot,lve and other appllance and equlpment parts saleg,
but excludlng Junkyards and salvage yards whl'ch are
prohiblted.

L. Blueprtntlng, prlntlng, publlshlngr ot other reproductlon
selvlceg.

M. Automobile, recreational vehicle' motoxcycle' truck,
manufactured home, boat, farm, and other equípment' sales,
parts gales, repalrs, rentals or gervice.

N. llholesale trade, warehouslng; conmercial storage and
ml.nÍ-warehouslng, except as prohlbtted ln Sections
2. 110.048 and 2.111.04E.

O. Llmtted manufacturlng, lncludlng only: beverage bottllng
plants, commercLal bakeries, machine shops, and
handicraf t manufacturing.

P. Bulldlng materlal sales, lumberyards, contractors storage
and equlpnent yards, building maintenance services, and
siml¡.ar uses.

O, Veterlnarlan offlces and anlmal hospltals.

R. Àgricultural uses lncluding but not timited to farming,
and wholesale and retail plant nurseries. with
customarily associated co¡n¡nerclal buildings and
structures permltted.

S. Medlcal, dental, and slmllar laboratories.

1r. Truck and bus yards and termlnals.

U. AduLt entertalnment buslnesses, subJect to Sectlon 2.208.

2.109.03 Conditional Uses

The followfng uses are permltÈed as condltlonal uses, provlded
such uses meet the applicable envLronmental perfornance
standards contained in Chapter 8, and are approved fn
accordance wlth Sectlon 4.300:

Special care facflftles, fncludlng but not limtted to
hospltals, sanltarlums, convalegcent homeg, correctlonal
lnst,ltutlons, and resident,lal care facilities.

B Radio, televlslon, and sl¡nllar co¡nmunlcat,ion statlons'
lncluding transmltters.

C. Churches and parsonages.

CHAPEER 2
36

A

Resolr¡tiele200F084;€xhibit 2-A
Novernåerê-2€0+ - - - - - - - - - - - -

Fage-l-of-lO--

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 51



Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit l-A
Jrly 26, 2010
Palge 3 of 10

¡

D

E

Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums.

PublÍc and private utility buÍldlngs, including but not
llmÍted to telephone exchanges, electric subst,at,ion, gas
regulator statlons, t,reatment, plants, water wells, and
publfc works yards.

Government offices, includÍng but not Iirnited to
administratÍve office, post' offices, and polÍce and fire
stations.

PubIic use bulldings lncludlng but not llmited to
libraries, museums, comnunity c€nters and senior cent,ers.

Private lodges, fraternal organizatÍons, country clubs,
sports and racgueL clubs, and other similar clubsr but
excluding golf courses which are prohibÍted.

Mote1s or hotels.

ReÉidential apartments when locat.ed on the upper floors,
ln the rear af, or otherwise clearly secondary to a
commercial building.

Publlc recreational facflitles, lncluding but not, llmited
to parks, playftelds, and Spotts and racguet courts, but
excludfng golf courses whlch are prohibited.

Publlc and privat,e schools providing education at the
elenentary school level or hÍgher.

Àny lncidental business, servLce, process, storage or
display, not othe¡r¡ise permitted by,section 2.109, that
is essentfal Èo and customarily associated with any use
pernltted outrlght.
Prohfbited Uses

following uses are expressly prohibited:

Junkyards and salvage yards.

Industrial and manufacturing uses. except as specifÍcally
permltted by Sectlons 2.109.02 and 2.109.03.

t

i
F.

G

H

I
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

l'

I

I
J

K

L

M

2. r09 .04

The

A.

B.

C.

2 . 109 .05

Resolutio+2ê0+e84,-€xhibit 2-A
Novernåer€-2€07 - - - -- - - -- - - -

Fage-{-of-l€--

Any other prohiblted use noted Ín Section 2.109.03.

Di¡nenslonal Standards

No lot area, setback, yard, Iandscaped area, open space, off-
street parktng or loading area, or other site dimension or

CHAPTER 2
37

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 52



Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit 1-A
July 26,2010
Page 4 of l0

C.

requlre¡nent, exlstlng on, or after, the effectlve date of thls
Code shatl be reduced'betow the rnlnlmun requlred by thls Cofe.
Nor shall the conveyance of any Portlon o_f a lot, for ot'her
than a publlc use or-rfght-of-wayr. Ie-ave a l.ot or structure on
the rehatnder of eaiA lot wlth less than mlnlmum Code
dlmenslons, area, setbacks Or other requÍrements, except as
permltted by sectlon 4.400.

A. Lot Di¡nensions

Except as otherwise provlded, regulred mlninum lot areas
and dlmenslons shall be:

1. Lot årea: 10, 000 square feet,

70 feet

70 feet
2, Lot erldth at front Property llne;
3. Lot wfdth at buÍldÍng line:

B. Setbacks

Except as othenrise provided, requl.red minimum setbacks
shall be¡

I

Resokrtio+300F08+,-åóibit 2-A
Novercberê-2907 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Page-{-of-l€--

Front yard: None, unless the lot' abuts a
resldential zone, then the front yard shall be that
required ln the resÍdentlal zone.

)
2 Stde yards: None¡ unless abutting

zone or publlc park ProPerty, then t
minfmum of tvrenty (20) feet,.

a resldentfal
here shalI be a

3. Rear yard: None, unless abuttlng a resfdential
zone, then there shall be a mlnLmum of twenty (20)
feet.

4. Existlng resÍdentLal uses shall maintaÍn setbacks
speclfled in Sectlon 2.105.04.

Helght

Except, as otherarise provl.ded, t,he maxlmum hetght of
structures shall be fifty (50) feet, except structures
wlthln one hundred (100) feet of a resldentlal zone shall
be llmited to the helght, requlrements of that resldential
area. Structures over ftfty (50) feet, fn height Inay be
permltted as condltlonal uses, subject to Sectlon 4.300.

CHÀPTER 2
38 )

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 53



Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit 1-A
July 26,2010
Page 5 of l0

)

2.109.05 Comnunfty Desfgn

For standards relatlng to off-street parklng and loadlng¿
energy conservatlon, hlstorlc resources, environmental
reaources, landscapfng, access and egress, slgns, parks and
open space, on-slte storager. and slte design, see Chapters 5,I and 9.

2.109,07 Flood Plain

Except as otherwÍse provided, Section 8.202 shall apply.

CHAPIER 2
39

Resslut¡o*?00F084,-€xFúbit 2-A
Nove¡nÞerê-20€7------------
Pæe-1-of-lO--

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 54



Resolut¡on 2010-033, Exh¡bit 1-A
July 26, 2010
Page 6 of l0

J.

2.1L0 LIcHr INDUSTRIAT (tr)
2.110.01 Purpose

The LI zonlng dlstrlct, provldes for the manufacturlng,
processJ.ng, assembl.ing, packagfng and treatnent of products
whlch have been prevlously prepared from ra$r materlals.
Industrlal establlshment,s shall not have obJectfonable
external features and shall feature well-landscaped sltes and
attractLve archftectural deslgn, as determlned by the
CommfssLon.

2.LLO.02 Pernl.tted UsêE

The followlng uses are pernltted outright,, provided such uses
meet the applicable environmental perfornance standards
contâfned in Chapter 8.

Veterlnarlans offlces and anfmal hospitals.

Contractor's officeg, and other offices associated with
a use permltted ln the LI zone.

Public and private utilit,les lncluding but not llnited to
telephone exchanges, electrlc substat,ions, gas regulator
stations, sewage treatment plants, water wells and public
works yards.

Glass installation and sales.

A.

s.

C.

D

E Government offÍces, including but not limÍted
statLons, admlnlstratlve offices, pollce
statfons.

to postal
and fire

F

G

H

I

Automobile, boat, t,railer, and recreational vehicl.e
storage.

Laboratories for testing and medical,
photographic, or motLon plcture processfng,
prohlblted by Sectlon 2.110.048.

dental,
except as

IndustrLal
wholesaled
workers.

hancl tool and supply sa!.es,
to other industrlal firms or

primarlly
lndustrial

Other sl¡nilar
4. 600 .

Itght lndustrLal uses subJect, to Section

Uses permitted outrlght fn the GC zone, Section 2.109.02,
except for adult entert,alnment buslnesses whtch are
prohtblt,ed.

CHÀPTER 2
/t0

Resolutiein-3004e8+,-Exh¡bit 2-A
Novernberê-2e0 7- - - - - - - - - - - - -

Fage-tof-{€--

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 55



Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit l-A
July 26, 20'10
Page 7 of 10

K Dwellfng unit for one (1) securtty person employed on the
premlser, and thelr lmmedlate fanlly.
P[rDs, subject to the provlsfons of Sectfon 2.202.L.

Resok{ion-?00ru8+r€xtÉbit 2-A
Novernberê-3007 - - --- - - - - -- -
Page-tr-of-{O--

Cosmetlcs, drugs, pharmaceutlcal,
chemlcals and similar products,
prohlblted by Sectlon 2.110.04.

M. Temporary uses, lncluding but not lÍmlted to construction
and real estate sales offÍces, subJect to Section 4.500.

e

2.110.03 Conditlonal Uses

The followÍng uses are pernitted as Condftional Uses provldedguch uses meet the applfcable envlronmental performance
standards contalned ln Chapter 8 and are approved fn
accordance wlth Sectfon 4.300:

A. Manuf,acture, compounding, processingr assembllng,
packagtng, Èreatnent, fabrlcat,lon, wholesallng,
warehouslng or storage of the following articles or
products:

1. Food products, Íncluding but not llmlted to candy,
datry products, beverages, coffee, canned goods and
baked goods, and meat and poultry, except as
prohtbited by SectÍon 2.1r0.03.

Appliances, Íncludlng Þut not Iinited to,
refrlgerators, freezers, washlng machlnes, dryers;
small electronlc motors and generatorsi heating and
coolJ.ng equipnenti lawn mowers, rototillers, and
chain sawsi vending nachinesi'and s1¡nllar products
and assoclated small parts.

2

3

4

tolletries,
except as

5

6

Electrlcal, tadlo, televlslon, optl.cal, scientlflc,
hearlng aids, electronic, computer? connunications
and sinllar lnstruments, components, appliances and
systems, and slmllar products and assoclated small
parts.

Bulldfng components and household flxtures¡
lncludlng but not llmlted to furnlture, cabLnets,
and upholstery; laddersi nattresses, doors and
wlndows; elgns and dlsplåy structuresi and slmllar
products and associated small parts.

RecreatLonal vehlcles and equip¡nenÈ, lncludlng but
not llmlted to blcyclesT recreatlonal watercraftt
exerclse egulpment, and slmllar products and

CHAPTER 2
{1

)

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 56



Resolution 2010-033, Exhib¡t 1-A
July 26,2010
Page I of 10

E.

2.110.04

The

À,

B.

assoclated small partE, but excludlng motorl.zed
equlpment unless othenrlse permit,t,ed by Sectton
2.110.02 or 2.110.03.

7. Muslcal lnstrunents, toys and noveltles,

8. Pottery and ceraml.cs, lfmlted to products ustng
previously pulverfzed clay.

9. Textllee and flber products.

10, Other snall products and tools manufactured from
prevl.ously prepared or semi-flnished materials,
fncludlng but not llmltecl to bone, fur, leather,. feathers, textfles, plastfcs, glass, wood products,
metals, tobacco, rubber, and preclous or semi-
precious stones.

B. Laundry, dry cleaning, dyelng or rug cleanfng plants.
C. Ltght metal fabrlcatÍon, rnachíning, weldlng and

electroplattng and casting or moldlng of seni-fintshed or
flnished metals.

Offlces assocfated with a use condltlonally permitted in
the LI Zone.

Sawmills.

Prohlblted Uees

followfng uses âre expressly prohiblted:

Adult Entertalnnent, BuElnesses .

D

Àny use permltted or condÍtionally permltted
Sectlon 2.111 that ls not speclflcalty tlsted ln
Sectlon, and any use lfsted ln Sect,ton 2.111.04.

Auto wreckfng and Junk or salvage yards.

Dlstlllatlon of oll, coal, wood or tar comBounds and the
creosote treatnent of any products.

Manufacture, conpounding, processfng, assembllng,packaglng, treatment, fabrlcat,lon, whotesalé,
warehouslng, or storage of the followlng products of
substances, except, for any lncldental busiñess, servfce,
process, gtorage, or dfsplay that ls essentlal to and
customarlly assoclated, 1n the Clty,s determfnatLon, wlth
any othervrlse permltted or condltlonally permltted usef

CHÀPTER 2
t2

under
this

c

D

E.

Resolutìe*3€07-0€4;Extribit 2-A
Nowpeberê-3007------
Pag€-{-of-lO--

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 57



Resolut¡on 2010-033, Exhibit 1-A
July 26,2010
Page I of 10

1 Àbraslves, åcldË, disfnfectanta, dyes and palnts,
bleachtng powder and soaps and sfmtiar proaäcis.

Àmmonia, chlorine, sodium compounds,
similar chemlcals.

2 toxics, and

3. Cellulold or pyroxylln.
4. Cement, lime, gypsun, plaster of parfs, cLay,creo6ote, coal and coke, tar and tar-based roofln!

and waterprooflng materfals and slmllar substances.

5. Explosives and radioactive ¡naterl.als.

6. Fertlllzer, herblcldes and lnsect polson.

F. Metal rolllng and extractfon nills, f,orge plants,
smelters and blast furnaces.

G. Pulp mllls and paper mllls.
H. slaughter of lÍvestock or poultry, the manufacture ofanimal by-products or fat renderlñg.
I. Leather tanneries.

J. General purpose solid waste landfirrs, lncinerators, andother solid sraste facllitÍes.
2. 110.05 Dimenslonal Standards

No lot, arear- setback, yard, landscaped area, open spacer,.off-street parking or roadlng area, oi other sttã oÍnjension or
. reguirement, exlstlng on, br after, the effectfve date of thls

code shall be reduced berow the mlnlmun requlred by thts code.Nor shall tl¡e conveyance of any portlon õr a rof, for otherthan a publlc use or rtght-of-wàyf teave a rot or slructure onthe remalnder of sald lot wtth ress than ninlmum codedlnensions, arèa, setbacks or other requirements, except aspermitted by Section 4.400.

A. Lot Df¡renslons

Except as other}rlse provlded, requlred minimum lot area
and dlmenslons shall be:

t.
2,

3.

Lot area: 10r000 sq. feet
Lot wldth at front property llne: 100 feet,

Lot wldth at bulldlng llne:
CHÀPTER 2

43

Resolutie*3€07-€€*,-Exhibit 2-A
NoveraþerG-2007------
Page-1-of-l€--

100 feet

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 58



Resolution 2010-033, Exhibit 1-A
July 26, 20'10
Page 10 of 10

B. Setbacks

Except as otheñ"fse provided, regulred mlnimum setbacksshall be:

I Front yard: ft4enty (20) feet, except when abuttl
a resldentlal zone or publlc park, then there sha
be a nlnfmum of forty (40) feet.

ng
11

2 SIde yards: None, except, when abuttlng aresldentfal zone, then there shall be a mlnLnum offorty (40) f,eet.

3. Rea¡ ya¡d-: None, except when abuttÍng aresldential zone, then there shall be a mfnfmrim offorty (40) feer.
4. Corner lots: Ívrenty (20) feet on any side faclng astreet, except when abutt,Ing a resfdent,ial zone,

then there shall be a mtnlmu¡n of forty (40) feet.
Hetght

_Except as other¡lse provlded, the naxfmu¡n helght shatl beftfty (50) feet, except that structures -wtttrtn one
hundred (100) feet of a residentlal zone shatt be lÍmitedto the heÍght requLrements of the resl.dentlal zon€.

CommunLty Deslgn

c.

2 . 110.06

ResoMiet*300F08+,-.B6ibit 2-A
Novernbe¡ê-2€07 - - - -- - - -- - - -
Page-l-of-l€--

For standards relat,fng to off-street parking and loadlng,enerçJy conservatlon, hLstorlc resources, - environmentãl
resources, Iandscapfng, access and egress, signs, parks and
open space, on-slte storage, and slte deslgn, see Chãpters 5,8 and 9.

2.110.07 Flood plaln

Except as'othen¡lse provlded, Sectlon 9.202 shall apply.

CHÀPIIER 2
44

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 59



DKS Associates Exhibit B

Tiì,1 N S pt lì i A i | 0 li 5 iiL u T r0 i', s

Ttanspotbtlon
Syste,m Plan

Adams Street

0-14' Medion/

Collector
Street Þes nC

12' 7'

E - On-street Pàrking Lane
(except al ¡ntersection s)

/Vofes..

1. ln constrained conditions on collectors a
ninimum wtdth of 10 feet may be considered
(i.e. for intersection turn tanei).14-feet is
desirable for continuous two-way left turn
/anes-

2. B feet for residenfral streets, 6 feef rn
com nerc¡al /ín d u str¡a I a re a s.

3. Turn lane waffants should be reviewed using
Htghway Research Record No. Zt l, NCUìÞ
ïfgrf N, 279 or other updated/superseding
reterence.

stics

A variance requ¡res demonstration of hardship or
othèr exceptional circumstances resulting from
cond¡tions ofthe property. Variances must meet
Sherwood Development Codo ând TPR cr¡teria.

Figure 8.{
COLLECTOR STREETS

SHERWOOD
STREET CROSS SECTIONSI

Vehicle Lane Widths
(Turn Lane - 12-14 fL) *1 11 ft.

On.Street Parkìns I ft.-Optional
B icy cl e La n e s (n Í n im u m s) 6 

'I.Sidewa/ks hínimumsl 6-g ft,.2
Landscape Sfrips Required
Raised Medìans O ptiO n al (Requied whe¡e

' 3Janêsecliñnilscdl

Neighborhood Traffic
Management (NTM)

Under Special
Conditions

Transit ApþrÒprlate

Turn Lanes When Warranted r3

Access Control See lafer Dlscussion

Characteristic Collectors

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 60



ENNIS

P.LLC.

ññffiõDR-FTFñi¡ffií'
LANDSCAPE ÁRCHI1ECTS
l@OûFlæPryRd4*16
Pd.4qø4
(s)ø1o5
(J&) @5.v6
¡s (sr) %.Dr
h.ilt ñ*t¡¡r¡*.óû

ON

Exhibit D6

Packet Page 61



Exhibit D7

Packet Page 62



Exhibit D7

Packet Page 63



R. James Claus

222l1.SW Pacific Highway

Sherwood, Oregon 97t4O

FAX 503-625-6051

April26,2O22

City of Sherwood

Planning Department

22560 SW Pine 5t.

Sherwood, OR 97140

Re LU 2022-OO4 MM

Applicant: Sentinel Storage ll

Comments for the land use hearing and record

Planning Commissioners:

I write in opposition to the above-numbered application for a major modification to the existing

self-storage development located at 21900 SW Langer Farms Parkway. Please enter this letter

into the record of these proceedings.

The applicant proposes to remove the existing RV storage canopy at the site and replace it with

a three-story self-storage building. Both the applicant and staff acknowledge that a self-storage

facility such as the one being proposed are prohibited on the site based on the existing LI-PUD

zoning.

Rather than seeking an amendment to the text and map of the City's Comprehensive Plan

and/or Zoning and Development Code, the applicant and staff rely upon ORS 92.040, an Oregon

statute which they believe allows the applicant to develop the property based upon the uses

authorized by the SZDC standards in effect in L995, the year in which the City approved the

original Planned Unit Development (PUD 95-1) for the subject property.

Respectfully, both staff and the applicant misunderstand the meaning of ORS 92.040. As

applied to the facts of this case, the applicant cannot rely upon the statute to authorize a use

that the SZDC expressly prohibits, for the reasons that follow. For that reason, I ask that the

Commission deny the application.

L

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 64



ORS 92.040 provides

(1) Before a plat of any subdivision or partition subject to review under ORS 92.044 may be

made and recorded, the person proposing the subdivision or partition or authorized

agent or representative of the person shall make an application in writing to the county

or city having jurisdiction under ORS 92.042 for approval of the proposed subdivision or
partition in accordance with procedures established by the applicable ordinance or

regulation adopted under ORS 92.044. Each such application shall be accompanied by a

tentative plan showing the general design of the proposed subdivision or partition. No

plat for any proposed subdivision or partition may be considered for approval by a city

or county until the tentative plan for the proposed subdivision or partition has been

approved by the city or county. Approval of the tentative plan shall not constitute final

acceptance of the plat of the proposed subdivision or partition for recording. However,

approval by a city or county of such tentative plan shall be binding upon the city or

county for the purposes of the preparation of the subdivision or partition plat, and the

city or county may require only such changes in the subdivision or partition plat as are

necessary for compliance with the terms of its approval of the tentative plan for the
proposed subdivision or partition.

(2) After September g, !995, when a local government makes a decision on a land use

application for a subdivision inside an urban growth boundary, only those local

government laws implemented under an acknowledged comprehensive plan that are in

effect at the time of application shall govern subsequent construction on the property

unless the applicant elects otherwise.

(3) A local government may establish a time period during which decisions on land use

applications under subsection (2)of this section apply. However, in no event shallthe

time period exceed 10 years, whether or not a time period is established by the local

government.

Although the Staff Report and applicant's narrative do not set out a clear timeline sufficient to

understand the facts in the context of this statute, it appears that the facts needed to properly

interpret the statute are as follows:

L. ln Aprit, 1995, the City approved the original Planned Unit Development (PUD 95-1),

which included the subject property. The subject property was zoned light industrial-
pUD (LI-PUD). The LI-PUD zoning remains, although the uses in the zone have changed

Z. ln 2008, the City and applicant entered into a Development Agreement specifying that

the uses authorized on the subject property were to be determined based upon the

uses authorized in the LI-PUD zone under the 1995 SZDC, not the code in effect on the

date of the application.

2

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 65



3. ln 2010, the City and applicant entered into an Amended and Restated Development

Agreement ("Amended Agreement"), which amended the 2008 Development

Agreement based upon a "change in economic conditions" since the 2008 Development

Agreement was entered into by the parties. See Recital 8 in the 2010 Amended

Agreement, attached to the applicant's narrative as Exhibit H.

4. The Amended Agreement restated the desire by the applicant and the City that

subsequent uses on the undeveloped Ll-PUD zoned property within the PUD (which

included the subject property)would be evaluated based upon the uses authorized in

the LI-PUD zone under the 1995 SZDC.

5. The Amended Agreement further provided that the right of the applicant to rely upon

the terms of the Amended Agreement, including the right to develop the property

based upon the uses authorized in the LI-PUD under the 1995 SZDC, would terminate on

either January L,zOtS or January L,2Ot7. See paragraph 1.7 of the Amended

Agreement.
6. On March 30,2OL2,applicantsubmitted asubdivision application (SUB L2-O2lto

subdivide portions of the 1995 PUD property, includingthe subject property. See the

Staff Report & Notice of Decision for File No. SUB 12-02, dated June 21, 2012. The

subdivision application did not a proposal to change the agricultural use on the subject

property to any of the uses authorized under the 1995 SZDC, so neither staff nor the

City Planning Commission evaluated the proposal based upon the uses being proposed,

and whether they were consistent with the LI-PUD zoning in effect under the L995

SZDC. See Staff Report & Notice of Decision for File No. SUB t2-O2, dated June2t,2Ot2
(Sec. lV Findings for SZDC 516.32.020, pg. 9 of 33). SUB 12-02 was approved.

7. At the time of the application for SUB 12-02, 916.32.020(H) of the SZDC contained the

following sentence:

"Approved PUDs may elect to establish uses which are permitted or

conditionally permitted under the base zone text applicable at the time of final
approvalof the PUD."

8. Section 16.32.O2O(H) was repealed on August 7,2OL2.

9. On September 28,2016, the City approved MLP 16-02 and SP L6-06. The decisions

authorized the development of a 436 unit storage facility on the subject parcel. The

authorized development has been approved and is the subject of this Major

Modification application.
10. Mini-storage is not an allowed use in the LI-PUD zone. lf the applicant is required to

apply with the current SZDC, this application cannot be approved.

ARGUMENT

t. The 2007 and 20L0 Asreements Have Expired bv Their Terms. Under ORS 92.040(3),

the Deadline For the Aoolicant to Relv Upon the 1995 Cod e and the Protections

3

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 66



Arrthorized bv ORS o40t2l Terminated With the Exoiration the 2OO7 and 2O10

Asreements. Not 10 Years From the Date of the 2012 Approval in SUB 12-02.

As staff acknowledges on page 5 - 6 of the Staff Report, the Amended Agreement between the

City and the applicant has expired by its terms. See Exhibit H of the applicant's narrative.

Section 17 of the Amended Agreement provides that the terms of the agreement, which

includes the langubge allowing the owner of the subject property to develop the property

pursuant to the provisions of the L995 SZDC, expire on either January t,2Ot5 or January L,

2OL7 . Obviously this application was filed after either of those two dates, meaning any future

development of the site, including the right to develop based upon the 1995 SZDC, would not

be governed by the terms of the Amended Agreement.

As set forth above, ORS 92.040(3) allows a city to establish a time period for which the

protections of ORS 92.040(2) apply. ln no event may the time period established by the city

exceed 10 years. ln other words, ORS 92.040 does not create an automatic protection period of

L0 years from the date of a subdivision application. The 10 year time period is the maximum

time in which the property owner/developer may rely upon the land use regulations in effect at

the time of application, but the local government may limit that time period under ORS

92.040(3), which is exactly what happened in this case.

ln this case, both the city and the applicant agreed in 2010 that the right to develop pursuant to

the uses authorized by the 1995 SZDC would expire no later than January I,2OI7. The

Amended Agreement clearly sets out the agreement between the City and the applicant that

the uses allowed under the 1995 SZDC would be authorized on the property, regardless of the

existing limitations of the current SZDC. ln other words, the Amended Agreement addressed

the provisions of 92.040(21. The parties then agreed that the applicant's right to make the uses

authorized by the 1995 SZDC terminated no later than Janua ry L, 20L7. Under ORS 92.040(3),

the Amended Agreement set forth the City's time limit for the applicant to apply the 1995 code

to make uses authorized by a subsequent subdivision of the property, as authorized by ORS

92.040(3). That right ended on January t,2OL7. The applicant is no longer entitled to rely upon

ORS 92.040(2) to allow uses authorized by the 1995 SZDC. At best, that right terminated on

January L,2OL7 under ORS 92.040(3) and the Amended Agreement'

The Aooli waived the Risht to Relv the Annlicable Provisions the SZDC in

Effect in 2012 Under ORS 92.040(2) When lt Aereed to Terminate the Rieht to Applv

Uses as Part of the Amend

4

2.

the 1995 ed Asreement

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 67



Even if the Commission were to find that the City did not establish a time period under ORS

92.040(3) for the applicant to rely upon the SZDC provisions in effect in 2OL2, when the

applicant received subdivision approval under SUB 12-02, ORS 92.040(2) allows the applicant to

waive the right to rely upon the SZDC provision in effect on the date of the application for

approval in SUB L2-02. The subsection creates the right of the subdivision applicant to rely

upon the applicable development provisions in effect on the date of the subdivision application,

"unless the applicant elects otherwise." By entering into the Amended Agreement and

agreeing to a termination date of no later than January \ 2At7, the applicant made a voluntary

choice to terminate the right to rely upon the applicable SZDC provisions in effect on the date

of application for SUB 12-02. The applicant cannot both 1.) rely on the Amended Agreement to

utilized the LI-PUD uses allowed in the L995 SZDC, and 2) attempt to ignore the portions of the

Amended Agreement that terminate that right on January t,2Ot7. That is what applicant

attempts to do here.

3. The Applicant's Position Would Allow an Applicant to lndefinitelv Lock ln

Develooment Under n old Version of a Citv's Land Use Ree ions. and Is Contrarv

to the lntent of ORS 92.040(2)

lf the applicant and staff are correct that ORS 92.04012) authorizes a city to agree with a

developer to lock in uses to a certain version of the city's land use regulations, as was done

here, then there is nothing that would prohibit a city and a property owner from creating an

indefinite right to lock in development based upon land use regulations in effect on a certain

date. That is not what the legislature intended with ORS 92.040{2l.-

lmagine if the City and applicant had not entered a termination date in their 2007 and 2O10

agreements. ln that situation, if the applicant wished to take advantage of ORS 92.040(2), the

applicant could resubmit an application to replat the subdivision at any point in time, and lock

in the right to a decision based upon the earlier version of the city's land use regulations, not

the existing regulations. That is what the applicant and staff are arguing here.

The original PUD was approved in 1995. ln 2O07, the applicant and the City struck a deal

allowing the applicant to ignore the current land use regulations and make uses authorized by

the L995 SZDC. ln 20L0, the applicant and the City struck a new dealwith those same

provisions. lf the 2007 and 20L0 agreements did not contain a termination clause, what would

prevent the applicant from submitting a new subdivision application in 2025,2030, or 2040 and

arguing that they could develop based upon the 1995 SZDC, and that once the subdivision was

approved, they had an extra 10 years to develop under that code. lf the development didn't

occur within the 10 years, they could start again with a replat.

5

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 68



That's not what the legislature intended. The legislature's intent in adopting ORS 92.040(2) is
well documented in Athletic Club of Bend, lnc. v. City of Bend,239 Or App 89 (2010). As the
Oregon Court of Appeals notes in that decision, the purpose of ORS 92.040(2) is to ensure that
for a limited period of time after a subdivision plat is approved, the development as envisioned

by that subdivision approval is not changed, so that the applicant may rely upon the land use

regulations in place at the time of the development.

There is nothing in the Court of Appeals decision that indicates that the legislature intended

ORS 92.040(2) to allow a city and a developer to enter into an agreement locking the city into
enforcing land use regulations in effect on a certain date, allowing the applicant to submit a

subdivision application at some undetermined point thereafter, and then allowing the applicant
to demand that the land use regulations agreed upon would govern development of the
subdivision for the next L0 years after approval. That's exactly what staff and the applicant are

arguing here. A PUD was approved in 1995. ln 2007,12 years later, the City and the applicant

entered into an agreement locking development into what was allowed in L995.

ln 2010, 15 years after the original PUD, the City and the applicant amended the 2007

agreement but retained the right to develop under the 1995 SZDC. ln 20t2, L7 years later, the
applicant submitted a subdivision application based on a L7 year old SZDC, and developed the
property in accordance with the subdivision approval. Now, 27 years later, the applicant is

submitting an application to amend the20L2 approvalbased upon a code that is now 27 years

old, and citing ORS 92.040(2) as its means of bootstrapping itself in to the right to develop
under a 27 year old code. That isn't what ORS 92.040(2) allows.

4. ORS 92.O4O(2) Does Not Anolv to ment That is Different than That Which

Was Proposed and Aoproved bv the Apolicabl e Subdivision Application. The 2012

Subdivision Aooroval (SUB 12-02) Did Authorize Anv Land Use on the Subiect

Propertv. ORS 92.040(2) Does Not Require the Citv to Allow the Applicant to Applv
the 2012 SZDC to a Modification of the Existine. Develooed Subdivision

The Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) has also interpreted ORS 92.040(2), in a case

that was resolved after the Court of Appeals decision in Athletic Club of Bend discussed above.

ln Group B LLC v. City of Corvollis, LUBA No. 2015-0L9 (20L5), LUBA held that ORS 92.040(2)

operates to shield development that is contemplated as part of the subdivision application, but
not development that is different than that proposed at the time of the subdivision application.
As LUBA noted:

6

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 69



"However, the city argues the 2006 subdivision applicant submitted a tentative plan

that proposed no development of Tract B, and no development of Tract B was evaluated

against the applicable criteria or approved in the 2006 decision. Therefore, the city

argues, ORS 92.040(2) does not apply to preclude application of post-2006 standards

such as LDC 3.6.30 and 4.10.60.01b.

We partially agree with the city, Because the 2006 subdivision applicant did not

propose development of Tract B, and the city did not evaluate any development of Tract

B against whatever criteria would be applied to proposed development of lots at the

tentative plat stage, ORS 92.040(2) would not generally operate to shield future

development of Tract B from application of new development standards adopted after

2006 that regulate development of Tract B. However, as explained above, the 2006

subdivision decision did make a significant decision regarding the general location of

future development on Tract B, namely that any future development would occur in the

flag portion of the site, consistent with whatever maximum building setbacks and

frontage standards, if any, which were in effect in 2006. Tract B was clearly not

configured with the expectation that future development would occur in the pole

portion of the site. On the contrary, the pole portion of the site was presumably sized

and configured to allow a driveway and utilities to access the interior of the site, where

future development would occur. Because the 2006 decision accomplished that much,

ORS 92.040(2) operates to preclude application of different or conflicting post-2o06

development standards, specifically the new maximum building setback and frontage

standards at LDC 3.6.30 and 4.10.60.01b, because those standards would effective

compel development to be located in the pole portion of the site. Accordingly, we

agree with petitioner that the city erred to the extent it denied petitioners application

for noncompliance with LDC 3.6.30 and 4.10.60.0L b."

The gist of LUBA's decision in Group B LLC, as set forth above, is that ORS 92.040(2) shields the

subdivision applicant from the application of new city land use regulations that require the

applicant to deviate from the development proposed or contemplated at the time of the

subdivision application. To the extent that the applicant for the subdivision application does

not propose any specific type of development or proposes a development which is then fully

developed, ORS 92.040(2) does not shield the applicant from new land use regulations.

ln this case, the applicant submitted a subdivision application in 2012 (SUB 12-02)which

included no proposed uses. ln fact, as the City noted in its Order approving SUB L2-02, the

applicant did not propose any changes to the agricultural uses occurring on the subject

property, and the City made no effort (and could make no effort) to apply the existing SZDC to

7

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 70



evaluate proposed uses for compliance with the 2OI2SZDC provisions then in effect, or the

1995 SZDC provisions contemplated by the Amended Agreement. The uses on the subject

property weren't established until 20L6, four years after the subdivision, when the applicant n

submitted development and partition applications. Based on the 2016 approvals, the applicant

fully developed the site. The applicant received the benefit of ORS 92.O4O(21, as the applicants

proposed development was approved in 20L6, presumably based upon the 1995 SZDC

standards which the City and the applicant agreed to in the Amended Agreement. Had the City

made an effort to impose additional land use criteria to the 2016 approvals that did not exist

under the 1995 SZDC and that would have prevented the contemplated development, then the

applicant might have had an argument at that time that ORS 92.040(2) prevented the

application of the new land use regulations enacted after 2OL2.

But that's not what happened here. The applicant submitted a subdivision application with no

proposed land use development, received approval, waited four years, and then submitted and

received approval to fully develop the site. The site has been developed. Nothing in ORS

92.040(21allows the applicant to change its mind in 2O22, apply for a different type of

development when none was sought as part of the 2012 subdivision application and which

differs from that which was built as part of the 20L6 approvals, and demand the shield of ORS

92.O4Ol2l for a development that it never intended to make at the time of the 2012 subdivision

approval. The applicant in this case did not need to rely upon the shield of ORS 92.O4O(2),

because the City made no effort to apply new laws to the development contemplated by the

2016 land use approval, which was completed and is now operational. The applicant and staff

are attempting to change the protections of ORS 92.040(2) from a shield to a sword. That is not

what the legislature intended.

As stated above, 1) please enter this letter in the records, 2) please keep the record open for at

least 7 days for the introduction of new evidence, and 3) please place a copy of the City's final

decision in SUB t2-02 into the record. Thank you.

Sincerely,

gitt Cfazr
Jim Claus

Enclosures:

2012 SUB 12-02 Staff Report and Notice of Decision

2016 MLP t6-02/SP 16-06 Sentinel Self Storage Annex ll

2010 Amended and Restated Development Agreement

8

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 71



CIry OF SHERWOOD
Staff Report & Notice of Decislon

Date: June 21,2012
File No: SUB 1?-02
Langer Farms Subdivision

Brad Kilby, Senior Planner

proposat: The applicant has requested preliminary subdivision approvalto divide + 55.09

acres into five individual lots and two tracts for future development consistent with the Shenryood

Viltage planned Unit Development, File No. PUD 95-1. The Planned Unit Development was

approved in 1995 without a preliminary plat.

Pre-App. Meeting:
App. Submitted:
App. Complete:
120-Day Deadline:

Aool icant's Reoresentative:
AKS Engineering & Forestry
13910 SW Galbreath Drive
Suite 100
Sherwood, OR 97140

December 12,2011
March 30,2012

April27,2O12
September 1,2012

A
BACKGROUND
Apolicant/Owner:

Langer Family, LLC
14958 SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road
Sherwood, OR 97140

B. Location: The property is located on the south side of SW Langer Farms Parkway, West of

fuafatin-Sfrer*boO- Roid, and east of SW Oregon Street. The property is identified as tax lot

300 on Washington County Assessor Map 2S129D.

C. P.arcel Size: The subject property is approximately 55'09 acres in size-

D. Existino Develop0ent and Site Characteriglics:
@siieisagriculture.Thecurrentcropappearstobeagrassor
grain crop.lhe property is generally rectangular in site, and includes a gently rolling

ianOscap'e. There i's a ielin-eated naturalresource and buffer area in the southeast

portion it tne site. The buffer and resources includes some trees and riparian landscape

materials. This specific proposal does not include any physical impacts into the resource

afea.

Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) and Portland General Electric (PGE) have power

lines and associated easements through the northeast corner of the site. The subject

property has frontage onto SWTualatin-Sherwood Road, and SW Langer Farms

ira*way. SW Century Blvd. slubs into the property from the east and west. Finally, the
properti contains two existing storm water ponds. One of the ponds is located in the

norih eist portion of the site, and the other is located in the south and west portion of the

site. The existing ponds serve off-site developments.

Page I of33
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision a

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 72



E. Site History: The site has been owned and farmed by the Langer family since the late
1800's. This particular piece of property is made up of phases 6, 7, and 8 of the
Sherwood Mllage PUD that was approved by the Sherwood City Council in 19g5. All
future development is subject to the conditions of the approved Planned Unit
Development and any subsequent amendments.

Zgninq. Claseification and Ogmorehensive Plan Desiongtion: The property is zoned
IUD-LI. Although the property carries a Light lndusbial zoning designation, the City
Council, at the requesl of the property owner, approved a modification to the PUD in File
number PUD 07-01- That decision confirmed that the PUD could elect pursuant to
Section 16.32.020.H. of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code
(SZCDC), to develop Phases 4,6,7, and I with uses that would have been atlowed
under the Light lnduslrial (Ll) base zone text applicable on August 3, 1995 (when the
Gity approved the PUD Final Development Plan). At that time, Retail Commercial (RC)
uses u/ere also allowed in the Light lndustrial zone. Although no specific land uses are
proposed with this subdivision request, the applicant has attended two pre-application
conferences with the City about developing the property with commercialuses.

Adiace4t Zonins and Land Use: The subiect site is currently being farmed. Properties to
the south and east of the site include lands that are zoned Light tnOustriit. Billet
manufacturing is located directly south of the site, and there are two light industrial uses
adjacent to the northeast property line. The remaining properties to the east of the site
are zoned Ll and are nol cunently developed- Properties located to the ralest of the
propefi, on the west side of SW Langer Farms Parhnray, include lands developed with
commercial, residential and public and institutional uses. Some of the commerciat and
residentially developed propedles to the west were de..,e!cped !n earlier phases cf thc
Langer PUD.

ReJiew Tvoe. According to section 16.72.010.2.i, suMivisions between 4-10 lots require
a Type ll review with a decisinn made by City $taff after consideration of public
comments. An appealwould be heard by the City of Shemrood Planning Commission so
long as the person appealing had provided comrnents during the 14-day public comment
period, and it is filed within (14) days after the decision has been mailed.

Public Notice and Hearino: Nolicc of the application was mailed to property owners
ylthin 1000 feet, posted on the property and in five locations throughout the City on April
25, 2012 in accordance with the notice provisions of Section 16.72.020 of the SZCDC.

Review Criteria: Sherwood Zoning and Community Devetopment Code, 16.40(Planned
Unit Development), 16-58.010 (Clear Vision), 16.70 (Administrative Procedures),
Division Vl - 16.104-16.118 (Public lnfrastructure), Division Vll 16.120 (Subdivisionsi,
16.128 (Land Division Design Standards), and Division Vlll 16.144 (Wetland, Habitit
and NaturalAreas).

G.

lt. PuBLtc coilltutENTs

Public notice was mailed, posted on the property and in five locations throughout the City on
April25, 2012. Staff has received the follovrring comments,

F

H

J

SUB 12-02 Langer Farrr Subdivision
Page2 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 73



R Jarnes Claus ol22211SW pacific Highway submitted comrnents op.p_oslng the subdivision

proposal. Mr. Claus alleges that the proposed subd.ivision violates the PUD Code requirements-

bpdcincary, he maintaini ttrat the City can only allow changes in the plan that are neoessary

with the ierms of the preliminary approvals, that the code requires that the preliminary

subdivision be processed concurrehtly with the PUD, that the time has Passed to allow them lo
submit a subdivision proposal, that the traffic survey used to gain approval did not contemplate

the traffic that could result from future commercial development of the site, that the City has

modified the original pUD without citizen input, and that a staff level review is not the correct

process for proiessing the proposed subdivision. A copy of Mr. Claus' full comments is

incorporated into the record.

Staff Response: Staff will address each one of the items raised in Mr. Claus' below:

t The Ctty can only alow changes in the plan that are necessary with the terms of the
preliminary aPProvals.. -

Staff Response: Mr. Claus is referring to Code sectiorr 2.2o2.02(E) which is now Section

16.40.020iE), which states, "Approval of the Preliminary Development Plan shall not conslitute

rinai acceir incn of the pUD. Approval shall, however, be binding upon the lity for the purpose

of p."paiition of the Final Development Plan, and the Gity may_ reqqjre. only such changes in

the pian as are necessary for compliance with the terms of preliminary approvals." This
prouiiitn is tiled the Effect of Decision under the overall heading for Preliminary Developmenl

Ft"n. First, the C1y is not requiring the propos_ed subdivision, and the Final Development Plan

*j, app.o*o in tbgs. lt is rjncbir why Mr. Claus feels that this is relevant to the proposed

development.

t The code requircs that the preliminary subdivision be processed concunently with the
PUD

. The time haspassed to altow them to submit a subdivisian proposal

. Staff Level review rs nof tha conectprocess for prccessing the proposed subdivision

Staff Response: This proposaldoes not constitute a substantial change to the PUD, rather, it is

a subdivislon of land wnicn routinely happens in commercial and industrial developments. The

subdivision was not filed at the saml time that the PUD was processed in 1995, but that should

not preclude a property owner from dividing their property if it meejs the standards the

commJnity puts into'plate. Had there been a subdivision requested.at the time the PUD was

b;il; il;idered in 1'995, the City would have requested that il be reviewed concurrently.

According to the city Attorney's office, "A PUD decision under 16.40 is a separate and distinct

decision Trom a subdivision d'ecision under 16.120. Section 16.40.020.8.5 states, "lf the PUD

inuolu"" the sugivision of land ..,"Apparently, this particular PUD did not when it was

Irppi"""c in 1995 - it was a straight pU[j tnat did not include a suMivision. The code section

t[!; on to say that when tne pUD also involves a subdivision, the two decisions shall be

iiocessea coniurrengy. This affirms the interpretation that ihey are separate decisions, albeit

when they are p.oposed concurrently, they need to be,processed concunently- ln fact, the City

n"s ,eui"*"0 dttrdr subdivisions within this same PUD since the final development plan was

approved.

Furthermore, the pUD approvalis an overlay zone that is applied to a prop_erty. ln this instance,

the ooundari'es of the plrb are not changing, the applicant is not asking for any land use that

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Page 3 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 74



would be inconsistent with the prior approvals, and the prior approvals did not identify which
land was devoted to a specific use. There is not an increase in density because it is not a
residential development. Therefore, this does not constitute a modification to the PUD. lt is
simply a subdivision of land. According to 16.120,030.1.a, "A subdivision application for 4-10
lots will follow a Type ll process.' Subdivisions are processed in accordance with the
administrative provisions spelled out in Section 16.72.

The_refore, this application does not constitute a maior or minor modification to the approved
PUD, and the subdivision can be reviewed as a Type il staff level subdivision.

The traffic suNey used to gain approvat did not contemplate the traffic that could result from
future aommercial development of the site

Staff Response: All newly proposed developments within the boundaries of the PUD have
been required to provide a traffic study, and there is no reason that the City woutd not require a
traffic study for any future proposed developments. This subdivision, in and of itself, dois not
generate any new traffic. Certainly, future development will be required to provide a traffic study
at t[e time o-f application consistent with the developers'agreement. Given the pace of growth in
the Portland Metro area over the past 20 years, il is highly unlikely that the infonnation provided
within the original PUD could stitt be relied upon.

The City has modified the originat PUD without citizen input

Staff Response: The only modification that staff is aware of to this application is file number
PUD 07-01. That decision confirmed that commercial uses would be allowed, and spe[ed out
the community's expectations for future improvements associated with the PUb, That
appiication was processeci in accorclance with the development code Seclion 16.40.040-8.2
which specifies that minor changes to a Final Development Plan may be approved by the
Council without further public hearfng or Commission review, provided that'such changes
do not increase densities, change boundaries or uses, or change the location or amount of 6nd
devsted to specific uses- lt ls nol clear to stafi how this is germane to the proposal at hand
which is in fact, being made after a public comment period in which one public commeni was
received on this matler.

III. AGENCY COMiIENTS

Staff sent e-notice to affected agencies on April 25,2012. The following is a summary of the
comments received. Gopies of full comments are included in the record unless otherwise noted.

9HEIBW9OD E NGTNEERTNG DEPARTMENT:
Engineering staff has reviewed the information provided for the above cited project- Further
review will occur with individual land-use applications for the subdivided lots. fhe projecf(s) will
need to meet the standards established in the City of Sherwood Engineering Disigir-and
Standard Details Manual and Clean Water Services (CWS) Design & Construction Standards
Manual, in addition to requirements established by other jurisdictional agencies providing land-
use comments. City Engineering Department cornments are as follows:

Transportation
There are no improvements proposed with lhe subdivision, although the subdivided lots must
have the ability to access public rights-of-way per the development code of the applicable
agency prior to recording of the final subdivision plat map. lndividual traffic studies will be

Page 4 of33
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 75



required with each subsequent deveropment rand-use apprication- Ail traffic impact analyses

sha* address the cid?$;*ooo d;;;iii Arocation prosram (cos ordinance'2000'1104

codified by sMC rc.ioi.oio) white conSlo"ii'tg the Development Agreement-as amended and

restated by $herwooa-nu"oirtion zoro-oiig.'-b-evetopment Agreement term H'4 (Highway 99w

Capacity Allocation Program) states:

For purposes of carcurating whetherrhe trips assoc_iated with the regurated activities in Phases

6, 7, and g or rre PdD-"i"etd tn"-ttiilimii 9r ZCO! 6'306'D'4 (renumbered as ZCD9

16.107.07O), the city shall aggregate $dlhps and a.cre.age of all such phases- As a result, the

trips associated wiif, it" i"6Jr"6o aaiviii&-of a singre-phase may exceed the trip limit that

wourd otherwise appry if that phase';; iarcuraied 
'individuafly, provided that the trips

associated with arr regurated activities roiFr,ases 6, 7, and g do no{ exceed the fip lirnit in the

aggregate. at eacliilasJ o1_Agy"ropmeni or the' PiJD, the number of reserye trips for the

remaining phases *iir6t ia"niiRuo in the applicable T1p Allocation Certificate'

prior to city approvar of the subdivision, the appricant shail submit a plan identifying lhe

separate acreages o#Ub Fhrru" 6, 7-;;i I, l"t" ine f OO-year floodplain and the SW Century

Drive right- ot-way. City stqff wjll use tn" into-ttion shown on the pian to aggregate the CAP

trip liliif; comparisoriduring future site plan reviews'

It is suggested that the applicant evaluate the intent of and any discrepancies betureen the

originar and amendlo puo'o*cisions,'amenaeo & restated Deveropment Agreement, and the

city Transportation 6yffi Fl"lr; p"ni.rr.irv: itre rocation of pubric streets, site access points,

vehicurar ana peoesiiian circuratioh, tt"ttc .iudy areas. if subsequent traffic studies for Phases

6/7/g consicer wnetheifre North extension hasbeen ptanned sr funded prior to development or

redevelopment, and Jditions otthe tTE Trip Generation manual.

A public right-of-way and- eight fooi.wide public-utility easements shall be shown on lhe

preriminary ano Rnariecoroeolundivision prai r"p for thb extension of sw century Drive.

see comments ftom washington county DLUT on right-of-way dedications, improvements and

""."tt 
tolftom SW Tualatin'sherwood Road'

staff Response: Planning staff discussed these comments with Engineering staff' the

discrepancy ties in tir" iriuitftat the d;;;;;i Final PUD Plan showed three access points from

sw Langer Farms ;;rd;t i];tgth;_"'i6.-inir proposalshows three access locations, and the

extension of SW century Blvd. The ensineelng'Division-is not opposed to the access locations'

but fert that it should be pointed outlnat there are rearisticaily four accesses into the site.

certainry, the appricant was not aware ii;i th" extension of st/[Gentury Blvd was going to be

placed into the rr"nrportaiion system Plan, and there were no specific discussions in any of the

staff reports or oecisiln"ioi tnrpr"ririnr.v o. nnii puo approvars discussing the limitations of

tn" "Gt" 
points atong SW Langer Farms Parhray'

Furthermore, there is prenty of ranguage within the pUD fire to suggest that many of the

decisionsrelatedtoti"f;,""iouldbeo"6tr"Jioreviewofindividualdevelopmentproposalsas
they were submittJ'i; the city. ii;;;- the appricant courd not have anticipated the

reintroduction of tn"-J*t"n"ion oislv Cuniuw eiyo. into the Transportation system Plan (TSP)'

it is comptetety undersi.nAjur. that th;;;;buU ot at least three accesses from SW Langer

Farms ParkwaY into the site'

Sanitarv Sewer

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm SuMivision

Page 5 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 76



There are no sanitary improvements being proposed with the subdivision application, although
the subdivided lots must have lhe ability to connect (by gravity) to the puUlic sanitary systjm
qhT.development occurs. All public conveyance easements,-if requiied for gravity service,
shall be shown or referenced on the subdivision plat map. Prior lo recordation of tnd final plai
map, the applicant shallsubmit detailed plans that clearly labeleach lot number'E connection to
the public system and elevations that show gravity servic-e is achievable.

lf. retaining walls or slopes are necessary to support the public sanitary system, then watt andlor
slope easements shall be granted to the City with actual site divelopment, not with the
subdivision plat map.

S-taff Response! Sewer service has been stubbed to the parent parcel, so it is available. The
developer will be required to determine horlv to begt serve the site with sevrcr, loop and/or
extend the system as necessary as proposals forfuture development on the site evolve.

Water
There are no water improvements being proposed with the subdivision, although the subdivided
lots must have the ability to connect to the public water system when development occurs. The
applicant shall submit detailed plans that clearly label each lot number and how it will connect to
the public system prior to recordation of the final plat map.

lf retaining walls or slopes are necessary to support the public water system, then wall andlor
slope easements shall be granted to the Gity with actual site devilopment, not with the
subdivision plat map. Public water easements must be established around water meter and fire
flow vaults during site development.

Staff Response: Waier service has been stubbect to the parent parcel with the recent
completion of SW Langer Farms Parkway, so it is available. The deveioper will be required to
determine how lo best serve the site with water, loop and/or extend the system as necessary as
proposals for future development on the site evolve-

Storm Seyver
There are no storm improvements being proposed with the subdivision, although the subdivided
lots must have the ability to connect to the public storm system (by gravity) when devetopment
occurs on any subdivided lot. The preliminary subdivision plat map shows a 15' wide public
storm drainage easemenl over Tract A' and Lot 4 for the benefit of existing and future upsiream
development. The preliminary subdivision plat also shows a 15' wide public storm drainage

r grrv s erttslr Pvrlrvrr vr Lvr A, vul rrcr5 a llul,li tu ult L|ltulualE)o wJIn
development of Lots 1-3'. Development Agreement term F.l.a (Stormwater Facility - Langer
Gommitments) states:

Prior to issuance of a final occupancy permit for the first structures localed in phases 6 or T,
Langer will design and substantially construct the "stormwater Facility' on Phase 8 (including
any necessary portions of Phase 6), to accornmodate existing stormwater detention ani
treatment for the PUD (including development of Phases 6, 7, and 8), and any detention and
treatment associated with the South Extension and Century Drive Conneclion. ln conjunction
with this construciion, Langer relains the right to terminate use of the Existing Facilities inO any
Temporary Facility construc1ed...

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision
Page 6 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 77



ln addition, City infrastructure mapping,indicates the slorm drainage easement shown over Lot 1

and Lot 2 is intendJio.onre11 ii,iws-from existing upstream development and public rights-of-

way-

Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Developmen-! Agreement, and city

infrastructur" r"pping' ine regional stbrm tacility will treat runoff from all of the subdivided lots,

pr"p"i"o rignts-ii-wiy, as tiell as existing yPstreaq development and public rights-of'way'

Although construction'."n be deferreO uniil future site development, all of the tracts, public

storm drainage and access easemenls shown on the preliminary plat map must be dedicated to

the City with the subdivision plat.

lf retaining walls or slopes are necessary to support.the public storm system, then wall and/or

slope easements rn"r,i n" gianted to ine ciiy with actual site development. not with the

suMivision plat map-

Gradinq and Erosion Control;
No earty grading is FiriFffiwith this subdivision. Site grading willexceed 5 acres of disturbed

area for all phases of development. Therefore, a lZbO-C pe.1!it is required' The 1200-C

permitting process can be initiated through the city of shenirood Engineering Departmenl. lt is

iii"iy bEb (via CWS) will require_that aliphases of development on and around tax lot 300 be

authorized underthe same 12OO'C permit'

The memorandum from CWS dated May B, 2ol?indicales that a CWS Slorm Water Connection

permit (SWCp) r6il" ont"in"O prior io plat appto^v?Fg recordation- CWS typically requires

. iZOO-b permit priorto issuing a bWCp. Contact CWS to obtain a SWCP.

Other Enoingqring lssYes:
The subdivision includes new property lines within Bonneville Power Administration (BPA)

and/or poriland G;"er;i Eiectric tpotil transmission line easements. The applicant must

coordinate with those entities to ddtermine when they will issue a land use agreement to the

o"""iop"i, priortotin"lpi"i"pprovaland recordation orwith individualsite plan review, orboth'

The applicant may be required to install infrastructure for Sherwood Broadband as noted in City

ordinances zoos-ii.ni zoos-74 during future phases of development, but not with the

subdivision Plat.

per cwS requirements, tracts or easements shall ba established over wetlands and vegetated

corridors with the suUOiuiSon plat. See conditions of the CWS Service Provider Letter (SPL)

and land-use comments memo dated May 8, 2412'

wAsfilNGToN GOUNTY:
1. The apptica;ifi *t proposing a@ess to SW Tualatin-sherwood Road. To implementthe

County,s access-spacing standards, the applicant will be required to record a motor

vehicte """""" 
t""irictioi along the subiect sitefs entire frontage of SW Tualatin-

Sherwood Road for the purpos-es of implementing the access spacing standards'

Z. Consistent with statewide pedestrian circulationflinkage goals.of the Transportation

Fbnning Rule and the County's R&O g6-95 (road safety requirements), the County

normally r"quir"" 
"iO"walk 

inltallation as a minimum road safety improvement along site

t *i"# oril Corntv-maintained roads. Sidewalksfurtherestablish future slreet profiles,

demarcate c;*ty;; City right-oFway, and address drainage issues' Sideualk

Page 7 of33

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 78



requirements are nol generally waived, even when sidewalk is not cunenfly present on
neighboring properties. Rather, even non-contiguous sidewalk is consider6O to provide
some rneasure of pedestrian refuge and ideally, makes possible eventual connection of
sidewalks (3q 9.u-nogldhg developrnent takes place and is likewise conditioned to provide
sideualk). Additionally, the Washington County Road Design and Construction $tandards
require provision of adequate drainage along i site's frontale of a county road.

The applicant is required lo construct a half-street improvement, lncluding
illumination, to an A-2 County standard along the subject slte's irontage Jt SW
Tualatin-Shemood Road Q$ pay a fee-in-lieu (Contaci Dan Erpenbach at 503{46-
78771.

Note: For half street improvements, an applicant shatt provide slreef lighting consrsfenf
wlth County engineering standards and procedures an-d the reguircmdnts if tne
electrical utility company providing seruice tothe area. The appticant shall ensure the
construction, maintenance and power costs of street light taiiiities through the
annexation and petition for seruice to an existing County seruice district for tighting or
otherfunding method approved by the County Engineer.

3. The statewide Transportation Planning Rule requires provision for adeguate transportation
facilities in orderfor development to occur. Accordingiy, the County hai classified roads
and road segments wilhin the County system based upon theirfunbtion. The cunenl
Transportation Plan (regularly updated) conlains adeguate rigtrt-of-way, road width and
lane provision standards based up_on each roadvuay's classifiiation. SuOgect right of wiy is
considered deficient if half-width of the existing right of way does not meet that-determined
necessary within the County's current transportation plan.

The applicalt_i: required to dedicate additional right-of-way to provide 4g feetfrom
centerline of SW Tualatin€heruood Road, inctuding adequate lorner radius at the
intersection.

Staff Response: The comments from Washington County have been considered, and to the
gxtent that they are applicable to the proposed development, the conditions of approval have
been incorporated into this repori. The requesi for a non-access easement along the property's
frontage with Tualatin-Sheruood Road, according to Naomi Voegel, AssociaG ptanner wittr
Washington-County Operations, is not intended to prevent the exiSting access location that is
used to maintain the water quality facility on the northeast comer oi ttre site. Because that
location is provided with a mounlable eurb. Washinoton Counlv dnes nnt r-riaur that ac a fnrna!
access to thg sitg. 

rrvrY trrer qc s rvrrrrdr

CLEAN WATER SERVICES (CWSI:
CWS provided comments that essentially require that a Storm Water Connection permit
Authorization be obtained. The District also requires that the application comply with the
requirements of the Amended service provider tetter 12-000162-

Staff Response: The CWS conditions of approval have been incorporated into this report
where appropriate.

L94ranx v&uev flne
TVFR provided comments that do not specifically identify any deficiencies within the proposat,
but rather outline the districts expectations for access, the provision of hydrants; and

suB 12,02 Langer Farm subdivision 
Page 8 of 33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 79



infrastructure that would aid the district in providing services to the site. The comrnents are

attached to this decision, and to the extent that they apply, the applignt.will be required to

riti"fy the standards of TI/FR in final design and construction of the subdivision'

Kinder Morgan Energy, ODOT, pride Disposal, the Tualatin Valley Water.District, NW Natural

Gas, and Foriland Eeneral Electric weie all provided an opportunity to 
. 
comment on this

t do,"i, uui aio not provide comments. tt is incumbent upon the applicant to coordinate the

iinal Aesign of the subdivision with any of the above afiected agencies'

IV. APPLICABLE CODE STANDARDS

Chaeter| 6.3? Lisht lndustJial {Ll t

A. 16.32.020 Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted outright provided such uses meet lhe applicable

environmentat pertormince slandards contained ln Division Vlll. lncidental retail

""t"", 
limited to l0n/o of the total floor area of a business, may be permitted as a

"""onA"ry 
function of a parmitted or conditional u$e, subiect to the revkw and

approval of the Hearing Authority-

STAFF ANALYSIS: The property is cunently in agriculturaluse, and the subdivision does

not include a proposal to'usb th-e land any differently.. lt strould be noted, that staff has

been in contact with the applicant, and they have indicated.thatthey do i{91d_to-submit an

application in lhe near futuie for cornmercial uses on the site- Section 16.32.020-H states,
.F[D", new and existing, subject to the provisions 9f C_f19pter 16.40. New PUDs may mix

uses which are permifiel.withln the boundaries of the PUD. Approved PUDs may eleci lo

""trUfirn 
uses which are permitted or conditionally permitted under the base zone text

applicable at the time of final approval of the PUD'"

FINDING: At the time that the PUD wes approved, general retail uses were permitted

within the L(]ht lndustrial district, so there would be no reason that the applicant couldn't

J.opo"" corimercial development on the site in the future. Since the subdivision does not

i""fo" pioposals for any new uses on the subiect site, the development complies wilh this

section.

B. 16.32.050 Dimensional Standards

No lot area, settack, yard, landsCaped area, oPen space, off-street parklng or
loading aroa, or other site dimension or requirement, existing onr or after, the

effectiie date of thls Gode shalt be reduced belor the mlnimum rcquired by this
Gode. Nor shall ttre conveyance of any portion of a loL lor other than a public use or
right-of.way, leave a lot or structure on the remalnder of said lot with less than

-Tnilnm b-ode dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as
permifred bY GhaPter 16.84-

A. Lot Dimensions

Except as otherwise provided, requircd minimum lot areas and dimensions shall be:

1. Lot area: 10,fiX1 sq ft

Page 9 of33

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 80



Lotwidth atftont property line: 100 feet
Lotwidth at building line: 100 feet

STAFF ANALYSIS; The proposed subdMsion creates five lots and two tracts. The tracls,
Tract A and Tract B, are for the purposes of protecting the natural resource on site, and to
establish an area for a regional water quality facility, and are not buildable lots. Lot 1 is
13.99 acres in size, and has frontage onto three public streets. There are several tront lot
lines with the proposed lot, but the longest one is approximately 444.21feet in length. Lot 2
is approximately 3.65 acres and has more than 1,050 feet of frontage onto two public
streets. Lot 3 is approximately 2.35 acres in size and has more than 700 feet of frontage
onto two public streets. Lot 4 is 21.97 acres in size and has more than 2,000 feet of
frontage onlo two public streets. Lot 5 is 6.93 acres in size and is provided acsess through
a 4O-foot wide access easement. The lot width at the front property line is more than 560
feet.

FINDING: lt is feasible lhat, given the size of the lots, that the lot width al the building tines
can be satisfied with future development on every one of the lots. Comptiance with
setbacks and tnights will be verified at the time the properties are developed, The
dimensional standards are satisfied to the extent that they apply to lhis subdivision.

C. 16.32.060 Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, hlstoric
resourceg, environmental resourcas, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and
open space, on€ito storage, and site design, see Divisions V, Vlll and lX.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicable standards that are listed in the Cornmunity Design
section are addressed elsewhere in this nanative. As proposed, it is feasible thd futule
development on the proposed lots would be able to satisfy the standards, and any
proposed developmenl will be evaluated against those standards that are found to be
appllcable.

Ghapter 16.40 Planned Unit Develgqme4t

STAFF ANALYSIS: The subject property has an approved PUD overlay. lnitially approved in
1995, development on the property is subject to the provisions of that approval, any approved
rnodifications, and the associated Developers Agreement. There are no approval eriteria within
Chapter 16.40 thal can be directly attributed to this proposal. The standards of this chapter are
only applicable to review and approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, the Final
Development Plan, and any modifications. ln this instance, the property is being subdivided
outside of the PUD process, and does not preclude the applicant from satisfoing the intent of the
PUD, nor relieve them of ftreir commitments to rnake the public improvements called for in that
approval. This constitutes a development aclion on Phases 6, 7, and I of the prcposed
development. Consistency with the appticable requirements of the approved 2010 Development
Agreement is discussed throughout this report. Consistency with the approved development
standards and design guidelines apply to proposals for ac{ual physical developrnent of the
property, and will be evaluated at such time that those applications are filed.

Chaoter 16.58 Gllnr Vision and Fence Standards

2.
3.

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision
Page l0of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 81



{6.58.010 Glear Vision Areas

A. A clear vision area shall be malntained on the corners of all propefty at the

inlerseetion of two (2) streets, intenrection of a street with a railroad, or
inferseiUon of a street wlth an alley or priva6 driveway.

B. A clear vision area shall consist of a triangulat area, two (2) sides of which are lot
tines measured from the corner intersection of the street lot lines for a distance

specified in this regulation; or, where the lot lines have rounded Gomers' the lot
lines ertended in a-straighi line to a point of intersection, and so measuled, and

the third side of which -is a line across the corner of the lot ioining the non'
intersecting ends of the other two (2| sides'

C. A clear vision area shall contiin no planting, sight obscuring fence, wall, structure,

or temporaty ". 
p"rtt anent obstruction exceeding two and one_'half l2 1l2tt feet in

height, -""irr"O tsom the top of the curb, or where no curb exisb, frorn the

eslablished street center line giade, except thattrees exceeding this height ma_f b9

located in nis 
"r.r, 

pro"idedln branches and foliage are remored to the height of
seven (Z) feet aboveihe ground on the sidewalk side and ten (10) feet on the street

eide.

The follorring requlrenrents shall govern clearvision area6:

1. tn all zones, the minimum distance shall be twenty (201 feet

Z. ln all zones, the minimum distance from comer curb to any driveway shall be

twenty-live(zs}Get

3. Where no setbacks are required, buildings may be constructed within the clear

vision area.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The propOsed subdivision does not include any.physical improvements

that would preclude future'development on each of the lots from complying with the provisions

of this Chapter.

FINDING: lt is feasible that the development can comply with the clear vision standards stated

above. Comptiance with the provisions of this chapterwill be evaluated with future development

proposals associated with the property.

Ghapter 16.70 General Provisions

I 6.70.01 0 Pre-Appllcation Gonference

pre-application conferences are encouraged and_ shall be scheduled to provide

"ppiiijnt" 
with the informational and procedural requirements of this Code; to

"iirtr""g" 
infiormation regarding applicable policies, goale and standards of the

C"-pdft"nslve pfan; to -providl t66hnicat and design assistance; and to lden8ry

opportunitles and constraints for a proposed land useaction. An applicant may apply at
oh! tr" for all permits or zone changes needed for a development project as

determined ln the pre.application confercnce'

Page 11 of33

SIIB 12-02 Langer Farm suMivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 82



STAFF ANALYSIS: Although not a requirement, the applicant requested and attended a pre-
appllcation conference with City staff on December 12, 2011 lo discuss partitioning,
subdividing, and developing the property.

t 6.70.020 Neighborhood Meeting

A-_ The -purpose of the neighborhood meeting is to solicit input and exchange
information about the proposed development

B. Applicants of Type lll, lV and V apptications are required to hold a meeting, at apublic location for with adjacent property ownens and recognized neighbdihood
organizations that are withln 1,000 feet of the subiect application, prior to submiftlng
theirapplication to.the G-ity. Affidavits of mailing, slgn;n-iheee anti a eummary of thE
meeliTg notes shall be lncluded with the application when submitted. Appticints for
Type ll land use action are encouraged, but not required to hold a nlignforhood
meeting.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant held a neighborhood rneeting on February A, 2012 at St.
Francis Church to discuss the overall development of the PUD site including a partition, a
subdivision, and potentialdevelopment of the site. Approximately 25 people att6nded. Twenty
one of the attendees signed the attendance roster, and the applicant has provided a summary
of the meeting and the items raised by the public. Concernb.included aiOeU truck lraffic on
Langer Farms Parkway, speeding on langer Farms Parkway, access to Tualatin-Sherranod
Road from the extension of Century Drive a desire for futuie development to attract store
brands that appeal to teenagers, concems about competition wfth exiiting businesses as a
resuit of any eommerciai deveiopmeni on ihe property, the amount ot existing vacant
commercial space in Shenrood, a desire for additional transit service, disruption of wildlife, and
disruption of existing views. To the extent that the developmenl code addresses any of the
concems, stafi has taken them into consideration in this decision.

It should be noted that SW Langer Farms Parkway is a collector intended io provide another
route into Sherwood. Tnaffic laws on the right-of-way are enforced by the Sherwood polie
Department, and cunently the right-of-way does not restrict truck traffii. Future developrnent
proposals on the site include individuallraffic impact reports that will better inform the decision
makers on the impacts associated with those specific proposals. lf the trafiic in some way
deteriorates the acceptable functionality of the street systems, then the Engineering Division
may impose mitigation fileasures to help offset those irnpacts. The propedy is apfroved foi
commercial and light industrial type developments, and will most likely be develdped in that
manner.

All future development proposals will be requlred to meet the dimensional requirements
including heights, setbacks, and to the exlent they apply, the design guidelines that were
approved with the Final PUD approval. There are no protected sceniCconidors within the
City's Comprehensive Plan, so it is likely that any development on the subject site will affect the
existing views of those who live adjacent to the site, and have become atcustom to the vierivs
the e.xisting hrmland provides, but that land is within the City timits and is set aside for
development.

FlNOlttG: Although not required to host a neighborhood meeting by code, the applicant did in
fac{ hold a neighborhood meeting on February 8,2012 aN provioed the materibis along with

Page 12 of33
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 83



this application that demonstrale that they complied with the requirements for neighborhood

meetings.

Divisio4 Vl. Public. lnfrastructure

{6.104 General Provisions

To ensure the health, safety, and the economic stability o! the communiU, and to

"Jt"oti"t 
a qualigr syitem of pubtic improvements, the CiU shall req-uire any buildings

oi ott 
", 

cevelopireit ror which publlc facilitles and public rights'of'uray are not fully
provided or impioved to current iity standards, to install said improvements. Except as

it et*it" prorided or authorized, private lmprovements serving substa-ntially the same

iunction ai equivalent public rasitiiies shall generally be provided and improved to the

standards established 6y this Code and other City regulations.

STAFF ANALYSIS: As agreed to within the approved development agreement, the applicant

is iequireo to provide the 
-right-of-way and ultimately conslrucf the extension of SW century

Blvd. from its eastern terminils at the ioundabout in SW Langer Farms Parkway to the westem

terminus at the west froperty line. The applicant is also required to dedicate the vegetated

conidor and Natural Resource in Tracf A, and to dedicate and construct the regional storm

*"t", facility located in Tract B. As proposed, the applicant is proposing to dedicate all three of

these areai, and to defer construction of the improvements until such time that they are

constructing im provements with fu ture development'

I 6.1 04.020 Future lmProvements

The location of future public improvements including water, sanitary sewer' storm

n 
"t"r, 

stieets, Oicycte airA peAesirian paths, a1! o!!9r- public facilitie-s and rights'of-
*iV, i"Orpicied in tre Transportation System Plan (T$P) Chapters 4, 5, 6 and 7 of the

Cof,munitv Developrnent plan are intended as general localions only. The precise

"rignr"nti,nd 
location of a public improvement shall be established during the land use

pi|"""" and shal 6e oepiiteA on _pirblic improvemgnt pllns su!m!$-O and approved

tuiiu"nt to g {S.tOg and'ottrer applicable sections of this Code. (Ord. No. 2011-011, S t'
104-20t1)

1 6.1 04.0il1 lmprovement Procedures

Except as otherwise provided, all pubtic improvements shall conform to Gity standards

and specifications folnd ln the Engineering Design lllanual and installed in accordance

win inapter i6.iog. The Council may establish additional specifications to supplement

the shndards of this Gode and othei applicable ordinances. btcept for public proiects

constructed consistent with an exlsting facllittr plan, a public improvements shall not be

una"rt"f"n until land use approval hai been gmnted, a public improvement plan review

i"" fr"" O"en paid, all imdr'ovement plans have been approved by the City, and an

improvement permit has been issued.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The City of sheruood completed ttre extension of sw Langer Farms
pii*rv ii zolz tunded piimarily by Washingon County Major Streets Transportation

i*prou"*"nt program (MSTlp). ni pirt of that construction, sewer, water, and access from

6fr l"ng"r Farmi p"4i""v were stuboed to the propgrty. ln accordance with tre approved

developient agreement roi tne pUD, the right-of-way for lhe future extension of $W Century

Page 13 of33

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm SubdMsion

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 84



Boulevard will be dedicated to the Cily with this application. When it is constructed, utilities will
be extended through the site to accommodate future developnrent on this site, and the
adjacent properties- The specific locations of where and how the utilities will be provided onto
the property will be evaluated and approved at such time that proposals for aauaidevelopment
of the lots are submitted and reviewed.

FINDING: The applicant has either proposed, or has been conditioned through prior approvals
to provide needed public infrastructure with proposed development of the site. Adequaie water,
sewer and access are available to the property. Stormwater fior allfuture development on site
will be captured and treabd in a new regional stormwater facility lhat the applicant will
construci as part of any future development proposal for the sile. The applicant will also be
responsible for future construction of SW Century Blvd to Cily stindards under the
requirements of the approved Developers Agreement. This criterion is satisfied.

1 6.1 06 Transportation Facilities

1 6.1 06,020 Required lmprovements

A, Generally

Except as othenrise provided, all developmenG containing or abufting an existing or
proposed street, that is either unlmproved or substandard in right-of.way width or
improvemenl, shall dedicate the necessary rightot+vay prior to the issuancebt building
petmits and/or cornplete acceptable improvements prior to issuance of occupancy
pemits.

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no physical improvements being proposed with the subdivision.
The proposed subdivision is adjacent to two existing streets, SW Tualatin-sherwood Road, and
SW Langer Farms Parkway. The extension of a third public street, SW Gentury Blvd is
required with future development as a condilion of the approved development agreement that
is blndlng upon the PUD. The right-of-way for that slreet will be dedicated with the subdivision.

FINDING: Since SW Langer Farms Parkway was only recently constructed, it is found to be
constructed to standard. The developer will dedicate the right-of-way necessary for the future
extension of SW Century Blvd. lmprovements to the overall system may be waranted with
future development. The development agreement requires the property owner to provide an
individual traffic study for each development application. The City Engineer has deteimined that
no irnprovements to the adjacent City streets are warranted by this proposal.

Tualatin-Sherwood Road is a County facility and therefore subject to restrictions imposed by
9o-ury regulations. The county recognizes that the applicant is not proposing any access to
SW TualatieShervrrcod Road, but has requested the following conditions to ensure that the
County's access-spacing standards, and the Trransportation Planning Rule as it applies,
through the county's regulations, to developments that front County righls-of- way are enforced.

It should be noted that the first condition would potentially restrict access to an existing
drivoruay used to access a storm water quality facility in the northeast comer of the site. F;
this reason, the condition that the counly has reguested be imposed has been modified by City
staff in a manner that allows the applicant to discuss the issue with Counly staff.

Conditions:

Fage 14 of33
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 85



1. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall dedicate the necessary right-oFway

needed to construct SW Century Drive'

2. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall establish the public right-of+ray and 8'

pub1c utitity ease#;i 19f;"d adjilent to SW Century Drive on the face of the plat'

3. Prior to final plat approval, the following shall be represented on the plat and recorded

with Washington CountY:
a. Dedication or aiiiiional right-of'way to provide 49 feet from centerline of SW

Tualatin-Shenrvood Road'
b. Dedication ot 

"iiiiion'rr 
right-of-way 1o provide adequate corner radius at the

ini"ouaion of SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road'

c. Provision of a non-acceis reservalion along SWTualatin-sherwood Road frontage'

except at the 
"*i"tiig'J"""$ 

poin(s) approved in conjunclion with this land use

aPPlication

16.{06.030 Location

A. GenerallY

Thelocation,widthandgradeofstreetsshallbgconsideredintheirrelationtoeristing
and planneO 

"tt""tt]i"frJ-pfricat 
conCition", and proposed land uses' The proposed

street system shall provide adequ"t", ionu-"nieni and safe traflic and pedestrian

circulation, and infirsE"iion angtes, _grii*=, tanqelF: and curyes shall be adequate for

expected traflic "ti"-"". 
Siti"t inignmentt stglt fe consistent with solar access

requirement, 
"= 

p"l.' c f,"pi"i i o.t se, ai d topograp hical considerations.

B, Street Gonnectivity and Future Stree{ Systems

1. Future street systems. The arrangement 9f pYll1" stfeets shall provide for the

continuation and 
"itaEri"n-ent 

of rut,it" street systems as shourn on the Local street

connectivity Map ;;rt"il"tin the aaopteo rranspbrtation system Plan (Figure 8-8)'

srAFF ANALYSTS: Figure 8-g of the sherwood rransportation system pran- (tsp) iilustrates

the future extension oicentury grvo. ih; approved Developer's Agreement associated with

the originar puD ;G f* rre oeoicaiion ah'a urtimate construction of century Blvd. The

applicant has proposed .to dedicate'ttt tight-of-tay f9r century Drive' and defer final

construction plans, financial assuran@, purqiO .a1d.96nstruction 
of the street unlil such time

rhat specific deveropment proposar" arJ SruioJo rolh.u property. The applicant has provided

a preliminary plan;; fi,f,li, "ld. 
fras'Oemonstrated on Sheet 6' that it is feasible for the

construction to occur within the right J *"y area given that the end points for sw century

OtiuJ 
"t" 

already established by prior construction'

FTNDTNG; The Gity has evaruated the proposatand ?gre.er 
that the actuar construction of the

street can be deferred untir sucn time irrii prrysicar d&ebpment of the pfoperty occurs given

that the right-of-wa y afeais arready 
"i"u$Jn,io, 

and is agrbeabre to the appricant's dedication

ottn" righi-of'way on the face of the plat'

2. Gonnectivity ltllap Required. New residential' Gommercial' and mixed use

developrnent invotving the consirJcuon of new streets shall be submitted with a

siteplanthatimplements,re"pond"toandexpandsontheLocalStreet
Page 15 of33

SI.IB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 86



Gonnectivity map contained in the TSp.
a. A proiect is deemed to be consistenturith the Localstreet Gonnectivity map

when it provides a street connection in the general vicinity of the
connection{s) shown on the map, or where iuch connectibn is not
practicable due to topography or other physical constraints; it shall provide
an alternate connection approved by the decision-maker.b. Where a developer does not control all of the land that is necessary to
complete a planned street connection, the development shall provide for as
much of the designated connection as practicable and not prevent the street
frorn continuing in the future.

c. Where a development ls dlsproportionately lmpacted by a required street
connectlon, or it provides more than its proportionate ihare of street
improvements along property llne {i.e., by buildlng more than 3/4 width
street), the developer shall be entitled to $ystem Development charge
credits, as determined by the City Engineer.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant is only proposing to subdivide the property at this point
in time- As mentioned previously in this decision, the applicant is proposing io dedicate the
19ht-9f'way,for SW Century Boulevard. The applicant has provided a Conieptua!
Circulation Plan that generally demonstrates compliance wiih the Local Streei Connectivity
Map in the Sherwood TSP. lt will be incumbent upon future development proposals to
demonstrate compliance with this section as it applies lo future developmbnt of proposed
lot 4, because the TSP shows a north-south local connection.

FINDING: As proposed, lhe subdivision would not preclude the owner's ability to provide a
connection consistent with the TSP local connectivity map; however. the appiicani is not
requesting approval of any development within the area of the site that call-jfor the
connection discussed above. lt is feasible for future development on the property to satisfy
this condition.

3' Block Length. For new streets except arterials, block length shall not exceed 530
feet. The length of blocks adjacent to arterials shall nol exceed 1,800 feet

4. Where streets must cross water features identified in Title 3 of the Urban Growth
M_anagement Functional Plan (UGilFP), provide crossings at an average spacing
of 800 to 1,200 feet, unless habitat quality or length of ciossing prevents a full
street connectlon.

5. Where full street connections over water features identified in Ti0e 3 of the
UGMFP eannot be constructed in centers, main slreets end statton comrnunitier
(including direct connections from adjacent ndighborhoods), or spacing of full -
street crossings exceeds 1,200 feet provide blcycle and pedestriin crGsings at
an average spacing of 530 feet, unless exceptional habitat quality or length 6f
crossing prevents a connection.

6. Pedestrian and Bicycle Gonnectivity. Paved bike and pedeslrian accessways
consistent with cross seclion standards in Figure 8-6 of the TSP shall be
provided on public easements or right- of-way when full street connections are
not possible, with spacing between connections of no more than 300 feet Multi-
use paths shall be built according to the Pedestrian and Bike llaster plans in the
adopted TSP.

7'Exceptions. Streets, bike, and pedestrian connections need not be constructed
when any of the follorrlng conditions exists:
a. Physical or topographic conditions make a street or acc€ssway connection

Page 16 of33
SIJB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 87



impracticable.Suchconditionsincludebutarenotlimitedtofreorays,
railroads, J"ip sl"pes, wettands or other bodies of waterwhere a

connection could not reasonably be provlded'.,

b. Buitdings ;t-;t#;titting a""dopnignt on adjacent lands physicallv

preclude a connection now or in the future considering the potential for
redeveloPment; or

c. where streets oraccessways would violate provisions of leases, easements,

covenants,-*Ji"ir.i or ott 
"t 

agreements existing as of May {, 1995, which

piectude arequired street or accessway connection'

STAFFANALYSIS:Thisproposaldoesnotincludethecreationofanynewstreetsnot
arready accounted to, ov tnl--rsp. There is no identifred bicycre or pedestrian connections in

the TSp that are noj' 
"ii""Jv 

pr*io"o for within the existing right+f-way. lt shoutd be noted

that the site is timitei il't;;F;;"n* oitnu wetlands in Trac'tA, a major arterialto the norlh'

a coltector to the *"Jt, ino ";J'rt 
induskial development diredly south of the site'

FINDING: Existing sile conditions and pre-existing development on adjacent properties may

deter full street 
"onn"airltv 

on a portion of the site' A conccptual circulation.plan is provided

with the preliminary plans to illgsflatg horry the site can conceptually meet the st'andards'

however, the site i" =ln"J tor rignt inoustiiat and commercial uses, so it is unlikely that a full

street connection would be necessary UeyonO what is..called for in the TSP' lt will be

incumbent upon the property owner to dern'onstrate that the existing conditions preclude full

connectivity, and if !b,-no-il pedestrian or bicycle connec{ions can be made for future

proposals for devetopil-etn-in!." criteria are not appticable to the proposed su6ivision'

16.106.040 Design

Standard cross sections showing street deslgn and pavement dimensions are

located in the citvli strerwood fransportaildn systim Plan, and city of sherwood's

Engineering Design lllanual'

16.106.040.C. FutureExtension
where necessary to access or permtt future subdivision or development of adioining

land, streets shall extenA to nd OounOary of tle proposed development and provide

the reguired roaCwii, *iOtft. D_ead-end sfeets leis than 100'in length shall comply

with the Engineering Design llllanual'

A durable sign shall be lnstalled at the applicanfs expense' The sign shall notiff the

public of the inteJio construct futuie sirlets. The sign shall read as follows: "Thls

road wi, ue extenJ*o *i$, future uevetopment. For more information contact the Gity

of Sherwood at 503-6254202'"

STAFF ANALYSIS: As discussed previously in this.report, the applican!.|a9 proposed to

dedicate right_of-wai ih;i;-ild 
"rrofi 

io, tne construction of a pubric street that extends from

the east terminus 
"f 

sw i"nrury Drive to the west terminus. once constructed, this century

Blvd. witl be comPlete.

FINDING: Because the applicant has propgsqd 
. 
to dedicate the right-of-way with this

apptication, and the 
"iti"t 

t-Jlf[Jfot in the itariOarO above are already in place' this standard is

satisfied.

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

PagelT of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 88



16.106.040.J. TransitFacilities
Derelopment along an exis$ng or proposed transit route, as illustrated in Figure
7'2 in the TSP, is required to provide ireas and facilities ior busiurnouts,
shelters, and other transit+elated facilltles to Tri-Met specinJations. iransit
facllities shall also meet the following requirements:1. Locale buildings within 20 feet of oiprovide a pedestrian plaza ar major

transit stops.
2. Provide reasonably direct pedestrian connections between ttre transit stop

and building enlrances on lhe site.3. Provide a.transit-passengerlanding pad accessible to disabled persons (if
not already exlsting to transit agency standards).4. Provide an easement or dedication for a passenier shelter and
underground utility connection from the neyy developmcnt to the translt

_ amenity if requested by the public transit provider,5. Provide lighting at a translt itop (if not alrlady existlng to transit agency
standards).

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no existing or proposed transit routes adjacent to or near thissite. Tri-lVet has indicated that due to costs, s6mi of the existing Shenrood transit service will
be cut.

FINDING: Transit facilities are not necessary at this site at this time, as there woutd be no
seruice available. This criterion is not applicabb to the proposed subdivision.

16,110 - Sanitarv Sewers

I 6.t t0.01 0 Required lmprovements
Sanitary sewers shall be installed to serve all new developments and shall connectto existing sanitary sewer mains. Sanitary Sewers shali be construccO, ro""tJ,
sized and installed at standards consistent ie.tf O.

STAFF ANALYSIS: Jhere is sanitary sewer service in the adjacent street and available tothe subdivision. lt will be incumbenf upon future development proposats !o illustrate how
service is provided for each new development proposal.

FINDING: no public.sanitary easements are required with the subdivision plat as the
:eyi.cP is already stubbed to lhe lots. When it becomes necessary to provide service to anindividual lot or eoRveY existing fiows frorn upstream rlevetopmlnt ine applicant will be
required to provide easements to aerommodaie the construction and maintenance of the
line, This criterion is satisfied.

16.112- Water Suooh{

I 6.1 {2.010 Required lmprovements
Water lines and fire-hydrants confoming to Gity and Fire Dlstrict standards shall beinstalled to serve all bullding sites in Jpropoied devel"pmini in-compliance with
16.112.

STAFF ANALYSIS: There is water service in the adjacent street and avaitable to the
subdivision. lt will be incumbent upon future development proposals to illustrate how
service is provided for each new development proposal.

suB 12-02 Langer Farm subdivision Page i8 of 33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 89



FINDING: Because the public water is stubbed to the property line forJuture. development,

there is no need to extend the water or provide easements with the subdivision plat. When

it becomes n".""rrry-io frovioe service to an individual lot the applicant willbe required to

il;id. easements io rtrormodate lhe construction and maintenance of the line.This

criterion is satisfied.

18.114 - Storm Water

16.{ I 4.01 0 Required lmprovements
iior. water facilitfei includlng appropriate source control and Gonveyance

facilities, strall oe instllno in nei cevlloiments and shail connect to the existlng

downstream drainate system consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the

i.q"ii".*t oi t-rr"-br"Jn water services water quality regulations and section

{6.1t4.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The preliminary subdivision Plat map shows a 15'wide public storm

ooin"g" easement over Tract ,A' and Lot 4 for the benefit of existing and future upstream

J"""1"-pr""t. The-Fieriminary subdivision Plat also shows a 15'wide public storm

Ji"1""6" eaiement over Lot 1 inda small portion of Lot 2, but has a note'to be dedicated

with development oi fotr r-g'. City infrastructure mapping indicates this easement will

ronu"V flow! from 
"X"ting 

upstream development and public rights'of-way, therefore both

;il|,i"';iit. is, pubtic storm easement witi be required with the oubdivision plat lf public

storm easements ;r*quidJ ano retaining walls or slopes are necessary to lPPort a19

the storm infrastructur*, in"n separate wa[ or srope easements shall be established with

the public storm easements, unless approved otherwise by the city Engineer'

construction of a regional storm water treatment facility is required under the development

A;;;;"t, ano pro-po."o uv the.applicant during thi development of Phase 6, 7 or 8'

construction can oe'oeferred until fuiure site devblopment. The Pretiminary Subdivision

ili;h;;" a ,RegionaiStormwater Facility' at the east comer of Lot 5 located in Tract'B', a

.20, Wide Storm Or"i*ge and A"."$ Eaiement'over Lot 5, and'26'Wide Storm Drainage

and Access Easement'over Lot 4.

FINDING: Since construction of the regional facility will be requjred for any development

upon pr,"" e 6,7 or 8, particularly tg 99nvey and treat upstream flows from and across Lot

4, Lot 1, Lot 2 and #itidilHic rights-of-way, Trycl lB', the 20'and 26'wide storm and

access easements should be included with the subdivision plat'

lndividual storm Water Connec'tion Permits (cws) will be required with subsequent

devetopment, not with the subdivision plat'

16..1 !-6 Fire,P{otection

16.1t6.020 $tandards

A. GapacitY

All fire protection facilities shall be approved pv a1a. meet the specificatlons of the

Fire District and 
"f,"if 

Ue sized, conitiucted, located, and installed consistent with

this code, chapter 7 of the cornmunig Development plan, and other applicable Gity

Page l9 of33

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 90



standards, in order to adequately protect life and property in the proposed
development.

B. Fira Flow

Standards published by the lnsurance Services Office, entitled "Guide for
Determination of Requlred Fire Flows" shall determine the capacity of lacilities
required to furnish an adequate fire flow. Fire protection facilities shall be adequate
to convey quantities of water, as determined by ISO standards, to any outlet in the
system, at no less than twenty (20) pounds per square inch resldual pressure. Water
supply for fire protection purposes shatl be restricted to that available from the City
water system. The location of hydrants shall be taken into account in determining
whether an adeguate water supply exlsts.

C. Access to Facilities

Whenever any hydrant or other appurtenance for use by the Fire Dlstrict is required
by this Chapter, adequate ingress and egrees shall be provided. Access shall be in
the form of an improved, permanently maintained roadway or open paved area, ot
any combination thereof, designed, constructed, and at all times malntained, to be
clear and unobstructed. Widths, height clearances, ingress and egress shall be
adequate for District firefighting equipment. The Fire Distric! may further prohibit
vehicular parking along private accessways in order to keep them ctear and
unobslructed, and cause notice to that effect to be posted.

D. Hydrants

Hydrants located along private, accessways shall either have curbs painted yellow
or otherwise marked prohibitlng parking for a distance of at least fifteen (t5| ieet in
either direction, or where curbs do not exist, markings shall be painted on the
pavement or signs erected, or both, given notice that parking is prohibited for at
least fifteen (15) feet ln either direction.
(Ord. No. 201G014 S 2, t0-5-2010; Ord. 9l-922. g 3: Ord.86-851, S 3l

STAFF ANALYSIS: As indicated earlier in this decision, water service and hydrants were
provided with the construction of SW Langer Farms Parkway. The land is not proposed to
be developed at this time, and there are no structures on the existing site al this time.

FINDING: The fire district comments do not indicate that any additional services need to be
provided with this proposal. Their comments are incorporated into this decision for
reference. lt will be incumbent upon applicants to demonstrate compliance with this section
with future development proposals. These criteria are satisfied.

16.11-8. - Public anC Pqivate Utilitie,F

16.118.020 Standards
A. lnstallation of utilities shall be provided in public utility easements and shalt be

sized, constructed, located and lnstalled consistent with this Code, Chapter 7 of the
Communl$r DevelopmentCode, and applicable utility company and Gitystandards.

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision
Page 20 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 91



B. Public utility easements shall be a minimum of eigtrt feet in width rrnless a
-' ;"dr*d riam is specifically exempted by_the_Clty Engineer.

G. Where n."""""ry, in tf," iud-gment of thebity Lltanager or ItF designee, !9 proviae

for orderry deveropment of adjacent properties, pubfic and franchise utilities shall

le extenOiU tfrrorigtt the site io the edge 9f adf3rynt properly {iesf' 
!

D. Franchise utility 
-condults shall b; instailed per the utiliU design and

specification standards of the utility agency'
E. public Telecommunication conduiti ano appurtenances shall be installed per the

city of sherwood tetecommunication design standards.

F. d;rpti-s: fnsUfiation shall not be requiied if the development does not require

any other "tr*t 
irpi"""r""q. -ln 

those instances, the developer shall pay a lee

in tieu that wiii nril""" installation when street or utility improvements in that

location occur.

srAFF ANALysrs: There is no physical deveropment proposed with this subdivision,

There are utitities r*rni the entire'siie that are readily available for future development of

the site. pubric utiiiiv easer"na wilr be provided where required to ensure that there is

adequate room for franchise utilities'

FINDING: No new utility extensions are necessary with this request. The applican! !s
showing an g-foot pubric utirity easement around ths rots as required. utirities are available

i; ti; pr.p"rtv 
"na 

*iliue extlnOed as future development is proposed on the site-

I 6.1 1 8.030 Underground Facilities
;;;;;i;;"ir,"r*li";-;*iJ;d, auutirity ragilitt-e1, inc.ludins but not limited to, electric

ilf,,.f;t" ep6or,",-n"[ui"i-g"t, lig]rtingl cable television, and telecommunication

cable, shall be pl"""J unairirorilO, rlnbss specifically authorized for above ground

installation, oec"u-si t[" p.iit" of connection to existing utilities-make underground

installation impraciii"i, oi for other reasons deemed acceptable by the Gity'

srAFF ANALysrs: As indicated previousry, there- is no need for new utirities with this

subdivision propor"i. rul existing ahO adjacint yliltiel*"re placed underground when the

SW Langer Farms P;rMtt;as-constructed in 2011- There are above ground PGE or BPA

;;;di";, arcng sW Tuatitin-sherrrvood Road, that cannot be undergrounded because of

the load they carry.- ir tn" opportunity arises in the future to underground the facilities, it is

iiX"ty tn"t those pioviders will do it themselves'

FINDING: There are overhead utilities on the property,-but they carry an electrical load that

is not conducive to ,nJ"igtilding. Future prbposalslor new development will be required

to provide underground dcifities when extending utilities where applicable- This criterion is

satisfied.

16.129 gubdivisio4s

I 6.1 20.040 Approval Griteria : Prelim inary Plat

No preliminary plat shall be approved unless:
A. Streets anu to"bs;"f"tmio plats approve! for adioining properties as to

widths, alignmeiti goJ"s, ariO ottrer standards, unless the City determines that

ttre publicinterest isierveO by modifying streets or road patterns'

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

PageZl af33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 92



STAFF ANALYSIS: SW Century Drive is conditioned to be constructed through the PUD
and the approved DevelopmentAgreement, As proposed, the rightof-way tol SW Century
Drive will be dedicated to the public for future construdion, The design and construction oi
that right-of-way will be consistent with this section to the extent that the provided right- of-
way will not preclude lhe conslruction of that future street from complying with this
standard.

Fll'lDlNG: Because the right-of-way for SW Century Drive is being dedicated with the plat,
SW Langer Farms was recently constructed, and lhe County has agreed to allow the
applicant to either construct improvements or pay a fee in lieu of improvements to Tualatin-
Sherwood Road, this criterion can feasibly be satisfied as provided the applicant meets the
conditions of this decision.

B. Streets and roads held for private use are clearly indicated on the plat and alt
reservations or restrictions relating to such private roads and streets are set forth
thereon.

STAFF ANALYSIS: As proposed or conditioned, all existing easements are indicated on
the preliminary plat as required, and willbe checked and verified again prior to the City's
approvalof the final plat.

FINDING: The plat illustrates all of the existing reservations or restrictions for access to the
extent that they are existing. New ones may be established with future development, but for
now, this criterion is satisfied.

C. The plat complies wilh applicable zoning district standards and design standards
in Dlvislon ll, and all provisions of Divisions lV, Vl, Vlll and lX. The subdivlsion
complies with Chapter 16.128 (Land Divislon Design Standards).

STAFF ANALYSIS: Compliance with these standards have been discussed throughout this
decision.

FINDING: As conditioned, the proposed subdivision can comply with the standards
including Chapter 16.128, the Land Division Design Standards. lt should be noted that this
proposal does not include an application for physical development, so some of the
slandards listed above are not applicable to this proposal, and will need to be satisfied with
future proposals for development on the individual lots.

D. Adequate water, sanitary sewer, and other public facilities exist to support the use
of land proposed in the plat.

STAFF ANALYSIS: Compliance with these standards have been discussed throughout this
decision.

FINDING: As discussed earlier in this decision, allpublic utilities and facilities are availabb
to the site. This criterion is satisfied by the proposed subdivision.

E. Development of additional, contiguous property under the same ownership can be
accomplished ln accordance with thie Code.

SI-IB 12-02 Langer Farm SuMivision
Page 22 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 93



STAFF ANALysls: Approval of this subdivision as proposed, does not preclude any of the

adjacent properties from being developed'

FINDING: There are no contiguous properties adjacent to the subject s]te-tlt{ are under

in" .6" ownership. This critlrion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision.

F. Adioining land can either be developqd i1{eryrndently or is provided access that

will allow dlvebpment ln accordance with this Gode'

STAFF ANALYSIS: Approval of this subdivision as proposed, does not preclude any of lhe

adjacent properties from being developed

FINDING: The proposed subdivision does not affect adjoining land floq being.provided

with access. Theri 
"i" 

no landlocked parcels of land adjacent to this site' Future

construction of SW Century Drive will improve access to the adjacent properties, but they

currently have access to a public street' This criterion is satisfied'

G. Tree and woodland inventories have been submitted and approved as per section

16,142.060.

STAFF ANALYSIS: A tree and woodland inventory has not been submitted for this

proposal because there is no physical development proposed. lt will be incumbent upon

[t 
" 

piop.rtv owner to demonsirate comptiance with these standards with future proposals

for develoPment on lhe ProPerty.

FINDING: Because there is no physical development associated with this request, this

criterion is not aPPlicable-

H. The plat clearly shows the proposed lot numbers, setbacks, dedications and

easements

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed preliminary plat illustrates the proposed lot numbers,

dedications and easements as required'

FINDING; Because there is no physical development associated with lhe plat, setbacks are

noi*qiir"O to o" shown, and willbe verified in future proposals tor developmenl- To the

extent that this criteria applies to the proposal, it i_s satisfied. Because of the size of the

foii, itG ieasible fortheibtnacfs to be met with future development'

l. A minimum of five percent (5%l op€n spac9 has beel provided-per $ 16'aa'B'8

ii"*nr,"''."- Stanrtarasl or SiO.r 42:o2O {Parks, O!"I _!na9e9 a1{ rle9s-S-insle'

F;-iit R;sio"nti"iS"tii"i*ions),lf applicable. {ord. No. 2011-oll, S 1, 104'20111

STAFF ANALysls: Because this property is associated with an existing Planned unit

O"u"loprunt, and i" noiassociateb witfr iesiOentialdevelopment, this standard is not

applicable to the proposed development'

FINDING: This standard is not applicable to the proposed development'

16J48 - land Dlvisio$ Oesiq4 Standards
{6.128.010 - Blocks

Page23 of33

StlB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 94



A. Gonnectivity
1. Block Size
The length, width, and shape of blocks shall be designed to provide adequate
building sltes for the uses proposed, and for convenient access, circulation, trafflc
control and safety.
2. Block Length
Block length standards shall be in accordance with Section-l6.{08.040. Generally,
blocks shall not exceed five-hundred thiily {s30, feet in length, except blocks
ldjacent to principal arterial, which shatl not exceed one th-ousanO eigtrt hundred
(1,800) feet. The extension of streets and the formation of blocks shall conform to the
Local street Network map contalned in the Transportalion system plan.

3. Pedestrian and Bicycle Connectlvity. Paved blke and pedestrian accessways
shall be provided on public easements or right-of-way consistent with Figure
7.401.

STAFF ANALYSIS: This proposal does not include the creation of any new streets not already
ac@unted for by the TSP. There is no identified bicycle or pedestrian connec{ions in the TSp
that are not already provided for wilhin the existing right-of-way. lt should be noted that the site
is limited by the presence of the wellands in Tract A, a major arteriat to the north, a collector to
the west, and existing industrialdevelopment diredly south of the site-

FINDING: Existing site conditions and preexisting development on adjacent properties may
deter full street connectivity on a portion of the site. A oonceptual circulation plan is provided
with the preliminary plans to illustrate how the site can conceptually meet the standards,
however, the site is zoned for light industrial and commercial uses, so it is unlikely that a fuli
rl-^^l ^^---^a:^- "-.-..1J L- 

- -* r- - - - -r Isii-eei conneciion wtui'i be i-recessary beyonci whai is caiieri for in ihe TSP. it wiii be incumbent
upon.the property owner to demonstrate that the existing conditions preclude full connedivity,
and if so, how pedestrian or bicycle connections can be made for future proposals for
development. These criteria are not applicable to the proposed subdivision.

B. Utilities Easements for sewers, drainage, waler mains, electric lines, or other
utilities shall be dedicated or provided for by deed. Easements shall be a minimum of
ien il0i feei in width anti ceniereci on rear or side lot lines; except for tie.back
easements, which shall be six (6) feetwide by twenty (20) feet long on sidelot lines at
the change of direction.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed sub,divlsion shows the location of all existing utility
easements associated wlth the site. An 8-foot public utility easement was dedicated along
the front and side lot lines with document No. 2011-039292, and is illustrated on the ptat.

FINDING: The Engineering division has indicated that the easement is of adequate width to
accommodate utilities. As new proposals for development come in on the lots, it will be
incumbent upon the applicant to ensure that adequate easements are provided to allow
access and maintenance to future public utilities. This criterion is satisfied by the proposed
subdivision.

C. Drainages
Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercoutse, drainage way, channel or street,
drainage easements or rights-ot-wiy shall be provided 

"otifotmifigsuUstantially 
to

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm SuMivision
Page24 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 95



the alignment and size of the drainage'

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision is traversed by a drainaglwal therefore, this

,rit"rion is appticabb. Aipriiposed, the subdivision includes two lracts. Tract A identifies the

location of the drainage wiy inO assoeiated corridor, and Tract B identifies the location for a

future regional stormwater treatment facility'

FINDING: The applicant has proposed to dedicate the facilities as is conditioned in the

ijiiginrr pUD and'"6o"i"i"0'Development Agreement. This criterion is satisfied by the

proposal.

16.128.020 - Pedestrian and Bicycle Ways

pedestrian or bicycle ways may be required to-connect cul-de-sacs, divide tbrough an

unusually long or 
"Oaii 

jf,.pei block, or to othenrise provide adequate circulation'

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no cul-de-sacs proposed with this subdivision, and as

proposeO. it is untimely to evaluate the circulation given th.at the sizes of the lots are so large'

It will be incumbent up'on futui. applications to demonstrate compliance with this slandard.

FINDING: As indicated previously in this decision. the site is not subject lo this standard until

ru"n lim" that physical development is being proposed on lhe site'

16.'128.030 - Lots

A. Size and Shape

Lot size, width, shape, and orientation shall be appropriate for the location and

topography of the su$ivision or partition, and shall comply with applicaHe

zoning district requirements, with the following exception:

1. Lots in areas not served by public sewer orwater supply shall conform to any

special Gounty Health Department standards'

STAFF ANALYSIS: As previously discussed, the proposed lots meet or exceeds the

applicabte Oimensionat itandarOs for lots within the Light lndustrialzoning district.

F1NDING: The approved pUD did not ptace any.additional lot restrictions on the property'

This site is served by public sewer and water. This criterion is satisfied.

B. Access

All lots in a subdivision shall abut a public street, except as allowed lor infill

develoPment under GhaPter 16.08'

STAFF ANALYSIS: Lots 1-4 direcily abut one of the three adjacenl public rights-of-way (sw
c.niurv orive wi1 ue Goicated wifirthis plat an_d _constructed 

with future development). Lot 5

nas Oiiea public access through a private 40-foot wide access and utility easement as

allowed in ChaPter 16.68.

FINDING: Because the lOts abUt a public street, or are served by an easement to a public

street, this criterion is satisfied.

Page 25 of33

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 96



D, Side Lot Lines Side lot lines shall, as far as practicable, run at right angles to
the street upon which the lots face, except that on curved streets side lot lines
shall be radial to the curve of the streel

STAFF ANALYSIS: With the exception of Lots 4 and 5, the side lot lines of each lot run
perpendicular to SW Langer Farms Parkway. Lots 4 and 5 are not able to be perpendicular
because of the onsite drainage way.

FINDING: To the extent that it is practical, the side lot lines run at right angles to SW
Langer Farms Parkway. The proposal has satisfied this criterion.

E. Grading

Grading of building sites shall conform to the follouring standards, except when
topography of physical conditions warrants special exceptions:

1. Gut slopes shall not exceed one (lf and one-halt (1 ll2l feet horizontally to
one (t) foot vertically.

2. Fill slopes shall not exceed two (21feet horizontally to one ({} footvertically.

STAFF ANALYSIS: No on-site grading is proposed with this subdivision.

FINDING: Because no grading is associaled with the proposed subdivision, it will be
incumbent upon future development proposals on the site to comply with this standard. lt
shouici be noieci ihat the site is t'airiy iiat, so it is very iikety that the amount of future grading
on this property will be minimal, and that it is entirely feasible for the standards listed aboG
to be mpt given the topography. This crilerion is not applicable to this proposal.

Division Vlll - Environmental Resources

16.142 - Parks and Open Space

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision is on land that is zoned Light lndustrial (L-l)
with a Planned Unit Development (PUD) overlay. The PUD required the provision of open
space that has already occurred for those properties developed with residential uses. The
vegetated corridor is belng set aside in a tract to be dedicated to the public to meet a
condition of the original PUD as it pertains to open space. The following criteria are the only
provisions that are applicable in this Chapter to this request.

I S.1 42.030.A Visual Corridors
A. Corridors Required

New developments with frontage on Highway 99W, or arterial or collector streets
designated on the Transportalion Plan llap, attached as Appendix G, or in Section
5 of the Community Development Plan Pafi2,shall be required to establish a
landscaped visual corridor according to the following standards:

Catagory Width
1. Highway 99W 25 feet
2- Arterial 15 feet

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision
Page 26 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 97



: 3 Gollector 10 feet

tn iesidentiaideteiopmenti'where fences ar9 tVficaily desired adloining ih-e CUove

described ."ioi 
"ii,j,*the 

corridor may bl P!a999 in the road right'of:w"! betvveen

the property line and the sidewalk' (Ord' 2005'0211

B. LandscaPe Materials
The required visual corridor areas shall be planted as specifief by the review

authority to piovia" a continuous visual andror acoustical buffer between rnaior

streets 
"nO 

i"r"iop"O *"". Except as provided for above, fences and walls shall

not be substituted for landscaping wtthin the visual corridor- Uniformly planted'- --
drought resistant street trees anC-ground cover, as specified in Section {6'142'050'

shatt be pfanteJ'in the corridor Oyihe developer. The imprweqglts shall be

inctuded in the subdivision comfliance agreement' (Ord' 2006-0211

C. Establishrnent and llaintenance
Designatea ui"r.I corridors shall be established as a porlion of landscaping

requirements puisu"ntio Chapter ,;6.92. To assure continuous maintenance of the

visual corriOois, ttre review auitrority may require that the development rights to

the corridor areas be dedicated to tlie Gity or that restrictive covenants be

ieiorUeA prior to the issuance of a building permit. {Ord' 2006-021}

D. Required Yard
Visual coniirs may be established in required yards, except thatwhere the

required ui"u.i-""iiioor width exceeds the requiied yard width, the visual corridor

requirement 
"tr"rl 

tare precedence. ln no case shall buildings be sited or trees be

removed rr"ln-t"iifrin $tt required visual corridor, with the e199rytio1 of front
porches on townhomes, as permitted in Sectlon 16.44'010(EX4Xc}. (ord. 2006.021)

STAFF ANALySIS: The proposed subdivision does not include any physicaldevelopment

that would mandate the need for a visual corridor. Future development of the lots will be

required to 
"omiy-*ii[ 

itt" rtr.rqt corridor standards along it's frontage with SW Langer

Farms parrway, !'coilector, and SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, an arterial'

FINDING: Because the applicant is not proposing any physical d.evelopment of the

property at ttrislirne, 
"no 

tni'city will have ihe opportunity to impose this requirement on

future oevetopmeniiroporirr, thii criterion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision'

t6.142.060. Street Trees
A. lnstallation of street Trees on New or Redeveloped Property'

Trees "t" 
t"qri*Ai" O" planted to the following specifications along public

streets aOuiiin! or withiri 
"ny 

n"r" developmenf or re-development- Plantlng oI

such trees shall be a condition of development approval.-The Cityshall be subJect

to the "a., 
it"ndards for any developmtnts involvi-ng city-owned property' or

when "on"iru"ti;t;; 
reconsiructingbity slrg€ls. After installing street trees, the

property owner sliall be responsiblifor maintaining thc street trees on the

owner's d;;rry-;"Jinin the right'of-y".1*i:tent to the owner's propertv'

1. r-ocaftoniTrees shail be flanted-within the planter etrip along a newly

"r""i"a-orimproveo 
strelts. ln the event that a planter strip is not required

or available, ti\e trees shall be planted on prlvat9 prop-ery within the front
yard setback area orwithin puitlic street right'of+ay between front
pr"p"rrfrines and street surb lines or as required !I the.gtty.

2. Size: Trees shall have a minimum trunk diameter of two (2) inches DBH and

minimum n"igtri of six (6) feet. Diameter at breast height (DBH) shall be

PageZ7 of33

SIIB l2-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 98



measured as defined by the lnternational Society of Arboriculture.
Typesr Developments shall include a variety of streettrees. The trees
planted ehall be chosen from those listed in 16.142.080 of this Code.
Required Street Trees and Spacing:
a. The mlnlmum spacing ls based on the maximum canopy spread

identified in the recommended street tree list in section 16.142.080
with the intent of providing a continuous canopy without openings
between the trees. For example, if a tree has a canopy of forty (40|
feet the spacing between trees is forg (a0) feet.lf the tree is not on
the list, the mature canopy width must be provided to the plannlng
department by a certified arborist.

b. All new developments shall provide adequate tree planting along all
public etreets. The number and spacing of trees shall be determlned
based on the type of tree and the spacing standards described in a.
above and considedng driveways, street light locatlons and utility
connections, Unless exempt per c. below, trees shall not be spaced
more than forty (40) feet apart ln any development.

c. A new development may exceed the forty-foot spacing requirement
under section b. above, under the following circumstances:
(1) lnstalling the tree would interfere with existing utility lines

and no substitute tree ls appropriate for the site; or
(21 There is not adequate space in which to plant a street tree

due to driveway or street light locations, vision clearance or
utility connections, provided the driveways, street light or
utilities could not be reasonably located elseryhere so as to
accommodate adequate room for streetlrees; and

(31 The street trees are spaced as close as possible given the
site limitations in (1) and (2) above.

(4) The location of street trees ln an ODOT or Washington
Gounty right-of.way may require approval, respectively, by
ODOT or Washington County and are subject to the relevant
state or county standards.

(51 For arterial and collector streets, the Gity may require planted
medians in lieu of paved trvelve-foot wide center turning
lanes, planted with trees to the specifications of this
subsection.

FalfhalfA- lr- 
--l-iNuiNu: No new sirect tu€cs are requireei for ihis proposal uniii sueh time ihat physicai

improvements of SW Century Blvd and improvemenls along SW Tualatin€herwood Road
are constructed. The applicant has proposed to dedicate the rights-of-way and defer
improvements until future development occurs. The County has requested that the
applicant either make the improvements or pay a fee in-lieu of the improvements prior lo
final plat. This condition has been incorporated into this decision. Street trees were
provided along the sites frontage with SW Langer Farms Parkway with that recent
improvement. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision, but will be
required with future development of any of the lots that require the construction or
reconstruction of new public streets.

{6.142.050 - Trees on Properly Su$ectto Certain l,and Use Applications
All site developments subject to Section 15.92.020 shall be required to preserve trees
or woodlands to the maximum extent feasible within the context of the proposed land

Page 28 of33

3.

4.

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 99



use plan and rslative to other policles and standards of the Gity comprehensive Plan'

as determined by the Gity. Review and mitigation shafl be consistent with {6.142'060

A, B, C and D.

FINDING: This application is for a proposed subdivisjon' no physical.improvernents are

proposed. This lanf,hr"-u""n farmed, and the majority of trees on site are located within Tract

A. Future development proposats on ihe lots wifi be required to satisfy the requirernents of

this chapter. gedu; irili pr"pgrtv.is zoned for commercial or light industrial uses, future

development will be subject to lite devJopment r9v!ew, and a more detailed analysis of how

trees will be atrected. iri[ crit"tion is not ipplicable to the proposed subdivision.

Chapter 16.14Wetland, Habitat, and Natural Areas

16.144'.020 Standards

A. The applicant shalt idenrify and descrlbe the signilicance and functional value of

wetlands on the site and protect those wetlands from adverss eff€cts of the

devetopmenr. A ra;ri't ;;pfii; ,rrrir, ini" standard if il compries with the criteria of

subseitions A.{.a and A.l.b, below:

{. The facility will not reduce the area of wetlands on the site, and development will

be separattJ-it". 
"u"rt 

wetlands by an area determined by the clean Waler

services o."ig" 
"nd 

construction standards R&O 00'7 or its replacement

provided s""iii" ro.ilo.ogo does not require morc than the requested setback

a. A natural condition such as topography, soil, vegetation or other feature

isolates Gr"r." of development from the wetland,

b. lmpact rnitigation measures will be designed, implemented' and rnonitored to

provide ,iliJ"ti"" piotection against l"- to.the wetland from sedimentatlon'

erosion, loss of sdrface or ground water supply, or physical trcspass'

c. A lesser setback complies with federal and state permits, or standards that will

apply to JGte and fediral permits' if required'

2. lf existing weflands are proposed to be eliminated by the facility, the applicant

shall demonstrate that the p;tect ca-n, and will develop or enhance an area of

wefland "nirr. 
iit ot in the-same drainage basin that is at least equal to the arca

and functional value of wetlands eliminated'

B. The applicant shall provide appropriate pla-nsand text that identify and deseribe the

significance anu runctionar varui-oi'naturir features on the site (if identified in the

Community Devetopment Plan, Part 2j'and p..ot''t those features from impacts of the

deveropment or ;ff;il;fi;;* efdcts tnlt wirr occur. A faciritv compries wirh this

standard if:

l.The site does not contain an endangered or threatened plant or animal speeies or

a critical habitat for such 
"p""i"" 

i&nfified by Federal or State government {and

does not contain significani natural features identified in the Community

Developm"nipi"n, Pai 2, Natural Resources and Recreation Plan)'

Page29 of33

SUB 12-02 Lang* Farrn Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 100



2.The hcility will comply with applicable reguirements of the zone.

3.The applicant will excavate and store topsoil separate from subsurlace eoil, and
shall replace the topsoil over disturbed areas of the site not covered by builiings
ot pavement or provlde other appropriate medium for re.vegetaffon of thoie
areas, such as yard debfs compost

+.Ittg applicant will retain signilicant vegetation in areas that will not be covercd by
bulldings or pavement or dlsturbed by excavation for the facility; will replarit
areas disturbed by the development and not covered by buildlngi or pavement
with native species vegetation unless other vegetation-is needed to buffer the
facility; will protect disturbed ar€as and adjoining habitat from potential erosion
until rcplantcd vegetation is established; and wlll provlde i plan or ptans
identifying each area and its proposed use.

5. Developnent associated with the facility wilt be set baek lrom the edge of a
significant natu-ral area by an area dete_rmined by the Clean Water SewiceJDesign
and Gonstruction standards R&O 00-7 or its replacement, provided Secfi5n
16.140.090A does not require more than the requesled se{back, Lack of adverie
effect can be demonstrated by showing ths samo sort of evldence as in
subsection A,l above.

C. When the Regionally Significant Fish and Wildlife Habitat map lndicates there are
re{sources on the site or within 50 feet of lhe sltg the applicant shill provide plans that
shour the location of resources on the property. lf resourtes are determined to be located
on lhe property, the plans shall show the value of environmentally sensitive areas using
the methodologies described ln Sectlons I and 2 below.

The llletro Regionally Significant Fish and Wildllfe Habltat map sha[ be the basis fior
detetmining the location and value of environmentally sensitive habitat areaa. ln order to
speclfy the exact locatione on sile, the fiollowing methodology shall be used to determlne
Ote appropriate boundaries and habitat values:

FINDING: The applicant has identified the wetlands on site, and has provided staff with a
GWS service Provider letter that spells out all of the requirements for proiection as required in
the Tualatin River Basin approved HCA. According to the applicant, and as verifieci by the
$ervice Provider Letter, the area has been delineatCd in accodance with the requirements of
CWs R&C oo-7. clean Water Services has provided comments in additfon to the Service
Provider Letter that have been incorporated into this report. The following Gondition is
wananted to ensure that the applicant continues to comply with the conditidns of Service
Provider Letter No. 12{00162. lt will be incrrmbent upon future development proposals on
proposed Lots 4 and 5 to ensure that their impacts to the protecied resources in Tract A meet
the requirements of CWS.

CONDITION: Prior !o any site worft or final ptat approval, the applicant shall provide the City
with evidence that Clean Water Services has reviewed and approved the final plat, and mdt
the applicable conditions imposed on the letter dated May 8, ZO12 from Jackie Sue
Humphreys at Clean Water Services.

S{JB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision
Page 30 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 101



review of the code, agenclf
submitlal, stbfi finds thal the

btrt can be cohdiliondd to

VI. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

A. ggner.al Qonditions
1. compriance witn-itfconditions of Approvar is the responsibirity of the deveroper or its

successor in interest-

2. Development and construction on the site shall conform subslantially to the preliminary

plat devetopr"nipl"nt trutitt"o..Pf o*9 Engineering and Forestry' dated April 1 1' 2012

except as mooiiiSJ in rne conditilns betoi, (and-shall conform specifically to final

construction plans reviewed and approlgd by ine City Engineer' the. Building Official'

Clean water services, Tuatatin vaiiiv Fire and Rescue, Tualatin Valley Water District

and Washington County). All plans shall complyryith the applicable building, planning,

engineering and fiie proi6ction'codes of the city of sherwood.

3. The developer is responsible for all costs associaled with any remaining public facility

improvements and shall assure the construction of all public streets and utilities within

andadjacenttotheplatasrequiredbytheseconditionsofapproval'totheplans'
standards, and specifications of the city of sherwood' The developer shall also provide to

the C1y financial guarantees for construction of all public streets and utilities within and

adjacent to the pllt, as required by the engineering compliance agreement.

4. This approval is valid for a period of two (2) years from the date of the decision

notice. Extensions may be gianted by the C1y as afforded by the Sherwood Zoning and

CommunitY DeveloPment Code'

5. The continuat operation of the property shall comply with the applicable requirements of

the sherwood Zoning and community Development code and Municipal code'

6. This approvaldoes not negale the need to obtain permits, as appropriate from other

local, state or federal agencres, even if not specifically required by this decision'

B. Priorto appfoval of the public improvement plans:

1, All public easement dedication documents must be submitted to the City for review,

signed by the city and the applicant, and recorded by the applicant with the original or a

certified copy of the recorded easements on file at the city prior to release of the public

improvement Plans'

2. Submit the final plat for review to the Planning Department'

C. Prior to Aporoval of the Final Plat:

Page 3 I of33

SUB 12-02 Langer Famr Subdivision

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 102



1. The submittal by the applicant for final plat review and approval shall include but not be
limited to the followingj.a final plat application; final plat review fee; narrative identifoing
how the required conditions of approval have or will be met three copies of the final ihf
and any other materials required to demonstrate compliance witir the conditioni oi
approval. ln addition, the following specific conditions shall be met prior to approval of
the finalplat:

2. Priorto fin_alplat approval, the applicant shalldedicate the necessary right-of-way needed to
construct SW Century Drive.

3. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall establish the public righl-of-way and 8'
public utility easement for and adjacent to SW Century Drive.

4- ptlg 
!g final plat approval, the following shall be represented on the ptat and recorded

with Washington County:
a. Dedication of additional right-of-way to provide 49 feet from centerline of SWTualatin-

Sherwood Road.
b. Dedication of additional right-of-way to provide adequate corner radius at the

intersection of SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road.
c. Provision of a non-acoess reservation along SW Tualatin€herwood Road frontage,

except at the existing access point(s) approved in conjunction with this land use
application.

5. P1o1 to any site work or final plat approval, the applicant shall provide the City with
evidence that Glean Water Services has reviewed and approved the finalplat, and met
the applicable conditions imposed on the letter dated Ma.rr8. 2012fromJackie Sue
Humphreys at Glean Water'Services. ' '''"'

6. Approvalof the public improvement plans by the Engineering Department, and signature
of a complianc€ agreement must be complete priortb rebas-e of ine pht to the Ciunty for
review. ln addition, priorto finalplat approval, either all on-site work must be complefe or
the improvements bonded or guaranteed with a cash deposit.

7. The final plat shall show the following:
a. The Community Development Director as the City's approving authority within the

signature block of the final plat.

b. A 15-foot wide public ulility easement for any areas wherc a single public utitity line is
located outside a public right-of-way with an increase of five (S; teet for each
additional utility line.

c- Private access easements, utility easements andlor special use easements as
required for the development of the site. A plat note shall reference an easement
and rnaintenance agreement or similar document, to be recorded with the plat, for
the joint maintenance of any common private utility lines, common Oirueway
improvements, or other common amenity or perimetei fencing. The language ot
such plat note and associated document shall be reviewed anO approved Oi tne
Planning Department.

SUB 12-02 Langer Farrn Subdivision
Page 32 of33

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 103



crw oF SHERWOOD
Decision

Date: September 28., 2016
File No: MLP 1S'02 SP 1&06

Sentinel Self- Storage Annex ll

The Sherwood Planning Commission held a public hearing on Septemb", ?,2016 for the

Sentinel Self-Storage Annex ll minor land partition and site plan review. The Comrnission

"p"n"o 
the hearind ano received a staff report and applicant presentation..The Comrnission

gien requested puilic testimony for, against, or neutral-to the subject application. No public

comments were received at the hearing. After consideration of the applicatio_n, the one citizen

comment received during the notice prrioO, and the applicant's presentation, the Planning

commission voted to approve the application with revised findings.and added a condition. The

Fd;i;tCommission ciecision is based on the findings of fact and conditions contained in his
noii.", ilre applicant's materials and testimony, citizen testimony, and the staff report including

exhibits.

Planning Commission

proposal: The applicant proposes to partition a 21.82 acre lot into two parcels, and build a

436'un1 storage facitity on one of tne pariels. The storage units will include ope!: covered,

p"rti"irv 
"n"loieo 

ano tutty enctosed dnits. The site is a part of the Langer PUD (PUD 9$'o1).

This siie is located on SW Langer Farms Parkway, and is zoned PUD- Ll'

I. BACKGROUND
A. AoolicanVOryner:

Langer FamilY, LLC
15555 SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road
Sherwood, OR 97140

B. Location: The property is located on the south side of SW Langer Farms Parkway. The

Fropffi19 iOentineil as tax lot 100 on Washington County Assessor Map 2S129DC.

C. Parcel.size: The subject property is approximately 21-82 acres in size'

D. Existino Development and Site Ghaqacteristiqs: . -
The s1e is c@ actively farmed for hay. The site slopes frorn

west to east as weilas north to an existing drainage way. The drainage way surounds
this site along the westem and northem site boundaries. The site will take acoess from a

private acceis that connects to SW Langer Farms Parlotray via a forty foot access

easement whlch was previously approved through the Lange_r subdivisjon (SUB 12-02)

approval. The overalisite is Oounb'on the northeast by SW Century Blvd., to the north

OV'SW Langer Farms Parkway, to the south and southeast by a natural resource area

afid regionjl stormwater faciliiy, and to the west by a pallet manufacturer and distributor.

tne pr6perty is sunounded by other properties located to the south and west by other

lignt inOlstriaily zoneO and uied propg{.i9s, tqlh" qst by an industrially zoned parcel

that was Oevelilped with the Parliu,ay Mllage Shopping Center, and to the north by

properties that are zoned residential and public/institutional.

E. Site Historv: The site has been owned and farmed by the !gng"^l family since the late

1800's TFis particular piece of property is within phase I of the Shenrood Mllage PUD

Page I of29
MLP 16-02/SP 16-06 Sentinel Self-storageAnnex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 104



F

that was approved by the Shenrood City Council in 1995. All future development is
subjed to the conditions of the approved Planned Unit Development and SUB 12-02.
Because of the approval of the subdivision in 2012, the use of the propefi is vested for
a period of 10 years (ORS 92.040). ln this instance, the PUD approval for all of phases
6, 7, and 8 of PUD 95-1 allowed for uses that were permitted within the General
Commercial Zone 1995. This was memorialized by the Council approval of Resolution
2007-081in2007.

Zoninq Classification and, Comorehensive Plan Desionation: The property is zoned
PUD-LI. Mini storage is not cunently permitted in this zone, and Automotive, Boat,
Trailer, and RecreationalVehicle Storage is permitted conditionally, but as stated above,
both uses were permitted when the original PUD was approved, and the uses were
vesled for a period of 10 years once the subdivision was approved in2012.

Adiacent Zonino and Land Use: The subject site is currently being farmed for hay.
Properties to the south and east of the site include lands that are zoned Light lndustrial.
Billet manufacturing, a pallet manufacturer, is zoned Light lndustrial, and located directly
south of the site. The site is also adjacent to a regional storm water quali$ facility to the
southeast which was committed to serving this tax lot. The Parkway Mllage Shopping
Genter is located directly east of the site, and properties zoned Public/lnstitutional and
Residential are located directly north of the site. Those properties are developed with
single-family residences, and a private school(St. Francis).

Review Tvpe: According to section 16.72.010.4.c, site plans for developments over
40,000 square feet require a Type lV review with a decision made by the Planning
Commission after consideration of public comments. An appeal would be heard by the
City of Shenryood City Council so long as the person appealing had provided comments
prior to the close of public testimony at the public hearing and has filed an appeal within
fourteen 14 days after the decision has been mailed.

Neiohborhgod Meetino: The applicant held a neighborhood meeting on March 31,2016
at the Fire Station located at 15440 SW Oregon Street. The applicant discussed the
ot'ooosed develonment of the site to a sinole individua! who attended from the
neighborhood located north of the site. The applicant provided notes, the sign in sheet,
and an affidavit of mailing with the application materials.

Public Notice and Hearino: Notice of the application was mailed to property owners
within 1000 feet, ported on the property and in five locations throughout the City on
September 7,2016. Notice of the hearing was also provided in the September 1st edition
of the Sherwood Gazette, and again in the Tigard Times on September 22,2016 in
accordance with the notice provisions of Section 16.72.020 of the SZCDC.

Review Criteria: Code Citeia: Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code,
16.31 (Light lndustrial - Ll); 16.40 (Planned Unit Development); 16.58.010 (Clear
Vision), 16.90 (Site Planning), 16.92 (Landscaping), 16.94 (Otf-Sfieef Parhing and
Loading), 16.96 (On-Srfe Circulation); 16.98 (On-site Storage), All of Division Vl -
16.10+16.118 (Public lmprcvements), 16.122 Land Paftitions, 16.128 Land Division
Design Standards, 16.142 (Pafts and Open Space), 16.144 (Wetland, habitat and
Natural Areas), 16.146 (Noise), 16.48 (Vibrctions), 16.1ffi (Air QualM, 16.52 (Odors),
16.154 (Heat and Glarc); and 16.156 (Eneryy Conseruation).

G.

K.

H

L

J.

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page2 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 105



II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

public notice was mailed, posted on the property and in five locations throughout the Gity on

September Z,20'16. Staff has not received any public comments as of the date of this report on

the proposal.

III. AGENCY COMMENTS

Staff sent e-notice to affected agencies on September 6, 2016. The following is a summary of
the comments received. Copiei of full comments are included in the record unless othenrise
noted.

Sherwogd Enqineerinq Departmene Craig Christensen, PE, from the Engineering department
9,2016.Hiscommentsareincorporatedthroughoutthe

report, and where appropriaie conditions have been imposed to ensure that the proposal rneets

thi standards which'the engineering department is responsible to enforce. Mr. Christensens'

comments are attached to this report as Exhibit B'

Clean Water Services: Jackie Sue Humphrey's submitted comments dated September 15,

ffints,Ms,Humphrey'sindicatesthattheapplicantwillberequiredto
obtain a storm connection permit from Clean Water Services (CWS), and approval of final

construction plans and drainage calculations. The CWS comments are attached to this report as

Exhibit C.

Tualatin Vallev Fire and Rescue: Tom Mooney, Deputy Fire Marshal ll with Tualatin Valley
dcommentsforthisproposalonSept9mber7,2016.Mr.

Mooney indicated inat ttie district endorses the application provided their fire, life, and safety

requirements, listed in the comments, were satisfied including_ showing the driveway to the

secondary emergency access, clearance requirements for the secondary access,

documen[ation of frow iequirements to the site, and locations of the fire department connection.

Mr. Mooney's comments have been incorporated into this report where applicable, and are

attached to this report as Exhibit D.

t
Washinoion Countv: NaomiVogelof Washington Cou.ltY TLS initially contacted the City about

ffisaneedforatrafficstudy,bUtdidnotsendanyadditionalcomments.
pride Disposal, PGE, ODOT, Metro, Tri-Met, Kinder Morgql Energy, and NW Natural Gas were

also notified of this proposal and did not respond or provided no comments to the request for

agency comments by the date of this report.

IV. APPLICABLE CODE STANDARDS

Chapter 16.31 Liqht lndustrial (Lll

A. {6.31.020 Permitted Uses
The following uses are permitted outright, provided such uses meet the applicable
environmentat perfomahce standards contained in Division Vlll. Manufacture,
compounding, 

- 
processing, assembling, packaging, treatlelt, fabrication,

whoiesaling,-war6housing or storage of articles or products including recreational
vehicles, equiPment, etc.

Page3 of29
MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 106



FINDING: The applicant is proposing to develop a self-storage business with covered and
uncovered units. The development would also provide for the storage of recreational vehicles,
Storage and warehousing is not cunently allowed in the light industrial zone; however it was
permitted at the time of the original PUD approval. Both the code (16.32.020.H) and the
development agreement acknowledge that the uses permitted at the time of original PUD approval
are permitted. This standard is met.

I 6.3 1.030 Development Standards

A. No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, offstreet parking or loading
area, or other site dimension or requirement existing on, or after, the effective date of
this Code shall be reduced below the minimum requlred by thls Code. Nor shall the
conveyance of any portion of a lot for other than a public use or rlght-of-way, leave a lot
or structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code dimensions, area,
setbacks or other requircments, except as pemltted by Chapter 16.84.

B. Lot Dimensions

Except as othenvise provided, required minimum lotareas and dimenslons shall be:

1. Lot area: 10,000 sq ft
2. Lot width at front propefi line: 100 feet
3. Lotwidth at building line: 100 feet

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed development would divide a 21.82 acre lot that was created by
SUB 12-02 into two separate parcels. Parcel 1, the proposed location of the self'storage annex is
proposed to be 6.14 acres in size. Parcel2 is not proposed to be developed with this application. lt
is 15.68 acres in size. Both parcels will exceed the minimum lot area of 10,000 square feet. The
remainder of this analysis will be focused on the proposed development on parcel 1. As proposed,
the lot width at the front property line is 507.82 feet, because of the shape of the lot, the lot width at
the building line is the same.

FINDING: The proposed lot area, width and width at the building line exceed the minimum
requirement presoibed above; therefore, this criterion is satisfied by the proposed development."

i -Sofharke

as inimum setbacks shall be:
1 Front

yard:
Twenty (20) feet except when abuttlng a resldentialzone or public
park, then there shall be a minimum of forty (40) feet.

2. Side
yard

None, except when abuttlng a resldential zone, then there shall be a
minimum of forty (40) feet.

3. Rear
yard:

None, except when abutting a residentlal zone, then there shall be a
minimum of forty (40) feet.

4. Gorner
lots

Twenty (20) feet on any side facing a street, except when abutting a
residentialzone, then there shall be a minimum of forty (40) feet

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 4 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 107



STAFF ANALYSIS: The lot is not adjacent to residentially zoned lots therefore there is not a
setback requirement for the side or rear property lines. A yard is defined as the area extending

across the iull width of the lot between the front lot line and the nearest line or point of the building,

There is no proposed development on parcel 2. The proposed development on parcel 1 will

maintain a front yard setback of 20 feet, a rear yard setback of at least 5.35 feet, and two side

yards of 90.28 and 43 feet respectively.

FINDING: As proposed, The setbacks are satisfied by the proposed development.

C. 16.31.060 Gommunity Design

For standards rglating to off-street parking and loading, energy conselatlon, historic
resources, environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and

open space, oncitestorage, and site design, see DivisiOns V, Vlll and lX.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicable standards that are listed in the Community Design section are

addressed etsevuhere in this narative. As proposed, the development will meet these standards:

off - street parking, energy conservation, landscaping, access and egress, on-site storage, and site

design. There are not any historlc resour@s on site therefore that standard is not applicable.

Ghaoter 15.4{l Planned Unit Develooment

STAFF ANALYSIS: Chapter 16.40 only applies to the processing of proposals for preliminary

and final PUD'5, and modifications to approved PUD's. ln this instance, the applicant has
previously applied for and received approval for the entire PUD. A preliminary and final

bevelopnieni ptan for PUD 95-01 was approved in 1995. ln 2007, the PUD was modified to
clarify ihe allowed uses and to negotiate public improvements as they related to the applicant's
vision for future development on the site. ln 2010, the development agreement for the PUD was

amended and approved by the City Council, and subsequent to that approval, there have been

significant publii improvements provided to the site to help facilitate the development of the
property consistent with the approved PUD. Finally, the approval of the subdivision vested the

It6ined uses at the time of approvat under the provisions of ORS 92.40. Wttile the final
development plan is broad in its vision, the developer has satisfied the applicable conditions of

approvalwith each phase of the development.

FINDING: The proposed development is not subject to the PUD chapter beyond the necessi$
to satisfy the conditions of approval for the PUD. The only applicable condition of approvalfor
this phale was the dedication of the vegetated conidor. The applicant dedicated the vegetated

conidor w1h the approval of SUB 12-02. The Shenrood Village PUD 95-1 Retail/Commercial
Design Guidelines are not applicable to this use because it is industrial as opposed lo a

comirercial/retail use. Future developments that propose commerciaUretail uses within the

boundaries of the PUD are subject to the guidelines as stipulated in PUD 95-1.

Chaoter 16.58 ClearVision and Fence Standards

16.58.010 Clear Vision Areas

A. A clear vision area shall be maintained on the corners of all propefty at the intersection
of two (2) streets, intersection of a street with a railroad, or intersection of a street with
an alley or private drivewaY.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 5 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 108



B. A clear vision area shall consist of a triangular arca, two (2) sides of which are lot lines
measurcd from the corner intersection of the street lot lines for a distance specified ln
this regulation; or, where the lot tins have rounded cornens, the lot lines extended ln a
straight line to a point of intersection, and so measured, and the third side of whlch is a
line across the corner of the lot joining the non-intersecting ends of the other two (2)
sides.

C. A clear vision area shall contain no planting, sight obscuring fence, wall, structurg or
temporary or permanent obstruction exceeding two and one-halt (2 1l2l feet in height,
measurcd from the top of the curb, or where no curb exists, from the established street
center line grade, except that trees exceeding this height may be located in this area,
provided all branches and foliage are removed to the height of seven (7) feet above the
ground on the sidevyalk side and ten (10) feet on the street side.

The following requirements shall govern clear vision areas:

1. ln all zones, the minimum distance shall be twenty {20} feet,

2. ln all zones, the minimum distance from corner curb to any driveway shall be twenty-
five(25) feet.

3. Where no setbacks are required, buildings may be constructed within the clear vision
anea.

FINDING: The site is located in the light industrialzone which requires a minimum distance of 15
feet. The site has accss to SW Langer Farms Parkway from an easement. There is not any
site obstruc{ing objec{s proposed within the clear vision area. This standard is met.

Chaoter {6.90 Site Planninq

1 6.90.030.D Required Findlngs
No site plan approval shall be granted unless each of the following is found:

{. The proposed development meets applicable zoning district standards and design
standards in Division ll, and all provisions of Divisions V, Vl, Vlll and lX.

FINDING: The applicable standards listed above are addressed in detailthroughout this report.
The provisions of 16.31 lndustrial Land Uses Districts, 16.58 Clear Vision, 16.90 Site Planning,
16.92 Landscaping, 16.94 Parking, 16.96 Onsite Circulation, Division Vl. Public lnfrastructure,
16.142 Parks, Trees and Open Space, and 16.154 Heat and Glare. As conditioned throughout
this report, it is feasible forthe proposed development to satisff these requirements.

2. The proposed development can be adequately served by servlces conforming to the
Gommunity Development Plan, including but not llmited to water, sanitary facilities,
storm water, solid waste, parks and open spacg public safety, electric power, and
communications.

FINDING: Water, sanitary and streets are all available. The site will be served via a private
ac@ss drive in Parcel 1 from SW Langer Farms Parkway. Sewer and water services are also

Page 6 of29
MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 109



located in SW Langer Farms parkway. Stormwater quality and quantity are.provided via a

regional stormwater-facility construaed-with the development of the Parkway Village shopping

"6ter, 
and the earlier annex that was constructed immediately southeast 9f qloRosed Parcel 1

in 2012. The neareslpark is Langer Park, off of SW Century Blvd. in a residential neighborhood.

Solid waste services, communicJtion and public safety are all availabb to this development.

3. Govenantrs, agreements, and other specific documents are adequate, in the City's
-- d"tfii".iioni to assure an acceptible method of ownerrship, management, and

maintenance of structures, landscaping, and other on-site features'

FINDING: Any required covenants or restrictions imposed by the City-will.be required to be

satisfied as ah ongoing condition of the original land use decision and subsequent land use

"ppiouilr 
on this iar.Er of land. The City does ry1 monitor or enforce private covenants and

i6,&riaion.. The Eirgineering Department ieviewed the plans and indicated that a Private Storm

Water Facility Accejs and riaintinance Covenant across the property are already provided.

4. The proposed development preserves significant natural features to the maximum

exterit feaslble, including bui not limited to natural drainage w?ys, wetlands, trees,

u"g"t"tion (inciuding bufnot limited to environmentally sensitive.lands), scenic views,

"nE 
topogriphical fiatures, and conforms to the applicable provisions of Division Vlll

of this Code and Chapter 5 of the Community Development Gode.

FINDING: The applicant is proposing to remove two trees. The trees were recently put in with

in" i,nptou"r"nt 6t SW Langei Farms Parkway and the pri.or land use approval- Both trees are

propoieo for removal to aciommodate access into the site. As mentioned previously in this

i"port, ine site has been traditionally farmed. A stream and vegetated conidor.were set aside in

a Tract with the recording of sUB iz-oz. There are no significant natural features proposed to

be removed through this proposal. This criterion is not applicable.

5. For developments that are likely to generate mo-re than 4{t0 average daily trips (ADTs),

or at the-discretion of tne City Engineer, the appllcant must proride adequate

information, such as a traffic imiact analysis (TlA) or traffic counts, to demonstrate

the level of impact to the surrounding transportauon system. The developer is

iequiiea to miiigate for impacts attributaUle to the proiect, pusuant to TIA

,"duir"r"nts in Siction 16.106.080 and rough- proportlonality requirements in section

16.{06.090. The determination of impact or-effect and the scope of_the impact study

must be coordinated with the provider of the affected transportation facility.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant provided a traffic irnpact memo from Greenlight Engineering,

prepareO nV Rick Nys, pE a'registeied traffic engineer as. exhibit G to the application (Exhibit A).

Acioraing io the memo, the ievetopment couid expect to generate '!09 av.:rage dqily tripq'

irpr"it [o nearby intersections are typically qnalyzed during the wge]r!?y Al'l and PM peak

hours. The propolec a"J"lopment is 6xpeaed to-generlle a total of 9 trips during both peak

noJrs. The'apiticant will be required t6 pay transportation system develo.pment charges to
jssijt in impioving jno maintairiing tre iity and Washington County's collector and arterial

"vrt"r, 
ano signiRiant improvemenls to tne System were.made with the developmentof earlier

pi,;;;; or tne-puD ii z:ci,tz. The Gity Enginier has indicated that no additional mitigation is

required of this develoPment.

FINDING: Based on the above discussion, the applicant meets this criterion.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-storage Annex II
PageT of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 110



6. The proposed commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed-use development is
oriented to the pedestrian and bicycle, and to existing and planned transit facllities.
Urban design standards shall include the following:

a. Primary, front entrances shall be located and oriented to the street, and haye
significant articulation and treatment, via facades, porticos, arcades, porches, portal,
forecourt, or stoop to identify the entrance for pedestrians. Addltional entrance/exit
points for buildings, such as a postern, are allowed from secondary streets or parking
areas.

b. Buildings shall be located adjacent to and flush to the street, subject to landscape
coridor and setback standards of the underlying zone.

c. The architecture of buildings shall be oriented to the pedestrian and designed for the
long term and be adaptable to other uses. Aluminum, vinyl, and T-111 sidlng shall be
prohlbited. Strcct faclng elevations shall have windows, transparent fenestration, and
divisions to break up the mass of any wlndow. Rolt up and sliding doors are
acceptable. Awnlngs that provide a mlnimum 3 feet of shelter from rain shall be
installed unless other architectural elements are provided for slmilar protection, such
as an arcade.

d. As an afternative to the above standards 7a-7c, the following Gommercial Design
Review Matrix may be applied to any commercial, multi-family, institutional or mlxed
use development (this matrix may not be utilized for developments within the Old
Town Overlay). A development must propose a minimum of 60 percent of the total
possible points to be eligible for exemption from standards 7a-Tc above. ln addition,
a development proposing between 15,001 and 40,000 square feet of floor area, parklng
or seating capacity and proposlng a minimum of 80 percent of the total possible
points from the matrix below may be reviewed as a Type ll administrative review, per
the standards of Section 16.72.010.A,2.

FINDING: This proposal is not for a commercial, multi-family, institutional or mixed-use
development. lt is a light industrial use that is subject to the industrial design standards
discussed below. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed development.

7. lndustrial developments provide employment opportunities for citizens of Shenrood
and the region as a whole. The proposed industrial development !s deslgned to
enhance areas visible from arterial and collector streets by reducing the "bulK'
appearance of large buildings. lndustrial design standards include the following:

a. Portions of the proposed lndustrial development wilhin 200 feet of an arterial or
collector street and visible to the arterial or collector (i.e. not behind another building)
must meet any four of the following six design criteria:

(1) A minimum 15% window glazing for all frontages facing an arterial or collector.
(2) A minimum of two (2) building materials used to break up vertical facade street facing

frontages (no T.111 oraluminum siding).
(3) Maximum thifi-five (35) foot setback for all parts of the building from the property

line separating the slte from all arterial or collector streets (required visual corridor
falls withln thls maxlmum setback area).

(4) Parking ls located to the side or rear of the bullding when viewed from the arterlal or
collector.

(5) Loading areas are located to the side or rear of the building when viewed from the
arterial or collector. lf a loading area is visible from an arterial or collector, it must be
screened with vegetation or a screen made of materials matching the building
materials.

MLP I6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 8 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 111



(6) All roof-mounted equipment is screened with materials compllmentary to the building

design materials.

STAFF ANALySIS: portions of the proposed devetopment are located within 200 feet of SW

i"ng", Farms parkway, a designated coilector within the City_of Shenrood. Those portions are

ilbj*t to at teast foui ot thistandards listed above. (1) lhe proPosed dev.elopment does

fi;id; tnzing atong.tn; iites frontagg yth SW Langer Farms Parkway, but it does not

i"proeni at leist 15i/o ol that frontage.lZllng propg:{. development proposes to use metal'

gtiss, and stone r"i"ii"lr along tne-strebifroltage. Q) Jne 
propgsgd buildings are located 20-

feet from the street t ni"g" wiin SW Langer Farms Parkway. (4) There is no required parking

associated witn seli-sto-r"i" facitities. Raiking is prwided at the main office located at the

iniei.eaion of SW rualjtin-snerwood Road lnd sW Langer Farms Parkway. Parking is not

inherent to this type oiuse given the nature of the business which is to load and unload items

from the storage ,nit". is)-Loading and unloading, including RV parking/storage is located

o"r.,ino the buiding. Gt i6nt sw Linger Farms Parkway, so vehicular movement, and storage

wiil not be visible trom'natiignt of wayiTo the extent thai tne storage. is visible at the location of

in" piopored emergJncy u"6i.t" access, it is mitigated by landscaping that is proposed along

ih; ;;1o frontage rriiin dwLing"r Farms Parkway. (6) Ilrg applicant has.indicated that to the

extent that roof rornt"O equipirent is utilized, th-at it will be screened with materials that are

complementary to the building materials used in the design'

FINDING: As proposed, the applicant and the plans illustrate that at least four of the criteria can

oe saiisneo uv tni oeveiopmehi. These criteriaare satisfied by the proposed development.

b. As an alternative to Section {6.90.020.D.7.a,an applicant may op!to have a design- 
review hearing o"tot" the planning Commission to demonstrate how the proposed

development r*G or exceeds the-applicable industrial design obJectives below (this

o""ign't 
"iew 

hearing will be processed as a Type l! review):

irl piovioe rrign-vaiJ; industrial proiects that result in benefits to the community,

consumerc and develoPers'
(2) provide diverslfied and innovative working environments that take into

conslderationcommunityneedsandactivitypatterns.
(3) Support the City's goals of economic development'

ieiCotin'prement ant Lin"n"" projgcts preyiollffleloped underthe industrial
' ' desiiln standards identified in Section {6'90'020'D'7'
(i) inha-nce ttre appl"i"n"e of industrial developments visible from arterials and

collectors, particularly those considered "enirances" to Shetulood, including but

not limited to: Highwiy 99W, Tualatin€henrood Road and Oregon Street.

tel ieauie the,'butki applarancegf lqge industrial bulldings as viewed from the
'-' publi" street Oy appiying exteriorfeitures such as architecturalarticulation'

windows and landscaPing.
(7) protect naturat iesourteJand encourage integration of natural resources into site
' ' design (incluAing ;iess to natural res-ources and open space amenities by the

employies of the site and the community as a whole)'

FINDING: The proposed development has satisfied at least four of the design criteria listed in

section (a.) above,-"no n"t not iequested an altemative design rgyiew hearing. Because of the

size of the propos"O O"u.fopmeni this application.is already subject.to a hearing before the

F[nning Cohmission. These criteria are not applicable to the proposed development'

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 9 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 112



8. Driveways that are more than twenty-four (24) feet in width shall align with existing
streets or planned streets as shown in the Local Street Connectivity Map in the
adopted Transportation System Plan (Figure 171, except where prevented by
topography, rail lines, freeways, pre-exlsting development, or leases, easements, or
covenants.

FINDING: The proposed development is provided access via an exlsting and previously
approved driveway onto SW Langer Farms Parkway. This criterion was evaluated and approved
with an earlier development. Access into the annex will be via a private driveway off of the
access. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed development.

{6.92 Landscaoinq

16.92.010 Landscape Plan

All proposed developments for which a site plan is required pursuant to Section 16.90.020
shall submit a landscaping plan which meets the standards of this chapter. All areas not
occupied by structures, paved roadways, walkways, or patios shall be landscaped or
maintained according to an approved site plan. Maintenance of existing not-invaslve native
vegetation is encouraged within a developnent and required for portions of the propefi
not being developed.

FINDING: The proposed landscaping plans show planting areas on the site in areas which are
not paved. With the exception of two landscape trees planted with more recent development
there is not native vegetation on this parcel. The parcel has been previously farmed. The
applicant's landscape and tree plan are provided as Sheets P09A and P09 resoectively. This
standard is met.

16.92.020 LandscapingMaterials

A. Varieties - Required landscaped areas shall include an appropriate combination of
evergreen or deciduous trees and shrubs, evergreen ground cover, and perennial
plantings. Trees to be planted in or adjacent to public rights-of-way shall meet the
requirements of this Ghapter.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The landscape plan illustrates a proposed a mix of ground cover, trees
and shrubs which include Bearberry Cotoneaster, Chanticleer Pear trees, Variegated
Dogwoods, Bigleaf Maples, Shore Pine, Spirea, Coastal Strawberry, Valley Fire Pieris,
Goldfinger Potentilla, Compac't Buming Bush, Western Red Cedar, Scarlet Oak, native grasses,
and Rhodeodendron around the pefimeter of the site as required. There are a mix of deciduous
and conifer trees along the proposed access.

FINDING: As discussed above, this standard is met.

B. Establishment of Healthy Growth and Size - Requlred landscaplng materials shall be
established and maintained in a healthy condition and of a size sufficient to meet the
intent of the approved landscaping plan. Specifications shall be submitted showing
that adequate preparation of the topsoil and subsoil will be undertaken.

FINDING: The proposed landscaping includes contractor notes on howthe landscape materials
will be established and maintained in a healthy condition and sufficient size. The landscaping

Page l0 of29
MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 113



plans also indicate how the topsoil or subsoil preparation is expected to occur. This standard is
satisfied by the proposed development.

G. Non-Vegetative Features
Landscaped areas as required by this Chapter may include architectural features
interspersed with planted areas, such as sculptures, benches, masonry or stone walls,
fences, rock groupings, bark dust, semi-pervious decorative paving, and graveled areas.
lmpervious paving shall not be counted as landscaping. Artificial plants are prohibfted in
any required landscaped area.

FINDING: The proposed plans show shrubs and low growing ground @ver and includes the
application of mi.rrcn and bark dust in addition to the proposed landscaping. The applicant is not
proposing any hardscapes. This s{andard is met.

D. Existing Vegetation - All developments subject to site plan rcview as per Section
16.90.020 and required to submit landscaping plans as per Section 16.92.020 shall
preserve existing trees, woodlands and vegetation on the site to the maximum extent
possible, as determined by the Commission, in addition to complying with the provisions
of Section {6.{42.060.

FINDING: The proposed development is located on land that has been previously farmed. The
applicant has provided a landscape plan (sheet P09A) and tree plan (sheet P09). The applicant
is proposing to remove two landscape trees planted with recent approvals to accommodate
regjuni and emergency access. There are no existing trees or woodlands on the parcet
proposed to be developed. This criterion is satisfied.

16.92.030 LandscapingStandards

A. Perimeter Screening and Buffering_- Aminimum six (6) foot high sight-obscuring wooden
fence, decorative masonry wall, or evergreen screen shall be required along propefi
lines separating single and two-family uses from multi-family uses, and along propefi
lines separating residential zones from commercial or industrial uses. ln addition, plants
and other landscaping features may be required by the Commission in locations and
sizes necessary to protect the privacy of residences and buffer any adverce effects of
adjoining uses.

FINDING: The site is located adjacent to other industrial properties and a vegetated conidor. The
site is not adjacent to residentially zoned sites therefore this standard is not applicable.

B. Parking and Loading Areas

1. Total Landscaped Area
A minimum of ten percent (l0%ol of the lot area used for the display or parking of
vehicles shall be landscaped in accordance with Section 16.92. ln addition, all
areas not covered by buildings, required parking, and/or circulation drives shall be
landscaped with plants native to the Pacific Northwest in accordance with Section
{6.92.020.

FINDING: The site is paved and it will be used as a storage facility. There are indoor and
outdoor storage spaces. Due to the nature of the use, there are not any required or proposed
parking spaces therefore this standard is not applicable.

Page I I of29
MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 114



2. Adjacent to Public Rights-of-Way
A landscaped strip at least ten (10) feet in width shall be provided between rights-of-
way and any abutting off street parking, loading, or vehicle use areas. Landscaping
shall include any combination of evergreen hedges, dense vegetation, eafth berm,
grade, and change in grade, wall or fence, forming a permanent year-round screen,
excepting clear vision areas as per Sectlon 16.58.030.

FINDING: The site is located adjacent to SW Langer Farms Parkway, a designated collector
street in the City of Sherwood. The applicant has proposed to landscape the front yard which is
20 feet in width. As proposed, the landscaping would include the existing street trees along SW
Langer Farms Parkway, Chanticleer Pear trees, and Bearberry Cofton Easter. While the
applicant has indicated that the accesses will be gated, they have not indicated that there would
be any walls or fences included around the development. This criterion is satisfied.

3. Perimeter Landscaping
A ten (10) foot wide landscaped strip shall be provided between offetreet parking,
loading, or vehicular use areas on separate abutting properties or developments. A
minimum six (6) foot high sight-obscuring fence or plantings shall also be provided,
except where equivalent screening is provided by intervening buildings or structures.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed landscape plan (sheet P09A) shows that the proposed
development will be provided with a minimum 10-foot landscaped strip along the western
perimeter, northern perimeter, and eastem perimeter of the development. The northern
perimeter includes a varying width landscape strip that is at its smallest S-feet. However, it is
adjacent to a vegetated corridor that will assist in satisfuing this requirement. The site takes
access from an easement which connects the site to SW Langer Farms Parkway. There are not
off-street parking, loading, or vehicular use areas on separate abutting properties or developments
that is not screened by this development.

FINDING: As discussed above, this standard is met.

4. lnterior Landscaping
A minimum of fifty percent (60%l of required parking area landscaping shall be placed
in the interior of the parking area. Landscaped areas shall be distributed so as to
divide large expanses of pavement, improve site appearance, improve safety, and
delineate pedestrian walkways and traffic lanes. lndividual landscaped areas shall be
no less than sixty-four (64) square feet in area and shall be provlded after every fiftcen
(15) parking stalls in a row. Storm water bio-swales may be used in lieu of the
interior landscaping standard.

FINDING: The applicant has not proposed any parking since this is an expansion of the
existing setf-storage business located on SW Tualatin - Sherwood Road. The applicant
maintains that customers will conduct business at the existing location on Tualatin-Shenarood
Road, and will access the site through a secured gate where they will pull in front of their unit to
load and unload. The Code does not prescribe a minimum parking requirement for a storage
facility. Although it does prescribe minimum parking requirements for industrial uses at a ratio of
1.6 parking spaces per 1,000 SF that parking has been provided at the front office of the
business on Tualatin-Sherwood Road. Since there is not required parking, there is not a need to
provide minimum area parking lot landscaping. This standard is not applicable.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 12 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 115



5. Landscaping at Points of Access
When a private access way intersects a public right-of-way or when a properly abuts
the intercection of two (2) or more public dghts-of-way, landscaping shall be planted
and maintalned so that minimum slght distances shall be preserved purcuant to
Section 16.58.010.

FINDING: The preliminary landscape plan shows ground cover and shrubs on the south side of
the intersection of the access driveway and SW Langer Farms Parkway. lt should be noted that
some of this landscaping was installed at the time of the construction of SW Langer Farms
Parkway. This standard is met.

16.94. Off€treet Parkinq and Loadinq (relevant sectioqsl
{6.94.010 Generally

A. Off€treet Parking Required.
No site shall be used for the parking of vehicles until plans are approved
providing for off-street parking and loading space as required by thls Code.
Any change in uses or structures that reduces the current off-street parking
and loading spaces provided on site, or that increases the need for off-street
parking or loading requirements shall be unlawful and a violation of this
Code, unless additional off-street parking or loading areas are provlded in
accordance with Section 16.94.020, or unless a variance from the minimum or
maximum parking standards is approved in accordance with Chapter 16.84

. Variances.
C. Joint Use

Two (2) or more uses or, structures on multiple parcels of land may utilize
jointly the same parking and loading spaces when the peak hours of
operation do not substantially overlap, provided that satisfactory evidence is
presented to the Gity, in the form of deeds, leases, or contracts, clearly
establishing the iolnt use.

D. Multiple/Mixed Uses
When several uses occupy a single structure or parcel of land, the total
requirements for off-street parking and loading shall be the sum of the
requlrements of the several uses computed separately, with a reduction of up
to 25o/o to account for cross-patronage of adjacent businesses or services. lf
the applicant can demonstrate that the peak parking demands for the
combined uses are less than 25o/o (i.e.,the uses operate on different days or
at different times of the day), the total requirements may be reduced
accordingly.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant has not proposed any parking since this is an expansion of
the existing self-storage business located on SW Tualatin - Sherwood Road. The office and
business transactions for this site will take place at the Tualatin-Sherwood location and
electronically. This site will only serve as a place to store materials and recreational vehicles.
Since there is not a leasable business space or office on site, and the business by its very
nature does not require additional parking, no parking is required at this time.

FINDING: This standard is not applicable at this time.

16.94.020 Off-streetparkingstandards

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page l3of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 116



16.94.020.02 provides the required minimum and maximum parking spaces for uses
permitted by the SZCDC.

FINDING: As discussed above, this standard is not applicable

Ghapter 16.96 On€ite Circulation

16.96.010 - On-site pedestrian and bicycle circulation

On-site facilities shall be provided that accommodate safe and convenient pedestrian
access within new subdivisions, multi-family devetopments, planned unit developments,
shopping centers and commercial districts, and connecting to adfacent residential areas
and neighborhood activity centers within one half mlle of the development.
Neighborhood activity centerc lnclude but are not limited to exlsting or planned schools,
parks, shopping areas, transit stops or employment centers. All new development,
(except single family detached housing), shall provide a continuous system of private
pathways/sidewalks at least 6 feet wlde.

STAFF ANALYSIS: Operationally, the proposed development is not open to the general public,
but rather to people who have rented storage space within the development. Pedestrian access
to the site does not appear necessary and is not specifically called for within industrial
developments. The storage facility is surrounded on two sides by barriers including a vegetated
corridor and a pallet manufacturing complex. The use of this site is not for residential or
commercial developments. The ac@ss driveway to the site does extend to SW Langer Farms
Parkway which connects to residential and commercialdevelopments however it is not likely or
pradieal that the majority of users would walk to a storage unlt in order to access their stored
items.

FINDING: Because the proposed use is industrial, the above criteria is not applicable.

16.96.010.03 - Gonnection to Streets

A. Except for joint access as per 16.96,010, all ingress and egress to a use or parce!
shall connect directly to a public street excepting alleyways.

B. Required prlvate sidewalks shall extend from the ground floor entrances or the
ground floor landing of stairc, ramps or elevatorc to the public sidewalk or curb of
the public street which provides required ingress and egress.

FINDING: The proposed development will have access to SW Langer Farms Parkway, a public
street. This criterion is satisfied.

Ghapter 16.98 On-Site Storaqe

16.98.010 - Recreational Vehicles and Equipment

Recreational vehicles and equipment may be stored only within designated and
improved off-street parking areas. Such areas shall meet the screening and landscaping
requirements of Section {6.92.030.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 14 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 117



STAFF ANALYSIS: Recreational vehicle and equipment storage was a permitted use in the
Light lndustrial zone at the time of the original PUD approval. The site will have multiple indoor
storage units in addition to paved storage stalls. There was a staff levelinterpretation made in
2}ll thalthis standard was intended for residential uses and not industrial uses as this is
similar to other uses that would be in the zone. Additionally, this site is pushed back from the
road and screened on all sides by a vegetated corridor and proposed screening and
landscaping.

FINDING: This standard is not applicable as discussed above.

16.98.020 - Solid Waste Storage

All uses shall provide solid waste storage receptacles which are adequately sized to
accommodate all solid waste generated on site. All solid waste storage areas and
receptacles shall be located out of public view. Solid waste receptacle9 formulti-family,
commerciat and industrial uses shall be screened by six (6) foot high sight-obscuring
fence or masonry wall and shall be easily accesslble to collection vehlcles.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The preliminary plans do not illustrate any trash enclosures. The earlier
annex included a 200 square foot trash enclosure near the entrance of the storage facility. The
applicant has indicated that refuse from the site could be disposed of at the main office or at the
trash enclosure in the first annex immediately adjacent to the site. The applicant has indicated
that tenants in the annex will have access to both. However, the Planning Commission is
concerned that the lack of a trash enclosure along with the high likelihood that trash is
generated by the tenants of the use is not adequately addressed.

FINDING: The applicant is not proposing to provide on-site solid waste and recycling facilities
as required by the SZCDC section 16.98.020; therefore, the standard is not met, and following
condition is wananted.

CONDITION: Prior to final site plan approval, the applicant shall provide the city with a plan to
provide on-site solid waste and recycling storage that satisfies the requirements of 16.98.020.

Division Vll. Public lnfrastructure

I 6.1 04 General Pr,ovisions

To ensure the health, safety, and the economic stability of the community, and to establish
a quality system of public improvements, the Gity shall require any buildings or other
development for which public facilities and public dghts-of,way are not fully provided or
improved to current City standards, to install said improvements. Except as othetwise
provided or authorized, private improvements serving substantially the same function as
equivalent public facilities shall generally be provlded and lmproved to the standards
estabtished by this Code and other City regulations.

FINDING: The proposed development is served by existing public services that were construded
and extended with the completion of SW Langer Farms Parkway, SUB 12-02, and the prior
development of the l"t storage annex. Necessary easements and stormwater quality/quantity

facilities were previously constructed, and are available to the site. There may be a need for right-
of-way and plumbing permits and a stormwater connec{ion permit from CWS. Those requirements
have been conditioned elsewhere in this report.

Page l5 of29
MLP l6-O2lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 118



1 6.1 04.020 Future lmprovements

The location of future public improvements including water, sanitary sewer, storm water,
streets, bicycle and pedestrian paths, and other public facilities and rights-of-way, as
depicted in the Transportation System Plan (TSP) Chapterc 4 5, 6 and 7 of the Communlty
Development Plan are intended as general locations only. The precise alignment and
location of a public improvement shall be established during the land use process and shall
be depicted on public improvement plans submitted and approved pusuant to $ 16.1O8 and
other applicable sections of this Gode. (Ord. No. 2017411, S 1, 10-4-2011)

I 6. 1 04.030 lmprovement Procedures

Except as othenadse provided, all public improvements shall conform to City standards and
specifications found in the Engineering Design Manual and installed in accordance with
Chapter 16.108. The Council may establish additional specifications to supplement the
standards of this Code and other applicable ordinances. Except for public projects
constructed consistent with an existing facility plan, a public improvements shall not be
undertaken until land use approval has been granted, a public improvement plan review fee
has been paid, all improvement plans have been approved by the Gity, and an improvement
permit has been issued.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The Cig of Sherwood compteted the extension of SW Langer Farms Parkway
in 2012 funded primarily by Washington County Major Streets Transportation lmprovement
Program (MSTIP). As part of that construction, sqiler, water, and access from SW Langer Farms
Parkway were stubbed to the propert_y. The applicant will need to extend utilities to the site to
accommodate development on the site as described in the more detailed discussion below.

FINDING: The applicant has either proposed, or has been conditioned to provide needed public
infrastructure with proposed development of the site. Adequate water, sewer and access are
available to the property. Stormwater for all future development on site will be captured and
treated in the recently completed regional stormwater facility that the applicant constructed with
earlier development. This eriterion is satisfied.

1 6.1 06 Transoortation Facilities

1 6. 1 06.020 Required lmprovements

A. Generally

Except as othenrise provided, all developments containing or abutting an existing or
proposed street, that is elther unimproved or substandard ln right-of-way wldth or
improvement, shall dedicate the necessary right-of-way prior to the issuance of building
pemlts and/or complete acceptable improvements prior to issuance of occupancy permlts.

FINDING: The site takes access from SW Langer Farms Parkway via a driveway easement.
There are no physioal improvements to the public street being proposed with this site plan
application. The road was recently constructed therefore additional improvements or right-of-way is
not needed at thistime. This standard is met.

B. Existing Streets

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 16 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 119



Except as othenrise provided, when a development abuts an existing street, the
improvements requirement shall apply to that portion of the street right-of-way
located between the centerlirte of the right-of-way and the property line of the lot
proposed for devetopment. ln no event shall a required street improvement for an
existing street exceed a pavement width of thirty (30) feet.

FINDING: This development willtake access from an access easement connecting to SW
Langer Farms Parkway which is a newly constructed road. There are no public improvements
needed at this time as the road was recently constructed. No additional improvements are
required at this time. This standard is not applicable at this time.

16.106.030 Location

A. Generally

The location, width and grade of streets shall be considered in their relation to existing and
planned streeb, topographical conditions, and proposed land uses. The proposed street
System shall provide adequatg convenient and safe traffic and pedstrian circulation, and
intersection angtes, grades, tangents, and curves shall be adequate for expected traffic
volumes. Street alignments shall be consistent with solar access requirements as per
Chapter 1 6.1 56, and topographical considerations.

B. Street Connectivity and Future Strcet Systems

1. Future Street Systems. The arrangement of public streets shall provide for the
continuation andestablishment of future street systems as shown on the Local Street
Gonnectivity Map contained in the adopted Transportation System Plan (Figure 8-B).

STAFF ANALYSIS: As previously discussed in this report, the site will take a@ess from an
easement to SW Langer Farms Parkway. Any future development will occur to the east and south
of the site. No furthei extensions of streets are ne@ssary or feasible through this portion of the
PUD.

FINDING: As discussed above, there will not be future street systems required in this location,

therefore this standard is not applicable.

I 6.1 06.040 .J. Transit Facilities
Development along an existing or proposed transit route, as illustrated in Figure 7-2 in
the TSP, is required to provide areas and facilitles for bus turnouts, shelterc, and other
transit-related facilities to Tri-Met specifications. Translt facilities shall also meet the
followin g requirem ents :

1. Locate buildings within 20 feet of or provlde a pedestrian plaza at major transit stops.
2. Provide reasonably direct pedestrian connections between the transit stop and

building entrances on the site.
3. Provide a transit passenger landing pad accessible to disabled pensons (if not already

existing to transit agency standards).
4. Provide an easement or dedication for a passenger shelter and underground utility

connection from the new development to the transit amenity if requested by the public
transit provider.

S. Provide lighting at a transit stop (if not already existing to transit agency standards).

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page 17 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 120



FINDING: There are no existing or proposed transit routes adjacent to or near this site. lt is not
anticipated that pedestrians will be visiting the site since there is not an office associated with this
development, and the site is not generally open to the general public unless they have rented a
storage space. This criterion is not applicable.

16.110 - Sanitarv Sewers

1 6.1 10.010 Required lmprovements
Sanitary sewens shall be installed to serve all new developments and shall connect to
existing sanitary sewer mains. Sanitary Sewers shall be constructed, located, slzed and
installed at standards consistent 16.110.

FINDING: Sanitary sewer service will be provided via an existing f-inch stub from a public line
located in SW Langer Farms Parkway. This criterion is satisfied.

16.112- Water Supplv

16.1 12.01 0 Required lm provements
Water lines and fire hydrants conforming to Gity and Fire Distriet standards shall be
installed to serve all building sltes in a proposed development in compliance with 16.112.

STAFF ANALYSIS; There is water service availabb within SW Langer Farms Parkway and the
applicant proposes to serve the site from that location. The Engineering department has
provided comments that indicate that the proposed development shall provide water service to
supply domestic, inigation and fire water to the development as needed unless othenrise
approved by the City of Sherwood Engineering Department. Waterflows calculations (domestic.
irrigation and fire) shall be provided by the developer. The developer will be required to lnstall a
Reduced Pressure Backflow Assembly meeting City of Sherwood Engineering Department
startdards if required by City of Shenrood Public Works.

lf on-site fire protection is required, install backflow protection meeting City of Sheruood
Engineering Department standards. Any public water facilities within the subject property will be
loeated w-ithin a dedieated oublic easement.

Private water lines shall be installed in compliance with the curent Oregon Plumbing Specialty
Code.

FINDING: As discussed above, the applicant will need to meet several requirements to install
services at this location, and for this reason, the following condition is recommended.

CONDITION: Prior to obtaining a building permit, the developer shall submit a plan showing a
water line design meeting the approval of the City of Shennrood Engineering Department.

16.114 - Storm Water

{ 6.,1 14.010 Required lmprovements
Storm water facillties, including appropriate source control and conveyance facilities,
shall be installed in new developments and shall connect to the existing downstream
drainage system consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the requirements of the Clean
Water Services water quality regulations and section 16.114.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page l8 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 121



STAFF ANALYSIS: Currenfly public storm sewer mains exist within sw Langer Farms Parkway

and within SW Century Orive aiong the subject property frontage and along the south side of the

subjec{ property. No fublic storm sewer main extension is required.

The proposed development is required to connect to the existing storm sewer at a location

appr6vei by the City of Sherwood Engineering Department'

Further, regional water quality facilities were previously constructed to provide treatrnent of

water runoft for proposed impervious areas to be constructed within the subject preperty.

Therefore no water iuality faiitities will need to be constructed for this development. Private

storm water runoff wiifrin ihe subject proper$ shall be collected and conveye{ in accordance

,iin tn" cunent oregon ptumbing Spebialtrr Code. This requirement will be verified with building

and site development permit review'

FINDING: As discussed above, stormwater services are already available to the site. This

crilerion is satisfied.

16.116 Fire Protection

16.116.020 Standards

A. Capacity

All fire protection facilities shall be approved by an{ meet the specifications of the Fire

oistrict, and shall be sized, constructed, located, and installed consistent with this code'

eh;pt"; i of the community Devetopment Plan, and other applicabte city standards, in

otJdr to adequatety protect iife and property in the proposed development.

B. Fire Flow

Standards published by the lnsurance Services Office, entitled "Guide for Determination

oi-n"qrir"d rit" Flowj-.' shall determine the capacity of facilities required to furnish an

io"qJlt" fire flow. Fire protection facilities sniu be adequate to convey quantities of
;;i;1;, as determined by ISO standards, to any outlet in the systgm, at no less than

td;ti iiO) pounOs pet-square inch residual preslurq Water supply for_fire protection

pripo"d" 6fiall be restricteo to that available from the Gity water system'.The locatlon of

[VO?r"t" shall be taken into account in determining whether an adequate water supply

exists.

C. Access to Facilities

Whenever any hydrant or other appurtenance for use by the Fire District is required by

this Chapter, iddquate ingress an'd-egress shall be provided. Access shall be in the form

oi 
-"n 

ihproved,' permalnently maintained roadway or ope! p-aveg .atea' or any

combination tnereoi designed, constructed, and at all times maintained, to be clear and

unobstructed. Widttrs, he-ight clearances, ingress and egress 
-s!a-ll 

be adequate for
oi"tri"i firefighting equipm6nt The Fire Distrlct, may further prohlbit vehicular parking

along private 
"""i"""r"ys 

in order to keep them clear and unobstructed, and cause

notice to that effect to be Posted.

D. Hydrants

Page 19 of29

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 122



Hydrants located along private, accessways shall either have curbs painted yellow or
otherwise marked prohibiting parklng for a distance of at least fifteen (15) feet in either
direction, or where curbs do not exist, markings shall be painted on the pavement, or
signs erected, or both, given notice that parking is prohibited for at least fifteen (15) feet
in either direction.
(Ord. No. 2010-015, S 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 91-922, g 3; Ord.86-851, S 3)

STAFF ANALYSIS: As indicated on the proposed site plan, fire service protection main will be
extended from an existing water main within SW Langer Farms Parkway. The appticant has
noted that private fire hydrants will be located throughout the subject site and spaced as
required by TVF&R and the City. The applicant has also noted that all of the gates will be
equipped with a Knox Box for emergency access to the site.

The fire department provided general comments for lhis application.

FINDING: The fire district comments indicate the site would need to be constructed consistent
with the standards of the fire district for the proposed use. This standard can be satisfied as
conditioned below.

CONDITION: Prior to the issuance of building permits for the slte, provlde verlflcatlon to the
planning department that the fire department has reviewed and approved the plans for fire
suppression and emergency services.

CONDITION: Prior to issuance of building permits, the developer shall submit a plan showing
the emergency access meeting the approval of the City of Shenrood Engineering Department
and Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue.

16.'!18. - Public and Private Utilities

16.118.020 Standards
A. lnstallation of utilities shall be provided in public utility easements and shall be

^:-^J ^---4-.-^4^J l^^-4^l 
--J 

!--4-lI-J ^^-^!-^^-a -^-!rL aL!^ A- J- AL^-a^- tsrzc(l, l;r,ll|'l,ruulnrr, r(,t;all'(l a'lq In5lilllgq gonslstenl wlln Ints 9(,ge, unapleil oI tne
Community Development Gode, and applicable utillty company and City standards.

B. Public utility easements shall be a minimum of eight feet in width unless a
reduced width is specifically exempted by the Gity Engineer.

C. Where necessary, in the ludgment of the City Manager or his designee, to provide
for orderly developtnettt of adjacent properties, public and franchise utillties shall
be extended through the site to the edge of adjacent property (ies).

D. Franchise utillty conduits shall be installed per the utility design and specification
standards of the utility agency.

E. Public Telecommunication conduits and appurtenances shall be installed per the
Gity of Sherwood telecommunication design standards.

F. Exceptions: lnstallation shall not be required if the development does not require
any other street improvements. ln those instances, the developer shall pay a fee
in lieu that will finance installation when street or utility improvements in that
location occur.

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
PageZ0 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 123



STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant is proposing to provide both public and private utilities as

discussed previously. The applicant lras indicated that all necessary utilities will be installed

consistent witn tnes6 standards, and provided with easements as required'

FINDING: Utilities are available to the property and, as demonstrated within the plans and

nanative will be extended to the site, consistent with these provisions. To ensure that the criteria

are fully satisfied, the fotlowing general conditions are recommended.

CONDITION: prior to receiving any permits, a Clean Water Services Storm Water Connection

Permit Authorization shall be obtained.

coNDlTloN: prior to the issuing of a building, plumbing or grading permits, developer shall

obtain a right-of-way permit from ihe city of sherwood Engineering Department.

GONDITION: prior to granting buitding occupancy, the developer shall recgrd aJl required public

easements and provid6 proot-of the recording to the City of Sherwood Engineering Department-

{ 6.1 I 8.030 Underground Facilities
eicept a" oitre*i"e provided, all utility facilities, including lut not limited to, electric

fordr, telephone, naiural gas, tigtrting, cab-le television,.and telecommunication cable,

if,"ii 6" pliced undergrouid, unless -pecifically authorized for above ground

instalation, because t'ire points of connection to exlsting utilitles ma_ke llderground
instatlation impractical, oi for other reasons deemed acceptable by the Gity'

STAFF ANALYS|S: The applicant and plans indicate that all necessary utilities are proposed to

oe piaceo underground as'ri4uired. The Engineering department comments have indicated that

all utilities were flaced underground with previous development.

FINDING: This criterion is satisfied by the proposed development.

16.122.020 - Land Partitions

Partitions shallnot be approved unless:

A. The partition complies with appllcable zoning distrig! standards and design standards in

Diviilon ll, and ali frovisloni 6t Divlsions lV, Vl, Vlll and lX, and complies with Ghapter

16.128 (Land Division Design Standards).

FINDING: The applicant meets the criterion as discussed throughout this report and can feasibly

satisff the applicable provisions mentioned above.

B. The partition dedicate to the public all required common improvements and aneas- 
including but not limited to streeb, parks, floodplains, and sanitary sewer, storm water'

and water suPPlY sYstems.

FINDING: As discussed ear1er, any dedication expected of this development for the public was

pr*iOJ with prior development of earlier phases of this PUD. This criterion is not applicable to the

proposed develoPment.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page?l of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 124



C. Adequate water, sanitary sewer and other public facllities exist to support the proposed
use of the partitioned land, as determlned by the Gity and arc ln compliance with City
standards. For the purposes of this sec{ion:

1. Connection to the City water supply system shall be deemed to be adequate water
servlce.

2. Connection to the Gity sewer system shall be deemed to be adequate sanitary sewer
seruice if sewer lines are within three-hundred (300) feet of the partition or if the lots
created are less than 15,0lXl square feet in arca. lnstallation of private seurage disposal
facilities shall be deemed adequate on lob of 15,000 oquare feet or more ff the
pdvate systcm is permitted by Gounty Health and Clty sewer lines are not within three-
hundred (300) feet

3. The adequacy of other public facilities such as storm water and streets shall be
determined by the Gity Manager or his/her designee based on applicable City policies,
plans and standards forsaid facilities.

FINDING: There is adequate water, sewer and other public services to support the addition of
service to both proposed parcels as discussed throughout this report and in the engineering
comments. This criterion is satisfied.

D. Adioining land can be developed, or is provided access that will allow future
development ln accordancewlth this Code.

FINDING: The lot configuration does not affect access for any future development on any
- r?-:.-:.- r- ipr..adjoining pareeis. This criterion is satisfied.

E. Future Development Ability

ln addition to the findings rcquired by Sectlon 16.122.010, the Gity Manager or his/her
designee must find, for any partition creating lots averaging one (1) acre or more, that the
lots may be re-partitioned or resubdivided in the future in full compllance with the
standards of this Gode. The City Manager or hls/her deslgnee may require the appllcant to
submit partition drawings or other data confirmlng that the propefi can be resubdivided. lf
re-partitioning or resubdividing in full compliance with this Gode is determined not to be
feasible, the City Manager or his/her designee shall elther deny the proposed partition,
require iG rcdesign, or make a finding and condition of approva! that no further partitioning
or subdlvision may occur, said condition to be recorded against the property.

FINDING: Because of the size of the parcels, their location adjacent to exis{ing public streets, and
the nature of the zoning, there is no reason that the lots couldn't be divided in the future to meet the
standards of the zone. No additional conditions are warranted by the proposal. This s{andard is
satisfied.

Chapter {6.128 Land Division Desiqn Standards

16.128.010 Blocks
B. Utilities Easements for sewerc, drainagg water mains, electric lines, or other utilities

shall be dedlcated or provided for by deed. Easemenb shall be a minimum of ten (10)
feet in width and centered on rcar or side lot llnes; except for tie-back easements, which

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page22 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 125



shall be six (6) feet wide by twenty (20) feet long on side lot lines at the change of

direction.

FINDING: As indicated in the Engineering comments, no new easements are needed as a result of

this submittal. Any new easements musf ne recorded with a cop.y of the recording provide9 to lhe

Engineering Oepartment as conditioned earlier in this report. Utility easements were provided with

the-completion of SUB 12-02- This criterion is satisfied'

16.128.030 Lots
A. Size and ShaPe
Lot size, widh, shape, and orientation shall be appropriate for the location and topography

of the subdivision bt partition, and shall comply with applicable zoning district
requirements, with the following exception:

i. Lots in areas not served U-y puniic sewer or water supply shall conform to any special

Gou nty Health Departnent standards.
B. Access
All lots in a subdivision shall abut a public street, except as allowed for infill development

under Ghapter 16.68.
G. Double Frontage
Double frontage ind reversed frontage lots are prohibited except wh-ere essential to provide

separation ; residential development from railroads, traffic arteries, adjacent

nonresidential uses, or to overcome specific topographical or orientation problems. A five

(5) foot wide or greaier easement for plinting and screening may be-required.

b. sio" Lot Linei Side lot lines shall, as far as practicable, run a! right an-gles to the street

upon which the lots face, except that on curved streets side lot lines shall be radial to the

curve of the street

FINDING: The proposed parcels within this partition have direct access to a public street- The

proposat does not include"'double frontage' or ureverse frontage' lots, and lot lines to the extent

iossibte run at right angles to SW Langer Farms Parkway. Based on the above discussion, the

applicant meets these criteria.

Ghaoter 16.142 - Parks and Open Space

STAFF ANALySIS: The proposed subdivision is on land that is zoned Light Industrial(L-l) with

a ptanned unit Developmeni (puD) overlay. The PUD required the provision of open space

that has already occuried for those'properties developed with residential uses. The vegetated

conidor was set aside with suB n:02-. The following criteria are the only provisions that are

applicable in this Ghapter to this request.

16.142.050. Street Trees
A. lnstallation of Street Trees on New or Redeveloped Property.
fieei are required to be planted to the following specifications along p-ublic streets

auutgng ot riittrin any new development or re-development. Planting of such trees shall

be a coidition of devilopment approval. The Gity shall be subiectto thesame standards

for any developments involving bity'owned property, or-when constructing or

ieconltructind City streets. lfler initalling street trees, the property own-9J shall be

;il;ibiJrjt miint"ining the street treel on the owne/s property or within the rightof-
way adiacent to the owner's property.

i. t6cation: Trees shalt b6 ptinted within the planter strip along a-newly created or
improved streets. ln the 6vent that a planter strip is not required or available, the

Page23 of29

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 126



trees shall be planted on private property within the front yard setback area or
within public street right-of-way between front property lines and street curb lines
or as required by the Gity.

2. Size: Trees shall have a minimum trunk diameter of two (2) inches DBH and
minimum helght of slx (61 feet. Dlameter at breast helght (DBH) shall be measured
as defined by the lnternational Society of Arboriculture.

3. Types: Developments shall include a variety of street trees. The trees planted shall
be chosen from those listed in 16.142.080 of this Code.

4. Required Street Trees and Spaclng:
a.The minimum spacing is based on the maximum canopy spread identified in the

recommonded street tree liet in section 16.14?.080 with the intent of providing a
continuous canopy without openings between the trees. For example, if a tree
has a canopy of forty (40) feet, the spacing between trees is fofi (40) feet. lf the
tree is not on the list, the mature canopy width must be provided to the planning
department by a certifled arborist.

b.All new developments shall provlde adequate tree planting along all public
streets. The number and spacing of trees shall be determined based on the type
of tree and the spacing standards described in a. above and considering
driveways, street light locations and utility connections. Unless exempt per c.
below, trees shall not be spaced more than forty (40) feet apart in any
dovelopment.

c.A new development may exceed the forty-foot spacing requirement under section
b. above, underthe followlng circumstances:
(1) lnstalling the tree would interfere with existing utility lines and no substitute

tree ls appropriate for the site; or
(2) There is not adequate space in which to plant a street tree due to driveway or

streei iighi iocations, vision ciearance or utiiiiy connections, provideci ihe
driveways, street light or utllities could not be reasonably located elsewhere
so as to accommodate adequate room for street trees; and

(3) The street trees are spaced as close as possible given the site limitations in
(1) and (2) above.

(4) The location of street trees in an ODOT or Washington County right-of-way
may require approval, respectively, by ODOT or Washington County and are
subject to the relevant state or county standards.

(5) For arterialand collector streets, the Gity may require planted medians in lieu
of paved twelve-foot wide center turnlng lanes, planted with trees to the
specifications of this subsection.

FINDING: No new street trees are required for this proposal. Street trees were provided along
the sites frontage with SW Langer Farms Parkway with the construction of that street in 2011-
2012. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed development since there are already street
trees along the sites frontage with SW Langer Farms Parkway.

16.142.060 - Trees on Propertv Subiect to Certain Land Use Applications

All site developments subject to Section 16.92.020 shall be required to preserve trees or
woodlands to the maximum extent feasible within the context of the proposed land use plan
and relative to other policies and standards of the City Gomprehensive Plan, as determined
by the Gity. Revieur and mitigation shall be consistent with 16.142.060 A B, C and D.

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page?4 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 127



FINDING: The applicant is proposing to remove two landscape trees to accommodate access to
the development. There are no existing trees within the area to be developed as it was previously
farmed. This sedion allows trees to be removed to acoommodate the development provided the
minimum tree canopy is rnet. As discussed below in this report, the proposed plan provides for
31o/o @nop! cover whicfr exceeds the minimum of 30% for industrial developments. The tree
canopy is provided and calculated on sheet P09 of the applicant's submittal. This requirement is
satisfied.

Required Trce Ganopy - Non-Resldentialand Multi-family Developments
Each net development site shall provide a variety of trees to achieve a minimum total tree
canopy of 30 percent. The canopy percentage is based on the expected mature canopy of
each tree by uslng the equationrr:r2 to calculate the expected squarc footage of each tree.
The expected mature canopy is counted for each trce even lf there ls an overlap of mulfple
tree canopies.

The canopy requirement can be achleved by retaining existing trees or plantlng new trees.
Required landscaplng trees can be used toward the total on site canopy required to meet
this standard. The expected mature canopy spread of the new trees will be counted toward
the requircd canopy cover. A certlfied arborist or other qualified professional shall provide
an estlmated tree canopy for all proposed trees to the planning department for review as a
part of the land use review

Canopy Requirement

Counted Toward the Canopy
Requirement

Street trees included in canopy
requirement

Landscaping requirements included in
canopy requirement

Existing trees onsite

Planting new trees onsite Yes

FINDING: The applicaril has provided a preliminary tree canopy plan, sheet P09 that illustrates
63,M4 square feet of canopy. The plan includes trees that were previously planted for the earlier
annex, and trees that are proposed to be planted with the proposed development. Street trees in
non-residential projects are not allowed to be counted towards the required tree canopy and do not
appear to be counted in this calculation. The proposed canopy is 31% of parcel 1. Tree canopy
requirements will be evaluated for parcel 2 when development is proposed on that parcel. This
criterion is satisfied bythe proposed development.

Chapter 16.144Wetland. habitat and Natural Areas

FINDING: Ghapter 16.14 was eroneously identified wtthin the public notioe. This chapter is not
applicable, as the wetlands and associated vegetated conidor were set aside in a separate tract
with the prior subdivision. According to the Clean Water Services Provider letter No. 16-001228,

PrgeZl of29

Commercial,
lnstltutlonal
Multi-family

lndustrial,
Public and

30%

No

Yes

Yesx2

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storaee Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 128



the proposal is not likely to significantly impact the adjacent resoure. There are no identified
wetlands on this particular propefi.

Chapter 16.146 Noise

16.146.020 - Noise Sensltive Uses
When proposed commercial and industrial uses do not adjoin land exclusively in
commercial or lndustrial zones, or when said uses adJoin special care, institutlonal, or
parks and recreational facilities, or other uses that are, in the City's determlnation,
sensitive to noise impacts, then:

A.The applicant shall submit to the Crty a noise level study prepared by a professional
acoustical engineer. Said study shall define noise levels at the boundaries of the
site in all directions.

B.The applicant shall show that the use will not exceed the noise standards contained
in OAR 340-35-035, based on accepted noise modellng procedures and worst case
assumptions when all noise sources on the site are operating slmultaneously.

C.lf the use exceeds applicable noise standards as per subsection B of this Sectlon,
then the applicant shall submit a noise mitigation program prepared by a
professional acoustical engineer that shows how and when the use wlll come into
compllance with said standards.

F!ND!NG: lt is not anticlpated that there wi!! be high levels of noise be,vond what is expeeted in
an urban area. Storage uses do not typically generate any noise beyond the noise associated
with traffic entering and leaving the site, and the loading and unloading of storable items. As
proposed, there will be no adverse impacts therefore this standard is met

Ghaoter 16.148 Vibrations

16.1/t8.010 - Vibrations
All othenrise permitted commerclal, industrlal, and institutionaluses shall not cause
discernible vibrations that exceed a peak of 0.002 gravity at the property llne of the
origlnating use, except for vibrations that last five (5) minutes or less per day, based on a
certification by a profcssional engineer.

FINDING: lt is not anticipated that there will be high levels of vibralion beyond what is expected
in an urban area. There are not any expected adverse impacts therefore this standard is met.

Glapter 1 6.1 50 l\ir QualiW

16.150.010 - Air Quality
All othenrise permifted commercial, industrial, and institutionaluses shall comply with
applicable State air quality rules and statutes:

A. All such uses shall comply with standards for dust emissions as per OAR 340-21-
060.

B. lncinerators, lf othenvise pennitted by Section 16.140.020, shall comply with the
standards setforth in OAR 340-25€50 through 340-25-905.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page26 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 129



C. Uses forwhich a State Air Gontaminant Discharge Permit is requlred as per OAR
340-2044A through 3{0-20-160 shall comply wlth the standards of OAR 340-220
through 340-20-276.

FINDING: lt is nol anticipated that there will be high levels of air pollution beyond what is
expected in an urban area. There are not any expected adverse impacts therefore this standard
is met.

Chaoter 16.152Odors

{6.152.010 - Odors
All othenrise permitted commercial, industrial, and instltutional uses shall incorporate
the best practicable design and operating measures so that odots produced by the use
are not discernible at any point beyond the boundaries of the development site.

FINDING: lt is not anticipated that there will be high levels of odor or unusual beyond what is

expected in an urban area. There are not any expected adverse impacts therefore this standard
is met.

Chapter 16.f 54 Heat and Glare

16.154.010 - Heat and Glare
Except for exterior lighting, all othenpise permifted commercial, industrial, and
institutional uses shall conduct any operations producing excesslve heat or glare
entirely within enclosed bulldings. Exterior lighting shall be directed away from adjoining
properties, and the use shall not cause such glare or llghts to shine off site in excess of
one-half (0.5) foot candle when adJoining properties are zoned for residential uses.

STAFF ANALYSIS: The lighting plan, sheet P10 of the applicant's submittal indicates that the
majonty of site lighting wilt be wall mounted and directed to the interior of the site. The lighting plan
does not indicate any areas along the perimeter of the site where light would be expected to
trespass onto any adjacent paroel.

FINDING: The proposed lighting plan demonstrates that all lighting will be directed to the interior of
the site and along the access drive. There is no fugitive lighting onto adjacent properties. This
criterion is satisfied by the proposed development.

Ghapter 16.156 Enerov Conservation

16,156.020 - Standards
A. Building Odentation - The maxirnum number of buildings feaslble shall receive sunlight

sufficient for uslng solar energy systems for spacg water or industrial process heating
or cooling. Buildings and vegetatlon shall be slted wlth respect to each other and the
topography of the sfte so that unobstructed sunlight reaches the south wall of the
greatest possible number of buildings between the hours of 9:00 AM and 3:00 PM, Pacific
Standad Time on December 21st.

B. Wind -The cooling effects of prevailing summer breezes and shading vegetation shall be
accounted for in site design. The extent solar access to adjacent sites is not impaired
vegetation shall be used to moderate prevailing winterwind on the site.

MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II
Page?7 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 130



FINDING: The proposed development orients the building in several different directions, but are
separated by large spaces within the interior. Generally, buildings would be oriented on an east-
west axis to ensure adequate solar access. ln this instance, the majority of buildings on sile willbe
oriented along an east-wesl aXs. Because the site was formerly farmed, there is not any existing
vegetation to shade or insulate the site. That being said, proposed landscaping, at maturity, will
perform this function to the extent feasible. This criterion is satisfied

VI. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

1. Compliance with the Conditions of Approval is the responsibility of the developer or its
successor in interest.

2. This land use approvalshallsubstantially comply with the submitted preliminary site plans
dated July 7, 2016 prepared by AKS Engineering and Forestry except as indicated in the
following conditions of the Notice of Decision. Additional development or change of use
may require a new development application and approval.

3. The rjeveiopeilowneilappiicani is responsibie for aii costs associaieci with privaterpubilc
faci lity improvements.

4. The preliminary partition plat approval is valid for a period of one year, and the
approval of the proposed site plan on Parcel I is valid for a period of two (2) years
from the date of the decision notice. Extensions may be granted by the City as afforded
by the Shenrood Zoning and Community Development Code.

5. An ongoing condiiion of ihe approval is ihai the siie be maintained in accordance with the
approved site plan. In the event that landscaping is not maintained, in spite of the
assurances provided, this would become a code compliance issue.

6. A temporary use permit must be obtained ftom the Planning Department prior to placing a
construction trailer on-site.

7. This approval does not negate the need to obtain permits, as appropriate from other locat,
state orfederalagencies even if not specifically required by this decision.

Prior to lssuance of qradinq or erosion coqtrol permits from the Buitdino Departnent:

8. Prior to receiving any permits, a Clean Water Services Storm Water Gonnection Permit
Authorization shall be obtained.

9. Obtain a 1200C Erosion Control Permit through the Building Department for all the
disturbed ground, both on and off site that is in excess of one acre in addition to meeting all
CWS Design and Construction Standards.

10. lnstall tree protection fencing around trees to be retained on site. The tree protection
fencing shall be inspected and deemed appropriate by the p0ect arborist.

MLP l6-02lSP 16-06 Sentinel Self-storage Annex II
Page28 of29

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 131



Prior to Final Site Plan Aooroval:

11. Submit the required final site plan review fee along with a brief narrative and supporting

documents demonstrating how each of the final site plan conditions are met.

12. Priorto final site plan approval, the applicant shall provide the city with a plan to provide on-

site solid waste and recycling storage that satisfies the requirements of 16.98.020.

Priof to lssuance of a Buildino Permit:

13. Prior to obtaining a building permit, the developer shall submit a plan showing a water line

design meeting ihe approval of the City of Shenrvood Engineering Department.

14. Prior to the issuance of building permits for the site, provide verification to the planning

department that the fire department has reviewed and approved the plans for fire

suppression and emergency services.

1S. prior to issuance of building permits, the developer shall submit a plan showing the

emergency access meeting the approval of the City of Sherwood Engineering Department

and Tualatin ValleY Fire & Rescue.

16. Prior to the issuing of a building, plumbing or grading permits, developer shall obtain a

right-of-way permit from the City of Shenlrrood Engineering Department.

Prior to lssuance of Certificate of 9ccupancv:

17. Prior to granting building occupancy, the developer shall record all required public

easements and provide proof of the recording to the City of Sherwood Engineering

Department.

A. Appricant's submittar with n.r,"tiJj 
"n, 

:#:fr, documents
B. City of Sherwood Engineering comments dated September 16, 2016

C. Letterfrom CWS dated September'15,2016
D. Letter from TVF&R dated September 7,2016
E. E-mailfrom Marilyn Sykes dated September 8, 2016
F. Sherwood Village PUD Retail/Comrnercial Design Guidelines

Vlll. Appeal

pursuant to SZCDC Section 16.72.01O.8.3.d, an appeal of the Planning Commission to the
City Council must be filed not later than 14 days after the date of mailing of this notice of

de6ision. Any person who testified before the Planning Commission at the public hearing or
submitted wiitien comments prior to the close of the record may appeal the Planning

Commission's decision on this matter. An appeal of this declsion must be filed no laterthan
5:00PM on October 13, 2016. This Notice of Decision for Case No. MLP 16-02/SP 1S06 was
ptaced in a U.S. Postal receptacle on September 29,2016.

d*k,
Brad Kilby, AICP

Planning Manager
City of Shenrvood

PageZ9 of29
MLP l6-02lSP l6-06 Sentinel Self-Storage Annex II

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 132



Exhibit A

,KE

-,

Exhibit H: Amended and Restated

ItI

I
)
(D

tro
o
!)
p

(D
u,
g)
(D
o
o
o
o,tJ

o
rt

oqFt
(D
(D

t!
r.t

N

Development Agreement (2010)

Packot Pase 147

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 133



'' L1u
Exhibit A

C+rBeer.rrr-r{ l*-\)se s-4' t[

AMEN DED AND RJSTATED DEVELOPMENT AGREENIET'{T

PARTJES

The Parties to this Amended and Restated Dwelo-pment_Agreement^.

("Agreement") are the Cify of Shenpood, O..*g31 {'City"l:"a falel"a and Clarence

i*!"r, as to Fhase 4, and-the Langer Family, LLC, as to the t'emainder of the PUD

{eoll ectivel y, "Langett').

REgrrA,I.q

t. On April 26, lggs,the City approved a Preliminary Development Plan for a

plannld Unit Development ("PUD'?) onproperty^9_*"{^!llang€r. P". .
subject property is lolated generally southeast of Hwy 99W and south of the

Tualatin-sherwood Road, in the City-

2. The decision approved developmelt of the propgrty in eigtt (8) separate

plrases. fhe dicision contggrplatCd and agqi_gtred specific uses to- e1c\fha1e.,

including High Donsity Residential, Retail/Commercial, and Liglrt Industrial

(LI).

3. Theportions of the PUD designated LI have not.y-et deviloped, excePlfol a

porfic. n of Phase 4" which was developed as a mini.w,3lehouse use under the

beneral Retail lrade category of allowed usas in the.Ll zo|et Since the

approval of the PUD, ttre -iry has amended its-list ofpermitted and

"oiOitional 
uses in the LI zone, subject to the City's Zonilg a1d Comrnunity

, - Develo,pment Codq ("ZCDC") 16.3?.0?0.H,.T:hprovides the following:
\ i 

"Approved PUDs may elect to establish uses which are permiued or

conjitionally permitted under the base zone text at the time of final approval

of the PUD."

4. The pUD approval contained conditions of approval including: a requirement 
-

for- a wetlands de-lineation prior to development of Phase 8; the consffuction of
Adams Dri ru at the time of development of Phase 6; and the slimination of
the then-proposed extension of cenfury Drive east of Adams Drive.

5. The Final Erev.elopment-Plan was approved {riqus.t 3,' 1995. Neither the

preliminary Development Pian nor the Final DevetgpT"lt Plan approvals

related to a site plan. Thus, site plan review is required for each pbase as

', deVelo.pmerrt rie propp$'ed, fnr that phase:

6. phases 1 through 3 and 5 have been developed, Td t portion of Phase 4 was

developed as above-described ald is anticipated for future.redev9loPment.

The purpose of this Agreement is to clarify a1d ryfine the int9,r:I of the Parties

,*gia;igthe follorving issues (collectively, the *P{JD Issues"):

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 134



Exhibit A'

8.

10

9

(a) Tho allowed uses of Phases 4,6,2 and 8 of the puD, ail of which are
designatcd for LI uses;

(b) The timiag ofrelated improvements, including the constnrction of
Adams Drive and Cenfury Drive;

(c) The cost+haring of public improvements, including the constructiou
of Adams Drive and CenturyDrive; and

(d) Ce*ain related matters.

The cify and Langer previously set forttr their respective commitnents
relative to the PUD Issues in that certain Developrnent Agreement dated
January 3,2008 ('2008 Agleement"), urhich was a condition of approval to a
companion Minor change to the PUD approved contemporaoeousiy by the
City.

Subsequent to entering into the 2008 Agreement, econorn:ic conditions have
changed zuch that the Parties find it nocossary to re-evaluate their respective
commihrreuts under 0re 2008 Agreement. The cify and Langer now desire to
amend and restate their commiknents relative to the pUD Issues set forth
below.

This Agreement re,presents the onlyAgreement betwee,n the city aird Langer
with respect to the PIID l-ssrtes and does nnt nr.eejrrrle nt r-Fr-,rrir.e anv! vr rvYstrv 4u
conditions that may arise from a subsequent application foisite plan review.
It is the intent of theparties that the site plan rwiew conditions ihould not be
inconsistent with this Agreement.

This Agreement is only between the city and Langer and does not affect any
conditions or improvements that may be required 6y other jurisdictions.

AG, REEMENT

A, PUD USES

1

2.

Applicable code . zcDc 16.32.020.H, provides fhat "Approved pUDs rnay
elect to establish uses which are permitted or conditionafiy permitted undei
the base zone text at the time of final approval of the puD.; The Langer puD
was appfov€d and Phases 4,6,7 and 8 were assigned the Liglrt Industrial
(*Ll") base zone designation on August 3, 1995.

P,ermitted aqd.,cpndilional uses. Accordingly, Langer elects to establish uses
on the Ll-designated phases of the PUD that were pemritted or conditionally
pennitted under the L,I base zone text applicable on August 3, 1995, including:
"Llses peunitted ouhight in the GC zone section 2.l0g,oz,except for adult
enteftainrnent businesses, whiclr are prohibited." A copy of the uses pepnitted
in the LI and GC zones on August 3, tggs is set forthin AttacbmentA,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

2

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 135



3

Exhibit A

Retail

-cu_rrEtrt
.zoneto a

4;:6;::i1

itliose
09':02

r,;maximum of 60,000rs$rBre feet,'will not apply to reriie* of the PUD.
: :r '

B. ApAMs pBJVE S0UTH,EXIENSIQN

b.

I

a.

2.

Citv Commitmentq- Except as otherwise provided in this section, as soon as

reasonablypracticable and in any event prior to Lange/s constrUction of any
portion of Adams Drive south of the PUD's southem boundary, the City, at the
City's sole cost and e:rpense, will take the following actions:

Acquire the necessary right-of-way and complete the design and engineering
for construction ofthe extension of Adams Drive ("South Extension") south
fro6r its present terminus up to but not including the railroad crossing between
the southern PUD bormdary and Oregon Street ("Rail Crossing");

Obtain all necessary pennits for the constnrction and operation of the South
Extension, including without limitation, all permits associated with allowing
impacts to wetlands;

Provide for tbe mitigation of any impacts to wetlands related to the alignment
and construction of the South Extension; and

Pursuant to the City's standard timeline and procedure in such iustances,

acce2tlanger's dedication of that portion of the South Extension located
within the boundaries of the PUD following final inspection approval and
thereupon assume maintenance obiigations for all of the South Extension.

Langer Commitrnepts. Subsequent to the City's performance of its obligations
set forth in Section El.l.a. to 8.1.c. of this Agreement but prior to issuance of
final occupancy permits for any structures included in Phases 6 ot 7 , Langer
will substantially constnrct the South Extension, including the traffic circle
and island at the intersection with Century Drive and the twelve-foot (12')
wide multi-use path extending the length of the South Extension as identified
in the City Transportation Systems Plan (the "Path'). The street will be
aligned and coustructed in a manner consistent with the "90-percent
drawings" prepared by Hopper Dennis Jellison, PLLC dated April 2008 and

on file with the Cify (the "south Extension Plans"). Upon completion of the
construction of the South Extansion, Langer will dedicate and record a public
right-of-way easement to the City for Adarns Drive south from its present

terminus to the southemboundary of the PUD (the "South Extension Right-
of-Way'').

c.

d.

3

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 136



Exhibit A ' "

3.

a.

Alternalive Cor$mitments.

Altematively, in the event the City has completed the obligations set forth in
section B.I.a. to B.l.c. ofthis Agreement and the city receives or accrues
funding equal to the cost estimate for fhe constnrction of the South Extension
prior to tlre time Langer has substantially commenced the obligations set forth
in Section 8.2. ofthis Agreement, the Cify may, in its sole discretion, elect to
construct the South Extension, includingthe traffic circle and island at the
intersection with Century Drive, the Path, and if warrarrted, the fraffic signal
at Tualatin-sherwood Road, at the city's sole expense. ln the event the city
undertakes consFuction of tbe South Extension, the City will deliver written
notice (uwritten Election") to Langer of the City's intent in accordance with
Section L7. of this Agreement prior to undertaking constnrction of the South
Extension.

The City will issue a Notice to Proceed to the selected bidder(s)
("contractor") for complefion of thephysical construction of the south
Extension within ninety (90) days after delivery of the written Election to
Langer ("commencement Date"). In the event the cityfails to issue the
Notice to Proceed by the commencem€,nt Date and Lauger.has obtained final
site plan approval for either Phases 6 arfilor ? by said datg the city will
fnrFpi+ i+c.icL* fa rrq,jf a,-talra aaa'l-,^*i^- ^3+L^ (r^..e1- T?--.---:-- ^-r t --- --- --!e rrFuu Lv gusurqlv r4rlr0lllJwlr\rtt wI urg rJtrglll ti,t'lgl"li|luu, 4u(l lJattgcil'
will re-assume the obligation to substantially coustruct the South Extension in
accordance with section 8.2. ofthis Agreement, unless Lzurger agrees in
writing to extend flre commencement Date. If the city has not forfeited its
right to undertake construction of the South Extension, the City will
substantially complete the construction of the South Extensiou wiflrin foutee11
(14) months after the Commencement Date ("Completion Date"), and in any
ev€,nt, prior to the iszuance of an occupancy pennit for any structure included
in Phases 6 ar 7.

To ensure the completion Date is me! the city will include the required
Cornpletion Date and penalties for late completion in the contract ('Contract")
the city enters with the contactor. The penalties shall be an amount
calculated to roimburso Langer for any losses incurred byLangelr due to
Confi:actor's failure to substantially complete construction by flre Cornpletion
Date when such failur-e prevents the reasonable use of Phases 6 or 7 for retail
commercial purposes, but in any event not less than $10,000.00 per day
Langer is unable to make reasonable use of Phases 6 or 7 for commercial
retail puposes. The city shall take all necessary and appropriate action to
enforce the penalty provision in the contract and forwarcl any anounts
collected to Langer within 30 days of the date the city receives paynent.

If the City elects to constl'uct the South Extension under this Section 8.3, the
city will perform its conshuction activities in a n'lanner that minimizes
obstruction or interference rvith access to, from, or within the puD and

b.

c.

d

4

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 137



e.

Exhibit A

Langer's consfruction ,if any. and use of tlre subject property in accordance

witb-the pUD. The City wiil mobilize, conduct, and maintain all construction

activities" equipment and materials on and around the PUD in such manner to

allow us" of thl South Extension and aceess betwee'n the PUD and the South

Extension througtr all access driveways. The city's agreeinent to perform its

construction activities consistent with this section is amaterial inducement for

ranger to enter this Agreement as it will facilitate Langer's timely completion

of the PUD in accordarnce rrgith Langer's agreement with its end users of the

PUD.

If the City elects to construct tlre South Extension, Langer will take the

following actions prior to the Citls colrynencement of construction:

(A) Grant the South Extensiou Right-of-Wayto the CJty, provided the Cify
rnAl U"* the expense of preparing the legal description for the South

Extension Riglrt-of-WaY.

(B) Grant to the Cityreasonable temporary constructioneasernent(s) to allow

tUe City to complete its construction Commitments, provided Langer's gfant of
ur, *r**"nt(s) rnaybe conditioned to ensufe that the City's use of the PUD

pr.operfy does not uueasonably interfere with Langer's use and developrnent

of the PuD.

(C) ff Langer has not yet conskucted the stotmwater facility on Phase 8 as

pii"ia"a ii Section F.1 of this Agreement ("stormwater Facility"), ulloY

i**porury location of stomtwatei detention and t'eatment from the South

Extinsion on Pbase 8 in either a temporary facility ("Temporary Facility") or

the existing stormwater facilities tocatea on Phase 7 and Phase 8 ("Existing

Facilities"f To the extent that the TemporaryFacility orthe Existing

Facilities will require any expenses for engineering, consfuction, design,

maintenan ce, ormodification to existing land use approvals, the city will bear

ih" 
"*p"rrres. 

lf applicable, Langer and the City shall execute and record

appropriate easement documents Or arnegdments to the existing casement for

niJbiirtiog Facilities to for:nalize the parties'respective obligations urder

flris subsection (C),

{D) Use reasonable best efforls to avoid damaging tbe Path during

coirstruction and development of the PUD, provided that if Langer causes any

such damage, Langer shall, at its sole expense, repair aud replace the Path

back to its original condition.

5

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 138



Exhibit A 11

c. ApAMS pRIVE No4TH EXTpNSIO. N

Qity Coqtmifrnents. Except as otherwise provided in this section, as sooD as

reasonably practicable and in any event prior to Langer's construction of aay
portion of Adams Drive north of the PUD's nofihem boundary, the City, at the
Cit)/s sole cost and expense, will take the following actions:

Acquire the necessary riglt-of-way for and complete the suweying design,
and engineering for construction of an extension of Adams Drive ("North
Extension') from the north side of the interseotion with Tualatin-Sherwood
Road, north to the existing stub road connecting to Highway 99W, with the
aligrunent to curve east around the PGE substation and connect to the east end
of the Horne Depot stub road. The street will be aligned and conskucted in a
rnanner consistent with the "60-percent drawings" prepared by Harper Hoff
Peterson Righellis Inc, dated February 2010 and on file with the City (flre
"North Extension Plans'). The riglrt-of-way, design and engineering shall
anticipate and include at least 43 p.m. peak-hour vehicle trips per acre fi'om
Phase 4 to accommodate redevelopment of Phase 4.

Any substantial changes to the alignrnent and ctoss-section shall require an
arnendme,nt to ihis Agrerment. Such amendmcnt shall only rclatc io Lhis

section of the Agreement, and all ofher terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall remain in firll force and effect. A "substantial chatrge" may
include but is not limited to an increase in the number of lanes, an increase in
flre right-of-way widtb by i 0 or rnor€ feet, requiring additiorral landscaping,
medians, or pedestrian paths, shiftiug the alignment east or west by fifty (50)
or' !r!o!'e feet- and/nr anv other chanses that r-vill sr:bstantiallv inc.rease the cost
of corrstnrction,

Obtain all necessary permits for the constnrction and operation of the North
Extension, including rvithout limitation, all pennits associated with impacts to
wetlands, all approach and/or sigtral permits required by the Oregon
Deparhnent ofTransportation for the intersection of Highrvay 99W and the
existirrg stub road, and all approach perrrits required by Washington Counfr
for the connection of the North Extension and Tualatin-Sherwood Road.

Provide for the mitigation of any impacts to wetlands associated with the
alignruent and construction of the North Extension.

Otherlvise rernove any legal or planning constraints to the constrnction of the
North Extension.

Pay arry extraordinary labor costs associated with Langer's performance of its
obligations under Section C.2., where "extraordinary labor costs" means any

1

a.

b.

c.

d

e.

6

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 139



costs rrquired by law to exceed an anns-length privately negotiated rate solely

Exhibit A

due to the nature of the improveme'lrt,

Pay any extraordinary construction costs associated with Langer's

p"ifor**"e ofits obligations under Section C.2. that are attributable to
extraordinary environmental or geographic conditions'

Pursuant to the CiSs standard timeline and procedure in such instances,

assume maintenance obligations for all of the North Extension following the

City's final inspection approval of theNorth Extension'

Permit Langer to assume, for purposes of completing qe required traffic
study, that t]te North Extension has been planned and funded for constrrrction

6oi io development ofPhases 6 and 7 pursuant to Langer's alternative

iommitments to construct the North Extension or make a payment in lieu

thereofpursuant to Section C.2. below.

Permit Langer to assume, for purposes of cornpleting the required ttaffrc
study, that ihe North Extension his been planned and fund-ed for constnrction

prioi io the redevelopment of Phases 4 pursuant to Langer's alternative

commitme,uts to construct the North Extension or make a payment in lieu
thereof pnrsuant t0 Section C -2. beLaw.

The city will not require the closure of any residential u9cgss to Phase 4 fi'om

Tualatin-Sherwood Road until redevelopment of Phase 4. The City will
reimburse Langer for the cost of relocating and rebuilding any access to and

fi.om the existiig commercial us€s on Phase 4 resulting fiom the closure of
any access due to the construction of theNorth Extension, including any

necessary relocation of administrative facilities associated with the

cornmelcial use.

In tlre event Langerpays a fee in lieu of construction as described in Section

C.2. below, the CitY rvill:

(A) place thepayment into an existing or newly-cleated interest-bearing City

Trust and AgencYFund;

(B) Grant credits for h'ansportation System Developrnent-Qharges ("SDC's")

oth"r*i*u payable by Langer as if Langer had consfructed the North

Extension; and

(C) Use the payment-in-lieu exclusively for the construction of the Nortlr

Extension. Aowever, if the City has not entered into a contract for the

constluction of th.e North Extension or any porlion thefeof within five (5)

1,ears after l,anger deposits the fee with the City, the City shall return the fee-

in tieu, together: witl any interest thereon to Langer, Langer's successor oI a

t.

cb.

h.

l.

J

k.

7

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 140



Exhibit A 'i

2

person designated by Langer's successor, minus any amount provided as a
credit against transportation SDC's under paragraph (B) above. This
Agreernent does not constifute a "contmct for construction of the North
Extension" for purposes of tbis subsection.

Larreer Copmitmepts. Langer agrees to take the followiag actions with
respect to tlre North Extension:

a- Subsequent to the City's peiformance ofits obligations set forth in Section
C.1. of this Ag'eement but prior to issuance of the ftral occupancy permit
for any structure included in the development of Phase 6, Langer will
substantially construct the Nor0r Extension consistent with the alignment
and cross-section described in Section C.1.a. of this Agreement.
However, in the event the City exercises its option to construct the South
Extensisn uuder Section E}.3. of this Agrcement, Langer wiil substantially
construct theNorth Extension prior to issuance of the final occupancy
permit for any shucture included in the development of Phases 6 or 7.

b. Alternatively, in the event the City has not substantially performed the
obligations set forth in Section C. t.a. to C.1.d. ofthis Agreement by a

date that is sixty (60) days after Langer submits consbuction drawings for
^-l 1! . L '^L-J li ,t J t r -f ht - , 2 t- rl--puutru llr{IuVsllrctlrs assoularcu wtul urc ucvErolJluellt ul ruasg u ru urc

City, Langer shall submit a fee in lieu of constnrction in an amount equal
to the cost estimate for the coustruction of the North Extension prior to the
issuance of an occupancy permit for any structure included in the
development of Phase 6. Lauger's timely dqposit of a fee in lieu under
this paragraph shall fully satisSr Langer's obligations under Sectiorr C.2-a.
of t-his A-gree-mont and shall trigger the eit-v's perfornance of its
commihnents turder Section C.1.k. of this Agreement. In the event the
City exercises its option to construct the South Extension under Section
8.3. of this Agreement, the references to "Phase 6" in this subparagraph b.
shall be replaced with "Phases 6 or 7."

c. In the event the City r-efunds the feejnlieu as dessibed in Section
C.l.k(C) of this Ageernent prior to the redevelopment of Phase 4, and
subsequenfto the performance of the Citls oflrer obligatious under
Section C.l., Langer rvill substantially construct the North Extension
consistent with the aligrunent and cross-section provided by flre City prior
to the issuance of an occupancy permit for any structure included in the
redevelopment of Phase 4. In the event the City is still in possession of the
fee-in-lieu at the tirne Phase 4 redevelops, the City will refund the fbe to
Langer, including any interest thereon, or will not require the construction
of the Nolth Extension as a condition ofredevelopment.

8

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 141



Exhibit A

q$,IL CRpSSING

L Citv_Commitfnentg. As soon as reasonablypracticable, the City, at the Citls
sole cosi ur,a iip"ns", will take the following actions with respect to ttre Rail

Crossing:

a. Acquire the necessary right-of-rvay for the Rail Crossing;

b. Obtain all required crossing or other permits from ODOT Rail aad any other

applicable agencies associated with the Rail Crossing;

c. Compiete the design, engineering, and conshuction of the Rail Crossing; and

d. Use all reasonable best efforts to complete these actions and cotmect the South

Extension to Oregon Street via the Rail Crossing no later than the date of
issuance of ocoupancy permits for the development of Phases 6 and 7;

provided, horvever, the failure to cotnplete these actions by such date shall not

6e grounds to deny the issuance of such occupancy permits'

2. Lanser Commitmenls. None-

1

CENTURY DRTVE

Lange.r Cornmitnerrls.. Langer agrees to take the following actions with
respect to CenturY Drive:

Prior to issuance of firral occupancy pennits for any structure located in Phase

6 or phase T, design and substantially conshuct a reasonably direct vehicular
connection behveen the existing terminus of Century Drive on the western

boundary of the PUD and existing City riglrt-of-way at the eastern boundary
of the PUD ("Century Drive Conneotion"). The Century Drive Corurection

slrall be constructed to the adjusted street standard described in Section E.2.a.

below.

Following constguction, dedicate a right-of-way easement to the City for the

Century Drive Connection.

provide the City with copies of receipts of eligible expenses rvhere "eligible
expenses" is defined to include all hard and soft costs of labor and materials

asiociated with all aspects of tle clesign, engineering, and conshuction,

including applicable consultant fees, of the Century Drive Connection that

exceed the cost of designing and constructing the Century Dfir'e Connection

as a standatd parking lot drive aisle ("Eligible Expenses")'

D.

E,

a,

b

I

c.

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 142



Exhibit A

Cjty Commitnents. The City agrees to take the following actions with respect
to Century Drive:

To work with Langer to achieve an adjustment to the relevant City street
standards so that the nature, location, and design of the Century Drive
Cormectionrequires tbe minimum necessaryright-of-way to provide a
vehicular connection and includes traffic calming measures such as

restrictions on tluouglr traffic for trucks.

Reimburse Langer for all undisputed Eligible Expenses within thirtry (30) days
after the City receives the receips described in Section E.1 .c.. City will
immediately contact Langerregarding any disputcd expenses and attempt to
resolve tlre dispute within 90 days of the date the receipt containing the
expense is received by the City- Any disputed expense that remains
unrcsolved after 90 days shall be subrnitted to mediatiort as provided in
Section I.12. of this Agreernent; and

c. Pursuant to the Cify's standard tirneline and procedure in such instancas,
accept Langer's dedication of the Century Drive Connection following final
inspection approval and thereafter assume maintenance obligations for same.

D <|'Nr\TI f, 
'II' 

A 'TIDY) I? A A'T TG/l, ul\.rt\lvlvtl-\ll,-I\I,.!.\-ll-lI I

Laneer Cgmmihnents.

Prior to igsuance of a final occupaocy permit for the first structui'es located in
Phases 6 or 7, Lauger will design and substantially construct the "Stormwater
Facility on Phase 8 (includingarly necessary portions of Phase 6), to
accornmodate existing stormwater detention and trealment for thePUD
(including development of Phases 6, 7 and 8), and any dete,ntion and heatment
associated with the South Extension and the Century Drive Connection. In
co4iurrction with this construction, Langer retains the riglrt to taminate use of
the Existing Facilities aud any Temporary Facility constructed pumuant to
Section 8.3.c. of this Agreement provided the stormwater detention and
treatment functions of the Existing Facilities and any Temporary Facility are
incorporated into the Stonnra'ater Facility and subject to any written
agre€msnts relating to the Existing Facilities. Langer retains the rigbt to
expand the Stormwater Facility to sele other public rights-of-way and uses
outside the PUD in Langer's sole discretion, provided such expansion
othennise conrplies witb City standards, including without limitation,
arvarding credits for SDC's.

Follorving conslruction, Langer will dedicate the Stormwater Facility to the
public for use as a stonn*,ater detention and treatment facility.

2.

a,

b

1.

a.

b

10

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 143



2. Citv Commitments.

a. The City agrees to work with Langer, to the extent allowed by law, to issue

any lanil rrse approvals related to termination of the Existing Facilities througb

* uO*ittlrtrativeprocess, to facilitate any related process for the vacation of
any prior public dedications associated with tlre Existing Facilities, and to
ililifJ'the existingrecorded easement document among Langw and the City

relating to tlle Existing Facilities-

b. The City agrees to accept the dedication ofthe Stormwater Facility followirtg

final inspection approval and thereafter aszume the maintenance obligations

for sanre.

Exhibit A

RENAMINg_OF ADAMq URIVE

LangE gornmitments. Prior to Langer's dedication of anypofiion of Adarns
ptiutui ao".iUeA in this Agreemen! Langer will submit a petition to the City

to lenarne the completed portion of Adams Drive in accordance with the street

name standards of ZCDC 16.108.010.4.A-C. Langer agrees to seleot a single

name forAdams Drive from the southetn end of the South Extensior: to the

nordrern end ofthe North Extension.

G

H

1

I

2. Pi.ty--Cpmpitments-

a. Provided the petition is submitted i:r the manner described inZCDC
16.108.010.3, the City will support apetition received from Langer to renatne

the cornpleted portion of Adams Drive.

b. If the perition is approved by the CiW Council, the City shall install standard

City sireet signage identifuing Adams Drive by its nelv name.

TMIYSPORTATION CHARGES. FEES- SJ-{D CRpDITS.

Transpo4atiorr Dgvelspment Tax. The calculation and assessment of any

Tr""qp"rt.tton Development Tax ('TDl"), including anyTDT credits, will be

made according to the Washington County TDT ordinance' Improvemonts to

Tualatin-Sherwood Road will be creditable torvards Washington County

TDT's as allorved in Washington County's ordinance- It is the pa4ies'mutual

uldemtanding that this ordinance provides full TDT credits for tum lanes and

5Ao/o ot 66.6i% for traffic signals for a four- and three-leg intersection,

respectively. The City's comrnitnrent to this provision is a material

ind-ucenrent for Langer's agreetnent to complete the various public

improvements set forth in tlris Ageement.

For the purpose of deter-rnining tbe number of weekday trips generated by all

.o-,rr"r"iai land uses in Phases 4,6,'1, and 8 of the PIJD, the land use

l1

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 144



Exhibit A

cntegory "shopping centef'from ITE Trip Generation, 7th Editiou, shall be
applied to the Washington CountyTDT Ordinance forthe calculations of the
Washington CountyTDT.

Transportation _SD C's.

The city shall calculate and assess the Project with sDC's and credits for
SDC's, pursuant to the City's Municipal Code, as it may be amended from
time to time, and zubject to any rssolutions adopted by the City implementing
same.

For the purpose of deternining the number of weekday trips generated by all
commercial land uses in Phases 4,6,7 , and 8 of the pUD, the laud use
category "shoppirrg center" frorn ITE Trip Generation, ?th Edition, sfiall be
applied to the city's sDC ordinance for the calculations of the city's sDC,s.

Credits.

Lauger shall be entitled to seek sDC credits fiom the city and TDT credits
from washington county for all qualifying improvements and right-of-way
dedications made by Langer, subject to the then applicable provisions of
Oregon law and applicable ordinances. To the extent allowed by law, the City
shall apportion sDC and TDT charges in the rnanner that maximizes the
be'neficial use of any resulting credits for Langer. In the event the city
arnends its sDC ordinance to elininate the Transportation SDC prior to
Langels redemption of otherwise valid SDC credits, the Cifyshall exercise
good faith and best efforts to provide Langer a financial benefit in an amount
equal to the value of ary unredeemed credits in a rnanner consistent with
^**l:^^1*l^l^.-. --^-,-'l^l rL^ r:t--:^ -^. -t-t:-^^--t ! - - -r t P,4yl,uwL'r'E r.lwr P.luvrusu llrt, \-lly tlt lrul UOIIgaLEO [O ensufe SUCn DgnenT Of
othel retuilx on the unredeemed credits.

Tlre City hereby detennines that, for pulposes of qualifring for and
qrlminicfailrrn QT\/'! oni TTYT ^-oAi+- f ^-^^-l^ ^^..a]-.^a:^., ^f .^,.L1:^116 svv 4rs ^yt uwrQ, L4u6vr o vvtttlllt valutr tJI puu.uL
improvements and dedication ofright-of-wayto the Citypursuant to this
Agreement are existing condition(s) of approval of the puD, as it has been
modified by the Minor Change approved in2007.

Idghrvav 99w capgpity Allocation Proerani. For purposes of calcurating
whether the trips associated with the regulated activities in Phases 6, ?, and g
of the PUD exceed the tr{p lirnit of ZCDC 6.306.D.4, the city shall aggre+ate
the hips and acreage of all such phases. As aresult, the trips associated with
the regulated activities of a singlephase may exceed the trip limit that would
othenvise apply if that phase were calculated individually, provided that the
h ips associated with all regulated activities for Phases 6, 7 , and 8 do not
exceed the trip limit in the aggregate. At each phase of development of the
PUD, the nutnber of reserve trips for the remaining phases rvill be identifiecl in
the applicable Trip Allocation Certificate,

!
I

2.

J

a.

b

AT.

l2

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 145



Exhibit A

r. TERMS ANp -CO.NprTIphiS

Further Assurances. Each party shall execute and deliver any and all
additional papers, documents and other assurances, and shall do any and all
acts and things reasonably necessary in connection with the performance of its
obiigations hereunder in good faith, to carry out the intent of the parties
hereto.

Modi.fication of Amendment. No amendment, change ormodification of this
Agreement shall be valid, unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.

Rdatignship. Nothing herein shall be construed to create an agency
relationship or a partnership or joint venture betrveen the parties.

V/aiggr of Defpul.t or CoSdiligrr. In the event a party defaults in the
performance of one or rnor€ of its obligations under this Agreement or in the
event of the failur-e of a condition precedent to be satisfied under this
Agreement, the nondefaulting party or beneficiary ofthe condition may, in its
discretion, waive, as applicable, the default or satisfaction of condition
hereunder and rescind any consequence ofsuch default or failure ofa
condition, and ia case of any such waiver or rescission, the parties shall be
restored to their forurer positions and rights hereunder respectively, but no
such waiver or rescission shall extend to or affect any subsequent or other
default or condition precedent, or impair any right consequent thereon. No
such waiver or rescission shall be in effect unless the same is in wdting arrd

signed by the nondefaulting parry.

Bqfden and Benefi.t As,sienment. The covenants and agreements contained
herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
successors and assigns and shall nrn u'ith the land. Neither party may assign
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, which
consent shall not be unreasonably rvithheld, conditioned or delayed.

Applicablg Lavq. This Agreemerrt shall be interpreted under the laws of the
State of Oregon.

Notices. All notices, dernands, consents, approvals and other cornurunications
which are required or desiled to be gven by eiflrer parly to the oflrer
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be faxed, hand delivered, or sent by
overniglrt courier or United States mail at its address set forth below, or at
such other address as suclr parly shall have last designated by notice to the
other- Notices, demands, consents, approvals, arrd other cornmunications shall
be deemed glven rvhen delivered, three days after rnailing by United States
Mail or upon receipt jf sent by courier; provided, however, that if any zuch
notice or other comnrunication shall also be sent by telecopy or fax machines,

I

2.

3

4.

5

6.

7

t3

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 146



l Exhibit A

8

9

such notice shall be deerned given at the time and on the date of machine
transmittal.

Merser. This Agreement contains the entire agr€ement among the partias
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and cannot be amended or
zupplemented except by a written agreement signed by all parties.

RiBbls CUmplative. All rights, remedies, powers and privileges conferred
under this Agreement on the parties shall be cumulative of and in addifion to,
but not restrictive of or in lien o4 those conferred by law.

10. No Third Party Beneficiaries. None of the duties and obligatious of any party
under this Agreement shall in any way or in any manner be deemed to create
any rights in, any person or entity other than the parties hereto.

I1 Forcg Maieure. The parties shall use reasonable diligence to accomplish the
purpose ofthis Agreement but shall not be liable to each other, or their
fllccessors or assigns, for damages, costs, attomeystfees (including costs or
attorreys'fees on appeal) forbreach of contract, or otherwise for failure,
suspension, diminution, or other variations ofservices occasioned by any
cause beyond the contrcl and without the fault of the pa$ies. Such causes

-^--:-^1--J^l---r 
-l--ll -^L1-^tr,--:L-,! ,2A- t - -r -fa^ - !, .turuJ ureruulj uul. sl.lall uur u(' ulu$r^l tu 4(.,t$ ul \JUur aurs ur tgrlull$Ill uI ulg

public enemy, acts of othor gov€mments (including regulatory entities or
courB) in their sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics,
quarantines, restrictions, strikes, or failure or breakdown of tuansmission or
other facilities ("Force Majeure"). If any party is delayed, hindered, or
prev-ented in or fi'om performing its respective obligations under this
Agroement by any occufferce or event of Force Maje,ure, therr the period for
such performance shall be extended for that period that such performance is
delayed, hindered, or prevented.

12. Mediation. Should the partias arrive at an impasse regarding any of the
provisions of this Agrcenrent, the parties ugree b submit to thc dispute to
rnediation prior to the commencement of litigation. The mediator shall be an
individual mutually acceptable to both parties, but in the absence of
agreement, either party may apply to the Presiding Judge, Washington County
Circuit for appoinhnent of a mediator. Each party slrall share equally in the
fees and costs of the mediator. Each party shall be responsible for its own
attorneys fees and other expert fees. Mediation shall be at Portland, Oregon
unless the parties agreo othenvise. Both parties agree to ocercise their best
effort in good faith to resolve all disputes in rnediation. Participation in
mediation is a mandatory requirement ofboth the City and Langer and failure
to conrply with this requirernent is a rnaterial breach of this Agreement. The
schedule and time allowed for rnediation rvill be rnutually acceptable. If the
dispute is not resolved by rnediation, eitherparty may file a lawsuit to resolve
the dispute in a court with proper jurisdiction loeated in Washington County,

l4

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 147



Exhibit A

13.

14.

15.

16.

'1.7

Oregon. Any trial shall be to the court without a jury. In the event of any
such mediation or litigation, each party shall bear its own attorneys' fees and

cosfs.

Conditigns PrecedeJrt to Langlr's Pgrformance. Langer's commitments set
forth in this Agreenent are conditioned entirely upon the City's perfonnance
of all of its commitments that areprecedent to the City's commitments under
and in accordance with this Agreement, and the Citys timely issuance of a
PUD modification for the subject property.

Condi{ons Plecedent to gity's Pe{formanqe. City's cornmitments set forth in
this Agreement ar-e couditioned eartirely upon Langer's perfonnance of all of
its commitments that are precedent to the City's commitments under and in
accordance lvith this Agreement.

Nature qf Agreemsnt. The Cityhereby confirms that ithas approved and
executed this Agreemelt pursuant to its governing charter and not pursuant to

ORS 94-504 et seq-, and does further confirrn that this Agreement does not
constitute or concern the adoption, amendment, or application of the
Statewide Planning Goals, a comprehensive plan provision, or a land use
regulation, the City and Langer acknowledgng and agreeing that any and all
land use approvals required for the PUD are to be obtained (or have been

obtained) in due course on another date in accordance with all applicable laws
aud ragulations.

Amendme4t,end Restatement. The Parties intend that this Agreernent acts as

a full and amended resiatement of tire original 2008 Agreement. Upon this
Amended and Restated Agreement taking effect, t}le original 2008 Agreement
shall no fuither force or effect.

Puration. This Agreement expires not latertftan January 1',2015; provided,
however, the expiration date of this Agreement shall be automatically
extended to January 1,2017 in the event that on January 1,2015, Langer is

not in material default of anyprovisions of this Agreenrent, has substantially
built out Phase 7, and has obtained a certificate of oecupancy for at least one
(1) structure in Phase 6.

l5

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 148



Exhibit A

Jim

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

For the City of Shenrrood:

City Manager

Date: 7 Ftq

For Langer:

P and Clarence Langer, to Pbase 4:

-b" \

Family, LLC, as rernainder ofPUD

Print Name:

Title:

,rrlnlr^ FrSrUr
Olrltnnttrrooaofrirro

ty-

B

Tr--: -il- t .tltt

Print N

Date: B - A" - rl

t6

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 149



Exhibit D8

Packet Page 150



l Exhibit A

2. roe gtffirulli cot4&ncnr (cct

2.109,01 Purpore

The GC zonlng dletrtet provldes f,or wholoaale and comnerclal
uEea whlch requtre larg-r parcela of land, and or uses which
lnvolve produc-ts or actlvit-tes whlch regutie apeclal attentlon
to envl.ronmental lnpacte as per Chapter 8.

2. 109,O2 Pcrnltted Ussr

The followtng uqqs aTe permttted outrlght, provlded such
t??i,Teet th€,lpFfreapfe invtroinnrental pEfformairce stondafdg
contalnecl .ln Chapter 8:

Profgtatonal gerrlcep, .lnpl.udtng but ,not ltrntted to
fl.nancl.tlr, oedtcal and dental, -socl.atr. eervtceal realeatater legq1r. aitlstfc, and slmllar uae3. '

Generial retall trade, lncludlng bakertes whare product
dletrLbrrtlon ls li,rulted to retalllng on the piemLses
only.

C. 'pergonatr and bueLnese eefvl,cesr !.ncludtng, day catreg,
Prescnools, and klndergartena.

D. loEtif sqlFtatlons . when loc;ted entlrely wtrhl.n a$dtnsldental to a uoe pernttted outrLght.

usesr _lncludlng but not ltmtted to portabl€
on offtcds and real, eetate slleg 6tetCis,
Sectlon 4.500.

I

Bi

H.

1'

J€ct, to
Farn ?nd -garden _ supply storee, and retall ptant
nuraerr.es, brrt'e*cludrng rholesale plant nureerteal ind
cornmerclal farm equlpnent and vehlcle ealea whtch areprohlblted.

Agrlctftural useg euch ae tquclr f,aqqtng and hortrcurture,excludlng conmerclal bulldi.nga and jtructures, or th;ralslng of animals other than houaehold peta.

ComnarcLal trade gchoolg.

uotlon plcture and llve thsatars, but excruding drlve-Lnsvhtch are lrrohlblted.
Restaurants, taverns, and loungeer

CHAPTER 2
35

Jr

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 151



t(.

Lr

!d,

N.

O'

Q'

R.

s.
fiat

U'

2,109.03

Exhibit A

Automotlve and
but excludtng
prohlblted.

prlntlng?publlghlnglorbthgrreproduct.lonBlueprlntlng'
servicee

truck,
t sales,

other appllance and egulpnent parts qales.
lunlryaiis and ealvage yards whlch ar€

Automobile,, recreatlonal. vehicler .,llotorcYcle,
nianUlicinfiA honre, boat, fatgr and othe.r egu{pmen
parta galeg, repaLrs, rentals or servlce'

IfhoLesale. trade, warehtllsLng' c9yp19fq-1 -storjlge - 
and

;'t;I;;iehouelng, exgept ai prohtbtted ln Sectlons
2. 110.0{E and 2.111-048-

LlmttEd manufacturlngl tncludlng only: beverage bottling
piints, c6mmer6tal- bakerles, machlne ehopsr g;1d

iranolcraft manufacturLng.

Bulldlnq materlal sales, lumberyards, contractorg storage
i$-eguiprnent yarde. buildlng malntenance aerrrLces' and
aimllar uges.

Veterlnar:lan off,lsea and anlnal hospltals'

Agrlcultural uaes lncludlng _but not llmlted to f,arming-,
afib rholaeale anA retf,lt plant nurrserles, ntth
cuito*trJ.Xy assoclated colunbrclal butldlngs and
Ctructurer perm.lttsd.

lrledlcat, dentalr and slmllar laboratories.

Truck and bus Yarde and termLnale,

Adult entertal.nment buelnesaes, subJect to Sectl.on 2,2O8.

Condlttonal Uses

The following utsea are par,mltted as condltlona,l'usesr provlded
such usefi frEet the tPPllcable e_nvlrolrmental perfortnAnce
atandards contalned tri=Chapter 8t and are approved ln
acsotdancs wLth sectlon {,3001

A. Speclal care facilltles, lnc-ludlng Put not llnt"ted to
hiapi,tals, ganltarlumg , convllescent, homes-, 

- 
correctional

tnslltutlone, and resldentlal care tac.l"llt'1es'

B. Radlo, televlsl.on, and slmLlar communlcatlon statLonsr
lncLuding tranEni.t'tara .

C. ,Churches and Parsonages'

CHAPTER 2
35

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 152



fl

t

f

tq

1
rc

Exhibit A

D.

E.

F

G.

H.

I

Cemeterles and crematory mausoLeums.

Publlc and prlvate utlllty bufldtngs, tnclgding but not
Itmttad to tetephone exchanges, electrlc substatLon, gas
regulator stat{ong, treatment plants, water well'sr and
pu6ltc works yards.

Government offices, including but not limited to
adnrl,nistratlve office, post, offlces, and poli.ce and fire
stations.
PubIlc use bulldtngs lncludtng but not llmlted to
librariee, museumg, conmunity centers and senior eenters'

Prlvate lodges, fraternal organlzatlons, country clubs,
sportq and racgu-et clubs, and other simllar clubsr but
excludlnE goM couises :which are prohibitedr

Mot,els or hotelc.
Resldent.l.al apartments when
l,n the rear of, or othenr
commerclal buildlng,

It. Public resieatlonal facllitieE, J,ncludlng but not i.lmlted
to parks, playftelds, and aportg and racguet, courtsr but
excludlng golf courres shlch are prohlblted.

L. Publlc and pr!.vate echools provldlng educatlon at the
el€mentary athool level or hi.gher.

Iri, Any i.ncidental buginese, serrrice, proceas, storage or
dlsplay, not sth€f'wlee permltted by S€ctlon ?.109r that
ls esssnll.al to and customarily assoclated wlth any use
pernit,ted outrlght,.

2, 109.04 Prohibtted Ucec

The followlng uses are expressly prohtbtted:

A. Junklrards and salvage yards.

located on the upper floors,
ise cLearly eecondary to a

B, Industrlal and manufacturlng usea, er(cept as apeclftcatly
permltted by Sectl,onE 2.109,02 and 2. 109.03 

"

C, Any other prohlbtted use noted tn Sect,ion 2,109.03.

2. 109.05 DLnensLonal gtandardr

No lot ar€a, getbackr yrrdr landscaped area, open space, off-
st,reet parktng or loadlng Nresr or other slte dlnenslon or

CHAPTER 2
3?

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 153



r€quLrs$ent, exlstLng on, or 9fte5,.the eftesttrve date of, thla
code Ehatt .u"-r,ff"cid u.io*-trte mirilmu$ resltr"g !v tlle c99!l
ilIi-"iiirr-fht:tJnvevalc.e, of-any ryry.f.1n ot a lot' f,or other
Iilin-;Siurir:"""-,oi'iight;or,"w{yi regve n rot or structure on

rhe rsnalnd"i-ot--r"14 I;i wittr lasn than.mlnlmum Fog:
;ffi",,!Jiffi,--ilr"; sEibictGe or bther regulremente, except as

permitted bY $ectlon 4.{00'

Exhibit A

A. tot Dlmsncl'ons

Except aa othentise-provlded, reqglred mlnlmum lot area3
and Otnenglons shall ba:

1 Iuot area i 10 r 000 aguare f,sgt

2.Lotwldthatfrontpropertyllne:Tofeet
3' Lrot wtdth at butldtng tlne; ?0 f,eet

B. Sstbacks

Ercept as othentlse provLded, regulred mlnimum setbacks
shall bel

1. Front yards No.qe, 
- 
y.nlgas the . fgt - -aputs- a

reel'.denital a9ne, t!€-n 1tr9 -trorqt 
yard shall be that

requlred tn the resldent'tal zone'

2" $tde yardqr- None-, unlegs abuttlng- a regxdent,lal

"orre 
.ii p"Uf Ic parli propgrty, then ihere Bhall be a

mlnlmum of t$tenty (zCI't feet'

3. a resldenttal
of tr'renty (201Bear yardi None, 14f9sa abYtllng

zone, ttren there shall be a minlnun

C.

feet.
4.Exlstlnqresldentl'aluBe,sshallmalntalneetbacke

"i""iti6a in sectton 2.105'04'

Hetght

Except as othenrtse Pfovi<|g!., -thg maximum hetght of
struitures shall be ritty (50}- feet,.3xc.eP!. "ilt"!Il?:;iili;-ile nunared ( 100 ) feEt of a realdentlaL zsne ehall
iii-fiii:tea io tlre he'tsht requiqgqenla qf lha! 1e3-identrll
iiei. Structures ovfir fifiy (501 .!"gt-ln hetght may be

Feiilittil-; 
-cJn6ftfonal usdg,' sublect to $ectl.on { . 300.

CHAPITER 2
38

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 154



Exhibit A

2. lo9.06 connurrity Da8lgn

For etandards relatlng to off-etreet parklng and LoadLngl
€nsrgy eonservatlon, - htstortc resourceE, onvlronmentil
resources, tandBcaplng' access -and egTessf slgnsr-.-pagka and
,open spase, on-slte stortgs, and gltC deslgnr aee Chapters 5,
I and 9.

2.109.O? Flood Platn

Exeapt as othe5rrlae provided, Sectlon 8.202 ghatl apBly.

CHAPTER 2
39

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 155



Exhibit A

2.110 LICHT IIIDUSIIRIAL (!I)

2. ll0.0l PurPose

The .LI zon
process InEr
*hlch have

E. Government
atatlons.
statLong '
Automobile,
storage.

attractLve
csrutieslon '

Z. ll0' 02 Perlnlttcd Uses

The following uses are Permltted out-rlghtr-provided such uges

frilt--i[;"-EpfiAb:t -ditironmintql ]etformanse standards
contalned ln ChaPter 8.

A. Veterlnarlans off,l,cee and anlmal hospltals.

E"' Contracterrs, off|Gas^, a119 other offLces asgoclated with
a uge Pernttted i-n the l,I Zotl€'

C, Publlc and prtvate utl,lltlee- lncludlng- but tto!-Ilmited toe' 
i;16;";;"-*"h"ttg"", electric s,ubstat'Jol"'-,9.T -::.gtl3l?tiiationsl gaw.ge- -tidament plants, water wells and publlc
worlre Yards.

acturl
Lals.

fndustrlal Lonable
external fea el.teg

D. Glase lnstallation and ealeg'

offices, lncludtng but not llmJ.ted
adntntatrat,tvg of flcesr Pollce

F I boat, traLler, and recreatlonsl vehicLe

dental,
except as

H' prlmarlly
Lndustrlal

r

to poetal
and fire

Laboratories for testing and medi-cal,
ohotooraphlc, ot motlon pt'cture processlng'
ironrSrtia uy sectJ.on 2.110.048.

Industrlal hand tool - qnd. aupply. gales,
wtroiesaLeO to other tndustrlal f lrne or
workerS.

Other sl.rnll.ar ltght lnduEtrlal uses rUbJect to Sectlon
4.500.

Uses pernrttted outrtght,tn the GC zone{ SectLon 2'.109'02'
eiaipi for adult e-ntertatn6ent buslnenees whlch are
Prohlblted ' 

''APTER 
z

40

J.

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 156



N. Dvrelllng unlt for on€ (l) recurtty person enployed on the
prenfues, and thelr tmnedtate fanllyr

ll. PtlDsr aubJect to the provlgl.ons of $ectlon 2.202,

U. [eruporarl uaea, lncludtng but not linlted to constructlon
and-ieal=eatats Enler ofilsis, eubJCct to Sectl.on {.500.

2. ll0.O3 Condltional User

The f,ollowlng uaes ar€ pormltted as Condltlonal Ugss provlded
such useg mebt th€ appltcabt e envlromnental Berfomrncegtandards contaJ.ned ln' Chapter 8 and are approved Ln
accordanee wlth Sectlon 4.300i

A. Irlanuf,acture, compound.tng, procerslng, aasembllng,
packaglng,T treatment, fabrlcatlonr' wholegallngr
wlrehouelng or ttorage ot. th€ f,ollowi.ng attlcLet or
products:

l. Food productal insludlng but not llnlted to candy,
dalry-products, beveraEee, coffee, canned goods and
balced gooda, and meat and poultryr exsept as
prohtbtted ry Sectlon 3,110,03.

2, AppLi.ancos r lncludlng but not ltnrlted to,
refrlgeratorgr frsezera, waahlng nachlnet. dryerg;
small. eloctronlc notors and generatorg, heatl,ng and
Coollng egulpment; lam mower6, f,ototlllers, and
chaln Eanrs; vend.tng machlnea; and slmllar prgducts
and asgeclated snall partar

CoanetLcs, drugt, pharmaceutical,
chemteals and glmllar producte,
prohtblted by Sectlon 2. 110.-Oil,

Exhibit A

tolletrles,
€xqePt aa

3

4 t

5.

Electrlcal, radtro, t€levj.alon, opttcal, scl€ntlflc,
hearl,ng aldgr alectronlcr somputsr, communleatlons
and slnl-lar lngtfuments, componentgr appllancea and
syatsma, and rlnrllar producte and assoclated small
partg.

Bulldtng corponents and household flxturea,
tncludlng but not llmlted to furnl.ture, cablncta,
and upholatotyi ladderei mattress€a, doors and
wlndowg; aig[re and dlsplay etructuragi and slntlar
producta and asaoctated gnaLl parts,

Recreatlonal vehlclee and eqqlpment, lncludtng but
not llnlted to btcycles, recreatlonaL waterciaft,
ererclge eqglpmenC, aiiC ginllar productr and

6

CHAPTER 2
{r

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 157



agEocl,atedgmatlpa5ts,butexcludlnE:'nolorl?ed;fiifiili' ulrE;i ilrrenrrse peinrrfea by: sect1.on
zirrb,o2 or 2.tr10.03'

'.l,Muslcalln8trumentartoy8andnovelties'
ltrnlted , to products uslngPottery and ceramLcg

prevloislY Pulverized clay.

Exhibit A

Br

c"

E.

2 . 110,04

D.

E

8.

Sawnrllls.

Prohtbtted Useg

9. Textttes and ftber Producta'

10, other srnall products and toole.manufactured.ITot*v I 
il;id;- ry- p""iared - 

.Qr. eenri-ftntehed naterial.s,
rnctudlni' U,if -il; - rrmrtaa to Fon9, fur, le{thgr,
iiaCftegi iextfles, plasttcg, gtraea, _qood:productg I, ;;;;t;; 't"uic"o, 'rrinber, and preclous or 

' 
gemi*

precloua stoneg.

taundry, dry clean,lng yalng ot, rug cleanlng plants '

r,Lnht metaL fabrication, machlnLnp, Telgilg- .and
EiE..ii"opi-"li"q "na "i"tlng or mording of seml'-finished or
flnlshed metals'

offtces as-gsciated wl.th a use conditlonally perlBttted in
the tf Zone.

itre fol.lowlng uBeE are, expreesly ,prohtbltedt

A. Aclult Entertainment Businegses'

C'

Anv use :pernltted or condl't191111-V-. P!!1ftt34. .ul9?r
6liitl"" z hri--{r,air 1e' not specrf lcgllY- 4,1tqd in "thls
;;;r;;, -ano -iny-'se :Llsted 1n sectron 2;111' 04 '

Auto wrecklng and junk or salvage yards'

DtBttuatton of otl, ,coa]., woo$ or tar compounds and the
creoaote treatment of anJZ Products

Manufacture, compoundlng, - Pro:"1:llg, "-::glllng'oackaqlns, trealmert, f abrlcatlon, whglesale t
ilIi6ni,iir"ie' "i "t"tage of t-h9 rof rgwllq 

- I-t"1111-", -:f;6;il;;#;'except ror -1ny lncldental buelness' servlce'
Fo;;ili-Itoiiig*J,- o"-arn'pl?v !li3!. 11 essentill to and
;u; ioilir ry sas'osi ated,, i ri t}G c1q1' s dqlerlni:lqtll1l:l
ilt-;iiietntise perrnltt'ed or condttionally Permltte'l use!

CTIAPTER 2
42

Packet Page 172

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 158



Abraalvea, acl.ds, dLslnfectantgl dyes and pal.nts,
bleashlng powder and eoapa and slmilar prodicts,

2. AmmonLa, chlorlne, sodl,um compounds, toxl.cs, andglmllaf chenlcalg,

3 . GetrluloLd or pytoryfltn.

{, Cementr lLmsr gl(psum, plastar of Parle, clay,
creoeote, coal and coke, tar and ttr-baaed roofl.ng
and waterprooflng materlals and slnllar subatanceel

Exhibit A

plants,

5. Explostves and radloactlve materLals.
l

6, 'Fert.tllzai, herbictdeg ,and trnss-ct polson.

ldetal rolftng and erstiaetlon mtllg, forge
emelters and 6last furnaeeg.

G. Pulp nllls and paper mlllg,
H, Slaughter of livestock or poultry, the manufacture of

anlmal by-producta Or fat r€nderlng.

f. teather tannerlee.

.L Gen€rai purposc ssltd was'Le 3.andf111s, inEinerators, and
other solld waste facl,lttles.

l. X10.05 Dlncnsl,onal Standards

No lot araa, getback, yard, landucaped area, open EBacer off*street parklng or Loadtng area, or'other sitb dirnenaLon or
requiremeRt, cxistLng on, or after, i,he effeciive date of this
Code shall be reduced below the m.tnlmum r-equlred by thls Code.
Hor shalr the conveyanse'of any portion 6f a lof, for other
than a publlc us€ or rlght-of-waye leave a lot or structure onthe remalnder of satd lot witfr lese than mlnlmum eode
dimenarons, ar€a, setbagks or other requlrements, erccept aa
permXtted by Sect!.on' i[,{0O.

l

A. Lot Dimenrlons

Except as otherwlse provlded, requlred mlnlmum Lot area
and Atmensiona ghall-be:

l- Lot area: 101000 sg. feet
2, L,ot wldth at front property lLner 100 f,eet

3, Lot wldth at bulldlng llne: I00 feet
CHAPTER. 2

43

F

Packet Page 173

Exhibit D8

Packet Page 159



PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
Map Grid:684-G5

Census Tract:032103 Block: 2009

Neightborhood: Cpo 5 Shenivood-Tualatin N

School Dist: 88J Sherwood

lmpr Type: T5 - Public Storage

SubdivlPlat:

Land Use:2210

Std Land Use: IPUB - Public Storage, Warehouse

Zoning: Sherwood-Ll_PUD - Light lndustrial -Pud

LaVLon: 45.36925461 l -122.83768257

Watershed: Fanno Creek-Tualatin River

Legal: ACRES 5.04

Bedrooms:

Baths, Total:

Baths, Full:

Baths, Half:

Total Units:

# Stories:

# Fireplaces:

Cooling:

Heating:

Building Style: AOQ - Storage

SENTINEL SELF STORAGE LLC

SENTINEL SELF STORAGE LLC

SENTINEL SELF-STORAGE LLC

Customer Service Department

Phone: 503.219.TR|O (8746)

Fax: 503.790.7872

Email : cs.oregon@firstam.com

Datei 412612022

ASSESSMENT AND TAXATION
Market Land: $1,587,470.00

Market lmpr: $3,91 2,060.00

Market Special: $0.00

Market Total: $5,499,530.00 (2021 )

% lmproved:71.00%

Assessed Total: $3,962,8B0.00 (2021 )

Levy Code:88.10

Tax:$73,275.24 (2021)

Millage Rate: 18.4904

Exemption:

Exemplion Type:

^frrsr American Title

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION
Owner: Sentinel Self Storage LLC Parcel #: R547894

CoOwner: Ref Parcel #:251298000900

Site: 15555 SW Tualatin Sheruvood Rd Sherwood OR 97140 TRS: 02S I 01W 129 / NW

Mail:28185 SW Heater Rd Sherwood OR 97140 County: Washington

Own

PROPERTY C HARACTERISTICS
Total SqFt:

First Floor:

Second Floor:

Basement Fin:

Basement Unfin:

Basement Total:

Attic Fin:

Attic Unfin:

Attic Total:

Garage:

SALES AND LOAN INFORMATION
Date Doc # Sale Price Deed Tlpe

O4l1Sl2O21 47799 Lis Pendens

1110212018 0000075547 Modgage

0312512016 22496 Deed

Year Built: 1997

Eff Year Built:

Lot Size Ac: 5.04 Acres

Lot Size SF: 219,542 SqFt

Lot Width:

Lot Depth:

Roof Material:

Roof Shape:

Ext Walls:

Const Type:

Loan Amt Loan Type

Conv/Unk

$5,450,000.00 Conv/Unk

ConviUnk

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations, warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or

completeness of information contained in this report.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 160



)

Assessor Map

O
"s

Ol

Crt

59 '4"

.f
o

I
o

'',rJ
b

}:]

>i{t>i.'

=Q
/f

a

7.0

\

)6
* (:

:i ?019r

RoA

frrct Ameriean Title

L

c€NrE't or s6ct roN (cR 2e12

i./'.J,/t'

SELlEltlT
ll-r€?56 '.' .'7?/r'/,.

:.r /,//. ,

2
1r

T-

l

Parcel lD: R547894

Site Address: 15555 SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,
warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

1(

nt

O
O
'1

1 500
2

1,28 AC

O
1400

c)1
1.72 AC

nl .

E
6

f;

24A

Q"

8ES-4+17W

llII
*
l'

il8$44-la€
56{t 6t

rGLd:'\
5.tdm

I
q

Eg

23!ztCA
6m

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 161



Street Map

I
I i it

l0

e

{}(,

:
A
0

/ i-

(
I
U
e
a{

TUALATIIT sHf,RWOOO IID-

t
Gg
J

t

I

vEs

CEll 
'UNY CE"TUiY D

ftto
1

w

frrct Amcrican Title

T*
i

Parcel lD: R547894

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,
warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 162



Aerial Map

frrct American Title

Parcel lD: R547894

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,
wananties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 163



MapoodFI

Zor- A
taa noodpliin m.pp.d by approrimate

m.thcdr; lrst flood alsrdoEr
rrr not datarnln.d

F..t.I'ad to l :onc or lpprox a zon.
Frrt ot rring. Ars- I q0 A nnurl chrnc.

Zonc- tr
5 lwaI

{
I

o
u
€

{a
3

t

First American Title

Parcel lD: R547894

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,
warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

:]
l;,i

,ll it-_
R

lon.- x
Ar.a ot rnodarat. Rood hatard

Zon.- aE
tLoootrav

rtr.rm chann.l a brrr nosd

ta'

!a3. tloodpl6ln rhrrr batr flood
Zan*- Af

I
I

I
.A

q

L_
_-l

I

t*

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 164



Zoning Map

EU

frrct American Title

luaLA frl{ HERWOOO

Parcel lD: R547894

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,
warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

a

G
uq
a
a

{t

}IDR

R C* PUD

HOR-FUD

HDR D

RC

HDR_PU D DR-PU

GC

RC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 165



Irrl6l

g
4a
E
B
Ff

Ete
6.F It
€ad'
EH.E
f3'4 d-

EE€
azgl'- -Eo.i'4.lg98 a-
EsSE

geaA

After recording retum to:

Dean T. Sandow
Farleigh Wada Win
12l SW Morrison ll6fi)
Portland, Oregon 97204

Send tax statements to:

No change

BARGAIN AND SALE DEED

CLARENCE D. LANCER JR., individually and as trustee of the CLARENCE D. LANGER JR. TRUST dated

November 2, 2015, and PAMELA A. LANGER, individually and as trustee of the PAMELA A. LANGER TRUST

dated November 2,2015, Grantors, convey to SENTTNEL SELF-STORAGE, LLC, all right, title, and interest in the

real property described as:

A lracE of luxl lltuacc ln Ehc SouEhratt (lurrtcr of Bhc gouEht.lt guttB"t ol thc
nortl.rrat qutrBca o! sccglon 29, Iornchlp 2 south, lltlrgc t rat! of cht Hlllen:ttc
l,larldlan, ln thc Clry ol Shc&lood, County ot nachlngton and Stale o! Otcgpn. bcltlg
mra pqstlsulatly dcecrlbsd ar tollorr:

Blgtnnlng ac rhc NorEhtcrE colmr ol srld Soughclst (n|aaccr gt cht SorBhcEtt quarEsr
of chc litorEhrcrt lnrarter ol Scctton 29, alto bclng thc llorrhocgB cornlr of t:.lt trract
o! l.'|d convly€d in chc Dccd rtcoldc6 ae Docuocn! 80005210' HlthtngEon CounEy Dccil
Rccordr; lhcncc tlonE lh. rctE ltnc of sEld Southoart gutttcr ot chc South.llt
quart3s gt tht NorBhuGiE qluatscr rE SlcGlon 29, South 00'19'09' ErgC 286.00 tcct,,
Ehcnc! lG.vtng rcid nctc llnc, Norlh l9.l{'18r Eltl, 560.67 tcet; thcncc SOuch
00!20'{6. E$g 35r.36 tGrE Bo r golnC on Ehr uorc'h rlghc' ol rry ltnr o!
$Dhrln-shrrrood noad (Corncy Rord No. z?3?, uldch vrrlasl ar rhorn on gurivGy Nuluttr
23,012, tlashlngEon County sula'sy R.eordrt cheacc alonE lltd NorEh rlghE o! eay llne,
NorEh 39.SO,0lt' Brrt, 100.18 lecr go she Eaet llnc of rtld SogBh?ttt guarEcr of rhe
Southcaec gulrc,er o! che NorBhrrs! .nltacrr o! SGcElon 29. belng alsg thc EaNC ltoc o!
thaE EaacG o! land cgnvc)rcd ta cha Dccd rccordcd ln B€oh 9{7, Pagr ll0, Deed Rccords
o! w$htngcon Councy, ch.nce alorrg rald 8a3E tlnc, NorBh 0t20'{6' T!rE, 6!?.53 !GtE,
to rhc North ltnc of chc r6lal SouBhcrst quarlrr of Ehc Southcrst qurrt"r of rhe
tlorBhrclf $rarccf at Scctlon 29r Ehencc along stid llorch ltne. South 89.{t'1?r }tcBE,
660.?1 tce! Bo rhc polnc, ot beglnnlng.

The property is othenrise known as 15555 SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, Shenvood, Washington County, Oregon
97140. The true consideration for this conveyance is other than monetary consideration. This deed conects the
conveyanc€ in document 2015-092372 recorded November 3, 2015.

BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE
sHouLD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON'S RIGHTS,IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.30t AND 195.305
TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO I I, CHAPTER 424, ORECON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17,
CHAPTER E55, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2OIO. THIS
INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN
I _ BARCAIN AND SALE DEED
P:\DOCS\LANGEC\12598\DOC\3N91 807.DOC

Washington Counly, Oregon
DDBS
Stn=19 D MOON
$10.00 $11,00 $5.00 $20.00

2016-022496
0312512016 03:49:29 PM

$46.00
l, Richard Hobernicht Oircclor otAssessment ard Taxatlon and Ex-
Oflicio County Clerk forWashington County, Oregon, do hereby
certiry that the wldrir instrument ot writing was recaived and
r.corded in the book of records ot gald county.

Richard Hobemichl, Director of
Assessment and Taxation, Ex-Ofticio

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 166



VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR

ACCEPTINC THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRJNG FEE TITLE TO THE PROPERry SHOULD
CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COIJNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT
THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS
DEFINED IN ORS 92.OIO OR 2I5.OIO, TO VERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO
DETERMINE ANY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED
IN ORS 30.930, AND TO TNQUIRE ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS, IF

ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, I95.3OI AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO I I, CHAPTER 424,

ORECON LAWS 2OO?, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2

TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2OIO.

14,

D. and as A. as Trustee
datedTrustee of the JR. TRUST of the PAMELA A. LANGER

November 2, 2015dated November 2,2015

STATEOFORECON )
) ss.

County of Multnomah )

Subscribed and sworn to before me on January 14, 2016, by CLARENCE D. LANGER JR., individually and as

hustee of the CLARENCE D. LANGER JR. TRUST dated November 2,2015, and PAMELA A. LANGER,
individually and as fiustee of the PAMELA A. LANGER TRUST 2,2015

ffi sHerflIFfHffi^rsrrW Hnilsbllffhggu
- MY COMMISSION EXPIRES APRIL 07, 2016

Notary Public State of

2 - BARGAIN AND SALE DEED
P:\DOCS\LANGEC\12s98\DOC\3N91 E07.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 167



\,J

{
tr)
J\U

I

no>
.]r
a
k)
*r
rn
c.{

T
uJ
tsl-
o
cl
o
Eo

RECORDANON REQUESTED BY:
Flrlt Tochnology F€donl Cradlt Unlon
Comnorclal Londlng
PO Box 2'100
gorvrrton, OR 97075

WHEI.I RECORDED MAIL TO:
Flrrt Technology Feder.l Crcdlt Unlon
Commorct.l Londlng
PO Bor 2100
Be.vodon, OR g70t6

SEND TAX NOTICES TO:
Sontln.l Soll storag., LLC
15566 SW TuahUn Sheilood Rd
ShaM^d aD o f,a E6e ltsF olil Y

DEED OF TRUST
THIS DEED OF TRUST b dated November l, 2018, among Sentlnel Self Storagq LLC, an Orcgon Limited
Llablllty company, wlrose addrsee ls 15555 SW Tualatln Sherwood Rd, Sherwood, OR 97i40 f.Granto/';;
Flnrt Technology Federal Gmdit Union, whose addrcss is Commercld Lendlng, FO Box 2i00, Beiverton, Oii
97075 (refered to below sometimoe 6 "Lende/' and sometimes as "Beneficiary"); and Chlcago Ti$e Company
of Orcgon, whose address b 1211 3W Flfth Avonue, Sulte 2130, Portland, OR 97204 lrciCred to betow ai
"Trustee").
COI{VEYANCE Al{D GRANT. For valurble conslderallon, ropro!€ntrd in the Notr dtbd llovember l, 2018, ln tho orielnsl pdnclprl .mount
of 15,{60,000.00, trom G..ntor to Londor, Gnntor convayr to Trurtor for thr benallt of Lender ar Bonellcl.ry alt oicrantors'righl, uile,
and interest ln and to tho following dosffibed real propedy, together with all exisllng or subsequenlly e-recled or aflixeO 5'uitiings,
improvements and fixlur€s: all easemenls, .lghts of way, and appurtenances; all water, water .ights and-dltch rights (including stocliin
utililies with ditch or irrigation rights); and all othor righls, royalties, and prollts relalins to the reafproDerly. includiio wiihout lifiitailon ell
minerals, oil, gas, goothermal and similar mati6n, (the "Real Property") locatedln Washlnft<in County, State of Orcgon:

See Exhlblt "A", which ls attached to thls Deed of Trust and made a part of thls Deed of Trust as lf fully
set forth hercln.

The Real Propetty or lts addrcss ls commonly known as 15555 SW Tualatin Sherwood Road, Sherwood, OR
97140. The Real Property tax identificatlon number is R547894. Map No. 2S1298-00900.
Grantor presenlly assigns to,Lender (also knorvn a8 Beneficiary in this Deed of Trust) all of Grantor's right, litle, and interest in and to all
present and fulure leases of ths Propetty and all Rents from lhe Property. ln addilion, Granlor grants lo Lend€r a Unlform Commordal
Code security inl€rest ln the Personal Property and Rents.

THIS DEED OF TRUST, ll{CLUDIilG THE ASSIGt{ilE}lT OF RENTS A}lD THE SECI RIW IITITEREST l1l THE REIIIS AnD PERSOML
PROPERil lS OIVEN TO SECURE (A) PAYff,ENT OF TlrE |I{DEE|TEDI{ESS AilD (B} PERFORilANCE OF Al{y At{D ALL OBLTAIOilS
UNDER THE [OTE, TITE REI.ATED DOCUIIENTS, AITD THIS I'EED OF TRUST. THIS DEED OF TRUST IS GIVEiI AND AG:CEPTED OI{ TTIE
FOLLOTUNG TERTS:

PAYMENT At{D PERFORT NCE. Excepi as olhonirlso provided in this Eleed of Tru8t, Grantor shall pay to Lender all amounk seanrcd by
lfis Deq of Trust as thoy become due, and shall strlctly and in I timely manner psrform all of Grantor's obligations under the Noto, lhii
De6d of Trust, and the Related Documents.
pOSSESSIOI{ At{O IilAINIENANCE OF THE PROPERW, Grantor agrees lhat Granlor's possession and u8e of the Froperly 6hatt b€
go\remed by the following provisions:

Poct€ldon and Usr. Until the o@urren@ of an Event of Default, Grantor may (1) Iemaln ln po8sesrion and control of the Property;
(2) use, op€rat€ or msnage the Prop€rty; and (3) colleci the Renb from lhe Prop€rty. The tollowing provisions relale lo th6 use of
the Property or to other limitations on th6 Prop€rty. EEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEmNG THIS INSTRUMENT, TIC PERSON
TMNSFERRING FEE TITT.E SHOUT"D II.IQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSONS RIGHTS, IF ANY, t.hIOER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND
195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS5 TO 11, CMFTER424, ORE@N rAWS 2007, SECTONS2 TO I AND 17, CHAFIER855,
ORE@T.I LAWS 2009, AND SECTIOT{S 2 TO 7, CHAPIER 8, OREGON IAT/VS 2010. THIS INSTRLMENT DOES NOTALLOW USE OF
THE FRSERTY DESCRIB€D IN THIS INSTRIJMENT IN VIOI.ATION ff AFPLICABLE LAND t,,SE I,AWS AND REGU|.ANoI.IS. BEFORE
SIGNING OR AGCEMNG THIS INSTRUMENT, THE FERSON ACQUIRING EE T]TLE TO rtE PROFERTY SHOULD Cf{ECI( WTH TTE
AFFROPRIATE CITY OR COIJNTV PIANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT TIE UNIT OF LAND BEltlG TRAiISFEmED lS A
IAVI/FULLY ESTAALFHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFI]GD IN ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY TI-E APPRCfVED TJSES OF'rtE
LOT OR PARCEL, TO IEIERIilINE ANY LIMITS Oi.l LAl ,SUITS AGAINST FARlrtlNG OR FOFEST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED lN OflS
30.930, AND TO hnUlRE ABOUT fiE RIGHIS OF IilEl(}{BORlfiG FRCPERTY OntlERS, lF ANY, UNDER ORS 195,300, 195.301
AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIOI.IS 5 TO 1 I , CMPTER a2a, OREGON I-AWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO I AND 17, CHAPTER
855, ORE@N ISWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CFIqFTER 8, ORE@N LAVI'S 2010.

Duty to malntlln, Granlor shall maintain ths Froporty in t€nantabh conditlon and promptly porform all repalrc, replacements, and
maintenan@ ne@ssary to pr€sorvo its value.

Washington County, Oregon
D{trl
Stn=16 M LOPEZ
$s0.00 $11.00 $5.00 $60.00

2018-075547
1110212018 02:48:57 PM

$126.00
I, Richard Hobernicht, Dirstor ofAsaessmeht and Taxatlon and Ex.
Ofricio County Clerk for Washington County, Oregon, do hereby
certify that the within instrument of writing was rcetved and
rcorded in the bmk ot records of said county.

Richard Hobernichl, Director of
Assessment and Taxation, Ex-Officio

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 168



Loan No: 9334830669
DEED OF TRUST

(Contlnued) Page 2

Cornpllanca Wlth Envlrcnmonttl Lrwr. Grantor repr€sents and wananls to Lendor that: (1) Dudng the perlod of Granto/s ownership
of the Property. there haB be€n no use, generalion, manufacturo, storage, treatment, dlsposal, releaso or thr€atened rclease of any
Hazadous Substancs by any person on, under, sbout or from lhe Popsrty; (2) Grantor has no knowl€dge of, or reaeon to belleve
that there ha8 been, except as previously disclosed lo and acknowledged by Lsnder in writing, (a) any breadt or violatlon of any
Environmonlal Laws, (b) any us€, generalion, manufac{ure, storage. lrealment, dlsposal,'releass oi lhroatened nelease of any
Hazardous Substance on, under, aboul or from the Prop€rty by any prior owners or occupants of th3 Properly, or (c) any aclual or
throalened liligalion or claims of any klnd by any per8on relaling to such mattcrs: and (3) Fxcopt as previously disdoa€d to and
scknowledged by Lender ln wrlting, (a) neither Granlor nor any tenanl, contractor, agent or olher authorlzsd usef of the Property
shall use, gon€rate, manufac{ure, storo, troat, dispose of or rel€ase any Hazardous Substance on, und6r, about or ftom lh€ Prop€rty;
and (b) any such aclivity shall be conducted in compliance with all applicable fedaral, stato, and local laws, regutations and
ordinances, indudlng wllhout limitation all Environmental Laws. Grantor aulhorizes Lender and its agenls to anter upon the Proporly
to make such inspections and tests, at Granlo/s expens6, as Lendd may deem sppropriat6 to determine compliance of the Property
with thls sectlon of lhe M of Trust. Any inspec{ion$ or tesls made by Londer shall be for Lsnde/s purpo6e8 only and shsll not ba
oonstrued to create any responsibility or liability on the part of Lender to Grantor or lo any other psrson. Th€ representations and
warrantles conlain€d herein are bssed on Graniofs du€ diligence in investigating the Property for Hezardous Substances. Grantor
hereby (1) rel€ases and waivss any futuro claims agalnst Lender for indemnity or contribution in lhe event Grantor becomes llable for
cloanup or other cosls under any such laws; and (2) agrees to indemnit, dofend, and hold harmless Lender againsl any and all
clalms, losses, llabilities, damages, ponalties, and e)eenses which L€rder may directly or indiroctly suslain or suffer resulting from a
bredch of this seciion of the D6€d of Trust or a9 a oonsequonce of any ua6, generation, manutac{ure, storage, disposal, release or
throaton€d t€lease occuning prior to Granlor's ownorship or lnlerest in th6 Property, whelher or not the sam6 wa8 or shouH have
beon known to Grantor. Tho provlsions of thls rection of lho Da€d of TruEt, includlng the obligation to indemniry and defend, 6hall
survi\re the psyment of the lndebtednoss and the salisfac{ion and r€conveyance of lhe lian of thie Deed of Trust and shall not b€
affectad by Lende/s acguisition of any int6i€st in the Property, whether by for€closur€ or othe.wise.

l{ullanco, Warto. Grantor shall not cause, conduct ot po,mil any nulsan@ nor commit, p6rmit, or suffer any stripping of or wasle on
or to the Prop€rty or any portion of lhe Propo.ty. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Grantor will not remove, or grant to
any olher party the right to r€rflovo, any llmb6r, minerals (induding oil and gas), coal, clay, scoria, soil, gravel or rock produc-ts
without Lend6/s prior writton consent.

Ramovrl ol lmprovornentr. Grantor shall not demolish or r6mov6 any lmprovements from the Real Property without Lender's prlor
written consent. As a condilion lo the removal of eny lmprovemonts, Lender may r€quire Granlor to make anangoments satistgctory
to Londor to replace such lmprovements wilh lmprovements of al lcasl 6qual valu6.

Lende/r Rlght to Enttr. Lender and Lende/g agents end roprossnlallvos may enter upon lhe Real Proparty at all reasonable timos to
attend to Lende/s interosts and to inspect the Real Property for puQose$ of Granto/s compliance with lhe terms and condltions of
this Deed of Trust.

Complltnce with Govommontal Requlremontr. Grantor shall promplly comply wilh 8ll laws, ordinancos, and Egulations, now or
hereaner in effect, of all 0owmmental authorities applicable to lhe use or occupancy of the Property, including without limltatlon, tho
Americans With Disabililies Act. Grantor may conto8t in good taith any sucfi law, ordinance, or rsgulation and withhold compliancs
durlng any proceoding, including appropdate appeals, so long as Grantor has notiliod Lender in writlng prior to doing so and so lor€
as, in Lende/s sole opinion, Lende/s interests ln the Property ars not jeopardized. Lender may require Grantor to post adequate
security or a surety bond, roasonably setislactory lo Lender. to protect Lsnde/s interesl.

Outy to Prot ct Grantor agrces neilher lo abandon or leave unatiended the Property. Grantor shall do all other acts, in additlon lo
those acts set torth abov€ in this saction, which from th6 chsracter and us6 of the Property arE r€asonably neoessary to prolect and
pressrve the Property.

DUE ON SAIE . COI{SENT BY LEI{D€R. Lender may, al Lende/s option, declaro immedialely due and payable all sums secured by thls
Do€d of TruBt upon th6 36le or lransfer, without Lender's prlor writton consent, of all or any parl of th6 Real Property, or any inter€gt in lho
Real Proporty. A 'gale or lransfsru means the conveyance ol Real Property or any right, title or interest in the Real Properly; whether logal,
bsnelicial or 6quitabl6: whethor voluntary or involuntary; whothor by oulright sale, deed, inslallmont sale conlract, land conlract, contracl
for deed, leas€hold intsrosl wlth a term groeler ihan thrse (3) yerrs, l6a8e-optlon contracl, or by sale, 6ssignm6nt, or transfer of any
beneficial intorest ln or to any land |rust holding tille to lhe Real Property, or by any othor method of conveyance of an lnt€rest ln lhe Real
Property. However, this option shall nol be exercl8od by Londor if such exercFe ir prohibited by foderal law or by Oregon law.

TAXES AND U8il3. The tollowing provisions relating to the taxes and li8ns on the Property aro part of this E)€ed of Trustl

Paymont Grantor shall pay when due (and ln all ovonts prior lo delinquency) all taxes, sp€cial taxes, assessments, cfiarges (induding
waler and 6ower), tlnes and impo8llions levlBd again8t or on account of the Property, and shall pay when due all clalms tor work done
on or for services rendered or meterial fumishad to tho Propariy. Grantor 6hall mainlain the Property froe of all liens having priorlly
over or egual to the interest of Lender under this Deed of Trust, excepl lor thc lisn of tax€s and assessmenls not due and excapl as
otherwlse providod in this Deod of Trust.

Rlght to Contert. Grantor may withhold payment of eny tax, a88essment, or claim in connection with a good lalth dlspute over thg
obligatlon to pay, 80 long as Lends/s inter€st in the Property is not jeopardized. lf a lien arises or is fil€d a8 a rosult of nonpaymsnt,
Grantor shall within fffte€n (15) days 8frer the lien arises or, if a lien is filed, within fitleen (15) days afier Grantor has notlce of tho
liling, soqrr€ the dischaee of th6 lien, or lf requested by Londer, deposil with Lender cash or a sufticlent co.porate 3urety bond or
other security satisfactory to Lend€r in an amount sufllclent lo discharge the lion plus any co8t$ and atlornoys'f€es, or other drarges
lhat could accrue as a r€sult of a foredosure or sale under tho lien. ln any contest, Grantor shall debnd its€lf and Londer and shall
satisry any adversa judgment before enforcemenl againsl the Property. Grantor shall nam€ Lender as sn additional obligeo undor any
surety bond fumished in the contesl proceedings.

Eyldonce of Paymant, Grsntor shall upon demand fumlsh to Lender salisfaclory evidence of payment of lhe lax€s or assessm€nts and
shall authorize lhe appropriate govemmental offlcidl to delivgr to L€nder al any tims a wrilten statement of the lax€s and a8s€ssments
against the Property-

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 169



DEED OF TRUST
(Gontinued)Loan l,lo: 9334830669 Page 3

Nollco of Conttructlon. .Grantor shall notify Lender at least Rfioen (15) days bafore any work is commencod, any seryic8s are' furniEhed,.or any materials are supplied to lhe Property, if any mechanic's lbn; materialmei's lien, or olher lion couH 5e aseerted on
account ol the work, services. or materials. Granlor wlll upoi request of Londor fumigh lo Lerder advance assurances satisfaclory to
Lencler that Grantor can and will pay th6 cost of suc{r improvamenls.

PROPERW DAIIIAGE II{SURAIICE, The following provlsions relating to insuring the Property aro a part of this De€d of Trust.
lllalntenlnce ol lnrurrnce. Gtsntor shall procure and mainlaln policies of fire insurance wlth standard extended cowrage
endsrsemonts on a replacemont basis for the full lnsurable value covEring all lmprovemenls on the Red propeily in an amou-nt
sufflcient to avoid gpplication of any coinsuranc€ clause, and wilh a standard mortgigee clause in lavor of LendEi. Grantor shall also
procure and mainlain @mpreh€nsivo general liabillty in8uranco in such overag€ amounts as Lender may requ$t wilh Truslee and
Lendar being nemed as addltlonal insureds in such liabllity insurance policies. Additionally, Granlor- shail maintein such other
insurance, including,but not limitsd to ha:ad, businoss Intsrruption, end boiler insurance, as Lender may reasonably require. pollcies
shall be wrilt€n in form, amounts, cowrages and basis rossonably acceptable to Lender and issued by a complny br companies
reasonably accsptabla to Lender. Grsntor, upon request of L€nder, will deliver to tender from time to time the poiicieb or certiilcates
of insurance in form sallsfaclory to Londgr, including stipulations thal coverag€s will not be cancell€d or dlminished without al least
lhirty (qq) days prlor written notlco to Lender. Edr insurance policy also shall lndude an endorsement providirE thal covorage ln
favor of L€nder will not bo impalred in any way by any act, omiosion or defgult of Grantor or any olhai per8on. Should the-Real
lropotty tJe locat€d ln an srea designated by the Administrator of th€ F€deral Em€ryency Managem€nt Agency as a spscisl flood
hazard area, Granlor agrse8 to oblain and malntain Federal Flood ln$rmnco, if available, for ihe {ull unpaid principai balance'of the loan
and any prior liens on the properly se@ring the loan, up to lhe maximum policy limits set under the Nauonal Flood lnsurance program,
or as otherwise required by Lender, and to maintain such insurance tor the term of the loan.

Appllcatlon ol Procesdr, Grantor shall promplly notity Lender of any loss or damage to th6 Property. Lende' may make proof of losg
if Grantor fails to do so wilhin lifteen (15) days of the casualty. Vvholher or not Lende/s sscurity i8 impaired, Lend€r may, at L€nd€fs
eleclion, r€ceiv€ and retaln lhe proce€ds of any lnsurance and apply th6 procaeds lo the reduction of the lndebtedness, payment of
any lien affecting the Property, or the r€storalion and rapalr of lhs Proporty. lf Lerrdor elocts lo apply th6 proceods to restoration and
ropair, Grantor thall repair or Gplace the damaged or destoyed lmpmvements in a manner sstlsfaclory to Lendcr. Lender shall, upon
satistactory proof of such expendilure, pay or r€imbur8e Grantor from the proceeds for the reasonable cost of r€pair or restoration if
Granlor ls not ln defaull under this Deed of Trust. Any procaeds which have not been disbursed wlthin 't 80 days after lheir r€colpt
and which Lender has nol committed to lhe t€pair or re6toration of the Property shall be used first to pay any amount owing lo L€nder
under thls Do€d of Trust, lhen to pay accrued inlerest, and lhe remainder, if any, shall be applied to the principal balancs of lh6
lndebt€dness. lf Lender holds any proceods aftor payment in full of lhe lndebtedness, such procaeds shall be paid to Granlor as
Grantor's inlersst6 may appoar.

Gr.nto/! Ropott on lntur.nce. Upon request of Lender, however not more lhan once a y6ar, Grantor shall fumish to Lender a report
oneach€xislingpolicyof lnsuraneshowing: (1) thenameoflheinsurer; (2) therisksinsured; (3) lheamountofth€poticy; (4)
the property insured, the then cunent replacement value of such property, and the manner of delermlning thal valuo; and (5) the
expiration date of the policy. Grantor shall, upon request of Lender, have an indep€nd6nt epprais€r Batistactory to Lcnder determine
the cash valu€ replacsment co6t of the Property.

LENDER'3 EXPENDITURES. lf arry aclion or ptoeeding is conrnened that urould mat€rially afbct Lerdefs inter€st in the Property or it
Grantor fails to corndy with any provislon of this De€d of Trust or any Rdabd Docrrnents, iftrrding but not limiH to Granto/s failure to
discfia€€ or pay $rhen chJe any arbunta Grantor is r€(srir€d to dFctnrye or pay under thls D6€d of Trust or any Rdabd Doqfi€nts,
l€rd€r on Grantofs behalf mry (but shall not be oblig&t to) take any actlon that tsxler c,oqrB apgopriate, induding but not limit€d to
discha€ir€ or paylng all tsx€s, lierrB, searrity intef€sts, encunbranc€s srd o0r€r daims, at any tirne levied or placd m 0tc Prop€rty end
prying all costs for insuring, maintalnirg drd prcse ring the Property. All sr/ch oQenditur€s iruJfl€d or pqid bV torder br such pJpce
will tlEn bear intet€st at the rab drargEd un&r the Nob frorn ths date indrfl€d or paid by !.encler to the date of rcpa),ment by Grantor. All
sr.rcfi eperreo will becorne a part of the lndebt€drEss and, ai lende/s option, will (A) bo pry$le m derflard; (B) be ded to the
balance of tho tlob and be apportioned anbng and be payablewith any installment payrnents to b€@rE due durlng either (1) the t€rm of
arry apdicaue in$narE Folicy: or (2) the runair{rB term of the Nob; or (C) be teated s a balloon payrFnt urhlch will be due and
pryable at the Note's maturity. The Deed of Trust abo will seq.rc payrrEnt of theee arounts. Smfi right shall be in addltion to all other
rights and rcflEd€s to which lgder rnay be entited upon D6fault.

WARRAilTY; DEFENSE OF I]TLE. The following provi$ions relating to ownorship ot the Proporty al€ a pa.t of thls Do€d of Trusl:

Tltlo, Grantor wan8nts that: (a) Grantor holds good and marftetable tltlo of rocord to the Proporty in feo slmple, free and cloar of all
liens and encumbrancee other than those cet forth in lhe Real Property description or in any lille insurence policy, litlo reporl, or ftnal
title opinion issued in favor of, 8nd accepted by, Landor in conneclion urith this D€ed of Trust, and (b) Grantor has tho full right,
power, and authority to execute and deliver ihis Deed of Trust to Londer.

Dolcnre of Tltlr. Subiect to lhe exceplion in the paragraph above, Grantor warrants srd will forever d€fend lho tille to th€ Property
against lhe lawful claims ol all p€rsons. ln lhe avent any action or pro@eding is @mmenced lhat questionc Granto/s tltl6 or ihe
lnleresl ot Truclee or Lender under this Doed of Trust, Grantor shall defand the action at Grantor's sxponre. Grantor may be lhe
nomlnal parly ln such procoeding, but Lender shall bo enliiled lo participate in the procecding and lo be represented ln thB procsoding
by counsel of Londs/s own choice, and Grantor will dolivor, or caus€ lo be dolivored, to Londer such inslruments as Lender may
request from time to lime to permit such participation.

Compllrnca Wlth L.wa. Granlor warrants that the Proporty and Grantor's use of the Propedy complios wlth all existing applicable
laws, ordinances, and rogulations of governmental authorities.

$uillvrl of Reprrrentrtlona rnd Wamntllc. All repr€sentations, waranties, and aorcerrents nde by
shall survive th€ gxecution and &liv€ry of this De€d of Trust, shall be continuing in natu€. and shall
untll sucft tinE as Grantofe lndebtedness shall be paid in full.

Grantor in this De€d of Trust
rerrEin in full force and €ffect

COilDEilXATlOll. Tho following provisions relating lo condemnation proceedlngs are a parl of this De€d ot T.ust:

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 170



DEED OF TRUST
Loan No: 933'fE30869 (Continued) Rage I

Proceodhg!. lf any prooeeding in condennration is ffled, G.rantor *rall promptly notifu Lencbr in writing. snd Glantof, shall pro.np$y
take sucfi stepe I mE F. n€cefary to debnd tlre aclion ano ottiin tti€ ;avrlad: Ciranbr rnay U!' ttre naninat party'in slcrrpro@eding' but L€rd€r shall be entitl€d to partidpatie in the procee<frg fid to be Epresent€d in ttre goceeoing uy courba of i13 o$rnchoice' and Grantorwill ddiv€r or cause to be cbli\,Er€d to tgroeriuctr instrumdnts ana Oocumdntation ajnray Ue €quest€d bylender ftom tirne to tirne to pemit such participation.

AppilcaUon ot l{et Procoods' lf all or atry paft of the.f'ropgrty is condeffited by enrinmt <bnnin proeedlngs or by any pro€€dlrg or
purdrase in lieu of condernnafion, lender may at ite election reqyir€ thar ail or irry portion of the net proedts ot $re airird b. 

"pdbdto the lndebtedn€8s or ihe repair or r€storaton of the Property. fte net procee*; dt tre auraro shdl ;ne6n the a,vard after paymb'nt of
all masonable costs, e)(p€nse8, ard attomeys' bec irnnred by Trustoe or Lencler in conneciion with the condennation.

lfPOSlnOil OF TAXE3' FEES AllD CIIARGES BY GO\rERI{ilENTAL AUTHORIflES. The follouring provistons rotating to governmental
taxes, fees and chargos 8ro I part of lhis Deed ot TruEt:

Currant Trxe!, Ferr .nd Chargcr, Upon roquesl by Lender, Grantor shall execule such documents in oddition to thts Deed ol Trust
and take whatever othor action is reguested by Lender to perfect and conlinue Lende/s lion on the Real proporty. Grantor shali
roimbuaae Lender for all taxes, as doscribed below, together wlth all exponscs incuned in recordlng, pertecilng or'conitnuing lhis Deed
of Trust, including wilhoul limitatlon all laxes, fees, documentary stanips, ard othor charyes for iliordlng oi regislering ttr'is Oeeo ot
Trust.

Terol. The following shall conslitute laxos lo which this section applies: (1) a specitic tax upon this type of Deed of Trust or upon
8ll or any part of the lndobiedness secured by thls Deed of Tru3t; (2) a specitic tax on Grantor wirich Grontor is authorized or
required lo doduct from payments on lhe lndebtednBs socursd by thls type of Deert of Trust; (3) a tax on thls type of Deed of T.uBt
chsrg€able against the Lender or tho holder of lh6 Note; and (4) a epeciffc lax on all or any porllon of lhe indsblednese or on
payments of principsl and intaresl made by Grantor.

Suboqu.nl Tare!. lf ary tax to which this section aFli6 i6 enaded sub€€quent to the date of this Deed of Trust, this e\rent shall
ha\,e the 9alrc effecl ao an Event of Default, and L€nder rnay e[€rcisa any or all of its a\railsle rcnFdes for an Erent of Defiault as
prot ided belo^, uriless Grantor either (1) pE/6 th€ tax before lt becclnes delinquern, or (2) cont€sts the tax as provid€d abo,e ln th€
Ta)cd ard Lierls sedion and depcits with t-encler cash or a sufndent @morate surety bond or ottrer security satisfa{tory to l€nder.

SECURITY AGREEIIIEI{T; FINANCING STATEilEI{TS. The followlng provisions relating to this D6€d of Trust as a security ag.eoment 616 e
part of this De6d of Trust:

S.curlty Agrccmont. This lnstrument thall conFtilute a Security Agrsement to the €xtent any of the Prop€rty constitutes fixtures, and
L€nder Bhall have all of the rights of a sec-ured party under the Unifom Commercial Code as amend€d from time to iime.
Securlty lnlar.st, Upon requesl by Lender, Grantor shall take whatevor action is requested by Lender to porfecl and conlinu€ Lendo/s
securlty interesl in tho R€nts and Persooal Property. ln addilion to recordlng this Deed of Trust in the real property records, Lender
may, al any_lime and withoul turlhor authorization from Grantor, lile oxeculed counterparts, copies or reproduclions of this Deed of
Trust as a financing statemenl. Grantor shall reimburse Lsnder for all expens€B inqined in ierfecting'or conilnuing lhis socurily
lnterest. Upon default, Grantor shall not remove, sever or d€tach the Pergonal Property from ths Propertl Upon defauli Granlor ghail
assemble any P€rsonal Property not affixed to iho Property in a manner and at a placo rGasonably convenienl lo Granlor and Lender
and make it availabl€ to L€nder wilhin three (3) days afier r€ceipt of writlen demand from Lend€r lo lhe extent p6rmlfi6d by appllcable
law.

Addrelre!. The mailing addresses of Grantor (deblo0 and Londer (6ecur€d party) from which information concerning the securlty
interest granted by thls Deed of Trugt m8y bo obtalnod (each ss required by the Unitorm Commorcial Code) are as sleted on the firit
page ot this Deed of Trust.

FURTHER ASSURANCES; ATTORIIEY-|I|.FACT, The tollowing provisions olating to further assuranceo and attomey-in-fact are a part of
this Deed of Trust:

Futther Atruranco!. At €ny tiryF, and ftom tirp to Urne, upon req,re6t of Len<br, ffior will nEke, €D(6qrte *d ctdiver, or wlll cause
to be nade, eD€ctied or delivered, to bnd€r or lo lendefs dedgn*, and whgn requ€sted by Le.der, canse to b6 fled. r€oord€d,
r€filed, or rereorded, c the c6€ ray be, at $rch iirrFs and in eucfi offoes and plffi 6 brder nE:f d€em eproprlaie, any rd dt
$JCh rvortgFg€s, doeds of trust, secudv doods, soerity a0r6efiEnts, financing stdeflrnts, @ntinudon stat€nFnts, instrunEnts of
further *eurane, certificates, td dh€r dcrrEnts ar ma:t, in the sde opnion of l-sder. be ncsry or dEsirade in order to
ofuuate, @nplete, perftct, continrre, or pr€€dve (f) C:ranto/s oblhdions under the hlote, this fted of Trust, 

'ld 
the Fld8igd

DoqrnEnts, td (2) the lims and se<uriV int61€sts crBded by this De€d of Trusil as lirst ad prior lisls m the Property, wtEther
no\i\t oltlltod or h€rsaner aoquird by Grantor. t rd€ss fotriblted by lsw or Lfid€r ag[€6 to the oontrary in witing, gantor shdl
lgnhw* l-txtds for sll costs ad eperue incunsd ln onnectlon wlth th€ nEtters rcfuned to ln thls psragraph.

Attotney-ln-F.ct lf Granbr fails to do any of the things rebn€d to in tho p.ecedlng paragraph, bnder mry do so for ard in the nanr
of Grantor 6nd at Granto/s e)gense. Fs such purpG6, Grantor her€by irl€vosly appoints lencbr s Grantor6 attorney-in-fact for
the purpce of rnaking, o(oqrtlng, deli\€ring, filing, rcaordirE, arrd <lolrg all other thinge as rnay be n€6sdy or deoiraue, in l€ndefg
sole opinion, to aocqnplish the mdFrs r€bn€d to in th€ pr€cding paraSraph.

FULL PERFORilIAiICE. lf Grantor pays dl the lndettedn€ss u/hen due, and dhe,wise pertuyns all the oblbations inpGod upon Grantor
under thls Eb€d of Trust, l-sd€r shall e)(eqrte and ddi\,s to TrustBe a request ficr full rccorneyance and shall o(ecub and ddiver to
Grentor sult*le statement$ of tetmlnaton of arry finarrcing statedient on ffle wldencirg l'3rde/B sedrity intar€st in the Rsrts and th€
FerEond Property. Any rcconveyane f€e reqired by law shall be pdd by Grantor, if permitt€d by applicable law.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT. Each of the following, at Lender's option. shall constituto an Event of Delault under this Deed ol Trustr

Prymont Dellult, Grsntor fails to mako any payment when duo under the lndebtednoss.

Other Detault8. Grantor fails to @mply with or to perform any other term, obligation, covenant or condition conlainsd in this D€ed of
Trust or in any of the Related Doqrmgnts or lo comply with or to perform any term, obligalion, covenant or condition contalned in any

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 171



DEED OF TRUST
Loan No:9334830669 (Continued) page S

other agle€rnenl between L€nder and Grantor.

Compllrnce Dctrult, Failure lo comply wlth soy olhor term, obllgatlon, covenant or condition contoined in this D€ed ol Trust, th6 Nol6
or in any of lhe Relatod Oocumenls.

Dofault on Othor Prymentr. Failur€ of Grantor withln the time required by this Deed of Trust to make any paymoni for taxe8 or
insuranco, or any other payment necessary to prevent filing ot or to etfcct discharg€ of any lien.

Falsa Statrments. Any wananty, r€pGEentation or statement rnade or fumishod to Londer by Grantor or on Granto/s behalf und€r
this Deed of Trust ot the Related Docurnenta ls falsg or misleading in any matorlal respoct, either now or at tho time made or furnbhed
or becorlEs ful8e or misleading at any tlme thereafter.

llclbctlve Colhbrrllz.tlon. This Deed of Trust or any of the Related Documenls oeases to be in full force and effect (including lailure
of any collsteral docum€nt to ct€ale I valid and perlectsd sscudty lnleresl or lien) al any lime and for any reason.

De.th or lnlolrroncy. The dissolutlon of Grantor's (regardless of whether €leclion lo conlinue is mado), any membor wlthdraws from
the limited llabllity company, or any olh6r terminalion of Grantor's oxlstance as a going businegs or the death of any member, lhe
insolvency of Grantor, the appointment of a recelwr tor any part of Grantor's property, eny assignmont lor ihe benefil ol croditors,
any lype of creditor workoul, or lhe commencement ot any proc€eding under any bankruplcy or insolvency laws by or against
Grantor-

Ctrdltor ot Fotfoltur" Procr.dlngi. Common@ment of foredosure or forfeiture proceedings, whether by judicial procesding, self.help,
repossession or any olher m€thod. by any credltor of Granlor or by any govemmenlal agency against any proporty securlng the
lndebtedn€ss. This indudes a gamishment of any of Granto/s accounts, including deposit accounts, with Lerder. However, lhis
Evenl of D€fault shall noi apply if there is a good failh dispute by Granlor as lo the validity or r€asonabhnc$s of the claim which 18 tho
basis of lhe croditor or forleiture prcc€eding and if Granlor givso Lendor wrltt€n nolica of lho crodllor or forfoituro procoeding and
doposits wilh Lender monies or a surety bond for the crodllor or torfoiturs proceeding, in an amounl delermined by Lerd€r, in ils sole
discretlon, as belng an adoquate ,eserw or bond for the dlspute.

Breech ol othet Agtoomont Any br€acfi by Grantor under the terms of any olher agrBenFnt betwoen Grantor and L€nd€r that is not
renndied within any grece period provided th6r€in, lncluding without limitation any agro€ment concernlng any lndebtedrns8 or other
obligation of Grantor to Lender, whether existing now or later.

Eyontr Atfeetlng Guarantor, Any of the preceding events occurs wlth respecn to gny Guarantor of any of the lnd€btedness o. any
Guarantor dies or becomes incomp€tenl, or a€vokes o. disputes the validity of, o. liablllty under, any Guaranty of lhs lnd€btedness.

Advorsg Chrnge. A m&rid d\rerse change ocojrE ln Grantofs finandel condition, or bnd€r bdierieo the prcpoct of pa)rnEnt or
perfonnan@ ofthe lndettedness is lrrqcair€d.

ln.ecudly. Londer in good tailh b€lieves itself insecure.

RIGHTS AND REIIEDIES Otl DEFAULT. lf an Event of Default occr.irs und€r this DFed of Trust, at any tinn ther€aner, Trustoe or Lerder
may e)(erdse any one or rnore of the iollorving righte and urredles:

Elccdon ol Remedler. Ehctlon by L6nder to pursue eny remody shall not exclude pursuit of any other remedy, and an eleclion to make
€xpendituros or to take sction to perform an obligation of Grantor under lhis Deed of Trust, afler Granto/8 failure to perform, shall not
aftecl Lendefs right to dedare a detault and exercise ils romedios.

Accalsruts lndeblBdnsra. Lender shall havo th6 right at its option without nolico to Grantor lo declare the entire lnd€btodn$s
immodiatoly duo and payeble, includlng any propaymsnt psn8lty which Grantor would be r€quirsd to gay.

Foreclorurre. With respec't to all or any part of the Real Property, th6 Trustee shall have the right to foreclose by notice and sale, and
Londer shall hew the tight to foreclose by judicial torgclosure, in either case in accodanoe with and to thg full extent providod by
applicable law. lf this D€€d of Trust is foreclosed by judicial foreclosur€, Lerder will be enlitled to a judgment which will prov'do that
if the foteclosure sale proceds arc insufficient to satisfy the judgment, execution may issue for the amount of th6 unpaid balanoo of
the judgment.

UCC Romedlet. With rosp€ct to all or any part of the Forsonal Property. L€nder shall hav€ all the rhhts and remedies of a securd
party under tho Uniform Comfiiercial Code.

Colloct Ronb. Lender shall have the right, rrrllhout notlce to Grantor lo tal(s possossion of and manage the Propsrty and collect lhe
Ronts, including amounls past due and unpaid, and spply the net procoed$, over and sbow L€nder's costs, agalnst the lndebtedness.
ln furlherance of this right, Lender may require any lenant or olher user of th6 Prop€.ty to meke paymonts ol rent or use foes directly
to Lender. lf the Rents are collected by Londer, thsn Grantor irevocably deslgnales Lendet as Granlo/8 attomey-in-fact to €ndorce
instrumenlB recolvod in paymenl thoroof in the namo of Grantor and to negotiate the samo and collect the proceeds. Paymentr by
lenants or othor uoers to Lender in rosponse lo Lsnde/s demand shall satisfy the obligations lor which the peymenis are made,
whelher or not any proper ground3 for the demand oxlst€d. Lender may exercise its rlght3 under this subparagraph elth€r in person,

by agent, or through a recalver.

Appolnt Recelver. Londcr shall havo tho righl to have I recoiver appointed to tako possession ot all or any^ part of the Property, with
the power to protect and preserve the Pro-perty, to operalo the Prbperty ptsceding foreclosure or salo, and to colloct th€ Rsnts ftom

ttre irroperty dnd appty the proceeds, over bnd'abow the cosl of the rocaivership, aga.inst the.lnd.cbledn6ss'.-The rsoeiver r-lay sjeryo

*itt ou{uo'io it peiiriireti oi riw. r-6noCrs rtght to the appointmeni of a recoivir shill sxisl whether or nol tho apparent value of lhe

Froperty oxcsedb tho hdebiodness by a subslantiat amoi.rirt. Employmont by Lender $h8ll not disqualify a psFon from seMng 8s a

rec€ivef ,

Tenancy rt Sulfgrlnce. lf Grantor t€rnalns ln pGs€csidt of the ftopetty €fter the,Prop€rq is- ?old a8 prwid€d So\E or L€nd€r

ottrerwise besnes entiu; 6;;;;;;o.t ot in5-*oputty 
"p.r, 

oetauh of Grantor, cranior ahail b€odYF a tenant ai sufferance of

renoer or tne purcf,as€r;iih;{r6p.ttv 
""oitrtt, 

at Gnoeraoption, eitter (1) pry a rwn*'le rental br the use of the Property' q
(2) vacate ttxi ftop€ty inrnediately Lpon the dil€nd of l-ender'

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 172



DEED OF TRUST
(Gontinued)Loan No: 9334830669 Page 6

Othrr Remedle!. Trustee or Lender 6hall have any other rlght or r€medy provided in thls Deed of Trust or the Note or available at law
or in oquity.

l{otlco of Sal.. Lender shall give Granlor reasonable notice of the time and place of any public sale of the P6rsonal Proporty or of lhe
time afl€r which any privste sale or olher intond€d disposiiion of the Personal Proporty is to be made. Reasonable notice ihalt mean
notlce given at least fifteen (15) days before the time of tho sale or disposition. Any sale of the Personal Property may be made in
coniunc{lon with any salo of th€ Real Property.

Sal6 of tho Ptoporty, To the extent p€rmitted by applicable law, Grantor hereby waives any and all rights to have lhe Properly
matEhalled. ln exercising ils rights and remedies, tho TruEtee or Lender shall be free io sell all or any part of the Properly togelh€r or
separately, in one sale or by separate sales. Lender shall b€ entitl€d to bid at any public sale on all or eny porlion of lhe Proporty.

Attomoy!' Feer; Expenroe. lf terder institutee any suit or adion to enbre any of the t€rns of this Deed of Trust, Londer shall bo
enut€d to rscover sucf! surn as the court rnay adjudge rwr*le a8 attorn€ys bes at trlal and Lpon any appal. meth€r or not dry
court aclion is inoh,Ed, and to the e)(bnt not prohibitecl by law, all rHson$le €Dpen8€s tender incUrs that in bndeds oplnim a.e
n€ce68ary at any tirne for the proteciion of its interBt or th€ enforcenent of its nghts sfdl beconF a pert of the lndobtedness pqrable
on dernand and shall be6r Interest at the lW rate torn the date of the enendfule until r€pald. egers* cowred by this paragraeh
include. without limitation, ho ner subject to arry limits uncler eFplicable law, lsnde/s atomeys' bes and lendeCs l€gEl oQ€rBes,
wh€ther or not ther€ is a lawsuit, induding attomeys tses and oeen8es for bankrLptcy proceodings (irduding efiort8 to modify or
vacate any automatic stay or iniunc{ion), appeds, and any andcipded postjudgnrent colledlon s€rvices, the cost of seanhirg
reco{ds, obtaining title eports (induding bredcurc reports), sun€yoGr' r€ports, and appraisal fres, title insuran€, and bes for the
Truste€, to the oxtent p€rmitted by applicaHe law. Grantor also will pay any court costs, in adclition to all other $fiE prorrided by
law.

Rlgltb ol Truitoe, Truslee shall have all of the rights and dulies of Lender as set forth in lhis section.

POWERS Al{D OBLICATIOilS OF TRUSTEE. The following provisions relating to the powers and obllgations of Trustee arc part of this
D€ed of T.ust:

Pouon ol Trurtge. h addillon to all powers of Truslee arising a8 a msttsr of law, Trustee shall hav6 the por4rer to take the following
actions with respoct to lhe Property upon the wrltten request of Lendgr and Grantor: (a) join in prcpadng and filing a map or plat of
the Real Proporty, including the dedication of str€ets or oth6r rights to lh€ publici (b) join in granting any easement or creating any
reelriclion on lho R€al Property; and (c) ioin in any subordination o. olher agr€ement affecting this De€d of Tru$t or the inlerest of
Lender under this Deed of Trusl.

Obllgadonr to Notlty. Truste€ shall not be obllgated to notiff any olher party of a pending sale und€r any olher lrusl de€d or li6n, or
of any action or pmoeeding in which Granlor, Lender, or Trusteo shsll b€ a party, unless the actlon or proceedir€ i8 brought by
Trusleo.

trult o. Trustee shall meet all qualmcations reguir€d for Trusteo under applicsblo law. ln addition to the rights and rBmsdlos 8ol
forth above, with r6sp6ct to all or any part of lhe Property, the Trustee shall have the right to foreclose by nollce and sale, 8nd Lerder
shall have tha right to loreclose by Judicial forcclosure, in ellher case in accordance with and to the full extent provld€d by applicable
law.

Succo$or Trulteo. Lender, at Lende/s option, may from time to lime appoint a successor Trustee to any Trustee appoinled under
this Deed of Trust by an instrument executsd and acknowledged by Lender and rocorded in lhe offie,e of tho rscord€r of Washington
Counly, Slate of Oregon. Tho instrumenl shall contain, in addltlon lo all other matlers rcquired by state law, lhe names of the original
Lender, Trustee. and Grantor, the book end pag6 wh6re this Deed of Trust lB recorded, and lhe name and addrqss of thg successor
trustes, and lh€ instrumant shall be €xecutod and acknourledged by Lgndar or its succe8sors in inter€st. The successor truol€e,
without conveyance ol the Proporty, shall succeed to all the litle, power, and dull€s confened upon lhe Trustoe in this D6€d ot Trust
and by applicsble law. This procedure for subslitulion of Trustee shall govem to the exclusion of all olher provisions for substitution.

NOTICES. Any notice required to be glven under this D6od of Trust, including without limitation any notico of default and any notice ot
sale Bhall be given in writing, and shall be eff€ciive when aclually deliv€lod, when actually r€ceived by telefacsimlle (unhss othaMis€
required by law), when deposited with a nationally recognlzed ovcrnight courler, or, if mailod, when deposited in the Unlted States mail, as
first clas8, certified or rogistered mail poslage prepaid, direcfed to tho addtesses shown no6r the beglnning of thls Deed ol Trust. All
copies of notices of forec-losure from the houer of any lign which has priority over this De€d of Trust 3hall be sent to Lend6/s addtess, as
shown near the boginning of this Deed ol Trust. Any party may cfiange ils address for notic$ under this Deed of Trust by giving formal
written notice to the other parties, specltying that the purpose of the noth€ is to drange th€ pgrty's add€ss. For notlc€ purposes, Grantor
agrees to ke€p Lender intormed at all times of Granto/s currcnt addrsss. Unlese othemisc provided ol .equlred by law, if the'e ls more
than one Grantor, any notlce given by Lend€r to any Grantor is de€rnsd to bo notica given to all Grantors.

M]SCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. Th6 following miscellanoous provisions ar6 a pari of this Deed of Trust:

Amondmonb. This De€d of Trust, togelher with any Related Documents, constitute8 tho €ntire understanding and agreomenl of the
parties as to lhe malters s€l forth in this Deed of Trust. No alteration of or amendment to this tleed ol Trust shall be effectivo unless
given in writing and sign€d by lhe party or parties soughi lo be charged or bound by the alteration or amendment.

Annu.t Reportr. lf the Propety is used for purposes other than Granto/s r€6idene, Grantor shall fumlsh to Lerder, upon request a
crtified statement of rEt operating inconre rcceived forn the Property during Grantds pr€vicus fiscal year ln $ch iorm atd detail 6
l-ender shall requie. "Nei ogen[ing income" shall nEan dl cash receipts ftom the Roperty less all cash opendlfuree r* in
connedion with the operauon of the Property.

C.ptlon Hetdlngs. Caplion hoadings in lhis Dc€d of Trust at€ for @nvonience purposes only and aro not to be u$ed to interpr€t or
define lho provisions of this D€€d of Trust.

illergor. There shall be no mergor ol the intgrest ol oslate creetod by this De€d of Tru$t with 8ny-olhet intere8t or ostale in tho

Prop-erly at any time heltl by or lor the benefit of Lender in any capaclty, withoul lhe writlen consent ot Lender.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 173



PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
Map Grid:684-Ho

Census Tract:032103 Block: 2015

Neightborhood: Cpo 5 Sherwood-Tualatin N

School Dist BBJ Sheruvood

lmpr Type: T5 - Public Storage

Subdiv/Plat:

Land Use: 221 0

Std Land Use: IPUB - Public Storage, Warehouse

Zoning: Sherwood-Ll_PUD - Light lndustrial -Pud

LaVLon : 45.36 1 34205 I -122.83528494

Watershed: Fanno Creek-Tualatin River

Legal:2017-019 PARTITION PLAT, LOT 1, ACRES 6.14

Customer Service Department

Phone: 503.219.TR|O (8746)

Fax: 503.790.7872

Email: cs.oregon@firstam.com

Dale: 412612022

ASSESSMENT AND TAXATION
Market Land: $2,07 2,800.00

Market lmpr: $3,1 83,550.00

Market Special:$0.00

Market Total: $5,256,350.00 (2021 )

% lmproved: 6'l .00%

Assessed Total: $3,716,850.00 (2021 )

Levy Code:88.10

Tax: $68,726.07 (2021)

Millage Rate:18.4904

Exemption:

Exemption Type:

l

ITrsr American Title

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION
Owner: Langer Storage 2 LLC Parcel #: R2201837

CoOwner: Ref Parcel #:2S129DC00900

Site: 21900 SW Langer Farms Pkwy Sherwood OR 97140 TRS: 02S I 01W 129 / SE

Mail: 15585 SW Tualatin Sherwood Rd Sherwood OR 97140 County: Washington

Bedrooms:

Baths, Total:

Baths, Full:

Baths, Half:

Total Units:

# Stories:

# Fireplaces:

Cooling:

Heating:

Building Style: AOQ - Storage

PROPERTY C HARACTERISTICS
Total SqFt: 104,919 SqFt

First Floor: 104,919 SqFt

Second Floor:

Basement Fin:

Basement Unfin:

Basement Total:

Attic Fin:

Attic Unfin:

A$ic Total:

Garage:

Year Built:

Eff Year Built:

Lot Size Ac: 6.14 Acres

Lot Size SF: 267,458 SqFt

Lot Width:

Lot Depth:

Roof Material:

Roof Shape:

Ext Walls:

Const Type:

SALES AND LOAN INFORMATION
Owner Date Doc # Sale Price Deed Type

LANGER STORAGE 2 LLC O8l21l2O'18 58023 Deed

Loan Amt Loan Type

$5,530,000.00 Conventional

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations, warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 174



Assessor Map

.loe

*
't

\)

vt
Eu
il

H
a,
6
3
d)

FI

''l

B
CN

frrct AmericaoTitle

g8-30,.!

1:

li

l1
':

.1

ri

()

') tlr6ta'
a"E*

(,

(t

t

t
UJoz
5

T
,t
s

+
rtr $ t

it?'
' -,.'{l$f, ..

3Ytl .,1

Parcel lDl R2201837

Site Address: 21900 SW Langer Farms Pkwy

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,

wananties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 175



Street Map

lll.i r r I I I llji"t i lfil ; LLll
lrallyE TT R

$, c[a{runY D

wHS l'aloilE W^

etilfuRY D

5

I
l

T

I

*c

I
c
.t
L

G
N
19

I
.a
!

't
I

wtit cr

$
J)
rt

t
c

o

a

Firet American Title

J

RYtr^fi 5

CLTFFOI(i' C

lr- t-r r I

Parcel lD: R2201837

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,

wananties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 176



Aerial Map

Fitlst Ameriean Title

-nttt

Parcel lD: R2201837

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,
warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

TE H I'U R'

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 177



Flood Map

lafi.- lE
FLOOgt{rY

aha.6rl I llood

toF.. I
tl.E of msd.r.t fllnd h.!r{

tlnitr ot l6l' I too

trcr- lllblFE(al {i5ec.

!
*

%

\
tofi.. l

t .. lloodpbln mrpprd !y rpproximatr.
m.thodr; t.rr tlood llfirdonl 'i

ar. n.t d.t.rniFrd I
aa.{arr.d Go t Uoaa a lt?ror A to'la

I

3

Firct American Title

Parcel lD: R2201837

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,

warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or

completeness of information contained in this report.

5
EoR.- lE

!ar. noo{Flrin rshar. b.ar ffaed
arhL ttrllQlrrl

(
I

lqlla- r
naod b.:rrd

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 178



Zoning Map

HDR-PUD

WHg lsT € wa

I

L
G
N
19

!

F

s
J
E
I

J

iE

o

t
J

3

w ct lFFontJ
I ln-*- c

MF RYMAN g

l

Firct American Title

Parcel lD: R2201837

Sentry Dynamics, lnc. and its customers make no representations,
warranties or conditions, express or implied, as to the accuracy or
completeness of information contained in this report.

c9w Y cr

*-iK*
tu [3

ffi [dlrt- t!

HDR

RP
HDR-PU

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 179



After recording return to:

DEan T. Sandow
Farleigh Wada Witt
l2l SWMonison#600
Portlan4 Oregon 97204

Send ta:r stet€medts to:

Slpme & a'bofi-
No change

Washington County, Oregon
D.DBS
Stn=6 M FERNANDES
$10.00 $11.00 $5.00 s60.00

2018-058023
Ogl21l2018 12244:15 PM

$86.00
l, Richard Hobernlcht, Director otAssessment and Taxatlon and Ex-
Otffcio County Clerk for Washington County, Oregon, do hereby
certify that the wlthin irstrument ot writing was received and
recordcd in the book ol records ot said county.

Richard Hobemicht, Director of
Assessment and Taxation, Ex-Officio

BARGAIN AND SALE DEED

Ianger Family LL,C, an Oregon limited liability co$eany, Citmtor, conveys to Langer Storage ?LLC, an Oregon
limited tiability compmy, Grantee, ail dght, titlg and interest in the real propcfiy descdbed as follows:

Parcel l, PARTITION PLAT NO. 2011-019, recorded June 27, 2017, Recordeds No. 2017-
050998, in the Cify of Sherwood Coraty of Washinglon and State of Oregm.

Thc property is oth€rwisc loown as 21900 SW Langer Farms Parhray, Sherwood Oregon 97140- The true
consideration for fris conveyance is oths tlran monetary consideration.

BEFORE SIGI'TING OR ACCEPTTNG THIS INSTRIIMENT, TTIE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE
sHouLD TNQUTRE ABOUT TIrE PERSON'S RIGITTS, rF AIIY, UNDBRORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 195.305
TO 195336 AI{D SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPIER 424, OREGON IAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2TA 9 AND 17,

CHAPTER 855, OREGON I,AWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2TO7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2OIO. THIS
INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRtsED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN
VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LA}.ID USE LAWS AND RXGI.]I"ATIONS. BEF'ORE SIGNING OR
ACCEPTING Tlrrs TNSTRTTMENT, Tr#.PERSON ACQIIIRING FEE TITI,E TO TrrE PROPSRTY SHOULD
CHECK WTTH TI{E APPROPRTATE CITY OR COIINTY PI-{NNINC DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY TT{AT
THE I.INIT OF LAND BEING TRA}ISFERRED IS A LAWTULLY E$TABLISHED IOT OR PARCEL, AS
DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY TTIE APPROVED USES OF TTIE LoT OR PARCEL, TO
DETERMINE A}TY LIMTS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEEINED
IN ORS 30.930, AIID T0 INQLnRE ABOUT THE RTGHTS OF NEIGITBORTNG PROPERIY OWNERS, IF
ANY, tiNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND i95.305 TO 195.336 AND SBCTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424,
OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 A].ID 17, CIIAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2
TO 7, CHAPTER 8, ORBGON LAWS 2010.

g.
rrl

E t*&tDatcd as of 8.

LaugerFanilyLLC

By

1 _ BARGAIN AND SALE DEED
P:\DOCS\|ANFA]yi\45298\D OC\3 SM9726DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 180



STATEOF

Countyof

Sub'scribsal and sworn to bcfmc me oo Jrme ftfZOn, by Matthew D. Langer, presideat of Ianger Asset
Manageaaort Ina, an Orregon corporatio4 manager of Langer Family Oregou limitd liability compmy.

OFFIONATSTATiP
JENNIFEH HEAJSTHT
r.torArPtlBuconEgoN
coMirErsoit No, t5t/10

euo

2 -BARGA]N AI{D SAI,E DEED
P:\DOCS\LAl'lFAtrrI\4529 8\DOC\3 Sld9?26"DOC

35.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 181



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entify Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name His

04-26-2022
17:58

Registry Nbr Entity_
Tvp_e

Entily
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

1381386-98 DLLC ACT OREGON tt-21-2017 lt-2t-2022
Entity Name LANGER STORAGE ZLLC

Foreign Name

Type
PLACE OF

Addr I FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 21 SW MORRISON ST STE 6010

csz Fonrrauo bn 9tz0q Cou STAIES OF AMERICA

Staft Date
tt-2t-

t7 Resign DateType AGT REGISTERED AGENT

Name
Addr I 121 SW MORRISON #600
Addr 2

Gountry UNITED STATES OF AMERICAcsz

MiI

ADDRESS

Addr 1 DEAN T SANDOW - FARLEIGH \MADA WITT
Addr 2 2r sw MoRRrsoN #600

CSZ FORTLAND IOR 197204 STATES OF AMERICA

Type Resign Date

ER ASSET MANAGEMENT, TNC.of
Record
Addr 1 C/O EARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 12I SW MORRISON ST STE 600

STATES OF AMERICAcsz PORTLAND R

Name
Tvoe

Name
Status Start Date End DateBusiness Entity Name

EN CUR n-2t-20t7LANGER STORAGE 2LLC

Please read before ordering Apj_s.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 182



New Search S

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved

ActionImage I
Availablel

Transaction
Date

Effective
Date Status Name/Agent

Change Dissolved By

ffi IEN{BT.IDBD ANNUAL$*P lnrponr tt-23-202r FI

ffi InuBUoeD ANNUALkF hBponr tr-25-2020 FI

ffi hMENDEDANNUALq# heponr t2-09-2019 FI

ffi IAMENDED ANNUALEF hrponr tr-27-2018 FI

ffi IARTICLES oF
%F loncnmzATloN

tt-2t-2017 FI Agent

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 183



Registrynumber I 3Sl3 & b - qA FILED
Nol, 21 201?

OREGON
SECRETARY OF STATE

ARTICLES OI' ORGANIZATION

LANGER STORAGE ?LI.C
an Oregon limited tlabtltty compani

Tho undersigned natural person, aoting as organizer under the Oregon Limit€d Liability
Company Ac! adopts the following artioles of organization:

Articte 1

The name of the limited liability company is LANGER STORAGE 2LLC ("Company"),
and the Company will be perpetual.

Arttcd2

The Company will be managed by a manager as provided in an operating agreement.

Article 3

A manager of the Company shall not be personally liable to the Company or its members
for monetary damages for condust as a manager, exqept for liability of the manager for (a) acts or
omissions that involvo intentional.misoonduct or a knowing violation of the.law by tho manager,
(b) conduct that violates ORS 63.235 pertaining to unpormitted dishibutions to members or loans to
managers, or (c) any transastion from which the manager will personally reoeivo a benefit in money,
pioperty or services to whish the manager is.not legally entitled. If the Oregon Limited Liability
Company Act is amended to authorize limited liability company action further eliminating or limiting the
personal liability of managers, then the liability of a manager of the Company shall be eliminated or
limited to tle fullsst extent permitted by the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act, as amended. Any
repeal or modifioation of this Artiole by the members of the Company shall not affest adversely any right
or protrction of a manager of the Company existing at the time of such repgal or modification.

Artlcle 4

The Company shall indemniff eaoh managor as against all liability, damage, or expense

resulting from the fast that suoh person is or was a manag€r, to the ma:rimum bxtent and under all
oircumstances permitted by law, except that the Company shall not indemnifr a manager against liability,
damage, or expense resulting ftom the managefs gross negligenoe.

Article 5

The name of the initial registered agent is Dean T. Sandow, and the address of the initial
registered office is l2l SW Morrison #600, Portland, Orogon 97204. The address where the Corporation
Division may mail notices is c/o DeanT. Sandoq Farleigh Wada WiQ 121 SW Morison #600, Portland,
Orcgon 97204,

Article 6

The name and address of tho organizer is Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, l2l SW
Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon 97204,

I.ANGER STORAGE 2 LT,C

I -ARTICLES OF OROANIZATION
P :\DOCS\LAN FAM\I 0958\DOC\3 RF2592. DOC

ililililil I ilil |Uililil]iltil il ilil llt il138138698-18483712 Nsrf,oRe

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 184



l3B r38b-q8
Artlcle 7

The effeotive.date of the Company's existence is the date of filing of these Articles by the
Corporation Division.

I, the undersigned organizer, declare under penalties of perjury that I have examined the

foregoing, and to the best of my knowledgo and betief, these Articles of Organization are file, coreot,
and completo.

Dated November 20, 2017.

Dean T. Organizer

Tho person to contact about this filing is;

Dean T. Sandow
Farleigh WadaWitt
l2l SW Monison #600
Portland, Oregon 97204
503.228.6044
dsandow(Ofivwlaw.com

2 - ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
P:\DOCS\LANFAIvI\ I 0958DOC\3Rl2592.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 185



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fil ing i noregon. com

E.FILED
Nov 27, 2018

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

138138698

REGISTRATION DATE

11t21t2017

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER STORAGE 2 LLC

BUSINESSACTIVITY

TO OWN AND OPERATE STORAGE FACILITY

MAILING ADDRESS

CIO DEAN T SANDOW - FARLEIGH WADA W]TT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 6010

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 . LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 186



@
Corporation Division

www.filingi noregon"cem OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me

and is, to the best of my knowledge and beliet true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

11-27-2018

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 187



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fil i ng i noregon. com

E.FILED
Nov 23, 2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

138138698

REGISTRATION DATE

11t21t20't7

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER STOMGE 2 LLC

BUSINESS

TO OWN AND OPERATE STORAGE FACILITY

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW. FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 6010

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896. LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWIfi
121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 188



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i no i noreo on. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulently alter or othenuise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct,
and complete. Making false stratements in this document is against the law and may be penalized
by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIG SIGNATURE

NAIUIE

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

11-23-2021

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 189



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i noregon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not ftaudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, conect,
and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the law and may be penalized

by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in

electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

11-23-2021

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 190



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I in gi noregon.com

E.FILED
Nov 27, 2018

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

138138698

REGISTRATION DATE

't1121120'17

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER STORAGE 2 LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN AND OPERATE STOMGE FACILITY

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW - FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABIL]TY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 6010

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 191



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linqinoreoon.com

E.FILED
Nov 23, 2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

138138698

REGISTRATION DATE

1112112017

BUSINESS NAME

TANGER STORAGE 2 LLC

BUSINESS

TO OWN AND OPERATE STORAGE FACILITY

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW - FARLEIGH WADA WIfi
121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAW]TT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 6010

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGERASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTI.AND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 192



Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i noregon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,

fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or

agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me

and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this

document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the

Siate of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely

because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or

signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

11-27-2018

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 193



Registry nu*Fu J3&]J-& U - qb FILED
Nov 21 20trARTICLES OT' ORGANIZATION

LANGER STORA(iE ?LI'C
an Onegon limited tiability company

. OREGON
SECRETARYOF STATE

The undersignpd natural person, aoting as organizer under the Oregon Limited Liability
Company Act, adopts the following articles of organization:

Article I

The name of the limited liability company is LANGER STORAGB ?LLC ("Company"),

and the Company will be perpetual.

Arttcd2

The Company will be managed by a manager as provided in an operating agreement.

Article 3

A manager of the Company shall not be personally liable to the Company or its membsrs

for monetary damages for conduct as a manager, exgept for liability of the manager for (a) aots or
omissions that involve intsntional misoonduct or a knowing violation of the.law by the manager,

(b) conduct that violates ORS 63.235 pertaining to unpermitted disfiibutions to members or loans to
managers, or (c) any tansaction fiom which the.manager will personally receive a benefit in money,

pioperty or sorvioes to which tho manager is.not logally entitled. If the Oregon Limited Liability
Company Act is amended to authorize limited liability company action further eliminating or limiting the
personal liability of managors, then the liability of a managor of the Company shall be eliminated or
limited to the fullest extent permitted by the Oregon Limited Liability Company AcL as amended. Any
repeal or modification of this Article by the members of the Company shall not affect adversely any right
or protection of a manager of the Company oxisting at the time of sush repgal or modification.

Article 4

The Company shall indemni$ each manager as against all liability, damage, or expense

resulting from the fact that such person is or was a manager, to the maximum extent and under all

circumsiances permitted by law, exoept that the Company shall not indemni$ a manager against liability'
damage, or expense resulting from the manager's gross negligcnce.

Article 5

The name of the initial rggistered agent is Dean T. Sandow, and the address of the initial
registered office is l2l SW Monison #600, Portland, Orogon 97204, The address whero the Corporation
Division may mail noticos is c/o Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, 121 SW Monison #600, Ponlan{
Oregon 97204,

Article 6

The name dnd address of the organizer is Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, 121 SW
Monison #600, Portland, Oregon 97204,

I.ANGER STORAGE 2 LT.C

I - ARTICI,ES OF OROANIZATION
P :\DOCS\LANFAIVAI 0958\DOC\3 RF2592. DOC

ililililll I tilt llililililililililt il ilil ffi til138138598-LA4837L2 NEWORG

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 194



l3Tr38b-q8
Artlcle 7

The effootivs.date of the Company's existence is the date of frling of these Articles by tho

Corporation Division.

I, the undersigned organizer, declare under penalties of perjury that I have examined tho

foregoing, and to the best of my knowledge and belie{, these Articles of Organization are true, conect,

and complete.

DatedNovomber 20,2017

DeanT. Organizer

The person to contact about this filing is;

Dsan T. Sandow
Farleigh Wada Witt
121 SWMonison#600
Portland, Oregon 97204
503.228.6444
dsandow@fivwlaw.com

2 - ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
P:\DOC1S\LANFAIvi\ I 0958\DOC\3 RF2 592. DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 195



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n o i noreoon. com

E-FILED
Apr 18,2022

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

931 1 9593

REGISTRATION DATE

04t17t2013

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER STORAGE, LLC

BUSINESS

TO OWN, ACQUIRE, SELL, DEVELOP, RENT REAL PROPERW, AND ANY LA\A'FUL BUSINESS

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIW COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 196



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreoon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, conect,
and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the law and may be penalized
by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN TSANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

04-18-2022

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 197



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linginoregon.com

E-FILED
Mar 20, 2015

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

931 19593

REGISTRATION DATE

04t17t2013

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER STORAGE, LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

STORAGE

MAILING ADDRESS

15555 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

15555 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

MATTHEW DEAN LANGER

15555 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

MATTHEW DEAN LANGER

15555 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

MEMBER

NICOLE ANN LANGER

15555 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 198



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreqon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the
law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect
solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

MATTHEW DEAN LANGER

TITLE

MANAGER

DATE SIGNED

03-20-2015

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 199



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreoon.com

E-FILED
Mar 30, 2014

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

931 19593

REGISTRATION DATE

04t17t2013

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER STORAGE, LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

STORAGE

MAILING ADDRESS

15555 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

TYPE

DOMEST]C LIMITED LIABILIW COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

1 5555 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

JOHN H DRANEAS

4949 MEADOWS RD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

MANAGER

MATTHEW DEAN LANGER

15555 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 200



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n q i noreqon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, true, conect, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the
law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect
solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record
or signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

MATTHE\A/ DEAN LANGER

TITLE

MANAGER

DATE SIGNED

03-30-2014

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 201



- lnformation

Sccr€lary ol Slat6 - Corpora{on Dlvlslon - 255 -Phone: (503)s86-2200

Fac (500)97&4381

Complete

REGISTRY NUMBER: 931195-93

. ENTIIYryPE: C;DoMEsTlc GFoREIGN
ln accodanca wllh Or€gon Revlscd SlBtuto 102.41O.t9:L490, lhB lntorm€llon on thls spdlcaton lr publlc record
i|e mugt mteaco thls lniomdlon io atl pariles upon roquon and lt wlfl ba porlod on oui iveballa . SFCR FTA RY OF' STATE For ofice use onlv

Pleass Type or Pdnt Leglbly ln Black lnk. Altach Addltlonsl Shsat lf Neceesary.

1. NAME OF CORPORATION OR LIMITED UABILITV COMPANY:

Langer Storage, LLC

NOV ,2 2015

2. PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BIISINESS: (Strcet Addrecsl

c/o Farleigh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #600, Portland, OR97204

3. THE REGISTERED AGENT HAS OEEN CTIANGED TO:

Dean T.'Sandow

4. REGISTCRED A6ENT'S PUBIICLY AVAIIABLE ADDRESS:
Must be an Or€gon Street Address, whlch ls ldentlcal to the
reglstered agent's offlce,

121SW Morrison S600

Portland, OR 97204

5. ADDRCSS WHERE TI{E DIVISloil MAY MAIL NOTICES:

c/o Farleleh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #600, Portland, OR 97204

6. THE NEW REGTSIERED AGENT HAS COIUSENTED TO THIS

APPOINIMENT.

7. THE STREETADDRESS OF THE NEW REGISf,ERED OFFICE

AND THE EUSINESS ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED AGENT

ARE IDENTICAT.

The €ntlty has been notlfled In wrlting of this change.

NAME(SI AilD ADDRESS(ESIOF CORPORATE OFFICERIi OR ttc MEMEERS/MANAGERS

Corporatlons llst the name and addrcss of the Presldent and Secretary p85 60.782 ON 65.782 ORS 62.455, ORS 554315).
Llmited LlabilityCornpanles llstthe name ond addresses of the managers bra manager-managed llmlted llabllltycompanyorthe nameand
address of at leist one memberfora member-managed llmlted llablllty company (oRS63.7s7).

8. PRESIDENT OR OWNER(SI IMEMBERSI: (Names and street address) 9. SECRETARY OR MANAGERISI: ltlanresand Streetaddressl

1nn *tl^J*l

10. EXECUTION: By my slgnature, I declare as an authorized slgner, that thls flllng has bsen elnmlned by me and ls. to the best of my knowtedge and bellef,

true, corrrct and complete. Maklng fals€ $atemems ln thls document ls aigalnst the law and may be penallred by flnes, lmprlsonment or both.

TIT[E:

COiITACTI{AME: resolve questlons wlth thls flllng)

Dean T. Sandow

I.ANGER STORAGET T.LC

PHONE ITUMBER: (lrclude area code)

503-228-6044

lnfu imatlon Chonge (01/l $

ililtilll[|l||lilflll|llj|lililtilIililt

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 202



I

Q>r W4>
Attachment to Corporation/Limited Liability Company - Infomration Change

Section 9: Langer Asset Management Inc.
Farleigh Wada Witt
clo l2l SW Morrison #600
Portland, Oregon 97204

P:\DOCS\LANFAIVfl I 0958\DOC\3N? I 525.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 203



ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION

Corporation Division

www.fi I i n ginoregon.com

E.FILED
Apr 17,2O13

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

931 19s93

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

1. ENTITY NAME

LANGER STORAGE, LLC

2. MAILING ADDRESS

4949 MEADOWS RD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

3. NAME & ADDRESS OF REGISTERED AGENT

JOHN H DRANEAS

4949 MEADOWS RD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

4. ORGANIZERS

JOHN H DRANEAS

4949 MEADOWS RD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

5. DURATION

PERPETUAL

6. MANAGEMENT

This Limited Liability Company will be manager-managed by one or more managers

7. OPTIONAL PROVISIONS

Members and Managers of the LLC shall not be liable to the LLC or its Members for monetary damages for conduct
as Members and Managers except to the extent that the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act, as it now exists or
may hereafter be amended, prohibits elimination or limitation of Member or Manager liability. No repeal or
amendment of this provision or of the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act shall adversely affect any right or
protection of a Member or Manager for actions or omissions prior to the repeal or amendment.

The LLC shall indemnifiT each Manager and Member to the fullest extent permissible under Oregon law, as the
same exists or may hereafter be amended, against all liability, loss and costs (including, without limitation, attorney
fees) incurred or suffered by such Member in connection with the business of the LLC/person by reason of, or
arising from, the fact that such person is or was a Manager or Member of the LLC, or is or was serving at the
request of the LLC as a manager, director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or agent of another foreign or
domestic limited liability company, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, benefit plan, or other enterprise. The

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 204



Corporation Division

www.fi I i no i noreoo n. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

LLC may, by action of the Manager, provide indemnification to employees and agents of the LLC who are not
Managers. The indemnification provided in this Article shall not limit any other rights to which any person may be
entitled under any statute, bylaw, operating agreement, resolution of Members or Manager, contract or otherwise.
No repeal or amendment of this Section or of the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act shall adversely affect any
right to indemnification of a Manager or Member for actions or omissions prior to the repeal or amendment.

The company elects to indemnifo its members, managers, employees, agents for liability and related expenses
under ORS 63.160.

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the
law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect
solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record
or signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

JOHN H DRANEAS

Pa0e 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 205



t€E$m{ +llt Ui'1YT1tt t,Leo, DEc 31, zozo
OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

ilil1ll]r ilililtil
I.AITGER BALER

Articles of Merger
with Declarations under ORS 6.a9,a(1Xc)

Six Corners,LLc (an Oregon limited liability company)
and

MER

Langer Baler LLC (an Oregon limlted liabitity company)
into

Langer Family LLC (an Oregon limited liability company)

Article I

The:names, jurisdiction, and tlpes of entities proposing to merge are Six Conrers, LLC,
an Oregon limited liability company, Langer Baler LLC, an Oregon limited liability company, and Langer
Family LLC, an Orepon limited liability company.

Article2

theisurviving entity shall be Langer Family lJ,C,'an Oreggn limit€d liability comtrany,
whose principal ph{e of business ii tZt SW Monison #60b, Portirinq Origon 97204.

I

i Article 3

Theiarticles of organization for Langer Fanily LLC were filed with the Oregon Secretary
of State on May 4, 1998, as regishy number 631905-82. No changes to the articles of brganization for
Langer Fami$ Lrc jare required as a rezult of the merger

: Arficle4

The articles of organization for Six Comers, LLC, were filed with the Oregon Secretary
of State on March 9,i 2007 , as registry numb er 419537 -95.

I Article 5

The'articles of organization for Langer Baler LLC were filed with the Oregon Secretary
of State onNovember 10, 2015, asregistrynumbw 1160949-96. (

' Ardcle 6
'I

Tbeiname, sfreet address, and mailing address of the registered agent of Langer Family
LLC in Oregon are s'et forth below:

DeanT. Sandow
Farleigh Wadr Witt

l2l SWMorrison#600
Portlan4 Oregon 97204

ArfcleT

of merger ("Plan of Merger") was &rly auftorized and'approved by consent of the
members and

I *ARTICLES OF

A
I

I

plan
of Six Comers, LLC, asprovided iUORS 63.487 andORS 63.a9a(lXc).

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 206



The Plaa oflvferger'was duly authorized and approved by consent of the voting members
and manager of Langer FamilyLLC, es piovided in oRS 63.487and oRS 63.a9a(l)(c).

Arficle 10

Thc Plan of Mcger is on fle at 121 SW Monison #60Q Portland, Oregon 97204. The
sunriving el$ity wiil prwide any member of any constituent entiry with a copy of tlJpUn of Merger
upou writte,n requesf and at no cosL

Article 11

The name and address of an individual who is a manager, confrolling member, or
authorized rqresentative with direct knowledge of the operations ard business aotivities-of the limited
liability company and the principal place ofbusiness are as follows:

MatthewD. Langer
clo l2l SW Monison #600

Portland, Arcgon97204

fach of th9 unlgsrrsned declares as an authorized signer,. undu pmalty of perjury, that this document

$ogs 3ot Qudulent$ conceal, obscure, alter, or otherwise miriepresent tle-iaiitiry of any person
including officers, directors, employees, membe-rs, mtnagers, or agents. This filing bas deen examined by
each of the undersigued and is, to the best of our loowledge anO UeUeq, tue,-corect, and complete.
Making false statements in this document is against tbe law and may be penalized by fineq imprisoumenl
or both. This dosument is dated as of December ll,ZVlA.

The PIan
malager of Langer Baler

LangerFamilyLLC

ByLanger

IvfatthewD.

LanguBalerLLC

Artlcle I
of Mergor was duly authorized and apprroved by donsent of the members and

LLC, as provided in ORS 63.487 and ORS 63.a9a(t)(c).

Article 9

Six Comers, LLC

Manager BylangerAsset Manager

By
D.

ByLangerAsset Manager

By
D.

Personto hbout this filing:

Dean T. Saudow, Farlergh Wada Witt, I2l SW Monison #600" Portland, Oregon 97204, 5A9.22g,6044

2- ARTrcI"ES OF MERGER
P\DOCS\LANFAMU 0958\DOC\3)K6324.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 207



Registry N","b* lll0lfrLlg -1b FBLHM
Nov 10 2015

OREGON
SECBETABY OF.STATE

Articles of Organization

LANGER BALER LLC

The undersigned natural person, acting as organizer under the Oregon Limited Liability
Cornpany Act, adopts the following articles of organization:

Article I

The name of the lirnited liability company is Langer Balel LLC ("Company"), and the
Company will be perpetual.

agreement.

Article 2

The Company will be managed by one or morc managers as provided in an operating

Article 3

A manager of the Cornpany shall not be personally liable to the Cornpany or its members

for monetary darnages for conduct as a manager, except for liability of the manager for (a) acts or
omissions that involve intentional rnisconduct or a knowing violation of the law by the manager,
(b) conduct that violates ORS 63,235 pertaining to unpermitted distributions to members or loans to
managers, or (c) any transaction from whioh the manager will personaliy receive a benefit in nroney,
property or services to which the manager is not legally entitled. If the Oregon Limited Liability
Company Act is amended to authorize limited liabiliff company action frrrther eliminating or limiting the
personal liability of managers, then the liability of a managor of the Company shall be eliminated or
limited to the fullest extent permitted by the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act, as amended. Any
repeal or rnodification of this Article by the members of the Company shall not affest adversely any right
or protection of a manager of the Company existing at the tirne of such repeal or modification.

Article 4

The Company shall indemni$ each manager as against all liability, damagg or expense

resulting frorn the fact that such person is or was a tnanager, to the maximum extent and under all
circumstances permitted by law, except that the Company shall not indemniff a manager against liability,
damage, or expense resulting from the managet's gross negligence.

Article 5

The name of the initial registered agent is Dean T, Sandow, and the address of the initial .

registered office is 121 SW Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon 97204, The address whetp the Oregon
Corpolation Division may mail notices is do Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, l2l SW Momison
#600, Portland, Oregon 97204.

Article 6

The name and address of the organizer is Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada WiG
121 SW Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon 972A4.

I,ATiIGER BALER LLC
I - ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
P:\DOCS\M LF\l 4638\DOC\3N78600.DOC

lrI I IIllt lllllllil]lilll]ilil il il ililll I lil
116094996-16s23,4t02 NEWORG

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 208



,\ .,

ilbcq..1q-qb

Article 7

The effective date of tho Companls existence is the date of filing of these Articles by the

Oregon Corporation Division.

' I, tho undersigned organizer, declare under penalties of perjury, that I have examined the

foregoing, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, these Articles of Organization ars true, coffect,
and complete.

Dated November 10,2015

Dean . Sandow, Organizer

The person to contaot about this filing is:

Dean T. Sandow
Farleigh Wada Witt
l2l SWMorison#600
Poftland, Oregon 97204
503.228.6044
dsandowtEfivwlaw.com

2 _ARTTCLES OT ORGANIZATION
P:\DOCS\MLFI I 463 8\DOC\3N7E600.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 209



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linqinoreoon.com

E.FILED
Nov 1 1, 2016

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

1 16094996

REGISTR^ATION DATE

Mt1At2015

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER BALER LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN RENTAL REAL ESTATE AND ENGAGE IN ALL ACTIVITIES REASONABLY NECESSARYAND
INCIDENTAL THERETO.

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

MATTHEW LANGER

CIO FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 210



@
Corporation Division

www.fi li ng inoregon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the
law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect
solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

11-',t1-2016

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 211



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi llngino.regon.com

E.FILED
Nov 06, 2017

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

1 16094996

REGISTRATION DATE

11t10t2015

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER BALER LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN RENTAL REAL ESTATE AND ENGAGE IN ALL ACTIVITIES REASONABLY NECESSARY AND
INCIDENTAL THERETO.

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORR]SON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIM]TED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

I21 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

MATTHEW LANGER

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 212



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i nore gon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the
law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect
solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

1',t-06-2017

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 213



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i noregon. com

E.FILED
Dec 05, 2019

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

1 16094996

REGISTRATION DATE

11t10t2015

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER BALER LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN RENTAL REAL ESTATE AND ENGAGE IN ALL ACTIVITIES REASONABLY NECESSARY AND
INCIDENTAL THERETO.

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JUR!SDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 214



@
Corporation Division

www.fil in g i noregon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I deolare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me

and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

12-05-2019

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 215



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i no rcgo n. com

E.FILED
Nov'13,2020

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

1 16094996

REGISTRATION DATE

11t1012015

BUSINESS NAME

IANGER BALER LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN RENTAL REAL ESTATE AND ENGAGE IN ALL ACTIVITIES REASONABLY NECESSARY AND
INCIDENTAL THERETO.

MAILING ADDRESS

CIO DEAN TSANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment,

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRTSON ST #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 216



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreoon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or othenryise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me

and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

11-13-2020

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 217



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i noregon. com

E.FILED
Oct 09, 2013

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

48686083

REGISTRATION DATE

11t14t1995

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER BROS., L.L.C.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

MAILING ADDRESS

CLARENCE LANGER

15585 SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

15585 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENI

CLARENCE D LANGER JR

15585 SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

15585 SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

MANAGER

MATTHEW LANGER D LANGER

15585 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 218



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i nofegon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the
law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon, I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect
solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record
or signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

PAMELAANN LANGER

TITLE

MEMBER

DATE SIGNED

10-09-2013

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 219



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n o i n oreqo n. com

E-FILED
Sep 21,2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

136145497

REGISTRATION DATE

09t15t2017

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER ENTERTAINMENT LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN AND OPERATE AN ENTERTAINMENT FACILITY AND SUCH OTHER ACTIVITIES AS MAY BE
DIRECTED BY THE MANGER FROM TIME TO TIME.

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDIGTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 220



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n gi noreqon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN TSANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

09-21-2021

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 221



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i nqi noreqon. com

E.FILED
Sep 15,2020

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

136145497

REGISTRATION DATE

09t15t2017

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER ENTERTA]NMENT LLC

BUSINE$S ACTIVITY

TO OWN AND OPEMTE AN ENTERTAINMENT FACILITY AND SUCH OTHER ACTIVITIES AS MAY BE
DIRECTED BYTHE MANGER FROM TIME TO TIME.

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIW COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADA WIfi
121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 222



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreoon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in wriUng, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

09-15-2020

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 223



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I in gi noregon.com

E.FILED
Sep 25,2019

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

136145497

REGISTRATION DATE

091't5t20't7

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER ENTERTAINMENT LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN AND OPERATE AN ENTERTAINMENT FACILIry AND SUCH OTHER ACTIVITIES AS MAY BE
DIRECTED BY THE MANGER FROM TIME TO TIME.

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLE]GH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

12,I SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 224



@
Corporation Division

Ufww.fi linginoregon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions andlor signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN TSANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

09-25-2019

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 225



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

Corporation Division

www.fi linginoregon.com

E.FILED
Sep 17,2018

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

13614il97

REGISTRATION DATE

0911512017

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER ENTERTAINMENT LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN AND OPERATE AN ENTERTAINMENT FACILITY AND SUCH OTHER ACTIVITIES AS MAY BE
DIRECTED BY THE MANGER FROM TIME TO TIME.

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLE]GH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to lhe appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 . LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 226



Corporation Division

www.fi linqinoreoon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

09-17-2018

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 227



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name His

04-26-2022
17t39

Registry Nbr Entlty.
Tvp-e

EntiEv
Status lurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

542ts4-97 DLLC ACT OREGON 08-21-2008 08-2t-2422
Entity Name BAC S}IERWOOD LANGER LLC

Foreign Name

Type
PLACE OF

Addr I 9OO SIW 5TH AVE STE 2600
Addr 2

csz PORTLAND STATES OF AMERICACouoilE@

Type ISTERED AGENTT Staft Date
13

Resign Date

Name
Addr I 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE IOO

Addr 2
csz TUALATIN IOR 197062 Country LINITED STAIES OF AMERICA

TYPe G ADDRESS

Addr 1 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

Addr 2
csz IUALATIN ON STATES OF AMERICAvnrr-IEEEil|

Type GER Resign Date
Name
Addr I 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

Addr 2
csz TALATrN IOR 197062 Country LINITED STATES OF AMERICA

I
EI4N I

Business Enti$ Name Name
TvDe

Name
Status Staft Date End Date

BAC SHERWOOD LANGER LLC EN CUR 08-21-2008

Please read before ordering eopjcs.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 228



New Search Hi

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

S
Transaction

Date
Effective

Date Status Name/Agent
Chanqe Dissolved Byrmage I

Availablel Action

08-04-2021 SYSIANIIITJAL REPORT
lpennnNr
IANNUAL REPORT
bavrranNr

08-10-2020 SYS

IANNUAL REPORT
hevlanNr 08-06-2019 SYS

lar.rwuar REPoRT
hevlrpNr 08-06-2018 SYS

SYS
ler.ruunr REPORT
hnvr,asNr

08-08-2017

sYslAmn-ler REPOM
FevusNr 08-02-2016

07-29-2015 SYS
IANNUAL REPORT
Jpnvl,reNr
IANNUAL REPORT
hnweNr 07-22-2014 SYS

ICHANGE OF

@ pccrsrnnno
IAGENT/ADDRESS

09-04-2013 FI Agent

IANNUAL REPORT
IPAYMENT

07-29-2013 SYS

laulrunr REPoRT
bevrranNr

07-24-2012 SYS

07-25-20tr SYS
IANNUAL REPORT
hevrurexr
IANNUAL REPORT
hnviranNr 07-28-2010 SYS

€! ffi*A^^UAL 07-28-2009 FI

ffi bsK#^?t.. 08-2r-2008 FI Agent

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 229



Secretary of State
Corporation Division
255 Capitol Street NE, Suite 151
Salem, OR 97310-1327

Phone:(503)986-22@
Fax(503)37&4381
wunr.fi linginoregon.oom

2OO9 ANNUAL REPORT
Registry Number: 542154'97
Date of Organization: 08f21P008
Fee: 150.00
Due Date: 0812112009

Type: DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIW COMPANY

BAC SHERWOOD LANGER LLC
19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

TUALATIN OR 97062

Name of Domostic Llmited Llability Company
BAC SHERWOOD LANGER LLC

Jurlsdlctlon: OREGON

,SLEU
GRAuoldl!:Sffidvt rnc

oREcpt'l
secd;i+toFsrArE

The following information is required
)/ou can make changes on this form.
inactivation on our records.

Reglstered Agent
THOMAS R PAGE
9OO SW FIFTH AVE STE 2600
PORTLAND OR 97204

by statute. Please complete the entire form. lf any of the information is incorrect,
Failure to submit this Annual Report and fee by the due date may result in

lf the Registered Agent has changed, thE new Agent
has consented to the appointment. Oregon street address
required.

1) Type of Buslness

ReaI Estate Investment

Portland, OR 97204

2) Prtncipal Place of Businese (Str. address,city,state,zip) . 3) Mailing Address (Address,city,state,zip)

gOO SI^I Fifth A nrrA Srri ta )6flfl
19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

TUALATIN OR 97062

4) n ilember or lTl Manager (Name t Address) O tl ilemberor fl Hanager(Name&Addrcss)
Flrrrrr Al^an (r:{n

1q767 SW 72nd A rrrr6 Srri to 1OO

6) 7) Printed Name

8) Date 1'tr'q 9) Daytime Phone Number

Make check payable to "Corporatlon Division'and mall <

Corporatlon Dlvlslon,255 Gapltol ST l,lE Suite 15{, Salen
Note: You can also fax to (503) 378*4381. Filing fees may be
and expiration date on a separate page for lour protection.

ilrililll|$uruilHillilllr

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 230



SL{L(5q-q7 ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
OF

BAC SITERWOOD LANGER LLC
An Oregon Limited Ltability Company

FILED
AU6 2 1 2008

.e"ffi"t'ntARTICLE I

The name of the limited liability company (the "Company") is BAC Sherwood Langer
LLC

ARTICLE II

The Company shall have perperual existence.

ARTICLE III

The name of the initial registered agent is Thomas R. Page and the address uf the

initial registered office is 900 SW Fifth Avenue, Suite 2600, Portland, Oregon 972A4.

ARTICLE IV

The address where the Division may mail notices is 19767 SW 72" Avenue, Suite I00,
Tualatin, OR 97062.

ARTICLE V

The Company shall be managal by a manager.

ARTICLE VI

The name and address of the organizer of the Company are Thomas R. Page,

900 SW Fifth Avenue, Suite 2600, Portland, Oregon 972M.

ARTICLE VII

To the fullest extent the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act, as it exists on the date

hereof or may hereafter be amended, permits the limitation or elimination of liability of
managers or members, a manager or member shall not be liable to the Company or the other

mernbers for monetary damages for conduct as a manager or member. Any amendment lo or
repeal of this Article VII shall nol adversely affect any right or pnrtcuiioii of a mana6cr cr
member for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such manager or member occurring
prior to such amendment or repeal.

DArED trr j5ayorAugus,,m 
a

Por tl rd t -2422550 . I (f}W244oW

Thomas R. Page, Organizer

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 231



of Reoistsrsd AoenUAddress - CorooratlonslLLC
Slcrlrl,'ry ol Strto - Corporarin Divkis - 255 Cepilol Sl. t{E, Sultc 't5l - Salem. OR 9731G1327 - hltpJ/wuw.Flirelt0rcem.com - Phon . (5o3) 98lt-2200

Chcck tlro approprLlo bor below:

I cxeNce oF AGENTANoADDRESS
(Cofndetc only t. 2. 3, 4. 5, 6)

l* cnnHce oF ADDRESS oNLY
(Co,nplole only t, 7. 0, 9. t0)

REGrsIRvNuraEi: 542154'97
" oREoor{

$ORETATVOFSTATE

FILED

sEP 0 4 20t3

NOTE: Ulr thit lom lot Coopcrrhtct ot Busir.3r Tru3ls

Rcvbcd statuts t9?.a1G192.a9o, tllr antornatioo on t]*r lpplicslim is puuic tccod.
Wa mu8t sgon rrquasl afil il wil bc goclod ofl out r!'D6ilc. For fficr ugc onlv

Please Type or Prhl tegibly in Elrck lnk. Atlach Addlional Sheel il t{ecessary.

1) EilnrYN^E: BAC Sherwood Lanqer LLC

cH ncE oF REelsTER€D AGENT Atto oFFlcE

2) Txe Recprcneo Acelr Hes Eeex Cxelcro To:

Barry A. Cain

3) TH: New RscFrEnED AcEflt res CorseirEo ro Tsls
APPorxtx€xr.

4) ADoRES$ oF ue New RecsrEREo OFFTcE: (Must be sn orrion
Sffi Adcrl3 shich ir idanlicrl to tha tcgist€rcd .0pnt's budnrts otlic..]

19767 SW 72nd Ave, Suite 100
Tualatin, OR 97062

5) THE SrnEE? Aponess oF n{r l{ew Recrl3TERED OFFrcE Arlo rHE
BusHEss ADoREss oF rttE Reclsnneo Acrlr Ane lDEilncAL.

6) Execunon:
By my signalu.e. I dedaG 6 an aulhotized aulhodly. lhal hb niu
has bee{ errnined by me at$ b, to lhe best otmy hnowledge and
b€lief, ln G. coned, arxt cdnphte. Maklng taBe stalements h lhis
documenl b against lhe law and may be p€nalized by f,nes,
imfisormenl orbolh.

(Ma3t ba lig'rd by on. eorporela
msnbcrrrmn qcr lor a limitsd

Signature:

Printed Namf
By: Barry A. Cain

Manager
Title:

Coflrrcr ilext: {To rosdvc qrn rion3 wirh lhis tilino )

BAC SHERTTOOD IANGER LIf

ililll]lil

CHAIrcE oF REGTSTEnED AGEir's BusrEss oFFrcE (nLy

7) NeruAoonEss or R:csreneoAcem: (Thc buran g3.ddcrsotrho
rqi3iGGd .gonl h69 chlrEpd io lhc tdlo$ng OrGgpn Sbsrt Addrca3.)

8) Tl€ STREET AooREss oF n{E NEw REqsrEneo Ornce Aro tr{€
BUsilEsS AooREss OF THE REGFTEREo AcrIr Ane IDEilIICAL.

g1 Norrcenor:

fl The entity ha6 b€en notilied in writing of this change.

1o) Exeamol:
By rny signaturo. I dedare as an aulhorized aulhorily, lhal ttds fling has
be€n examined by me dtd is, to lt€ bc$ ol my fnou,ledg€ and beliel
tn e. correcl, and complete. Makir€ lalse slaleflrents ln tti3 docurEnl is
agEinsl lhe larv and rnay be penalized by lircs. impdsoillenl or bolh.

(l,lbst bG 3ign.d bt lhc Ggbtelld igpnl or a cdpofat! dirf or dirccbr bt a
corDoratbn or r mcmb.rrmanlC.r lor a lir*W liibilily company. )

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

i:[: [:$

l,loProGlrB Foos

Frt oop6 tr ryddc .t Flhoho|Esn c1ollr, lshg [E Eud|Bss ilmo s.dd Folrtn.

-

ilillillilll
ACIT5121,5497-14590932

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 232



Registry nuru"r$lgiu\ffiQ
ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION

C LAII{GER LLC
an Oregon llmited liability company

The undersigned natural person, acting as organizer under the Oregon Limited Liability

Company Act, adopts the following Articles of Organization:

Article I
. The name of the limited liability company is C LANGER LLC ("ComPanY"), and the

Company will be perpetual.

Article 2

The Company will be managed by managers as provided in an operating agreement.

Article 3

A manager ofthe Company shall not be personally liable to the Company or its members

for monetary damages for conduct as a manager, oxoept for liability of !he- manager for (a) acts or

omissions tfiat invJlve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of the law by the manager,

(b) conduct that violates ORS 63.235 pertaining to unpermitted distributions to members or loans to

,nunug"rr, or (o) any transaction from which tho managor will peqsoryfly recoive a benefit in money,

propuity or p*i..r to which the manager is not legally entitled. If the Oregon Limited Liability
boritpuny Act is amended to authorize limited liability company action ftrther eliminating or_limiting.the

purronui liubility of managers, then the liabilrty of a managor_ of the Company shall be eliminated or

ii.itrA to the futlest extent permitted by the Oregon Limited Liability Company Aot, as amonded' Any

repeal or modification of thii Artiele by the members of the Company shall not affect adversely any right

or protection of a manager of the Company oxisting at the time of such repeal or modification.

Article 4

The Company shall indemniff each manager as against all liability, damage, or expense

resulting from the fact that iuch person is or was a manager, to the maximum extent and under all

circumsiances permitted by law, except that the Company shall not indemnify a manager against liability,

damage, or expense resulting from the manager's gross negligence.

Article 5

The name of the initial registered agent is Dean T. Sandow, and the address of the initial

registered office is 121 SW Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon 97204. The address where the Division

miy mail notices is c/o Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, l2l SW Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon

97204.

Article 6

' The name and address of
Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon 97204,

the organizer is Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, 121 SW

C I,ANGER LLC

1 _ ARTTCLES OF ORGANIZATION
P :\DOCS\LAI.IGEC\ I 2598\DOC\3QX8239'DOC

:.ffi-,

illullulilIuuultllflil[ilulll

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 233



\ 3rp lqFDnqq

A,rticlo 7

The effective date ofthe Company's existence is the date of filing of those Articles by the

Secretary ofState.

I, the undersigned organizer, deslare under penalties of perjury, tot I have examined the

foregoing and to the best ofhy knowledge and belief, these Articles of Organization are frue, conect'

and complete.

Dated as ofJanuary 1,2017,

Dean T. Organizer

The person to contaot about this filing is:

DeanT. Sandow
Farleigh Wada Witt
121 SW Monison #600
Portland, Oregon 97204
503.228.6044
dgandow@fv*wlaw.com

2 - ARTICLES OF OROANIZATION
P :\DOCS\LANGEC\ t 2598\DOC\1QX8239.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 234



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i nqregon.com

E.FILED
Sep 17, 2018

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

136145794

REGISTRATION DATE

09t't5t2017

BUSINESS NAME

C LANGER LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

MANAGE COMPANY ASSETS AND PROMOTE HARMONY AMONG THE MEMBERS

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SWMORRISON#600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIi,IARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

15585 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

SCOTT LANGER

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page I

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 235



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linginoregon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

os-17-2018

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 236



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linginoreqon.pom

E.FILED
Sep21,2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

136145794

REGISTRATION DATE

0911512017

BUSINESS NAME

C LANGER LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

MANAGE COMPANY ASSETS AND PROMOTE HARMONY AMONG THE MEMBERS.

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIIIIARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

CLARENCE D LANGER JR

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 237



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n gi norego n. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand lhat transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

09-21-2021

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 238



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name

04-26-2022
18:02

Registry Nbr Entity
Tvoe

Entity
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

t36t456-95 DLLC ACT OREGON 09-15-2017 09-ls-2022

Entity Name P LANGER LLC
Foreign Name

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr I 121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

Addr 2
csz STATES OF AMERICA

Staft Date t7
15-

Resign DateType TERED AGENT

Name w
Addr 1 r2l sw MoRRrsoN #600
Addr 2

Countrycsz PORTLAND |on 197204 TINITED STATES OF AMERICA

Tvpe G ADDRESS

Addr I I21 SW MORRISON #600
Addr 2

csz STATES OF AMERICACouiiLT$ilIsEireilmr
TYpe Resign Date
Name GER

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

Countrycsz PORTLAND LINITED STATES OF AMERICAEIArrm,rI

Name
Tvoe

Name
Status End DateBusiness Entity Name Staft Date

P LANGER LLC EN CUR 09-t5-2017

Please read before ordering ftptcs.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 239



New Search His

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

S
Image

Arrrilqhla
Effective

Date Status Name/Agent
Chanqe Dissolved ByAction I rdrrl'dl;t rl,at

Date

FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

09-21-2021

FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

09-r5-2020

09-25-2019 FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

02-27-2019 FIffi AMNDMT TO ANNUAL
RPT/INFO STATEMENT

09-17-2018 FI# AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

09-ts-20r7 FI Agentffi ARTICLES OF
ORGANIZATION

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 240



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i ngi nqregon. com

E.FILED
Sep21,2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

136145695

REGISTRATION DATE

0911512017

BUSINESS NAME

P LANGER LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

MANAGE COMPANY ASSETS AND PROMOTE HARMONY AMONG THE MEMBERS.

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

PAMELAA LANGER

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page I

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 241



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreoon.com OREGON $ECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprieonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

09-21-2021

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 242



Socrotary of Stalo . 'Corporallon ,Dlvlslon ' 255

Pleaso TYPo 0r

lnformation

capltol $ .Ne suilrt 151 . Selbin, .OR 9731S1327 -.8o3.oteg'on.govrbuiiile8t..:Phone: (61!3) 988-2200'

Piint Leglbly in Blaok lnk. Att6th Additicinil':shbet lf Natdessary. Frxi 1503)-378-4381

REGISTRY NUMBER:1361456'95

ENTITY TYPE: (SDOMEST{G GFOREIGN
FILHD

rspubrcrocord. FEB 2? Z0tgln.accordance wlth Oreqoh Bevlsed
\Ale must.Ghase lhls inlomston to

1. NAME OF OR LIMITED 'COMPANY: OREGON
SECRETARY OF

For u3g
all

STATE
P'La LLC

2, BUSTNESS ACnVFY

3. PRlNclPAt PLACE'OF BUSINESS: {Street Addiessl

121SW Mqrris.on st ste 600

Portland, Oreson 97204

4. THE.REGISTEREDAGENT HAS BEEN CHANGEDTOI

5. REGISTERED AGENT'S PUBLICIY AVAII.ABTE ADDRESS:
Must be an Oreron Street Address. which ls ldentlcal to the
ieglstered agdnilS offf ce.

}lQUrare
6. ADDRE$SWEqBE,THF DMSION MAY MAlt NOTICES:

7. THE NEW REGISTERED AGENT.HAS CONSENTED'TO THIS

APPOINTMENT.

8. THE STREET ADDRESS OT THE NEW REGISTERED OFFICE

ANDTHE BUSINESSAEDRESS OF THE REGISTERED A6ENT

ARE IDENTICAL.

The'entity has be€n notlfied h writlng of'thls change.

9. lNdluDuALWliH DIRECT KNOWLEDGE (Name3 bnd.Addi€ssds)
tlst rho.nlme.ShC 6.ddrOis-qftt lealtone hdtuidrrilwht l-si dltdcloi orGonlrolllnt
shueholddr of tha corPoratlon {melnber 6t.mrhdgea otthe tto ot sn .utbothed
..€paeJantatlve wllh dlract knowledSo of lhe opettllonr and butlneir sttlvltlcr ot

the corporation or llc;

.10.

address

PamelA A. Langer

c/o Farleigh Wada Witt

121 SW MorribonSt Ste'600

Portla nd, Oregon 97.204

il'. ExEcunoN;' I declare as.an authofized'signer,.under penalty of pFrlirry, that this document does not fr:audulently conceal, obssure,

alteri or oth€rwlse mist'epresent the ldentlty. of any person includlng' offiiers, directors, employees, members, managers qr agent5. This

fillng has.lbeen examihed by me and is, to the best of:my knowledge and belief; true, correct and completq, Making false statements in

law and may be penalized by fines, lmprisonment, or.both.lhis documenl isyY'n"
PBINTED NAME:/z>- Dean T. Sandow

TITTf:

Atto n-Fact

coNTAcT NAME: Oo resolvc queitlons wlth thli:fillnrQ)

Dean T. Sand'ow
P I.ANGER LtC

PHoNE.NUMBEBI (lncluds area codd)

503'228-6044

lnfirlmailon €hange 1.V1 7)

ililruil[lffi[ililtilfutruilil

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 243



-F\LEil
Regisrrynu*u, l?Ls[Lr:\sqb **ilUt]lt .?

ARrrcLEs oF oRGANrzArroN 
^_,*p,xF,9S 

sfiNt"

-.r..-

P LANGERLLC
an Oregon limited liability company

Ths undersigned natural person, acting as organizer under the Oregon Limited Liability

Company Act, adopts the following Articles of Organization:

Article I

The name of the limited liability oompany is P LANGER LLC ("Company"), and the

company will be perpetual' 
Articre z

The Company will be managed by managers as provided in an operating agreement.

Article 3

A manager of the Company shall not be personally liable to the Company or its members

for monetary damages for conduct as a manager, except for liability of the manager for (a) acts or

omissions that involve intentional missonduct or a knowing violation of the law by the manager,

(b) conduct that violates ORS 63.235 pertaining to unpermittod distributions to members or loans to

managers, or (c) any transaction from which the manager will personally- receive.a benefit in money'

p;;p"rty * r"wi"rr to which the manager is not legally entitled. If the Oregon Limited Liability

boitpui1 Act is amended to authorize limited liability company aotion further eliminating or-limiting-the

pun*of fiabilry of managers, then the liability of a mgaggr.of the Company shall be eliminated or

iiritrd to the fuilest exteni permitted by the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act, as amended' Any

repeal or modification of this Article bythe members of the Company shall not affect_adversely any right

or protection of a manager of the Company existing at the time of such rspeal or modification.

Article 4

The Company shatl indemnifr eaoh manager as against all liability' damage, or expense

resulting from the faot that such person is or was a manager, to the maximum extent and under all

oircumslances pormitted by law, except that the Company shall not indemniff a manager against liability,

damage, or expense resulting from the manager's gross negligence.

Article 5

The name of the initial registered agent is Dean T. Sandow, and the address of the initial

registered of;fice is l2l SW Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon 972A4, The address where the Division

mly mait notises is c/o Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Wit! 121 SW Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon

97204.

Article 6

The name and address of the organizer is Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, 121 SW

Morrison #600, Portland, Orcgon 97204,
P I,ANGER LtC

ilIililr ilil ilt llilililtffiffi ilt ililil|t il
I - ARTICLES OF ORCAI{IZATION
P:\IDOCS\LANOEC\I 2598\DoC\3 QX8242. DOC

136145695-18315801 NEWORG

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 244



I, the undersigned organizer, deolare under penalties of perjury, Sut.I have examined the

foregoing ana to the best of-my knowledge and belie{ these Articles of organization are tue, coffegt,

\ lr-trltsqct

Article 7

The effeotive date of the Company's existence is the date of filing of these Articles by the

Seoretary ofState,

and complete.

Dated as of January 1,2017.

"fU'-'
Dean Sandow, Organizer

The person to sontact about this filing is:

Dean T. Sandow
Farleigh Wada Witt
121 SWMonison#600
Portland, Oregon 97204
503.228.6044
dsarldow@fivwlaw.com

2 * ARTICLES OF ORGA}ITZATION
PI\DOCS\LA}.IGEC\ 1259s\DOC\3Qx8242'DoC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 245



[?/lB/?011 4!4]Ft1 8ffin1ff707 fi]01
BUSIT€Ss RE6 $lr$,00

Artlcler of AmendmenUDluolutlon - Llmlted Llablllty Gompany
Sacrabry s, Sbb - Corpontion Dblrho - 255 fudbl St ilE. sdb 16l - sd.m, OR 0t8lGl!27 - hilprrwfl.Flhglnoogm.corn - Ptoor (600) g!e2200

cheol lhe.pptuprlrtc box bclotr:

I nnncesoFAt ENDMENr FILED(Comelcb ody l, 2, t, C)

El nnncusor DFsoLUrtoN
(c',rprrr.or{yr.6,s) 'rrvr! FEB I 0 20lt

ReonrnvNurcsER: 1 981 15-95
lrtaocotd&6trtilh R.vi.rd Sbbb te2.atGte2.{30, h. hlbm.lhn ql 0tb .Pdclthn i. Frblb tlootd.

OREOON
SECRETARY OF STATE

Pl€ascTypo or Pdnl Lcglbly ln Shct lnk. AltrchAddlilmd Sheet ltNccssary.

ARnclIsoFAilrmuetrOrrv
l) ErnwNru::

2) THEFouoyrNoAlreiloiletlflsltorxeAnncEgoronoelzrnollrMroeH€REBY:(srth0tdcbtlrit(tlrdtdt.rr0lcdilrlc[brnd.dbndl

3) hrree CmecK fiE APPRoPRIIT: Snrsmnr:

E fnf *"nOm"nt r,!as adod€d by lh3 managp(s) illthout mcrnbcr adlon. ilember ac0on unr not 
'lqulrud.

Dats of adopuon dcach omcndment:-
EI Thb amenomon(s) Itar epprorred by lhe m€mben. peroEnt of lho memborc appoved lhe am€ndmefit(!).

Oal| ol adoptlon of oeh am€ndmont;

AarctEl or DFsolunoil OILY

,f) ilAilEoFLmrroLneurYCw ilY:

6) DereorDtssolunoll: Mav 19. 2006

-

o) ExEouilorr! rlgn d

EymyEhmturo,
cofi€cl. and

Slgnatuir:

and F, to lhc
penalEcd by

bcEt otmy lmor&dgo and bollef, fus,
f,nor, fnprlronnctll or bolh.

Nams: Tlus:
President, Gramor lnvestmenh, lnc.,

Manager of Gramor Langer Farms LLG

Gonffcf l,lfme: (To tlrohn $iltom wilh lhb fililu.)

Margaret B. Kushner RqfndtucrhgF.r StO

PHoxE NUilBER: tlnclud..il. codr.)

(503) 294-9329
GRA}OR I.ANGER FARMS I'LC

tot - Ar0cl.r ol Am.ndnpot Dl$olrdoo ' LknlLd

ru[l![luuu!iltllilllllutill

r ffi prFuc b toonq$on dYfbr'

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 246



New Search

New Search

Please click

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

04-26-2022
17:.41

Registry Nbr Entity
Tvpe

Entity-
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

1981 15-95 DLLC INA OREGON 0t-28-2004

Entity Name GRAMOR LANGER FARMS LLC
Foreign Name

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr I 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

Addr 2
STATES OF AMERICAcsz R

Type AGENT
l-28-Staft Date Resign Date

Name
Addr I 9OO SW 5TH AVE STE 2600
Addr 2

Country LINITED STATES OF AMERICAcsz PORTLAND IOR

mililI

WW
Type ADDRESS

Addr I t9767 SW 72ND STE 100

Addr 2
csz TUALATIN IOR 197062 STATES OF AMERICA

TVPe Resign Date
of

Record SHERWOOD LLC

Addr 1 19767 SW 72ND STE 100

Addr 2
csz TUALATIN R STATES OF AMERICA

Resisn DateType
of

Record RAMOR INVESTMENTS, INC.

Addr I 19767 SW 72ND STE 100

Addr 2
csz ruALATIN PR 197062 STATES OF AMERICA

I

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 247



New Search Name

Please read before ordering eqpies.
New Search S Histo

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

Name
fype

Name
9tatus Start Date End DateBusiness Entity Name

EN CUR 01-28-2004GRAMOR LANGER FARMS LLC

Effective
Date Status Name/Agent

Chanse Dissolved ByImage
Available Action Date

FI€
ARTICLES OF
DISSOLUTION

o2-t0-2011

0t-12-2010 FIANNUAL REPOM

0l-15-2009 SYSANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

05-22-2008 FIREINSTAIEMENT
STRAIGHT

SYSADMINISTRATIVE
DISSOLUTION

03-28-2008

FIANNUAL REPORT 0l-10-2007

t2-29-2005 SYSANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

0t-27-2005 FIAMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI AgentARTICLES OF
CRGANIZATION

0l-28-2004

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 248



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name

04-26-2022
17:41

Registry Nbr EntitV
Tvpe

Entily
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

t361457-94 DLLC ACT OREGON 09-rs-2017 09-ts-2022

Entity Name C LANGER LLC
Foreign Name

Type
PLACE OF

Addr I 121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

Addr 2
csz PORTLAND IOF- 9tZ0q STATES OF AMERICA

Staft Date
17
15-

Resign DateType AGT REGISTERED AGENT

Name
Addr I 121 SW MORRISON #600
Addr 2

Gountry UNITED STATES OF AMERICAcsz R

MiI

Tvpe ADDRESS

Addr 1 121 SW MORRISON #600
Addr 2

STATES OF AMERICAcsz POKILAND PR 197204

G Resign Date

Name
Addr I FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 21 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

Country LINITED STATES OF AMERICARCSZ FORTLAND

Wil

Name
Tyoe

Name
Status Start Date End DateBusiness EntiW Name

C LANGER LLC EN CUR 09-t5-2017

Please read before ordering egpjcs.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 249



New Search His

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State, All Rights Reserved.

S

Status Name/Agent
Chanqe Dissolved ByActionImage I

Availablel
I rdrtudglturr

Date
Effective

Date

FIffi IAMENDED ANNUAL
%T REPORT

09-21-2027

FIffi IAMENDED ANNUAL
c+s REPORT

09-15-2020

09-25-2019 FIffi INVTTNNBD ANNUALq# hpponr
02-27-2419 FIffi IAMNDMT TO ANNUAL

w RpT/nrro STATEMENT

09-17-20t8 FIffii hunuppD ANNUALEP lnBponr

09-15-2017 FI Agent,d?$ IARTICLES oFqi'f/ IORGANIZATION

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 250



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name

04-26-2022
17242

Registry Nbr Entity
Tvpe

Entity
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

534473-98 DLLC ACT OREGON 07-t6-2008 07-16-2022

Entity Name GRAMOR SHERWOOD LANGER LLC

Foreign Name

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr I T9767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

Addr 2
csz STAIES OF AMERICA

Staft Date l3 Resign DateREGISTERED AGENTType AGT

Name
Addr I 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE lOO

Addr 2
Country LINITED STAIES OF AMERICAcsz R

m

Type G ADDRESS

Addr I 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

Addr 2
csz TUALATIN ON 197062 Cou STITTES OF AMERICA

Type Resign Date

of
Record INVESTMENTS, INC.

Addr I 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE IOO

Addr 2
csz TUALATTN IOR 197062 STATES OF AMERICA

Name
Tvoe

Name
Status Start Date End DateBusiness Entity Name

EN CUR 07-16-2008GRAMOR SHERWOOD LANGER LLC

Please read before ordering eqpjs.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 251



New Search Hi

@ ZO22 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved

S
Image

Arrrilalrlc Dissolved ByEffective
Date Status Name/Agent

ChangeAction Transaction
Date

SYS07-06-2021ffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

SYS06-t2-2020ANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

SYS06-13-2019ANNUAL REPORT
PAYI\{ENT

FI07-02-2018ANNUAL REPORT

SYSANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

07-03-2017

SYSANNUAL REPOR1
PAYMENT

06-29-2016

06-t7-2015 SYSANNUAL REPOR'I
PAYMENT

SYS06-18-2014ANNUAL REPOR1
PAYMENT

FI Agent09-04-20t36 CHANGE OF
REGISTERED
AGENT/ADDRESS

SYS06-r3-2013ANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

SYSANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

06-26-2012

06-16,2011 FIANNUAL REPORT
FI06-23-2010ANNUAL REPORT

FIB AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

07-13-2009

07-16-2008 FI Agent@
ARTICLES OF
ORGANIZATION

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 252



Secretary ofState
Corporation Division
255 Capitol SheetNE, Suite l5l
Salem, OR973l0-Bn

Phone (503)986-2200
Fax: (503)378-4381

htFs://sosioregon.gov/business/

GRAT,IOR SHERWOOD I,AIIGBR I.TC

iltil]ilt ilt ilililililil il ]lil til I I ]|s3447398-22348672 iEtuirrA-

GRAMOR SHERWOOD LANGER LLC
19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO
TUALATIN OR 97062

Name of Domestic Limited Liability Company
GRAMOR SHERWOOD LANGER LLC

Jurisdictloh: OREGON

The.iollowing infotinqtion-is requipcl:by. stalrrte, P-iease compbtg.fbe.ectirg-fgqu Faitr*eJc*r.rbnit t-lil$l-lnuaf R:ne
fee by the due date inay resuftih inactivationbn 6ui'record6,. :
F.egistered Agent
BARRY.A CAIN"
19767 SW 72ND.AVE STE 100
TUALATIN OR 97062

1) Type of Business

lf the Registered Agent has changed,
the new agent has consented to the appointment. Oregon
street address required.

2) Principal Place of Business (Address,city,state,zip)
19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

TUALATIN OR97O62

3) Mailing Address (Address,cig,state,zip)
19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

TUALATIN OR 97062

4) Memberor iianager6Namcaaaarccsl

GRAMOR INVESTMENTS, INC.
19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

TUALAflN OR97O62

5) Member Of Manager(Name&Arktress)

Execulion:

lnc., Manager of Gramor Sherwood Langdr LLC

7) Printed Name

8) Date PhoneNumber 503-245-1976

Make check payable !o "Corporrtlon Dlvl3lon" and mall to the addr€ss aboye.
Note: Filing fuas may bo paid wtth a major oredil card, Submlt the card number and explralior date on a separate page br lour protediol.

ANRPFl.
06/01/21

r

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 253



Secretary of State
Corporation Division
255 CapltolStreet NE, Suite 151
Salem, OR 97310-1327

Phone:(503)986-2200
Fax(503)3784381
umnr.lilinginoregon.com

2OO9 ANNUAL REPORT
Regietry lrlumber: 534473-98
Date of Organization: 07/10/2008
Fee: $50.00
Due Date: 0711612@9

Type: DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIW COMPANY

GRAMOR SHERWOOD LANGER LLC
19767 SW T2NDAVE STE 100
TUA1ATIN OR 97062

Name of Domestic Limlted Llablllty Gompany
GRAMOR SHERWOOD I-ANGER LLC

Jurisdlctlon: OREGON

REGEIUED

il il, 0 i.:i .r

GRAMOR DFVFI 'Fl[Hd'
JUL 1 3 20llg

oBEOOt{
SECRETARYOF STATF

The following informatbn is required by statute. Please complete the entire form. lf any of the information is inconect,
you can make changes on this form. Failure to submit this Annual Report and fee by the due date may result in
inactivation on our records.

Registercd Agent
THOMAS R PAGE
9OO SW FIFTH AVE STE 2600
PORTIAND OR 97204

t) Type of Buslness
Prral Flsl-afa Tnrrocl.moni

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new Agent
has consented to the appointment. Oregon street addres
required.

2) Prlncipal Place of Business (Str. address,city,state,zip)

19767 Shl 72nd Awenrra- Srrifa 1OO

3) talling Address (Address,city,state,zip)

Tualatin, OR 97062 19767 SW 72ND AVE STE 1OO

TUAIATIN OR 97062

4) tf tember or EI ilanager (Namc & Addrese) 5) tr femberor n ilanager (Name &Address
Gramor Investments. Inc-
19767 Sl{ 72nd Avenue, Suite 100

Tualatin, OR 97062

7) Prlnted Name

Barry A. Cain, President of
8) Date 7*0

Gramor fnvestments, fnc.
9) Daytimc Phone Number

0)

,F^at 1l'E 101 A

take check payable to "Gorporatlon D
Corporeffon Dlvirion, 255 Gapltol ST N
Note: You can also fax to (503) 378.4381
and exSiration date on a separate page ft

clotary of State,

It the card numberilililtilt[|truilruffiililtililil

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 254



s3 V,tj3-q I
ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION

OF

GRAMOR SHERWOOD LANGER LLC
an Oregon Ltmlted Llability Company

B7il6tfrW 3:21Pfi 0(mlldt5? m(}l
HFI}€SS Rff ffl].{J0

FILED
JUL 16 2M

OEOON
SECiETABY OF STATE

ARTICLE I

The name of the limited liability company (the "Company") is Gramor Sherwood

Langer LLC.

ARTICLE II

The Company shall have perpenral existence.

ARTICLE III
The name of the inilial registered agent is Thomas R. Page and the address of the

initial registered office is 900 SW fift ,'.'.'Jiiii3, 9';::: lfT, l::!r:j, A::3:: 9??04.

ARTICLE IV

The address where the Division may mail notices is 1976? SW 72"d Avenue, Suite 100,

Tualatin, OR 97062.

ARTTCLE V

The Company shall he managed by a manager.

ARTICLE VI

The name and address of the orgarrizer of the Company are Thomas R. Page,

900 SW Fifth Avenue, Suile 2600, Ponland, Oregon 91204.

ARTICLE VII

To the fullest extent the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act, as it exists on the date

hereof or may hereafler be amended, permits the limitation or elimination of liability of
managers or members, a managcr or momher shall not be liable to the Company or the other

members for monetary damages for conduct as a mamger or member, Any amendment to or
repeal of this Article VII shall not adversely aftbct any right or protection of a manager or

member for or with respect to any acts or omissions of such manager or member occurring

prior to such amendment or rePeal.

DATED il,r, firay of Ts\,

lhrfi$|.!l l{t8a. I mPgH {00{6

2008.

R. Page, -"-:

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 255



Chanse of Reoistered AoonUAddress - CoroorationsrLLC
Scclllery ol St.lo . Corporation Oivition - 255 Copilol Sr. NE. Suio r51 - Sdfii. OR 9731G132? - hrp:t/rww.Fthghorc0m.com - phon€: (tO3) 900.2200

Chocl tlio appropriale bor bclow:

Il cnance oF AGENTAND ADDREss
(coild.tc mly l.2, 3.4,5,0)

l- cnnruoe oF ADDREss oNLY
(Compl.t€ sly 1. 7, E. 0. 101

RecprnYNtmen: 534473-98

FILED

sEP 0 4 20t3

" onmoil
SM8rAFVOF STAIENOTEj Ur. lhi3 bm fo( Cooparatv6 or Bulanors Tru3ii.

ln accodanca silh Rcvbcd Statlnc tgz.rt'llt92.,l9o, Ol' inlornation on ril3 application is public llcord.
io el Eni* umn Gaucal and it wdl b! Doslrd on sr sabsilc. For ollica us onlv

Please Type or Prinl Legibly in ELck lnk. Atlach Additional Sheet il Necessary.

1) Eilnwlr^m, Gramor Sherwood Langer LLC

CHATcE oF REGISTERED AcEttArD oFFtcE

2) Txe Recprrneo Acetrr Hes Beeil Cxlrceo To:

Barry A. Cain
3) TFE NEw REcrsrrneo Acelr res Corssxreo lo Tnrs

Appourx.rr,

4) Aooness or nre NEw RecsrEneo Orrtce: (uurt bc .o (}.eon
Slll.t Adrlrua wtich i! idrntcal to ttle rcgistrrcd rOrnl'r busin.$ otfic..l

19767 SW 72nd Ave, Suite 100
Tualatin oR 97062

5) Tne STREET ADDRESS of rHE NEw REGFTEnso Orflce ero r{e
Bugrxrgg AoonEss oF rilE REolsTEREo Ac€ilTARE loetncru.

6) ExEcurpil:
By my signalurs, I declare ,s an aulhorized adhority. lhat thb filing
has been examin€d by me and b. to lhe besl ot my Inoryledge ard
belier, lrue, conrcl, arld cdnpble. Maklng ftdbo statemcnls in thig
docwnenl b agairFl lhe law and may be penalzed by fines,
imprFoflnent or bolh.

{Murl !o lilncd by q|r sorpor.L lor r orponlion or a
tEmbcrrmerrgcr tor e limilod

9gnature:

CHAI|GE oF REGFTERGD AcExfg ausFtEss oFFtcE olly
7) ilEw AoDn€sg or RECSEnED AGEm (Th. Dusinc$ e<ftr*r ot the

r.0htcrr(l r$,rl h.t chqcdtottFtolowinC o'Ggolr StnctA(rd.6r.)

8) Txe Srnegr ADDRES8 oF THe N:w Recsreneo Orrre ero rxe
Bus$rEss AoDREss oF rilE REGFTEREo AcEilT ARE lo€xrFAL.

g1 llonrrcenox:

f] t-he entity has b€en notifhd in writing of this change.

1o) Execunon:
8y my signalue. I d€clare as an aulhorized adhority, that this filing has
been examirEd by rne and is, to fiE besl of my knou,ledge aM belief,
lrue, coned. and cdnplste. Making tah€ ilaternentB in ttis docurnent is
agaanst lhe lalv and may be p€natired by fines. imprisorynenl or both.

(l/hril bc 3ignGd by 0ra cgbiarrd agrnt o. r cq9oraG dE r or dirlcbr br a
co.po..tbn ot a rnrmb.rrrn nrl€r br ! linitcd lLlflrtt cotip.ny )

Signature:

Printed Name:

Tille:

t&Rlc{rE Fo€s

fGe codar re eydrot ,t Flif{lrfrGoncoot. uslrg lE Busirr6s i{ur Sorldt gogtm.

Printed Nam€

Barrv A. Cain
Title: Presiient of Gramot lnvestments, lnc,, Manager of

Gramor Sherwood Langer, LLC

conrecr Nrre: (To f6tdvc qucslms with thi3 filing.)

GRAINOR SIIERWOOD I,ANGER LLC

ilffiilllffiilm|ilillllilllilll531{7398-1{591012 ACn

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 256



New Search

New Search

Please click

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

04-26-2022
17t45

Registry Nbr Eotily
Tvpe

Entity
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

931218-96 DBC ACT OREGON 04-17-2013 04-17-2023
Entiff Name GER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

Foreign Name

Type PLACE OF
S

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 I2I SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND IOR 197204 STATES OF AMERICA

Type ISTERED AGENTT Start Date tt-02-
l5 Resign Date

Name
Addr 1 r2l sw MORRISON #600
Addr 2

csz PORTLAND ION 97204 Gountry TINITED STATES OF AMERICA

TYpe ADDRESS

Addr I C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 I2I SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND Cou STIffES OF AMERICANFtrs'irrI
Type ENT Resign Date

Name GER

Addr 1 EARLEIGH WADA WITT
I2I SW MORRISON #600Addr 2

Countrycsz RTLAND UMTED STATES OF AMERICA

Tvpe Resign Date
Name COLE ER
Addr I EARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 121 SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND Country UNITED STATES OF AMERICAEUMI

New Search Name

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 257



Business Entity Name

Please read before ordering &pies.
New Search S

Name

Hi

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

Name Staft Date End Date

LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC. EN CUR 06-27-20t3
LANGER PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, INC. EN PRE 04-17-2013 06-27-20t3

Image
Available Action Transaction

Date
Effective

Date Status Name/Agent
Chanse Dissolved By

B AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

04-t8-2022 FI

@
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

04-13-2021 FI

B AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

04-29-2020 FI

@
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

04-19-2019 FI

B AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

04-19-2018 FI

@
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-t9-2017 FI

6 AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

04-21-20t6 FI

B AMNDMT TOANNUAL
RPT/INFO STATEMENT

tt-02-20t5 FI Agent

€
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

03-t7-20t5 FI Agent

B AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

03-23-2014 FI

B ARTICLES OF
AMENDMENT

06-27-2013 FI Name

B ARTICLES OF
TNCORPORATION

04-t7-2013 FI Agent

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 258



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i ng i norego n. com

E-FILED
Apr 18,2022

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

93121896

REGISTRATION DATE

04t17t2013

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT OF PROPERTIES.

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC BUSINESS CORPORATION

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

PRESIDENT

MATTHEW D LANGER

FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

SECRETARY

NICOLE A LANGER

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 259



Corporation Division

www.fi li ngi noregon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulenfly conceal, fraudulenfly
obscure, fraudulently alter or othenarise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
directors, employees or agents of the corporation on behalf of which the person signs. This filing
has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and beliei, true, coirect, anO 

"'

complete' Making false statements in this document is againit the law and may be penalized by
fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of oregon. I understand that tiansaciions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal.effect solely because they are conducted, executed, oi prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

REGISTERED AGENT

04-18-2022

TITLE

DATE

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 260



I

Corporatiorllimited Liability - lnformatlon Ghange
Socrstary otStab - Corporallon DMdon - 255 Cap[ol St, NE, Sune 1s1 -Satem, OR g73lGi327- - Phons: (503) 98$2200

Foc (608)3?S4381
Complete onlythe sections thatyou are

REGISTRY NUMBER: 931218-96

ENTTTYTYPE: r+DOMESTIC CFORETGN

No\, - 2 2015

ln acoordancswllh Rsvrlsed Statul€ I92,41&1U.49O,lhe Infofinallon on tfiis applloallon ls puHic record.

or Prlnt She€t lf Neeessary.

1. NAME OF CORPORATION OR LIMITED LIABII.IW COMPANY:

OREGON

Langer Asset Management,Inc.

2. PRINCIPAI PIACE OF BUSINESS: (StreetAddrossl

c/o Farleieh Wada Wift

5. ADDRESS WHERC THE DIVISION MAY MAll NOTICEST

clo Farleieh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #600, Portland, OR 97204

6. THE NEW REGISTERED AGENT HAS CONSEI{TEDTO THIS
APPOINTMENT.

121.SW Morrlson #600, Portland, OR 97204
3. THE REG TERED AGENT HAS BEEN CHANGED TO:

Dean T. Sandow

4. REGISTERED AGENT'S PUBTICLY AVAITABIE ADDRESS:
Must be an Oregon Street Address, which lg ldentlcal to the
reglstered agentrs offlce,

121SW Morrison f600

7. THE STRESTADDRESS OFTHE NEW REGISTERED OFFICE

AND THE BUSINESS ADDRESS OFTHE REGISIERED AGENT
ARE IDENNCAL.

The enttty has been notifled ln writing of this change.

Portland, OR 97204

NAMEISIAND ADDRESSIESIOF CORPORATE OFFTCERS OR ttc MEMBERSIMAN/|GERS
Corpontlons llstthe name and addr€ssof the B€sldentand Secretary (oRS 60.7s7, ons65.284oRs62.4s5,ons 554.315).
Llmlted UabllltyCompanies listthe name and addresses of themanagenfora manager-managed llmlted llablllty companyorthe nameand
address of at least one member for a member-rnanaged limlted llabillty company (ORS 63.787)r

8. PRESIDENT OR OWNER{S} (MEMBERSI: (Nam6s aod street addresst 9. SECRETARY OR MANAGER(SI: (Names and street address)

10. EXECUflON: 8y my Elgnature. I declare as an authorized slgner, that thls flllng has bean examined by me and ls, to the best of my knowledge and belief,

true, correct and complete. Maklng false statements ln thls document ls aEalnrt the law and may be penalized by flnes. lmprlsonment or both.

PRINTED NAME: TITLE:

0.,
CONTAfi NAME Oo resolve quenlons wlth thls flllng)

bean t. Sandow

r.AuGER ASSET I{ANAGEMENr, rNC.

I lil tillilill ffirilllilil lll il ilil ilr lil
PHONE l{UMBEn: (lnclude area code}

503-228-6044

lnfomarlon Change (01/l 5)

93121896-16504002 AAR

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 261



%(ztY_7b

Attachment to corporation/Limited Liability company - Information Change

Section 8: Matthew D. Langer, President
Farleigh Wada Witt
cla l2l SW Monison #600
Portlan{ Oregon 97204

Section 9: Nicole A. Langer, Secretary
Farleigh WadaWitt
clo l2l SW Morrison #600
Portland, Oregon 972A4

P:\DOCS\LAI.IPRO\I 2748\DOC\3N? I 995.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 262



From:DlH 5tts 498 Sto ttr/flt?ol' lo:tlf [573 P.002/m3

tffitd h. Snc1ar Oilo. 16f Crd 31 ;1g e- l0l .arirqJntc'tft

t3trt8-1.6

.lfCrrUf|lOcfac;-nu; I{,r

hhrbaff

FILED
JUN 2 7 2013

sEcRE?fRqFSHrrorc

Rrcfl;r

trdnt nfrth. ar*rEtlrT ilbr*cr t-!-PltrtypIFltrlIurhlt.tt
ll Emrt
A l'Mnrlrillrt tln{eF

1. EntU Narna

lnc,
rtd rf t th lh. r$(t, r f b mlill b Ed. Or.i. rrrl fit t,rqrr.l

LatmrAssct lnc.

3l T,tlfmrw^lAurrpOr; 06105113
(l rrrlr n rrrnrr.IFr. Ir* t-b.ltott i.f dr rrfrlntl

(c

r) Grcrnr lrcrr,rt tr^rl5tt:
tr f,rrt6r &t n rqld b doa Or rrilfi.r{r}
llrilnrh

u$rffr r&n E nctqr.d b-{t!l fllsfidrt rh. lnrutnffi(r}rt ]hild lrtr lprrl crlttbr |,5il t||l.lni5r'ffr.
E ff. gDr*tr r[ h.a rrtdn d6, sllljr0n? d.tr't,tilrrilLd b t|ht|h r||mftr|{t} Th. nr.nrlrrr{rlrrrlryra Df h ll|gpcetql a lt 0l' lilll dffin

o
rtl'b,bnob.tC tr{lL.h..

Arr.dlSr:
tlat$our Langsr

TIll
Prerldont

Catrlcil tlln: Oo rrdrr q.rtot tr It f:+)
John H-
La-lr---.-.,

I,ANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, TNC.

llil lillllil llllllll]lt u lilil ilril

FEES

frr.aHh l|O
lbFrhhaffi'.rrfr!.,
tbr-f lr-l*rff tbFrl.*r|*-taFt-h.
firrolrr nlrul*rsEra t.ltrr-.i-g.ilt|l.

.r.;l

9ncIrcltm lfrttddn
dralr'r

llrlrafuob.lrsa.t
bbed

fil|Drdvilad
FM

riilrdFbtcl
AOrXlr

F7

93121895-L4447 426 EMDABT

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 263



Fron:D&H 603 fg6 s10 OBtl?t?gl3 l0:lt5 !b-tg p.m/0&t

?sl atY-16
ACTI(tr{ OFTHE

SOLE SEAREHOLDER AT{D DInSCTOR
oF'

LATiIGER PROPERTY MAITIAGEMENT, INC.

T:'nocr*gnca oq$!r!ng rhc rorc rhrrchdrdcrand dirccrorof langc
Propcrty Muagcnclrl' Inq. (rho 'conpanyr') tt rUv lo.cr Cr. forr"*ioc .ffi*|noornccting:

^ ^ 9ormntc Nqmo chrnrc Thc mmo of ilro cbmpany ir bo6y changcd ro LrngcrAsrctMrnagancn$ lm.

Datcd Junc6,20t3.

10t0fl?etf

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 264



ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

corporation Division E-FILED
Apr 17,2013

www.filinginoregon.com OREGON SECRETARyOF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

93121896

ryPE

DOMESTIC BUSINESS CORPORATION

1. ENTIry NAME

LANGER PROPERW MANAGEMENT, INC.

2. MAILING ADDRESS

15585 SW TUALAT]N SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

3. NAME & ADDRESS OF REGISTERED AGENT

JOHN H DRANEAS

4949 MEADOWS ROAD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

4.INCORPORATORS

JOHN H DMNEAS

4949 MEADOWS ROAD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

5. NUMBER OF SHARES

1000

6. OPTIONAL PROVISIONS

No director of the Gorporation shall be personally liable to the Corporation or its shareholders for monetary damages
for conduct as a director; provided that this Article shall not eliminate the liability of a director for any act or omission
for which such elimination of liability is not permitted under the Oregon Business Corporation Act. No amendment to
the Oregon Business Corporation Act that further limits the acts or omissions for which elimination of liability is
permitted shall affect the liability of a director for any act or omission which occurs prior to the effective date of such
amendment.

The Corporation shall indemnify to the fullest extent not prohibited by law a Person who was or is a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any Proceeding against all expenses (including attorneys'fees), judgments, fines,
and amounts paid in seftlement actually and reasonably incurred by the Person in connection with such proceeding.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the corporation shall not indemnify any Person from or on account of acts or
omissions of such Person of a type for which liability could not be eliminated for a director under ORS 60.047(2Xd).
The corporation elects to indemniff its directors, officers, employees, agents for liability and related expenses under
ORS 60.387 to 60.414.

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 265



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g inoregon. com

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the bestof my knowledge and belief, true, conect, and compiete. Making fllse statements in this document is against thelaw and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.
By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business elecrronically with thestate of oregon. I understand that transaclions andlor signatures in records may not be denied legal effectsolely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a recordor signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

JOHN H DRANEAS

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 266



New Search

New Search

Please click

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

04-26-2022
l7:.47

Registry Nbr Entity
Tvp_e

Entity-
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

631905-82 DLLC ACT OREGON 05-04-1998 0s,04-2023

Entity Name LANGER FAMILY tLC
Foreign Name

CIPAL PLACE OF
Type

Addr I FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 I SW MORRISON ST STE 600

STATES OF AMERICAcsz lgtzo+reMTsEL

Resign DateStaft Date l5
13-

Type AGENTT

Name
Addr 1 FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

Gountry UNITED STIITES OF AMERICAcsz RTLAND

ADDRESS

Addr I GH WADA WITT
Addr 2 2I SW MORRISON ST STE 600

STAIES OF AMERICAcsz

ImilMrrr

@eu
Resign DateType

Name
Addr I CIO T2T SW MORRISON ST #600

Addr 2 121 SW MORRISON ST #600
Gountry UNITED STATES OF AMERICAcsz PORTLAND IOR IqZZO+

ivrfvt

Resign DateGER

Name GER

Addr I 12I SW MORRISON ST #600

Addr 2 21 SW MORRISON ST #600

Country LINITED STATES OF AMERICAcsz FonrleNl bn lgzzo+

IIENGT

New Search Name Hi

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 267



Business Entity Name

Please read before ordering eBics.
New Search S

Name Name Staft Date End Date

EN CUR 0s-04-1998LANGERFAMILY LLC

I ransaGftqn
Date

Effective
Date Status Name/Agent

Chanse Dissolved ByActionImage I
Availablel

04-25-2022 FI€ ffitJR*ANNUAL
05-tt-2021 FI€ ffiDANNUAL

FIffi hnrrclps oF MERGER t2-3t-2020

FIe ffi*ANNUAL 0s-12-2020

05-10-2019 FIxgI $MENDED ANNUALq*# RgpOnf

10-04-2018 FIrg* hMNDMT TO ANNUAL
lEP hprrnmo sTATEMENT

GF ffiHTDANNUAL 05-04-2018 FI

FIB RIffiHnDANNUAL 05-19-2017

02-t5-2077 FIf$ hnrrcrns oF MERGER

-

G} ffi*ANNUAL 0s-14-2016 FI

FI Agentffi h}Iffi*ANNUAL 05-13-2015

SYSIANNUAL REPORT
FavunNr 04-25-2014

05-09-2013 FIhNNUAL REPORT

FI
GENT/ADDRESS

OF
1t-27-2012

04-30-2012 FIlmnrunr REPoRT
05-10-2011 FIhNNUAL REPORT

FIIANNUAL REPORT 05-11-2010

04-07-2010 FIffi hvmonar To ANNUALqEF hprnxro sTATEMENT

03-24-2009
03-23-
2009

SYS
IANNUAL REPORT
bnvrtarwr

03-19-
2008

SYSIANNUAL REPORT
JpnvrrasNr

03-20-2008

04-03-2007 FI
ICHANGE OF
hscNrnREn
lncBNrapDRESS

SYSIANNUAL REPORT
hevrtnBNr

03-27-2007

AL REPORT 03-24-2006 03-23- SYS

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 268



2006

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

IANNUAL REPORT
hnvuBNr 03-30-2005

03-28-
2005

SYS

IANNUAT REPORT
hevrvrBNr

03-25-2004
03-24-
2004

SYS

FILq.MNDIur
hprnr'no

TO ANNUAL
STATEMENT

09-t2-2403

FI
CHANGE OF

[scrsrnroo
IncBNTIaoDRESS

06-30-2003 Agent

ra RBTNSTaTEMENTqEF hrvrpxoBn
06-30-2003 FI

07-ol-r999 SYSFNVOL DISSOLUTION

GB fvn aunroMENr l0-20-1998 FI

G$ [vnw FTLTNG 05-04-1998 FI

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 269



From:DlH 5rF fs s10 $lflta''3 10:04 tE73 P.fln/m

Arrhlad .Bufirrlh#dotd
tffrolh. ococrkr or5r. lll G.F i. re. 3|t tor . ljrr(n It$lo.lgt.ltlfrur.tlhah0rrlgrJsr - Ff!r*OltfrI{!O

nrilY@a.'t8-1,6
FILED
JUN 2 7 2013

sEcRE?iFf8H*ror.
It rll.alorgJn,t lamrurtt rd*rbC.* rErt

urnn-lrllrlbrdcrqr*. hlbrra*
FllnTrp c PriltTUt h Ehcf ff.
ll Ermt
el l'stir lttfrt llnr{tl}: rl xr Hr h ru.(r). t b Inr'lla b l!.d. 61lll. lrJr.rr rnE{r.t

1. EnstlNarne

lnc.

lgngpr A$ct llanagBmcnl, lnc.

3l Trrrmr5 r1ryrrD61r: 0610511 3
(rnrrrrl rrrr-.-F. tdtr(n(lffitder'|fil,r.f

.) OsnrAmmr.Illreflnn
D Anfrcr 6nrr$t d brt$t0|t ilrrcrtdF}
lbrtrrfu:(c

EArr**trtlbnunctllqf.dhdsllt.rutrr{l}llrnltrlrnn(ltil.thil.dttlllolrlcf |3tcFtSrGrr|]|dt0lrr5r.
Effrqr*onir,[btartdlrrt!t$!f.ffirffrCrrnootililfitb*lO.rnmeurF]Thrlr.|tr{r}n

ddd It ho lnstqaar c lrf dlr Drd CCtEr

o
ha.

Ehrdtlnr:
llattl€f,rLangcr

llc
Prsrldent

Gorrrgr lluu Ccil.rv. q.r*Ilfinb ra.)

.John H. Dnmas __

FEES
ri! . 'r .a. . 

-i:Uiqtu rrF
ttFrbffiartCri,
ttqrlllrrrdlf t-ri..Irt$rtrFthh.
;r o1r n irU I ffii a rJf 11 f-13i-lrrl yqr

.r.ii

l.dlr-*-.. . .

r"AltGER ASSET MANAGEMEMT, rNC.

]ilr il|ililI illliluil il illilt il lil
93121896-14447426 IUDART

gI0ailcjrrr llrlrGfdr!
AlllliaL- bbcd FM

tlrrilrdrtcl
tdrmtf,

tr7

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 270



Frm:DtH Srxt ts 6s10 0E/17/2013 10:05 lSTl P.m/m

?sl atY'1L
ACTION OF THE

SOLE SEAREHOLDER AT{D ONBCTON
oF'

T"TTTCNN PROPERTY MAITIAGEIUEITTTI INC'

Thc rndcrrign€4 oruiindng tho:ols shsddldcr End dircaorof tarycr
Propctty Mlq3crnol. lns (thc 'Comprnyr') h6dy td.6 thc bllowing rcion wlthour
mcairy:

CorDontq Namo Clnnrc. Thc rtsmo of thc Company is bq,6y changd b Lurgcr
AsrctMuagcrncnl lnc,

Datcd Juno6,2013.

Sharcholdcr

lDrofl?&tl

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 271



ililmmilmtitiitii'ffiintu
lat'

a

-
ITT'TT

F

rF;ft
*

I

I

3, 1

i

3T:T TTIT{n|S AgENgT

oi-rJAt

-

Fntqf;pn-rAlfisr

r;lilIIlrrH!..FrtlFnl HFrgrlrH
,l Htr|l*tr!;tlrrts rFtrrrr FAfi

OLOL -

'FFI), t

D ao qryrr{, qrg c-c {,rEi. * t .€.:.m
riFnrrtl{rc$rrFl

ffilrrtffiEftl r rrr rrr' Pt Ps tc rr * n
sgogrnr **'ffi*
OlnlJ - rcrtrrlrrlv.

rxrDrl rn

tr,
r;1iltrlt$crrla

I

I

rI*EDlilrn€rtrtarrm-{rntm#nFq|
l|.folltl::Frrrn

I{ Inrt }t llrrrnl
a.atff- _ r-ao'a-- rttt lrt col

4fl{]lrr;tH133;;a;nr$-B- -t[u-]t
I:plpr

r9r
|||ll! ff l-ra llelt ltlli.f

iltVrrr$ 1illtllltt d3trto CO-al-{nF

.7ap-

i:-'J -')

a

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 272



rlrfr-Z7-Og Ol t l3P SENTTNEL STORAGE

ln-ll.l!!l lt:ll lrt'tll ll! Cfm

lrl{otiFAlfLYttc
no0rDtlnsusoN "$3!3Wn rUilrRO
TU^l.ATDailSrm .

llur d Dorltc f.filra lJrbetl Wv
TANGIRFATNLYTT.C .

rlgHnderlnr
nol D?tncusoN
1333gtuilAlr?filD
RrAl.Anl.oRrtra

A t firclll Pb d llltfr3l (lU. dtlr.elt.ldt Sl
Itt3l Stl lrrrlrct!-tbrrnod Elftrel

aaa---a.-.a_a

l[.l'&tlo l.$r ?.0y!n F{l?

nH]lSTATEllEtrrtrutl.
nnbrlmr: 631905{2
rl.folllnldorsCltclflllt

?tp: OiGmC UffiCD Slrltt fIY

.. FILED
JUlr 3 0 200t

. oREOOit "
EECRETARVOF8TAIE

&rlrght
ort(r4t

t h. tLtl-fI eed irr .llrr14 $r lllr
ilatrublbFhlllnt.. .

rl nrir rsn oaatrrclrdrutt
ttl tl, CrblDh 33t..8. tslsr

Ssrlrryot$rr
ccrrrEmotu*ott
2s5e.trd$xtilE'$t ltl- slnltof,ltilDlut '

r,r*ffOPaCO
FEtlBttttflltwiroro,c.ft rttladlr

Th. blcrtrc hhnrrdiu b 
'leur- 

Dt3lnna ttffircsrtirUr ltcbtttu

rl tYFctluJtgr
Ltdr:t

Sbcroodr Orrtol rtla0 9?20t-661t

O El mrrEf ttltqr ttrrr 3 liarr : DElnrESrnrln
Glrtmer D. llnl,rrr Jt.
ttttt $t ttrrbtlEFtb.rrrood lltburl
Slrrnocll Otctor ttla0

?'lhdrllr
*

o

?lrctmrnr

t3l

1. '

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 273



,
a

rlloohFt?r lt0tr
affrrlr€jrrrrtErtrocElrc,trrcl
t-r.Of fil$tllt

nrrrrlrd AtrFh-l,lolrd
trenlt.i

J

fFtrtE: 6il90t-02
&ir.lFrJrtllCrTrnttFr'illtft.lEll

Fllsf
. ocl20g
SECRETAFY OI STATT

It lrturlrilt
TIilGEN LI LIf

a hl-tnalrtDLsrncffrfrf

$ lrrrrllnrra
$lgrscrritHrd.

al Orcrtrlmmlratrrt
E ff rllrf fr rrn rrrrhrl dr O d nrr rd crC. lhr rtrrr F rf d tr tr rrry0l

Ilfilrtl rEb rrri rrlrrirlrr fr ElrQr rud rrr 
- 

J 6Fr c'lrs tr- rg!9' llll .
-if r.rsrff r;;tr'lrgtlf lrrrrrr J.90. frrdlrrrrrrctdlrrrtrlr qrl

tl trorrn{trFrr:t
hh
CllraFe,a D.,,Lf!ogr. Jr

tlr
krabera

O Gcntlrr
llart L. Huglln

o.rrrriqtrn
15031 llt-1010

I.ANGER FAMTLY LLC

ilIilr rll| III|llltiltilt III]lt Illiltlll| til

FEES

^frtf Gr.lil
53190582-1128106 NBA

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 274



REET^TED ARTICI.E! Of ORCA

of sFcRaAs? 
0FsrAn

ItltcER FAXtrV ll.C

ARrrcN.E T

Tho rddrrrl ot fic nebtrant oflia d lhr rtc I EtiSi $l,ll rrnuin iord.
Tudeth. oR 0t62 md 0l nlrr of rr hilal rrgisorl rgcnr d rrch roa n r
ROfi O. FERcrrsor{.

ARTICI."E I
Thc nrrr d |hr t^LG b TANGER FAMILV t^tG.

ANNCLE 2

Thlrrirbrn ol0rc LLC drrl br prnctnL

ARIrcIE 
'

ThrLlc.rnQg ddlcrllarrdicr Fgulldttthc ollgdt tinilad l.lFritt
Csnemt Acl I E555 SW tud.tir Trntdlt OR 070di

ARnCtE 5

lhr Ll0 Jtr| bt ntrttgcd by cr c rul Mmegnn.

ARIFI"E C

molttrn rnd ilenrgorldtht Llc $.r nd br r.bb b lht llc c rr $rr$cn
lor mautety drmrgrohcorrdu.t n llcrr$cn ryrd lrantclr rlogl burtrffiUrt
tr. ongfi Lintbd tbDtatt cererny Arl. r I mu irirl-c mry ninmar ba
rlltlttdod. Ploltbilr chnhetrilt a rmd.lHr ol lfunbcr a llrynoi lrbiltly. lto GpoC 0r
mpndmit dltr ARIICLE t c d lhr Orugdr tinilcd ti.bflilt Coilerirt A.t rtrst
.drrcrclyetlbd rnt fifi c probctitn ol r rlombcrq lrh,nrd.br ritilrirc
onrlrbm Prir btllc rGpcd q nrndn;ll"

Prgc t - RESTA?EDAf,rncLEs oF onc^iltzATloil oF t,lr{GER fAHttv llc

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 275



a rl
bll 105'g?/

AR1ETE ?

Th. t.LC drrl hrlamitf crdl of ll Menrectr b lhl lidcd crttl pcmireb
mdrr Orrem br, 11 nr rrlrr ari]tl or mry hmrillrr Dr merdql. qtrit1| rf hblily.
lort.nd 3ofi Otdrdhg, rnhod fnimiott dlonuy bsd fnnrd s rfbnd bt lt1qlt
prrton bt ndo d a -rirfrg fron lhl llcl tht rdl pttlcl I c wc I llrtug1c d At
ifC. c is Ul| rtn ltg i On ]t$Id dD. llc n r m|n|e0t dirocbr. dfio;.
p]tt.r,tlrbr. onployce, O lgpnt d ndtrrh'dgn a doapdiChibd l$nil,
onernt aorpsrtort pttutnip, Flf rrilm. hil. bamlt pbn, d dtet onrnila.
Ih;t^tG nrt, btrction dtlrllcntcl1aUeneOcn. DrurUt fdcnnlltcrtion b
rrp6yrcr lrrl rgprfi d $. tl0 uho ria nd mrnrfn. Thc htlctmilicrtiotl ptot idtd
h Ofi-ARTICLE t 1|rrf ad hl erUdur tbffi burd;$ mt Fnon mry brrr{iilGd
rnrh rny dftb. WI. oFfdite 1gtupt|. nmffibt d M6ilcn c tlrmggr.
sdndgofiondrc.

Tha pccst b Entrcl $ort 0tir lllite b fleil L }ttglitr A (50t, Zll.l0f0.

fuf.ffH

a
.l

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 276



1 .- r

&a/feS-Q
ARRCLES OF ORGA]IIEANOil

OF

I.ANGER FAMILV lIC
At Onect Lhibd Lirbldt Cor"rtt

FIID**'*'*ii':I-Effl

'.offisrArE

Iilil ilil ililililililt ililil llffi il lr

rxt
lao.s

Iho urrdcni0rpd ort d ponon ol hr qp d tE yarn c ruir. rdhg n
oryeniru undr fic On0ott fhibd tirOlity Coqrnf A4 ldoplt lhl blorng ftticlcr
dOtgmLnliot:

Thc n-rrdo,r roibd r.bi*rffi:LArrrGER FAtrrLy r"tc {o''rrg).
Ih. tt C rlulcrid urfl dirrducd n pouilctl h0rr Scnnf eryEmrri.

ARNcl.EI

Thr l'LG ul b. nmtrctt bt fr il!il.n.

ARncl.Em

Thc nmr d ut hiri.rt rc$rbfld lottt I Roll D FERGI goil rnd ilc rddnc
d O! hfid trgbtGilld otfia f t5:i5 $1tll Tnldit Rord. Otrgon et002. lha ddrar
ri.rt thr t inxn mry rnrl notict I E55C SlrVTuddr Ro.d. olrrgrrr 970Se.

ARTICI.E IY

fhr nnrr nd rddnu d lht orystti!.r b John H. DnncH. &2 S,W. Colurtril
Sbcr, Sutr 1025, Fol0ma OR 97!101.

AR?EI,CY

On$ $.18$(f, rl rtd .pptt h tt cf,nl rn rddrtionC rprS; I rdnitbd bfi.
llC diftilta hdiccily by alrougn tr.lS. migrmcn" a ofiirFnuey.nildlr
ondiu hurdhfi.lLC.

I.A}IG1ER FADIILY LtC
Pror I -ARTFLES Of ORGAtllZATpil Of

63190582-LL2SLA7 NElt

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 277



a.a-!

Gzllo5-fJ
ARNctE UI

Thr clbdirr ddr ol frrc llcr olirbrn b th. dilr ot fe? ol lhclr Arridil bt
lhr Sroarryd$.b.

I, the ndarigncd orpr$a, dadlrr undcr pl rnhl dpcriry. fia I hrrl
orfnird ltc hngoif. tr b 0rc bcd d rt fnortadgr rr{ 6ctiit 

-lrac 
maor C

Ognnlnlin lr! trl. currcl. nrl crylril
DAIED I t908.

fhr panon b orilrct toul Cfi fifrg i Jofn H. hrmn i Zlt-l0a0.

?X.qlltil)

Frot e -ARTlcLEs oF oRG NtzA'lFlt oF [AilcER FAiltly llc

I

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 278



New Search

New Search

New Search

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

M Transaction Data

er Survivor

Non Survivor

M Corre

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

Effective
Date StatusImage

Date Actlon I rdrtJllriarrrf r

Date
t2-31-2420 FIARTICLES OF MERGER

Name
Status JurisdictionEnSy

Tvp_c
Registry
Number

Name

DLLC CREGON531905-82 LANGER FAMILY LLCCUR

Entity
fvpe IurisdlctionRegistry

Number
I ruame I

lst.tusl Name

DLLC OREGON419s37:95rcUR lsX COnNERS, LLC

DLLC OREGONBALER LLC

Type ADDRESS

Name
Addr I FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

LINITED STATES OF AMERICACountrycsz PORTLAND pR 197204

iIMI

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 279



New Search

New Search

New Search

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

M Transaction Data

er Survivor

M Non Survivor

M C

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

Effective
Date Statusfmage

Date Action fransaction
Date

02-t5-2017 FI02-15-
2017

ARTICLES OF MERGER

Name
Status

Entlly
fvp,e JurisdictionRegistry

Number Name

DLLC OREGON53 1905-82 CUR LANGER FAMILY LLC

Entity-
Tvoe turisdictionRegistry

Number
Ittame I

lst"tusl Name

DLLC CREGON486860-83lCUn I,ANGERBROS., L.L.C.

No Correspondent found.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 280



- lnformation

Sircietary ot OMston SLNE Sulte

Please Type orPdnt Legibly lh Black
(503) e8$Z0o'
rsedrsslsgttru

REGIS.IRY NUMbER: 63i905-82

'ENflWT.YPE: oDOMESrtq orORBeU'
OCT 04 eOU

iiiformailon on'ih!6 aprillcatlon,b pudllo recorq
riill:ba.liosled on.ou,wsbslte.'

1. I|AME OF CORPORATION OR tlABlHrY COMPANYT

r 'tLc

a BuslNEssAcnvlw

3. PRINCIPAL PIACEIOF BUSINESS: {5tre6t Add;esr)'

4. TI.{E RE.GISIiERED AGENI'HAS BEIN CHANGEE:TO:

5-
Must be an bregon llr€efAddr€ss, which is ideirtical to the
rcgisterediagf nf s offBce.

you are
6, ADDRESS THE'EMSION MAV MAIL NONCES:

-

7. THE NEW REGISTERED AGENT'HAS CONSET{TEI' TOTHIS

A.PP€IISTM.ENT.

8. TI{E ST.R.EEI ADERESS.OF TIIE NEW REGISTERED OFFICE,

AND:THE BUSINESS.ADDRESS OF THFREGISTERED AGENT

ARE IDENTICAL.

The ent'ity has beenqn'otlfied in writlrig of thii change.

9. lNDlVlDt AL W|TH EIRECI KNOWTEDGE lNlmes and Addte3ies)
Ustthe m.nie rhd addiess of at:Lait on! lndltildtal *ho ls r:dlrtcloa or conuo[hB
efibraholde& of lhe clrtoFtlon (mEmblr,ot mbnstcidl llie ttcl ot rD .ulhotliid
repErentatlve.wltli'dlrE€t Ltaurlsdgaot'tie opdtatlon! ild liu:lnese acUiiltles,of

thercorporiilonor'UL

10: NAME(slAT3-13?*:i'tJffJ:'lH:$t:ffi:'?:litj$i"^"*"ff'yHffi#,'Joro,rr,-"o6s.78?ioRSd2.4js,onssi4r1sl

t|mhed usbt_[W qlmpaniet list.thgname and,addresse$of tlrq mamgers'fora'manager-manage{ IriJtsd llabjllty'comp?ny,olti"e nsme and'addiess

of"t,least one member'lora pember.managedullmlied,llabllltJ companf (oR5 5i1,78?,. Ptease atBch:a separirte iheet of:paper.if needEd..

fimskiigchangesto thissbrtlon, li3tall curredt riimee,and,addrdsi6i. Thls replaces.what.li iuii$nti! on the recdrd.

pREStqsNT OR OI/VNER(S) 0\,tEMgERSl: (Names and Addresses) sEcnET'aRli oR'MANAGER(S): {Names and Addresses)

llanger Asset M?nagement, lnc,
ffi-.....

clo F.arii'eghWada Wkt

121SW MOririson St#600

Foitlind;.OR 9V20Fl

tt. sxECUTtoNr I deilare:as.an authorlzed.slgner. uhder penalty of'perjury, thatthis.document:does nstftaudulenllyconceal,,obscure,
,alte.r,oretherwlse,Inisiepresenttheidifitityofany'pgisonlncludlngiofflcersid.iiec.torq'empl'oyees,members,managers'oragentS: This

:fllingfui5 been,examiried andih, to the best of my knowiedge and beiiefl truE correctand complete. Mbking false statements in

be penalized by. fihes;klprisonment, or both.

PRTNTED NAME: TIIIE:

this document'ls laW and may

Dean T. Sa AttorneY'in-fast

SiG!iATUREJ

GONTACT NAl,lE ffo resolqe-questtpnrdih'this fi liild)

+.- ... J I -_, i.uean t. s_anqow
PHoNE'NUMBc&'{lnclgde aYea code)

(sost 228.6044

ililtffiil

iub Plocesttrg Fecl

illililllllll

I.A}TGER FAD'ILY LLC

FEES

lnfotinailOn Cltdtige 14t7,}

63190582-19399817 AAR

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 281



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linginoregon.com

E-FILED
Apr 25,2022

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

63190582

REGISTRATION DATE

05/04/1998

BUSINESS NAME

I.ANGER FAMILY LLC

BUSINESS

OWNING, AGQUIRING, MANAGING, AND MAINTAINING REAL PROPERTY FOR INVESTMENT AND THE
PRODUCTION OF INCOME.

MAILING ADDRESS

FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLAGE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MEMBER

MAfiHEW D LANGER

cto 121sw MoRRlsoN sT #600

121 SW MORRISON ST#600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

MANAGER

MATTHEW D LANGER

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 282



Corporation Division

www.fi I inoinoreoon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

cto 121sw MoRRrsoN sT #600

121 SW MORRISON ST#600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulently alter or othenrise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct,
and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the law and may be penalized
by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

04-25-2022

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 283



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name

04-26-2022
lTt$l

Registry Nbr Entltv
Tvoe

Enllty
Status Iurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

4t9538-94 DLLC ACT OREGON 03-t2-2A07 03-t2-2023

Entity Name LANGER FARMS, LLC
Foreign Name

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr I C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 12I SW MORRISON #600

STATES OF AMERICAcsz R wufl,r@il

AGENT Sta* Date
ll-02-

l5 Resign DateType

Name w
Addr 1 I2I SW MORRISON #600
Addr 2

Country I.INITED STATES OF AMERICAcsz PORTLAND IOR p7204

ADDRESS

Addr I FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 2l sw MORRISON #600

STAIES OF AMERICACoucsz 197204

Type Resign Date
of

Record GER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 I21 SW MORRISON #600

STATES OF AMERICACoucsz PORTLAND g&,WFiry.I

Name
Tvpe

Name
Status Staft Date End DateBusiness Entity Name

EN CUR 03-12-2007LANGER NARMS, LLC

Please read before ordering eqpjcs.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 284



New Search S
Effective

Date StatusImage I
Availablel Action I ratltJduatt f r

Date
Name/Agent

Change Dissolved By

04-08-2022 FI#} IAMENDED ANNUALGfl lneponr

B trYt"JtrDANNUAL
03-30-2021 FI

€ ffi-Ao.*UAL 03-11-2020 FI

B R}ffiH*ANNUAL 03-t4-2019 FI

11h IAMENDED ANNUALGr RspoRT
03-28-2018 FI

d;; IAMENDED ANNUALr5F RepoRT
03-17-2017 FI

03-23-2016 FIB Hf#"ANNUAL
n-02-2015 FI Agent€ ffiHJ TO ANNUAL

STATEMBNT
ll{Nl.rUAL REPORT 03-19-2015 FI
lmwuar REPoRT 03-25-20r4 FI

03-lt-2013 FIhmn-rer REPORT

lr-27-2012 FI
GE OF

S

IANNUAL REPORT 03-13-2012 FI
FIlamwer REPoRT 03-16-2011

03-16-2010 FIhtWUar REPORT
IANNUAL REPORT
henaeNr 02-02-2009

0t-29-
2009

SYS

FIlaN{eNpgn
hsponr

ANNUAL
02-05-2008

03-12-2007 FI Agent
L\RTICLES OF
bncnNzATIoN

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 285



New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Click here to generate and print an annual report.

Associated Names

about and service

04-26-2022
l7;52

Online Renewal:
Renew Online

New Search

Please click

Registry Nbr En!!ty-
Tvp_e

Enlily-
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Ner<t Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

r1,t3179-96 DLLC ACT OREGON 05-t4-201s 0s-14-2022 YES

Entity Name LANGER HERMAN ROAD RV STORAGE LLC

Foreign Name

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr 1 T5555 SW TUALATIN-SHERWOOD ROAD
Addr 2

STITIES OF AMERICACoucsz 140D R

Resign DateStaft Date
15

l4-
Type AGENT

Name EAN
Addr 1 12I SW MORRISON #600

Addr 2
Gountry UNITED STAIES OF AMERICAcsz PORTLAND bR 197204

ADDRESSType
Addr I I21 SW MORRISON #600

Addr 2
STATES OF AMERICACoucsz PORIr,AND IOR p7204

TVPe Resign Date

of
Record ASSET MANAGEMENT,INC

Addr I C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 1 2 1

csz PORTLAND IOR 197204 STATES OF AMERICA

New Search

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 286



Please read before ordering egpjcs.
New Search

Name His

His

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved

Name
Tvoe

Name
Status Sta* Date End DateBusiness Entity Name

EN CUR 05-14-2015LANGER HERMAN ROAD RV STORAGE LLC

Image
r---:l-t-t^ Dissolved ByI ransa(;fr{rn

Date
Effective

Date Status Name/Agent
ChangeAction

05-18-2021 FI@
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI05-22-2020ffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FIAMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-t7-2019@
FIe AMENDED ANNUAL

REPORT
05-15-2018

05-19-2017 FI@
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

06-03-2016 FIB AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

Agent05-t4-2015 FI@
ARTICLES OF
ORGA}IIZATION

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 287



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I in g i no rego n. com

E.FILED
May 18,2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

1 1 1317996

REGTSTRATION DATE

0511412015

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER HERMAN ROAD RV STORAGE LLC

BUSINESSACTIVITY

INVEST IN A STORAGE DEVELOPMENT, OWNERSHIP, AND OPERATION BUSINESS

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIIIIARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

15555 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896. LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 288



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linginoregon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,

fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or

agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me

and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this

document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the

State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely

because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or

signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

05-18-2021

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 289



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi ling i noregon.com

E.FILED
Jun 03,2016

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

1 1 1317996

REGISTRATION DATE

05t1412015

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER HERMAN ROAD RV STORAGE LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

INVEST IN A STORAGE DEVELOPMENT, OWNERSHIP, AND OPERATION BUSINESS.

MAILING ADDRESS

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

15555 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD ROAD

SHERWOOD OR 97140 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 290



@
Corporation Division

www.filinginoregon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best

of my knowledge and belief, true, conect, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the

law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the

State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect

solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or

signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

06-03-2016

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 291



a

*
Registry Number il {r nq-Ib

FIT-FD
MAY 14 ?015

Arficles of Organizafion

LangerHerman Road RV StoragellC

OREGON
SECRETARYOF STATE

The undersigned natural person, acting as organizer under the Oregon Limited Liability
Company Act, adopts the following articles of organization:

Article I

The name of the limited liability company is Langer Herman Road RV Storage LLC
("Company"), and the Company will be perpetual.

Article 2

The Company will be managed by one or mohe managers as provided in an operating
agreoment.

Artiele3

A manager of the Company shall not be personally liable to the Company or its members
for monetary damages for conduct as a manager, except for liability of the manager for (a) acts or
omissions that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of the law by thc manager,
(b)conduct ttrat violates ORS 63.235 pertaining to unpermitted distibutions to members or loans to
managers, or (c) any transaction from which the manoger will personally reoeive a benefit in money,
property or services to which the manager is not legally entitled. If the Oregon Limited Liability
Company Act is amended to authorize limited liability company aotion furthor elimiuating or liniiting the
personal liability of managers, thon the liability of a manager of the Company shall be eliminated or
limited to the fullest extent permittod by tho Oregon Limited Liability Company Acf as amended. Any
repeal or modification of this Article by the membors of the Company shall not affect adversely any right
or proteotion of a manager of the Company existing at the time of such repeal or modific*ion.

Ardcle 4

The Company shall indemnify each manager as against all liability, damagg or expenie
resulting fiom the fact that suoh person is or was a mantger, to the ma:<imum extent and under all
circumstanc€s permiUed by law, exoopt that the Company shall not indemnify a manager against liability,
damage, or expense resulting ftom the manage/s gross negligence,

Artlcle 5

The name of the initial registered agent is Dean T, Sandow, and the address of the initial
registered office is l2l SW Morison #600, Portland, Oregon 97204, The address where the Oregon
Corporation Divislon may mail noticos is c/o DesnT. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt, 121 SW Morrison
#600, Portland, Oregon 97204,

Artislo 6

The name and address of the organizer is Dean T. Sandow, Farleigh Wada Witt,
l2l SW Morrison #600, Portland, Oregon 972M.

IANGER EERMAN ROAD R\I STORAGA L
T _ ARTICLFS OF OROANIZATION
ft DOCS\DTS\73846\DOC\3LZ I 40 I.DOC

illilllllll[ffi]1ilffiil| ililil|ffiil
111317996-15100652 NENONG

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 292



r i

.k tt 13 t1 q'qh

Article 7

The effective date of the Company's existence is the date of filing of these Articles by the
Oregon Corporation Division.

I, the undorsigned organizer, declare under penalties ofperjury that I have examined the
foregoing, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, these Articlos of Orgenization are true, conect,
and completo.

Dated May 14,2015

Organizor

The porson to contact about this liling is:

Dean T. Sandow
Farleigh Wada Witt
l2l SWMonison #600
Ponland, Orogon 97204
503.228.6044
dsandow@fwwlaw.com

2 _ ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
P:\DOCS\DTS\73M6\DOC\3LZ 140 l.DoC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 293



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n glnoregon. com

E-FILED
AprO8,2O22

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

41953894

REGISTRATION DATE

o3t12t2007

BUSINESS NAME

IANGER FARMS, LLC

BUSINESS

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY.

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 294



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i no i n oreo on. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct,
and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the law and may be penalized
by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

04-08-2022

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 295



l'?0

Gorporationllimlted Llabllltv Company - lnfonnation Change

Sscrclary ot Stale - Corporaflon OMslon - 255 Capitol SL NE, Sulb t51 - Sdem, OR 97p10.13if

Complete only the sectlonr that you are

REGISTRY NUMBER: 419538-94

,ENTIIYTYPE: (.+DOMESTIC OFOREIGN

-Phono: (50:096&2i100
Fax (5110)37&438r

No\/ - 2 2015

OREGONln acoodrnc€wllh Rovlt€d Slslub lg2.4lG102,490,lhelformalbn onthlg apdlcauon b publlot€cold.

l€glbly ln AttdrAddltlonal
1. I$AME OF CORPORANON OR TIMITED TIABIUTY GOMPANY:

Langer Farms, LLC

2. PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BU$INESST lStreet Addr$el

c/o Farleigh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #60O Portland, OR 97204
3. THE REG TERED AGENT HAS BEEN CHAT'IGED TO:

Dean T. Sandow

4. REGISTERED AGENTS PUBUCTYAVAII.ABIE ADDRESS:
Must be an oregpn Street Addresr, whlch b ldentlcal to thr
reglstered agent's offke.

121SW Morrlson #600

5. ADDRESS WHERE THE DIVISION MAY MAIL NOTICES:

c/o Farleieh Wada Witt . .

121SW Morrison f60O Portland, OR 97204

6. THE NEW EEGFTERED AGENT HAS CONSENTED TO THIS

APPOtNTi'IENT.
,{

7. THE STREET ADDRESS OF THE NEW REGISTERED OFFICE

AND THE EUSINESS ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED A€ENT

ARE IDENTICAT.

The entity has been notlfled ln wrltlng of this change,

Portland, OR 97204

NAME(SI AND ADDRESS{ESIoF CORPORATE OFFICERS. OR ttc MEMBERIilMAIIIAGERS

Coryoratlons llstthe name and address of the Presidentand Sectetary{ON60.7SZ ORS 65.787,ORS62.451ORS 554315}.

. Llmited Llablllty Compinles llst the namq and addresses of the managen for a managor-managed llmlted llablllty company or tha name and

addrsrs if at leart one rnember for a rnembe r-managed llmited llablllty company (OfiS 63.787).

g. PRESIDENT OR OWNER(SI (nnEMBERSf : (Names and streat address| 9. SECRgTARY OR MANAGER(S); (Namer and strcet sddress)

1-- -

tO. EXECIITION: By flry ilSnature, l.declare as an authorlzed slgner, that thls flllng has been examlned by me and ls, to the best of my knowledge snd bellef,

true, cor€ct and complete. Mgklng talce statements ln thls doqJtnent ts agaln6t the law arid may be penallzed byflneq lmprlsonment or both.

rflE:

c

CON?ACT NAHE: (fo resolve quetlons wlth thlr flllng)

DeanT. Sandow
LAI{GER FARIdS, LLC

PHONE NUll[BEft (lncludearea tode]

503-228-6044 lll I lil I I il ltiltilltil til I ill ill lt
lnformnlon Chang0 (0l/t5l

41953894-16503992 AAN

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 296



, t

+t7578 17

Attachment to Corporation/Limited Liabilif Company - Information Change

Section 9: Langer Asset Managemenq Inc.
Farleigh WadaWitt
clo L2l SW Monison#600
Portland, Oregon 97204

L
P:\DOCS\LAMAI\AI 0958\DOC\3N71 525.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 297



New Search

New Search

Please click

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name His

04-26-2022
17254

Registry Nbr EAtity
Tvoe

Entity
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

1497796-96 DLLC ACT OREGON lt-2t-2018 tl-21-2a22
Entity Name LANGER OPERATIONS LLC

Foreign Name

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr 1 121 SW MORRISON #600
Addr 2

csz STATES OF AMERICA

Type AGENT Staft Date
lt-2t-

l8 Resign Date

of
Record GH WADA WITT PC

Addr I DEAN T SANDOW
Addr 2 I21 SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND STATES OF AMERICAQf,Fnqr,rIrdriiltltElt
ADDRESS

Addr I DEAN T SANDOW
Addr 2 2I SW MORRISON #600

csz STATES OF AMERICAnrqsrrNrireEI

TvPe Resign Date
of

Record ER FAMILY LLC

Addr I C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 I2I SW MORRISON ST STE 600

csz PORTLAND WR 197204 STATES OF AMERICA

Business Entity Name Name
Tvpe

Name
Status Start Date End Date

LANGER OPERATIONS LLC EN CUR I l-21-2018

New Search

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 298



Please read before ordering &pjes.
New Search S His

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved

Image
Arrr ilahla

Effective
Date Status Name/Agent

Chanqe Dissolved ByAction I ransacfrsn
Date

tt-23-2021 FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

-25-202011 FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

ffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

t2-09-2019 FI

ffi ARTICLES OF
ORGANIZATION

-2 I -20I 8t1 FI Agent

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 299



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreqon.com

E.FILED
Dec 09, 2019

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

149779696

REGISTRATION DATE

1112112018

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER OPEMTIONS LLC

BUSINESSACTIVIW

TO OPERATE AN ENTERTAINMENT CENTER, RESAUMNT, AND ANCILLARY BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIM]TED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIIIARY PI-ACE OF BUSINESS

121 SW MORR]SON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

15041981 - FARLEIGH WADAWITT PC

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MEMBER

63190582 - LANGER FAMILY LLC

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 300



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linqinoregon.com OREGON SEGRETARV OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me

and is, to the best of my knowledge and beliet true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

12-09-2019

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 301



Registry ,ro,.u", lLl ?Jl ? b-q b trtLED
Nov 21 20tCI

tAr'[GnR OPERATIONS t
(o,r'egon. mrinager-r.nf;n4ged limi'teo riauilfi .o-p"n#Et*StHFfSItto'u

The undet:signgd nstut:tt [,ersorl, acting as orghqizer uhdei the,Oiegoh Limited Liability
Company Act, adopts thefollowing Articles of Organization.

Article I

The nanie of the lirnited liability. somBany is LANGER OPERATIONS LLC
("Company")

AI{TICLES OF ONGAMZATION

Article.2

'TheCompany wiil be perpetual

Article 3

The, addiesS of the principal place of business or office of record is 121 SW Morrison
#600, Portland, Oregon 9720iq.

Article 4

The.name and: addless of 'the initial registered agent are D'ean T, 'Sandow, Farleigh Wada
Witt, i'21 SW Monison #50$,Portlbnd, Ofegon 972A4..

Artlcle 5

The address'to which the Qr€gon Corporalion Di.visipn m.4)r.mail nqtiggs. is c/o,.Dean T.
,Sandow, Farleigli Wada.Witt, 121 SW Morrison #600,,PorJland, Oregon 97204.

Article 6

The Gorripany will be mriiralsd by one,or more, rnanagers afi provided. in an operating
agreement. The manager of the company is Langer Asset, Managemertt, Inc., c/o Dean T. Sandow,
Far:leigh Wada Witg l2l SW Mou:ison #600, Portland,.Or,egon,9i204,

Artible

A manager of fhe Cbmpany shall not,be personally liablc to the Company oi its members
for monetary damages for conduct as a managot, except for liebiliff of, tlre ,manager'&r' (a) acts or-

omissions tlrat irivolve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of the law by .the.manager,

(b) cpndrlct, that vitilateq state law pertaining to unpennitted distribuiions. to membiils Qr loans to
managers, or (c) any transaction frorn:whiclr the managel will personally ,reoeive a benEfit in money,
propefty oi S€rYices' to Whic,h lhg manager i$ not legally entitledr If tlte Orogon Limited Liability
Company Act. is amended to authorizelimited liability company aotibn .fufther eliminating

Comp$rny shall be
or limiting the'

personal liability of manirgers, tlieh the liability of a 'of tho eliminated or
liniter{ to tfie fullest extent permitted b,y the.Oregon,Lim Aot, asr,ameuded. Any

I.ANGER OPERATIONS LLC

ilililtil I ]ilt llil]ilililililu t ilililI til

I _ ARTICLES OT ORQANIZATION
P:\DOCS\LANFAM\ I 09s8\DOC\3TC29?7.pO-C

L49779696-X9533560 NSWORG

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 302



lL.tq-11 1b - '(b

repedl,or mqdifipation of this Article by thg members of the Company shall not a.ffect adversely any right
oiprotection of a manager of the Compdny existing'at the tiine ofsqoh repeal <ir modification.

Articlb

The Gompany shall indpnni$ eaoh manager as against all liability, damage,, or expenso

resulting frqrn the fact that such person is or was a lnanager, to the maximuin eXtent and under all.

circumsiances permitted-by law, exceptrthat'the Company $ha!l not indernni&'a lnanagqr against liabili$,
damhge, or exprns. resulling frorn the manageCs gross negligence or willful misconduat.

Article9

The name and acldless of the organizer is Dean T, Sandow; Farleigh Wada Witt, 121 SW

Ivlqrrison #600, Portland, Or:egon 97204.

Article 10

The nafiig ,4rid eddrgss 'of a pelson who ls an authofized representbtiVe of the'Company'

with direct knowledge of the operations and business aotiyi'ties of'the Company are Matthew D. Langero,

c/o Dean T. SandoW, Far:leigh Wada Witt, l2l S\1{ Mqr,riqon #600,,Portland, Oregon 97.204.

Article ll

The offecJive {ate of the Company's existence is the date of filing ofthese,Articles by tho

Oregon Corporation Division.

This document is dated N'ovembet 2l:.,2018.

Dean T. Sandow,

Percon to contact about.this' filing is:

Dean T. Shndow
Farleigll Wada Witt
izt sW Morrissn #600
Portlbn4 Orogon 97204
5.03.228.6044
dsandowt0fwwlaw.com

2 _ ARTICLES OF ORGA}.ilZATION
PIDOCS\LANFAM\ I 0958\DOCBTO2977. DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 303



@
Corporation Division

www.fi linoinoreoon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulently alter or othenrise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct,
and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the law and may be penalized
by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIG SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

11-23-2021

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 304



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi | ingi noregon.com

E.FILED
Nov 23, 2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

149779696

REGISTRATION DATE

11t21t2018

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER OPERATIONS LLC

BUSINESS

TO OPERATE AN ENTERTAINMENT CENTER, RESTAURANT, AND ANCILLARY BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED L]ABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

12,I SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

15041981 . FARLEIGH WADAWITT PC

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MEMBER

63190582. LANGER FAMILY LLC

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON ST STE 600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 305



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name Hi

04-26-2022
17:57

Registry Nbr Enllty
Tvpe

Entrly
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

392933-94 DLLC ACT OREGON tt-02-2006 tt-02-2022
Entity Name LANGER SIIERWOOD, LLC

Foreign Name

Type
PLACE OF

S

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 I21 SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND IOR IqZZO+ STAIES OF AMERICA

Type AGENT Staft Date l-08-
19

Resign Date

Name EAN
Addr I r2r sw MoRRrsoN #600
Addr 2

csz PORTLAND IOR 197204 Country LINITED STATES OF AMERICA

Type ADDRESS

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 12I SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND IOR 197204 Cou STATES OF AMERICA

Type Resign Date
of

Record ASSET MANAGEMENT,INC.

Addr 1 EARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 ClO I2I SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND IOR 197204 Cou STATES OF AMERICA

Business Entity Name Name
Ivp_e

Name
Status Staft Date End Date

LANGER SHERWOOD, LLC EN CUR tt^02-2006

Please read before ordering egpj_es.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 306



New Search His

@ 2OZ2 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved

S
Effective

Date Status Name/Agent
Chanqe Dissolved ByImage

Available Action fransaction
Date

ll-03-2021 FI@
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FItl-04-2020B AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI Agent1l-08-2019B AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FIl1-01-2018€
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FIAMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

10-26-2017@
FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL

REPORT
1l-11-2016

-03-2015l1 FIg AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

n-02-20t5 FI AgentB AMNDMT TO ANNUAL
RPT/INFO STATEMENT

FI10-29-2014ANNUAL REPORT

FIREINSTATEMENT
AMENDED

05-29-201,4&
SYSADMINISTRATIVb

DISSOLUTION
0t-03-2014

n-27-zAn FI
CHANGE OF
REGISTERED
AGENT/ADDRESS

FItr-23-2012ANNUAL REPORT
FIANNUAL REPORT 11-03-2011

10-05-2010 FIANNUAL REPORT
FI11-04-2009ANNUAL REPORT

SYSANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

09-2s-2008

09-28-2007 FIAMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

Agent-02-20061t FIARTICLES OF
ORGANIZATION

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 307



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i no regon. com

E.FILED
Nov 03, 2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

39293394

REGISTRATION DATE

11|0A2A06

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER SHERWOOD, LLC

BUSINESS

REAL ESTATE OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC L]MITED LIABILIry COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896 - LANGERASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

FARLEIGH WADAWITT

cto 121sw MoRRrsoN #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 308



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n g i no rego n.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulenfly alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officets,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct,
and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the law and may be penalized
by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN TSANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

11-03-2021

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 309



Gorporatlon/Limited Llabillty .lnformation Ghange

Sccrotary of Slate - Corpodlon Divislon - 255 Capltol Sl, NE, Sults '16l - Salom, OR 9731S1327 - hltprrrrvvrt.Flllnglnoregon.cot - 
FIl"' 83lillffil

Complete only the sections that you ale updatlng.

REGISTRY NUMBEn: 392933-94

ENTIWWPE: ODOMESTIC CFOREIGN

FdL€D
Nov o z zotsln aocodancewilh Ravbed Statute 1s2.4'10-tsZ4s0, lhe lnhtmallon onthls apdlcdion is publlc r€cord.

1. NAME OF CORPORAfION OR UMffiD L|ABIUW COMPANYT

Langer Sherwood, LLC

SAIF

2. PBINCIPAL PLAGE OF BUSINESS: (Street Addressf

c/o Farleigh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #600, Portland OR 97204
3. THE REGISTERED A6ENT HAS BEEN CHANGED TO:

Dean T. Sandow

4. REGISTERED AGEM'S PUBLICIY AVAIIABIE ADDRESS:
Must be an Oregon Str€et Addre$, whlch ls ldentlcal to the
reglst€r€d agent's offf ce,

121SW Morrlson #6@

Portlan4 OR 97204

5. ADDRESS WHERE TTIE DIVISION MAY MAIL NOTICES:

c/o Farleigh Wadg Witt

121SW Morrison S600, Portland, OR 97204

6. THE NEW REGISTERED AGENT HAS CONSENTED TO THIS

APPOINTMENT.

7. THE SfREET ADDRESS OF THE NEW REGIST€RED OFFICE

AND THE BUSINESS ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED AGENT

ARE IDENNCAL

The entity has been notlfled in wrltlng of thls change.

NAME(SI ArrrD ADDRESSIESIOF CORPORATE OFFTCERS OR r.fc MEM8ERS/MANAGERS

Corpontlons listthe nameand address of the Presidentand Secrctary(Ons60.787,ORS65.782ORS62.455,ORS 554315).
thlted Llabllity Companiei list the name and addresses of the managen for a managqr-managed llmlted llablllty company or the name and
address of at least one nrember for a member-managed llmlted llablltty company (ORS 63,787).

8. PR[SlDEttlT OR OWNER{SI (MEMBERSI: {Name$and strcetaddressl 9. SECRETARY OR MANAGER(SI : {Names and Street address}

10. EXECUTION: By my slgnature, I declare as an authorlzed slgner, that thls flllng has been examlned by me and ls, to the best of my knowledge and bellef,
truc, correct and complete, Maklng false statements ln this document ls against the law and may be penallzed by flnes, lmprlsonment or both.

TITLE:

COI{TACT t{/lllfiE: (lo resolve questlons with thls fillng)

Dean T. Sandow r,AllGER SHERWOOD, T,LC

ilt I iltil I I l|ffiiltililtlltil I lt il iltil

PHOilE ilUil8Ek (lnclude area code)

503-228-6044

FEES

lnfomallon Chang€ (01/15)
39293394-16504034 aAR

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 310



zIz1v34f
Attachment to Corporatiorr/Limited Liability Company - Information Change

Section 9: tanger Asset Management, Inc.
Farleigh Wada Witt
clol2l SWMorrison#600
Portlan{ Oregon 97204

P:\lDoCSlLAlIFAtvl\l 0958\DOCUNT I 52j.DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 311



Gorooration/Lim ltEd Llabllltv lnformatlon Ghanqe

Sccrolary ot StEtc - CorporaUon Divtdon - 255 Capllol Sl, NE, Sullc 151 - Salem. OR 9731S'1327 - htlpt/h^urJ.FlllnglnOregon,com - Phono: (508)

Fa,c (603)

Complete only the tectiont that you are updatlng.

s8s2200
37&4381

REGISTRY NUMBE& 392933-94

ENTITYTYPE: (i'DOMESTIC CFOREIGN

FCLED
frlolf o z ztitsln accordancewllh R6lrbcd Slstule t92.410-192.{s0, lh€ lnlomallon on lhh applicdion lc publlc racord.

Pteas€ T.ype or Prlnt Leglbly ln Aack hk. Altaoi
1. NAME OF CORPORAfION OR UM]rED UABILITY COMPANY:

Langer Sherwood, LLC

sl.qrg

2. PRINCIPAI PtACt OF BUSINESS: (Street Addressl

c/o Farleigh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #500, Portland, OR 97204
3. THE REGISTERED AGENT HAS BEEN CHANGED TO:

Dean T. Sandow

4. REGISTERED AGENT'S PUBIICLY AVAIIAELE ADDRESS:
Must be an oregon Street Address, whlch h ldentlcrl to the
reglstared agenfs ofilce,

121SW Morrison #600

5. ADDRESS WHERE IHE DIVISION MAY MAII NOTICES:

c/o Farleigh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #600, Portland, OR 97204

6. THE NEW REGISTEREO AGENT HAS CONSENTED TO THIS

APPOINTMENT.

7. THE STREET ADDRESS OF THE NEW REGISIERED OIFICE

AND THE BUSINESS ADDRES5 OF TH€ REGISTERED AGENT

ARE IDENNCAL.

The entity has been notlfled in wrltlng of thls change.

Portland, OR 97204

NAME(SI AND ADDRESSIESIOF CORPORATE OFFICERS OR I.fC MEMBERS/MANAGERS

' Corpontlons list the name and address of the Preiident and Secrctary (OE 60.782 OR565.78ZORS 62.455 ORS 554315).
tftnited Llablllty Companies lirt the name and addresges of the nranagers for a managqr-managed llmlted liablltty company or the name and
addres of at least one reilber for a member-managed llmltd llablllg company (ORS 63.787),

8. PRESIDENT OR OWNER{SI {MEMBERSI: tNam6 and street address} 9. SECRETARY OR MANAGERIS}: (Names and street addres}

10. EXECUTKTN: By my slgnature, I declare as an authorlzed clgner, that this flllng has been examlned by me and ls, to the b€st of mv knowledge and bellef.

true, carrect and complete. Maldng false statements ln thls document ls against the law and may be penalized by fines, lmprlsonment or both.

TITLE:

CONIACr NflUIE: Oo rssolvc questlons wlth thls fillng)

Dean T. Sandow r.AltGER SHERWOOD, T,LC
PHOilE ilUmBER (lnclude area code)

503-228-5044

ilil I iltil I I UUiltfrilffi il I il il iltil

FEES

lnfurmailon Chsnge (01/15)
39293394-16504034 aaR

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 312



zIzlzv4'f
Attachment to Corporation/Limited Liability Company - Information Change

Section 9l Langer Asset Management, Inc.
Farleigh Wada Witt
clo l2l SW Monison #600
Portlan4 Oregon 97204

PlDoCs\LAI{FArvill 0958\DOO3M I 525.DOc

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 313



s12> tk
Secretary ofState
Corporation Division
255 Capitol Street NE, Suite l5l
Salern, OR 97310-1327

Phone:(503)986-2200
www.fi linginorqgon.com

Reglsty l{umber: 302933€4
Itate of Orgnnizaton: 11llU2l?ol0x0
Type: DOHESTIC LltlTED LIABILITY COilPAI{V

I

RE: LANGER SHERWOOD, LLC

APPLICATION FOR REINSTATEMENT/REACTIVATI ON

Please cornplete ard retum thls letter and any enclosed documents forfiling the requested
minstatement/reactivation.

Submit $200 forthe requircd fees.

The above antity hereby reqrcsts to be active on the records of the Corponation Division. The effective date of
adminislrative dissolution is 01/032014

reason(s dissolution has been eliminated or did not exist.

FILED
l,tAY 21 20lf

OREGON
SECRETARY OF STATE

: (-ll -L014Date

Any fees submitted with this document are non refundaHe and will be held for 45 days. lf the document is
retumed for filing within 45 days no additional fees will be due unles othenflise stated in this letter.

Businms Registry
Goporation Dviskrn
(503) 98e2200 IANGER SHERIT@D, LLC

il]ilililil
392933 Ntiltr9t-152331t9 REINNI

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 314



t

Secretary ofState
Corporation Dvision
255 Capitol Street NE, Suite l5l
Salenl OR 97310-1327

Phone:(503)986-2200
www.fi linginoregon.com

REINSTATEilE}IT AT{I{UAL REPORT
Roglitry l{umbe* 392933{4
Date of Organia0on: 11l0U2M

Type: DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

IANGER SHERWOOD, LLC
C/O CLARENCE I.ANGER
15585 SW TUATATIN SHERW@D RD
SHERWOOD OR97140

ilame of Domseffc Llmlted Uablllty Gompany
IANGER SHERWOOD, LLC

Jurlsdlcffon: OREGON

The folloMng infomation is rcquircd by statute. Please comflete the entirc fom.
Reglslercd Agent
MARK L HUGLIN
4949 MEADOWS RD STE,{00
lAr(E oswEco oR 97035

lf the Registered Agent has changed,
the nqrv agent has consented to the appointment. Orcgon
street address required.

1) Type of Buslness

2) Prlnclpal Placo of Businesc (Address,city,state,zip)

15585 SWTUALATIN SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140

0 n tember o, R ilanager6mroeAdd.$s)

CIARENCE I.ANGERJR
15585 SWTUATATIN SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140

Signature

3) Halllng Addrcee (Address,city,state,zip)
C/O CIARENCE IANGER
15585 SW TUAI*ATIN SHERWOOD RD

SHERWOOD OR 97140

5) tlember o, n tanager(xaooceorc*r)

7) Prlntsd Name

9) Ilaytme Phone Number

Hake check payable to 'Gorporatlon Dlvlslon" and mail oomplebd form wlth pryment b
Secretary of-Sffi, Gorpor:atlon Dlvlslon, 255 Gapltol ST NE Sulte 151,Salem, OR 97310
Note: Filing fees may be paid with VISA or MmterCard.
Subrnit the card number and expiration date on a separate page for your pmtection.

ANRPF1-
o$t14114

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 315



New Search

New Search

Please click

New Search

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name His

04-26,2022
17259

Registry Nbr Entit
Tvoe

Enlity
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date NerG Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

93 I 195-93 DLLC ACT OREGON 04-17-2013 04-t7-2023
Entity Name LANGER STORAGE,LLC

Foreign Name

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr I C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 I21 SW MORRISON #600

csz Cou STAIES OF AMERICA

Type ISTERED AGENTT Staft Date
Lt-02-

l5 Resign Date

Name w
Addr I 121 SW MORRTSON #600
Addr 2

csz PORTLAND lOn 9ZZO+ Gountry LINITED STATES OF AMERICA

ADDRESS

Addr I FARLEIGH WADA WITT
1 SW MORRTSON #600Addr 2

csz IPORTLAND lon 197204 STATES OF AMERICA

Type Resign Date
of

Record ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 T21 SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND IOR 1e7204 STATES OF AMERICA

Business Entity Name Name
Tvpe

Name
Status Start Date End Date

LANGER STORAGE,LLC EN CUR 04-t7-2013

Please read before ordering &pjg.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 316



New Search S

r---!t-Ll-
Image I ransaGftgn

Date
Effective

Date Status Name/Agent
Change Dissolved ByAction

04-t8-2022 FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI04-14-2021B AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI04-29-2020ffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI04-19-2019ts AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI# AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

04-19-2018

FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-t9-2017

04-2t-2016 FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

n-02-2015 FI Agentg AMNDMT TO ANNUAL
RPT/INFO STATEMENT

Agent03-20-201s FIffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI03-30-20146 AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

FI Agentffi ARTICLES OF
ORGANIZATION

04-17-2013

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rlghts Reserved.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 317



AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linginoregpn.com

E.FILED
Apr 18,2022

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

931 19593

REGISTRATION DATE

04t17t2013

BUSINESS NAME

LANGER STOMGE, LLC

BUSINESS

TO OWN, ACQUIRE, SELL, DEVELOP, RENT REAL PROPERTY, AND ANY LAWFUL BUSINESS.

MAILING ADDRESS

CiO FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILIW COMPANY

PRIMARY PLAGE OF BUSINESS

CiO FARLEIGH WADA WITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

iIIANAGER

93121896 - LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 318



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i n o i noreoon. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently
obscure, fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers,
managers, members or agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs.
This filing has been examined by me and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct,
and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the law and may be penalized
by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business
electronically with the State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records
may not be denied legal effect solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in
electronic form and that if a law requires a record or signature to be in writing, an electronic record
or signature satisfies that requirement.
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE

04-18-2022

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 319



.lnformation
-Fhone: (509)986-2200
Far (503)37&4381

86octary ot Slats - Corpors{on Dlvlslon - 255 51, NE, Sulic 151 .sdom, OR

Complate onlythe rectlont thatyou are

REGISTRY NUMBER: 931195-93 NOV .2 2015

. ENTrYTYPE: o;DOMESTIC GFOREIGN

tn a@ordanca wlth orogon Rsvtssd srdut€ 192.41otg2.4g0, tha ffiomdlon on thb appllcafiqr ls puUlc rocord' -- ^- -9+-ECONiiieFuei;i,algiirbln6mijudioati;.arlciuoon'oqugqitdIwnbBepstsdonouin€us[p.. ,SF.CiBF,TARYOF'STAT?. Forotr'couseottlv-
niiie ivp€ itr Prlnt Le$bly ln Elack lnk. Athclr Addlllonal llheet tf Necessary.

1. NAME OF CORPORATION OR LIMITED IIAEITITY COMPANY:

langerStorage; LLC

Z. PruilCpA[PtACE OF BUSINESS: (streetAddress]

c/o Farlelgh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #50Q Portland, OR 97204

3. THE REGFTERED AGENTHAS BEEN CHANGED TO:

Dean T.'Sandow

4. REGISTERED AGENT'S PUBIICIY AVAITABTE ADDRESS:
Must be an Oregon StreetAddr$s, lrhlch ls Hentlcal to the
reglstered agent's offlce,

121SW Morrison f600

Portland, OR 97204

5. ADDRESS WHERE THE DMSION MAY MAIL NOTICES:

c/o Farlelgh Wada Witt

121SW Morrison #600, Portland, OR 97204

6. THE NEW RECI5TERED AGENT HAS CONSENTED TO THIS

APPOINTMENT.

7. THE STREETADDRESS OF THE NEW REGISTERED OFFICE

AND THE SUSINES5 ADDRESS OF THE REGISTERED AGENT

ARE IDENTICAT.

The entlty has been notlfled in wrtting of ttrts change.

NAME{SI AND ADDRESSIESIOF CORPORATE OFFTCERIi OR LLC MEMEERS/MANAGERS

Corporatlons llst the name and addrcss ofthe Presldent and Secretary pRS 60.782 ORs 65.782 Of,S 62.455, ORS 55431 5).

Llmlted Llabilltycompanles llrtthe name and addrerres of themanagen bra manager-managed llmlted llabllitydnpanyorthe nameand

addrers of atleistone memberfora member-managsd llmlted llabllltycompany (ORS63.787).

8. PRESIDENT OR OWNERISI IMEMBERSI: (namec and street addrusl 9. SECRETARY OR MANAGEB(SI: lNames and stteetaddressl

10. EXECUTION: By my slgnaturg I declare as an authorlzed slgner, that thls flllng has been examlned by me and lc, to the best of my knowledge and bdlef,

trug conect and complete. Maklng lalse statements ln thls document le aialnst tho law and may be penallzed by flnet, lmprlsonment or both.

TITI.E:

COiITACTI{AME: rerolve questlons wlth thls flling) I.ANGER STORAGE, I.,I.C
Dean T. Sandow
PHoNE ilUMEER (lnclude area code)

503-228-5044

lnfomatlon Change (01/l 5l

iltlulllilllfi,l|l,tllil!tililililLillt

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 320



o

Q>t W-q>
Attachment to Corporation/Limited Liability Company - Information Chango

Section 9: Langer Asset Management Ino.
Farleigh WadaWiu
clo lZL SW Morrison #600
Portland, Oregon 91244

P:\D0CS\LANFAI\dU 0958\DOC\3N? I 525-DOC

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 321



ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION

Corporation Division

www.f i I i n g i no rego n. com

E.FILED
Apr 17,2O13

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

931 19593

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

1. ENTITY NAME

LANGER STORAGE, LLC

2. MAILING ADDRESS

4949 MEADOWS RD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

3. NAME & ADDRESS OF REGISTERED AGENT

JOHN H DRANEAS

4949 MEADOWS RD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

4. ORGANIZERS

JOHN H DRANEAS

4949 MEADOWS RD SUITE 4OO

LAKE OSWEGO OR 97035 USA

5. DURATION

PERPETUAL

6. MANAGEMENT

This Limited Liability Company will be manager-managed by one or more managers

7. OPTIONAL PROVISIONS

Members and Managers of the LLC shall not be liable to the LLC or its Members for monetary damages for conduct
as Members and Managers except to the extent that the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act, as it now exists or
may hereafter be amended, prohibits elimination or limitation of Member or Manager liability. No repeal or
amendment of this provision or of the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act shall adversely affect any right or
protection of a Member or Manager for actions or omissions prior to the repeal or amendment.

The LLC shall indemnify each Manager and Member to the fullest extent permissible under Oregon law, as the
same exists or may hereafter be amended, against all liability, loss and costs (including, without limitation, attorney
fees) incurred or suffered by such Member in connection with the business of the LlO/person by reason of, or
arising from, the fact that such person is or was a Manager or Member of the LLC, or is or was serving at the
reguest of the LLC as a manager, director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or agent of another foreign or
domestic limited liability company, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, benefit plan, or other enterprise. The

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 322



Corporation Division

www.fil inoi noreqon.com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

LLC may, by action of the Manager, provide indemnification to employees and agents of the LLC who are not

Managers. The indemnification provided in this Article shall not limit any other rights to which any person may be

entitled under any statute, bylaw, operating agreement, resolution of Members or Manager, contract or otherwise.
No repeal or amendment of this Section or of the Oregon Limited Liability Company Act shall adversely affect any
right to indemnification of a Manager or Member for actions or omissions prior to the repeal or amendment.

The company elects to indemnify its members, managers, employees, agents for liability and related expenses
under ORS 63.160.

By my signature, I declare as an authorized authority, that this filing has been examined by me and is, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, true, conect, and complete. Making false statements in this document is against the
law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect
solely because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record

or signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

JOHN H DRANEAS

Page 2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 323



New Search

New Search

Please click

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Associated Names

about and service

Name

04-26-2022
18:02

Registry Nbr Entity
Tvoe

Entity
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

393923-86 DBC INA OREGON 04-06-1994

Entity Name IHE LANGER COMPANY

Foreign Name

Type
PLACE OF

Addr I 15585 SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD HWY
Addr 2

csz SHERWOOD lon 197140 STATES OF AMERICA

Staft Date 12-
IType AGT REGISTERED AGENT Resign Date

Name CLARENCE GER

Addr I 15585 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD RD
Addr 2

Countrycsz 97140 UNITED STATES OF AMERICAI
Type ENT Resign Date
Name CE ER

Addr I 15585 SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD HWY
Addr 2

csz Country UNITED STAIES OF AMERICASHERWOOD IOR le7l40

I

Type TARY Resign Date

Name PAMELA GER

Addr I 15585 SW TUALATIN SHERWOOD HWY
Addr 2

csz SHERWOOD ON 97140 Country UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Business Entity Name Name
Tvpe

Name
Status Staft Date End Date

EN CUR 04-06-1994II{E LANGER COMPANY

New Search

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 324



Please read before ordering &pjes.
New Search S

ActionImage I
Availablel

I rartltaglt(,n
Date

Effective
Date Status Name/Agent

Chanse Dissolved By

SYSIRUUwISTRATIVE
bssot urloN 06-07-2002

IcHANGE oF
IREGISTERED
lncBNrrnoDRESS

03-12-2001 FI Agent

IeNNunr REPORT
hnnaBNr 03-07-2001 SYS

FIISTRAIGHT RENEWAL 03-09-2000
02-25-t999 FIISTRAIGHT RENEWAL

ISTRAIGHT RENEWAL 03-03-1998 FI
FIISTNATCHT RENEWAL 03-1 1-1997

02-28-1996 FIISTRAIGHT RENEWAL

ICI{ANGED RENEWAL 02-28-1996 FI
IAMENDED RENEWAL 03-07-199s FI

FIbIBW FILING 04-06-1994

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 325



Business Registry Business Name Search

New Search Business Entity Data

New Search Associated Names

The Authorized Representative address is the mailing address for this
business.

New Search Name His

Please read before ordering ftUes.
New Search S His

04-26-2022
18:05

Registry Nbr Entity
Tvpe

Enlily
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date Next Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

s6846t-82 ABN INA 04-03-t997
Entity Name SENTINEL SELF STORAGE

Foreign Name
Affidavit? N

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr I 15555 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD RD
Addr 2

csz 140 STATES OF AMERICA

Type Staft Date Resign Date

Name
Addr 1 15585 SW TUALATIN.SHERWOOD RD
Addr 2

csz SIIERWOOD PR 197140 Country UNITED STAIES OF AMERICA

Type TRANT
Name CE

Addr I 15585 SW TUALATIN-SI{ERWOOD RD
Addr 2

csz lgtr+o Country L'NITED STATES OF AMERICAFrEilris'Illt-Jir

Business Entity Name Name
Tvpe

Name
Status Staft Date End Date

SENTINEL SELF STORAGE EN CUR 04-03-1997

Image
Available

Fra nsactionl Effective
I oate I oateAction Status Name/Agent

Chanoe Dissolved By

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 326



OF 05-19-2005 FI

@ 2022 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

REI'{EWAL PAYMENT 02-22-200s SYS
Lq.MENDMENT OF
I

IREGISTRATION
04-09-2003 FI Representative

RENEWAL PAYMENT 04-08-2003 SYS

RSNEWAT PAYMENT 03-27-2001 SYS

ISTRAIGHT RENEWAL 03-02-1999 FI
NBWFILING 04-03-t997 FI

New Search lCounties
Counties Filed
Washington

Counties Not Filed (but not necessarily available)
Baker, Benton, Clackamas, Clatsop, Columbia, Coos, Crook, Curry,
Deschutes, Douglas, Gilliam, Grant, Harney, Hood River, Jackson, Jefferson,
Iosephine, Klamath, Lake, Lane, Lincoln, Linn, Malheur, Marion, Morrow,
Multnomah, Polk, Sherman, Tillamook, Umatilla, Union, Wallowa, Wasco,
Wheeler, Yamhill

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 327



AII,IENDED ANNUAL REPORT

@
Corporation Division

www.fi linginoregon.com

E.FILED
May 12,2021

OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

REGISTRY NUMBER

28932598

REGISTRATION DATE

05/19/2005

BUSINESS NAME

SENTINEL SELF STORAGE, LLC

BUSINESS ACTIVITY

TO OWN, ACQUIRE, SELL, DEVELOP, AND RENT REAL PROPERTY

MAILING ADDRESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

TYPE

DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

PRIMARY PLACE OF BUSINESS

C/O FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

JURISDICTION

OREGON

REGISTERED AGENT

DEAN T SANDOW

121 SW MORRISON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

lf the Registered Agent has changed, the new agent has consented to the appointment.

MANAGER

93121896. LANGER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

CiO FARLEIGH WADAWITT

121 SW MORRTSON #600

PORTLAND OR 97204 USA

Page 1

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 328



@
Corporation Division

www.fi I i nq i no reo on. com OREGON SECRETARY OF STATE

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that this document does not fraudulently conceal, fraudulently obscure,
fraudulently alter or otherwise misrepresent the identity of the person or any officers, managers, members or
agents of the limited liability company on behalf of which the person signs. This filing has been examined by me
and is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct, and complete. Making false statements in this
document is against the law and may be penalized by fines, imprisonment, or both.

By typing my name in the electronic signature field, I am agreeing to conduct business electronically with the
State of Oregon. I understand that transactions and/or signatures in records may not be denied legal effect solely
because they are conducted, executed, or prepared in electronic form and that if a law requires a record or
signature to be in writing, an electronic record or signature satisfies that requirement.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE

NAME

DEAN T SANDOW

TITLE

REGISTERED AGENT

DATE SIGNED

o5-12-2021

Page2

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 329



Amendmentto Annual Report - Llmlted Liabilitv Gompany
Sccrlary d Shtc - Corporaiion Ovidon - 255 Capttd Sl. NE, Sdt 151 . Sdrm, OR 973tctt27 - hlts:/fuyw.Fitinglrlon0on.com - plronc: (S{Xt) Og&2200

Reqsrnv 289325-98

ln rordamc
Wcmud

FILED

APR 2 7 Zott

ORGCON
TBC;ETANY OF STATE

E Douesnc ! Foneror,r

Rwlt d sldulc 192.41G192..190. th. tufonn8uofi on tht! Sdicdion ls pultlc ncord.
dt rld if r.,fl bc olr

1) Neue Ernw: Sentinel Self Storage, LLC

Fqofio urc

a',, Pt rceor

,l) THe Aoett xts aeex Gmreeo ro:

0) oF ltlE NEfr REGlsrEREo OFFtce; (uua uc an ggggg
slldr ir idcdhC to thc r*rt rd .g6fi'. budn.$ ffic..

3) ronllrturc

5) TIte Ns REctsrEiED AoErtr xrs Consruro ro Trne Apponnrein

7) Txe SrnretADDREss oF THE NEw REqsrEneo Omce mo ue
BugIIESs ADDRESS OF IflE REoFTERED AGEITARE |osmc^L.

8) ilonncrnor:

SENTINEL SEr.r sToRAcE, LLC

e)

1t)

The entity hae bccn nolilied in writing of thb change,

(Nanc.nd drud ddr.|')
Lrr ltlEnaeas AildoR UAr oens Neres ruo ADDREggEs

10) texecens: (N.mc.nd drtot

(tll.t bo dgnrd by rt lotil on m.mb.r or m.nlo.r.)
By my I dodr6 eB an eulhodzed aullrodty, that tlir fillng har b€sn exrmined by me and b, to tho bost ot my knowl€dga and belbt tue,
coroci, Maklng in documsnt b agalnst lhe laur and may be penallzed by fine*, lmprbonment or bolh.

Printed

Title:

Date:

(fo tadv! quatio$with tld! fi[nC.)

(lndud..r!o
No Proc.lsing Foa

Conllrndr

FEES

120 to Annual Rrpod - Umihd Urtility Compary (07/10)

ilrlfJ"uuruuffil|ililru]t

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 330



Annual Report - Llmlted Compantl
Ssdery ofSt tc-CoryoretionDiyiCon-255CrpitolSl.NE,Sdlc151 -Sd.m,OR9731c1327-htb:/rw*v.Fllinglrongon.cofit.ptronc:(5{r3)9se22OO

Reesrav 289325-98

TYPE: ElDomesrrc E ronerar.r

mmud lhar
Rwi&d St.tllto 192.410.192330, thr irfonils{on on lhl! applicdon ir pubfic r€cord.

tod .nd itwf,l bc on qJrw€bclt!.
ln erdrno.

FILED

APR 2 7 Zrtt

oil:coN
IIECRETAEY OF STATE

Fqo{llcc urc

l) Neue Elnw: Sentinel Self Storage, LLC

2',t Puceor

,al Tae Aoexr nts erel Cxarcro ro:

s) orur New Rec[stERED
srl{dr irld.dcClolhr

3) ronHrurc

5) Tus t{m REcFTEIED AcExr HAs ConsmGo ro TrnsAppoffrxErr.

7) Tre SrneerADDREss oF nre Neru ReqsrEnED OmcE ArD ilE
Bugresg AooREs$ oF rHE REGFTcRED AcEilT ARE lDelrnclL

8) ilolRcenot:

The ent'ty has becn notilied in writing of 0ris ctrange.

e)

Llsr llEnarns AilDroR ill^fl oens Nues lxD ADDRESsES

10) IilAIAGER8: (Nam.ind dr.at

I

r1) (Iurt b. rlln d by.t l.rtton mfitb.rormln.oor.)
t doders es en aulhodzed

MsHng tn

Fo rrrolr! qurdionr with this filing.)

(lrdrrd!.lr

lhat this lillng has bsen examincd by me and b, lo the best of my hnowledg6 ailt bdM tue,
docun€nt b agsln3t the lafl ald msy be peneltsod by fircs, lmprbonment or both.

No Proc.lling F€a

Cornmd( SENTTNEL SELF STORAGE, tr,c

By my
corl€d,

Printed

Tille:

Date:

120 toAnnual Rcpod- Umit d Uaulity Conrpary (07110)

ilruJ,tluroflffiililffiro]t

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 331



New Search

Online Renewal:
RenewOnline

New Search

Please click

Business Registry Business Name Search

Business Entity Data

Click here to generate and print an annual report.

Associated Names

about and service

04-26-2022
18:05

Registry Nbr Ent!!y.
Tvoe

Entity
Status Jurisdiction Registry Date NerG Renewal

Date Renewal Due?

28932s-98 DLLC ACT OREGON 05-19-2005 05-t9-2022 YES
Entlty Name SENTINEL SELF STORAGE, LLC

Foreign ilame

Type PPB
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 121 SW MORRTSON #600

csz RTLAND STATES OF AMERICAWW

Type AGT REGISTERED AGENT Start Date
5

ll-02-
Resign Date

Name
Addr I I2I SW MORRISON #600
Addr 2

csz RTLAND Country LINITED STATES OF AMERICAoilcs'inI
Tvpe G ADDRESS

Addr I C/O FARLEIGH IWADA WITT
Addr 2 I21 SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND IOR STAIES OF AMERICAr'gfgl,lrilffilt
Type AGER Resign Date
of

Record GER ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC.

Addr 1 C/O FARLEIGH WADA WITT
Addr 2 121 SW MORRISON #600

csz PORTLAND IOF. plZ0a. STATES OF AMERICA

New Search

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 332



Name Histo

Please read before ordering eqpjes.
New Search S

Business Entity Name Name
Tvpe

Name
Status Staft Date End Date

SENTINEL SELF STORAGE, LLC EN CUR 05-19-2005

fmage
Available Action Transaction

Date
Effective

Date Status Name/Agent
Chanqe Dissolved By

6 AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-t2-2021 FI

6 AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-22-2020 FI

ffi AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-10-2019 FI

H AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-21-2018 FI

05-19-2017 FI€
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

@
AMENDED ANNUAL
REPORT

05-20-20t6 FI

6 AMNDMT TO ANNUAL
RPTiINFO STATEMENT

tt-02-2015 FI Agent

FIANNUAL REPORT 05-27-2015
ANNUAL REPORT 05-28-2014 FI

€
AMNDMT TO ANNUAL
RPT/INFO STATEMENT

t2-t3-2073 FI

ANNUAT REPORT 05-21-2013 FI

ll-27-2012 FI
CHANGE OF
REGISTERED
AGENT/ADDRESS
ANNUAL REPORT 0s-18-2012 FI

@
CHANGE OF
REGISTERED
AGENT/ADDRESS

08-12-2011 FI

FIANNUAL REPORT 0s-20-2011

6 AMNDMT TO ANNUAL
RPT/INFO STATEMENT

04-27-2011 FI

ANNUAL REPORT 05-20-2010 FI
04-10-
2009

SYS
ANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

a4-l3-2009

ANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

04-09-2008 SYS

CHANGE OF
REGISTERED
AGENT/ADDRESS

06-29-2007 FI

ANNUAL REPORT
PAYMENT

04-tt-2007
04-10-
2007

SYS

ANNUAL 0s-02-2006 FI

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 333



05-19-2005 FI Agent
IARTICLES OF
lonceNrzATIoN

@ 2A22 Oregon Secretary of State. All Rights Reserved.

Exhibit D9

Packet Page 334



ECEIWR. James Claus, Ph.D.

222tL SW Pacific Highway

Sherwood, OR 97L40

MAY 2 9 2022

City of Sherwood
Planning Dept.

April 29,2022

Hand livered

City of Sherwood

Planning Department

22560 SW Pine St.

Sherwood, OR 97L40

Re: LU 2022-004 MM

Applicant: i'sentinel Storage II

Written information for the Planning Commission Public Hearing

Record

1995 Sherwood Planning Code

Please add this document to the record forthe LU 2022-OO4 MM file.

Thank you,

gittt Cts-ut
Jim Claus

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 335



NIAY 2s ?rl22

ffil,:!"ffii'
I
I

I

I

\

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 336



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 337



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 338



ii

!

CIIAPTER

1.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

zoMNG DISTRrCTS.....i........,
Very Low Density Residential (VLDR)

Low DensitY Residential (LDR)
Medium Density Residential Low (MDRL) '

Medium Density Residential High (lfDRH)
High Density Residential (HDR)

Offrce Commercial (OC)
Neighborhood Commercial (NC)

Retail Commercial (RC)

General Commercial (GC)
Light Industrial (LD ..........
General Industrial (GI)
Reserved...
Institutional and Public (IP) ...........

SPECIAL USES
General Provisions
Planned Unit DeveloPment (PUD)

Home Occupations......'...
Reserved..
Manufacfured Homes......
Non-Conforming Uses

Accessory Uses ........'

Adult Entertainment.............'....
Other Land Uses

PAGE

t-1
l-l
t-3
1-4

t-7
l-7
t-7

l.0l GenerallY.
l.lo2 Establishment of Zoning Districts

1.103 Planning Commission.............

1.200 DEFII\TTIONS ........

1.201 GenerallY..
1.202 Specifically ..........'...

2. LAND USE AI\TD DEVELOPMENT

2.100
2.101
2.102
2.103
2.104
2.r05
2.106
2.107
2.r08
2.109
2.110
2.lll
2.112
2.tt3

2.200
2.201
2.202
2.203
2.204
2.205
2.206
2.207
2.208
2.209

2-l
2-l
2-5
2-9

2-t3
2-r8
2-22
2-25
2-30
2-35
2-40
2-45
2-50
2-50

2-53
2-53
2-53
2-61
2-63
2-64
2-70
2-75
2-76
2-77

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 339



CHAPTER PAGE

ST]PPLEMENTARY STANDARDS ..............
Clear Vision Areas.
Additional SetUactcs

Fences, Walls and Hedges ...............
Lot Sizes and Dimensions
Yard Requirements
Chimncys, Spiles, Antefius and Similar Stnrctures
Dual Use of Required Space

3. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

2.300
2.30t
2.302
2.303
2.304
2.305
2.305
2.307

3.100
3.101
3.r02
3.103
3.104
3.105

3.200
3.201
3.202
3.203
3.204
3.205
3.206
3.207
3.208

3.400
3.401
3.402
3.403
3.404

2-78
2-78
2-79
2-79
2-79
2-80
2-8t
2-82

3-1
3-l
3-1
3-1
3-2
3-3

Pre-Application Conference.
Application Materials.
Application Submittal
Availability..
Application Resubmission

PUBLIC NOTICE AIYD IIEARING
Generally.
Form ofNotice..
Content of Notice..........
Planning Staff Reports ..........
Conduct of Public Hearings..
Notice of Decision ......
Registry of Decisions .

Final Action on Permitor Zone Change

APPEALS

3-4
3-4
3-4
3-6
3-8
3-8

3-10
3-10
3-10

3.300 APPLICATIONF'EES
3.301 Fees.............
3.302 Exceptions...

3-11
3-l I
3-l I

3-12
3-12
3-12
3-r3
3-13

Generally.
Appeal Deadline...
Petition for Review
Council Action

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ii

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 340



CIIAPTER

4.

5.

PLANNING PROCEDURES

4.100 APPLICATION CONTENT..............

4.200 PLAI\I AMENDMENTS
4.201 Initiation of Amendments
4.202 Amendment Procedures

4.203 Review Criteria

4.300 CONDITIONAL USES

4.301 GenerallY..
4.302 Permit APProval..

4.401 GenerallY..
4.402 Administrative Variance ...'.."""'

4.500 TEMPORARY USES

4.501 GenerallY..
4.502 Permit APProval..

4.600 INTERPRETATION OF SIMILAR USES.

4.601 GenerallY.'.
4.602 Application Content...'

4.603 Approvals..

COMMUNITY DESIGN AIYD APPEARAI{CE

5.100 SITE PLANNING.............

5.102 Site Plan Review

PAGE

4-l

4-9
4-9

4-9
4-10

4-tl
4-tl
4-ll

4-13
4-13
4-15

4-17
4-17
4-t8

4-19
4-19
4-19
4-19

5-1
5-l
5-2

5-)
5-5

5-5
5-6
5-7

5.200
5.201
5.202
5.203
5.204

LANDSCAPING
Landscaping Plan

Landscaping Materials
Landscaping Standards ..'..........

Installation and Maintenance ...'

TABLE OF CONTENTS
iii

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 341



CHAPTER PAGE

5-8
5-r0
5-r0
5-14

5-15
5-15
5-16
5-17

5-19
5-19
5-19
5-20
5-20

5-22

5-22
5-22
5-25
5-27

6-l
6-l
6-l
6-l

5.300 OFF-STREET PARKING AIID LOADING
5.301 Generally.
5.302 Off-Street Parking Sandards
5.303 Off-street Loading Standards ........

5.401 Generally.
5.402 Minimum Residential Standards......
5.403 Minimum Non-Residential Standards..

5.500
5.501
5.502
5.503
5.504

ON.SITE STORAGE
Recreational Vehicles and Equipment ............
Solid Waste Storoge..
Material Storage....
Outdoor Sales and Merchandise Display

5.600 RESERVED...

s.700 srcNs
5.701 Generally.
5.702 Prohibited Signs.........
5.703 Sign Regulations by Zone.

6. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

6.100 GENERALLY...........
6.101 Standards..
6.102 Future Improvements ............
6. I 03 Improvement Procedures ...............

6.200 IMPROVEMENT PLAN REVIEW
6.20I Preparation and Submission.........
6.202 Construction Permit
6.203 Construction...............
6.204 Acceptance of Improvements......

TABLE OF CONTENTS
iv

6-2
6-2
6-2
6-3
6-4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 342



CHAPTER
PAGE

6-5
6-5

6-8
6-9

6-11
6-l I
6-14
6-15
6-15

6-16
6-r6
6-16
6-16

6-17
6-17

6-17
6-18

6-19
6-t9
6-t9
6-20
6-20

6-21
6-2r
6-21
6-22

6-23
6-23
6-23
6-23
6-23

6.300
6.301
6.302
6.303
6.304
6.305
6.306
6.307
6.308

STREETS
GenerallY..
Steet System Improvement Fees (SIF) """"
Required Improvements..."" """" "'
Location and Design

Steet Design Standards

Sidewalks
Reserved...
Bike Paths

6.400 sAltrTARY SEWERS """""""""
6.401 Required Improvements """""""""'
6.402 Design Standards

6.403 Service Availability "':"""""""

6.500 WATER SUPPLY.
6.501 Required ImProvements

6.502 Design Standards

6.503 Service AvailabilitY

6.600 STORM WATER..
6.601 Required ImProvements

6.602 Storm Water SYstem Improvement Fees (srF)..

6.603 Design Standards

6.604 Service AvailabilitY

6.700 FIRE PROTECTION.........
6301 Required Improvements """""""
6.702 Standards..

6.703 Miscellaneous Requirements ""

6.800 PRIVATE IMPROVEMENTS..
6.801 Utility Standards

6.802 Underground Facilities"
6.803 ExcePtions

6.804 Private Streets

TABLE OF CONTENTS

il

ii

v

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 343



CHAPTER

7

PAGE

7-l
7-l
7-t

7-2
7-2

7-3
7-3
7-4
7-6
7-8

SUBDIVISIONS AND LAI{D PARTITIONS

7.100 GENERALLY...........
7.101 Purpose.....
7.102 Platting Authority

7.200 PRELIMINARY PLATS.....
7.201 Generally..

7.300 FINAL PLATS
7.301 Generally
7 .302 Final Plat Information ....................
7.303 Final Plat Review.....
7.304 Creation of Streets..

7.400 DESIGN STAI\[DARDS...............
7.4A1 Blocks .....
7.402 Easements
7.403 Pedestrian and Bicycle Ways
7.404 Lots ..........

7.500
7.501
7.502
7.503
7.504

LAND PARTITIONS ...........
Generally..
Subdivision Compliance
Dedications
Filing Requirements.......

7-9
7-9
7-9
7-9

7-t0

7-tt
7-tt
7-12
7-t3
7-13

7-13
7-t3
7-14

7.600 PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENTS.........
7.601 Generally.
7 .602 Filing Requirements.............

8. EI\-WRONMENTAL RESOURCES

8.100 PURPOSE

8.200 spEcIAL RESOURCE ZONES,,r.,.,.,,.,,.'.
8.201 Generally......
8.202 Flood Plain Overlay

TABLE OF CONTENTS
vi

8-1

8-1
8-1
8-1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 344



CHAPTER
PAGE

8-11

8-l I
8-12
8-14

8-38
8-57
8-59
8-61

8-62
8-63
8-64

9-l

9-l
9-l
9-l

9-13
9-13
9-16
9-t9
9-20

8.300
8.301

8302
8.303

8.304
8.305
8.306
8.307
8.308
8.309
8.310

Mineral Resources

Solid Waste

Parks and OPen SPace......'

Wetland, Habitat and Natural Areas """'
Noise
Air Quality
Odors........
Heat and Glare

(OT) Overlay and Historic District"""

9.

Energy Conservation.......... "'

HISTORIC RESOURCES

9.100 PURPOSE

g.2OO SPECIAL RESOURCE ZOI{ES

9.201 GenerallY,

9.202 Old Town

9.300 LAI{DMARKS ADVISORY BOARD

9.301 GenerallY..

9.400 LAI\DMARK DESIGNATION.......
9.401 Designation Standards and Procedures

9.500 LAND MARK ALTERATION.......
9.501 Procedures

9.502 Alteration Standards'

9.503 Variances to Alteration Standards"""""
g.504 Landmark Designation Incentives """"'

9-6
9-6

9-9
9-9

l.r

I

I

,.J

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 345



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 346



City of Shernvood, Oregon
Resolution No. 96-663

; DATE.

and

on the same schedule; and

and last reviewed June 27, L995; anLd

said fees and charges; and

DuIy passed bY the CiiY Council this 12th daY of November 1

Attest:

Jo
Resoluti.on 96-
November l?, !996
Page 1

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMEI{T FEES AS REQUIBED

BY THE CITY ZOMNG AND COMMUMTY DEVELOPMEIVT CODE' ESTABLISHING

FEES FoR MIScELLANEous ciTy spnvlcns AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFEcrt\rE

WHEREAS, the city Zoning code requires that certain development related fees antl

charges be established by u .up"rit" schedule approved by Resolution of the City Council'

WHEREAS, the city performs and offers certain other miscellaneous services' the

cost of which are most ,"".orr^Uty Uorne by the recipient' as opposed to paying for said

services from general City funds; and

WHEREA,S, Washington county and' urdfied sewerage Agency have also adopted

fees rerated to system d.evelop-"oi-J"rg* and these fees are alsomost conveniently listed

WHEREA,S, in June 1991, staffprepared and the ciw council reviewed a list of such

miscenaneous services, which *"r" "ruiequentrv 
adopted 

"r 
p"t ciw ordinan@ No' 91-932'

WHEREA,S,omissionofanycityfgeorchargefromsaifschedule'thatisothenrise
authorized by prior city ordinance oii"rototion, shin not preclude the city from collecting

WHEREAS,itismostappropriateth.a-tfeesand'chargesforallservicesbesetbythe
city coun"il, .rrJut a level wherebv reasonable costs are recovered.

Now,THEREFORE,THECITYRESOLVESASFoLLoWS:

Section 1. Adoption: The City Schedrrle- of Fees, attached hereto as Exhibit A, dated

Novembe r L2,1996, is hereby approled and adopted, and' supersedes all prior development

fee schedules and miscellaneous fee schedules'

section 2. Effective Date: This Resolution shal become effective November ]-2, 1996'

Mayor

City Manager-Recorder

Walter

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 347



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 348



Exhibit A
Ordinance No.96'663

November 12, 1996

FEES ANID CHABGES LISTED ON TIIIS SCI{EDULE ARE SUB'IECT TO CHANGE'

OTIIER FEES I\{AY APPLY. PMESE CONSIII'JT DIRECTT'Y WITH TTIE CITY OF

SITERWOOD RSGARDING YOI.IR DE\ZELOPMENT.

SECTION T - PLANNING FEES
FEE

I"A}TD USE APPUCATION

$2,125.00Text Amendmentlsning
$1,900.00Map AmendmentZontng
$1,400.00Conditional Use

$1,400.00
$ 175.00

Variance:

-R"quiring 
Commission Hearing

Administrative
$1,275.00Minor Land Partition
$2,lzfplus $14-00/IotSubdivision

$2,L25plus $14-00/Iot plus 5O% of usual fee

per each supplemental application

$2,l25plus $14.00/lot

Planned Unit Development (PUDJ:

R" q"jd" g Supplemental Application(s)

No Supplemental Application(s)

$1,325.00
$1,775.00
$2,300.00
$2,525.00

Site Plan Review:
Under $49,000.00
$49,000.01 - $99'999.99
$ 100,000.0 1 - $999,999.99
Over $1,000,000'00

$1,275.00Similar Use InterPretation

$1,075.00
$ 175.00

Temporarlr Use:
Requiring Commission Hearing
Adrrinisfrative

$ 850.00
$ 175.00

Time Extension:
Hearing Required
No Hearing Required

I

L

I

it
i. Resolution 96-653

November 12, 1996
Page 2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 349



Other Land Use Action:
HearingRequired
Adminishative

$1,075.00
$ 175.00

Apoeal: 5Ao/o of oiginal fee(s)

Miscelaneous Actions:
Joint Applications (except PUDs)

Amendment(s) to Prior Approval
Consultant as Needed

Full fee for primary application plus 50% of
usual fee per each supplemental application
50% of original fee(s)

Actual Costs

SECTION 2 -
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTAND SUBDTWSION PI,AN REVIEWS AND INSPECTIONS

Plan review and inspection fees are based on a percentage of project construction cost as
verified by the City.

Plan Review 4Vo of construction cost

Inspection 4o/o of eonstruction cost

EROSION CONTROL

Erosion Control Inspection Fge: Activities requiring an erosion control pemit, and which are
covered by a buildingpermit:

Value of Project
$0 to $2,000.00
$2,000.0 1 to $25,000.00
$25,000.01 to $50,000.00
$50,000.01 to $100,000.00
$100,000.01 and up

Fee
$ 5.00
$15.00
$26.00
$40.00
$40.00 - plus $24.00 per evely $100,000.00
or fraction thereof over $100,000.00

Activities requiring an erosion control permit, and which are not covered. by a building pernit:

Area

0 to L acre
I acre and up

$80.00
$80.00 plus $20.00 per acre or fraction
thereofover an acre.

&e

Erosion Control Plan Check Fee: 650/0 of tLLe erosion control pennit fee.

Resolution 96-663
November 12, 1-996
Page 3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 350



FEES
$10.00Mailing of Plans and for Capital

ects

$175.00
$150.00 per tree
PGE approved fee plus number of lights
times 24 months

Traffic and Street SigPs

Street Tlees
Street Lights

Compliance Agreement Fees

TIBC33& Erosion Pemits
Based on Tinear:Permits

25.00and Constrrrction Standards

SECTION 3. PTIBLIC WORKS

SECTION 4. POLICE

SECTION 5 -ADMINISTRATIVE
ir

i1

i Resolution 96-663
November 12, L996
Page 4

I

l

materialsandtimeActualStreet Cut
Achral t'me and materialsCurb Cut

materialsandtimeActualw Sendce Connection ROWrnater
Actual time and

S S Connection in ROWerSnce
$350.00

20.00
Hydrant Meter (refundable dePos0

Per
Rental

$15.00special functions such

as

fingerprinting atFingerprinting

r.0andlnsurancePolice
0.Po]ice es

00Police Video
15.00New Alam Permits
10.00NoP

Streets
10.00Double
10.00
10.00in Bus
10.00ZoneItl
10.00Side of Streeton
10.00Curb or in Crosswalk
10.00Over Line
10.00Over Time Limit

$10.00 per lotLien Search
per single side $0.15
per double side $0.25

Copyrng

$20.00Returned check Processing

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 351



Notary Fee $5.00 per d.ocument

Water hrm off/on for delinquent water accounts $30.00

New Liquor License Application Review $25.00

Duplication of tapes from City meetings $20.00 each tape

Stom Water Master Plan $20.00

Stom Water Management Plan (Murdock and Sunset Basin) $20.00

Plan Updates: Sanitary Sewer, Tlensllortation, Water Senrice,
Parks and Open Space)

$ 5.00 each

Community Development Plan $25.00

Zontng Code $25.00

Local Wetlandblventory $25.00

Plan/Zone Map $10.00

SECTION 6. MUNICIPAL COURT

SECTION 7 - BUILDING PERMITS

Court Costs for Failure to Appear - Arraignments $10.00

Court Costs for Failure to Appear - Ttials $25.00

Set-up Fee for Citation Time PaSment Plan $25.00

Senrice Charge on Time I.5o/o per month

Inspected and issued by the City of Sherrvood. Other fees may apply, see State of Oregon
Structural Specialty Code, as adopted. Values are based on the Building Valuation Data
published bv the State of Oregon Buildine Codes Division.

Total Valuation Fees

$1.00 to $500.00 $10.00

$501.00 to $2,000.00 $10.00 for the first $500.00 plus $1.50 for each additional

$100.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $2,000.00.

$2,001.00 to $25,000.00 $32.50 for the first $2,000.00 plus $6.00 for each additional

$1,000.00 or fraction thereof to and including $25,000.00

$25,001.00 to $50,000.00 $170.50 for the first $25,000.00 plus $4.50 for each additional

$1,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000.00

$50,001.00 to $100,000.00 $283.00 for the tust $50000.00 plus $3.00 for each additional

$1,000.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000.00

$100,001.00 and up $433.00 for the first $100,000.00 plus $2.50 for each additional

$1,000.00 or fraction thereof

Resolution 96-663
Novendcer !2, f996
Page 5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 352



IT{ANUFA NOMEHCTURED
$3L2.20, indudes State's fees.

ufactured Home PlacementsMan
Cityinspected Sherwood.oftheand byIssuedPEBMITS:PLUMBING

$20.00Base Rate

$156.00

$216.00

$276.00

One bath

Two Bath

Three Bath

$15.00Alterations: Each Fixture

$15.00

$15.00

Commercia} New Constrrrction (each

fixture)

Alterations (each fixture)

$40.00

$22.00

Waterlines:

For first 100 feet or fraction thereof

For additional 100 feet

$40.00

$22.00

Sewer Senrice Lines

First 100 feet or fraction thereof

For additional 100 feet

$28.00Mobile Home - SewerAilater connection'

each

$15.00Lawn Sprinklers
$4o.ooMinimum insPection fee

$40.00Re-inspection fee

MECI{ANICAL PERMITS: Fees based on state of oregon

adopted.

Mechanical SPecialtY Code, as

FIREANDLIFESAFETYREVIEW:(Commercialand only): 40% of Building

Pennit Fee.

Industrial

PERMITS: See Resolution 97'697'ELECTRICAL

BUILDING PLAN CHE CIf,;z 650/o of Building Perrnit Fee'

t;
IJ Resolution 96-563

November !2, 1996
Page 6

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 353



MISCELI"ANEOUS

Inspections outside normal business hours (minimum
charge two hours)

$40.00 per hour

Re-inspection Fees $35.00 each

Inspection for which no fee is specifically indicated
(Minimum charge of one-half hour)

$40.00 per hour

Additional plan review required by changes, additions or
revisions to approved plans (Minimum charge of one-half
hour)

$40.00 per hour

Re-stamp of lost or stolen plans $40.00 each set

Fence Perrnit $25.00

Resolution 96-663
November 12, f996
Page 7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 354



CitY of Sherwood, Oregon

Resolution No' 97-697

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SCTIEDULE OF ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES'

DEVELOPMENTFEESAsREQUIREDBYTHECITYZONINGANDCOMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT CODE, AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE'

WHEREAS,theCityZontngCoderequiresthatcertaindevelopmentrelatedfeesand
charges be established by a separate r.h"dul" appioved by Resolution of the City Council' and

WHEREAS, the city adopts fees approved by washington county and unified sewerage

Agency related to system development charges, and these fees are most conveniently listed on this

schedule; and.

WHEREAS, the City will begin offering services of Elecnical Permits previously issued

by Washington CountY, and

NOW, TTTEREFORE, TIrE CITY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

section l. Adoption: The city schedule of Fees, attached hereto as Exhibit A' dated June

24,Igg7,is hereby approved and adopted, and supersedes all prior development fee schedules'

l

ij

Section 2. Effective Date: This Resolution shall become July 1,1997.

Duly passed by the City Council this 246 day of

Mayor

Attest:

+o+Aemet, City
5u- €n7.$ fi'{; 'yr

Resolution 97-697
lune24,1997
page L

l. l

.

,}

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 355



A. Residential - unit

1000 sq. ft. or less $110.00
Each additional 500 .ft.or $ 25.00

Limited $
Manufd Home or lar Dwell or Feeder $ 68.00

Seruices or Feederr alterations, orB.

or less200 $ 60.00
20t to 400 $ 80.00
401 to amps $120.00

601 am to 1000 $180.00
1000 or volts

Reconnect $ 50.00

C. Tem or Feeders latinn,Seruices

or less200 $ 50.00
$

40t to 600 $1
tol volts seeOver above

D. Branch or extension perCircuits
a.) The fee its purchase

Each branch circuit
serylce or fee.

$ 5.00

First branch circuit
Each additional branch circuit

b.) The fee for circuits of or feeder

$ 35.00
$ 5.00

Miscellaneous (Service Feeder uded)E. or not incl

$ 40.00
or outlineEach ng $ 40.00

it(s) or a limitedS clrcu alternation or extension $ 40.00

$ 3s.00
Per hour $ 55.00
InP $ 5s.00

F. Each additional i

(EXHIBIT A''

ELECTRICAL PERMIT APPLICATION FEE SCHEDULE

of the allowable in ofthe above

Resolution 97-692
June 24, 1997
page 2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 356



SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES

ling valent.unitdwel equlorunitdwellingper

individual
commercialresidential,

dwelling estimates

City

two-andForflow singledayfo persewerageeachJ8.0 gallonper$0 betosumedbe asshallflowthe seweragelots,onhomesmanufacturedandresidences,family multi-familYhome parks,manufacturedFunrt. or5
a
J5 perdaypergallons sonbasedbe englneershallflowof seweragedaytutional perinstt uses, gallonsandindustrial theverifiedastheof use,ortrme of developmentat the

vidualresidences, residential

two-andFor familysingledayof persewerageeach5 gallon$0.22 per
53 5to bebe assumedflow shallthe seweragelots,indionhomesmanufacturedand commercial,tmulti-familyhomemanufactured parks,Forunit.dwellingday perpergallons estimatesonbasedbe engineer'sshallflowof seweragedayperuses,institutional gallonsandindustial, theverifiedas Citybytheof use,or redevelopmenttlmethe ofat

etc.lineline

Sewer Service connection fees cover the acfual costs bome by the City in connecting and-inspecting

materials.andlaborActual

connection to Public systems.
onhometwo-familt

Multi-family, commercial, industrial, manufactured home Park, and

lot:
Single-

$s0.00

0.00

institutional:

Connections

Reimbursement - Meter Size

$ 2s6

$ 640

$ 1,040

8 2,336
$ 4,160

$ 8,896

sI6,672

160
5/8 -3A"

l"
l-112"

2"
J

4"
6"
gtt

- Meter Size

$ 2,800

$ 4,480

$ I1,200
$ 18,200

$ 40,880

$ 72,800

$ l5 5,680

s291,760

518

I4

6"

I
I
2
J

3/
ll

l2
ll

g"

4"

$47
Administrattve Charge

$ 3,007
Fire Flow Buildings Only

Resolution 97{97
lune 24, 1997

page 3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 357



the costsactual borne the ln andby City connecting rnspectmg
toconnectlon systems.public

, two-family, manufactured
install meter only
Single-family home on individual lot, 00 plus cost of meter$40

, commercial, industrial, manufactured home park,
and institutional connections:

Multi-family Actual labor
meter.

materials plus cost of

taps, line extensions, etc.Connections involving line Actual labor and materials plus cost of
meter

equalsateaPer of Onesurface. valent Serviceimpermeable UnitEqui
feet.2,640

Reimbursement Charge: None

Improvement Charges: A. Water Quality: $210/ESU
B. Water Quantity: $290iESU

Per area of surface.

Reimbursement None

$0.031 foot

to residential uses
Reimbursement Charge: None

$841.00 per residential dwelling unit

$179.00 per

fees.

Residential weekday

See following "TIF" trip rates. See TIF manual for

Business/Commercial $ 45.00 per weekday trip
$164.00 average tnp

IndustrialUse $172.00 average
Institutional 74.00 per average

"TIF" trip rates. Charge ls calculated by multiplyingSee
generated trip by the following:
Reimbursement Charge None

Charge $ 17.90 per average weekday trip

Resolution 97-697
lune 24, 1997
page 4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 358



THIS TABLE IS USED TO CALCULATE TIF-SDC FEES

# Units

270 - Planned Unit

460 - Camp
**

Resolution 97-697
lune24,1997
page 5

# of UnitsDetached0I Housing2 Single-Fam

feweror stones)Low-rise (2I22 Apartment
storiesor moreRise )(3Apartment

t0.00

5.86

6.r0

4.20

6.60
220- Apartment

m230 -

WEEKEND
AVERAGE
TRIP RATE

WEEKDAY
AVERAGE
TRIP RATE

BASIS FOR
TRIP

DETERMTNATION

LAND USE

CATEGORY/DESCRIPTION

)')) -

rfilableNof avar231 - Low-Rise Condominium
4.18

232 - High-Rise Condom tn lum
4.81

# of Units

240 - Home
3.30

250 - Retirement Community
3.16Home

*100.00rShip berths10-
**Not available020 - Airport
*I1.83Average Flights per day021 - Commercial
rt3.06022- Airport
*9.86T.G.S.F030 - Terminals
rfrf

Not available040 - Railroad Term
lt 827.58Parking spaces10 - Park
?3 583.66Acres4l I - CityPark
,2.262.ttAcres412 - Park
r7R1.05Acres413 - State
5553.00Boat berths420 -
s956.62Parking spaces430 - Course
**Not available440 - Theater
**Not available441-Live
**Not available442 - Music Theater

6.t91 7.181Parking spaces443 - Movie Theater (sit down)
tS:f

Not availableTheater444 -
+0.55Parking spaces450'Stadium **Not available451 - ootball
*l.08spaces452 - Horse Race **Not available453 - Auto Race **Not available454 - Dog Race

Not available

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 359



491 - Tennis Courts T.G.S.F. 32.93 23.80
492 - Racquet Clubs T.G.S.F 15.94 23.85
501 - Military Base No. of employees 1.78 *
510 - Preschool Not available * *

520 - Elementary School L03 *

530 - High School 1.39 rF

540 - Junior/Community College 1.55 *

550 - University

# of Students

2.41 *

560 - Church T.G.S.F 7.t0 18.18

565 - Day Care Center T.G.S.F. 67.00 6.t 5
570 - Court T.G.S.F * !t

580 - Museum/Gallery T.G.S.F. * *

590 - Library T.G.S.F 45.50 25.39
610 - Hospial T.G.S.F. t6.69 11.29
620 - Nursing Home Num 2.60

BUSINESS :COMMERCIAL
310 - Hotel Number of rooms 8.70
320 - Motel Number of rooms 10.19

330 - Resort Hotel Number of rooms 18.40

810 - Retail-General Merchandise Not available rt

8ll -SpecialtyStore Not available *
812 - Building Materials/Lumber T.G.S.F. 30.56
813 - Lumber Not available *
814 - Specialty Retail Center T.G.L.S.F. 40.68
815 - Discount Stores T.G.L.S.F 70.16
816 - Hardware/Paint Store T.G.S.F. 53.21

817 - Nursery T.G.S.F 36.17
820 - Shopping Center under 50,000

Gr. Sq. ft.
T.G.L.S.F. 94.7t

821 - Shopping Center 50,000 -
99,999 Gr. Sq. ft.

T.G.L.S.F 84.512

822 - Shopping Center 100,000 -

199,999 Gr. Sq. ft.
T.G.L.S.F 66.622

823 - Shopping Center 200,000 -
299,999 Gr. Sq. ft.

T.G.L.S.F. 53.622

824 - Shopping Center 300,000 -
399,999 Gr. Sq. ft.

T.G.L.S.F 45.66z

825 - Shopping Center 400,000 -
499,999 Gr. Sq. ft.

T.G.L.S.F. 4t.4tz

826 - Shopping 500,000 -

Resolution 97.697
lune24,1997
page 6

999,999 Gr. Sq. ft.
T.G.L.S.F. 36.63

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 360



ri

827 - Shopping Center, 1,000,000 -

$1,200,000 Gr. Sq. ft.

T.G.L.S.F J

828 - Center over
1,200,000 Gr. Sq' ft.

T.G.L.S.F 2.3

831 - Qual Restaurant T.G.S.F 95.

832 High-Turnover Sit-Down Restaurantt T.G.S.F I

833 - Drive-in Restaurant T.G.S.F 100

834 Place Not available t

841 - New Car Sales T.G.S.F 47.52

842 - Used Car Not available *

843 - Auto Parts Sale Not available *

844 - Service Station

845 - Tire, Battery Accessory

846 -Car

Number of PumPs I

Not available *

Numberof wash stalls - t00.00J

847 - Auto Not available *

848 - HighwaY Oasis
tnrck fuel, minimal trucker

and mechanical services)

Not available

*

849 - Truck StoP (including
auto and truck mechanical

services, tnrcker suPPlies and

trucker overnight sleePing

accommodations)

Not available
tf

850 - Supermarket T.G.S.F - 
100.00r

I T.G.S.F. 100.00r

870 - Apparel T.G.S.F. 3.33

890 - T.G.S.F. 4.35

895 - Video Arcade T.G.S.F.

l1- T.G.S.F. I

912 - Drive-in Bank T.G.S.F.
- 

100.00r

9t3 - and Loan (walk-in) T.G.S.F. 61.00

914 - Drive-in Savings and loan T.G.S.F 100.00r

Resolution 97-697
lune24, 199'1

page 7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 361



630 - Clinic T.G.S.F 23.79
7l I - General Under 100,000 G.S.F. T.G.S.F 16.31
7t 2 - GeneralOffice, 100,001 - T.G.S.F 2.40
713 - General Office,200,000, T.G.S.F. n.54
720 - Medical Building T.G.S.F 34.t7
730 - Government Building T .F 68.93
731 - State Motor Vehicles Department T.G,S.F. r6.60

2 - U.S. Post T.G.S.F 86.78
740 - Civic Center T.G.S.F 25.O0

Park750 - Use General Office
760 Center 6.09
770 - Business T.G.S.F t2.42
910 - Not available ,f

915 - Stockbroker Not
916 - ing Agency Not available *
920 - Real *
930 - Insurance T.G.S I 1.45

I l0 - General Light T.G.S.F. 6.97
120 - Heavy Industrial T.G.S.F 1.50
I T.G.S.F 6.97
140 - Manufacturing T.G.S.F 3.85
150 - Warehouse T.c.s.F. 4.88
t5l - Warehouse T.G.S.F 2.6t
70I Employees 1.07

Iture Not available *
860 - T.G.S.F. 6.73

a

Resolution 97-697
lune 24, 1997

page 8

NOTES:
(Not available) - indicates that the ITE Manual does not contain information for this use.
Therefore, the basis for trip determination shall be as set forth in Section [3. l7-.040D.].
TGSF - Thousand Gross Square Feet
TGLSF - Thousand Gross Leasable Feet.

administration

Washington

AppealSDC A,ppeals: ofagainstprocedures ordSDC lnances and or theCity resolutions,
of SDCexpenditure are forCity funds, c ordinance.provided USAof orby ity Appeals County

areSDCs the USAicable orper sDc Fregulations. ee $s00.00

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 362



i

i;

City of Shenvood, Oregon
Ordinance No. 97-1022

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

PLAN, PART 3, REGARDING THE ENCROACHMENT OF DECKS INTO THE REAR YARD

SETBACK IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES WITHIN THE CITY OF SHERWOOD.

WHEREAS, the Sherwood planning Commission has determined that the current regulations

contained in the Comprehensive PIan, Part 3, Zoning and Community Development Code regarding deck

setbacks is inadequate; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Plan Text Amendment will allow decks to cncroach into the re-ar yard

setback while maintaining the privacy of adjacent property owners; and

WHEREAS, the Sherwood Plaruring Commission recommended adoption of proposed Plan

Amendment within the Comprehensive Plan, Part 3,Zonrngand Community Development Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section l. Amendments. Add the following section to Chapter 2 of the Comprehensive Plan, Part

3,Zoningand Community Development Code as follows:

2.305.05 Decks

Uncovered decks which are no more than 30 inches above grade may project into the

required rear yard, but shall not be closer than five fest from the property line. tf the

ground slopes away from the edge ofthe deck, the deck height shall be measured at a point

five feet r*13y fro. the edge of the deck. Decks shall not be allowed in the required front

or side Yard setbacks.

Section 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after passage

and approval.

Duly passed by thc City Council this 8s day of April, 1997

Approved by the Mayor this 86 day of April,1997

0'rt
Ron Tobias, Mayor

Attest:

Jon City Manager/Recorder

NAY NAY

Aamold
Boyle
Cottle

AYE
\
\

AYE
\
\
\-

Krause
Tobias

I

L,

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 363



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Ordinance No. 97-1021

AN ORDINANCE APPROVTNG AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITYDEVELOPMENT PLAlr, PART 3, REGARDING DcADiinneliniiol"""*roNcE oFAPPLICATIONS.

WHEREAS' the sherwood Planning commission has determined that the regulatio'scontained in the comprehensive Plan, 
^Part- 

3, Zoning and community Development coderegarding deadlines and the acceptance of applications ari inadequate; and'

WHEREAS, the proposed Plan Text Amendrnentrvill bring the comprehensive plan,Part 3, Zonngand Community Development Code into conform-""inith State Laws, and;

WHEREAS, the Sherwood Planning commission reconrmended adoption of the

Br:ffiXr:ll"Amendment 
within the comprlhensive pr-, purt 3, z;;insand community

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section l' Amendments. Variotts sections in chapter 3 of the comprehensive plan, part3'zoningand community Development code are herebyfuended per Attachment A.

section 2' Effective Date. This ordinance shall become ef,fective thirty (30) days afterpassage and approval.

Duly passed by the city council this I l,r' day ol. F-ebruarr, - lggl.

Approved b), the Mayor this I l,r' day of I:cbr'Darv

i)'
\\

, rgg

U

{ttest

.lon B . City Manager/Recordcr

AYI]
\i

Ron Tobias. Ir,layor

NNY
.,\artrold
llo;'lc
(-ortlc

Krause
'lobias

\
;\l

.L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 364



Attachment A
Ordinance No. 97-1021

Amendments to the City of Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code

Regarding Deadlines and Acceptance of Applications.

Remove Code Section 3.103.01 Deadlines as follows:

&fo3;O+ Desdlin€s

the eitr', arC aeeeped as full and eemplete es per seetien 3:103t at least (15)

ealendar days in advanee efthe eemnrissien meeting at-{''/hieh tlre applieatien is

te be first eensidered; exeept as preYided by Seetien 7.301,01.

Amend Code section 3.103.02 Acceptance to read as follorvs:

3.103.02 Acceptance

Within se+€s (1) thirty (30) calendar days of the date of the initial submission,

the City shall determine whether the application is complete and so notify the

applicant in writing. Incomplete applications will not be accepted by the City.

Iniomplete applications shall be returned to the applicant along with a written

notification of the application's deficiencies The applicatianfees submitted are

non-refundable. . Provided, however, that

incomplete applications may be resubmitted when the noted deficiencies have

been corrected to the City's satisfaction.

t.r

,1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 365



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Ordinance No. 97-1020

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITYDEVELOPMENT PLAN, PART 3, REMOVING MINI-WAREHOUSING ANDCOMMERCTAL STORAGE AS A PERMITTED USE IN THE GENERALCOMMERCIAL (CC) ZONE WITHIN THE CITY OF SHERWOOD.

WHEREAS, the General Commercial zone is primarily comprised of uses which areretail, service or office type uses which generate and depend upon 
"onr-,irr.r 

activity; and

WHEREAS, wholesale trade, warehousing, commercial storage and mini-warehousing
are generally considered industrial type uses which do not assist in developing a synergy ofcommercial activity; and

WHEREAS, the Sherwood Planning Commission recommended adoption of proposedPlan Amendment removing wholesale t-d", warehousing, commercial storage and mini-warehousing as permitted uses in the General Commercial zone, within the Comprehensive plan,
Part 3, Zoning and Community Development Code.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section l' Amendments. Various sections in Chapter 2 of the Comprehensive plan, part
3,Zoningand Community Development Code are hereby amended per Attachment A.

Section 2' Effective Date. This ordinance shall becorle effective thirty (30) days afterpassage and approval.

Duly passed by the city councir this l r'r' day of Februar .t,. 1997 .

Approvcd by the Mayor tliis I l'r' day of lre , lggT

tr$ 't\\_,

Attest
Ron'l-obias, I\4ayor

.lon R n1 t. Citl' Managcr/Rccorcler

Aartrold
13o1,lc

Ctrttlc
K rause

J'ol"rias

( lt(jrii.lll.! . ,-'

fjcltrrlrlt Ii_; )'i:
I'rgc I

It-

n Yti
\**

NAY

I U L-i-;-,.;

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 366



Attachment A
Ordinance No. 97-1020

Amendments to thc City of Sherwood Zoning and Community Dcvelopment Code

Regarding Allorved uscs within the General commercial Zone-

Amend Code Section 2.109.01Gcneral Commercial (GC) to read as follorvs:

2.109 Gcneral Commercial (GC)

2.109.01 PurPose

The GC zoning district provides for v,*e{esale-and commercial uses which require

Iarger parcels of land, and or uses rvhich involve products or activities which

require special attention to environmental impacts as per Chapter 8.

Amend Code Section Z.L}g.AZGeneral Commercial (GC) Permitted Uses, as follows:

2.109.02 Pcrmittcd Uscs

\\rlrelesale trade; rvareheusing; eemmereial sterage and mini *?relreuSin$,

The remaining letters in this section will be revised accordingly.

N

!

,

I cl)ru.rrrl l. l'l ,

l'.rLr:

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 367



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Ordinance No. 97-l0lg

AI{ ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE .'MMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT PLAIY, PART 3, REGARDING THE SITING OF WIRELESS
COMMT'NICATION FACILITIES WTTHIN TTIE CITY OF SHERWOOD.

WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council has determined that the regulations contained in
the C.omprehensive Plan" Part 3,Zonrngand Community Development CoJe regarding the siting
of wireless communication facilities within the city are inadequate; and

WHEREAS, wireless technology is a rapidly changing industry with specific needs
regarding the siting of antennas and the Sherwood City Council has determined *rat ttre siting of
wireless facilities within the City involves the suitability of areas for such a use; and

WHEREAST. the City Planning Commission recommended adoption of proposed plan
Amendment regarding the siting of wireless communication facilities.

NO% THEREFORE, THE CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section l. Amendments. Various sections in Chapter 2 of the Comprehensive plan, part
3'Tnnrngand Community Development Code are hereby amended per Attachment A.

Section 2- Effectivc Date. This ordineurce shall become ef,fective thirry (30) days after
passage and approval.

Duly passed by the city council this 2g'r' day of January , r,gg7.

Approved by the Mayor this 28,r,day January, 1997 -

,.^Qrt^
Ron Tobias, Mayor

Attest:

Jon City Manager/Recorder

Aarnold
Boyle
Cottle
Krause
Tobias

AYE
\

T-
\-

NAY

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 368



Amendments to the City of Shenvood Zoning and Community Development Code

Establishin g Regulations fo r wireless com mu n icatio n Facilities'

Amend Code Sectiorftl.2gd'ls amended by adding the follorving definitions:

Conditional Uses

Radio, television, and

Attachment A
Ordinance No. 97-1019

January 28,1997

similar communication stations, including

are

of
of

l:

t:

ri

utilitv pole.

Amend Code Section2..l0gGeneral Commerciat (GC) to read as follows:

2.109.02 Permitted Uses

V.

2.109.03

B
transmitters wl

Amcnd code section 2.1L0 Light Industrial (LI) to rcad as follorvs:

2.110.02 Permitted Uses

o
N. co-

l

i
It

()r.lrri:iltt \,, r,:': :"
,anuz^ ls. l')9-'
|a!(:

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 369



Attachment A
Ordinance No. 97-1019

January 28, L997

2.110.03 Conditional Uses

F' Radio. television. and similar comr4u{rication stations. includins
tftmsmitters and wireless communication towers except for tower$ located
within 1,000 f"et of the old rou'n District which at" nrohibited.

Amend code sectioi.?.lll,General Industrial (GI) to read as follows:

2.111.02 Permitted Uses

O- Wireless communication a(ttennas co-located on an existing tower or on an
existine buildins or structure not exceedine the roof of the stru;ture
provided the applicant can demonstrate to the satisfactio,{r of the Citv that
the lgcation of the antenna on Citv-owned prooerty would be Pnfeasible.

2.111.03 Conditional Uses

C. Radio. television. and similar communicatio4 stations. includine
transmitters and wireless communication towers except for towers located
within 1.000 feet of (re old roum District which are prohibited.

Prohibited Uses

e.

2.t1r.04

segens-er++*pment.

Amend Code Scction Z.ll3Institutional and Public (IP) to read as follorvs:

2.113.02 permitted Uses

envirorunental perfbrmance standards contained in chapter g.

A- wi..l.s 
"o-ntuni"ution 

fu"iliti"r ott citu-o*n"d orop.rtu

B. Wireless communication a nas mounfed on an exrstrno buildins or
structure not exceedinq the heiqht of the roof of the structure provided Ilie

that
of the antcma otr City-owned prope.tv *ould be unfuasible.

t}l J:':3:r,r \o,)7- l()lt
Jailrrf,:5. l917

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 370



It

Attachment A
Ordinance No. 97-1019

January 28, L997

2.113.03 Conditional Uses

P+rbli€ Radio. television, and similar communication stations, includins
transmitters and wireless,communication towers.

2.111.04 Prohibited Uses

pt*bli€ly-ot#n€d.

The remaining numbers in this section will be revised accordingly.

Amend Code Secaon\iii06-io reaa as follows:

2.306 CHIMNEYS, SPIRES, ANTENNAS AI.ID SIMILAR STRUCTURES

2.306.01 Heigha

Except as otherwise provided, the height limits established by this Code shall not
apply to chimneys, stacks, water towers, radio or television antennas, towers,
windmills, grain elevators, silos, elevator penthouses, monuments, domes, spires,

belfries, hangers, solar heating devices and to wireless communication facilities
trvo hundred (200) feet in heieht or less.

Amend Code Section-'4.302.03 to read as follows:

43A2 PERMIT APPROVAL

4.302.03 Findings of Fact

For wireless communication facilities- no conditional rrse nermit shall he granted

H.

B

unless the followins criteria is found

F. The aoolicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Citv that the

wireless communication facilitv he located in an IP zone due to the

coverage needs of the 2nn c.anfli

G. collt or1 facili
accommodate co-location or it can be shown that the facilitv cannot
feasiblv accommodate co-location.

(l:.:.::. - -< :.. .i:. l,'1\)
.,il'r'", -S I\):l

I

't
,..1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 371



H.

I.

Attachment A
Ordinance No. 97-1019

January 28,1997

The apolicant shall demonsfrate a iustification for the prooosed heieht of
the tower or ante4na and an ev4luation of alternative desiers which mieht
result in lower heights.

The,prooosed wireless communication facilitv is not located within one
thousand (1.000) feet of an existi4g rvireless facility or that the proposed
wireless communication facilitv cannot feasiblv be located on a$ existine
wireless communication faciliw.

The proposed wireless communiqation facilitv is located a Jninimum of
three hundred.(300) feet from residentiallv zoned properties.

J.

()rc,ilr:ti. .... .:r_ lr.;l.r
,dnuir\ :i :';:_

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 372



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 373



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Ordinance No.96-1014

Al.I ORDINAT{CE APPROVING AMENDMEI{IS TO TIIE COMMTJNITY
DE\TELOPMEIqT PLAhI, PART I, REGARDING REGI'T,ATTON OF FENCES
IN RESIDENTIAL AREA,S, AND ESTABLISIIING AN EFFECTN/E DATE.

WIIEREA,S, the Sherwood City Council has determined that the residential
fence regulations in Comprehensive Plan Part 3 T,ontng and Community
Development Code are inadequate; and

WHEREAS, a Citizeus Committee was f:ormed to review and develop
appropriate residential fence re gulations; and,

WHEREAS, the City Plat''';"g Commission recommended adoption of new
residential fence requirements (City File No. PA 96-3) on August 7, 1996.

NOIVTHEREFORE, TIIE CITT ORDAINS A,S FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Amendments. Various sections in Chapter 2 of the
Comprehensive Plan Part 3 Z,o,nng and Community Development Code are hereby
a-ended per Attachneut A

Sestion 2. Efregtive Date. This ordinan@ shall become effective tlfrty (30)
days after passage and approval.

Q"lV passed by the City Council this 27th day of August 1996.

Approved by the Mayor this 27th day of August 1996.

Walter A. Hitchcock, Mayor

ATTEST:

q &r,,'*.
Jon , City l\{anager-Recorder

AYI' NAY
Aamoid
Boyle
Cottle
Hitchcock
Kennedv

R1\r:net

(Lls-r,"--u*-1|:_
(_T

()r,i:::.,:.,. :. :. ir,';
.,i rr ili -:
I'rr.-i

fr,^ a-.{ (:f

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 374



Attachtt'ent A
o'*T:"J?:f,!ZLi

Amend.ments to the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code

bstablishing Regulations for Fences'

Amend Code Section 2'301'01 to read as follows:

A clear vision area shall be maintained on the corners of all property at the

intersection of two (2) streets, intersection of a street with a railroad, or iutersection

of a street with an alley or private driveway'

Section 2.303.01 - Generally. Delete the current verbiage and insert the

following:

A Purpose:' The fence stand.ards promop the positive benefits of fences

without negatively imFacting the community or endangeringpublic or vehicle

safety. Fences can create a sense of privary, protect children aad pets'

provide separation from busy ;;;;,- and 
-eJhance the appearance of

propert5r uv proJi-g "tt"".ti* 
rttat*p" materials' The uegative effect of

fences can ioaoae ihe creatio;a;#et walls f[af inhibit poltuc and

communiry surreillance, d.ecrease the sense of communiw' hinder emergency

ac@ss, lessen ,;1"" ";ss, 
hinder the safe movement of pedestriaas and

vehicles, and create an unattractive appearance. These sta^ndard's are

intended to promote the positiv" "tp""tt-Jf 
f""t"t and to limit the negative

C

ones

B

D. Location:

2

I frences up to forty-trvo inches (42") higil are alio$'ecl in reqttired front

building setbacks

Fencesuptosixfeet(6,)highareallorvedinrequiredsideorrear
buitding setbacks

3 Additionally, all fences shall be subject to the clear vision provisions of

Definition: For purposes of this ordinance, a corner lot adjoining two (2)

City streets shalt l;;" both yards adjoining the streets considered as f'ont

yards.

Types of Fences: The standards apply to walls, fences, hedges, mounds,

and screens of all types (or a comUi""ii"" thereof) whether open' solid' wood'

metal, wire, -u.orrry, plant vegetation or other materials'

{)r :.. .:i.. ::,J :!ri. l!} i :
jr,rr,:.r'li. l{}:lri
I'rr,.l

Section 2.301

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 375



E. Provisional Locations:

I On corner lots in residential areas, where a home is characterized. as
back-to-back. (see Diagram adopted herein as shown in the
illustration of these text provisions):

A six-foot (6) fence may extend into the required second. front
yard in an amount not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the
distance measured between the house and sidewellr.

b) said fence may not extend beyond eight feet (8) from the rear of
the house toward the front.

2. On corner lots in residential areas where a home is characterized as
back-to-front. (see Diagram adopted herein as shown in the
illustration of these text provisions):

a) A six-foot (6) fence may extend into the second. required front
yard in an amouut no greater than fi.ve feet (b) from the house.

b) said fence nay not extend beyond eight feet (g) from the rear of
the house to the front.

3. Fences in yards affecting cul-de-sacs are exempt from Section E of this
Ordinance.

Provisional Conditions: The following conditions are applied to those
fences constructed pursuant to section E of this ordinance:

1 The clear visions standards of section 2.901 apply, and take
precedence over these provisions in the event of conflict between this
Section and Section 2.303.

2. Wire/chain link fencing is not allorved along an5r lu.i4ential street
frontage.

G. General Conditions:

hr all cases, the following standarcl.= ar.e appiiecl:

a) Clrnin link fencing rs not il.llrrrvcti in :lny r.nr-rrrir.or-l ro.qidontial
front yar:d setback.

a)

F

1

()r,irrrarr;,. 'i I :.i 'i,r, -

.luilust.2; i:,-...i

b) The finished side of the fence must face the streer

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 376



c) A fence permit from the City is required for all fences'

H. Administrative Variance:

The city Manager or his/her desiguee may grant an administrative variance

to this Ordinance-

Abatement of Fences in Non-Compliance:L

1. FencesthatdonotconformtoSectiolEofthisCodemustcomeinto
compliance ,oU"o-Jn. hoo"" is sold, when other permits are issued' or

by september r, iooi, wiichever is earlier. Fences constructed'

affectingcul.de-sacsorfencescreatinginadequatesitedistances
pursuanttoSectiouz.SoLmust@Eeintocomplianceimmediately.

Chafunlinlrfencesforf,y-twoinches(4t:)orunderinfrontyard
setbacks, "r""triiJ; 

; ad.option of iUis ordinance, or other fences

which, when io;"U;, *"'J f"J* under the Sherwood Code of

Ordit,ances eff"ctiou atibattine, t"" "*"-pt 
from Section I'

2.

I. Penalties:violationsofsection2-soS.olshallbesubjecttothepenalties
defined bY Section 1-101'04'

I

a)rrltnlr(t No !i;- l0li
.{utusl'l:. l:i:ir,
Jragc {

I

i
i -l

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 377



(Erample)

Back-to-Back

22Ft

Fencell Ft

+-8

Back Back

X'ENCE STZE

6Ft
3 %Ft

Sidewalk (If no sidewalk exists, measure 6 Ft from roadside)

Back

F8 Ft

(Example)

Back-to-X'ront

sFt I
Fence

X'ront

FENCE SIZE

6Ft
3IATI

Sidewalk (If no sidewalk exists, measure 6 Ft from roadside)

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 378



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 379



I

I

I

i
I

I

I

i

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
!

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 380



CHAPTER 1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Page

!lii
!;ti

Section

1. 100

1.101

L. LOz

1. 103

1.200

1 . 201.

L.202

INTRODUCTION

GENERALLY

ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING

PLANNING COMMISSION

DEFINITIONS ' '

GENERALLY . '

SPECIFICALLY

DISTRICTS

a

a

1

1

3

4

7

7

7

I

L

i-i

,i
ii
\..J

l

iilU

ChaPterl-Tab1eo f Contents
Page L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 381



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 382



CHAPTER 1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. 100

1. 101

1.101 .01

INTRODUCTION

GENERALLY

Title

TitleordinanceshallbeknownastheCityofSherwood,oregon
zoning uriJ- iro**uniry p..r"ropment a;d;.- Pttt 3. of the city
Compreh";;:;-i;ii,,, i'.;;i;;i[.' rerEiea to as the ''Code''.

1.101.02 PurPose

This Code is enacted to:

A, Encourage the moP!-?ppropriate use of land'
B. conserve and "t.niriZ; 

tne value of property'
C. Preserve natural resources'
D. r."iiitttt fire ana pori::^p::ttction'
E. provide adequate-optit space for light and air'
F. rqitti*i"- corigestio-n on streets '
G. ptoilolt-oio"iry qrowth of the citv'
H; Prevent undue ""i"""iiations 

of population'
r. r,acilirare adequ;;;'-;;vision ot-cbmmunity. facilities'
J. Promote in oth;;- iavg tltg public neattn' saf etv'

"o""Iii"tt""' 
and generar welfare'

K. Enabre imptemen."lii=" ?r ";;;-shtrwood comprehensive

PIan in complfanc" titn St"te Land Use Goals'

t. 101. 03 Conformance Required

The use of all land' ds ' well as the -construction'
reconstruction, "rrf 

.t!"i6rrt, 
-"t-tucturai alteration' movement'

use' or occupatio". o?--"nv s-t1Yc't;;;;iini" the citv sharl

conform to the require-m""li or tni"-i"o", t*"99t as allowed by

secrion 2.206. Age, g;;i;r oi pny".i"ii Ji"abilitv shalI not be

an adverse consider:1;i;; i" tirittg a land use decision as

aef ineO in oRS I97 '015( 10)'

1.101. 04 Violations

Uponfailuretocomplywithormaintainanyprov.isionofthis
code , ot wirh any i!"Iti"tions--li 

- dofroitions imposed

hereunder, the city ..v-*-itnnolq_o1 withdraw any city land use

approvars, perrnits,. licenses, or ";iiltt.:::li:"" 
untir the

appropri]i"-.o'reciioii;'-i;'ry99:tlotwithstandinganysuch
action taken by the clty , ^ny 

person, firm or corporation who

CHAPTER 1
1

ii
tlii
t-J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 383



violates, _dJ.sobeys, omits, negrects, or refuses to compry withany of the provlsions of thls coder or who reststi theenforcement of such provisions, shall be subject to civilpenalties of no more than five-hundred dollars ($soo.00)-f;;
each offense. Each day that a violation ls permitted to 6xistshall constitute a separate offense.

1. 10l. 05 fnterpretation
The provlsions of thls Code shall be lnterpreted as mlnimumrequirements. When this Code imposes a greater restrictionthan is required_by other provilions or- raw, or by otherregulationsr resolutions, easements, covenants or agreements
between parties, the provisions of this Code shall 6ontrol.

l. fO1.06 Savings Clause

shourd any sectLon, crause or provision of thls code bedeclared i-nv_a_Iid by a court of competent JurisdictLon, thedecision shall not affect the validily of tlie Code as a wholeor of the_rernaining sections. gach section, clause, andphrase is declared severable.

1.101.07 Conflicting Ordinances

All zoni!9r subdivision, and other land development ordinancespreviously enacted by the City are superseded and replaced bythis Code.

1.101.08 Regional, State and Federal Regulations
AII development within the City shall adhere to all applicablereglonal, state and Federal ati quarlty, water quarlir, noise,odor, building, wetrands, solid waste, naturar resource, andother regulations and statutes.

1. 10f .09 Community Development plan

This Code shall be administered in conjunction with, and in amanner that is consistent with, the pblicies and strategies
adopted in the ,city of sherwood, oregon, community DeveropfrentPlan, Part 2 of the city comprehenslve pran. rh6 city zbningMap, the Transportation PIan Map, the Natural Resources andRecreation_ plan Map, the l{ater service pran Map, the stormDrainage _PLan Map, and the Sanitary Sewer Service-plan Map areextracted from the Community Development Plan, and attach-ed tothis Code as appendices. References to these maps shall bedeemed to incrude arl applicabte policies, standards andstrategies contained in chapters 4, s, 6; and 7 of the
Community Development plan.

CHAPTER 1
2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 384



!

!,

'iit

t.Loz

1 . 102 .01

ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

Districts
ForthepurposesofthisCode,theCityisherebydividedinto
Ln" follbwlng zoning districts:

Very Low DensitY Residential
Low DensitY Residential
Medium OeniitY Res j-dential-Low
r't.Ji"* Density Residential-High
Hiqh DensitY Residential
Nei ghborhood Commercial
Office Commercial
Retail Commercial
General Commercial
Light Industrial
General Industrial
Flood Plaln OverlaY
Institutional/Public
OId Town OverlaY

VLDR
LDR

MDRL
MDRH

HDR
NC
oc
RC
GC
LI
GI
FP
IP
OT

L.LOz.O2 Offlcial MaP

ZonLngdistrictboundariesareshownontheofficialPlanand
ZoningMapofthecity'-rni"Mapi-gmadepartofthisCodeby
reference, and sharr 'u"-r."pt ;; file in tne city Recorder.'s
of f ice. Any furure "nu"gl_6 

tg thg zoning -of land within the

clry shall be appropri;;a]y depicted on the Plan and zoning

Map and certifi6O as to th; da{e of amendment. The Official
PlanandZoningMapsnarrbethefirstandfinalreference
pointforverifyingotherlandusemappingandindetermining
actual zoning aistrici boundaries. e aa1ea reproduction of
the Official PIan ""a Z"ni"g l'1"p is attached as Appendix A'

1.102.03 Zoning District Boundaries

lrheCommissionshallresolveanydispute.oYertheexact
location of a zoning district boundat"t. Itt- ill"rpreting the
location of such Uoonaarils on the Ofticiat PIan and Zoning

M"p, tn. co**ission snirf rely on the following guidelines:

A.unressotherwiseindicatedrzoning_districtboundaries
arethecenterlinesofstreet's,roads,highways,alleys,
or such lines extended'

B.Whereaboundarylinefollowsornearlycoincideswitha
section,Iotorproperty-ownershipl.i.ne,theboundary
shallbeconstrueia-sfollowingsuchline.

CHAPTER I.

3

,l;lt./

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 385



In the event that a dedlcated street, road, highway, or
alley is vacated by ordinance, the zoning regulations
applicable to abutting property shall apPly up to the
centerline of such rights-of-way.

If a right-of-way is vacated in total to one (1)
property, the zoning of that property shall apply to the
total vacated right-of-way.

1.102.04 Urban Growth Area

The zoning districts shown on the Official Plan and Zoning
Map, for land outside of the incorporated area of the City but
within the Urban Growth Boundary, shall serve as a guide to
development ln these areas. Actual land use regulation and
development shall be controlled under the t,erms of the Urban
Planning Area Agreement between the City and Washington
County. This Agreement is made part of this Code by reference
and is attached as Appendix H. An area incorporated into the
City shall, upon annexation, be given an interim zoning
consistent with the Official Plan and Zoning Map. The City
shall provide notice of this interim zoning as per Section
3,202.03. No hearing shall be required and the interim zoning
shall be considered final thirty (30) days after mailing of
said notice.

c

D

l. 103

1.103.01

A.

B.

PI.ANNING COMMISSION

Appointment and Membership

The City Planning Cornmission shall consist of seven (7)
members to be appointed by the Council for terms of four
(4) years. Two (2) members may be non-residents of the
City, provided they reside within the Sherwood portion of
the Urban Growth Boundary. Commission members shall
receive no compensation for their services, but shall be
reimbursed for duly authorized expenses.

A Commission member may be removed by a majority vote of
the Council for misconduct or non-performance of duty, as
determined by the Council. Any vacancy shall be filled
by the Council for the unexplred term of the predecessor
in office.

No more than two (2) Commission members shall be engaged
prlnclpally in the buylng, seIIhg, or developlng of real
estate for profit as individuals, or be members of any
partnership, or officers or employees of any corporation
that is engaged principally in the buying, selling, or
developlng of real estate for proflt. No more than two
(2) members shall be engaged in the same kind of

CHAPTER I.
4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 386



1. 103 .02

A

B

c.

1.103 . O3

A

B.

business, trade or Professlon'

Officers, Minutes, and Voting

The Commission shall' 3t its first meeting in each

odd-numbered year, elec-t t."tiuit and vice-chaii who shall

be voring *"rl?* -i"a 
- 
rtt"'-"[.ii hold of f ice at the

il"u"ui" -"r the commission'

Bef ore any meeting of -the Commj-ssion' public notice shall

be given as it"{iiif"a-Pv^ s;;i; statute and this code'

Accurate ,".oiJJ-oi all -commission proc,eedings shall be

kept by the Ctty, and *"i"fJintO "" file in the City

Relorder's office'

AmajorityofmembersoftheCommissionshallconstitute
a quorum. A ;;i;;ify vote ot those members' not less

than a quorum, p-resent 
- -at an open meeting of the

Commission "n"if 
-U" 

"tt""""ty 
t-o legally act on any

matter uerore Ttt co'n*i""i"": The cotnmis;ion may make

and alter rules of proceourl--consistent with the laws of

rhe state of oregon, t'; 
-tity charrer, and city

ordinances.

Conflicts of Interest

Commission members shall not particioate in any

Commission proceeding ot -tttlo" i; which- they hold a

direct or ",roJti"ii"i 
financiar interest' or when such

interestis-_heldby....,n..-'u.'-'"immediatefamily.
Additionally, 

'.--il.^u6r straii not participate when an

action involve; ;t- urr"i"J"" i; tfric_n they have been

employed within the pttttio"" two (2) years ' or any

business *itn'-*ni"n tnb' have a prospecti-ve partnership

or emPloYment'

Any actual or pote-ntiat irtterest by a Commission member

in a land use -action as pl-t--S-."ti.j" 1' L03 ' 03A shall be

disclosed by inii-'n"'nner aJ tG meeting of t'he Commission

where the ""ii""--i" 
neini-Iixt"'- -:T*t"sion 

members

sharr also discrose .rry pr6-hearing or ex parte contacts

with apptrcai;;;- of f i-cers-, agentl,- employees ' or 
. 
any

other parties'T6 an ippricati5n before the commissron'

Ex-parre .oiuct" 
-in.f i rJ ftt.tulidate, a f inal decision

or action or--in. io**i""i.nl'-piot'ia"o that the member

receiving the .lr"d"i- inoicii."' th. substance of the ex-

parte "o*,.nit;;;;;-and 
or-fn"-tignt-of parties to rebut

said conrenr ii- tn" firsr ;;;ri;i wnere' action will be

considered or taken'

CHAPTER 1

5

I\. i

i. "l

r!
,i
ll
L-t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 387



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 388



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 389



1.103.04 Powers and Duties

Except as otherwise provided by raw, the commission sharr bevested with alr powers and duties, and sharl conduct arl
business, as set forth in the laws of the st,ate of oreqon, theCtty Charter, and City ordinances.

CHAPTER I.
6

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 390



/"--\\

1.200

L.201

r.202

DEFINITIONS

GENERALLY

All!,'ordsusedinthisCode,exceptwherespecifically
defined herein, shall ""tty 

their custornary meanings ' words

used in the prl'"""ii.rr"" rirciuoe the future tense; words used

in the ruture- Gnse include the present tense; the prural
includes the singutar, and in..u"criline includes the feminine
and neuter -Th" word "uuitOing" includes the word
,,structure',i tfre woiO "shalI" is manditory; the..word.."wlIl" or
,,may,, 

"t" 
p"t*i""i*r"; the wJras-"occuPiedi and "uses" shall be

considered as though rorrowea by €ne words "or intended'
arranged, "r oesig"6a t" be used or occupied"'

Where terms are not defined' they "hll+ 
have their ordinary

accepted meanings withil tne'contdxt with which they are used'

Webster,s Third New rnternition.r pi"tionary of the English
Lanouage, Unabridged, topytight l'986' shall be considered as

;;;;i;iisrliat"aritv accepted meaninss'

SPECIFICALLY

Thefollowingtermsshallhavespecificmeaningwhenusedin
this Code:

t.202.OL Abut:Contiquoustooradjoiningwithacommonproperty
Iine or right-of-waY'

Access: The btay or means
vehicles enter and leave Pr

.02 by which Pedestrians and
operty.

.03

.04

.05

AccessoryBuilding/Use:.Asubordinatebuildingoruse
whlch rs cusro-ilriiv r"crdenial ro that of the prlncipal

""E-", burldinf roclted on the same property.

Alteration:Anychangeinconstructionorachangeof
occupancy. wh6re tne terrn "alteration" is in reference
ro construcii;;-, It applies to a change, addition or
modification in constr"iiion' Vfhen the term is used in
connecLior, ,iiii " 

.[""g" of occupancy, ir is intended t'o
appty to cnanges of oCcupancy f-rom one trade or use to
another.

Apartment:Eachdweltingunitcontainedinamulti-family
dwelllngoradweltingunitthatissecondarytothe
primary .r"" oi a non-residential building'

Automobile Sales Area: An open area' other than a

street, used ttt in" displayl sale' or. rental of new

used automorites, and uinerl no repair work is do

CHAPTER 1
7

or
rl€ r

I

ii
i1
LI

.06

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 391



.47

.08

.09

.10

.11

except minor incidental repair of automobiles to be
displayed, sold r ot rented on the premises.

Basement: Any floor level below the flrst story ln a
buildlng, except as otherwise defined in the Uniform
Building Code and this Code.

Boarding or Roomlng House: Any building, or portion
thereof containing not more than five (5) guest rooms
where rent is paid in money, goods, Iabor or otherwise.

Building: Any structure used, intended for, supporting or
sheltering any use or occupancy. Each portion of a
structure separated by a division wall without any
openings, shall be deemed a separate building.
Buildlng Area: That portlon of a property that can be
occupied by the principal use, thus excluding the front,
side and rear yards

Building, Existl.ng: Any building erected prior to the
adoption of this Code or one for which a legal building
permit has been issued.

B.

.L2 Building Height: The vertical distance above a reference
datum measured to the highest point of the coping of a
flat roof or to the deck line of a mansard roof or to the
average height of the highest gable of a pitched or
hipped roof. The height of a stepped or terraced
building is the maximum height of any segment of the
building. The reference datum shall be selected by the
following criteria, whichever yields the greater height:

A The elevation of the highest adjoining sj.dewalk or
ground surface within a five (5) foot horizontal
distance of the exterior wall of the building, when
such sidewalk or ground surface is not more than
ten (10) feet above lowest grade.

An elevation ten (10) feet higher than the lowest
grade, when the sidewalk or ground surface
described in Section L.202.12.A is more than ten
(10) feet above lowest grade.

.13 Building Official: The City employee or agent charged
with the administration and enforcement of the Uniform
Bullding Code and other applicable regulations.

.L4 Buildtng Permit: A permit issued under the terms of the
Unlform BulLdlng Code.

CHAPTER 1

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 392



.15

.15

.L7

.18

.19

.20

.2L

.22

.23

Buffer:Alandscapedarearwallrbermorotherstructure
oruseestablishedtoseparateandprotectlanduses.
Change i.n Use: A change.to a parcel of .land' a premise or
a building wh1ch cr6ates t change in vehicular trip
generation aciiviti"", which changes the minimum parking
requirements-"t_this.Code,ox'which.changestheuse
classification 1s defined bV this Code or the Uniform
Building Code.

Church: Any bona-fide place of worship' including Sunday

School buildings, parsonages, church halls' and other
bulldings customarily acceisory to places of worship'

City: The City -of She-rwood' Oregon and its duly
authori zea otiidi.t", employees, consurtants and agents.

Code: The City of Sherwood, oregon Zoning and Community
Development d"J., PatE i of the citt of Sherwood

ComPrehensive Plan.

Commercial Trade School: Any private school or
institutfon oJeiatea for profit that is not lncluded in
the deftnitions of an educational institution or school'

Commission:TheCityofSherwoodPlanningCommission.

Conrmon-9lal.}Dwelling:Dwellingunits.withsharedwalls
"""n "" 

two-famlly, and multi-family dwelllnqs '

CommunitY DeveloPment PIan:
Sherwood ComPrehensi-ve Plan'

Part 2 of the CitY of

.24 Compatible: Any structures or uses capable.of existing
togetherinaharmoniousrorderly'effici'ent'and
integrated mannerr - considering building orientation'
privacy, 

-iot sizen buffering, Jccess and circulation.

.25 Comprehensive Plan: The City of Sherwood Comprehensive
Plan.

.26 Conditional Use: A use permit^ted subject to special
conditio""lt requirements 

-as def ined in any given zoning
district and Seclion 4'300 of this Code'

.27 Condominium: An indlvidually-owned dwelling unit in a

nulti-famii' housing developient with common areas and

facilities.

.28 Council: The City of Sherwood City Council'

CHAPTER I.

9

lr

I

I
J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 393



.29 Day-Care Facility: Any facility that provides day care to
slx (6) or more chlldren, including a child day care
center or group day care home, including those known
under a descriptive name, such as nursery school,
preschool, kindergarten, child playschool, child
development, center, except for those facilities excluded
by law, and family day care providers as defined by this
Code. This term applles to the total day care operation
and it includes the physical setting, equipment, staff,
provider, program, and care of children.

.30 Deed Restriction: A covenant or contract constituting a
burden on the use of private property for the benefit of
property owners in the same subdivisiqn, adjacent
property owners, the publlc or the Ctty of Sherwood, and
designed to mitigate or protect against adverse impacts
of a development or use to ensure complLance with a
Comprehensive PIan.

.31 Demolish: To raze, destroy, dismantle, deface or in any
other manner cause partial or total ruin of a structure
or resource.

.32

.33

.34

Density: The int,ensity of residential land uses per acre,
stated as the number of dwelling unlts per gross acre.
Development: Any man-made change to improved or
unimproved real property or structures, including but not
linited to construction, installationr or alteration of
a building or other structurei change in use of a
butlding or structure; Land divislon; establishment or
termination of rights of access; storage on the land;
tree cutting; drilling; and any site alteration such as
land surface mlning, dredglng, gradLng, constructlon of
earthen berms, paving, parking improvements, excavation
or clearing.
Developnent Plan: Any plan adopted by the City for the
guidance of growth and improvement in the City.

.35 Drive-In Restaurant: Any establishment dispensing food
and/or drink, that caters primarily to customers who
remainr of, leave and return, to their automobile for
consumption of the food and/or drink, including any
establishment designed for serving customers at a
drive-up window or in automobiles.

.35 lXrelling Unit: Any room, suite of rooms, enclosure,
building or structure deslgned or used as a residence for
one (1) family as defined by this Code, and containing
sleeplng, kitchen and bathroom faclllt.Les.

CHAPTER I.
10

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 394



.37 DweIIing, SingJ.e-FanilY:
dwelling unlt.

A structure containing one (1)

.38

.39

.40

.4L

.42

.43

.44

.45

Dwelling, Single-FamiJ.y- Attached: A single st-ructurg on

two (2') rotsl- tontarning -!wo !?) individual dwelllng
units, but with a common walr and'a common property rine.
Oln"tti"" identical to a two-family dwelling'

Dwelling, Two-Family, -.A.slng-Ie- st:u.cture on one (1) Iot
containing rwo ti-J-inAividual dwellinq units, sharing a

common wall, but with separate entrances' Also referred
to as a duPlex.

DwelIingrMulti-Family:Asinglestructurecontaining
tht". (5i or more dwelling units'

Easement: The grant of the legal right to use of land
for specified PurPoses.

Educational Institution: Any bona-fide plabe of
education or instructJ_on, including customary access-ory
buildings, """", ."d activities, that is administered by

a legallv-org"n tzia school district; church or religj-ous

"rg^ii"ationj 
the state of oregoni or any agency,

college, and university oferated- as -an educational
institution under charter 6r license from the state of
oregon. An "arrcitionar 

institution is not a commercial
ii"d" school "" a"fitted by Section L'202'L9'

Evergreen: A plant which maintains year-round foliage'

Ex-parte Contact: Contact or information -pa-ss-e{ 
between

"--pliiv- 
wlrh an inreresr ln a quSpr-Judicial land use

decision and "-tn"*U"t 
of the Couilcil oi Commission, when

suchinformationisnotgenerallyavailabletoother
members of the council or c5mmission, or other interested
;;;;;;;. rne memuer sharr dLsclose anv-pre-hearing,or
ex-parte contacts with applicants' -officers' agents'
employees, or-oin"r partiei to an application before the
Council or Commissioln. Ex-paltg_ contacts with a member

of the comrnissio" oi Council-shalI not invalidate a final
decision or rciion of the Commission or Council, provided
thatthememberreceivingthecontactindicatesthe
substance of the cont,ent 6t the ex-parte communication
and of the rig-hf "i-farties 

to rebutgaid content at the
first hearing"ft.t"-action will be considered or taken'

ExtraCapacitylnprovements:Improvementsthatare
defined as "#."".iv 

in the interest of pub_lig.hearth,
safety ano wsifuiJ-fiv Ch-apter 5, 6, and I of this Code'
and the c"r*"nilv 6evet6pment Plan, to increase the

CHAPTER 1
1l'

..i

i

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 395



capacities of collector or arterial
sewer, storm dralnage or other utilityparks and open space.

streetsl water,
facilities; and

which
in the

.46

.47

.48

.49

.50

.51

.52

.53

.54

.55

Family: one (1) person riving alone or two (2) or morepersons related by blood, marriage, or adoption; or agroup not exceeding. flve (5) persons living together as

boardinghouse, fraternity, hotelr of, similar use.
Family P"y Care provider: A day care provtder
accommodates fewer than thirteen (13; crrildrenprovlder's home.

Fence: Any open or closed structure used to enclose anyrot or parcer of ground, and usually constructed of wire,wood, brick, cement block r ot stone.
Fire District: Tualatin varrey Fire and Rescue.

r13g Lot: A bullding lot which Ls provided access to apublic street by meahs of a narrow strip of land withminimal frontage.

Flood Plain: The frood-hazard, area adJoining a rlver,stream or other water course, that is irrni"ci toinundatlon by a base flood. The itooa prain includes thefroodway and ftoodway fringe, and the city greenwdy, asdefined by this Code.

Floodway: The channer of a river, stream or otherwatercourse, and the adjoining areas of the flood prain,required to discharge ttre base flood without cumuraLivelyincreasing the water surface erevation of saidwatercourse by more than one (l) foot.
F1"99 FTlnge: The area of rhe flood prain lying outsideof the floodway.

Base Flood: The ftood having a one percent (lt) chanceof_being equalred or exceed5d in any given'yedr. A1"oreferred to as the "100-year flood" -or" 
"100-!ear floodplain",

Footcandle: A unit of illumination. one footcandlethe __intensity of ilrumination when a source of onecandlepower ilrurninates a screen one (1) foot ar,ray.

.56 Frontage: That side of a parcel abutting on a street orright-of-way ordinarily iegarded as the front of theparcel' except that the shortest side of a corner rot
CHAPTER 1

t2

is
(1)

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 396



.57

.s8

.59

.50

.61

.62

.53

.64

.65

facingastreet,shallnotbedeemedthelotfrontage.
Garage: A building or a portlon thereof which is
designed to house, stbre, t"piir or keep motor vehicles'

Government Structure: Any structure used by a federal'
state, local q"""in*"ttt' or special district agency'

GroundFloorArea:Thetotalareaofabuildingmeasured
by taking th; largest- orrt"iA" dinensions of the

building, "*1I""i""" 
of open -porches' breezeways,.

terraces, g";;;;;; 
- 
Lxt&ror- stairwavs ' and secondarv

stairuraYs.

Hard Surface: Any man-made surface that prevents or
retards the satuiiiro" of water into land, or that causes

water to run-off in gt."l.i tuantittes or increased
rates, than "*-i"t.a 

un-der 
-r,it,ti.f condit'ions prior to

development. 
-'E;r*;" hard "nif"."" 

include but are not

limited to: roofs, street-' driveways' sidewalks and

walkways, p"tio" r-'parkf ng 
-inO 

loading areas ' and other
graveled, oii-ear' macaaam' or concrete surf aces ' Also

ieferred to as impermeable surface'

Hazardous Waste: Has the meaning given that term in ORS

466.005.

Hogged FueI: FueI generated from wood or other waste

that has been tla-iniough a machine that reduces it to a

practically ,rrrifot* si{e of chips' shreds ' ox pellets'

Home occuPatLon: An occupat'lon . qr a profession
customarily ".rii"a 

on in a-iEsioential dwelling unit by

a member ot -rnl*Utt" of tne family residing in the

dwelling unir ;;;;G"rfV incidental ind secondary to the

use of tne aweifing unii for residential purposes'

Hotel: A building or buildings in which there are more

than five tbl--"i.eping rooms occupied as temporary
dwelling placl's, whfch ro"*" ""stomaiily 

do not contain
full kitchen'iiiirrties, but may include kitchenettes'

Homeowners Association: A formally o-rganized 9t?1p of
homeowners within a single nousing development having

shared r."poi"iUifit' fdr-portioni.of the development

such as build;;;;-i;;iscapinq'- or parkino maintenance' or
other activities provideJ -fot bV coienant or legal
agreement.

Household: AII persons occupying- a -g-totp of- rooms or a

single room tni"n constitut6J a dwetling unit'

CHAPTER I.
13

i

t";

i

-l

.65

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 397



.67

.68

.69

.70

.7L

.72

.73

.74

.75

rnert Material: sottd waste materiar that remainsmaterially _unchanged by variations in chemicar,environmental, s-torager_ and use conditions reasonablyanticipated at the facility.
Junk: Materials stored or deposited in yards and openareas for extended periods, incruding inoperable orabandoned motor vehicles, inoperabre or abandonedmachinery, motor vehicre and machinery parts, broken ordiscarded furnlture and household egui-pment, yard debris
and househord waste, scrap metal, uJed-rurnb6rl and othersimilar materials.

Junk-Yard: Any lot or site exceeding two hundred (200)square feet ln area used for the storage, keepi.ng, orabandonment of junk as defined by thls cbOe

Kennel: Any lot or premlse on which four (4) or more dogsor cats more than four (4, months of age are kept.
Laboratory, Medicar or Dental: A raboratory whichprovides bacteriological, biorogical, medical, x-ray,pathorogical and simirar anaryticar or diagnosticservices to doctors or dentists, and where no fabrlcationis conducted on the premises except the customfabricatlon of dentures.

Landmarks Board: The city of sherwood Landmarks AdvisoryBoard.

Leachate: Liquid that has come into direct contact withsolid waste and contains dissorved and/or suspendedcontaminants as a result of such contact.
Level of service (Los): A measure of the overarl comfortafforded to motorists as they pass through a roadwaysegment or intersection, based on such things asimpediments caused by other vehicles, number and duiationof stops, traver time, and the reserve capacity of a roador an intersection (i.e., that portion of thd avairabretime that is not used) . Los gen-erprly is refemed to bythe letters 'rArr though "F", -with 'tOS rErr or ,rF'r bein|generarly unacceptabre. Los generarly is calculatedusing the methodotogy in the Hlghway iapacity Manuar,qpggl3r Report. 2og, ny tne Transp6rta€,ion Research Board
( 1e8s) .

Loading or unloading gpacer An off-street space or berthfoT t!: temporary_parking of vehicres whir-e roaarng-orunloading merchandise or haterlals.

CHAPTER 1
L4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 398



.76

.77

.78

.79

.80

.8L

.82

.83

.84

B.

Lower Explosive Limit: Tle minimum concentration of gas

or vaPor in .it tiiut wil,I ptop"gttg. " flame at' twenty-
five degrees (25"C) Cefsfus ' i-n the presence of an

lgnltion source'

Lot:Aparceloflandofatleastsufficientsizetomeet
the minimum zoning ttg"it";t"i" "f this Code' and with
frontage on a pubfc "tt".ir-oi-"u""ment 

approved by the

CitY. A lot maY be:

A. A single lot -of record i ot combination of
complete lots of recorl-'';L complete lots of record
and Porti;;;-oi other rots of record'

A parcel of
orovided that
barcel shall
Code.

Iand described bY metes ?ttd bounds;-;;; a subdivisi6n or Partition' the
U-e apprbvea in -accordince with this

LotArea:Thetotalhorizontalareawithinthelotlines
of a lot, "*"i*ft'" 

of streets and access easements to
other ProPerty.

Lo:-rCorner:Alotsituatedattheintersectionoftwo
(21 or more "it"tt", 

other than an alley'

Lot Coverages The proport'lonal amount of land on a lot
covered bY buildings'

totDepth:Theaveragehorizontaldistancebetweenthe
front and reai lot lines *""-""1"o in the direction of the

side lot lines.

tot Frontage: The distance par:a.Ilel lo the f ront lot
Iine, measur"i U"iro..n side 16t llnes at the street line'

Loi-, Interior: A lot other than a corner lot'

Lot of Record: Any unit of land created as follows:

A. A parcel in an existlng' duly recorded subdivision
or Partit'ion '

B. An existing parcel for which a survey has been duly
filedwhichconformea-toarrapplicab}eregulations
at the time of filing'

C. A parcel created by -deed description or metes and

bounds 
'p-tl"lala, ' notlver' contiguous ' 

p3rcels
created il- 

-d.;d 'description or metes and bounds

under the same o*""t"ni6 ina not conformlng to the

CHAPTER 1

15

I

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 399



minimum requirements of this Code shal1 be
considered one (1) lot of record.

.85 Lot, Through: A ]ot having frontage on two (2) parallel
or approximately parallel streets.

.86

.87

.94

.88

.89 Lot Line, Side: Any lot line not a front or rear lot
line.

.90 Lot Wldth: The horizontal dlstance between the side lot
lines, ordinarily measured parallel to the front lot
line, dt the center of the lot, orr in the case of a
corner lot, the horizontal distance between the front Iot
Ilne and a slde lot line.

.91 Manufactured Home: A structure transportable in one or
more sections, intended for permanent occupancy as a
dwelling. AII manufactured homes locat,ed in the Clty
after the effective date of this Code shall meet or
exceed the standards of the U,S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, and shall have been constructed
after June 15, L976.

.92 Manufactured Home Park: A lot, tract r ot parcel with
four (4) or more spaces within five-hundred (500) feet of
one another available for rent or lease for the siting of
manufactured homes.

Lot Lines: The property lines bounding a lot.
Lot Line, Front: The line separating a lot from any
street, provided that for corner lots, there shall be as
many front llnes as there are street frontages.
Lot Line, Rear: A lot line which is opposite and most
distant from the front lot line, provided that for
irregular and triangular lots, the rear lot line shalI be
deemed a llne ten (10) feet tn length wlthin the lot,
parallel to and at a maximum distance from the front lot
line. On a corner lot, the shortest lot line abutting
adJacent property that is not a street shall be
consLdered a rear lot llne.

a
(1)

Mixed solld lfaste: solid waste that contains recoverabreor recyclable materials, and materials that are not
capable of belng recycled or recovered for future use.

CHAPqI'ER 1
15

.93 Manufactured Horne Space: A plot of land within
manufactured home park designed to accommodate one
nanufactured homer oD a rental or lease basis.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 400



ti

!

li

.95

.96

.97

Motel: See Hotel.

Municipal Soltd gfaste: Solid waste primarily from
i""ia"irtial, business, and institutional uses'

NetBuildableAcre:Thedevelopableareaofasiteis
calculatedforthepurposesoftnisCodebysubtracting
ih; following from Lhe-total area of a slte:

A. Twenty-five percent- (25*) o-f the total site acreage
as an allowance for lind devoted to community
faciliti;; "iffitv services' streets' and other
similar uses.

B. Acreage within the base flood' excepting -acreage
approveo loi density transfers' which shall be

added uacr to trr" nuriber of net buildable acres.

Non-Attainment Area: A geograPhi-cal .area of the State
which exceeds any state o' ttaeraf primary-or secondary
amblent arr quiiity "t.r,dard 

as deslgnated by the_ore_gon

Environ*"rrr.id"iiitv commission and approved by the u.s.
Environmental Protection Agency'

Non-Conforming Structure or Use: A lawful structure or
use, exLsting'u" "i in. effective date of thls Code, ot
anlr aPplicable amendments' which does not conform to the
minimum reguiiem;nts of tile zoning district in which it
is located.

NursingHome:Ani.nstitutionforthecareofchildrenor
the aged or infirm, or a place -of - rest for those
suf fering boaiit-aisoraels; bu-. not including facilit'ies
f or surgicar - c'nrJ, ol _ 

institutions f or the care and

treatment of tn.nudf illness, alcoholism' or narcotics
addiction.

Occupancy Permit: The permit provided in the Uniform
Building Coae wnlch must be issued prior to occupying a

buildingorstructureorportion-thereof.Forthe
purposes of tnis Code, "occupancy permit" includes the
finat inspection approval for those buildings or
structu'"" ,,ot requirea to obtain an occupancy permit by
the Uniform Building Code

Occupy: To take or enter upon possession of'

Of f,ice : A room or building 
- 
f or !h.t transaction of

business, a profession or sifritar activities, including
but not rimrGo to administration, bookkeeping, record
f""pi"g, business meetings, and correspondence' Products

CHAPTER 1
L7

.98

.99

. 100

. L0L

.102

. 103

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 401



may not be stored or manufactured in an office, except to
accolnmodate incidental sales, display and demonstration.

.104 Off-Street Parking: Parking spaces provided for motor
vehicles on individual lots and not located on public
street riEht-of-vray.

. 105

. 106

. LO7

Open Space: Open ground area which is not obstructed from
the ground surface to the sky by any structure, except
those associated with landscapi.g, or recreational
facillties. Parking lots and storage areas for vehicles
and materials shall not be considered open space.

Parks Board: The City of Sherwood Parks Advisory Board.

Partition: The dividing of an area or tract of land into
two (2) or three (3) parcels within a calendar year when
such area exists as a unit or contiguous units of land
under single ownership at the beginning of each year.
Partitions do not include: dlvisions of land resulting
from lien foreclosures; divisions of land resulting from
the creation of cemetery lots; divisions of land made
pursuant to a court order, Iot line adjustments where an
additl-onal parcel is not created and where the existing
parcels are not reduced below the minimum requlrements of
this Code.

,108 Partition Land: A sale or grant by a person to a public
agency or publlc body for state hlghway, county road,
city street or other right of way purposes provided that
such road or right of way complies with the Cornprehensive
PIan and oRS 2L5.2L3 (2) (e) to (s) and 215.283 (2) (p) to(r).

.109 Partition PIat: Partition plat includes a final map and
other writing containing aII the descriptions, locations,
speclficatlons, provisions and l-nformation concerning a
Iand partition.

.110 Pedestrian tfay: A right-of-way for pedestrian traffic.

.111- Person: A natural person, firm, partnership, association,
soci-al or fraternal organization, corporation, trust,
estate, receiver, syndicate, branch of government, or any
group or combinatlon acting as a unl_t,.

.LL2 Plat: The final ftdp, diagram, drawing, replat r ot other
writing containing all the descriptions, IocatLons,
specifications, dedications, provisions and information
concerning a strbdivision or partition.

CIIAPTER 1
L8

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 402



.113

. 114

. 115

. 116

. LL1

. 118

. 119

. L20

. L2L

. L22

. L23

. L24

Plat, Preliminary: A TaP alg ql1tt of a proposed
subdivisionr ds slecified by this Code'

Principal BuiJ.ding llIse-z The main or primary purpose- for
which a struciurer- Iand, or use is designed, arranged ' ot
intended, ", loi which the building or use may lawfully
be occupied "i-n1uintained 

under the terms of this Code'

professional Engineer. A professional engineer-currently
Iicensed ro piiEii". in ttie stare of oregon. - The lyne or

;;;i;;;iottuf Zngi"""r mav be speclf ied in the ordj-nance

?;:;:,-.i*'rr, 
-siiucturall acoustic' traffic' etc ' ) '

professions: Members of professions, such as doctors'
dentists, accountants, architects, artists' attorneys'
authors, "ttji;;;;";- 

and others who are generallv
i"."g"ri"o p-roressronals by vlrtue of experlence or
education.

PublicHearing:HearingsheldbytheCornmissionorthe
Council for wffich a foim of prescribed publj'c notlce is
given.
public Park: A park, playground, swimming pool'
reservoir, athl.ii"'fi.td, 6r o-ther recreational facility
which is unOeiLtre control, operation or management of
the City or other government agency'

Public Place: Any premise whether, privately or publicly

"wneArwhichUV'pnysical-nature,function'custom'orusage, is op"r, to"tfie punlic at times without permission
n"ifig'required t'o enter or remain'

PublicUseBuilding:Anybuilding.ors.tructureownedand
operated by " g."tintgl! agency -for the convenience and

u-se of the general Public '

public utility Facilities: structures or uses necessary
i"-pi""ia" tnt -puUfic.with !'tater, sewer, 9ds' telephone
or other similar services'

Recycled Materials: solid waste that is transformed into
newproductsinsuchamannerthattheoriginalproducts
may lose their ldentitY'

Recycling:Theuseofsecondarymaterialsinthe
production of new items' As uied here' recycling
includes materials reuse'

Residential care Facility : A facility licensed by or
under the authority of thb Department of Human Resources

CHAPTER 1.

19

I

l

.J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 403



under ORS 443.400 to 443.460 which provides residential
care alone or in conJunctLon with treatnent or trainJ-ng
or a combination thereof for six (5) to fifteen (15)
individuals who need not be related. Staff persons
required to meet Department of Human Resources licensing
requlrements shall not be counted in the number of
facllity residents, and need not be related to each other
or to any resident of the residential facility.

.L25 Residential Care Home: A residence for five (5) or fewer
unrelated physically or mentally handlcapped persons and
for the staff persons who need not be related to each
other or any other home resident.

.L26 Residential Structure: Any building or part of a
building, used or constructed as a sleeping or other
housekeeping accommodation, for a person or group of
persons.

.L27 Restrictive Covenant: A legally binding limitation on
the manner in which a tract of land or lot can be used,
usually a condition placed on the deed.

.L28 Retail Trade: The sale of goods and products
consumer generally for dlrect consumption and
resale.

to the
not for

. L29 Retaining tfall : A struct,ure constructed of stone,
concrete, steel or other material designed to retain or
restrain earth or rock

.130 Right-of-tfay: The area between boundary Iines of a street
or other easement.

.131 Road: The portion or portions of street rights-of-way
developed for vehicular traffic.

.L32 Rural Zone: A land use zone adopted by a unit of local
government that applies to land outside a regional urban
growt.h boundary.

.133 School: See Educational Institution

.134 Sealed Container: A receptacle appropriate for
preventing release of lts contents, protecting its
contents from the entry of water and vectors, and that
wiIl prevent the release of noxious odors if the contents
are capable of emlttlng such odors.

.135 Setback: The minimum horizontal distanee between a public
street right-of-way Iinee or side and rear property

CHAPTER 1
2A

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 404



t:

Iines,tothefront,sideandrearlinesofabuildingor
structure located on a lot''

.136 Sidewalk: A pedestrian walkway with hard surfacing'

.L3TSightDistance:Thedistancealongwhlchapersoncansee
approachingobjects,suchashutomobilesorpedestrians,
fromastreetintersectionoradrivewayalongastreet.

.138

.139

.140

Sign:Anidentificationrdescription'illustration'ot
device whlch i" .ffixed to r ot Lepresented directly or
indirectly "po" a building, struclure' or land' which
directs attention to a product, place' activity' person'
institution, ot business'

Skirting: A covering that totally obscures -the
undercarriage of a manufictured home, and extending from
tii"-t"p "r [he undercarriage to the ground'

SotlAmendment:Amaterlal,suchasyardwastecompost,
addedtothesoiltoimprovesoilchemistryorstructure.

Has the meaning given that term in ORS
. L4L Solid Tfaste:

495 ,005.

.L42 SoIid Waste FacilitY:

A.ConditionallyExempt-Smal.I.QuantityCoIlection
racility: - A raiirrty t-hat receives, sorts,
t.*p-t.iiry stores, cotitrols ' and proces-ses f or
safS-liinsfort hazardous waste from conditionally
exemptgenlrators,asthattermisdefinedinoRs
465.003.

B.pemolitionLandfill:Alanddlspos-al-sitefor
t"""i"ing, sortin! ana disposing onl{.Iand clearing
aeUifs, -incfudin{ vegetafion lnd dirt, building
construction "td' deilrolition debris and inert
materials, and similar substances'

C. Household Hazardous gfaste Depot: A facility f9t
t"""i"i"g, sorting' processing and - temporarily

"toii"!-E6,r".norcl 
fazaidous wasCe and for preparing

thatwasteforsafetransport.tofacilities
authorized to receive, procesJ' or dispose of such
materials pursuant to federal or state law'

D.LimitedPurposeLandfill:Alanddisposal.sitefor
tne-ieceiviirg, sorting and disposing.of solid waste
rnateiiif , inttuding bur not limited to asbestos '
tr"ui.a-p.trot.um, lontaminated soiI, construction,

CHAPTER 1
2L

i

.l

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 405



E

F

Iand clearing and demolitlon debris, wood, treated
sludge from industrial processes, or other special
waste material other than unseparated municipal
solid waste.

Resource Recovery Facility: A facility for
recelvlng, temporarily storing and processing solid
waste to obtain useful material or energy.

Mixed Construction and Demolition Debris Recycling
Factltty: A facllity that receives, temporarily
stores, processes, and recovers recyclable material
from mixed construction and demolitlon debris for
reuse, saler or further processing.

Soltd Yfaste Composting Facility: A facility that
receives, temporarlly stores and processes solld
waste by decomposing the organic portions of the
waste by biological means to produce useful
products, including, but not linited to, compost,
mulch and soll amendments.

Monofill: A land disposal site for receiving,
sorting and disposing only one type of solid waste
material or class of solid !.raste materials f or
burlal, such as a faclllty which accepts only
asbestos.

llunlcipal Soltd Waste Depot: A facility where
sealed containers are received, stored up to
seventy two (72) hours, staged, and/or transferred
from one mode of transportation to another.

Snall Scale Specialized fncinerator: A facility
that receives, processes, temporarily stores, and
burns a solid waste product as an accessory use to
a permitted use, including incinerators for
disposal of infections wastes as part of a medical
facillty, but not including mass burn solid waste
incinerators, refuse-deri.ved fuel technologies,
human or animal remal.ns crematorium, or any energy
recovery process that burns unseparaLed municipal
solid waste.

G

H

I

J

K

L.

Solid lilaste Facilities: Any facility or
defined in Section L.202.L44 of this Code.

use

Solid lfaste Transfer Statlon: A faclllty that
receives, processed, temporarily stores and
prepares solld graste for transport to a finaL
disposal site, with or without materia] recovery

CHAPTER I"

22

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 406



t.

Prior to transfer'

M.TreatmentandStorageFacility:Afacilitysubject
toregulatlonunder-theResourceConservationand
n"."JJrv-e.t . 42 

-USC 
SS 6901-5987, for receiving'

"o'iiiii 
--ii."ti"i, - jiat9l--..*po'arily storing

hazardous waste' ina for processihg st''cl waste for
safetransporttofacilitfesauthorizedtoreceive,
treatrorAisposeiisuchmaterialspursuantto
federal or stat; law. Treatment and storage
facllit,ies do ,,oi i.ncruoe facilities fot on-site
disPosal of hazardous waste'

N. Wood lfaste Recycling - Facil.ity: A f-acility that
receives, t'emporarifv stores and processes
untreatedwood,'ni.n.doesnotcontainpressure
treated or wood pi"*t"atfvg treated wood' io the
form of scrap llmbe;' timbers ' ox natural wood

debris, including-iogs' fimU"' and tree trunks ' for
t"n"ll'f;;i;-iuti peitets ' ot fireplace logs'

o.YardDebrisDepot:Afacilitythatreceivesyard
debrisfortemporarystorage,awaitingtransportto
a Processing facilitY'

P. Yard Debris Processing Facitity: fa-c-ilitY t'hat
receives, temporarity- stores ind proce-sses yard
debris into a soll am6ndment, mulch or other useful
proii"t----intough -giinding and/or controlled
Liotogical decomPosition'

.l-43 Solid Waste Processing,: - An actlvity or technology
intended to change the ihysical form or chemical content
of solid waste or r""vErira material including, but not
Iimitedto,sorting,baling,composti'g,c}assifying,
lvai"p"rp-irig, incin-erating or shredding'

.L44 Story: That portion o.f a bullding included between the
upper t,rtii.5 -or 

""y ir""t 
and th-e upper surf ace of the

floor next above, .*."Jt that the tofmost story.shall be

that porli"" "f'. 
uuftaing included between the upper

gurface of the topmoJ-iido, and the cetrrng or roof
above. I f the rinrshld f loor level directly above a

usabre or unused under-froor space is more than six (6)

feet above grade ror more than iirty percent.(591) of the
total p"rrr-"t.i or ls- more than twelve (L2) feet above

grade "Ji"v= 
polnt, .",'"n usable or unused under-floor

;;;;" shall be considered as a story'

.145 Story, Flrst: The lowest story ln a bulldlng, provided
such floor level is rof rore than four (4) feet below

CHAPTER I.
23

ij

1

l

I

I

IJ

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 407



. L46

. L47

grade, for more than 50 percent (50t) of the totalperimeter, or not more than eight (8) feet below grade,
at any point.

Story, Half: A story under a gable, hip r ot gambrel
roof , the wall plates of which, on at least two (2,)exterior walls, are not more than three (3) feet abovethe floor of such story.
Street: A public or private road, easement or
right-of-way that is created to provlde access to one or
more lots, parcels, areas or tracts of land. Categoriesof streets includos

B

Alley: A street between sixteen (16) feet and ten
(10) feet in width, typically to the rear lots.
Arterial: A street which is primarily used or
planned for through and high volume traffic.
Bikepath: A street up to eight (8) feet ln width
for the exclusive use of bicycles, which may be
incorporated into r or separate from, a vehicular
roadway.

c.

D Collector: A street primarily used or planned to
move traffic between the local street system, and
onto major streets, but that may accommodate some
through traffic.

A

E Local Street: A street which is primarily used or
planned for direct access to abutt,ing properties.
Cul-de-Sac; A short street that terminates in a
vehlcular turnaround.

F

G. Half Street: A portion of the width of a street,
usually along the edge of a subdivision, where the
remaining portion of the street has been or could
be provided by another subdivision.

H. Marginal Access Street (frontage road): A minorstreet parallel and adjacent to a maJor arterial
street providing access to abutting properties, but
protected from through traffic.

.148 street Line: A dividing line between a lot and a street
right-of-way.

.L49 street Plug: A narrow strrp of Land located between asubdivision and other propetty, that is conveyed to the
CHAPTER 1

24

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 408



!1

.150

. 151

. L52

. 153

. 154

. 155

.155

City for the purpose. of^-giving !l'" City control over

a""irr"pment on- th-e adjacent property'

Structure: That whlch ls built or constructed' an

edifice or building or any kind ' ox any piece of work

artificially buitt up "i 
-composea oi parts joined

together in some manner'

Structural Alterations: Any change.-in the supporting
members of a building, "rr"h-'"" 

uea-ring waIls, columns,

beams, ot girders'

Subdlvision:Thedivisionofanareaort'ractofland
into four (4)-; *or" Iots ritni" a calendar year, when

such area o, tr;.i'of rano exists as a unit or contiguous

units of r.r,J-,rna"r a singi"-irn"rship at the beginning

of such Year.

Subdivisionlmprovements:Constructionoffacilities
such as streetsi $rater, -""r"r, gds and telephone lines;

"i"itn 
drainagei and landscaping'

Temporary Use: A use of land' buiL-dinos or structures
not, intenoei'to eiceea 

-ftti"" (L2l- months' unless

otherwise Permitted bY this Code'

Unifled Sewerage Agency: An agency of. tilashington County

provlding for ?ani:t,ary ""*.t-Lorrlction 
and treatment'

'ana f or ltorm water management '

UrbanGrowthBoundary:TheMetropolitanPortlandUrban
Growth Boundary (UGB)-as "Im"ti"hg"9 

by the State Land

Conservation 
-ii,a' 

oevelopment Commission'

.L57 Urban Zone: A land-use
government that aPPlles
growth boundarY'

ne adoPted bY a unit
land lnslde a region

.158Use:Anypurposef'orwhichabuildinqorotherstructure
or a tracl of land tuV'-UL" a""ig""d, -arranged' intended'
maintained, or occupied' or any activity' oc-cupation'

business , ox operatioi- carried on ' ot fntended to be

carried b"r-in-a Ouiiaing or other structure or on a

tract of land'

.l5gUsebyRiqht:Ausewhichisa''usgpermittedoutright''
in any si?:;' ";r;; d;;;i; esrablished by this code.

.160 Warehouse: A structure or part of a structure used for
storing ina securing goods' wares or merchandise'

zo
to

of
aI

locaI
urban

CHAPTER ]'
25

!..

:i
ii
1.1

:iri
L]

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 409



. 161 vfetlands: Those rand areas that are inundated orsaturated by surface or ground water at a frequency andduration sufficient to support, and that und-er n6rmarcircumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetationtypically adapted for life in saturated soil coniitions.
Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs andsimilar areas. lfetlands are geneialry identified'in tnecity's L992 Local wetland inventory, or in the absence ofsuch ldentlfication, are based on the rederal Manual forrdentifying and Derineating Jurisdictionar wetlands
( 1e8e) .

'L62 l{holesale Trade: The sale of goods and products to anintermediatory generally for relale.
.163 Yard: The existing or required space on a parcel whichsharl remaln open, unoccupled, and unobstructed from theground surface to the sky, except as otherwise provided

by this Code. Categories of yaias include:
A. Front Yard: A yard extending across the furt widthof the lot between the front lot line and the

nearest line or point of the bullding.
B. Rear Yard: A yard, unoccupied except by a building

or structure of an accessory type as provlded bythis Code, extending the full width of the 1ot
between the rear rot line and the extreme rear lineot a building.

c. of a lot
the rear

Side Yard: The yard along the side line
and extending from the setback line to
yard.

.L64 zero-Lot-Line: Attached or detached dwerling unitswhich are constructed with onry one side yard or no rearyard setbacks.

CHAPTER 1
26

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 410



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 411



_l

I

I

I

I
I

i

I

I

I

I

i
I
I

I

i
!

!
i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 412



CHAPTER 2

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT

P

Section

2.100

2.LOL

2. L02

2. L03

2.L04

2, ]-o5

2.L06

2, L07

2, 108

2. L09

2.110

2.TLL

2.LLz

2. LL3

2.200

2.201-

2.202

2.203

2.204

2.205

2.206

2.207

2.208

ZONING DISTRICTS ' '

VERY LOW DENSTTY RESTDENTTAL (VLDR)

LOW DENSTTY RESTDENTTAL (LDR)

MEDITJM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL LOW

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL HIGH

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTTAL (HDR)

oFFrcE COMMERCTAL (oc)

NETGHBORHOOD CoMMERCTAL (NC)

RETATL COMMERCTAL (RC)

GENERAL COMMERCTAL (GC)

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI)

GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (GI)

RESERVED

INSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC (IP)

SPECIAL USES

GENERAL PROVISIONS

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)

HOME OCCUPATIONS

RESERVED ' '

MANUFACTURED HOMES ' '

NON-CONFORMING USES

ACCESSORY USES

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

( MDRL )

(MDRH)

I
I
5

9

L3

18

22

25

30

35

40

45

50

50

53

53

53

61

63

64

70

75

76

ChaPter 2 TabIe of Contents
Page 1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 413



2.209

2.300

2.301

2.302

2.303

2.304

2.305

2.306

2 .307

OTHER LAND USE ACTIONS

SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS

CLEAR VISION AREAS

ADDTTIONAL SETBACKS

FENCES, WALLS AND HEDGES

LOT SIZES AND DIMENSIONS

YARD REQUIREMENTS

CHIMNEYS, SPTRES, ANTENNAS
STRUCTURES

DUAL USE OF REQUIRED SPACE

77

78

78

79

79

79

80

AND SIMILAR
8t

82

Chapter 2 - Table of Contents Page 2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 414



TheVLDRzoningdistrictprovi.desforlowdensity,Iargerlot
single-family 

-hous.ing-Hd- other tlrttta uses in natural

resource and environmentarry , sensi.tive areas warranting

preservatrlnl byt od;-;i". - d."*JJ- suitable for limited

developnent,withadensitygenerallynottoexceedone(1)
dwelling unit pe! 1c_le .---ii te-vero-ped lhrough the PUD process '
as per s;;l;;-i.zoz,' .r,J ir arf irooopriin' wetlands' and

other natural resource .rlit-"te dedicated or remain in common

openspace,a-d-ensitvnJ[toeiceeoiwo(2)dwelll.ngunitsper
acre maY be allowed'

2.LOL.O2 Permitted Uses

Thefollowingusesandtheiraccessoryusesarepermitted
outright:
A.Single-farnilydetachedorattacheddwellings.

Manuf act'ured homes
2.205.0L

on individual lots as Per Section

2. r00

2.loL
2.1o1 .01

F

\r.

CHAPTER 2

, LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT

ZONING DISTRICTS

VERY LOW DENSTTY RESTDENTTAL (VLDR)

PurPose

CHAPTER 2
I

Agricultural uses such as -truck farming and horticulture'
but excluding'."**"r"rar uuiriitf" ot-structures' or the

raising or aniir;"- "tn"r than household pets.

Home occupati-ons, subject to Section 2'203'

Group homes not exceeding five (Sl unrelated persons in

residence, family day ca-re p*ytg."fs' government assisted

housing, pro.riOlJ-'sn"n iacilities are substantially
identical, ir,'in" Ciiy,s Oeieimination,_ ir physical form

to other typ""-oi nott?ing allowed ln the VLDR zone'

Publicrecreationalfacilities,includingbutnotlimited
to parks, playfields' "poits'and 

racquet courts' but

e x c I ud i n g go r F 
t"i-,r?*"?"' 

*h i;h . r. 
- 

f 
" 
t* i t t e d c o nd i t i ona I I y'

PUDs, subject to Sections 2'202 and 2'101'07'

B

c

D

E

t-

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 415



H. Temporary uses, lncluding but not limited t,o portable
constructlon and real estate sales offj.ces, subject to
Section 4.500.

I. Residential care facility.
2. 101.03 Conditional Uses

The following uses and their accessory uses are permitted as
condltlonal uses when approved ln accordance wlth Section
4.300.

A. Churches and parsonages

B. Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums.

C. Public and privat,e schools providing education at the
preschool level or hJ-gher, but excluding cornmercial trade
schools which are prohibtted

D. Day care facilities other than family day care providers,
which are permitted outright.

E. Government offices, including but not limited to postal
stations, administrative offices, police and fire
stations.

F. Public use buildings, lncluding but not limited to
li.brarles, museums, conmunity centers, and senior
centers.

G. Plant nurseries and other agricultural uses, including
commercial buildings and structures.

H. Special care facilities, including but not limited to
hospitals, sanitariums, and convalescent homes.

I. Private lodges, fraternal organizations, country clubs,
golf courses, and other similar clubs.

J. Public and private utiLities, including but not limited
to telephone exchanges, electric sub-stationsr gcrs
regulator stations, sewage treatment plants, water wells,
and public works yards.

K. Any business, service, processing, storage r ot display
not conducted entirely within an enclosed building whlch
Ls essential- or incidental to any permitted or
conditional use, as determined by the Commission.

CHAPTER 2
2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 416



L

M

Radio, television, a-nd similar communications s

on lots with a minimum tiain and dept'h equal

height of ."y-tonitt'"-i"a 
-in conformance with

2.306.

Raising of animals other than household pets'

tations,
to the
Section

N. Public golf courses'

2.LOI..04 Dimensional Standards

Nolotarearsetback'{?rd'latt-dscapedareatopenspace'off-
street parking or.loahing area, o,I-otn.' site dimension or

requirement, e-xistir,g'Jrr;'or aft'er, 
-the -;ffective date of this

Code snait be reduc"A n"iot1n" mini;; ieeuireA bv this Code'

Nor sharl the "o"""yt""t 
of-any--p*iio" 6r a lot' for other

than a publlc use or 'iqnt-of-way, 
reave a lot' or structure on

the remainder of "j'j'"r;i 
"titn--i""" than minimum code

dimensions, area, ""tir.rs- 
or other requirements' except as

Permittea 6V Section 4'400'

A. Lot Size

ExcePt as otherwise Provided'
dime-nsions shall be:

1 . Lot area ( conventi-onal ) :

Lot area (under PUD):

2. Lot width at front ProPerty
Iine:

required mini-mum lot

40,000 sq.
10,000 sq.

fr.fr.

B.

3. Lot width at building line:

4. Lot dePth:

Setbacks

ExcePt as otherwise Provided' required minimum setbacks

shall be:

1. Front Yard:

2. Side Yard:

a. SingIe-FamiIY Det'ached:
b. coti"i Lots (street Side):
c. Sintfe-ramilY Attached

(one side) :

3. Rear Yard:
CHAPTER 2

3

25 feet

No mi-nimum

No minimum

20 feet

5 feet
20 feet

20 feet

20 feet

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 417



4

5

Accessory buildings nay be constructed in the rearyard setback up to five (5) feet from the rearproperty line.
A minimum distance of ten (10)
nalntalned between a dwelling
building on the same lot.

feet shall be
and any other

C. Height

Except a6 otherwise provide, the maximum height ofstructures shatt be two (zl stories or thirty (30[ feet,whichever is l.ess_. chimneys, sorar and wiho 'energy
devices, radlo and Tv aerials, and similar structuresattached to residentiar dwelrings or to accessorybuildings, nay exceed this height limltation by ;t i;twenty (20) feet.

2. 101.05 Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading,energy conservation, hist,oric resources, environmentil
resources, landscapirg, access and egress, signs, parks and
open space, on-site storage, and site design, see chapters s,8 and 9.

2.101.06 Flood plain

Except as otherwise provided, Section 9.202 shall app1y.

2.lOL.O7 Special Density Allowances

Housing densities up to two (21 units to the acre, and lotsizes down to 10,000 square feet, mdy be arrowed in the yLDR
zone when:

The housing development is
Section 2.202; and

approved as a PUD, as per

The following areas are dedicated to the pubtic orpreserved as conmon open space: floodplainJ, as persection 8.202; naturar resources areas, -p"r the Natuiar
Resources and Recreation pran Map, attached as Appendixc' or as specified in chapter 5 of the community
Development Pran; and wetrands defined and regulated asper cuffent Federal regulations and chapter g of this
Code; and

c. The commission determines that the higher density
deveropment would better preserve naturar -resources 

as
compared to a one (l) unit to the acre design.

A

B

CHAPTER 2
4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 418



2.LO2 LOW DENSTTY RESTDENTTAL (tDR)

2.LO2.0L PurPose

dwelling units Per acre'

2.LO2.O2 Permitted Uses

TheLDRzoningdistrictprovidesforsingle-famityhousingand
other related ;-"." witi a-Jensity noi to exceed five (5)

li
!

i The following uses and
outright:

their accessory uses are permitted

A

B

c

Single-family detached or attached dwellings'

Manufactured homes
2.205.0L '

on individual lots as Per Section

D

Agricultural uses such as truck farming and horticulture'
but excludlng'."**"i.iar nuiiaitg" ot-structures, or the

raising of aniinaf"--"tn"r than household pets '

Home occupations' subject to Section 2'2O3'

Grouphomesnotexceedingfive(slunrelatedpersonsin
residence, family day care p*y-i9.":s' ggvernment assisted
housi.ng, pto"ia"'J- luctr ficilities are substantially
idenricat ,"'iiliJi"ll--i"p lo other types of housing

"f 
f "t"O 

in thd z-oning distrlct '

Publicrecreationalfacilities,includingbutnot.ljmited
to parks, privrields, Spoits and racquet courts' but

J *" r-oa i'd g 
" 

r i f'J;r'"?"' r;ilh u r. p. r* i t t e d c o nd i t i o na I I v'

PUDs, subject' t'o Sections 2'202 and 2'101'O7 '

Temporaryuses,includingbutnotlimitedtoportable
construction ina real estaie sales offices, subject to
Section 4.500.

Residential care facilitY'

Conditional Uses

i

t

E

r.

G

H

I

2.LO2.03

4 .300:

A.

Thefollowingusesandtheiraccessoryusesarepermittedas
conditionaluseswhenapprovedinaccordancewithSection

Churches and Parsonages'

Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums'

CHAPTER 2
5

j

it
iliI
L.l

B.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 419



C. Public and privat,e schools providing education at the
preschool level or hlgher, but excludlng commerclal trade
schools which are prohibited.

D. Day-care facilities other than family day care providers,
which are permitted outright.

E, Government offices, including but not limited to postal
stations, administrative offices, police and fire
stations.

F. Pub1ic use buildings, including but not limited to
libraries, muaeums, corununity conters, and senior
centers.

G. Plant nurseries and other agricultural uses including
commercial buildings and structures.

H. Special care facilities, including but not limited to
hospitals, sanitariums, and convalescent homes.

I. Private lodges, fraternal organizatj.ons, country c1ubs,
golf courses, and other similar clubs.

J. Public and private utilities, including but not limited
to telephone exchanges, electric sub-stations, 96s
regulator stations, sevrage treatment plants, water wells,
and public works yards.

K. Any business, service, processing, storage t ot display
not conducted entirely within an enclosed building which
is essentj.al or incidental to any permitted or
conditional use, as determined by the Commission.

L. Radio, television, and slmilar communications stations,
on lots with a minimum width and depth equal to the
hetght of any to$rer, and in conformance with Section
2.306.

M. Raising of animals other than household pets.

N. Public golf courses.

2.L02 .04 Dimensional Standards

No lot area, setback, yard, Iandscaped area, open space, off-
street parking or loading arear or other site dimension or
requir:ement, existing on, or after, the effectlve date of this
Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this Code.
Nor shall the conveyance of any portLon of a lot, for other
than a public use or right-of-way, Ieave a lot or structure or

CHAPTER 2
6

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 420



theremainderofsaid-IotwithlessthanminimumCode
dimensions' "ttJ, 

seiua"*s or other requirements' except as

;;;ilt;"a i,v section 4'4oo'

A. tot Size

ExcePt as otherwise Provided'
dime-nsions shall be:

required minimum lot

B.

c

1. Lot area:

2, Lot wldth at front ProPertY line:

3. Lot width at building line:

4, Lot dePth:

Setbacks

Except as otherwise Provided' required minimum setbacks

shall be:

1. Front Yard:

2. Side Yard:
feet
feet
feet

20 feet

7r000 sq. feet

25 feet

60 feet

80 feet

20 feet

5
20
20

3

4

a. SingIe-FamiIY Detached:
;: coti.t Lots lstreet. side):
c. Single-F"^ify Attached (one side):

Rear Yard:

Accessory buildings may be constructed in the rear
yard setback 

-;; -i" 
f ive (5 ) feet f rom the rear

proPertY Iine'

5 A minimum distance of len (10)
r.i"lii"La between a dwerling-U"ifAi"g on the same lot'

Height

Except as ot'herwise provided the maximum height of

srructures sh;rTu" trd (2i;l;ries or thirtv (30) feet'
whichever i" 

-i"""-' chi*tt"y" ' solar .:ttd wind energy

devices, radlo and Tv uttiii"' qnd similar structures
attached to ;;id""tial dwellings and accessory

buildings, may exceed this neight limitation by up to

twentY (20) feet'

feet shall be
and any other

CHAPTER 2
7

:!

l

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 421



2.lO2.OS Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading,
energy conservation, historic resources, envlronmental
resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and
open space, on-site storage, and site design, see Chapters S,
8 and 9.

2.1O2.06 Flood Ptaln

Except as otherwise provided, Section 8.202 shall appty.

CHAPTER 2
8

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 422



i
i

I

i

[. .r

I

L-

2.103.01 PurPose

The MDRL zoning district provid.es for singre-family and

two-family housi.g, *"-n-"iu"t1ired housing on fndividual lots
and in naiufactured h;il pa_rksl^?tt; otn.-t related uses' with

a densiry not "o 
.*."!d-"ignt ial dwellinq units per acre'

2.L03 MEDTIM DENSTTY RESTDENTTAL LOW (UDRL)

2.L03.02 Permitted Uses

The following uses and
outright:
A.

B.

c.

D

E.

F.

G.

H.

I

J

K.

their accessory uses are permitted

Single-family detached or attached dwellings'

Two-familY dwellings '

Manufactured homes on
2.205.0L.

individual lots as Per Section

Manufactured home parks' subJect to Section 2'2O5'02'

Agriculturalusessuchastruckfarrningandhort'iculture,
but excruding'"o*"r.iar uuiriin!" ot-structures' or the

raising of aniinif"- otn"t than household pets'

Home occupations' subject to Section 2'2O3'

Grouphomesnotexceedlngfive(5)unrelatedpersonsin
residence, family day care providers' government assisted
housing, pto.'-iaLa 'sucn iacilities are substantially
identical in physicaf torm-io other types of housing

uii"t"a in the zbning district'

Publicrecreatj.onalfacilities,includingbutnotlimited
to parks, playf ields, ."P9tts and racqrlet courts ' but

excluding goI f'"-orrr""s wtricn "t" 
p.t*itted conditionally'

PUDs, subject to Sections 2'202 and 2'10L'07'

Temporary uses, including but not limited
construction i"a real estate sales offices'
Sectlon 4.500.

Residential care facility'

to portable
subject to

CHAPTER 2
9

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 423



2. 103.03 Conditional Uses

The followlng uses and their accessory uses are permitted as
conditional uses when approved in accordance with Section
4.300:

A. Churches and parsonages

B. Public and private schools providing education at the
preschool level or higher, but excludlng commercial trade
schools which are prohibited.

C. Day care facilities other than family day care providers,
whlch are permltted outright.

D. Government offices, including but not limited to postal
stations, administrative offices, police and fire
stations.

E. Public use buildings, including but not limited to
Iibraries, museums, community centers, and senior
centers.

F. Plant nurseries and other agricultural uses including
commercial buildings and structures.

G. Special care facilities, including but not limited to
hospitals, sanitariums, and convalescent homes.

H. Private lodges, fraternal organizations, country clubs,
golf courses, and other similar clubs.

I. Publlc and prlvate utllities, including but not limited
to telephone exchanges, electric sub-stations, 9as
regulator stations, ser^rage treatment plants, water wells,
and public works yards.

J. Any business, servlce, processlng, storager or display
not conducted entirely within an enclosed building which
is essential or incidental to any permitted or
condit,ional use, as determined by the Commission.

K. Raising of animals other than household pets.

L. Public aolf courses.

CHAPTER 2
10

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 424



2. 103.04 Dimensional Standards

Nolotarearsetback'Y?rd'Iandscapedarea''o-p^enspace'off-
st,reetparkingorloa.dlngarea,oiothersitedimenslonor
requirement, existi"g."n;,or aftb5,. tn. ef fective date of this
code shall be reduc.a i.i"r1;; miriimum required by this code'

Nor shart the to"t'"y"ic-e ot-utl--p"iiio" 6r a rot' for other

thanapublicuseorright-of-w€lY,leavealotorstructureor
the remainder of "J',j'"1;; 

";iin--iess than minimum code

dimensions, area, ""tif"fs-Lr 
other requirements' except as

Permitted UY Section 4'400'

A. Lot Size

ExcePt as otherwise Provlded'
dimensions shall be:

1. Lot areas:

Single-familY Detached or
Attached:

Two-FamilY:

Manufactured Homes:

width at front ProPertY line:

width at building line:

SingIe-famiIY:

Two-FamiIY:

Manufactured Homes:

depth:

required minimum lot

5,000 sq. ft.

10,000 sq. ft'

5'000 sq. ft'

25 feet

50 feet

60 feet

50 feet

80 feet

20 feet

5 feet
t 5 feet
1.5 feet

B

€l.

b.

c.

2. Lot

3. Lot

a.

b.

c.

4. Lot

Setbacks

ExcePt as otherwise Provided' required minimum setbacks

shall be:

1. Front Yard:

2. Side Yards:

a. Single-FamilY Detached
Corier t'ot (itreet side)

b. si"gl"-Fu*iiy Attached (one side)

CHAPTER 2
11

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 425



c

d.

Two-Family
Corner Lot (street side)
Manufactured Home
Corner Lot (street side)

eet
eet,
eet
eet

f
f
f
f

5
15

5
t_5

3. Rear yardz 20 feet

4. Accessory buildings may be constructed in the rear
yard setback up to five (5) feet from the rear
property line.

5 A minimum distance of ten (10)
maintained between a dwelllng
building on the same lot.

feet shall be
and any other

C. Height

Except as otherwise provided, the maximum height of
structures shall be two (21 stories or thirty (30) feet'
whichever is less. Chimneys, solar and wind energy
devices, radio and TV aerials, and similar structures
attached to residential dwellings or to accessory
buildings, may exceed the height limitation by up to
twenty (20) feet.

2. 103.05 Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parklng and loading,
energy conservation, historic resources, environmental
resources, Iandscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and
open space, on-site storage, and site design, see Chapters 5,
8 and 9.

2.103.06 Flood Plain

Except as otherwise provided, Section 8.2O2 shall apply.

CHAPTER 2
L2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 426



2.L04 MEDIT'I'I DENSITY RESTDENTIAL HTGH (MDRH)

2.104.01 PurPose

TheMDRHzoningdistrictprovidesforavarietyofmedj.um
density housing, incrt'Jin! -"i-fgle-famiry' two-familv housing'

manufactured housing' or,-'inaiiiauai r6ds, and multi-famiry
housing,-;d oin.r r6fui"A ttJ"", wiin I aenstty not to exceed

efe.ten-(f f 1 dwelling units per acre'

2.L04.O2 Permitted Uses

Thefollowlngusesandtheiraccessoryusesarepermitted
outright:
A.Single-familydetachedorattacheddwellings.
B. Two-familY dwellings'

c.ManufacturedhomesonindividuallotsasperSection
2.205.0L -

D. Mu1ti-familY dwellings'

E.Agriculturalusessuchastru'ckfarmingandhorticulture,
butexcludlng.o',,I"i"i"ru,'irdingsqrigruc,tures,orthe
r.isi"g-"i "iim"Is 

other than household pets.

f. Home occupations' subject to Section 2'203'

G.Grouphomesnotexceedingfive(5)unrelatedpersonsin,."i5.iil"lii',iiry day care provid-ers' lJovernment assisted
housing, proviolJ'sucn iacilities are substantially
identical in pnisicai- form. to other types of housing

allowed in the zoning district'

H.Publicrecreationalfacilities,includingbutnotlimited
to parks, playfilia"' spolts and racquet courts' but
excluding golf co-u-ises which are permitted conditionally'

I. PUDs, subject to Sections 2'202 and 2'LO1'07'

limited to Portable
offices, subject toJ.

K

TemporarY uses, including but not

"ott-"tt""Liott 
and real estate sales

Section 4.500.

Residential care facilitY'

CHAPTER 2
13

il

rli1i-J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 427



2.104.03 Conditional Uses

A Churches and parsonages.

Public and private schools providing education at the
preschool level- or higher, but excluding commercial trade
schools which are prohibited.

Day care facil-ities other than family day care providers,
which are permitted outright.

Government offices, including but not limlted to postal
stations, administrative offices, polLce and fire
stations.

Public use buildings, including but not limited to
Iibraries, museums, community centers, and senior
centers.

Plant nurseries and other agricultural uses including
commercial buildings and structures.

Special care facilities, including but not limited to
hospitals, sanitariums, and convalescent homes.

Private lodges, fraternal organLzations, country clubs,
golf courses, and other similar clubs.

c

D.

E

Public and private utilities, including but not limited
to telephone exchanges, electric sub-stations, 9as
regulator stations, sewage treatment plants, water we1ls,
and public works yards.

Any business, service, processing, storager or display
not conducted entirely wlthin an enclosed building which
is essential or lncidental to any permitted or
conditional use, as determined by the Commission.

Raising of animals other than household pets.

Public aolf courses.

CHAPTER 2
L4

B

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 428



2.LO4 .O4 Dimensional Standards

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped-area'.open space' off-
street p"#i"g ot foiOing arearor other site dimension or
requirem"rrt, "-*i"ting on r'or after, the effective date of thls
code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this cofe'
Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other
than a public use or right-of-wdYr- leave a lot or structure on

the remalnder of ".r-a lot witn less than mininum code
dimensio"", utaa, setbacks or other reguirements, except as

permitted bY Section 4-400.

A. Lot Dlmensions

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum Iot
dimensions sha1l be:

1 Lot areas:

a. Single-FarnilY Detached:

b. Single-FamilY Attached:

c. Two-FamilY:

d. Manufactured Homes

e. Multi-FamilY:

5,000 sq. ft.
4,000 sq. ft.
8,000 sq. ft.

5,000 sq. ft.
8,000 sq. ft.

for the first two
(2) units & 3,200
sq. ft. for each
additional unit

2. Lot width at front ProPerty line:

3. Lot width at building line:

a. Single-FamilY:

b, Two-FamiIY and Multi-FamilY:

c. Manufactured Homes:

4. Lot dePth:

CHAPTER 2
L5

25 feet

50 feet

60 feet

50 feet

80 feet

t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 429



B Setbacks

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum setbacks
shall be:

L. Front Yard z 2O feet

2. Side yards:

a. Single-FamilY Detached 5 feet
Corier Lot (street side) 15 feet

b. SingIe-FamilY Attached
1on6 sidel 5 feet

c. Two-FamilY 5 feet
Corner LoL (street side) 15 feet

d. Manufactured Home 5 feet
Corner Lot (street side) 15 feet

e. MuItl-FamiIY
1 storY 5 feet
2 stories 7 feet
2 L/2 stories I feet
Corner Lots (street side) 20 feet

3. Rear yardz 2O feet

4. Accessory buildings may be constructed in the rear
yard set-back up to f ive ( 5 ) feet from the rear
property Iine.

5. Buildings which are grouped together in one project
.onone(1)tractof-landshaltbeseparated.bya

distance equal to the sum of the requj-red yards for
each building.

6.Aminimumdistanceoften(10)feetshallbe
maintained between a dwelling and any other
building on the same lot.

Height

Except as otherwise provided, the maximum height of
struitures shall be two and one-half (2 L/21 stories or
thirty five (35) feet, whichever is less. Chlmneys'
solar and wind ettergy devices, radio and TV aerials, and
similar structures ittached to residential dweltings and
i"""""ory buildingsr IIIsY exceed the helght IlntiLation by
up to twenty (20) feet.

CHAPTER 2
15

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 430



2. 104.05 CommunitY Design

Forstandardsrelatingt'9or{-streetparkingandloading,
energy aoa""r.ration, 

- hlstoric resources, environmental

resources, landscaping' ;;;;;;-;19-"gttss' signs' parks and

open space, on-sit" sforug"' and site-design' sbe Chapters 5'

I and 9.

!li1
Iti

2.L04.06 Flood Plain

Except as otherwise Provided' Section 8.202 shall aPPIY'

CHAPTER 2
L7

I
.-l

I

I

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 431



2.105 HrcH DENSTTY RESTDENTTAL (HDR)

2. l05.Of Purpose

The HDR -zoning district provides for higher densitymulti-family housing and other related uses, with a density
not to exceed sixteen (16) dwelling units per acre.

2.L05.02 Permitted Uses

The following uses
outright:

and their accessory uses are pernitted

A Single-famtly detached or attached dweltings.
Two-family dwellings.B

c. Manufactured homes on
2 .205.OL.

individual lots as per Section

D Multi-family dwellings,
houses.

including boarding and rooming

E. Agricultural uses such as truck farming and horticulture,
but excluding commercial buildings or structures, or the
raising of animals other than household pets.

F. Home occupations, subject to Section 2.203.
G. Group homes not exceeding five (5) unrerated persons in

residence, family day care providers, ltovernment assisted
housing, provided such facilities are substantiarry
identical in physlcal form to other types of housing
allowed in the zoning district.

H. Public recreationar facilities, including but not rimited
to parks, playfields, sports and racquet courts, but
excruding gorf courses which are permitted conditionalry.

I. PUDs, subject to Sections 2.202 and 2.1 01.07.

J. Tenporary uses, including but not limited to portable
construction and rear estate sales offices, subject to
Section 4.500.

K. Residential care facitity.

CHAPTER 2
18

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 432



-l

2. 105.03 Conditional Uses

Thefollowingusesandtheiraccessoryuse-sarepermittedas
condltional -uses wnei lppi"""a ln alcordance with sectlon
4 .300:

A. Churches and Parsonages'

B.Publicandprivateschoolsprovidingeducationatthep'""-nooi r"i,"r "i nign"rl.blt excludi-ng commercial trade
scnoofs which are Prohibited'

c.Daycarefacilitiesotherthanfamilydaycareproviders'
which are Permitted outright'

D.Governmentofflces,lncludingbutnotlimitedtopostal
srarions, aaminllttiii"" o?fices, police and fire
stations '

E. Public use buildings' including bt! not limited to
libraries, museums' community 

- centers, and senior
centers

F.Plantnurseriesandotheragriculturalusesincluding
"o**"t"ial 

buildings and structures'

G.Speciatcarefacilities,includingbut.notlimitedto
n""ii["rs, 

_sanit.'i.,'", 
and convalescent homes.

H.Privatelodges,fraternalorganizations'countryclubs'
golf courses, and other simllar clubs'

I.Publicandprivateuti}ities,includingbutnotlimited
to telephone "".ni"g"', . electric sub-stations, 9dS

,"grriiioi stationJ, "e-rage 
treatment plants, water wells'

and Public works Yards'

J. Any business, service' processingt -storage' or display
not conducted entirely wit,hin -an 6nctosed building which

is essential "t--iit"idental 
to any permitted or

conditional t'"", l" aetermined by the Commission'

K.Raisingofanimalsotherthanhouseholdpets.

L. Public golf courses'

2. 105.04 Dimensional Standards

Nolotarea,setback,yard,landscapedarea'.openspace,off-
street parking or loa-aing are_9, oi other site dimension or
requirement, existi"q on' -or after' the effective date of this

CHAPTER 2
19

!
I

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 433



Code shall be r€duced below the mlnimum requlred by this Code.
Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other
than a public use or right-of-wdy, leave a lot or structure on
the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code
dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as
permitted by Section 4.400.

A Lot Dimensions

Except as otherwise provided,
dimensions shall be:

required minimum lot

1. Lot areasl

Single-Family Detached 5r000 sg.

2

3.

B. Setbacks

Except as otherwise provided,
shall be:

Single-Family Attached

Two-FamiIy:

d. Multi-Family:

Lot width at front property line:
Lot width at bullding line:
a. Single-Family:

b. Two-Family and Multi-Family:
Lot depth:

8,000 sq. ft. for
the first two (21
units & 2,200 sq.
ft. for each
additional unLt

25 feet

50 feet

60 feet

80 feet

required minimum setbacks

a.

b. 4,000 sq.

8,000 sq.

ft.

fr.
fr.

4

1

2

Front yard:

Side yards:

Single-Family Detached :
Corner Lot (street side):
Single-F amily Attached
(one slde):

CHAPTER 2
20

20 feet

a

b

5
15

feet
feet

5 feet

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 434



Two-FamilY:
cottt"t r,ol (street side):

MuIti-FamilY
1 storY:
2 stories:
2 L/2 stories:
Corner Lots (street side):

Rear Yard:

5
15

feet
feet

feet
feet
feet
feet
feet

c

d

3

4

5
7
8

30
20

5

Accessory buildings may be constructed in the rear
yard setback 

-;; t" five (5) feet from the rear
proPertY line.

Buildings which are grouped togeth-e-r . in one ( 1)

project on o""-'ili +"tl ;i ianainarr be separated
by a oistanc! '.dl-ul- to t'h; sum of the required
yiras for each building'

A minimum distance of
maintained between a
building on the same lot'

ten ( 10) feet shall. . be
dwelling and any other

C. Height

Exceptasotherwiseprov-i.ded,themaxjnumheightof
".r,i!i,rr]" #ii'te iniee tll stories or rortv (40) feet'
whichever is fess' Chimneys' solar ' tlg wind energy

devices, radio JJ fV aeriais' and similar structures
attached to resiJ.ntiuf dwelling or acces.sory buildings
*.v-"*"E"o rhe n.ighr-rimitatiSn by up to twenty (20)

feet '
2. 105.05 CommunitY Design

Forstandardsrelatingtooff.-streetparkingandloading,
energy "orr""rrration, 

- historic resoulces, environmental
resources, landscaping, ;;;;;; ?ttd egless' signs' parks and

open spaces, on-sit. "i'orige, 
and sitidesign, see Chapters 5'

8 and 9.

6

2.105. 05 Flood Plain

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,sectionS.202shallapply.

CHAPTER 2
2L

I,t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 435



2.LO6 OFFTCE CO!,IMERCTAL (OC)

2.105.01 Purpose

The OC zoning district provides areas for business and
professional offices and related uses in locations where they
can be closely associated wlth residential areas and adequate
maJor streets.

2.LO6.O2 Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted outright, provided such uses
meet the applicable environmental performance standards
contained in Chapter 8:

A. Offices, studios or clinics of architects, artists,
attorneys, dentists, engineers, physicians t ot other
similar professional services' excepting veterinarians.

B Offices of educational, financial, governmental, non-
profit, real estate, research, or other similar service
organizations whose activities are such that few
visltors, other than employees, have reason to come to
the premises.

C. Restaurants, taverns and lounges.

D. Other similar office uee6, eubJect to Section 4.600.

PUDs, subject to Section 2.202.E

F

2. 105.03 Conditional Uses

The following uses are permitted as conditional uses, provided
such uses meet the applicable environmental performance
standards contained in Chapter 8, and are approved in
accordance with Section 4.300:

Hotels and motels.

Temporary uses, including but not
construction and real estate sales
Section 4.500.

Apartments when located on the upper floors,
of, or otherwise clearly secondary to a
building.

linited to portable
offices, subject to

in the rear
commercial

A

B

c Uses permitted outright in the RC zone, pursuant to
Section 2,LOB.

CHAPTER 2
22

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 436



ll

2.LO6.04 Prohibited Uses

The following uEeE are expressly prohibited:

Adutt Entertainment Businesses

Dimensional Standards

A.

2 . 105 .05

B

Nolotarearsetbackrl?rd'landscaped-areatopen-space'off-
street parking or loadi"g- u;u' oi -other site dimension or

requirement' e-xisting-on-r "t "iibt' 
the effective date of this

Code shall be 
-i"J"""O nefowlne mLnlmum requlred by this Code'

Nor shall the conveyan". oi'.ty- portion 6f a lot, for other

than a public ,r"" ot'rig]rt-or--;;yi tea*te a lot or structure on

rhe remaind";-;i-"ii-a r;i ritn less than minimum code

dlmenslons, area, setbacts or other requlrements' except as

;;;;iti.o 6v section 4'4oo'

A. Lot Dimensions

Exceptasotherwj.seprovided,requiredminimumlotareas
dimensions shall be:

1. Lot area:

2. Lot width at ProPertY line:

3. Lot width at building line:

Setbacks

C. Height

CHAPTER 2
23

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,requiredmininumsetbacks
shall be:

1. Front Yard, None'

2.Sideyards:Nonerexceptten.-(-10)f.eetwhen
abuttinf i r"sidential zon6 or public park'

3. Rear yard: None, except twenty (20) feet when

abutting;' tt"id"tttitt z-one or public park'

4.Existingresidentialusesshallmaintainminimum
setbacXJ "J""ifi"O 

in Section 2 ' 105 ' 04 '

1.0,000 sq. ft.
60 feet

60 feet

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,themaximumheightshallbe
fifty (50) i;;i, 6xcept tntt structures within one

hundred (100; feet of a iesidential zone shall be limited
I"--in" nbrgnt requirements of that zone'

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 437



2. f06.06 Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading,
energy conservation, historic resources, environmental
resources, landscaping, access and egress, signsr parks and
open space, on-site storage, and site design, see Chapters 5,
I and 9.

2.106.O7 Flood Plain

Except as otherwlse provlded, Sectlon 8.202 shall apply.

CHAPTER 2
24

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 438



2.L07 NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (NC)

2.L07.OL PurPose

TheNczoningdistrictprovides-forsmallscale,retailand
service uses, Iocated in or ,r..-t -i"Jia"tttial areas and

enhancing the resioentiai character of those neighborhoods'

2.L07 .02 Permitted Uses

Thefollowlngusesarepermtttedoutrightprovldedsuchuses
meet the applicable 

-environment;i -f,erf6rmance standards

conLained in ChaPter 8:

A.

c.

D.

2. 107.03

B.

c

B Generalretailtrade,includingbakerieswhereproduct
distribution i"-Ti*it.a to 

- retailing on the premises

only.

Personalandbusinessservices,includingdaycares'
piescnools, and kindergartens'

Postal substations when located entirely wlthin and

incidental to i use permitted outright'

Professlonal services,
iinancial, medical and
."t"t", legaI, artistic'

TemporarY uses, including
.""itt"ciion offices and
sunject to Section 4'500'

Conditional Uses

lncludtng but not limited
d;;tJ' s6cial services ' real
and similar uses'

but not limited to Portable
real estate sales offices'E

Thefollowingusesarepermittedasconditionaluses,provided
such uses ,n"ll--tG -appricaure environmentar performance

standards conlain"a iti- Cniptlt 8, and are approved in
;;;;;ailce with section 4 ' 3oo:

A. Pubtic and private s-chools providing education at the

erem"ntaii -""noor le;-J ot higherl " ?Yt ' excluding
commerciii tiade schoots which are prohibited'

...1

Automotive service stations'
Section 2.L07.04'E'

expect as excluded bY

Restaurants, taverns, and lounges' but excluding
establishments ritn Orive-in or talie-out services which

are prohibited.

CHAPTER 2
25

!

I

I

-j

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 439



D. Government offices, i.ncluding but not limited to
administrative offices, post offices, and polJ.ce and fire
stations.

E.

F Residential apartments when located on the upper floors,
in the rear of, or otherwise clearly secondary to
commercial buildings.

Any incidental business, servlce, processing, storage or
display, not otherwise permitted by Section 2.LO7 ' that
is essent,ial to and customarily associ.ated with uses
permltted outright.

2.L07 .O4 Prohibited Uses

The followlng uses are expressly prohlblted:

A. Adult entertainment businesses.

B. Veterinarian offices and animal hospitals.

c Restaurants, taverns, and lounges with drive-in or
take-out services.

D Wholesale trhde, warehousing, commercial storage, and
mlnl-warehousing.

E. AII automotive and equipment repai.r and service, unless
clearl.y incidental and secondary to and customarily
associated with a use permitted outright.
Commercial trade schools.

Farm and garden supply stores, plant nurseries, and other
agricultural uses, excluding florist shops which are
permitted outright.
Automobile, recreational vehicle, motorcycle,
manufactured home, boat, farm, and other large equipment
sales, parts sales, rental or service.

I Blueprinting, printing, publishing, or other reproduct,ion
services.

J. Motion picture and live theaters.

CHAPTER 2
26

PubIic use
libraries,
centers.

buildings, including but not
museums, communitY centers,

Iimited to
and senior

G

r
tJ

H

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 440



K.

M.

N.

o.

P.

o.

R.

S.

m
.l.e

U.

Special care facilities' including Ptt not limited to
hospitals, sanitariums, .otr.r"Gsceni hOmesr correctional
institutions' 

-;;t residentlal care facillties'

Radio,television,andsimilarcommunicationstations'
lncluding transmitters'

Junkyards and salvage Yards'

Contractorsstorageandequipmentyards.

Building materidl sales and lumberyards'

Churches and Parsonages'

Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums '

pubric and prlvate utlrity buirdingsr. including but not
timited to tef-epnlne eicnairge!, e-leCtric_ substations, 9as

regulator staiions, treatm-enl plants' water wells' and

puUtic works Yards'

Medical, dental, and sirnilar laboratories'

Motels or hotels.
private lodges, f raternal org-anLzations-, country 91YP"'
sports anA racquet cfuUs, golf courses' and other similar
clubs.

v.Publj.crecreationalfacilities,includingbutnotlimited
toparksrprayriela;'golfcourses'andsportsand
racquet courts'

2.L07 .OS SPeciaI Criteria

Allpermittedandconditionalusesshallbefoundbythe
CommissiontoconformtothepurposeoftheNC.zoneasstated
in Section 2.107'01, and:

A. shall be conducted entirely within enclosed buildings'
excePt for:

1. Exterior sales, display - "19 
storage f?{

horticult,rrai- inir f ood 
-meichandise provided said

exterior area does not exceed five percent (5!) of
the gross flo; 

-.."u of each individual business
establishment.

2.Circumstanceswherethenatureofthepermittedor
conditionar-_useclearlymakestotalenclosure

CHAPTER 2
27

L

i:

,i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 441



B.

impracticable, such as in the case of automotive
service stations, provided that the exterior area
shall be the mlnimum necessary to effectively
conduct the user ds deternined by the commission.

No more than four (4) permitted or conditional uses may
be established within any single NC zoning district, -and
each use or establishment may occupy a maximum of four
thousand (4ro0o) square feet of gross floor area,
including any permitted exterior business areas.

No single NC zoning district shall be greater than one
(l) acfe in area, and each dLstrict shall have a minimum
*iitn of eighty-flve (85) feet at the front property
Iine, and one-hundred (100) feet at the building line.

c.

D

2.L07 .O5 Dimensional Standards

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-
street parking or loading area t ot other site dimension or
requirefrent, e-xisting on, or after, the effective date of this
Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this Code.
Nor shall the conveyance of any portlon of a lot, for other
than a public use or right-of-wdy, leave a lot or structure on
the remainder of said lot wlth less than minimum Code
dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirementsr except aS
permitted by Section 4.400.

Permitted and condltional uses may operate only bet$teen
the hours of 7 a.n. and 10 P.m.

A. Setbacks

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum setbacks
shall be:

1 Front yardz 20 feet.

Side yard: None, except that when abutting a
residential zone, there shall be the same side yard
as required in the residential zone.

Rear yard: None, except ten (10) feet when
abutting a residential zone or public park.

Corner lots: Twenty (20) feet on any side facing a
street.

Existing residentiat uses shall maintain minimum
setbacks specified in Section 2.105.04.

2.

3

CHAPII'ER 2
28

4

5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 442



B. Height

ExceptaSotherwiseprovided,theqrlxi.mgmheightof
buildings in rhe 

"fri-"ff" shall' be limited to the height
t"guit;f,""t" of the least restrictive abutting
residential zone'

2.107 .07 ConmunitY Design

For standards relatlng to off-street parking and loadlng,
energy "orr""r*ration, 

- historic resources, environmental
resourcesrlandscapingraccess.andegres-s's1qns'parksand
open space, on-site sttrage, and site -design, see chapters 5r

I and 9.

2. 107. OB Flood Plain

Except as otherwlse provided, sectLon 8'202 shalt apply'

t..

il

CHAPTER 2
29

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 443



The Rc zonLng district provides ar-eas for general retal-l and

service uses that neith6r require larger parcels-of land' nor
produce exclssive environmen-ta1 impaCts as per Chapter I '

2.108.02 Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted outrightr-provided such uses
meet th; i|plicabre -environmental performance standards
contained in ChaPter 8:

A.Professlonalservices,lncludingbut_notIlmltedto
financial, medical and dental, social services' real
estate, Iegal, artistic, and similar uses'

2.108

2 .108. 01

c

D.

E.

F.

RETAIL COMTTIERCIAL (RC)

Purpose

General retail trade, including bakeries where
distribution is limj-ted to retailing on theB

product
premises

G

only.

Personal and business services, including day cares,
preschools, and kindergartens.

PostaI substations when Iocated entirely within and
incidental to a use permitted outright'

Temporary uses, including but not limited to portable
construction offices and real estate sales offices,
subject to Section 4.500.

Farm and garden supply stores, and retall plant
nurseries, 5ui exctuAfrig -wholesate plant nurseries-, and
commercial farm equipmdnt and vehicle sales which are
prohibited.

Agricultural uses such as truck farming and horticulture'
eicluding commercial buildings and_ s_tructuresr or the
raising 5f animals other than household pets'

Commerclal trade schools.

Motion picture and live theaters, but excluding drive-ins
which are Prohibited.

Restaurants, taverns, and lounges'

Automotive and 6ther appliance and equipment parts sales'
Uut excluding junkyalis and salvage yards which are
prohlblted.

CHAPTER 2
30

H

I

J

K.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 444



i!
l,

L

L. Blueprinting' prlntlng' publishlng' or other reproduction

services '

2. 108.03 Conditional Uses

Thefollowingusesarepermittedasconditionaluses,provided
such uses freet the ";;ii*;;r;- tttt'itonmental oerformance

standards contained iii 
- cnapter g, 

_ 
ina are a.pprovea in

accorda"I" 
-tith section 4'3oo:

A. Aut.notive service stations, including tire and wheer

balancing, and inciaental repai;;';;"; c-onducted entirely
witiin-ii' enclosed building'

B.Automotive'lighttruckandsmallequipmentrepairand
servlce, when .1,,4.,"t"o enti;;Ty 

-'iiti'r'' an enclosed

building '

C. Churches and Parsonages'

D. Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums'

Public and private utility buildings'' including but not

Iimited to telephone excllngesl-ereit:+:j"b"tations' 9ds

resulator statf;;;, sewage freatment plants' water wells'

an&-Puur j-c works Yards '

Government offices' including but not limited to

admlnistrativeoffi".",postoffices,andpollceandfire

E

F.

stations.

Public use
Iibraries,
centers.

buildings, including bol not
museumsf communitY centers'

Medicalr dental, and simitar laboratories

Privatelodges,frate-rnalorganizationsIcountryclubs,
sports and t-"-gL""J ll-"1:;. ";tid-';;h; simirar crubs' but

excludinq gorf'courses which are prohibited'

Motels or hotels '

Residentialapartmentswhenlocatedontheupperfloors,
in the rear 

t:?","=;; ;;;;;;se- 
-crearrv secondarv to

commercial buildings'

Publicrecreationalfacilities'includingbutnotlimited
to parks, prayfierds' ang;;;;t" and racQuet courts' but

;;"iil;;6'gcJt courses wnidn are prohibited'

limited to
and senior

l

1

I
,.

i

i
I

t.

G

H

I

J

K

L

L,;

:!

r^ -i

CHAPTER 2
31

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 445



M.

N.

o.

Public and private schools providing education at the
elementary school level or higher.

Veterinarian offices and animal hospitals.

Bullding material sales and lumber yards, when conducted
entirely within an enclosed building.

Any incidental business, service, processing, storage or
display, not otherwise permitted by Section 2.L08, that
is essentlal to and customarily assocLated with a use
permitted outright, provided sald lncldental use is
conducted entirely within an enclosed building.

P.

O. Resldential care facilities.

2. 108.04 Prohibited Uses :

The following uses are expressly prohibited:

A. Adult entertainment buslnesses.

B. Junkyards and salvage yards.

C. Drive-in motion plcture theaters.

G

H

D. Who1esale trade, warehousing, commercial storage, and
minl-warehouslng.

E. Contractors storage and equipment yards.

F Automobile, recreat,ional vehicle, motorcycle, truck,
manufactured home, boat, farm, and other large equipment
sales, rental t ot service.

Special care facilities, including butlnot limited to
hospitals, sanitariums, convalescent homesr and
correctlonal lnstitutions
Radio, telephone, and similar communication stations,
including transmitters.
Wholesale plant nurseries.

Any other prohibited uses noted in Sections 2.L08.02 or
2 . 108.03.

CHAPTER 2
32

I

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 446



2. 108.05 Dimensional Standards

Nolotarearsetback'I?rdrl'a-njslpedarea'openspace'off-
streetparkingor.loabingare.a,diothersitedimensionor
requirement, e-xisting.o,,l-,o' after,-tne erfective date of this

Code shall be reduced U"i"* tn" mitiim"m required by this Code'

Nor shall the "on.,.yuic9 
ot..nl poiiio" .jr a lot, for other

thanapubllcuseorright-of-WdY,Ieavealotorstructureon
the remainder of "J',j'"l;;';iin--iess 

than minimum code

dimensions, area, s"tirc*s- or other requirements' except as

termltted nY Section 4'400'

A. Lot Dimensions

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,requiredminimumlotareas
and bimensions shall be:

1. Lot areat 5'000 sq' feet

2.Lotwidthatfrontpropertyline240feet
3. Lot width at building line: 40 feet

B. Setbacks

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,requiredmlnimumsetbacks
shall be:

abuts a
be that

c.

1. Front yard: None' except when lht lot
restOentiJ 'on", tle fiont yard shall
i.q"ii.O in the residential zone'

2. Side yard: None, except ten (10) feet where

adjoininf " 
tt"iGtttiur zlone or public park'

3. Existing residential uses shatt maintain setbacks

"P."ifi.a 
in Section 2 ' 105 ' 04 '

Height

Except as otherwise prov-ided' the -maximum 
height of

structures "h;ri--n" 
' f if;v--ilqt - 

fe-et' excePt that
structures wittin one hundtl"r tioqi feet of a residential
zone shall n"-fi*iL"A to tne nbight requirements of that
residential ur".. Structu-r." 6".t f itty ( 50 ) f eet in
height mav n"-p.imitted u"-"ottaitional uses, subject to
Section 4.300.

CHAPTER 2
33

'lij
.i:t
LJ

t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 447



2. 108.06 Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parklng and loading,
energy conservation, hlstoric resources, environmental
resources, Iandscaping, access and egressr signs, parks and
open space, on-site storage, and site design, see Chapters 5,
8 and 9.

2.108.O7 FLood PLain

Except as otherwise provided, Section 8.202 shall appty.

CHAPTER 2
34

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 448



I

2.LOg GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC)

2 ' 1o9 '01 Purpose 
' r^- s^ nd commerciar

The GC zoning district provide:':ot wholesale a:

uses which require raig-er parcels "r"i""o' 
and or uses which

involveproductso'..i,iiitiEswnicnreeuirespecialattention
to envit?"'ot"tut rmpaJfs 

-as per chapter 8 '

2.LOg .02 Permitted Uses

The following us-e-s 3T" permitted
;;;t .".t thd aPPrlcabre envlronmen
Il"["i".d in chaPter 8:

outright, Provided such
tJ pefrormance standards

A

B.

c

D.

G

H.

I

Professional servicest
ii"in"rur, rnedicar and

""t.t", I6gal' artistLc'

including but not limited to
a;;i;i; 

-'soci-al services ' real
and similar uses '

Generar rerair rrade, including ??Tgli:" where product

distribution is--rimrt"a t"-i"t"iling on the premises

only.

Personal and business services' including day cares'

pi"".n""f", and kindergartens'

Postalsubstationswhen..locatedentirelywithl.nand
incidental t"'"- ""L 

permitted outright'

TemPorarY uses r- -includin-g.""-"it".Lion of f ices ancl

;il];;i to section 4 ' 5oo '

but not limited to
real estate sales

Farm and garden supply - stores' an9 retair plant

nurseries, Uoi*Jxcfo-ai-rig 
-wnJfl-safe plant nurseries' and

commercial r.r*'Lq"tpmeit ;;J-""nr?r" sales which are

prohibited.

Agriculturalusessuchastruckfarningandhorticulture,
excluding .o,"'n'Ji"iti n"rrdi"g" and J-tructures ' or the

raising of ""ffi;i; "tn"i 
than- household pets '

Commercial trade schools'

Motionpictureandlivetheaters,butexcludingdrive-ins
which are Prohibited'

Restaurants, taverns' and lounges'

portable
offices,E

F

CHAPTER 2
35

I

ii!iril.l

ri
L]

J.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 449



K. Automotlve and other appliance and equipment parts sales'
but excluding Junkyards and salvage yards which are
prohibited.

Blueprinting, printing, publishing, or other reproduction
services.

Automobile, recreational vehicle, motorcycle, truck,
manufactured home, boat, farm, and ot,her equipment sales,
parts sa1es, repairs, rentals or servLce.

L.

M

N.

o. Limited manufacturing, including only: beverage bottling
plants, conmercial bakeries, machine shopsr and
handicraf t manufacturing.

P. Bullding material sales, lumberyards, contractors storage
and equipment yards, building maintenance services, and
similar uses.

Veterinarian offices and anlmal hospitals.

Agricultural uses including but not Iimited to farming,
and wholesaJe and retail plant nurseries, with
customarily associated commercial buildings and
structures permitted.

S. Medical, dental, and simiLar laboratories.
T. Truck and bus yards and terminals.

lJ. Adult entertainment businesses, subJect to Section 2.208.

2. 109.03 Conditional Uses

The following uses are permltted as conditl-onal uses, provided
such uses meet the applicable envj.ronmental performance
standards contained in Chapter 8, and are approved in
accordance with Section 4.300:

A. Special care facilities, including but not limited to
hospitals, sanitariums, convalescent homes, correctional
institutions, and residential care facilities.

B. Radio, television, and similar communication stations,
lncludlng transmltt.erer .

C. Churches and parsonages.

CHAPTER 2
36

Wholesale trade, warehousing, conmercial
mini-warehousing, except a6 prohibited
2. 110.04E and 2,111.048.

storage and
in Sections

o

R

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 450



F

D.

E

J.

K

B

Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums '

Public and private utility buildings ' 'including 
but not

Iimited to telephone "xcnanf,en :It9t-ti: substation' gas

resurator stat-ions, Lreatmdnt prants, water welrs' and

punfi" works Yards '

Government of f ices ' includin-g but 
- lot limited to

administrative office' po"t o?-fi"""' and police and fire
stations.

PubIic use buildings including
libraries, museums, communitY cent

Private lodges, fraLe-rnal organi.za-ti"l.=: country clubs'

sDorts and racluet clubs' an-d other similar clubs' but

elcluding 9or;";;;"-;ini"n are prohibited'

Motels or hotels '

Residential apartments when located on the upper floors'

in the rear a-";;- otn"rrise 
- crearly secondary to a

commercial building'

Publicrecreationalfacilities,includingbutnotlimited
to parks, pr"vii"rat' and "p"tt" 

and racQuet courts' but

excluding gort'^;;;t" t"t'iCn are prohibited'

Public and private schools providing education at the

elementary school leve1 or higher'

Any incidental business, service, process, storage or

display, not otnerwi"" p"t*iittA by-Section 2'109' that

is essentiar io ana c.rslomiiirv asSociated with any use

but not Iimited to
ers and senior centers 'G

H

I

L

M

. Permitted outright'

2. 109 .04 Prohibited Uses

The following uses are expressly prohibited:

A. JunkYards and salvage Yards'

Industrialandmanufacturinguses'exceptasspecifically
permitted bv ;;;;;;" 

-i 
' toi 'oz and 2 ' 10e ' 0 3 '

use noted in Section 2 ' 109 ' 03 '
C. AnY other Prohibited

2.109 . 05 Dimensional Standards

Nolotarearsetback,Y?rd'Iandscaped'area'open-space'off-
street parking or loading'";;;; other site dj'mension or

CHAPTER 2

37

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 451



requirement, existing on, or after, the effective date of thls
Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this Code.
Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other
than a public use or rlght-of-waY, Ieave a lot or structure on
Lhe reirainder of said lot with less than minimum Code
dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as
permitted by Section 4.400.

A. Lot Dimensions

Except as otherwise provided, required minimurn lot areas
and dimensions shall be:

1. Lot area: 10, 000 square feet

70 feet

70 feet
Lot width at front Property line:
Lot width at building line:

B. Setbacks

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum setbacks
shall be:

Front yard: None, unless the lot abuts a
residential zone, then the front yard shall be that
required in the residential zone.

Side yards: None, unless abutting a resldential
zone or public park property, then there shall be a
minimum of tbrenty (20) feet.

3 Rear yard: None, unless abutting a residential
zone, then there shall be a minlmum of twenty (20)
feet.

c.

4. Existing residential uses shall maintain setbacks
specified in Section 2.105.04.

Height

Except as otherwise provided, the maximum height of
structures shal} be fifty (50) feet, except structures
within one hundred ( 100) feet of a residential zone shall
be limited to the height requirements of that residential
area. Structures over fifty (50) feet in height may be
permitted as conditional uses, subject to Section 4.300.

CHAPTER 2
38

2

3

1

2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 452



ti
i; 2 . 109 . 05 Communl'tY Design

For standards relating to off.street parking and loading,
energy conservation, historic resources' environmental
resourc""r- fJascaping, access and egress, slgns, parks ald
open space, on-slte st6rage, and site-deslgn, see Chapters 5'
I and 9.

2.L09.07 Flood Plain

Except as otherwise provided, sectlon 8.202 shall apply'

CHAPTER 2
39

I
I
tl
l- r

i
I

t;

I

'i
Ll

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 453



2.110 LrGHT TNDUSTRTAL (tr)

2.110.01 Purpose

The LI zoning district provldes for the manufacturi.ng,
processing, assembling, packaging and treatment of products
which have been previously prepared from ra$t materials.
Industrlal establishments shall not have obJectionable
external features and shaJ.l feature well-landscaped sites and
attractive architectural design, ds determined by the
Commission.

2.LLO.O2 Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted outright, provided such uses
meet the applicable environmental performance standards
contained in Chapter 8.

A. Veterinarians offices and animal hospitals.

B. Contractor's offices, and other offices associated with
a use permitted in the LI zone.

C. Public and private utilities including but not limited to
telephone exchanges, electric substat.ions, gas regulator
stations, sewa[Ie treatment plants, water wells and pub]ic
works yards.

D. Glass installation and sales.

E. Government offices, including but not limited to postal
stations, administrative offices, police and fire
stations.

F. Automobile, boat, trailer, and recreational vehicle
storage.

G. Laboratories for testing and medical, dental'
photographic r oE motion picture processing' except as
prohibited by Section 2.LL0.048.

H. Industrial hand tool and supply sales' primarily
whotesaled to other industrial firms or industrial
workers.

I. Other similar light industrial uses subject to Section
4.600.

J. Uses pernitted outright in the GC zone, Section 2.L09.42,
except for adult entertainment businesses which are
prohiblted.

CHAPTER 2
40

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 454



Dwelltngunltforone(1).securitypersonemployedonthe
;;;i;;,-.ttc their immediate familY'

PuDs, subJect to the provi'sions of Section 2'202'

Temporary uses, including.but not limited to construction
and real estat6;;1;; "rir"""' 

subject to Section 4'500'

2. l10.O3 Conditional Uses

ThefollowingusesareperPitt."gasConditionalUsesprovlded
such uses meet the SJpiicaUfe environmental performance

standards contained iri- cnapter 8 and are approved in
accordance with Section 4'300:

K

L

M

A. Manufacture t
packaglng,
warehousing
products:

comPounding,
treatment'

or storage of

processing'
fabrlcation,
the following

assembling,
wholesaling,
articles or

1

2

3

4

Food Products,
dalrY Products
baked goods,
prohibited bY

including but not limited to candy'-

, beverag€sr "tit.t, canned g9?$ til
and meat and PoultrY, excePt as

Section 2.110.03'

Appliances, including but not limited to'
refrigerators, fteezexs, washing machines' dryersi
small elecrrorir"-*Jior"'"na qene-rators i heatlng and

cooling equiPment; Iawn - 'noi"t" ' 
ro-to-t-illers' and

chain sa!{s; """diiig 
machines; and similar products

and associated small Parts'

Cosmetics, drugs, pharmaceutical' toiletries'
chemicals u"a " simiia. products, except as

pi"iiiniied bv section 2 ' 110 ' 04 '

Electrlcal, radio' television' opti'cal' scientiflc'
hearing aidsr-"fl"ttonic, computer' communications
and similar instruments, compolnents' appliances and

systems, and "ft ff"i 
produc€s and assoclated small

parts.

Building components and household fixtures'
including uut"-n-"f-iimiteo to furniture, cabinets,
and upholste'rit ladrlers; nattresses ' doors and

windows; slgn-s' ana afsplay structures; and slnllar
;;;o;;* an6 associated small Parts'

Recreational vehLcles and equipmglt' including but
not limited to bicycles, re'cr6atlonal watercraft'
exercise .g"ip*""d, - ttia similar products and

CHAPTER 2
4L

]
1
!

i.

l

t

I

t

5.

.l

ilri
L-J

5.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 455



associated small parts, but excluding motorized
equipment unless otherwise permitted by Section
2.LLO.O2 or 2.1t 0.03.

7. Musical instruments, toys and novelties.
8. Pottery and ceramics, limited to products using

previously pulverized clay.

9. Textiles and flber products.

J.0. Other small products and tools manufactured from
previously prepared or semi-finished materials,
includlng but not llmlted to bone, fur, leather,
feathers, textiles, plastics, glass, wood products,
metals, tobacco, rubber, and precious or semi-
precious stones.

Laundry, dry cleaning, dyeing or rug cleaning plants.

Light metal fabrication, machining, welding and
electroplating and casting or molding of semi-finished or
flnished metals.

Offices associated with a use conditionally permitt,ed in
the LI Zone.

E. Sawmills.

2. 110.04 Prohibited Uses

The following uses are expressly prohibited:

A. Adu1t Entertainment Businesses.

B Any use permitted or conditionally permitted
Section 2.Lt1 that is not speclfically listed in
Section, and any use llsted in SectLon 2.1-11.04.

Auto wrecking and junk or salvage yards.

under
thls

Dlstillation of oiI, coal, wood or tar compounds and the
creosote treatment. of any products.

Manufacture, compounding, processi.g, assembling,
packaging, treatment, fabrication, wholesale,
warehousing, or storage of the following products of
substances, except for any incidental business, service,
process, storage, or dlsplay that ls essentlal to and
customarily associated, in the City's determination, with
any otherwlse permitted or conditLonal.Ly permltted use:

CHAPTER 2
42

B

c

D

c

D

E

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 456



l:

i,

1

2

3

Abrasives, acids, disinfectants, dyes and paints'
bleachlng pota"r and soaps and similar products'

ii 4. Cement, lime' gypsum' plaster of Paris' cLay'

creosote, "oli 
airt cotce '-;;; and tar-based roofing

and warerpr"Jfiig materials and similar substances'

5. Explosives and radioactive materials'

6. Fertillzer' herbicides and insect poison'

F.Metalrollingandextractionmills,fotgeplants,
smelters and blast furnaces'

G. PutP mills and PaPer mills'

H. slaughter of rivestock or poultry, the manufacture of

""iil'i'uv-pt"a"tt" 
or f at rendering '

I . Leather tanneri'es '

J.Generalpurposesotidwastelandfills,incinerators,and
ot'nei-soiid- waste f acilities '

2. 110. 05 Dimensional standards

Nolotarea,setback'Yqrd'Ian-dscapedarear'!Penspace'off-
streetparkingorloalingare-?'oiothersitedimensionor
requirement, existi,,g.o', 

-or after,-the effective date of this
Code shalt be reduceO O-Jow1h; miri'imum required by this Code '

Nor shall the "o"t"yt"c-e 
or-an-y--poidio" t5f a lot' for other

than a public use or right-of-way, Ieave a lot or structure on

the remainder of ";i'o,''rli 
'riitr- less than minimum code

dimensions, area, ""iil.ts- 
or other requirements, except as

Permitted bY Section 4'400'

A. Lot Dimensions

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,requiredminimumlotarea
and 

-dimensions shall be:

Ammonia, chlorine, sodium
similar chemicals'

Cellulold or PYroxYIin'

1. Lot area:

2. tot width at front ProPertY line:

Lot width at 
ffi::nrtt"'

43

compounds, toxics, and

10,000 sq. feet

100 feet

100 feet
rl

l

I
t"

iit_J

iil. J

3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 457



B. Setbacks

Except as otherwise provlded, required minimum setbacks
shall be:

1. Front yard: Twenty (20') feet, except when abutting
a residentlal zone or public park, then there shall
be a minimum of forty (40) feet.

2. Side yards: None, except when abutting a
residential zone, then there shall be a minimum of
forty (40) feet.

3 Rear yard: None, except when abutting a
residential zone, then there shall be a minimum of
forty (40) feet.
Corner lots: Tvrenty (20) feet on any side facing a
street, except when abutting a residential zone,
then there shall be a mlnimum of forty (40) feet.

C. Height

Except as otherwise provlded, the maxlmum hetght shall be
fifty (50) feet, except that structures within one
hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited
t,o the height requirements of the residential zone.

Community Design

4

2.110.05

For standards relating to off-street parking and loadi.ng,
energy conservation, historic resources, environmental
resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and
open space, on-site storage, and slte deslgn, see Chapters 5,I and 9.

2.L10.07 Flood P1ain

Except as otherwise provided, Sectlon 8.2O2 shall apply.

CHAPTER 2
44

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 458



l'l
I
It:tl

2.tll GENERAL TNDUSTRTAL (Cr)

2.1L1.01 PurPose

The GI zonlng district provides for the manufacturing,
processirg, as-sembling, pa-kaging and treatment of products
from previously prepiieO or Law materials, providing 9Y9h
actlvities can meet and maintain minlmum environmental quality
standards and are situated so as not to create significant
adverse effects to residential and commercial areas of the
city. The minimum contiguous area of any GI zoning district
shall be fiftY (50) acres.

2.LlL.02 Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted outrightr_provided such uses
meet the af,plicabte -environmental performance standards
contained in ChaPter 8.

A. Contracting and building material and equipment storage
yards; col-d storage fa-cili-ties; equiqment rental and
salesi UuifOing materials sales; and building maintelalge
services yard, except as prohibited by section 2.111'04'

B. public and private utilities, including Jrut not limited
to telephone exchanges, electric substationsr 9ds
regulatoi stations, sefrage treatment plants, water wells,
and Public works Yard.

c. Laboratories for testing and medical, dental'
photographic, ox motion picture processing, except as
prohibited bY Section 2.LLl.04E'

D. Manufacturing' compounding, processing, assembling'
packaging, - treatmLnt, fabrication, wholesaling,
wareh5usiirg r ot storage of the following artlcles or
products, 5xcept as pronttrttea in Section 2.111.048:

1.. Drugs, pharmaceutical, toiletries, cosmetics,
chefrica1J and similar products, except as
prohl-btted in Sect'ion 2 . LLI . 04D.

2. Electrical, radio, television, optical, scientific,
hearing aids, electronic, computer, communication
and stfrilar instruments, components appliances and

"y"t"r", and similar products and associated small
parts.

!i

CHAPTER 2
45

1':
ilt\lt

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 459



3 Food products including but not limited to candy,
dairy products, beverages, coffee, canned goods,
baked goods, and meat and poultry, except as per
Section 2.LLl.04H.

Furniture, cabinetry, upholst€rY, and signs and
display structures.

Glass and ceramics.

Iron, steel, sheetmetal, other metal products, hand
tools , including machining, w€ldlng 'electroptating, and casting and molding of semi;
finished and iinished metals, except as prohibited
by Section 2.LLl.04F.

Leather products, except as per Section 2.LL1.04I.

Musical instruments, toys, and novelties.

Paper, wood, Iumber and similar products, except as
prohiblted by Sectlon 2.Lt1.04G.

Plastics and Plastic Products.

4

5

6

7

8

9.

1.0.

11.

13.

14.

15.

Recreational vehicles, and other
manufactured homes, trailers,
equipment and greenhouses.

motor
boats

vehicles,
and farm

L2. Boxes and contalners made from paper, wood, metal
and other materials.

Text,ile and f iber Products.

Appllances, lncluding but not limited to
relrtgerators, freezers, washing machines, dryers;
small electric motors and generatorsi heating and
coollng equipment; Iawn mowers, rototlllers, and
chain saws; vending machines; and similar products
and associated smalI Parts.

Other smalI products and tools composed of
previously prepared or semi-finished materials,
building components and household fixtures,
inctuding but not llrnited to furniture, cabinets'
and upnotsteryi ladders, mattresses, doors and
windowsi signs and display structuresi and similar
products and associated small parts.

E. Wholesale plumblng supplies and service.

CIIAPTER 2
46

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 460



F

G

H

I

Blueprinting, printing' publishing or other reproduction
services.

Laundry, dry cleaning' dyeing ' ot rug cleaning plants'

Truck and bus Yards and terminals'

Wholesale trade,
mini-warehousing,
2,LLl.048.

othersirnilargeneralindustrialuses'subjecttoSection
4 .500.

CHAPTER 2
47

warehousing, commercial
excePt as Prohibited

storage, and
in Section

J

K.

L

M

N.

Dwelling unit for one ( L) -security person employed on the

;ffi;;;3 ""4 
their immediate f amirY '

PUDs, subject to the provisions of Section 2'202'

Temporary uses, includilg.but not limited to construction
and real ""tu[6;;1;; 

oriices' subject to section 4'500'

OtherusespermittedoutriqhtintheGCzone'section
2.Log. 02, and'{i-io"", secti'on- z.tto.oz, except for adurt

entertainment 
"#i;;;s-which are prohibited '

i.l

2. 111.03 Conditional Uses

Thefollowingusesarepermitt."gasconditionalusesprovided
such uses meet thg 5f[i!".nr" environmental performance

standards contained fi- chapter I and are approved in

accordance with Section 4'300'

A.Governmentoffices,including.butnotlimitedto,postalsrarions, aamiriGti.t-i"" 6tii""", porice and f ire
stati-ons

B.Sandandgravelpits,rockcrushers'concreteandaspha}t
mixing plants,. 

- -;rio other 
- 
mineral and aggregate

extraction, ",,o1..f. 
io sections 2.LIl.04 and 8.302.

2.LLl. 04 Prohibited Uses

The following uses are expressly prohibited:

A.Allusespermittedinresidentialorcommercialzonesnot
orherwise specifi;"ilt permittlo uy sections 2 ' 111 ' 02 and

2.rLl.03.

B.Autowreckingandjunkorsalvageyards.

liil
ll

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 461



c.

D.

E

commercial radio, terevision or simirar communicationbroadcasting stations or equipment.

Distilratlon of oil, coal, wood or tar compounds and thecreosote treatment of any products.

Manufacture, compounding, processirg, assembling,packaging, treatnent, fabrication, wholesal5,warehouslrg, or storage of the following products orsubst'ances, except for any incldentar business, service,process, storage, or display that Ls essentlal to andcustomariry associated, in the city's determination, with
any otherwise permitted or conditionarry permitted uses:

1. Abrasives, acids, disinfectants, dyes and paints,
bleaching powder and soaps and simil.ar products.

2. Ammonia, chrorine, sodium compounds and simirar
chemicals.

3, Celluloid or pyroxylin.
4. Cement, Iimet gypsum, plaster of paris, clay,creosote, coal and coke, tar and tar-based roofing

and waterproofing materials and similar substances.

5. Explosives and radioactive materials.
6. Fertilizer herbicides and insect poison.

F. Metal rolling and extraction milrs, forge prants,smelters, and blast furnaces.

c. Saw mills and pulp mlJ.ls.

H. sraughter of rivest,ock or pourtry, the manufacture ofanimal by-products or fat rendering.
I. Leather tanneries.
J. Genere_.I purpose solid waste landfills and incinerators,

and other solid waste facilities except as permitted per
Sections 2.110.03 and 9.303.

2.LLl.05 Dimensional Standards

No lot arear. setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or loading area, oi other sitL dimension orrequlrement, existing on, or after, the effective date of this
Code shall be reduced beLow the minimum required by thi6 Code.

C}IAPTER 2
48

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 462



Norshalltheconveyanceofanyportionofalot,forother
than a public-use or'right-of-wayl leave a lot or structure on

the remaind.i- of saii lot witn less than minimum Code

dlmensions, "'.., setbacks or other requirements, except as

permitted bY Section 4'400'

A. Lot Dimensions

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,requiredminimumlotarea
and dlmensions shall be:

Lot area:
Lot width
Lot width

B. Setbacks

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,requiredminimdmsetbacks
shall be:

when abutting a
then there shall

1
2
3

20,000 sq' feet
front ProPertY 199 feet
buifding line: 100 feet

Front Yard: None, excePt
rE"io"tt€iar zone or Public Park'
n" a minimum of fiftY (50) feet'

Side yards: None, except ,w-hgn abutt'ing a

residential zoner- then there shall be a minimum of
fifty (50) feet.

one, excePt when abutting 9-tndn therd shall be a minimum of

at
at

1

2

i
i

I

3 Rear Yard: N

residential zone,
fifty (50) feet.

4 Corner lots: None, excePt when abutting a

residentiat zone, then there shall be a minimum of
fifty (50) feet.

.i

C. Height

Exceptasotherwiseprovided.'.themaximumheightshallbe
fift;- isol feet, ;*."pt .that structures within one

hundred (100) teet of" iesidential zone sharl be linited
to in. nLfgnt requirements of the residential zone'

2.LLl.06 CommunitY Design

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading'
energy conservationr' historic - resources environmental
resources, landscaptng, i".""" ?nd eltress-, signs, parks "ld
open space, on-site "i6rig", and site design see chapters 5 |

I and 9.

ii

CHAPTER 2
49

I

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 463



2.LLL.07 Flood Plain
Except as otherwise provided, Section 8.202, shal1 apply.

2.LIz RESERVED

2.1L3 rNsTrflrrroNAl AND pr,rBl,rc (rp)

2.113.01 Purpose

The rP zoning district provides for major inst.itutionar and
governmental activities such as schools, public parks,
churchesr gov€f,nment offices, uti.rity structures, hospiLals,correctional facilities and other simirar public andquasi-public uses.

2.1L3.02 Conditional Uses

The forlowing uses are permitted as conditional uses provided
such uses meet the appricable environmentar performance
standards contained in Chapter 8, and are approved in
accordance with Section 4.300:

A. Government offices, including but not limited to, postal
stations, administrative offices, police and fire
stat.ions.

B PubIic use
libraries,
centers.

bulldings, includlng
museums, community

limlted to,
and senior

but not
centers,

c.

D.

E.

Churches and parsonages.

Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums.

Pubric recreational facirities, incruding but not rimitedto, parks, playfields, golf courses, and sport and
racquet courts.

F Public and private
preschool level or
schools.

schools
higher,

providing
excluding

education at the
commercial trade

G. Pubric and private utirities, incruding but not tirnitedto, telephone exchanges, electric substations, gas
regulator stations, treatment plants, water wells indpublic works yards.

H. Pubric television and simirar communication stations.
r, Dwerling unit-, ineluding a manufactured homeo for one (1)

CHAPTER 2
s0

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 464



security person employed on the premises, and their
immediaf,e 

-famiIy, and other forms of residence normally
associated with a conditional use, as determined by the
Commission.

2.113 .03 Prohibited Uses

The following uses are expressly prohibited:

A. Private lodges, fraternal organizations, country clubs,
golf courses, and other similar clubs'

B.

c

B.

Radio, television and similar communication stationsr
except when publiclY owned.

Residential uses, except for as conditionally permitted
in Section 2.1L3 ,02I.

2. 113.04 Dimensional Standards

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, otf-
street parking or loaaing area r et other site dimension or
requirement, e-xisting on, br after, the effective date of this
Code shall be reduced- belo* the minimum required by this Co9e.
Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other
than a public use or right-of-wdy, leave a lot or structure on
the remainder of saih lot witn less than minimum Code
dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as
permitted bY Section 4.400

A. Lot Dimensions

Except as otherwise Provided,
dimensions are required.

no mi-nimum lot areas or

Setback

Except as otherwise provlded, the minimum required
setbacks in the IP zone shall be:

1. Front yard: None, except that whe-n the lot abuts a
residential zone or public park property, the
setback shall be a minimum of twenty (201 feet'

2. Side yard: None, except that when the lot abuts a
residential zone or public park property, the
setback shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet'

Rear yard: None, except that when the lot abuts a
residential zone or public park property, the
setback shall be a minimum of twenty (20, feet.

CHAPTER 2
51

.-J

I

..t

3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 465



c. Height

Except as otherwise provided, the maximum height of
butldings in the IP zone shall be fifty (50) feet, exc_ept
that sttuctures within one hundred (100) feet of a
residential zone shall be limited to the height
requirement of that residential zone.

2. 113.05 Community Design

For standards relatlng to off-street parktng and loading,
energy conservation, historic resou.rces environmental
resources, landscaping, access and egress, site design, parks
and open space, on:siie storage, and signs, see ChapterS 5, I
and 9.

2.113.06 Flood Plain

Except as otherwise provided, section 8.202, shall apply.

CHAPTER 2
52

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 466



2.200

2.201

2.202

2.202.OL

A.

2.202.02

A.

SPECIAL USES

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Special uses included in Section 2.200 are uses which, due to
their effect on 

"ottounding 
properties, must be developed in

accordance with special Condltions and standards ' These

conditlons and siandards may differ from the development
standards established for other uses in the same zoning
district. llhen a dimensional standard for a special use
dlffers from that of the underlylng zonlng dlstrict, the
standard for the special use shall apPly'

PLANNED ttNrT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)

B

Purpose

puDs integrate buildi4gsI land use, transportation
facilities, utility syst-ems and opet sPage throggh. an
overall site desigri on a slngle parggl of land.' The PUD

pt".""i "ifot" 
cr6ativity and flexibillty in s-ite design

which cannot be achieved through a strict adherence to
zoning and subdivision standards'

The PUD district is intended to achieve the following
obJectives:

1. Encourage effiCient use of land and resources that
canresultinsavingstothecommunity,consumers
and develoPers.

2.Preservevaluablelandscape,terrainandother
environmental anenities .

3. Provide diversified, and innovatlve living, working
or shopping environments that take into
consiOeriiion community needs and activity
patterns.

4.Achievemaximumenergyefficiencyinlanduses.

Preliminary DeveloPment Plan

GenerallY

A PUD Preliminary Development Plan shall be submitted for
the review anO ipproval of the Commission and Council'
pUO" shall onfy bl'considered on sites that are unusually
constrained oi llmited in development potential, .as
compared to other land with the same underlying zoning
designation, because of: natural features such as

CHAPTER 2
53

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 467



floodptains, wetlands, and extreme topography, or
man-mlde features, such as parcel configuration and
surrounding development. The applicant shall describe
the unusual conditions qualifying the site for PUD
consideration, and the Commission shall cite findings of
fact validating these conditions.

B. Content

The Preliminary Development PIan application shall
include the following rnapping and written narrative:

1. Existing conditions map(s) showing: AII
properties, existing uses, and zoning districts
within three hundred (300) feet; topography at five
(5) foot intervals; flood plain, sLgnifigant
natural vegetatlon and features; private and publlc
facilities including but not limited to utilities,
streets, parks, and buildingsi property boundaries'
lots lines, and lot dimensions and area-

2. Listing of all property owners adjacent to the PUD
as per Section 3.202.O3' including names and
addresses; and a listing of aII persons, includlng
names and addresses, with an interest in the
property subject to the PUD application.

3. Proposal map(s) showing: Alteratlons to
topography, flood p1ain, natural vegetation, trees
and woodlands, and other natural features; aIl
streets, utility alignment's and easements, parks
and open space, other public and uttlity
structures, and any other dedicated land features
or structures; t,he parceling or subdivision of land
including basic parcel dimensions and areas; the
phasing of the PUD; siting and orientation of
proposed nevt structures, including an
identification of their intended use.

4. 'Narrative describlng:' The intent of the PUD and
how general PUD standards as per Section 2.202 are
met; details of the particular uses, densities,
building types and architectural controls proposed;
form of ownership, occupancy and responsibility for
maintenance for all uses and facilities; trees and
woodlands; public facilitles to be provided;
specific variations from the standards of any
underlying zoning district or other provisions of
this Code; and a schedule of development.

If the PUD Lnvolves t.he subdivision of land, the

CHAPTER 2
54

5.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 468



c

proposal shall also include a preliminary
subdivision plat "tA- *""t 

all requirements' of
sectlon 7.200. The freliminary subdivision shall
be proc""".J-concurrdntty with the PUD'

Commission Review

TheCommissionshallconductapublichearlngpursuantto
.sectLon 3.200 and may a9!. to recommend to the Council
approvar, ot""ipit;i.with conditions' Denial by the

commission of t-h-; prelimilirv-Developm:nt Plan shall be

final, excep;;; pi""io"o--tor in section 3.400. The

commission "nuir 
-mare tn"ri decision based on the

iollowing findings of fact:

1. The proposed -development -is 'in substantial
conformance with tne-"comprehensive Plan and is
sLted in an area thaL iJ uirusually constrained due

to existing natural or man-made features'

That exceptions from the standards
underlying ""i-iig 

district are warranted
;;;iil'- ina arienities incorPorated
develoPment Plan'

2.

3

of the
by the

in the

4

5

That the proposal is in harmony with the
surrounding .t"u or its poientiaf future use' and

incorporates unifled or internally compatible
archilect'ural treatments'

That the system of ownership tld. the means of
developing, piesertting and maj-ntaining open spaces

are accePtable.

That the PUD will have a beneficial effect on the
area which ""ufa "ot 

be achieved under the
underlYing zoning district'

proposed devetopment, o! an independent-;h;- developm""i, can be substantialllt
within one ( t) Year 

' from dat'e of

oublic facilities and services are
t;;;e; u"uilabre bY the construction

6

7

I

That the
phase of
comPleted
approval.

That adequate
available or a
of the Project.
That the general objectives of the PUD concept and

the speciric oll"-"-tivgs .o.t the various categories
of PUDs aescri-nda in Section 2'202 have been met'

CHAPTER 2
55

a

i

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 469



D. Councll Actl.on

Upon receipt of the findings and recommendations of theCommission, the Council shall conduct a public hearingpursuant to section 3.200. 'The councir may approve,conditionally approve r ot deny the preriirrnary
Development plan. A c.ouncil decilion to approve thaPreU-minary Developmenti PIan shalI be by - brdinanceestablishing a puD overlay zoning distiict. Theordlnance shall contain findings of fact as per Section2.202.02, state all conditions of approval, and set an
e f f ective date subJect to approirat of the FinalDevel_opment plan as per Section 2. ZO2,O3.

E. Effect of Decisl.on

Approval of the Preliminary Development plan shall notconstitute flnal acceptance of the PUD. Approval shallhowever be blndtng upon the clty for tha purpose ofpreparation of the Flnal Development plan, anh ftre Citymay require only such changes in the plan as ar6necessary for compliance with- the terms of- preliminary
approvals.

2.202.03 Final Development plan

A. Generally

upon approval of the puD overlay zoning distrlct andpreliminary development pran 5v the .council, theapplicant shall prepare a Aetailea Final Development plan
as pej Sections -2.202 and 4.100, for revi.ew and approvalof ;the Commission. The Final Development plan shallgoTpry wlth all conditions of approvar as per section2.202.02. rn add_ition, the appli6ant shall prepare andsubmit a detailed site plan,-if appticabre,-foi reviewand.^approval, pursuant to the provisions'of section5.100. The site plan shall be processed concurrentlywith the Final Development plan.

B. Final. Subdivision plat

If the PUD involves the subdivision of land, a final platshall be prepared and submitted to the Commission forfinal ?pqroval, pursuant to section 7.300. The finarprat- sharr b9 processed concurrentty with the FinalDevelopment plan.

CHAPTER 2
56

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 470



il

2.202.04 General Provisions

A

B.

2.

Timlng of DeveloPment

L. Phasing

a. The City may require that development be done

rn pnis!", ir pirnric facilities and services
are not adequate to serve the entire
develoPment immediately'

Any PUD which requJ.res more than twenty four
(241 months t"-.6^piete. shall be constructed
i"-bni""" that are substant'ially complete in
themselve" .ttO "n"ff 

conforim to a phasing plal
approved as ;;;t of the Finar Development
Plan.

b.

Minor Changes

MinorchangesinaFinalDevelopmentPlanmaybe
approved by th; Council without further public
hearing or Commission review, provided that such

;ffit;; do not increase densities; change

CHAPTER 2
57

2. Failure to ConPlete

a. When substantial constructj'on or development
of a PUD, or any tpptott"d phase of a PUD' has

not taken place tiCnitt qne (1) year fTol-the
date-"i-.ppioval of a Final Development.Plan,
tne comrnii""ion shall hold a public hearing to
determine whether or not the PUD's

continuation,in-wnoteorinpart,iSinthe
Public interest'

b. Tf continuatlon ls found not to be in the
public interest' the - Commission shalI
recommendtothe'CouncilthatthePUDbe
extinjuished ' The Council ' af ter -public
hearingr llldY extend the PUD' extend with
conditlons, or extinguish the PUD'

Changes in APProved Plans

1. Major Changes

Proposed major change-s in a- lTil-Development 
Plan

shallbeconsideredthesameasanewpetition'and
shallbemadeinaccordancewiththeprocedures
sPecified in Sect'ion 2'2O2'

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 471



2.202.05

A

boundarigs or usesr of, change the location
amount of land devoted to specific uses.

Residential pUD

Permitted Uses

or

ina
Final

The following uses
Residential pUD, when
Development planl

are permitted outright
approved as part of a

1

2

varied housing types including but not rimited tosingle-family attached dwellings, zero-lot Iinehousing, row houses, duplexes, Lluster units, andmultl-famlly dwellings .

Rerated Nc uses which are designed and rocated soas to exclusively serve the pUD district.
3. All other uses permitted wlthLn the underlying

zoning district in which the pUD is located.
B. ' Conditional Uses 

i

A conditioral use permitted in the underrying zone inwhich the puD is rocated may be arrowed as i pa-rt or the
PUD upon 

- 
payment of the reguired appricati-on fee andapproval by the Conmission as per Sec€ion 4.300.

C. Development Standards

1. Density

The number of dwerling units permitted in aResidential puD shalr be determined by murtiplyingthe maximum number of units per acre-permitted i;the. underrying zoning district or distlicts by the
number of acres in the proposed pUD.

2. Density Transfei

vfhere the proposed puD site includes tands withinthe base 'frood a density transfer may be alrowed in.
accordance with Section 9.304.05.

3. Minimum Site Area

The mlnimum area ior a Residentlal puD shalr befive (5) acres unless the commission finds that aspecific propert-y of lesser area is suitabre as a
PUD by virtue of being unusually constrained by

CHAPTER 2
58

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 472



topoqratrhY, IandscaPe
s,tir5,tnaing develoPment'

Non-Residential (Cornnrercial or Industrial) PUD

Permitted Uses

Anycommercial,industrialorrelatedusepermitted
outright in ti;' underlyittg' "ot 

ittg_ d.istrict in which the
puD is located, Fdy be p"t*iii"6 in a Non-Resj-dential
PUD' subject to ChaPter u'

Conditional Uses

A conditional use perm-itted in the underlylng zoning'

di.strlcts ir, ,-f,f;n-tft pUO i" located may be allowed as a
part of the run upon payment of the required application
?.. and aPProval bY the Commission'

DeveloPment Standards

1.. Floor Area

The gross ground floor area of principal buildings'
accessory buildings, ;ndfuture- additions shall not
exceed sixry percenr 16-o*i of the buildable portion
of the PUD.

2. Site and Structural Standards

Yard setback, tyPe of dwelling unit' Iot frontage
andwidthanduserestrictionscontainedinthis
Code ,na; Oe- waivea iit the Non-Residential PUD,

provlded tnit rn. rnteni and objectlves of sectlon
2,202 are cornplied riin in the- -Final Development

Plan. Building sepattii""" shall be maintained in
accordance with the minimum requirements of the
Fire District'

3. Perimeter Requirements

Unless topographical or other barriers within the
PUD pto.riil- rdasonaute privacy f.or existing uses

adJacent 
-t; the puD, -itr"' commission shall require

that structures rocated on the perimeter of the PUD

be:

Setback in accordance with provisionS. of
underlylng ""ilig 

district within which
PUD is-loiated and/or:

features, location, ox

2.202.06

A.

B.

c

d.
the
the

CHAPTER 2
59

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 473



Screened so as to obscure the view ofstructures in the PUD from other uses.
4 Hetght

Maximum building height is unlimited, provided asprinkrer system is instalred in alr buitaings overtwo (2, storiesr €ls approved by the Flre plJtrict,
excepting that where structures are within onehundred (100) feet of a residential zone, the
maximum height sha1l be limited to that of theresidential zone.

6.

Community Design Standards

For standards relating to off-street parking andloading, energy conseivation, historii resources
envLronmental resources, landscapirg, access andegress, signs, parks and open space, on-sitestorage, and site design, see Chapters 5, g 

"lO 9.

Density Transfer

lfhere the proposed puD incrudes rands within thebase flood, a density transfer may be allowed in
accordance with Section 8.304.05.

7. Minimum Site Area

a. Commercial pUD

Minimum area for a Commercial pUD shall befive (5) acres. Development of a Commercial
PUD of less than fl_ve (5) acres may be allowedif the PUD can be developed consistent withthe intent and standards of Section 2.2OZr ds
determined by the Commission.

b. Industrial pUD

The minimum site area for an fndustrial pUD
shall be twenty (2O) acres.

CHAPTER 2
50

b

5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 474



2.203 HOIIE OCCUPATTONS

2.203.0L Conditions

Home occupations are permitted in residential zonLng
distrlcts, -subJect to the following conditions:

A. The occupation or profession shall be carried on wholly
within tie principif building, and be clearly secon9lTy,
fn ifie cltli's det-ermination, to the use of the building
as a dwelling.

B. There shall be no exterior slgns exceeding one (1) square
tooi, tro exterior storage of materials, and no exterior
indication of the home 5ccupation or varj.ation from the
residential character of the principal building.

C. The occupation or profession shall not produce offensive
noise, vibrationsr- smoke, dust, odors, heat r ot glare.

D. The occupation or profession shall not occupy more- th?l
thirty triercent (S0*) of the total floor area of a1l
naUitibfe buildings on the property, including customary
accessorY buildings.

E. The occupation or profession shall not upset existing
Patterns in the neighborhood'

F. The occupation or profession sha1l not require additional
off 

-str6et parkiirg and other facitities which would
change the eiisting character of the neighborhood'

G. The occupation or profession shall be carried on by
members o-f tne famil-y residing in the dwetIing, -provided
thatone(1)outsideindividualmaybeemployed.

2.203.02 Permitted Uses

Permitted home occupations, include but are not limited to:
art and craft studibs, dressmaking and similar occupations,
professional offices' secretarial-and bookkeeping services-'
tutoring, including musical instruction, and beauty shops with
only one'1f 1 custom--er hairdressing chair. Additional uses may

be allowed in the OT overlay zone, 65 per Section 9'202'028'

2.203.03 Prohibited Uses

Home occupati-ons shall
kennels, restaurants,
enterprises.

not include: Commercial stables,
taverns, lounges and other similar

CHAPTER 2
51

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 475



2.2O3.O4 Home OccuPation Permit

An appli.cation for a Home occupation Permit (HoP) shall be
filed with the City and accompanied by the appro-priate fee as
per Section 3.301. The appllCation shall ldentlfy the tltPg 9f
use and address the condiltons contalned in Section 2.2O3.OL
and other applicable Sections of this Code. The City Manager,
or his or -lier authorized designee, shalI administratively
approve, approve with conditionl, or deny !h" permit. Th"
action of l]he Clty Manager may be appealed as per Section
3 .400.

CHAPTER 2
62

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 476



2.2O4 RESERVED

i

L

CHAPTER 2
63

ii

l

L,,i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 477



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 478



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 479



2.205

2.205.4L

A.

MANUFACTURED HOMES

Manufactured Homes on Individual Residential Lots

Generally
One (1) manufactured home may be located on an individual
lot zoned MDRL or MDRH, provided that the manufactured
home meets the standards contained in Sections 2.L03 or
2.104, and Sectlon 2,2A5.018.

B. Standards

Each manufactured home shall be nultisectional and
have a minlmum floor area of one thousand (11000)
square feet.

The manufactured home shall be placed on an
excavated and back-filled foundation and enclosed
at the perimeter such that the manufactured home is
located not more than twelve (L2l inches above the
ground.

The manufactured home shall have a pitched roof,
with a slope of no less than a nominal three (3)
feet in height for each twelve (L2) feet in width.

The manufactured home, and attached or detached
garage, shall have exterior siding and roofing
which is siml-Iar in color, material and appearance
to siding and roofing commonly used on residential
dwellings within the City, or which is consistent
with the predominant materials used on surrounding
dwellings, as determined by the City.
The manufactured home shall be certified by the
manufacturer t,o have an exterior thermal envelope
meeting performance standards which reduce energy
levels equivalent to the performance standards
required of single-family dwellings constructed
under the State building code as defined in ORS
445.010.

The manufactured home shall have an attached or
detached garage.

fn addition to the provisions in paragraphs L to 6
of this subsection, the manufactured home and the
lot upon which it is sited shall be subject t,o all
other Code requirements to which a conventional
single-family residential dwelling on the same lot
would be subjected.

CHAPTER 2
64

I

2

3

4

5

6

7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 480



ii
1.."r

2.2O5.O2 Manufactured Hone Parks

ManufacturedhomeparksmaybelocatedintheMDRLzoneonly.
Except as herein pro.ric"ar'tn" standards of section 2'205'02
and the MDRL zo,^e, "nuii-"ipi' 

t" all manufactured home parks'

The rorro-wiigidditio""f llairaaras shall also applv:

A. GenerallY

1. Sale Prohibited
shall be available
Individual sale is

2

Manufactured home Park s-Paces
i;; rental or rease onlY'
prohibited.

Uses Permitted

No building, structure, or
min,tfactured- home Park shalI
purpose excePt for:

a. Residential manufactured homes' together with
normal accessory uses such as cabanas' patio
slabs, ramadasl calpor-t- - or garages ' and

storage and washroom buildings'

b. Private and public utilities and services '

c. Community recreation facilities' including
swimming'pooi", operated for the residents and

guests of the Park onIY'

d. One (1) manufactured home or other residence
for the use of a manager or a caretaker
responsiUte tor maintaini'ng and operating the
park.

OccuPancY

No occupancy permit for any manufactured home park'
buildin g r ot rEfi1iv snait be issued bv the 

- 
cltv

until the park or an approved phase-of the park has

been completed accordihg to tne final site plan
approved by tne Commission' Devj'ations from the
approved pfan-musi f" resubmitted to the Commission

f-oi review and aPProval '

Alterations and Additions

The owner(s) of the manufactured home park
property , ot duly authorized park management' shal1

land within
be used for

a
any

3.

i

I

i
4

il. /

CHAPTER 2
65

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 481



c

B.

D.

be held responslble for all alteratlons and
additions to a manufactured home park or to
individual homes within the park, and shall ensure
that aII necessary permits and inspections are
obtained from the City or other applicable
authority prior to the alterations or additions
being made.

Recreational Vehicles

1. The occupancy of recreational vehicles within
manufactured home parks as permanent living
quarters is prohibited

2. Unoccupied recreational vehicles located in
designated parking or storage areas within
manufactured home parks are Permitted.

3. If storage yards for recreational vehicles, boats
or trailers are provided, an eight (8) foot high
sight-obscuring fence shall be erected around the
perimeter of the storage yard.

Design Standards

1. Spaces shall be a minimum of five thousand (51000)
sguare feet, with a width of no less than twenty-
flve (251 feet at the front space llne and fifty
(50) feet at the building line.

2. The boundaries of all spaces shall be surveyed or
otherwlse suitably and permanently marked on-site,
as determined by the City.

3. Two (2) off-street parklng spaces shall be provided
for each manufactured home space. Additional off-
street parking spaces shall be provided in the
manufactured home park with not less than one (1)
additional parking space per every ten ( 10)
manufactured homes. AIt off-street parking spaces
shall be paved.

4. A minimum four (4) foot wide sidewalk shall be
required on one (1) side of all private streets
within manufactured home parks.

Siting Standards

1. OnIy one (1) manufactured home shall be permitted
on a 6pace.

CHAPTER 2
66

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 482



2

3

2

3

4

The supplementary siting- standards contaj'ned in
S""ti."-'Z. gOd-lf,af f ap;'y to manufactured home

;;;k;, provided that space- lines shall be deemed to
be the equivaienl Lo rbt lines for the purposes of
applying those standards'

Buildings setbacks shall be equivalent to setbacks
required in the MDRL zorlLe, Section 2'L03'O4B'
provided nowevli that either the front or rear yard
setbacks for .uttni..tured homes may be- reduced by

;;-t;-l;" (10) ieet r.t9T the MDRL standard' space
lines shall nL AeemeO the eq-uivalent. to lot lines
for the p"tp"""" - of appfying tho-se setback
standards. nairaaas, cabanail iwnings, carports and

otherattachedstructuresshallbeconsideredpart
"i in. manufactured home for setback purposes'

E. Unlt Standards

1

C.

herein Provided'
structures shall

accessory
be treated

Eachmanufacturedhomeshallbemultisectionaland
haveaminimumfloorareaofone.thousand(1000)
square feet.

ExcePt as otherwise
usesl bulldings' and
as per Section 2.207 '

Alt manufactured homes shall be placed on a

foundation stind, adequate to provide a stable'
fixed support. rn" stind shall -ne all-weather and

surfaced with asphalt, concrete or crushed rock'
andatleastasl.argeasthemanufacturedhome.

Alt manufactured homes shall provide exterior
iini"ni"g and construction as follows:

d. Skirting of moisture resistant' non-
combustiUte naterial or flre retardant wood'

b. Pedestals, or blocking supPorts' insuring
adequate- t.tppott and- ii compliance with the
oregon o"li-r-t*.rrt of commerce manuf actured
home setuP Procedures'

Awnings, cax portsr- cabanas, and similar
;i;;;i";es shali be of a materLal, size' color
and pattern similar to the manufactured home

and shall .ottiott to alt applicable building
codes

CHAPTER 2
67

I

I

riir
l..J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 483



F. Utility Standards

AII manufactured homes, service buildings and
accessory structures shall be connected to public
water and ser"rer systems in accordance with City
standards.

Sufficient fire hydrants shall be installed so that
no manufactured home, and other structure is
farther than three hundred (300) feet from a
hydrantr ds measured down the center lines of
streets, whether private or public.

G. Vehicular Circulation
I AII private streets shall be constructed in

accordance with applicable City standards and shall
be curbed. The minimum paved street improvement
width shall be:

1

2

CL

b

c

Twenty-eight (28)
parking allowed.

feet with no on-street

Thirty-two (321 feet with on-street parking
allowed on one (1) side.

Thirty-six (36) feet wlth parking allowed on
two (21 sides, provided that at least one (1)
private street thirty-six (36) feet in width
with no on-street parking allowed shall be
constructed to intersect with an adjacent
public street.

Any street within the manufactured home park that,
due to volumes of traffic or street location, as
determined by the City, functions as a minor
collector or higher functional classification
roadway shall be a public street and constructed to
full City public improvement standards.

H. Miscellaneous Park Standards

AII other community design standards contained in
Chapters 5, 8, and 9 relating to off-street parking
and loading, energy conservation, historic
resources, environmental resources, Iandscaplng,
access and egress, signs, parks and open spacer orr-
site storage, and site design that are not
specifically varied by Section 2.205 shall apply to
manufactured home parks.

CHAPTER 2
68

2

t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 484



2.2O5.03 Miscellaneous Uses of Manufactured Homes

GeneralIY

fn addition to uses permitted by Section 2'205'0L and

2.205.02, t.nuritlotla nomes ti"y be used f or the

fol.lowing PurPoses:

1. Securlty person quarters' as per Sections 2'LL0'O2
and 2.111.02.

A

2. Temporary uses as per Sectlon 4'500' and where the
proposed use i"- otittt"ise permitted in the zone in
which tne manuiactured hom-e is to be located'

CHAPTER 2
69

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 485



2.206 NON-CONTORMING USES

2.206.Ot Purpose

Within t,he zones established by this Code or any amendments
that may later be adopted there may exist lots, structures,
uses of land and structures, and characteristics of use which
were lawful before the effective date of this Code, but which
would be prohibited, regulated, or restricted under the terms
of this Code or any future amendments, or which do not meet in
full all standards and provisions of this Code. Section 2.206
permits these nonconformlties to continue untll they are
removed or dlscontLnued, but does not encourage their
perpetuation. Nonconformities shall not be enlarged, expanded
or extended, nor be used as justification for adding other
structures or uses not permitted elsewhere in the same zone,
except as specifically provided elsewhere in this Section.

2.2O5.02 Exceptions

A. Generally

Nothing in Section 2.206 shall require any change in the
Iocation, plans, construction, size, or designated use of
any building, structure, or part thereof, for which a
required City building permlt has been granted prior to
enactment of this Code. If a building permit is revoked
or for any reason becomes void, all rights granted by
Section 2.206.02 are extinguished and the project shall
thereafter be required to conform to aII the provLsions
of this Code.

B. O1d Town (OT) Zone

Certain exceptions to Section 2.206 are permitted in the
OT overlay zoner ds per Sectlon 9.202.06F.

c Any otherwise lawful residential structure or use located
on property zoned commercial or industrial shaII be
deemed conforming for the purposes of Sections 2.206.058
and 2.206.06E.

2.206.03 Non-Conforming Lots of Record

A. Except as provlded in Section 2.206 and Section 2.304r Do
nonconforning lot of record at the effective date of
adoption or amendment of this Code shall be developed for
any use, and no existing use on a nonconforming lot of
record shall be enlarged, extended, or reconstructed.
Nonconforming lots or record are those of a width, area
or depth or other requirements less than the minimums

CHAPTER 2
70

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 486



Prescribed bY this Code'

B.Inanydist,rlctinwhlchsingle--f.a.mily-dwellingsarepermlfted, a single-family dwelling and customary
u".""roiy'uuiraings-may b_e_ constructed on a single lot of
,".oio .ii"ting .i tn"-effective date of adoption of' or
amendment,to,thisCode,notwithstandinglimitations
lmposedbyotherprovl'slonsofthlsCode.Suchlotmust
be in separat,e ofnersnrp and not cont,iguous with other
lots in the same ownershiP'

c.Iftwo(2)ormorelotsrof,combinationsoflotsand
porttons'of lots in slngle ownership are on record at t'he

eftecirve date of this iode and arehade nonconforning by

thi; coa., the lots involved shall be considered to be an

,rrrai"iaed' p.r""I f or the purpos_es -of - this code. No

poriion of said undivided -paicel which does not meet

r"euii.*ents ."t"nii"ned by tnis Code shall be conveyed'
transferredorusedinanymanner.Nodivisionofthe
parcelshallbemadewhichresultsinanylotofless
Lhan the mintmum requirements of this Code

2.206.04 Non-Conformlng Uses of Land

where at the time of adoption of this code lawful use of land
exj.sts which would not- rL- pLr*itted by th_e regulations imposed

by thls 
-Eoa", ina where such use involves no structure or

building,-otherthanasingl.emi.noraccessorystructureor
sign, th; use may ue contit.r6a as long as it remains otherwise
Iawful, Provided:

A. No such use shall be enlarged, increased or extended to
occupyagreaterareaofranaorspace-tlranwasoccupied
at the effective 

-aate of adoption or amendment of this
cooer- provlded however, that luch use may be enlarged or
altered In a way that w111 not have a greater adverse
lmpactonsurroundingpropertiesorwilldecreaseits
non-conformity, as per Section 2'206'07 '

B.Nosuchuseshallbemovedinwholeorinparttoany
poriion or rhe lor other than that occupied by such y:9
at the effective date of adoption or amendment of this
Code

C. If any such use of land ceases for any reason for a

period of more than one hundred and t!.tenty (120) days,
anysubsequentuseoflandshallconformtothe
regulations specifieA by this Code for the zo^e in which
such land ls located'

.'j

CHAPTER 2
7L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 487



No additional structure, buitding or sign shall be
constructed on the lot in connection with such use of
land unless said structure' building r ot sign reduces or
further limits, in the City's determination, the existing
non-conformity.

2.206.05 Non-Conforming Structures

Where a lawful structure exists at the effective date of
adoption of or amendment to this Code that could not be built
under the terms of this Code by reason of restrictions on lot
area, lot coverage, height, yards, its locatlon o.n the lot, or
other requiremerits conaerning the structure, such structure
may be Continued so long aJ it remains otherwise lawful,
subject to the following provisions:

A. No such structure may be enlarged or altered in a way
which increases its non-conformity, but any structure or
portion thereof may be enlarged or altered in a way that
wfff not have a greater adverse impact _on surrounding
properties or will decrease its non-conformity, EIS per
Section 2.206.07.

B. Except as otherwl,se provided f or in Sectlon 2 '206 ' 02 ,
shou-Id such structure or the non-conforming portlon of a
structure be destroyed by any means to an extent of more
than sixty percenl (60t) of its current value as
establisnel lV the Washington County Assessor, it shall
not be reconstructed exEept 1n conformity with the
provisions of this Codei and

C. Should such structure be moved for any reason for any
distance whatever, it shall thereafter conform to the
regulations for the zone ln which it ls located.

2.206.06 Non-Conforming Uses of Structures
If a lawful use invblving individual structuresr or structure
and premises in combinltion (except for single, minor
accessory structure) exLsts at the effectlve date of adoptlon
or amend-ment of this Code that would not be allowed in the
zone in whlch it is located i or which is non-conforming
because of lnadequate off-street parking, Iandscaping, 9r
other deficienciei, the use may be continued so long as it
remains otherwise lawful, subject to the followS.ng provisions:

A. No existing structure devoted to a use not perrnittgg Py
thls Code in the zone In whlch lt is located shall be
enlarged, extended, constructed, reconstructed, moved, or
strucfurally altered except to accommodate a changing of
the use of tne structure to a use permitted in the zone
in which it is located.

CHAPTER 2
72

D

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 488



B

c.

D

E

2.206.07

A.

Any non-conforming use may be extended throughout any
existing parts oi a building which were manifestly
arrange& or aestgned for such use at the time of adoption
or am6ndment of lnts ordlnance, but no such use shall be
extended to occupy any land outside such building.

If such use of a structure and premises Ls changed to
another use, such neht use shall conform to aIl provisions
of this ordinance.

When such use of a structure and premises is discontinued
or abandoned for one hundred and twenty (L2O) days, the
structure and .premises shall not thereafter be used
except in fuII conformity with all regulations of the
zone in which it is located. A use shall be deemed to be
dlscontinued or abandoned upon the occurrence of the
earllest of any of the followlng events:

L. on the date when the structure and/on premises are
vacated.

2 On the date the use ceases
merchandising, the Provision of
nonconforming activitY.

3. On the date of termination of any lease or contract
under which the non-conforming use has occupied the
premises.

4. On the date a reguest for flnal reading of water
and power meters is made t'o the City.

Where non-conforming use status applies to a structure
and premlses, removal or destructlon of the structure
shall eliminate the non-conformlng use status of the
land. Destruction for the purpose of this subsection is
defined as damage to an extent of more than sixty percent
(60t) of its current valuer ds appraised by the
Washington County Assessor. Except as otherwise provided
for tn Section 2.205.02, any subsequent use shall conform
fully to all provisions of the zone in which it is
located.

Permitted Changes to Non-Conformities

Repairs and Maintenance

On any nonconforming structure or portion of a structure
containing a nonconforming use, normal repairs or
replacement on non-bearing walls, fixtures' wiring, or
plumbing may be performed in a manner not in conflict

CHAPTER 2
73

active sales,
services, other

ri

;t
;l
1.1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 489



B.

srith the other provisions of this section. Nothing in
iti" Code shall Le deemed to prevent the_strengthening or
restoring to a safe conditlbn of any butlding o,r_ part
thereof officiilly aeclared to be unsafe by any official
charged with protecting the publlc safety'

A non-conforming use or structure may be enlarged or
altered as per S5ctions 2.206.03A or 2.206.04A if, in the
commission's determination, the change will have no
g""ii", adverse impact on surrounding proBerti_eF or wiII
decrease its nottco-nformity considering the following:

1.. The character and history of the development and of
development in the surrounding area'

The comparable degree of noise, vibration'
odor, f-umes, glafe or smoke detectable
property line.

4

2.

3

Further excePtions
permltted in the
9 .202.06F.

to non-conformities are
zone, ds Per Section

dust,
at the

The comparatlve numbers and klnds of vehicular
trips to the site.

The comparative amount and nature of outside

"Lot.g", 
loading and Parking.

The comparative visual appearance'

The comparative hours of operation'

The comparatlve effect on existing vegetation'

The comparative effect on water drainage'

The degree of service or other benefit to the area.

other factors which tend to reduce conflicts or
incompatibility with the character or needs of the
area.

5

6

7

I

9

10.

c

2.206.08 Conditional Uses

A use existing before the effective date of this Code which is
permitted as a conditional use shall not be deemed non-
conformlng if it otherwlse conforms to the standards of the
zone in -rnfcn it ls located. Enlargement-, extenslon,
reconstruction, of moving of such uFe snatt only be allowed
subject to Section 4.300.

CHAPTER 2
74

to changes
OT overlaY

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 490



2.207

2.207 .Ol

ACCESSORY USES

Standards

Accessory uses, bulldtngs, and structures shall comply with
all requirenent,s for prlnclpal uses, buildings, and structures
except where specifically modified by this Code, and shall
also comply with the following linitations:
A. Any accessory building shaLl have not

hundred and twenty (720) square feet
arga.

more t.han seven
of ground floor

B.

c.

D

E.

F.

2.207 . 02

2.207 . 03

No accegsory building or structure over three (3)
height shall be allowed in any required front
yard.

feet in
or side

j
t

No detached accessory building or structure over three
(3) feet in height, excluding fences and railings, shall
be Located $rithin ten (10) feet of the principal building
or other accessory bultding.

No accessory building of structure over three (3) feet in
height, excluding fences and railings, shall be located
closer than five (5) feet to any side or rear property
line.
Any accessory buildlng or structure attached by a common
wall or permanent roof or foundation to t'he principal
building or structure must comply wit'h all setbacks for
the princlpal building or structure.

No accessory building or structure shall encroach upon or
interfere with the use of any adjoining property or
public right-of-vtay lncluding but not limited to streets,
alleys, and publlc and/or prlvate easements.

Any accessory use and,/or structure associated with a
conditional use shalt be allowed only after approval in
accordance with Section 4.300.

A conflict of interpretation concerning whether a use or
structure is an accessory use or structure shall be
resolved in accordance wlth the provisions of Section
4 .600,

CHAPTER 2
75

t.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 491



2.2O8 ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Yfhere ot.herwise permitted by the provisions of this Coder dr
adult "ni"rt.inmlnt 

businesi shall not be located within one
thousand (1000) feet of an existing orr previo.usly approved
adult entertainment business or within two hundred and fifty
(250) feet of publtc parks, c-hurches, schools, day care
centers, of residentially zoned property. . -Both distances
shall be measured in a straight line, without regard to
intervenlng structureSr from ttie closest structural wall of
the adult entertainment business to either the closest
structural wall of an existing or previously approved 1a"l!
entertainment business, or to fne ctbsest property line of aIl
impacted ProPerties.

CHAPTER 2
76

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 492



ji

2.209 OTHER I,AND USE ACTIONS

Proposed land use actions or activities for which specific
procedures -ano standards for applicatlon and review are not
j'ncludedinthisCode"nurrbes-u-bmittedtotheCommission,in
a form determined rv- ine city and with a fee pursuant to
section 3.301. The commisJion may recommend approval,
approvaf witn conditio";;-; denial bf the request to the

Council'TheCouncilmayapprove,approve.withconditions,or
deny the request, or maf eiec-t to refer the reguest to a more

ippioptiate approving authority'

!l

ir
ri
t. I

CHAPTER 2
77

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 493



2.300

2.301

2.301.01

2.30L.02

2.30 r..03

SUPPLEMENTARY STANDARDS

CLEAR VISION AREAS

A clear vislon area shall be malntained on the corners of
all property at the intersection of two (2) streetsr ot
a street and a railroad.

A clear vision area shall consist of a triangular area,
two (2) sides of which are lot lines measured from the
corner intersection of the street Lot lines for a
distance specified in this regulation; ot r where the lot
lines have rounded corners, the lot lines extended in a
straight Iine to a point of intersection, and so
measured, and the third side of which is a line across
the corner of the lot joining the nonintersect,ing ends of
the other two (21 sides.

A clear vi-sion area shall contain no planting, sight
obscurlng fence, wall, structure t ot temporary or
permanent obstruction exceeding two and one-half (2-L/2)
feet in height, measured form the top of the curb, or
where no curb exists, from the established street center
Iine grade; except that trees exceeding this height may
be located in this area, provided aIl branches and
foliage are removed to the height of seven (71 feet above
the ground.

2.3A1.04 The following requirements shalI govern clear vision
areas:

A

B

c

In a residentlal zone,
thirty (30) feeti ott
alley, ten (10) feet.

the mlnimum distance shall
at intersections lncluding

be
an

In commercial and industrial zones, the minimum distance
shall be fifteen ( 15) feet i or, €it intersections
including an alley, ten (10) feet; except that when the
angle of intersection between streets, other than an
aIIey, is less than thirty (30) degrees, the distance
shall be twenty-five (25) feet.

Where no yards are required, buildings may be constructed
within the clear vision area.

CHAPTER 2
78

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 494



2.302

2.302.O1

2 .303

2.303.01

Additional setbacks shaIl be provi_ded along st_reets^based on

the functionai-ciissiticationJ in Section vl of the Communitv

Development plan, Additional setbacks shall be measured at
;igha-ingres from the centerline of the street.

Classification Additional Setback

ADDITIONAL SETBACKS

GeneraIlY

Major Arterial
Minor Arterial
Collector
LocaI

FENCES, I|ALLS AND HEDGES

GeneraIlY

45
35
27

feet
feet
feet

24 feet'

Fences, walls, and hedges may. be l.ocated in any required yar9

or along the edge of ;""y v"io, subjec-t !o the maintenance of
crear vis j.on areas. a-?6nte, walr 6r hedge may not exceed six
(6)feetinheightinaresidentialzone.Fences,wallsor
hedges shall noL exceea a Gignt -of three and one-half (3-l/21
feer along rhe fronr p;";;;it llne or within a front vard
setback.

2.304 tOT SIZES AND DIMENSIONS

2.3A4.0L GenerallY

Ifalotortheaggregateofcontig-u.ous.lotsorparcels
recordedl ;; plattei;-;?i;t to the e-ffective date of this
code, has an area or'di*.nsion which does not meet the
requlrementsofthiscoa"'thelotofaggregatelotsmaybe
put ro .-,r." permriiea'outriglt, subject to the other
requirements of lne ion" in wni;n 'tne piopert-y is located;
except tnit a resideniiif use shalt Ue timitea to a single-
family dwelling r ot t"Tn" number of dwelling units consistent
with the density requirements of the zone. Howevex, no

dwelting shall n6 uuiit on a lot with less area than thirty-
two hundred (3,200) square feet'

2.304.02 Cul-de-Sacs

Minimum lot width at the building line on cul-de-sac lots may

be tess than that requireC in thls Code if a lesser width is
necessarv--i" pioviae for a minimum rear yard.

i,

i. l

CHAPTER 2
79

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 495



2.305 YARD REQUIREMENTS

2.305.01 Through Lots

On a through lot the front yard requirements of the zone in
which such a tot is located shall apply to each street
frontage.

2.305.02 Corner Lots

On a corner lot, or a reversed corner lot of a block oblong in
shape, the short street side nay be used as the front of the
lot, provided:

The front yard setback shall not be less than twenty five
(251 feet.

The side yard requirements on the long street side shall
conform to the front yard requirement of the zone in
which the building is located,

2.305.03 Yards

A Except for landscaping, every part of a required yard
shall be open and unobstructed from its lowest point to
the sky; except that awnings, flre escapes, open
stairways, and chlmneys may be permltted when so placed
as not to obstruct light and ventilation.

Where a side or rear yard is not required, and a
structure is not erected directly on the property llne,
it sha1l be setback at least three (3) feet.

2.305.04 Exceptions

Architectural features such as cornices, eaves, canopies,
sunshades, gutters, signs, chimneys, and flues may project up
t,o two and one-half (2-L/2) feet into a required yard.

CHAPTER 2
80

A

B

B

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 496



;I
]

sPrRES, ANTENNAS AND STMTLAR STRUCTURES

CHAPTER 2
8t

2.306

2 .305 .01

CHIMNEYS,

Heights

Exceptasotherwl.seprovlded,theheightlimitse-stablishedby
this code shall ,rot ufpit a,; chirnneys, stacks' .water tohters'

radio or -ielevision--"it"nnas, t6wers, windmills' grai'n

elevarorJ, ;ii";; ere"at"r penthouses, monuments, domes,

spJ.res, n6rfrlesr- nang-arsr-i"fut-heating devices, ot slmilar
struct'ures' under ot'""nttnirt"a (100) feet in height'

2.g06.02 Permit Required

Notwithstandingsection2.306.o:I,aconditionalusepermit
shall be required roi"arr -sucn structures that exceed the

height lirniiations of a zonins district, except as

specifically otherwis.-i.r*itt"a in that district.

2.305.03 ParaPets

Aparapetwallnotexceedingfour.(4)feetilheightmaybe
erecred above rhe n"iiiJJi'otil of 'the building on which it
rests '

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 497



2.307 DUAL USE OF REQUTRED SPACE

Except as otherwise providedr lro ]ot area, setbackr yard,
Iandscaped area, open space or off-street parking or loading
area, which is required by this Code for one use, shall be
allowed as the required lot area, yard, open spacer or off-
street parking or loading area for another use.

CHAPTER 2
82

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 498



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 499



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 500



CHAPTER 3

ADMINI STRATIVE PROCEDURES

Page
Section

3. 100

3.101

3.L02

3.103

3. 104

3. 105

3.200

3.20L

3.202

3.203

3.204

3.205

3.206

3.207

3 .208

3.300

3. 301

3. 302

3 .400

3.40t

3.402

3.403

3.404

GENERALLY

PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE

APPLICATTON MATERIALS

APPLICATION SUBMITTAL

AVAILABILITY

APPLICATION RESUBMI SS ION

PT'BLIC NOTICE AND HEARING

GENERALLY . .

FORM OF NOTICE

CONTENT OF NOTICE

PLANNING STAFF REPORTS

CONDUCT OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

NOTICE OF DECISION

REGISTRY OF DECISIONS

FINAL ACTION ON PERMIT OR ZONE CHANGE

APPLICATION FEES

FEES

EXCEPTIONS . .

APPEALS

GENERALLY

APPEAL DEADLINE

PETITION FOR REVIEW

COUNCIL ACTION

I

I
I

1

2

3

4

4

4

6

8

I

10

10

10

11

11

LL

L2

L2

L2

t3

13

I,

Lt

II.J

"./

Chapter 3 - Table of Contents Page t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 501



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 502



CHAPTER 3

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDT'RES

3.100 GENERALLY

3.I01 PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCE

Pre-application conferences shal1 be scheduled to provide

applicani" titn the inioirnational and procedural requirements
of this codei to exchange intormaiidn regarding applicable
policies, goals lrrd sian-aaras of the compiehensive Plani to
provide 'te-chnical 

""J- a."ign_ asststancd; and to identify
opportunit-ies and constrainti for a proposed land use action'
An appriilii;t applt-;! one .rime for all permits or zone

changes ;;;b;d rtr if d6velopment pro ject as determined in the

Pre-iPPlication conference'

3.102 APPLICATION MATERIALS

3.102.01 Form

Anyrequestforalanduseactionshallbemadeonforms
prescribJ ""4-proviae|Uy 

trre-cii{ and shall be prepared and

submltted in compf iince' otitn tiis Code. A land use

applicatior- shall - Ue reviewed against t-tre standards and

criteria effective at tne time of ipptication submittal'

3.L02.02 CoPies

To assist in determining the conptiance of proposed land use

actions with the comprehensive ilan and provisions of this
Code, applic""i" "ntif submit fifteen (15 copies of: the
completed application r"'',- with attachments or exhibits
specifyitg .rrh- if fustratlng the -proposed land use action; an

exist.ing conditions invent&y; tl: fl:fosed development plan;
and any suppremeniar materials, as requ-ired by section 4'L00'
Additional i-nformation *uv n.'requir6o at the discretion of
the CitY.

3.103 APPLICATION SUBMITTAL

3.103.01 Deadlines

Conpletedapplicationforms,applicationmaterials,andfees
must be submitted to the citt, and accepted as fuII and

complete as per Section 3.103, at teasC forty-five (45)

calendar days in advance of the commission meeting at which

CHAPTER 3
L

i

i"i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 503



the application is to be first considered, except as provided
by Section 7.301.01.

3.103.02 Acceptance

Within seven (71 calendar days of the date of initial
submission, the City sha1I determine whether the application
is complete and so notify the applicant in writing.
Incomplete applications will not be accepted by the City.
Incomplete applications shall be returned to the applicant
along with a written notification of the application's
deficiencies and aII materials and fees submitted. Provided,
however, that incomplete applications may be resubmitted when
the noted deficiencles have been corrected to the City's
satisfaction.

3. 104

3. 104.01

A.

AVAILABTLTTY

Public Inspection

Except as provided herein, all application materials to
be relied upon in public hearings on land use actions
required by this Code shall be available for public
inspecti.on twenty (20) calendar days in advance of the
lnitial hearing before the Commission or CouncLl. If two
(2') or more hearings are required on a land use action,
all application materials shall be available for public
lnspection at least ten (10) calendar days in advance of
the initial hearing before the Commission or Council.

B. Application materials shall be available to the public
for inspection at no cost. Copies of application
materials w111 be provlded to the publlc, upon request,
at a cost defined by the City's schedule of miscellaneous
fees and charges.

3.104.02 Continuance

If additional materials are provided in support of an
applicat,ion later than twenty (20) calendar days in advance of
the initial hearing before the Commission or Council t et
later than ten ( L0) calendar days in advance of the initial
hearing before the Commission or Council if two (2') or more
hearings are requiredr or if the City or the applicant fails
to meet any requirements of Section 3.200r dDy party to the
applicatlon, or party notlfled of the hearing as per Sectlon
3.202.03, may make request to the City, either verbally at the
initial hearing or in writing at any time before the close of
the hearing, for a hearing continuance. If, in the C5-ty's
determlnation, there is a valid basis for the continuance
request, said request shall be granted.

CHAPTER 3
2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 504



il

3. 105 APPLICATION REST'BMISSION

A tand use application denied in accordance' with this code'
shal1. ,oi u"'iccepted for resubmission for on-hundred eighty
(lg0) ""i"ra.i 

o"ir" foffowfng the. date of the denial, unless
the applicaiion nds neen sufflciently mo-diri99 to abrogate the
reason for denial, 

_." 
determined by lhe City. Arl

applicati""" resubmittfafter being denied in accordance with
this Code shall be iequfrea t'o-- plovide . 

ney application
materiarsl p"v-""ro rees, ina shal_l be subjec_t to the full
hearing and review proc""" i"grrired by this Code for the land
use action being considered'

ij
l

i,

;

t,
il
ri
tl
I -r

CHAPTER 3
3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 505



3.200 PI'BLIC NOTICE AND HEARING

3.201 GENERALLY

When required by this Code, the Council and/or the Commission
shall provide notice and conduct public hearings pursuant to
Section 3.200. The land use actions for which public hearings
are requlred are:

A. Zoning Map Amendments (Commission and Council)

B. Zoning Text Amendment,s (Commission and Council)

C. Conditional Uses (Commission only)

D. Variances (Commission only)

E. Site Plans (Commisslon only)

F. Interpretations of Similar Uses (Commission only)

G. Temporary Uses (Commission only)

H. Planned Unit DevelopmentS (Commission and Council)

I. Preliminary Plats of Subdivision and Land Partitions
(Commission only)

J. Annexations (Commission and Councll)

K. Other Land Use Actlons (Commission or Council)

L. Any laqd use action subject to public hearing as per this'
section shall be subJect to additional hearing at the
time any appeal or amendments to prior land use approvals
are considered by the Commission or Council.

M. Landmarks Alteration (Landmarks Board only)

3.202 FORM OF NOTICE

3.202.01 Newspaper Notice

Notices of all public hearings on land use actions required by
this Code shall be published in a nerirspaper of general
circulation within the City in each of the two (2) calendar
weeks prior to the initlal hearing before the Commission or
Councll.

CHAPTER 3
4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 506



3.202.02 Posted Notice

Noticesofallpublichearilgsgnlanduseactionsrequiredby
this Code shall be po"i"a-ny tl9 City i1-no fewer than five
(5) conspicuous rocaiions iitnin th; city' n9t less than

twenty (20) calendat ouy"- in advance of the initial hearing
befor6 dne'Commission or Council'

3.202.03 Mailed Notice

A.Forpublichearingsonzoningmapamendments,conditional
uses, variances, -site plansl pt-anned unit developments,
temporaryuses,'ino'tandpartitions,subdivisions'
annexations, randmiir", and other land use action
specific to a property 9r .group of pr-gperties, the
citt-;halI send riiiten -notice by regurar mail to ot'tners

of ;;;;-J.i';li rear properry ivitnin one hundred (100)

feet from tne prol"iiv's,tb3ecl to the land use action'

B.Exceptasotherwiseprovided.herein,writtennoticeto
property o!{ners "GfT 

be mailed at least twenty (201

calendar days in lavance of the initial public hearing
before the Commission or Council ' Tf two (2') or IoT9
hearings are ,.q"lrEd on a land use actlon, notlces shalI
be mailed at teasften (10) calendar days in advance of
the initial n"ariig-n.rJt" the commission or council'

c. For the purposes of maillng the wrltten notice, the names

andaddressesofthepropertyownersofrecord,asshown
onthemost'"""''tco,'ntyAssessor'srecordsinthe
po""""rion of tne"ciJv, snarr b used. written notice
shall also be mailed t6 homeowners associations when the
homeownersassoclationownsconmonpropertywithint|"
notificatio,.u'".andislistedintheCountyAssessor's
records

D.Forwrittennoticesrequiredbythis-Code,otherthan
written notices to propbrty owriers of record, the city
sn"ii- i"iv on the looiess provided by the persons so

notified. The'- ciiv shali not be responsible for
.r"tifYing addresses so Provided'

E.Ifazonechangeapplication-proposesto.changethezone
or iroperty *t i"n i-ncruoes a1-1 oi part of a. manuf actured
home park, the city 

-snar1 give written notice by first
class mail to eacn'existing-maifing address for tenants
of the manufactuiea-nome pirf- at least twenty (20) -days
bur nor more tnan- f";tt teol days before the date of the
first hearing on the aipiicitlot. such notice costs are
the responsififity of the applicant'

CHAPTER 3
5

t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 507



3.2O2.O4 Failure to Receive Notice

A The failure of a property owner or other party'to an
application to receive notice of a publlc hearing as
provided in Code Section 3.202.03 or to receive notj-ce of
continuances and appeals as provided by this Code due to
circumstances beyond the control of the City, including
but not llmited to recent changes in ownership not
reflected in County Assessors records, loss of the notice
by the postal servicer of, an inaccurate address provided
by the County Assessor or the party to the application,
shall not invalidate the applicable public hearing or
land use action. The City shall prepare and maintain
affLdavlts demonstratLng that publlc notLces were mailed,
published, and posted pursuant to this Code.

Persons who should have received notice of a proposed
land use action but can prove, to the City's
satisfaction, that notice was not received due to
circumstances beyond their controlr rn6y be permitted, at
the City's discret,ion, to exercise t,he right to appeal
the actlon as per Sectlon 3.400. AII appeals filed under
such conditions shall cite the circumstances resulting in
the non-receipt of the notice.

3.203 CONTENT OF NOTICE

3.203.01 Public Hearing Notices

B

Public hearing notices
information:

shall include the following

A. The nature of the application and proposed use(s).

B. A list of the applicable Code or Comprehensive Plan
criteria to be applied to the review of the proposed land
use action.

The location and street address of the property subject
to the land use action (if any).

The date, tlme, place, locatlon of the public hearing.

The name and telephone number of a local government
representative to contact for additional i.nformation.

The availability of aIl application materials for
lnspectlon at no cost r ot copies at reasonable cost.

D

E

F

fs The avallable of the Clty plannlng staff report tor
Lnspectlon at no costr or copies at a reasonable cost, Bt

CHAPTER 3
6

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 508



Ieast seven (71 calendar days in advance of the hearing'

H. r #shF ..13e;{.tl i,rdeinen^tss, ifor'. 3h€. rhe
hat .

an ;:ISsuei t9/F:Ilrlhti jx f.icient

i:ssue to
ruaaa Bo'Ara of 'APPeaf F ( LiUBA):' i

CHAPTER 3
7

i

L

i
I

I
L.,

i

I

ri
LJ

il
tJ

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 509



3.204 PLANNING STAFF REPORTS

Recommended findings of fact '.rrd conditions of approval for
each land use action shall be made in writing 'in a City
plannLng staff reportl Said staff report shall be published
seven (7') calendar days in advance of the initial required
public hearing before the Commission or Council. Copies shall
be provided to the applicant and the Commission or Council no
later than seven (7) calendar days in advance of the scheduled
publlc hearlng. Staf,f reports shall be available to the
public for inspection at no cost. Copies of the staff report
shall be provided to the public, upon request' at a cost
defined by the City's schedule of miscellaneous fees and
charges.

3.205 CONDUCT OF PI,'BLIC HEARINGS

3.205.01 Hearing Disclosure Statements

The fotlowing information or statements shall be verbally
provided by the Commission Chairperson or the Mayor t ot his or
her designee, at the beginning of any public hearin€l on a land
use action:

A The findings of fact and criteria specified by the Code
that must be satisfied for approval. of the land use
action being considered by the Commission or Council.

That public testimony should be limited to addressing
said findings of fact and criteria r ot to other City or
State land use standards which the persons testifying
believe apply to the proposed land use action.

That failure to raise an issuer or failure to raise an
issue with sufficient.specificity so as to provide th€;
Cityr'applicant, or other parties to the application with
a reasonable opportunity to respond, will preclude appeal
on said issue to the Council or to the State Land Use
Board of Appeals (LUBA).

The rights of persons to request, as per this Code, that
a hearlng be continued or that the hearing record remain
open.

B.

c

That all persons testifying shall be deemed parties to
the application, and must provide their nam€! and fuII
mailing address if they wish to be notified of
continuances, appeals, or other procedural actions as
required by this Code.

CHAPTER 3
I

D

E

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 510



3.2O5.02 Persons TestifYing

Any personr whether the 'applicant, a person notified of the
p"irfi" hearing as per Seclion 3.202' the general public, .ot
lhe authoriized representative'of any of the foregoing persons,
may testify at a public hbaring on a Land use action.
te3timony miy be made verbally or in writing. The applicant,
the applicant's representative t ot any person so testifying,
or thli person's authorized representative, shall be deemed a
party to tne application, and shall be afforded aII rights of
ippeiL allowed- by this Code and the laws of the" State of
Oregon.

3.205.0'3
A.

B

Hearing Record
Unless the hearing,is continued or an additional hearing
scheduled, any person testifying may reguest, verbally or
in writing before the conclusion of the iniLlal hearing
before the Comrnission or Council-, that the record remain
open fon an. additional seve'n' (7), calendar days.' Such
requests shall be granted. llhe Commission ,or Council
snatt noL take.final action on a land use application
iltii tne nearing record is closed . \ /

/\
When a hearing record remains open, then any person may
submit nev, evidence or testimony, or raise ne\d issued
relating to any of the new evidence or testlmony. The
City snitt not be responsible for notifying all parties
to -an application of the new evidence presented under
such circumstances.

If, after the close of the final hearing before the
Commj-ssion or COuncil .or the close of the hearing record
as per Section 3.205.03A, the City reopens said hearing
or -record for any reason, then all Parties to the
application as per Section 3:205.02 shall be so notified,,
either verbally if the reopening occurs at the same
Commission or Council meeting at which the hearing r^ras

conducted or in writing if the reopening occurs at a
later date. Said notice shall indicate the time and
place of the reopened hearing, the reason for the
ieopening, and provide for a reasonable opportunit'y to
submit further written or verbal testimony-

3.205.04 Ex parte Contacts
Ex parte contacts with a member of the Commission or Council
stralt not invalidate a final decision or action of the
Commission or Council, provided that the member receiving the
contact indicates the substance of the content of the ex parte
communication and of the right of parties to rebut said
content at the first hearing where action will be considered
or taken.

CHAPTER 3

c

9

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 511



3.206 NOTICE OF DECISION

Within seven (?) calendar daYs of, a
Commlssion or Council, the City shall
writing or said action. This notice
the teims and conditlons of approval
the applicant's rights of appeal''

3.2O7 REGISTRY OF DECISTONS

The:Clty shall maintain a registry of all land use actions
taken in the preceding twelv-e (Lzl months. This registry
shall be kept 6n file in tne City Recorder's office and shall
be made aviilable to the public for inspection at' no cost'
Copies of the registry shall be provided to the public, upon
reluest, dt a 'cost defined by the City's schedule of
miscellaneous fees and charges.

3.208 FINAL ACTION ON.PERMIT OR ZONE CHANGE

Except for plan and land use regulatlon amendments or adoption
of new regullations that must bb submitted t,o the Director of
the StatJ Department of Land Conservation and Development
under ORS Lgi.G10(1), final action on a permit, appeal, or
zone change application shalI be taken within one hundred and
twenty 1{ZO) 

- -days of the application submittal. The one
hundred bna.tweniy (120) days may be extended for a reasonable
period of time at-tire requelt of the applicant. An applicgnt
ihose application does not receive firral consideration within
one hundred and twenty (120) days after the application was
accepted by the Clty may seek a wrlt of mandamus to compel
issulnce of the permit or zone change or a determination that
approval would violate the City's Comprehensive PIan or land
use regulations.

land use action bY the
notify the aPPlicant. in
of decision shall list
or denial, and exPlain

CHAPTER 3
10

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 512



3.300 APPLICATION FEES

"ffi@; 1.'.'i .'',ift$$$ffi'

of this Code.

3.302

can

Feesforlanduseactionsaresetbythe''Scheduleof
Development reis;, aagnt.{ ilv n""or,rtr.on or the councl1. This

schedule is incLuded nerefriii'appenaiT J for the purposes of
tnformatlon, ;;;-i; deened ioin. ilparate from and independent

it

i.cation ees shall be paid

CHAPTER 3
11

ony'

st bY th-q

ity uPon

,ufiEli8&'

1

t

-..1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 513



3.400

3.401

3.401.01

A.

B.

APPEALS

GENERALLY

Basis of Appeal

Any issue which may be the basis for appeal of a land use
actlon to the Councl\ or to the State Land Use Board of
Appeals (LUBA) shal,I be raised not later than the close
of the final hearlng on the proposal before the City, or

,'within seven (7) calendar days as per Section 3.205.03.

Failure to raise an ls.sue, or fallure !o ral.se an issue
wi.th su,fflcient specifieity so as to:provide the City,
applicant, or other parties to the application with a
reasonable opportunity to respond, w.tlI preclude appeal
on said issue to the Councll o,r to tUBA. Any aggrieved
party appealing a land use acti-on must exercise the right
of petition for review to the Council prior to making any
appeal to LUBA, except as provided in Section 3.401.03.

3 .40t .A2 Appeal Eli.gibility

Except as otherwise permitted herein, only persons who were a
party to the action being appealed, ab defined by Section
3,205.02r; d,Ee eligible to file for a petition for review by
the Council.j If the potent,ial appellant is judged not td be
a party to the action, or the issue(s) that are the basis of
the appeal were not raised 'as per Section 3.401.01r ds
determined by the City, the Council shall refuse to hear the
appeal and direct that the appellant be so notified in
writing.

3.401.03 Exception

',If the City either takes a land use action without providing
a hearlng as required by thls Code, or takes a land use action
which ls substantially different t,han indicated in notice of
the proposed action as per Section 3.203.01, an aggrieved
party il6y, as provided by the Iaw of the State of Oregon,
appeal directly to State Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA).

3 .402 APPEAL DEADLINE

Land use actions taken pursuant to this Code shall be final
unless a petltion for review Ls filed with the City Recorder
not more than twenty-one (21) calendar days after the date on
which the Commission or Council took final act,ion on the land
use application. In the event the aggrieved party is the
aoolicant, the twentw-onc (21) calendar davs shall be counted
-5F-- \-- t

from the date when written notice of the action has been

CHAPTER 3
T2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 514



mailed to the address shown on the application'

3.403 PETITION FOR REVIEW

Everypetitionforreviewshallincludethedateanda
description of the land use action, including adopted findlngs
of fact, a statement "i n.* ln" p.iit'ioner is aggrieved by the
action, the specific gi;""d" iel.ied upon in requesting a

review, and a fee pursriant to section 3-.301- The record of
the fand use actiori shall be considered'

3.404 COI,'NCIL ACTION

i1he review of the appealed f?14 use action shall include a

; public hearing cona,riieJ-fy the gt"".if ;at 
^w-hich 

time alL
parties io-in" actionr- * li.t- Section 3'205'02' may present
old evidence or any aiOiii|naf evidence' Public notice and

hearing procedures r"i-ipp."rg. shall be identical to the
procedurJs ,rsea in initi.riv taking the land use action which
is being-;p;;;i"a. The couicil may act to affirm, reverse'
referoramendtheactionbeingreviewed.Theactionofthe
Council shatl be fitrJ, """.p{ 

in-sofar as further appeal to
the state Land use goald;t dppears (LUBA) may be alrowed by

the law of the State of Oregon'

!
t

.)

I

)

CHAPTER 3
13

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 515



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 516



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 517



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 518



CHAPTER 4

PLANNING PROCEDURES

Section
Page

.1

.9

.9

.9

.10

. 11

. 11

. tl

. L3

. 13

.15

.L7

.L7

. L8

. 19

.19

.19

.19

4.100

4.200

4.20L

4.202

4.203

4.300

4.301

4.302

4 .400

4.40L

4 .402

4. s00

4.501

4.502

4.500

4.601

4.602

4.603

APPLICATION CONTENT

PI,AN AMENDMENTS . .

INITIATION OF AMENDMENTS

AMENDMENT PROCEDURES

REVIEW CRITERIA

CONDITIONAL USES

GENERALLY

PERMIT APPROVAL

VARIANCES

GENERALLY

ADMINI STRATIVE VARIANCE

TETIIPORARY USES

GENERALLY

PERMIT APPROVAL

INTERPRETATION OF SIMILAR

GENERALLY

APPLICATION CONTENT

APPROVALS

usEs

rj

ii

ChaPter 4 Table o f Content,s
Page L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 519



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 520



4.100 APPLICATION CONTENT

section 4.100 sets forth the application contents generarly

required'i;;in" r"rri.i-"r-nignri"a-iana use activities' The

ciry Manager or lri" ;; Gf a6signee 
- rs authorized to waive

information requirements that are clearry no! material or

retevanr to the specifi;pi"J*"t u"ittg-made'
these requirements, Cn-"f,t-.t-"=S, A, iia'l oJ this Code must be

reviewed for other appficable requirements '

CHAPTER 4

PLANNING PROCEDURES

INDEX

REFERENCE NT'IIBER

TYPE OF PROPOSED
DEVELOPMENT

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
I

Annexation
Plan MaP Amendment
Variance
Conditional Use
Minor Partition
SuHivision/Ma j or Partition
Planned Unit DeveloPment
Site PIan

CHAPTER 4
L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 521



TYPE OF INTORMATION

TTPE OF APPLICATION
(See fndex Above)

INFORMATION ITEM

EXISTING CONDITIONS INVENTORY

General lnformation 1-8

L-8

L-8

A tax rnap showlng property
within 300 feet with scale
( 1"=100' or 1"= 2OO') north
point, date and legend.
A current prellminary title
report or lot book search.
Name, address and phone numbers

Citizen Involvenent L-8

of all owner s and icants.

A Iist of tax lots, owners and
their addresses within t,he
following dlstances from the
property subject to a land use
action for which a public
hearing is required: WhoIly or
partially with the UGB = 100
feet; Outside UGB, not in farm
or forest zone = 25O feet;
Outside UGB, in farm or forest
zone = 500 feet.

Growth Management 1-8 Vicinity Map of
showing City limits
Growth Boundary.

property
and Urban

Land Use 1-8

L-8

1-8
1-8

1-8

Acreage of propetEy, lot lines
and dimensions.
City and County zoning
designations.
Maximum allowable density.
Exlstlng Iand use lncluding
nature, s5.ze and location of
existing structures within 300
feet.
Map location, purpose,
dimenslons and ownershlp of
easements.

CHAPTI:R 4
2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 522



Environmental Resources
& Hazards

TopograPhY maP showing 5 foot
contours.
;a-s 

- soir rnf ormation MaP the
following:
1) Rreas with severe soil
limitations for buildings'
ioia" and streets, and the

"ui"i. 
of the li'mitation

including weak foundation'
;i;F;- - above 108, slide
hazards, etc.'i 

r 
--ai""" with adverse soil

"ir.ti.t"ristics 
including rapid

r"":oir, high erosion hazard
and Poor natural drainage'
gt-'egticultural caPabilitY
classes.
;i;;a- Plains MaP all-t[[-year 

f lood Plain and

floodwaY lines.
Natural Drainage - MaP streams'
wetlands, Ponds, sPrings and

drainage Patterns '
sig"iri"u;tt vegetation - MaP

;;;;;;i locatibn , slze and

specles of trees'
Distinctive natural areas
itrOi."t. views, historS'c sites'
rock out-croppings, etc'
Srn and wind exposures - MaP

4-8

2-8

2-8

2-8

2-8

2-8

2-8
neral orientation'ge

Environmental QuaI'itY

Recreational Resources

Air, Water, Land Pollution'
Nolse sources Indicate the
Iocation of existing -uses

"ioa".ing 
significant levels of-uit, *iter-r rand or noise

3-8

3-8

po Ilution.

Existing Facilities MaP the
locatioi, slze and distance to
nearest Park and o ens ces.

TransPortation 1-8

1-8

CHAPTER 4
3

Street Locations and
Pirnensions - MaP centerline and
pi""*""t tocations and
iignt"-of-waY within 300 feet'
itittti" Volumes Indicate

"*i"ti"g 
volumes for all

streets on and within 300 feet'

i-i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 523



2-8

3-8

3-8

3-8

3-8

Access Points - Indicate access
polnts to property wlthin 300
feet.
Street, Condition - Map general
condiLion of streets within 300
feet of property.
Street Improvements Indicate
any committed street
lmprovement projects within 300
feet and proJected completion
date (if known).
Public Transit Indicate
routes and stops within 300
feet.
Bikeways/Pathways Map
exlsting routes within 300
feet.

lfater 1-8

3-8

1-8

Existing Facilities -Map
Iocations, sizes and distances
to water mains.
Existing Services Describe
service levelsr cdpacity,
pressure and fire flow
characteristics of water mains.
Planned Improvements - Indicate
sizes and locations of planned
J.mprovements.

Sewer L-8

1-8

t-8

Existing Facilities Map
locations, sizes and distances
to the nearest sehrers.
Existing Services Describe
flow characLeristics, capacity
and condltion of sebrers.
Planned Improvement Indlcate
sizes and locations of planned
capital improvements.

Drainage 3-8

3-8

CHAPTER 4

Existing Facilities Map
locations, sizes and distances
to drainage facilities or
natural drainage-brays .
Existing Service -Describe
capacity and condition of on-
site and downstream drainage
courses and facilities.

4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 524



3-8

3-8

Runoff AnalYsis Indicate SCS

soil PermeabititY ratings '
Plann-ed ImProvements - Indicate
;i;;; and iocations of Planned

nts.

Private Utilities 3-8 Existing
Services
availabilitY

Facilities and
Describe

of utilities.

3-8 Existing Facilities and
SchooLs Services Indicate location'

type, enrollment' capacitY and

distance to neare st schools.
3-8 Planned ImProveme nts Describe

lanned improvements.p

General Information

Citizen Involvement

Land Use

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

1-8 A Pl

1-8

1-8

1-8

5

2-8

1-8

CHAPTER 4
5

the Proposed land use or
Change , showing Properties
within 300 feet, wi th scale
appropr iate to Proj ect sLze,
north Po int, date and legend.
Name of DeveloPment -Indicate
name of ProPosed develoPment.
VicinitY maP showing ProPertY
wtthin one-half m ile.

PLAN

at or Plan maP dePicting

utilities, schools, etc.

Describe contacts with citizens
oi-ig"tt"i"" including the.Fire
oi"iii"t, Pubric and Private

Proposed Lots - MaP lot lines'
diminsions, average and minimun
lot sizes, blotk and lot
numbers.
Setbacks Indicate all
setbacks.
Buildable Acres Indicate net
buildable acres.

r.l

.j

lr
l-, l

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 525



3-8

2-8

2-8

Proposed Land Use Indicate
the location of all proposed
Iand uses. Show relationship
to existing land use to be
retained. Provide tables with
total acres, densities,
dwelling units, floor area,
percentage distribution of
total slte acreage by use, and
percentage dwelllng unit
dlstrlbutLon by dwelling type.
Map location of proposed
structures.
Proposed Easements Map
location, purposes, and widths.

Environmental Resources
& Hazards Topography - Map topography at

2 foot contours.
Landscaping Plan - Provide plan
in accordance with Sec. 5.200.
Streams, Ponds, Wetlands
Indicate location and any
measures to avoid environmental
degradation.
Natural Hazards - Provlde soll
analysis by a registered Soils
Engineer or Geologist and any
measures protecting against
hazards.
Slgnificant natural areas
Indicate how areas are
protected and preserved.
Energy Conservation - Indicate
relationship of site design to
sun and wind exposure.

5-8

5-8

4-8

5-8

3-8

5-8

Environmental Quality Provide certification by a
Registered Engineer that the
proposed uses meet or exceed
City environmental performance
standards.

4-8

Recreation Resources 4-8

5-8

Describe how proposal meets
park and open space needs and
requirements.
Map proposed park and open
space areas and describe
maintenance provisions .

CHAPTER 4
6

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 526



TransPortation 5-8

5-8

5-8

5-8

3-8

5-8

s-8

5-8

Proposed Facilities -Provide

"""-"iir circuration Plal
;;;;i;; rocation, widths and
directlon of existing and
piop"""a streets, bicYcle and

i.aE"iti"" ways ?nd. -transitroutes and facilities'
o"""ribe the ProPosed
ciicufation PIan's conformitY
i; ChaPter vr, CommunitY
DeveloPment Plan'
i"ai..t" estimated curve and

luil- iadii and tYPicaI street
cross sections '
i*"ig"".v Access show
emergency access'
Lot Access - Show the location
;il 

-;it; of accesses, sight
Ai"t."""s and anY fixed-objects
on collectors or arterials'
i"t"t" Rlghts-of-WaY - Indicate
ii"i""""s from Property lines
io street centeilines and
oavement.
ii.ifi" volumes rndicate
!*i"ii"g and future traffic
volumes.
;;;;i Prof iles - MaP -Prof 

iles

""O 
i"aicate cuts and fills for

r"iO" with grades of 15t or
more.
Parklng
Iocation,
off-stree
Ioading a

Indicate the
numbe r and size of

t park ing spaces and
nd maneuverr areas.

Water 5-8 Propos ed Facilities Indicate
the location and s ize of the
proposed water distribution
system and fire hYdrants.

5-8 Proposed Facilities - Indicate
lh;" location and size of the
pioposeA sewage collection

Sewer

systems.

s-8 ProPosed
proposed
conveyance system.

Facilities - Indicate
runoff control andDrainage

CHAPTER 4
7

I
I

l-. i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 527



Private Utilities 5-8 Lighting Plan Indicate
Iocation, height, and sizes of
street lighttng structures and
their connection points to
por.rer Iines.

Economic Development 4-8

4-8

4-8

Industrial and Commercial Uses
- fndicate number of ne$r Jobsto be created, the ratio of
employees to site acreage,
anticipated capital investment
and tax impact.
Commercial Uses Provide
evidence of loca1 markets for
the service or product to be
marketed.
Residential Uses Provide
evidence of local markets for
type of housi nq proposed.

Structural Design
and Construction

I

CI{APTER 4

I

I

Proposed Structures Provide
architectural sketches and
elevatl.ons of al1 proposed
st,ructures as t,hey will appear
upon completion.
Construction Materials
Provide a description of
external structural design
including materials, textures
and colors. Describe
compatibility with other uses
and natural features.
Energy Conservation Show the
relationship of building
orientation and sun and wind
exposures. Describe how
structures address energy
conservation.
Hazard Protection/Resources
Preservation Show how
proposed structures relate to
natural features and hazards.
Signs - Indicate the locat.ions,
sizes and design of proposed
signs.
SoIid Waste Storage -Indicate
the location and design or
storage facilities.
Privacy - Describe how privacy
is protected.

I

I

I

I

8

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 528



4.200 PLAN AMENDMENTS

4.20L INITIATION OF AMEND!'TENTS

An amendment to the city zonLng Ytq ?r text of the

Compreherr"i*r. plan .J"--i" - itriii"t"A by the Council '
commission, or an orrr"itr property within the city'

4.202 AMENDMENT PROCEDURES

4.202.0t Zoning Map or Text Amendment

A. Application - An application for a Zoning Map or text
amendment shall Ue--on forms Jiovioea.by-the city and

shall be accomp.,.r.a by a ree f,ursuant to section 3.301..

B.PublicNotice_Publicnoticeshallbegivenpursuantto
Section 3'200'

Construction Measure - Describe
;;- - eioslon, slltation and

""i"" 
.oif f be controlled durlng

construction.
fencing and Screening
iili;;ie the location, size and

e;;iil of screening incruding
i.""I"g, berms and walls'

CommissionReview.TheCommisslonshatlconductapublic
hearing on tnJlropoieA. ame-nAment and provide a report
and recommenaJti-on'to the c;;;;ii' the decision of the

commissron sniii-in"r"ae findings as reguired in section
4 .203.

Council Review - Upon receipt of- a report and

recommenoation from tne corn*i""iot, the council shall
conduct a puu-iic hearing. 

-Th;-council's decision shalI
include f f naings as req,iit.O 

-itt 
Section 4 '203 ' Approval

of the t"g.,""t';htlitl itt tnt form of an ordinance'

8

I

c

D

CHAPTER 4
9

i..

i.j

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 529



4.203 REVIET| CRTTERIA

4.203.01 Text Amendment

An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be
based upon a need for such an amendment as identified by the
Council or the CommLssion. Such an amendment shall be
conslstent $rith the intent of comprehensive Plan, and with
all other provisions of the PIan and this Code, and with any
applicable State or City statutes and regulat,ions.

4.2O3.O2 Map Amendment

An amendment to t,he city zoning Map may be granted, provided
that the proposal satisfies all applicable requS.rements of the
Comprehensive Plan and this Code, and that:
A. The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals andpolicies of the Comprehensive plan.

There is an existing and demonstrable need for the
partlcular u6es and zoning proposed, taking into account
the importance of such uses to the economy of the City,
the existing market demand for any goods or services
which such uses will provide, the presence or absence and
location of other such uses or similar uses in the area,
and the general public good.

The proposed amendment is timely, considering the pattern
of development in the area, surrounding land usesr dny
changes which may have occurred in the nelghborhood or
community to warrant the proposed amendment, and the
availability of utilities and services to serve alIpotential uses in the proposed zoning distrtct.
Other lands in the City already zoned for the proposed
uses are either unavairabre or unsuitable for immediate
development due to location, size or other factors.

CHAPfER 4
L0

B

t-

D

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 530



4.300

{.301

4.301.01

CONDITIONAL USES

GENERALLY

Authorization

Usespermittedinzoningdistrictsasconditionalusesmaybe
esrabrished, enlarged;'';-:;.ii"i"a-6v a.uth.=izjrtion of the

Commission in accordair""-titn the s€andards and procedures

established in Section'A'ltiO'- If thtsite or other conditions

are found to be intpito-p-tiut". -l:: 
the use requested' the

commission may deny tn-e cbnditionar use application'

4.301.02 Changes In Condltional Uses

Changesinuse'expansionorcontractionofanon-conforming
use, "tri"trril'or "rtl-r--ot 

.tt"tatLon of structures or uses

crassified as condiriJriai ""&, thJ either existed prior to

the effective date or-itris code ot-t"t" established pursuant

to Section 4.300 sha'I;;nft; to the-iequirements of Section

4 .300 if the proposed changes t""1o 
- 6h"ttg" the value of

existi-ng improvements bV fiffy percent (50t) '

4.301.03 APPlication And Fee

AnapplicationforaConditional.UsePermit(cUP)shallbe
f lled wlrh rhe city .il";;;;mpaniea- nv the appropriate f ee

pursuanr-; 6""ri"" :lg0r. rhe uppiijint.is -resnonsible 
for

submiftinq a comptete ;;;ii..tlgf i1ti.t addresses alt criteria
of Secrioi 4.300.r,a J[f,.i-ippficaUie sections of this Code'

4.3O2 PERMIT APPROVAL

4.302.01 Commission Action

TheCommissionshallconductapublichearingpursuantto
sectlon 3.200 and tur.--i"tion to approver- approve with
conditions, or deny tn"--"ppri"ation. tn6 commission decision
shatl include .ppropJ"i-.=littdings of fact as required by

section 
';3;' 

'oi-,- an-a an ef fective date '

4.302.02 Fina1 Site PIan

Upon apProval of a conditional gse by tl" Conmission' the

applicani shalr prepi;;-; final "iii, 
plan. for review and

approval pursuant.to s".ti"n 5.100.--TG iinar slte plan shall
lnclude any revisions'oi &n"r featur"" ot conditions required

by tn" -i6r.ission .t the time of the approval of the

conditional use'

CHAPTER 4
11

li
i-i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 531



4.302.03 Findings Of Fact

No conditional use shall
following is found:

be granted unless each of the

Provislons for lmprovement of public facillties incruding
sanitary sevrers, storm drainage, water lines, fire
hydrants, street improvements, including curb and
sidewalks, and other above and underground utilities.
Increased required lot slzes, yard dimensLons, street
widthsr and off-street parking and Ioading facillties.

CHAPTER 4
L2

A.

B.

c.

D.

E.

4.302.O4

AIl public facilities and services to the proposed use,
including but not limited to sanitary sewers, water,
t,ransportation access, storm drains, electrical
dlst,rlbution, park and open space and publlc safety are
adequate; or that the constructlon of lmprovements needed
to provide adequate services and facilities is guarantood
by binding agreement between the applicant and the City.
Proposed use conforms to applicable zone standards.
There is a demonstrable public need for the proposed use.

The publlc need is best served by allowing the
conditional use for the particular piece of property inquestion as compared to other available property.

Surrounding property will not be adversely affected by
the use, or that the adverse effects of the use on the
surrounding uses, the neighborhood or the City as a whole
are sufficiently ameliorat,ed by the conditions imposed.

Additional Conditions

fn p-ermitting a conditional use or modification of an existing
conditional use, additional conditions may be appried toprotect the best interests of the surrounding properties and
nelghborhoods, the city as a whore, and the intent of section4.300. These conditions may incrude but are not rimited tothe following:
A. Mitigation of air, landr or water degradation, noise,glare, heat, vibratLon, or other condltions which may beI-nJurious to public health, saf ety or welf are in

accordance with environmental performance standards.
B

c.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 532



D.

E

4.302.05

Requirements for the location' number' type ' sLze or area

of vehicurar .t.""" points-, sign-s, tighting' land:"?P1tg'
screening, b"ii;;;g- heiglit a'na coverage' and building
securitY.

Submittal of final site p1ans, Ian! - dedications
money-in-lieu "f 

parks oi other improvements'
suitable security guaranteeing conditional
requirements.

Time Limits

or
and
use

!

t

Authorizationofaconditionaluseshallbevoidafterone(1)
year o, E,r"n lesser time as the approval T.y_specify unless

substantial constructi;;, in the -iity's determination, has

taken pfice. The Commission may exterid authorization for an

additional period, ,roi io exceed one ( t ) year' upon a written
requesr frdm the uppii.irrc showing da6euate cause for such

extens.ion, inA pa'm-e-nt of an extension application fee as per

Section 3.301.

4.302.06 Revocation

Any departure from approved -ql"tt" not authorized by the

Commission shaIl be 
_'6ause for revocation of applicable

buildingandoccupancy-permit?:.Furthermore'Lfinthe
city,s oelerminationl'a--condiiion or conditions of cuP

approvar are not or .irrrrot be satisf ied, the cuP approval , ox

buildingandoccupttt"y--p"rmits'shallberevoked'
4.400 VARIANCES

4.401 GENERALLY

4.401.01 Authorization

TheCommj.ssionmayauthorj-zevariancesfromt,hestandard
require*"rrtJ of this C;d;where it can be shown that, owing to
special -|[J -unusual circumstances related to a specific
property, strict- appficaiitn of this Code would cause undue or
unnecessaryhardship.Novariancesshallbegrantedtoallow
theuseofpropertyforapurposenotauthorizedwithinthe
zone in which the pr"p.""d ""g is located. rn granting a

variance, the Commissi-Jn-m& aitacn conditions which it finds
necessarytoprotectthebestinterestsofsurrounding
propertils -"rra neighborhoods, and otherwise achieve the

Purposes of this Code'

CHAPTER 4
13

i
I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 533



4.4O1.O2 Approval Criteria
No variance request shall be granted unless each of the
following is found:

A. Exceptlonal and extraordlnary cj.rcumstances apply to the
property which do not apply generally to other properties
in the same zone or vicinity, and result from lot size or
shape, legally existing prior to the effective date of
this Code, topography, or other circumstances over which
the applicant has no eontrol.
The variance is necessary for the preservation of a
property right of the applicant substantially the same as
owners of other property in the same zone or vicinity.

c. The authorization of the variance will not be materially
detrLmental to the purposes of thls Code t ot to other
property in the zone or vicinity in which the property is
located, or otherwise conflict with the goals, objectives
and policies of the Comprehensive PIan.

D The hardship is not self-imposed and the variance
requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate
the hardship.

E. The hardship does not arise from a violation of this
Code.

4.AOL. 03 Application Content

An application for a variance shall be filed with the City and
accompanied by a fee, as determined by Sectlon 3.301. The
application shall be accompanied by a site plan, drawn to
scale, showing the dimensions and arrangement of the proposed
development. The applicant is responsible for submitting a
complete application which addresses the review criteria of
Section 4.400 and other applicable sections of this Code.
Except for variances authorized under Subsection 4.402.0L,
variance requests shaIl be subject to public notice and
hearing as per Section 3.200

4.401.04 Time Limits

Authorizatlon of a variance shall be void after one (1) year
or such lesser time as the approval may specify unless
substantial construction in the City's determination has taken
place. The Commission may extend authorization ior di-r
addltional period not to exceed one (1) year upon a written
request from the applicant showlng adequaLe cause for suclr
extension, and paynent of an extension application fee as per

CHAPTER 4
L4

B

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 534



Section 3.301.

4.401.05 Revocation

Any departure from approved _plans not authorized by the
Commission shall be -iause for revocation of applicabLe
building and occupancy permits. Furthermore if, in the city's
determin"iio", a 

-condition or conditions of variance approval
are not or cannot be ""ii"fi"a, 

the variance or building and

occupancy permits, shall be revoked'

4.402 ADMINISTRATIVE VARIANCE

4.4O2.01 Authorization to grant or deny variances to on-site
requirements.

The City Manager or his or her designee Tay authorize a

variance from the standards of this Code relating to
dimensional and on-site requirements, except lot area'
Providedl-hot"*r"t, that no vaiiance under this section shall
be greater-than z'* of the requirement from which the variance
is sought

4.402.02 Criteria for variances granted under section 4'401'03

A. rn the case of a yard or other dimensional variance,
except, lot area, tlie applicant shall show the approval
will result in:
1. More efficient use of the site
2. preservation of natural featuresr where appropriate
3. Adequate provisions of tight' air and privacy to

adjoining ProPertiesi and
4. Adequate access

B. In the case of a variance to the dimensional standards
for off-street parking spaces or the minimum required
number of off-street pirfing spaces, the applicant shall
show that approval wirr provide adequate off-street
p.riiitl- itt i6t.tion to user demand. The following
factorS may be considered in granting such an exception:

1. Special characteristics of users which indicate low
dlmand for off-street parking (e.9. 1o9t income,
elderly) .

2. Opportunities for joint use of nearby off-street
parking facilities.

3. Availability of public transit; and

CHAPTER 4
t5

i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 535



Natural features of the site (topograPhY'
vegetatlon and drainage) which would be adversely
afiected by applicati.on of required parking
standards.

4.402.03 Procedures for Variances Granted Under Section 4.402.O1

A. An adminlstrative variance shall be decided by the City
Manager or his or her designee unless an individual
entitled to notice under subsection (B) requests a
hearing. If a hearing is requested, the proposal shall
be decided by the Planning Commission. The application
fee shatl be less than for a variance requested under
Section 4.401.0t., and as specified in the City fee
schedute. If a hearing is requested, the variance must
be processed as a regular varl-ance and requires the-full
fee-. The admlnistratLve variance fee shall be credited
against the regular variance fee in such circumstances.
If the applicant then decides to withdraw the reguest,
the original fee is non-refundable.

The City shall notify the applicant and all property
owners within one hundred (L00) feet of the proposal by
mailed notice. Any property owner or person present may
present written comments tb the City which address th6
ielevant criterla and standards. Such comments must be
received by the City within ten (10) calendar days from
the date on the notice.

c. If a property owner or a person residing or doing
buslneis withln the one hundred (100) feet of the
proposal presents written comments as described in
iubiection (B), that individual may also request that a
public hearing be held by the Planning Commission on the
proposal. A iequest for a hearing must be submLtted Ln
writing and received within ten (10) calendar days from
the date on the notice.

If no publtc hearlng Ls requested as descrlbed ln
subsection (C), the Manager shall make a decision based
on the information presented, and shalI issue a
development permit if the applicant has complied with all
the relevant varlance requirements. The applicant may
appeal this decision to the Planning Commission.

If a pubtic hearing is requested as provided in
subsection (C) or the Manager's decision is appealed as
provided in subsection (D), the hearing shall be
conducted pursuant to Section 3.200 of the Code.

CHAPTER 4
16

4

B

D

E

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 536



F The decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed
to the City Council by a party to the hearing in
accordance with Section 3.400 and shall be a review of
the record supplemented by oral arguments relevant to the
record presented by the parties.

4.500 TEMPORARY USES

4.501 CENERALLY

4.501.01 Purpose

Approval may be granted for structures or uses which are
temporary or seasonal in nature, such as temporary real estate
offices and construction offices, provided such uses are
consistent with the intent of the underlying zoning district
and comply with other provisions of thls Code.

4.501.02 Application And Fee

An appllcatlon for a t,emporary use shall be filed wlth the
City and accompanied by the fee specified by Section 3.30L.
The applicant is responslble for submitting a complete
application which addresses all review criteria of Section
4.500. Temporary use permits shall be subject to t,he public
notice and hearing requirements of Section 3.200.

CHAPTER 4
L7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 537



4.502 PERMIT APPROVAL

4.502.01 Findings Of Fact

A temPorary use permit (TUP) -Tt" be- author-'i zed by the
commission provioea tnal tri" afpric;nt demonstrates that the
proposed use:

of

and

4. s02 .03

A

B

Generally conforms to the standards and limitations
;h;-ro"ri,g arsiiict ln whlch lt is located'

Meets alt applicable City and County health
sanitation requirements'

c.MeetsallapplicableUniformBuildingCoderequirements.
4.502.O2 Time Limits

Thetemporaryuseorstructureshallberemovedupon
expirati-onof-thetemporary'usepermit,unlessrenewedbythe
commission. In no case snirr a temporary use permit be issued
for a perioa exceedirig-i;;-,111^3t.t, 

-unlesJ the permit is
renewed pursuant to Sectlon tl' )uU '

4.502.03 Addttional Conditlons

InlssuingatemporaryusePermi-t.theCommissionmayimpose
reasonable conditioni as necessary to -pres-erve the basic
purpose "r,a 

irrt.nt of 
't[; unaerryin'q zoning district. These

conditions may include, 
-Uut 

are n--ot ii*itta to the following:
increased yard armenslbnsl fenclng, screenilg.or landscaping
to protect adjacent -or ""itby 

p-ropert'y; Iimiti'ng the number'

size, Iocarion or righii;g'gf. "ig"=; 
restrigtins certain

activities to speciflc'ii*"i of dayi-and reducing. the duration
ofthetemporaryusepermittole-ssthanone(1)year.

Any depart'ure from approved plans not authorized by the
commission shall be cause for revocation of appllcable
buildtngandoccupancy.permits.Furthermoreif,intheCity's
determinationli-"""ai€ion oi conaitions of TUP approval are

not or cannot be satisfied, the TUP approval, ot buildlng and

occupancy permits, shall be revoked'

CHAPTER 4
18

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 538



4.500

4.501

INTERPRETATTON OF SIMII,AR USES

GENERALLY

where an interpretation is required as to the appllcability of
the provisio""' o; this Code Lo a proposed land uE e which is
not specif lcalIy ]isted or other;"rise clearly indicated as

allowed, cona-itionally allowed or prohibited, a written
request for an inteipretation may be submitted to the
Commission.

4.602 APPLICATION CONTENT

The request shatl be submitted with a fee pursuant to section
3.302 and shalt inciuOe information on the following
characteristics of the proposed use:

A.Descriptionoftheactivitytobeconductedonthesite.
B. Noise and odor characteristics'

c. Description of material or product storage requirements'

D. Amount and type of traffic to be generated'

E. Description of the structures required'

4.503 APPROVALS

lt,he Commission shall conduct a public hearing pursuant -!9
Section3.200andtakeactiontoapprove'approvewith
conditior,i, or deny the request for an- interpretation of a

similar use. The action of Lhe Commission may be appealed to
the cou""ir in accordance with section 3,400.

CHAPTER 4
19

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 539



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 540



I

a

I
t

;

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 541



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 542



CHAPTER 5

COMMUNITY DESIGN

Page
Section

s. 100

5. L01

5.L02

s,200

5,20L

5.202

5.203

5.204

s.300

5.301

5.302

5.303

s.400

5.401

5 .402

5.403

s.500

5. s01

5.502

5.503

5.504

s.600

5.700

SITE PLANNING

PURPOSE

SITE PLAN REVIEW

LANDSCAPING

LANDSCAPING PLAN

LANDSCAPING MATERIALS

LANDSCAPING STANDARDS

INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE

OFF-STREET PARKTNG AND LOADING

GENERALLY

OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS

OFF-STREET LOADING STANDARDS

ON-SITE CIRCUI"ATION

GENEF"ALLY

MINIMI,'M RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS

MINIMW NON-RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS

ON-SITE STORAGE

RECREATIONAL VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

SOLID WASTE STORAGE

MATERIAL STORAGE

OUTDOOR SALES AND MERCHANDISE DISPLAY

RESERVED

SIGNS

1

1

2

5

5

5

6

7

8

8

10

L4

15

15

16

L7

19

t9

19

20

20

22

22

ll

i

t

ChaPter 5 Table of Contents Page 1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 543



5.701

5.702

5.703

GENERALLY . .

PROHIBITED SIGNS

SIGN REGULATIONS BY ZONE

22

25

27

Chapter 5 - Table of Contents Page 2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 544



r. J

t.;

CHAPfER 5

COMMUNITY DESIGN

5. 100

5. 101

5. 101 . O1

SITE PLANNING

PT'RPOSE

GenerallY

Chapter5isintendedtoestablishaprocessanddefineaset
of devetoprnenl'"ii"attas to-ii;;i-bry:i:';i development in the

clry consisteiJ;iih tne corfrrunitf oeveiJp*"ttt Plan and this

Code.

5.101.02 Objectives

A

B

Site ptanning review is intended to:

3

CHAPTER 5
1

Encourage development tlrat is compatible with the

existing ,r.t,riii^ and m"i*.o.- envilonment, existing
communLty act,lviry patt"rn"l--itd community ldentity'

Minimize or eliminate adverse visual'' aesthetic or

environmental effects "t"""JTy 
the desiqn and location

of new developmenr, fncfuaifrl',tJ'".u ttmitea to effects
f rom:

1. The scale, mass-, .height' areas-'- appearance ' 
and

archirecturar aesigr;'' of -nuirding- and orher

oevefopment structures and features'

2. Vehicurar and pedestrian ways and parking areas'

Existlng or proposed -alteration 
of natural

;;;;;;;;niq reafui6", vesetation and water-wavs'

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 545



5.IO2 SITE PI,AN REVIET|

5. 102.01 Review Required

Except for single and two family uses, and manufactured homesIocated on individual residehtial lots as per section2.205,OL, but including manufacture_d home parksr no Uuilainjpermit shall be issued for a new building o; structure, or foithe substantial alt,eration of an existing structure or use,and no sign permit shall be issued fo'r the erection orconstruction of a -sign relating to such building or structureuntil the proposed development has been reviewed ana .ppron-Aby the commission. _ror the purposes of section 5.10i, theterm "substantial alteratloil' lnaff mean any developmentactivity_un_der the jurisdiction of the Commissi6n, as definedby this .c:9", that -generarly reguires a buirding permit andmay exhibit one or more of ttre tbllowing characteristics:
A. The activity arters the exterior appearance of astructure, building or property.
B. The_activity involves c_hanges in the use of a structure,building, or property from residential to commercial orlndustrial.
C. The actiYity involves non-conforming uses as defined inSection 2.206.

D. The activity constitutes a change in a city approvedplanr €ts per Section 5. 102 .03.
E. The actlvlty is subJect to site pran revlew by otherrequirements of this Code.

F. Review of any proposed activity indicates that theproject does not meet the standardL of Section 5.102.04.
5.1O2.O2 Exemptions

The Clty shalI make a initial determination whether a proposedproject requires a site plan review or whether the prblect isexempt. fl" City Manager or his or her designee is authorLzedto waive site plan review when a proposed derieLopment activity
9l99rly does not represent a suUstantial alteration to thebuilding or site invorved. The findings of the city uanageror hls or-her designee sharl be made fn writirg, ano 

"oplesshall be forwarded to the applicant and the Conmission. Theaction of the city Mana_ger -or his or her designee may beappealed as per Section 1.400.

CIIAPTER 5
2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 546



5. 102 .03

A.

B.

Plan Changes and Revocation

Changes

Constructionrsitedevelopment'Iandscaping'andother
development ."iiJili"" "n"ii 

G carried out in accordance

with the siie developtt"t p1an6 aporoved by the

Commisslon. Any proposed.change--s !9 uppT6ved plans shall
be submittea i6r-i"-.ri"r to in-. city.- changes that are

found to be "uu"tt"tlal' "" J"ii"ed-by Section 5'L02'01'
that confrict;ifi";;igi""i ippi""u.ll- T the commission'

or that otherwise may tonffiii with tne standards of

Section5.LO2'O4rshallUe-suUmittedtotheCommission
for supplenental'review l"!Lin"t."itl. u fee equal to
one-ha1f Otz'i'in" "iiginar 

6it" plan review fee'

Revocation

Anydeparturefromapprovedplansnotauthorizedbythe
Commislion shalf 

-ie -ca"se foile"ocation of applicable
building and occupancy p?111!:'- Furthermore if in the

Ci'ty'sdetermination'-acondiiionorconditionsofsite
planapprovalarenot'or"u""Jntsatisfied'thesite
plan approval' oi building and occupancy permits' shall
be revoked'

5.L02.04 Reguired Findings

Nositeplanapprovalshallbegrantedunlesseachofthe
following is found:

A' 3t:"HT."J'"1f'J"i'Jff;iTffi:" #?'J';l?i'" "::'t7 3' :15';:

B.Theproposeddevelopment-canbeadequatelyservedby
servicesconformingtoqhgCommunitybevelopmentPlan,
including but nof-iimited to *.i.t, Janitarv facilities'
storm water, solid waste, parks ana open Jp.t", pubric

""iltv, 
-"i"6tti"' po*tt' and communications'

C.Covenantsragreements'andotherspecificdocumentsare
adequate, in th;-'b-ity;; determin-ation, to assure an

acceptable meth;d of ownership' management' and

maintenanceotstructures,tanGcaplng,andotheron-site
features '

CHAPTER 5
3

i,

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 547



D The proposed development preserves significant natural
features to the maximum feasible extent, including but
not llmLted to natural drainagevrays, wetlands, trees,
vegetation, scenic views, and topogrlphical features, and
conforms to the applicable provisions of Chapter I of
thls Code and Chapter 5 of the Community Development
Code.

5.f02.05 Approvals

The commlssLon shall conduct a public hearing pursuant to
Section 3.200 and take action to approve, approve with
conditions, or deny the application for site plan review. The
commission's action shall include appropriate findings of fact
as required by section 5.102.04. The actlon of the commission
nay be appealed to the council in accordance with section
3.400.

5.102.06 Time Limits
site plan approvals sharr be void after one (1) year unress
construction on the site has begun, as determined by the city.
The Commission may extend site plan approvals for an
additional perlod not to exceed one ( 1) yeal, upon wrltten
request from the applicant showing adequate cause for such
extension, and paynent of an extension application fee as per
Section 3.301.

CHAPTER 5
4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 548



5.200

5.20L

5.202

5.202.O1

I,ANDSCAPING PLAN

AII proposed developmgn!:- for which a site plan is required
pursuant to S!-".|io"- 5.L02-"n"if submit a landscaping plan

which meets in. -"i.r,dards or--sectron 5.200' A11 areas not

occupiedbystructures'pavedroadways'walkways'orpatios
shalL be landscaped or maintained aCcording to an approved

site Plan.

I"ANDSCAPING

I,ANDSCAP ING MATERIALS

Varieties

Requiredlandscapedareasshallincludeanappropriate
combination of 

"*r"rgrl-"-r, 
- or deciduous trees and shrubs '

evergreen ground.covert--""o 
-p-erenniit prantings' Trees to be

planted ir,'or adjacent'aJ'pfiic rignt;-of-way shall meet the

iequire*"ttt" of -Section 5 '200 '

5.202.02 Establlshment of Healthy Growth and Size

Requiredlandscaping.materialsshallbeestablishedand
maintained in a healthv-'"""aitio-n ana of a sLze sufficient to

meet the intent _oi the approved landscaping plan'

Speciflc.lfon"--inaff be sunmi€iea showing that adequate

preparation of tne topJJr -."4- 
""bsoil 

will -be undertaken'

5.2O2.03 Non-Vegetative Features

LandscapedareasasrequiredbySection5.200mayinclude
architectural features ihterspet""a-tith planted areas' such

as sculptures, benches, masonry or-"iott" ialls, fences' rock

groupings, bark dust,-i"Lorutive paving, and graveled areas'

Artif icial pranrs .re !-r-o-n-ii1-t"o 
-i" -"riv required randscaped

area.

5.202.O4 Existing Vegetation

Alldevelopmentssubjecttositeplanreviewaspersection
5.102.01 ana requireJ-lo submit landscaping plans as per

section 5.202 shalr Jt.-""r"e-existing treesr. woodlands and

vegerati;;-;; ln" site to the maximrim extent oossible' as

determined by the commlssion, in addition to co-mplying with

the pro.ti"f ott" of Sectlon 8 ' 304 ' 07 '

CHAPTER 5
5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 549



5.203 LANDSCAPING STANDARDS

5.203.01 Perimeter Screening and Buffering
A ml.nimum six (5) foot hlgh slght-obscuring wooden fence,
decorative masonry wall, or evergieen screen shalt be reguiredalong property lines separating single and two-farnilf uses
from multi-family uses, and along property rines sepalatingresidentiar zones from conmerciar or industriar usbs. r;addition, prants and other landscaping features may beroquired by the Commission in locations and sLzes necessaiy toprotect t_he privacy of residences and buffer any adverseeffects of adjoining uses,

5.203.02 Parking and Loading Areas

A. Total Landscaped Area

A minimum of ten percent (10t) of the lot area used forthe display or parking of vehicles shall be landscaped in
accordance with Section 5.200.

B. AdJacent to Pubtic Rights-of-t{ay
A randscaped strip at least ten (10) feet in width sharr
be provided between rights-of-way and any abutting off-street parking, loading, or vehicle use ireas.
Landscapi-ng sharl incrude any combination of evergreen
hedges, dense vegetation, earth berm, grade, chanfe ingrade' walr or fence, forming a permanent year-round
:cTgen, except in clear vision areas as per Section
2 .303.

Perimeter Landscaping

I ten (10) foot wide randscaped strip sharr be provided
between off-street parking, loading, or vehicurar useareas on separate abuttlng properties or developments.A minimum six (5) foot high signt-obscuring fence orplantings shalt also be provided, -except where-equivalentscreeni.ng is provided by intervening buildings orstructures.

D Interior Landscaping

A minimum of fifty percent (50t) of required parking arearandscaping sharl be placed in the inteiior oi theparking area. Landscaped areas shalr be distributed soas to divide rarge expanses of pavement, improve siteappearance, improve safety, and derLneate pedestrian
walkways and traffic lanes. rndividuar landsclped areas

CHAPTER 5
6

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 550



sha1l be no less than sixty-four (64) 'square feet in area

and shall be provided arteJ'Jei' iffieen (15) parking

stalls in a row'

LandscaPLng at Points of Access

when an private accessway intersects a public light-of-
wav or when a property aUuti the intersection of two (2)

or more pubric rights-o;:t;;; la.na9-caping sharr be

ptanred and ,n"int"iri"o so tii;t minimum-sighL distances

shall ne preserved pursuant to Section 2'301'

5.203.03 Visual Corridors

Newdevelopmentsshallberequire^dtoestablishlandscaped
visuar corridors aron! ;;9;#t-.?9" ana othe,r -arterial 

and

collector streets, .on""i"I,i"t titn'tn" 
-rlutural Resources and

Recreatlon plan Mapr 
''-opp"taix 

.c - "i- 
t'n" of the comnunity

DevelopmentPIan,p.'t--ii,andtn.provisionsofSection
L 304.

5.204 INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE

5.204.OL Deferral of Improvements

Landscapingshallbeinstaltedpriortoissuanceofoccupancy
permirs, uiless ".""riri-a;;i..-9t^1n"-.oit 

of the landscaping

isfiledwiththe;i,t'.-.,,Security''-mayconsistofa
performu,,"" bond p.v."u,i",to th" ci;y;-lq".n, ?ertitied check,

or other assurance or_completion appii,"ea by the city' If the

insratlarion of the fliJ-".iping i"--t'oJLofrpfeted within six

(6)mont,hs,the"""o'iiy'nuiuduseotvtn"Citytocomplete
the installati'on '

5.204.02 Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Altlandscapingshallbemaintainedinamannerconsistent
wirh rhe infenc of tne J'ppi'iGg.ranascafing.qran' Failure to

maintain landscaped .t"55-"ha1l t"""ii- in- dne revocation of

applicabte occupancy p"i*it" and business licenses '

E

CHAPTER 5
7

..J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 551



5.300 OFF-STREET PARKTNG AND LOADING

5.30I CENERALLY

5.301.01 Off-Street parktng Requlred

No building permit shall be issued until plans are approvedprovidlng for off-street parklng and roadin| space as reguiredby thts Code.__Any change ln usls or structures that reducesthe current off-street parktng and loadfng spacls provided onsit.er or t,hat increases of f -street parklng 6r loadinjrequirements shall be unlawful dnd a violation of this coaeiunless addltlonal off-street parklng or toactng areas areprovided in accordance with Seition S.SOZ.

5.301.02 Deferral of Improvements

off-street parking and loading spaces shall be completed priorto the issuance of occupancy permits, unless Lhe Commissiondetermines that weather toioitions, rack of avairabresurfacing materials, or other circumstances beyond the controlof the appricant make compretion impossi6re. rn suchcircumstances, securlty equai t,o one huridred and twenty ii;;percent (L25t) of the-cost of the parking and loading aiea isprovided !1" city. "sgcurity" mal consist of a pefformancebond payable to the city, cish, -certified check, or otherassurance. of c_ompletion approved by the city. rf theinstallali"n. of the parking-br loadin! area r" n"t complet,edwlthin slx-(6)- months,. trre s'ecurity maline used by the city tocomplete the installation
5.301.03 Joint Use

Two (2) or more uses, structures t ot parcers of rand mayutilize jointly the same parking and roa'aing-"pu.." when thenours of operation do.no! overlap, provided lhai satisractoiyevidence is presented _to !h" iitv, in the f orm of cteeos,leasesr o! contracts, crearry esta6iishing ine-joint use.
5.30f.04 Multiple Uses

when several uses occupy a single structure or parcel of land,the totar requiremenis for off-street parking and roadingshalr be the sum of the requirements of the severaL usescomputed separately.

CHAPTER 5
I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 552



5.301.05 Prohibited Uses

Requiredparking,Ioadingandman:'}rveringareas.shallnotbe
usedforlong-termstofageor".r.of-vehiclesorother
materials, and shall ;;;-# rented, Ieased or assigned to any

person or organization not using or occupying the building or

use served'

5.301.06 Location

Residentiar off-street parking s_paces shall be located on the

samelotasthereside-ntialuse.--ro'other-uses,requj.red
of f-srreer parkirrg rpJ"-;-snaf i Ue focaled within five hundred

(500) feet of the use'

5.30L.O7 Marking

Altparking,loadingormaneuverinqareasshaltbeclearly
marked and painted. AlI interior-drives and access aisles

shall be crearly *"tr.-a- u"J-"igneo To 
-"riot the direction of

flow and maintain .r"ni."iii "na- 
pedestrian safety'

5.301.08 Drainage

Parkingandloadingareasshallincludestormwaterdrainage
raciliti;;-t;;;;;;A bY the citY Ensineer'

5.301 . 09 RePairs

Parkingandloadingareasshallbekeptcleanandingood
repair. gieafs in p""l-J""tiu""" snaff 5e repaired' broken or

. spltntered wheel siops 
-shall ue repritea ana painted parking

space uoJnoiii"" .r,o-'lii"ciionar d;;;i; shal-I be maintained

in a readable condition'

5.301.10 narking and Loading PIan

An off-street parking and loading pran, dT?I. to scare' shalr

accompany requesrs f;; 
-building-- blrmits or site plan

,ppro.r.ii, gxlepr rgi?"gle -ana"t*5-iu*irv dwellings, and

manufacrured homes "ri t."liEntial rots. The plan shall show

but not be linited to:

A.Delineationofindividualparkingandloadingspacesand
dlmenslons;

B.Circulationareasnecessarytoserveparkingandloading
spaces;

C. Location of accesses to streets, alleys and properties to
and anY curb cuts;

CHAPTER 5
9

i;

be served,

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 553



Landscaping as required by Section 5.2Ogi

Grading and drainage facilities;
Signing and bumper guard specifications.
Bicycle parking facllltles
5.302 .038

as specified in Section

5.302 OFF-STREET PARKING STANDARDS

5.302.01 Generalty

Where square feet are specified, the area measured shall betlt" gross building fl_oor area primary to the functioning ofthe proposed use. where emprbyees are specified, p"r6orr"counted shall be those- working on the premises, inltuAingproprietof", during the rarE-est shift at peak season]Fractional space requirements shall be countei as a wholespace. Or,f-street parklng and loading requirements for a usenot specifically listed in section b.goz.oz sharr bedetermined by the Commission based upon the requirements ofcomparable uses.

5.302.O2 Minimum Standards

A. Residential

D

E

F

tt

Single and two-family dwelling,
and manufactured homes on single
residential lots.
Multi-fanily dwelling

Sorority, fraternity or
dormitory
Residential hotel, roomingor boarding house or club
Hotel or motel

Manufactured home park

Planned Unit Development

2 per dwelling unit
3 per 2 dwelling unit,s

1 per 2 occupants

2 per 3 guest rooms
L per guest room or suite,

plus lper2employees
1 per manufactured

home site plus I per
site for guest parking

Applicable reguirements for
tl4le of dwelling unlt,
and I per 2 units for
guest parking,

CHAPTER 5
10

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 554



B. Commercial

General retail or Personal
service

Furniture or aPPliance
store

Auto, boat or trailer
sa1es, ox nursery

Barber shoP or beautY
parlor

Geireral, Professional or
banking office

Medical or dental office
or clinic

Eating or drinking
establlshment

Theater, gymnasium' race- tricftl stadium or similar
use

Bowling alleY
sfuti"6 rink or dance hall

Amusement Park

Service station

C. Institutional and Public

Child care center or
kindergarten

Schoo}, elementarY or
junior high

scf,ool, high school

College, universitY or
trade school

LibrarY

Church, chaPel, mortuarY'
auditorium

Nursing or convalescent
home

Hospital

CHAPTER 5
11

I per 200 sq. ft.
floor area

1 per 500 sq. ft.
floor area

1 per 1,000 sq. f t '-- floor area, PIus ( I
Per 2l emPloYees

I per 100 sq. ft.
floor area

1 per 300 sq. ft.
floor area

L per 200 sq. ft'
floor area

1 per 100 sq. ft'
floor area

L per 4 seats or ( I
ft. bench length)

2 per lane
I per 100 s9. ft.

floor area, Plus
Pet 2 emPloYees

1 per 1,000 sq. ft:
floor area, Plus
Per 2 emPloYees

1 per 2,000 sq. ft'
lot area

L per 2 emPloYeesr- .- -plus I' Per 5 children
2 per teacher

2 per classroom, Plus- I Per l'0 students
2 per classroom' Plus- lPer5students
1 per 400 sq. ft.

floor area, Plus ( 1

Per 2l enPloYees
1 per 4 seats or I

ft. bench length
L per 4 seats or I

ft. bench residents
3 per 2 beds

I

1

t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 555



Golf course
Utillty (gas,

telephone, etc. )

I per hole
1 per 2 employees on

Iargest shtft, plus
I per company vehicle

D. Industrlal L per employee on
largest shift

5.302.03 Miscellaneous Standards

A. Di.mensl.ons

For the purpose of Sectlon 5.300, a "parking space"
generally means a minimum stall nine (9) feet in width
and twenty (2Ol feet in length. Up to twenty fivepercent (25*) of required parking spaces may have a
minimum dimension of eight (8) feet in width and eighteen
(18) feet in length so long as they are signed as compact
car stalls.

B. Layout

c.

Parking space configuration, stall and access aisle size
shall be of sufficient width for all vehicle turning and
maneuverlng, Groups of more than four (4) parking spaces
shall be served by a driveway so that no backing
movements or other maneuvering within a street, other
than an alley, will be required. All parking areas shall
meet the minimum standards shown in Appendix G.

l{heel Stops

D.

Parking spaces along the boundaries of a parking lot or
adjacent to interior landscaped areas or sidewalks shall
be provided with a wheel stop at least four (4) inches
high, located three (3) feet back from the front of theparking stall as shown in Appendix G.

Service Drives

service drives sharr be clearry and permanentry marked
and defined through use of rails, fences, walls, or other
barriers or markers, and shall have minimum vision
clearance area formed by the intersection of the driveway
center line, the street right-of-way line, and a straight
line Joining said lines t,hrough points fifteen (15) feet
from thelr Lntersection.

CHAPTER 5
L2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 556



E Bicycle Parking Facilities

Bicycleparkingmustbelocatedwithinfift'y(50)feetof
an enrrance tletn!"n,iiiJi"g.--witn the permission of the

City, bicycle-p"ixi"g tu.v dt rociiea in public right-of -
way. The ,".offi.ria."a'ri"ii"r* *r*n"r of bicycre parking

spaces ror eal'ri";;; is described in the following:

BICgCI,B PANKING SPACES

USE GATB@RIBS

NBSIDBNTIAL C.ATE@RIES
Hougehold Living

croup Living

@II,TERCIAL CAItsGORIBS
Retail Salee/Service

office

Drive-UP Vehicle
Servicing

IITDUSTRIAL CATE@RIES
SERVICE CATts@RIES
Baelc Utilitieg

CommunitY Servicet
Providers
Parks and OPen Areas

Schoole

Multi-dweLLLng- 2, 91 1 Pe: 10 auto spaces

iii-itnii-i""ia""[ia1 structure tvpe - None

1 per 20 auto EPaceE

urnl}tttlt nEcolltBtlDED SPACES

2, ot 1 Per 20 auto aPaceE'
greater

None

None
Per CU Review

None

CHAPTER 5
13

whichever ie

vehicle RePair

Commercial Parking Facilitieg
Commercial Outdoor Recreatron
Itaior Event Entertainment

SeIf Service Storage

None

4, or 1 per 20 auto spaces' whichever ie
greater

None

2, ot 1 per 40 epacee, whichever ie greater

Park and Ride Facilitiee 2' or 1 per 20 auto
sPaceE

2, ot 1 per 20 auto EPaces' Esgential Service
wfiichever is greater

Hioh echools 4 Per classroom
iai6ar" schoore 2 Per classroom
;;;;;-";hooLe 2 PLr 4th and 5th srade
classroom

2, ot 1 Per 20 auto sPacee' Medical
*itichetter is greatercolleges

centers
Religious Ingtitutione
Daycare UseE

C'ItsBR C,ATEI@RIBS
Aoriculture
niiation Facilitiee
Detention Facilitieg
Mining, Radio and TV Towers
UtilitY Corridors

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 557



5.303

5 .303.01

A.

B

OTF-STREET LOADING STANDARDS

Minimum Standards

A driveway designed for continuous forward flow of
passenger vehicles for the purpose of loading and
unloading passengers shall be located on the site of
any school, or other public meeting place, which is
designed to accommodate more than twenty five (25)
persons at one time.

The minimum loading area for non-residential uses sharrnot be less than ten (10) feet in width by twenty-five(25) feet in length and shall have an unobstructed
height of fourteen (14) feet. The forlowing additionar
minimum loading space is required for buildings in
excess of twenty thousand (201000) square feet of gross
floor area:

20,000 to 50,000 sq. ft1

2 501000 sq. ft. or more

500 sq.

750 sq.

fr.
ft.

5 .303 .02 Separatl.on of Areas

Any area to be used for the maneuvering of derivery vehicres
and the unroading or loading of materiils shall be-separated
from designated off-street parking areas and designed toprevent the encroachment of derivery vehicres onto off-street parking areas or pubric streets. off-street parking
areas used to furfitl the requirements of section 5.302shall not be used for loading and unloading operations.

CHAPTER 5
L4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 558



5.400

5.401

5.401 .01

5.401 .03

A.

B

ON-SITE CIRCULATION

GENERATLY

Maintenance

NobuildingpermitorotherCitypermitshallbeissued
untilplansfortngress,"g'."".u"gcirculationhavebeen
approved by the_Cily. 

--ety-"hange increasing any ingress'
egress ot-iir"ulati6n t"euit"ttll:l . :!ull^o:-:.,Ytolation of
this code unless aaaitioiir facilities are provided in
accordance with Section 5'400'

5.401.02 Joint Access

Two (2) or more uses, structures t ot parcels of land may

utilize Jolntly the -same ingress-and egress when the
comblned'i"giE!"-ana egress-of 3.11 uses, structures, ot
parcels oi- iana satisiiEd the other reguirements of this
Code, provided that "ili"fu"ioty 

legal -evidence is presented

to the Cii'-i" tn" form of deedi' easements, leases r ot
contract"-lo clearly establish the joint use'

Connection to Streets

Except tor joint access as per Section :'40L'02' all
ingress and egrePg-to 3 r-r:e or parcel shall connect
directly to a-p,tUti" street' excepting alleyways'

Requiredpri-vatesidewatksshallextendfromtheground
froor entrances or the ground froor randing of stairs,
ramps or erevilors to tfre public sidewatk or curb of
the pubtic stieet' which prbvides required ingress and

egress.

5 . 401. 04 Maintenance of Required Improvements

Requiredingress'egressandcirculationimprovementsshall
be kePt clein and in good rePair'

5.401.05 Access to Major RoadwaYs

PointsofingressoregresstoandfromHighwayg9Wand
arterial! a"iig""ted oi the Transportation PIan Map,

attached-";-Appendix C of the Communlty Development Plan'
Part TI, snal1- be limited as follows:

A.Sinqleandtwo-familyusesandmanufacturedhomeson
i"aiiiAi"f r""ia""tial lots developed after the
effective date "i ini" code shalt not be granted
permanentdrivewayingressoregressfromHighway99W

CHAPTER 5
15

L

,... )

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 559



B.

c.

and arterlal road$rays. If alternatlve public access
is not available at the time of development, provisions
shall be made for temporary access which shall be
discontinued upon the availability of alternative
access.

Other private ingress or egress from Highway 99W and
arterial roadways shall be minimized. Where
alternatives to Hi.ghway 99I{ or arterials exist or are
proposed, ony new or altered uses developed after the
effective date of thls Code shall be requlred to use
the alternative ingress and egress.

AII site plans for new development submitted to the
City for approval after the effective date of this Code
shall show ingress and egress from existing or planned
Iocal or collector streets, consistent with the
Transportatlon Plan Map and Sectlon VI of the Community
Development PIan.

5.40f .05 Service Drives

Service drives shall be provided pursuant to Section 5.303.

5.402 MINI!,IT'!{ RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS

The minimum standards for private, on-site circulation
improvements in residential developments are:

5.402.01 Driveways

A. Slngle-Family: One (1) drJ.veway improved with hard
surface pavement with a mlnimum width of ten (10) feet,
not to exceed a grade of L4t.

Manufactured Home on Individual Residential Lot: One
(1) driveway improved with hard surface pavement with a
minimum width of ten (10) feet.
Trrro-FaniJ.y: One (1) driveway improved with hard
surface pavement with a minlmum width of twenty (20)
feet; or two (21 driveways improved with hard surface
pavement with a minimum width of ten (10) feet each.

CHAPTER 5
16

B

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 560



D.

5 .402 .02

A

5.403

3
50

Multi_Family:Improvedhardsurfacedrivewaysare
required as follows:

Units # Drivenays Minimum t{idth
One-WaY Two-t{aY
Pair;

24
24

Required # DrivewaYs
Parking
Spaces

Minimum Width
One-WaY Two-lfaY
Pair

49
& above

r.-49
50 & above

1
2

L5
15

feet
feet

feet
feet

feet
feet

B

SldewaLks and Curbs

Single,Tvlo-Family,andManufacturedHomeonlndividual
Residential t;;;-'tto on-site sidewarks and curbs are
required.

Multi-family:Aminimumfour(4)footwidesidewalk
shall be required on one side of approved driveways
connecting a a"".fopment-to public rights-of-way'
Curbs shall .i"o-U"'required at 3 standard approved by
the Commission. 

- gacn dwelling shalI 6e connected to
vehiculat putiiing stalls, and common open space ald
recreation faciiitfes, by pedestrian pathways having. a
minimum width oi-iour'(+i ?eet and constructed of aII-
weather material.

MINIMW NON-RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS

The minimum standards for privatlr on-site circulation
improvementsinnon-residentialdevelopmentsare:

5.403.01 DrivewaYs

A. Commercial: Improved hard surface driveways are
requi.red as f ollows:

1

2

15 feet
15 feet

24
24

CI{APTER 5
L7

I

I

l-.

i)
t-",

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 561



B Indust,rial:
required as

Required
Parking
Spaces

1-249
250 & above

fmproved hard surfaced driveways are
follows:

# Driveways Minimum lfidth
One-t{ay firo-IVay
Pair

t
2

15 feet
L5 feet

feet
feet

24
24

5.403.02 Sidewalks and Curbs

A. Commercial: A minimum four (4) foot wide sidewalk
shall be required on one (1) side of approved driver^rays
connecting a development to public rights-of-way.
Curbs shall also be requlred at a standard approved by
the Commission. Sidewalks may be connected to public
rights-of-way other than along driveways if approved by
the Commission.

Industrial: Sidewalks and curbs may be required at the
discretion of the Commission.

CHAPTER 5
18

B

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 562



5.500 ON-SITE STORAGE

5.5oIRECREATIoNALVEHICLESANDEQUIPMENT

Recreational vehicles and equipmglt may be stored only
within A""ig""i;d and improved-off-street parking areas'
such areas shall meet th6 screening and landscaping
requirements of Section 5'203'

5.502 SOLID WASTE STORAGE

AII uses shall provide solid waste storage receptacles which
are adeq";t;it 'stzeo t,o accommodare arl sorid waste
generateJ-""-3rt.. AlL solid waste storage areas and

receptaci""--"liii U" iocateO out of public Yi9t. SoIid
!.taste t"""pt""i"" for multi-family' commercial and

industrialusesshallbescreened-bysix.(6)fg"thigh-
sight.obscuringfgncgormasonrywatlandshallbeeasily
ac6essible to iollection vehicles '

CHAPTER 5
19

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 563



5. s03 MATERIAL STORAGE

5.503.01 Generally

Except as otherwise provided herein, external material
storage is prohibited, except in commercial and industrial
zones where storage areas are approved by the Commlssion as
part of a site plan or as per Section 5.504.

5.503.02 Standards

Except as per Sectlon 5.504, all service, repair, storage,
and merchandise display activities carried on in connection
with any commercial or industrial activity, and not
conducted within an enclosed building, shall be screened
from the view of aII adjacent properties and adJacent
streets by a six (6) foot high, sight obscuring fence. In
addition, unless adjacent parcels to the side and rear of
the storage area have existing solid evergreen screening or
sight-obscuring fencing in p1ace, nerir evergreen screening no
less than three (3) feet in height shall be planted along
side and rear property lines. Where other provl-sions of
this Code require evergreen screenlng, fencing, or a
landscaped berm along side and rear property lines, the
additional screening stipulated by this Section shall not be
required.

5.503.03 Hazardous Materials

5.504

Storage of hazardous, corrosive, flammable, or explosive
materials, if such storage is otherwise permitted by this
Code, shall comply with all local fire codes, and Federal
and State regulations.

OUTDOOR SALES AND MERCHANDISE DISPTAY

A, Sales Permitted

Outdoor sales and merchandise display activities shall
be permitted when such activities are deemed by the
Commission to be a customary and integral part of a
permitted commercial or industrial use. Outdoor sales
and merchandise display wiIl be reviewed as conditional
uses in accordance with Section 4.300.

CHAPTER 5
20

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 564



B. Standards

1. Outdoor sales and merchandise display areas shall
be kept free of debris. Merchandise shall be
stacked or arranged, or within a display
structure. Display structures shall be secured
and stable.

2. Outdoor sales and merchandise display shall not be
Iocated wlthin required yard, building, or
Iandscape setbacks, except where there is
intervening right-of-way of a width equal to or
greater than the required setback; and shall not
interfere with on-site or off-site pedestrian or
vehicular circulation.
Outdoor retail sales and merchandise display areas
for vehicles, boats, manufactured homes, farm
equipment, and other simllar uses shall be paved
wlth asphalt surfacing, crushed rockr or other
dust-free materials.

Additlonal standards may apply to outdoor sales
and merchandise display in NC zones, as per
Section 2.L07.05A.

CHAPTER 5
2L

3

4

l

',1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 565



5.600

5.700

5.701

5.701.01

A.

5.701 . 02

RESERVED

SIGNS

GENgRALLY

Sign Permits

Except as otherwise provided in section 5.701r ro
p"r"bn shall constrult, install, structurally alter or
ielocate any sign without first obtaining an
administrative iign permit from the City and making
.payment of the fee required by Section 3'302' In,iaittton, 

alt permitt;d illuminated signs shall be
surject t,o the-provlslons of the State Electrlcal Code
and-any aPPlicable Permit fees.

Sign Application

Application for a sign permit- shall be made upol forms
pi-oviOed by the City-anb shall include the following
information:

A. Name, address and telephone number of the applicant.

B. Location of the building structure or lot to which or
upon which the sign is to be attached or erected.

c. A scaled drawing showing sign design includln9 colors,
dimensions, sign size, f,eignt above ground, method of
attachment, construction and materials, type, source
and intensi.ty of illumination and the relationship to
anybulldingtowhichthesignwillbeattached.

D. A plot plan approximately to scale indicating the
Iocatioir ot aii buildingi, property lines, existing
slgns, street and overhead power lines on the same

Premises.

E. Name, address and telephone number of the person or
firmwhowilldotheerection,constructionor
maintenance on the sign.

5.701.03 ExcePtions

The following signs shall not require Commission review or a

sign perrnit 5ut inafl conform to all other applicable
provisions of Section 5.700:

CHAPTER 5
22

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 566



A

B

c

Realestatesignsnotexceedingtwelveltzlsquare-f.eet
in area, excruEivefy advertising tfre sale' rental or
l-ease of the premises upon-t[i"6 tnt signs are located'

D

E

Messages on a legalIy erected' painted or printed
advertising signi tn6ater marquee or-similar slgn
specificatly 

^tlilig;"J-ior th6 use of replaceable copv'

On-site painting, repaintitg' -cleaning and normal

maintenance and-rePair of a sign'

Memorialsignsortablets,namesofbuildingsanddate
of erectior, th"t cut int'o any masonry- surface or when

constructed of bxonze or oth6r noncombustible
materlals.

A con.struction site sign- denoting an architect'
engineer, "orrtt..i"t, 

iuuaivrsioi or development' not

exceeding thirty-two (321 "e"ii" 
f99t-in area' provided

rhar such sigi-is-iemiveo ritnin thirty (30).9uy" from

date of iss,ranc!-oi-in" final occupancy permit or
*iini"-tt" (2i years, whichever is less'

Streamers,bannersandsimilarsigns.cal}ingattention
to an opening'-;i-; new business , -a ctty approved

cultural event , ot other -"irir.i occasion, provided
such signs ma;'u!-"itttea for one (1) week only

Signs not exceeding-twelve (L2\-sqg?re feet in area

relating to t;;-;;f,ination or election of any

individual ror-a"poiiiicar office or advocacy of any

measure to be vot-ea upon at any speciar or general

election, provided tnlt 
"tt"n- 

sign-s shall be removed

;;ihi;-I6n- troi davs after the erection'

Public utility signs and other signs required by law'

Dlrectlonalorinstructionalslgnsonprivateproperty
which are ""i!fi'-A"sig".O 

i" aiiect pedestrians and

NamePlates not exceeding one (1) square foot in area'

CHAPTER 5
23

ll

F.

\t

H.

I

J

vehicular traffic'

5.701.04 Violations

TheCityshaltordertheremovalofanysiglerectedor
maintained in violation of the provisi6ns of Section 5'700'
The Ctty shall give "i""iy igOl-days-!'rritten notice to the

ownerofthesi.gnor,iflhdowner'otthesigncannotbe
notified, to th6 owner of the buitding, structure or
premise"'on-onnicn suci "ig" is locatei, to remove the sign

l.- I

tj

ii
L]

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 567



or to bring it into compllance. After ninety (90) days the
City may remove such sign at cost, to the owner of the
buLlding, structure or premlses. AIl costs incurred by the
City will be a lien against the land or premises on which
the sign is located and may be collected or foreclosed in
the same manner as similar liens.

5.701 .05 Nonconforrning Signs

Slgns in existence prior to the effective date of this Code
or located on land annexed to the City after the effective
date of this Code, which do not conforn to the provisJ.ons of
Section 5.700, but whlch hrere constructed, erected r ot
maintained in compliance wLth all prevlous. regulations,
shall be regarded as non-conforming signs and shal1 be
brought into compliance within five (5i years. Any
nonconforming sign which is st,ructurally altered, relocated
or replaced shall immediatety be brought into compliance.

5.701.05 Abandoned Signs

Any person who owns or leases a sign shall remove the sign
and sign structure when the business advertlsed l_s
discontinued or moves. The Clty shall give the owner of the
building, structure or premises upon which an abandoned sign
is located ninety (90) days written notice for removal of
the sign. After ninety (90) days the City may remove such
sign at cost to the owner of the building, structure or
premises. AII costs incurred by the City may be a lien
against the land or premises on which such sign is located
and may be collected or foreclosed in the same manner as
similar liens.

5.701.07 Additional Setbacks

Where the supporting member of any sign is permanently
erected or affixed to the ground within an setback area
established pursuant to Seition 2.302, Do permtt shall be
issued for such sign until the owner(s) of the sign and
premises upon which the sign will be erect.ed, enter into a
written agieement with the City providlng the supporting
member within ninety (90) days of written notice by the
city. The agreement sharl further provide that after ninety
(90) days the City may remove such sign at the expense of
the owner(s). AIl costs incurred by the City may be a lien
against such land or premises and may be collected or
foreclosed in the same manner as similar liens.

CHAPTER 5
24

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 568



ii
1r
ll
li

5.701.08 Construction and Maintenance

ExceptasotherwiseprovidedinthisCode,theconstruction
of aII signs or sign "tt""i"t"" 

snirr-coniorm to appllcable
provisioi!"lr"in"-6iiit"i.-sorraing code' A11 sisns'
supports, braces,.g,ryJ-lna-incnori itta "igtt sites shall be

kept in good repair "ia-*"i"iained 
in a clean' safe

condition '

5.7O2 PROHIBITED SIGNS

5.702.0L Unsafe or Unmaintained Slgns

Allsignsandsignstructuresmustbeconstructed,erected
and maintained to witiJt""a-in" wind, seismic and other

loads as specified in- lne uniform 
--Building code' No sign

shall be constructed, "i."t.A 
ot ^uitiiintd 

in violatlon of

the maintenance provtsions of Section 5'700'

5.702.02 Signs on Streets

Nosignshallsubstantiallyobstructfreeandclearvision
atong srreets , ot by';;;;;i or tn"-poiition, shape or color'
may inteiiere with,-ou"iirrct the viEw of , or be confused

wirh any authorized tilrii" signal "i oti'i""' No sign shall
use the words,,stop",'-iioot*", ;danger"r .9:^:?y-other similar
word, phrase, symbol or character fnat lnterferes wlth or

misleads motorists' pedestrians or bicyclists'

5.702.O3 Obstructing Signs

Nosignorsignstructureshallbelocatedorconstructedso
rhar ir obsrrucrs .."JJ"-t; ;;y f1t" escape, exit doorway or

other means of egres"-iro* a ouitaitg. sigl or

supportlngstructureshallcover,wf,ollyor-partially,dlY
window or doorwav in ;;-;;;9r !1"t will substantiatlv
limit access to the n"iiaing in case of fire'

5.702.04 Rotating or Revolving Signs

Rotating or revolving signs are prohibited'

5.7O2.O5 Illuminated Signs

Flashing signs' exposed reflective type bulbs' strobe

Iights,-rotiry u""ton"' par spots' "1b 
lights and similar

devices are prohibit'ed. -No exposed-ihcandescent lamp which

exceeds rwenry-five [iil r3ti"'11iir-U" used on the ext'erior
surface of any slgn io is to expos"-tn" face of such bulb or

lamp to a public-"tt!ttl. otl^9:-t1itted signs shall bear an

apProvea U'naerwriters Laboratory label '

CHAPTER 5
25

i
!

t

I

i_-

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 569



5.7O2.OG Off-Premlse Signs

Except as other'wise permitted by this code and section
5. 703.0lC, of f :preml.se slgns are prohibited.

5.7O2.O7 Directional Signs

Except as permitted by section 5.'103.OLc, directLonar signs
are prohLbited.

CHAPTER 5
26

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 570



-)

5.703

5 . 703 .01

SIGN REGUI"ATIONS BY ZONE

Residentlal Zones

Nosignrequi.ringapermitshal].beallowedinresidential
zones-excePt for the following:

A. Public/Semi-Public Buildings

onchurches,schoolsandotherpublicorsemi.public
building;-i"";i;d within a residential zone, signs not
exceeding lhiiiv "i* [jot square feet ln size shall be

permitt.i. - iigirs mttsi b6 attached flat aga+l:t,
buitding" or-s6tuacr a minimum of fifteen (15) feet
from prop"tiy lines adjacent to public streets'

B. Permanent Residential Development Sign

One (1) ground sign, not exceeding thirty-twq (32)
square f6et in siie, denoting a s'bdivision development
may be p"rtri["O. illuminatlon may be permltted
piirvroei-i p"nrr" nuLsance is not created.

C. Directional Signs

Dlrectional slgns may be located at street
intersectionswiththeapprovaloftheCommission.
such signs shall be tro *bie than one (1) foot. by three
and one-ii"ri ii L/2' feer. Nor more than eight (8)

"igt" sniii be permitted at any one street
intersecli"n. r'he signs shall be provided by the
deveroper or applicani- ana turned over to the city with
a fee as p"i iEEtion 3"301. The City ryi_ll erect the

"ig"" 
ii -n"ig[t" and locations approved by the

Commission.

Directlonal slgns may only be permitted for the
following usess

l.Publicandprlvateinstltutionsincluding'butnot
limitedtogovernmentgerviceg,schools,fraterna}
Iodges, and churches'

2.Districts,neighborhoodsandothermaJortraffic
g"rr.i"tor", su6h as historic districts and
shoPPing centers'

Directionalsignsforindividualbusinessesand
industries are Prohibited'

CHAPTER 5
27

J

)

j

J

i

"J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 571



D. Non-Residential Signs

One (1) sign not more than sixteen (16) square feet in
area identifying a permitted use in a residentj.al zone,
shall be allowed.

5.7O3.O2 Commercial zones

No sign requiring a sign permit shall be allowed in
commercial zones except for the following:

A. Free-Standing Signs

1. Number Permltted: One (1) multi-faced'
free-standing sign deslgnating the principal goods
or services available on the premises shall be
permltted per street frontage. Where a frontage
exceeds three hundred (300) feet in lengthr oD€
(1) additional free-standing sign is permitted.

2. Hetght Limit: The maximum helght of any portion of
a sign or sign structure shall be forty-five (45)
feet from ground level at its base, provided that
no sign shall exceed in height the distance from
the sign to the centerline of an adjacent public
right-of -vray

3. Clearance: The minimum clearance below the lowest
portlon of a free-standlng sign shall be fourteen
(14) feet over any drivebtay or parklng area.

4. Area: Maximum sign area shall be one and one-half
(L/21 square feet of area per lineal foot of
street frontage, not exceedl.ng seven hundred-fifty
(750) square feet per sign face, or one thousand
five hundred (1500) square feet for all sign
faces. Multiple frontage properties may have more
than one (1) sign, combine linear frontages and
erect a larger sign, or combine with the frontage
of adJacent premises to erect a single, common
sign. The total combined sign area of any option
shall not exceed the slzes otherwise permltted by
Section 5.703.02.

Location: No free-standing sign or any portion of
any free-standing sign shall be located within a
publlc rlght-of-way.

CHAPTER 5
28

5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 572



B Wall Signs

Wall signs shall not exceed twenty percent (2O*) of the
gro""-ii"" r"ce-oi the building to which the sign is
attached. siins-ftacea on or frithin one (1) foot of
;i#i;t-winaois-.ira designed ro be viewed from the

"*[Eii"t "t tne nuffdtng-shall be lncluded in
determining tile i*oottt 'ot signlngl .y"11 signs may not
oroiect more [nun one and one-natf ( 1 L/2') feet from
[rr""iir to which t,hey are attached'

ProJectlng Stgns

Projecting signs supporteg UV a -wa1l. of.a building ot

"lii"t"re-snaif 
Ue birmitted under the following

conditions:

1. Only one (1) proJecting sign.ylll be permitted on

the same i"ii-"""; frontage with wall signs.

2. No projecting sign shall be permitted on the same

premlses-t[.i" tfrere ls a free-standing sign or
roof sign.

3. A projecting sign shall be used solely to ldentify
a business and shall not be used to advertise
services or proaucts sold on the premises

4. No projecting sign shall extend more than three
(3) feet aboie tf,e roof llne at the wall or the
ioi of u put.p.t walI, whi'chever is higher'

5.Noprojectingsignshallbelocatedwithintwenty
(20i t6et of-anofher proJecting sign in the same

horizontal Plane.

6. No projecting sign shatl be supported by a frame'
commonly-r"ofi" "5 a "A frame" or other visible
frame located on the roof of a bulldlng'

7. No sign shall project to within two (2)-feet
the curn-oi-a 'puUiic street or beyond five (5)
feet from in. b.rrrding face, whichever is less.

Directional Signs

The requS-rements of section 5.703.01.c shall apply'

c

D

...J

-J

CHAPTER 5
29

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 573



E Roof Signs

Slgns erected in or directly above a roof or parapet of
a bulldlng or structure are permltted provlded such
slgn meet the following conditions:

1 The size of the sign face shall not exceed fifty
(50) square feet.

2. The helght of a roof sign shall not exceed the
highest point on the building or structure. Roof
slgns on flat roofs are prohlblted.

Supporting members shall be completely enclosed
with materials of compatible design and color to
the building or structure.

3

Only one (1) roof sign may be permitted per
butlding or structure.

5.703.03 Industrial Zones

No sign requiring a permit shall be allowed in industrial
zones except for the following:
A. Signs perinitted in commercial zones, provided that only

one (1) multi-faced free-standing sign designating the
principal uses of the premi.se shall be permitted in any
setback area, if the area of any one face of such
free-standing sign does not exceed sixty (60) square
feet and the total area of all faces of such
free-standing sign does not exceed one hundred and
twenty (120) square feet.

B. Directional Signs

The requirements of Section 5.703.01C shall apply.

CHAPTER 5
30

4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 574



,{ppendix G

Minimum Standards for Parking reas

Angle of
Parking

((8"
Stall Length :20'

Compact = 18')
3',

Stall Width
8.0' or 9.0'

(6 
Att

Aisle Width

Angle of
Parking

Direction
of Parking

Aisle Width
.Att ..Brt

stall width Stall Width Stall Width

8' 9' 8' 9', g' 9',

30u
450

600
600
900
900

Drive-In
Drive-In
Drive-In
Back-ln
Drive-In
Back-In

t2.5
12.5

19.0
t7.0
23.0
22.0

t2.5
12.5

r 8.0
t7.0
23.0
22.0

t7.8
20.5
21.8
2t.8
20.0
20.0

t8.2
20.9
22.1
22.1
20.0
20.0

18.0
12.7
10.4
10.4
9.0
9.0

19.0
13.4
11.0
11.0
9.6
9.6

Chapter 5
3t

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 575



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 576



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 577



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 578



CHAPTER 6

PI'BLIC IMPROVEMENTS

Page
Section

6. 100

5.101

6.L02

6. 103

6.200

6,20L

6,202

6.203

6,204

6 .300

5.301

6.302

6.303

6.304

6 .305

6 .306

5.307

6.308

5 .400

5.401

6.402

6.403

6 .500

GENERALLY

STANDARDS.......'

FUTURE IMPROVEMENTS

IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES

IMPROVEMENT PI,AN REVIEY'

PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION ' '

CONSTRUCTION PERMIT

CONSTRUCTION

ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS ' '

STREETS

GENERALLY . " '

STREET SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT FEES

REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

LOCATION AND DESIGN ' '

STREET DESIGN STANDARDS

SIDEWALKS

RESERVED

BIKE PATHS

SANITARY SETIERS

REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS " I

DESIGN STANDARDS

SERVICE AVAILABILITY '

WATERSUPPLY .. ..

( srF)

1

1

I

1

2

2

2

3

4

5

5

I
9

11

11

L4

t5

15

16

16

16

16

L7
i

I

I

I

I

Chapter 6 Table of Contents Page L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 579



6 .501

6.502

5 .503

6 .500

6.601

6.602

6.603

6 .604

5 .700

5.701

6.702

6.703

6 .800

6.801

6 .802

6.803

5.804

REQUIRED TMPROVEMENTS

DESIGN STANDARDS

SERVICE AVAILABILITY

STORMYIATER.. ..
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

STORM TVATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT FEES

DESIGN STANDARDS

SERVICE AVAILABILITY

FIRE PROTECTION . .

REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

STANDARDS

MISCELLANEOUS REQUTREMENTS

PRTVATE IMPROVEMENTS . .

UTILITY STANDARDS

UNDERGROUND FAC ILITIES

EXCEPTIONS

PRIVATE STREETS

(srF)

L7

L7

18

L9

19

19

20

20

2L

2T

2L

22

23

23

23

23

23

Chapter 6 - Table of Contents Page 2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 580



To ensure the health safety, and the economic stability of the community, and to establish a

quality system of public 6etg;;;r"ts the city statt requitt proposed buildings and

development for which p,rblig f.;ilil;;J pu6d rights-of-wav gt Tt tullv provided or

improved ro *i* citystanauas, io;rrd ,uid i*pil,*tntt' ttt" council may establish

specificatio"r-* ,tpp6t"t .the'-;a'latas 
of this 

-Code 
-d "'Pt- Tllicable 

ordinances'

Except as otheruise provided.gl ','r'"'i"'d, 
private improvement'. :T^g substantidly the

same function as equivalent public a.uiri.r, rrtuil g.nrtuliv be provided and improved at the

standards .ouU[tftJby this bode and other Ciry regulations'

6.102 FT]TURE IMPROVEMENTS

The location of future public improvementt h:Yqg water' sanitary slilver' storm water'

streets, bicycle and pedestrit, p"rnl;;J"t* o:OOc fJcilities and rights-of-way' as depicted in

chapters 4, s, 6and 7 of the cooo,n*ity o.uirop,o.nt plaq are iniended as general locations

only. The precise alignments *ii;il* of p.riti" imp,oultents shall be established during

the acnral development process *,i-rnar i" depicted on public i+Rroyelent plans submitted

andapprovedpursuanttoSection6'2o0andotherapplicablesectionsofthisCode'

6.103 IMPROVEMENT PROCEDURES

Exceptasothenriseprwided,allpubligimprovementsshallconformtoCitystandardsand
specificatio*- *O ,f,.ff Ue instafeJ in atcordance with Section 6'200' No public

i-pr*"rn".ri, ,rrar u, unaertatcen until an improvement plan review fee has been paid'

improvement plans have u",n upp,o*a uy 
't'..city, 

and an improvement permit has been

6.100 GENERALLY

6.101 STANDARDS

issued.

CHAP'TER 6

PTIBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

CI{APTER6
I

*l

J

I
I

._i

i
I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 581



6.200 IMPROVEMENT PLAN REVIEW

6.20L PREPARATTON AND SI'BMISSION

Required i.mp:ovement, plans shaJ.r be prepared and stamped by aRegistered. clvir_ Engineer. cer-tifyi-irg_-comptii"". with cityspecifica_tions.- Two lz; sets of said ftans'"Gii be submlii"oto the city for revlew. rnprovements prans sharr beaccompanled by a revl.ew fee as per section e .201.01.
6.201.01 Review Fee

Plan revLew fees are calcurated as a percentage of theestimated total cost of improvements ana are set by the"schedure of -Development ano Business Fees" adopt6d ttResorution of the council. This schedule is incruded hereinas Appendix J for the purposes of information, but is deemedto be separate from ana iiroependent of thts code.
6.201.02 Engineering Agreement

A copy of an agreement or contract between the a applicant andRegistered Civil Engineer for:
A. surveying sufficient to prepare consLruction prans.
B' Preparation of construction plans and specifications.
c. construction staking, and adequate inspection.
D. Const,ruction notes suf f icientas-built plans. to develop accurate

E' Drawing of accurate as-built plans and submission ofmylar reproducibles to the City.
F' certificate stating that construction was completed inaccordance with required plans and specifications.

6.202 CONSTRUCTTON pERMTT

6.202.0L Approval

The_ city wirr return on9 (rt set of prans to the appricantnarked "approved" or "modify'and resubirit.,' plans marked forresubmlttal must be corrected in accordance with notations orinstructions. After correction and approval, additional planssharr be provided the city for orfii:L """r'ti-eTo inspeltionand submittal to affected igencies.

CHAPTER 6
2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 582



6.202.O2 Permit and Fee

UponapprovaltheapPlicant.shallobtainaconstruction
permit. The construciior per-mit f-ee is set by the "schedule
of Oevefolment Fees", aaoftea by-Resolution of the Council'
This schedule is includ6d her-ein as Appendix J f or the
purposer'ii-inro"*uti"t, but ts deemed to be separate from and

indePendent of thls Code'

6.202.03 Easement Documents

Necessary construction and/or permanent easements shall be

provided in a form acceptiUte to-tne City prior to issuance of
I construction Permit'

6.202.O4 ImProvement Guarantees

Prior to issuance of a construction qrerli-t the applicant shall
file the following documents with the City:

A. LiabilitY Insurance

Evidenceofpublicliabilityandproperty.damageilsurance
adequat. t" pi"i""t the appfiiant ana ttre City from all claims
for damage or Personal lnJurY'

B. Performance Bond

To assure fu}l and. faithful performance !n the construction of
required improvements in accbrdance with approved construction
plans, the applicant snirr pf-ovidg security in an amount equal
to one hundred p"t""ttt (fOO*) of the esCimated cost of the
improvements. I; the event the applicant fa-ils to carry out
aII provisions of the approved impiovements plans and the City
has unreimbursed costJ or expenses resulting f19* such
failure, the City shalt caff on the security fot
reimbursement. security may be provided in the form of a

surety bond executed 5V a surety company a-uthorlzed to
transact business 1n the State of oregon, _9. cash deposit, Qx

otherformofsecurityacceptabletotheCity.
6.2O3 CONSTRUCTION

6.203.01 Initiation of Construction

Actual imProvements shall not
discontinuance, be restarted until
writing.

begin, ot after
the City is notified

a
in

;

^1

I

IJ

CHAPTER 6
3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 583



6.2O3.02 Inspection

Alt construct,ion shall be done to the City's specifications.
The Clty shall perform inspections to verify compliance with
approved plans and shall make a final inspection of the
construction at such tlme as the improvements are complete.
The City may require changes in tlpical sections and details'
if unusual conditions warrant the change.

6.203.03 As-Built Plans

A conplete set of reproduclble
Lmprovements as built shall be
completion of the improvements.

showlng the publlc
with the City upon

plans
filed

6.2O2.04 Suspension of Improvements Activity
The City shall have the authority to cause a suspenslon of
improvement construction or engineering when, in the opinion
of the City, work is not belng done to the City's
satisfaction.

5.204

6.204.OL

ACCEPTANCE OF IIIPROVEMENTS

Final Inspection

At such time as all publlc improvements, except those
specificalty approved for later installation, have been
completed, the applicant shall notify the City of the
readiness for final inspection.

6.2O4.02 Notification of Acceptance

The Clty shalI glve wrltten notification of the acceptance of
the improvements upon findlng that the applicant has met the
requirements of Section 6.200 and the specifications of a1l
approved plans.

6.204.03 Maintenance Bond

At the time of City acceptance of public improvements, the
applicant shall file with the City a maintenance bond computed
at tenpercent, (10t) of the full value of the improvements, to
provide for correcti.on of any defective work or maintenance
becoming apparent or arising within one (1) year after final
acceptance of the public improvements.

CHAPTER 6
4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 584



6.300

5.301

5.301 .01

STREETS

GENERALLY

Creatlon

Public streets shall be created in accordance with provisions
of section 7.304. nxcept aS otherwise provided, all street
improve*"rrt" Jnd rig_ht;:;i-;ay shall coniorm to standards for
the city.s functtonit .r"""rfication of said streets, as shown

on the Transportation piutt Map, attached as Appendix B'. in
chapter 5 of tne cornmunrty o6velopment Plan, and in other
apPlicable CitY standards'

5.301.02 Street Naming

A.Atlstreetscreatedbythesubdivisionprocesswillbe
named prior to submisJion of the final plat'

B.Anystreetcreatedbyapublic,dedicationshallbenamed
prior to or upon ""cLptJnce 

of the deed of dedication'

c.AnactiontonameanunnamedstreetintheCitymay.be
inltlated by tn" io.ttcll or by a person filing a petltlon
as describe-d in Section 6 ' 301' 03 '

D.Allstreetsnamedshatlconformtothegeneral
requirementsasoutlinedinSections.30l.04.

E. private streets, dt the request of the owner(s)t m1y.be
named and addr""""" issued witn the approval of the City'
PrivatestreetsaresubJecttothesamestreetname
standardsasarepublicstreets.Altprivatestreet
signs wiII be provided at the owner(s) expense'

5.301.03 Street Renaming

A.Anactiontorenameastreetint,heCitymaybeinitiated
bY the Council:

1. On its own actioni or

2' I5.i,3iT:L^fjj;if "TT"i"T'X:"::Xii'"?:""t':ni:the costs of the Process'

B.epetltionfornamingorrenamingastreetshallinclude
the following:

L. A statement of the reasons for the proposed name

change.

CHAPTER 6
5

J

i
I

,-.1

I

{j

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 585



2

3

4

5

6

The names and addresses
real property abutting
renamed.

of all persons owning any
the road proposed to be

Signatures of either o$rners of percent sixty (60t)
of the land abutting the subject road or sixty
percent (50t) of the owners of land abutting the
subJect road.

C. Notice and Hearing

1. When a proceeding has been initiated under this
section, the Council shall establish a tine and
place for a hearing to consider whether the
proposed name change is in the public interest.

2. At least ten (10) days prior to the date of
hearlng, notice of the proposed name change shall
be provided as follows:

a. Notlce by posting ln no less than t$to (21
conspicuous places abutting the subject roadi
and

Notice by publication in a newspaper of
general circulatlon in the area of the subject
road.

3 During or before a hearing under t,his section, any
percon may file lnformation with the Council that
alleges any new matter relevant to the proceedlngs
or controverts any matter presented to the Council.

After considering the matters presented under this
sectlon, the Councll shall determlne whether the
name change ls In the publlc interest and shall
adopt findings and an ordinance granting or denying
the request.

When the ordlnance becomes final, the Council shall
cauEe the ordinance to be recorded wlth the County
Clerk who shall cause copies of the ordinance t,o be
filed with the Department of Public Vforks, the
Department of Assessment and Taxation and with the
County Surveyor.

For the purposes of this section, "owner" means the
record holder of legal title to the land, except
that if there is a purchaser of the land accordLng
to a recorded land sale contract, the purchaser is
the owner.

CHAPTER 6
6

b

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 586



-i

i
!

_)

i

-j

6.301 .04

A.

B.

Street Name Standards

AII streets named or
following criteria:

renamed shall comPtY with the

north/south collectors or

east-west collectors or

180

1

2.

3.

4

5.

3

6,

7

9

Maior streets and highwayg shall maintain a common

'"lilJ-oi-;;.b;tlot ifi" eirtlre arisnment'

Whenever practicable' names as specified in Section

6. 301. 05 snari-i-e-"Liri"d or retained'

Hyphenated or
avoided.

excePtionallY long names shall be

Similar names such as -Farview 
and Fairview or

Salzman ano saflzmin shall be avoided'

Conslderation shall be given to the continuation of

the name of " 
lii""t ii anotner jurisdiction when

ii-i"-""tended into the CitY'

The following classifications (suffixes) shalt be

utilized in tfre t-J"-igttt"nt of aIl street names:

1. Boulevards: North/south Tt"t]-11i-providing 
through

traffic *o""*"ttt across the community'

2. Roads: East/west arterial:^-J:t"iding through

traffic movement across the community'

Avenues: Continuous'
extensions thereof'

4

5

Streets: Continuous'
extenslons thereof'

Dri.ves: Curvilinear collectors ( less than

degrees) at rll"I-i,ooo feet in length or more'

8

Lanes: Short east/west
feet in length'

local streets under 1'000

Terraces: short north/south local streets under

i,ooO feet ln length'

Court: All east/west cul-de-sacs'

Place: AlI north/south cul-de-sacs'

Vlays: All looped local streets (exceedlng 180

degrees) ' 
.HAPTER 6

7

10.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 587



c.

11. Parkway: A broad randscaped collector or arteriar.
Except as provlded for by this sectionr Do street shallbe given a name that i; the same as; similar tor--orpronounced the same as any other street in the 'city
unless that street is an eitension of an already-naieastreet.

D. All proposed street names shalluse, by the City.
6.301.05 Street Names

be approved, prior to

Whenever practicable, historlcal names will be considered in thenamlng or renaming of public roads. Historical factors to beconsidered shatr include, but not be limited, to the folrowlng:
A.

B.

c.

D.

E.

F.

tJ.

H.

6.302

6 .302.01

originar horders of Donation Land craims in sherwood.

Early homesteaders or settlers of Sherwood.

Heirs of original settlers or long-time (50-l0o years)residents of Sherwood.

Explorers of, or havlng to do with, Sherwood.

fndian tribes of t{ashington County.

Early leaders and ploneers of eminence.

Names related to Sherwood's flora and fauna.
Names associated with the Robln Hood legend.

STREET SYSTEMS TMPROVEITIENT FEES (SIT)
Purpose

CHAPTER 6
I

The srF shall be reserved and used exclusLvery for theacquisition, expansion, extension, and capital devefoprnent andredevelopment of pubric rights-of-way, streets, bikepaths,sldewarks, traffic contr-ol aevrcls, and appurtenantstructures, designed to provide extra system capacil!, and asdeslgnated on _the rransportatlon prin Mapr- attiched asAppendix B, lttd in _chapter 6 of the communlty DeveropmentPlan. The srF may also be utilized for expendit-ures relitingto repayment of debt for such improvements. The srF may notbe used for street preservation -improvements or for routlnestreet system maintenance and operaiions.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 588



6.302.02 Schedule of Charges

sIF,s shatl be assessed against new development in the City to
supporr 

-;*r;;-;apacit-y -i!i;g1 improvements. rhe slr for
streets sharr be set 6y 

-th. i's.h"iol. of Development Fees",

adopted by Resolution'ot the council. This schedule is
includedhereinaseppendixJforpurposesofinforflation,but
is deemed to be ""p"tJ. 

Jto* attd in-aependent of this Code '

5.302 .03 Assessment

Exceptasotherwiseprovidedbyt!i-sCodeorbyStateLaw,the
srF is immediarety d;-;;J layable and shalt be collected
prior to-i"""ince 6f 

"nV 
n"ifiing permlts for new residentlal

construction; for alterltions or addltions to buildings that
increase the number oi- residential dwelling units i or for
commercial, industria-I ,- 

-- o=-- instit'utional construction
requiring new or additiJnaf off-street parking as per Section

5 .302.

6.302.O4 Deferral

where the sIF due and payable from a slngle-buildlng permit

exceeds $3,000.00, an aamfnistiuli*t" defeiral nay be granted

untir an o"."J."Jy-fermit is issued. No occuPancy permit

shall be issue"a ,rnlii the fuII SrF is paid in full'

6.303 REQUTRED TMPROVEMENTS

5 .303. 01 GenerallY

Exceptasotherwiseprovj.ded,alldevelopments.containingor
abutting- * existirg -ii- #.posed strebt, that is either
uni.mpro.r"a 

-- or suUltanaaiO in right-of-way width or
improvement, shal-I- dedicate the necess-ary right-of-way prior
to the issuance of nuiiaing p"t*its and/or comptete acceptable
improve*"rri" prior to-issiance of occupancy permits'

6.303. 02 Existing Streets

Except as otherwise provided' .when a development abuts an

existing "tt""t, 
the improvements requlrement shall apply to

that portion of the s-iieet right-of-t.y tocated between the
centertine of the righi:"i-ffi ana the property rine of the
Iot proposea for aevd-iopment.- . I,n no ev-ent- shall a required
street iilpi"""*."i foi-ln existing street exceed a pavement

wldth of thirtY (30) feet'
-)

J

I

*i

i

CHAPTER 6
9

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 589



6. 303.03 Proposed Streets

Except as otherwise provided, when a development includes or
abuts a proposed street, in no event shall the reguired street
improvement exceed a pavement width of forty (40) feet.

6.303,04 Extent of Improvements

Streets required pursuant to Section 6.300 shall be dedicated
and inproved consistent wlth chapter 5 of the conmunlty
Development PIan, and applicable City standards and
speclfications and shall lnclude curbs, sidewalks, and catch
basins. rmprovements shall arso include any bikeways
designated on the Natural Resources and Recreation Plan Map,
attached as Appendix c, or in chapter 5 of the community
Development PIan. Catch baslns shall be lnstalled and
connected to storm sewers and drainage r,rays. Upon completlon
of the improvements, monuments shall be re-established andprotected in monument boxes at every pubric street
intersection and alr points of curvature and points of
tangency of their center lines. Street signs sha11 be
lnstalled at all street Lntersections and street lights shall
be installed and served from an underground source of supply
unless other electrical lines in the development are not
underground.

6.303.05 Exceptions

Single and two-family dwelling units and manufactured homes onlndividual resldentiar lots may be constructed on lots
approved before the effective date of this code without
providing improvements to substandard city streets, subject to
the dedication of arl additlonar required right-of-way and theprovision of a waiver of remonstrance against future pubric
improvements.

CHAPTER 6
10

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 590



6.304 LOCATION AND DESIGN

5.304.01 GenerallY

The location, width and grade of streets shall be considered
In thelr relation to exlsting and planned streets,
topograpntcat conditions, and pioposed land uses. The

proposed street system-"[dff provide-adequate, convenient and

safe traffic circulati"", atia intersection angles, grades'
tangents, and curves "n.ir be adeguate for- e.xpected traffic
volumes. Sii""t affgnments sha1l be consLstent wlth solar
access requirements 

"'"-- 
p.i section I . 311 , and topographical

considerations.

6.304.02 Future Street Systems

Thearrangementofpublicstree-tsshaltprovideforthe
continuat,ion and establishment of future street system-s as

shown on the Transportiiion Plan Map, -attacheg-t" Appendix-C'
or in section vI of the community De-velopment P1a.n, except to:
deviations to meet a particular lituation where topographical
or other conditions make continuance or conformance to
existing or planned streets impractical'

6.304. 03 Underground Ut'ilitles
All public and private underground utilities, including
sanitary ser{ers ana storm water -drains, shall be constructed
prlortothesurracrngofstreets.Stubsforservice
connections shall Ue-i6ng enough to avoid dlsturbing the
street impi"""."trt" when s?rvice connections are made'

6.305 STREET DESIGN STANDARDS

6.305.01 Right-of-Way and Pavement l{idth

Unless otherwise provided in this Coder oD t'he -Transport-ation
Plan Map, attached ." Appendix c, by Sectl.on vI of the
community oevetopment pranl-or by a separately-ap-proved_ future
street pi"", iight-of-wiy and roidway wtAths shalt not be less

,J

than:

Street TYPe ROVt

80 fr. 54 ft. 6 ft.

70 fr. 44 ft. 6 ft.

Road Sidewalk
Surface

A

B

Minor Arterial
(with bikelane)

Minor Arterlal
(without bikelane)

-)
CHAPTER 6

11
I

;

i

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 591



c

D

E

F

G

H

Major CoIlector
(with bikelane)

MaJor Collector
(without bikelane)

70 fr. 50 fr. 5 fr.

60 ft. 40 fr. 5 fr.

Minor CoIlector 60 fr. 40 fr. 5 fr.
Local (on-street
parking allowed) 50 ft.
Local 50 ft.
(on-street parking one side)

Local 50 ft.
(no on-streetparking)

I. Turnaround 50 ft.
J. Allelnray 20 ft.

36 fr.
32 ft.

40 fr.
20 ft.

5 ft.

5 fr.

5fr
none

28 fr. 5 ft.

6.305.02 Reserve Strips
Reserve strips or street plugs controlling access or
extenslons to streets shall not be allowed unless necessary
for the protection of the public welfare or of substantial
property rights. AIl reserve strips shalI be dedicated to the
City.

6.305.03 Alignment

AII proposed streets shalI, de far as practicable, be in
alignment with existing streets. In no case shall the
staggering of streets create a rrTrr intersection or a dangerous
condltion. Street offsets of less than one hundred (100) feet
will not be allowed.

6.305.04 Future Extension

where necessary to access or permit future subdivision of
adJoining land, streets shall extend to the boundary of the
development and the resulting cul-de-sacs may be approved
without a turnaround.

6.305.05 Intersection Angles

A. Streets shall intersect as near to ninety (90) degree
angles as practical, except where topography requires a
lesser angle. In no case shall the permltted angle be
Less than eighty (80) degrees wlthout an approved speclal
intersection design. Streets which contain an acute

CHAPTER 6
L2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 592



angle of less than eigh-ty J 
gO I degr.eeS or which include

an arreriar sti;t -sfiari nav6 a Ininimum corner radius
sufficient to a110w for a roadway edge- radius of twenty
(2Ol feet .ta naintain a unifbrm width between the
i"iat.v and the right-of-way line'

B'Arterialorcollectorstreetsintersectingwlthanother
streetshallhaveatleastonehundred(100)feetgn
tangent adjacent to intersections unless topography
,.qr;ii"" a lesser distance. other streets, except
all;t;;-snirr nave ai-teast fifty (50) feet on tansent
adjalent to intersections '

6.305 .06 Cul-de-Sacs

Cul-de-sacsshallbenomorethansixhundred(600){"9!.in
length and shall termlnate with a circular turnaround fifty
(50) feet in radiu", ""."pi "" otherwise provided. The length
ofthecul-de-sacshall-bemeasuredalongthecenterlineof
the roadway from tne nEi side of the intersecting street to
the farthe3t point of the cul-de-sac'

5.305.07 Grades and Curves

Grades shall not exceed six percent (6*) f9t arterials, ten
percenr (Lgt) for cofiector 6treets, br twelve percent (12t)
for other streets. Center line raaii of curves shall not be

less t,han three nunarla Goo) feet for major arterials, two

hundred (200) feet for minor arterials or one hundred (t-00)

feetforotherstreet-s.-_wn"'"existing.conditions'suchas
topograPhy,makeuuiraaulesltesimprac-tiga.l,.steepergrades
and sharper curves tn"v 

-u. approvea '- Flnished street grades

shall have a minim,t* ;rop. df one-half percent (L/2*r '

5.305.08 streets AdJacent to Rallroads

Streets adjacent to railroads shall run ap-proximately parallel
to the rairroad and ue-sepirated by a distance suitabre to
aIlow landscaping ."o urif tering_ 'between the street and

rallroad. Due consroeiuii-o" shall be given at cross streets
for the minimum aistanG ieq"rreg for fu-ture grade separations
and ro ;;;ila; sutrrcienr'deprh to arrow screening of the
railroad.

6.305.09 Buffering of Major Streets

WhereadevelopmentabutsHighwayggw'o.ran.existingor
proposed arterill ot " cotlect-or street, adequate protection
for resldentlal prop"itieJ-snarl be provideo -11d through-and
local traffic shall U" separated and traffic confllcts
minimized. In addition, visuit corridors pursuant to Section

CHAPTER 6
13

i

I

!
i

J

i
t

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 593



8.304.04, and aII applicable access provisions of Section
5.400, shall be met. Buffering may be achieved by: parallel
access streets, lots of extra depth abutting the major street
with frontage along another streetr or other treatment
suitable to meet the objectives of this Code.

5.305. 10 Median Islands

Medlan lslands may be used on arterial or collector streets
for the purpose of controlling access r ot for aesthetic
purposes.

5.305.11 Curbs

Curbs shall be installed on both sides of public streets and
shall be at least six (6) inches in height.

5.305. 12 Transit Facillties
Developments along existing or proposed transit routes may be
required to provide areas and facilities for bus turnouts,
shelters, and other transit-related facillties, to Tri-Met
speclflcatlons.

6. 305. 13 Traffic Controls

For developments of five (5) acres or more, the City may
require a traffic impact analysis to determine the number and
types of traffic controls necessary to accommodate anticipated
traffic flow. Such analysis will be conpleted according to
specificatlons establlshed by the City. RevLew and approval
of the analysis by the Clty, and any improvements indicated,
shall be required prlor to issuance of a construction permit.

5.306

6 .306 .01

A.

SIDETgATKS

Required Improvements

Except as otherwise provided, sidewalks shall be
installed on both sides of a public street and in any
special pedestrian way within new development.

For Highway 99W, major or minor arterials, or in special
industrial districts, the Commission may approve a
development without sidewalks if alternative pedestrian
routes are available.
In the case of approved cul-de-sacs serving less than
fifteen (15) dwelling units, sidewalks on one side only
may be approved by the Commisslon.

CHAPTER 6
L4

B

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 594



6 .306 .02

A

B.

5.307

6.308

c

Sidewalk Design Standards

Artcrial Streets

Arterialstreetsshallhavemlnimumsj.x'(0lfootwlde
sidewalks, focJea as required by this Code'

Collector and Local Streets

Collectorandlocalstreetsshallhaveminimumfour4)
foot wrde srdewirks, rocated as required by thls code.

HandicaPPed RamPs

Sldewalk handicapped ramps shall be provtded at all
intersections.

RESERVED

BIKE PATHS

CHAPTER 6
15

rf shown on the Transportation Plan Map, attached as Appendix

B, or in Cnapt-r S of-the Cornmunity Oeftfopment PIan' bicycle
paths sharr 

-5"- insrarre;- i; iublic rights-of-wav, in
accordancewlthCityspecifications.Bikelanesshallbe
installed on uotn sia-es 

-oi designated roads, should be

separated from-in" road uv i twelv6 (L21, inch stripe, not a

curb, and "noora-u" " 
rninimum of flv'e (sl feet wide' Bike

;;ffi snouro ""t u" combined with a sldewalk'

I

I)

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 595



6.400

6 .401

SANITARY SET|ERS

RE9UTRED MPROVEMENTS

Sanitary sewers shall be installed to serve all new
developments and shall connect to existing sanitary sewer
mains. Provided, however, that when inpractical to
immediately connect to a trunk sewer systemr the use of septic
tanks may be approved, if sealed sewer laterals are installed
for future connection and the tenporary system meets aII other
applicable City, Unified Sewerage Agency and State sewage
disposal standards.

6.402 DESIGN STANDARDS

6.402.01 Capacity

Sanitary sewers shall be constructed, Iocated, sized, and
installed at standards consistent with this Code, the Sanitary
Sewer Service Plan Map attached as Appendix F, Chapter 7 of
the Community Development PIan, and other applicable Unifled
Selverage Agency and Ctty standards, in order to adequately
serve the proposed development and allow for future
extenslons.

6.4O2.02 Over-Sizing

A. When sehrer facllttles wlII, wLthout further constructlon,
directly serve property outside a proposed development,
gradual reimbursement may be used to equltably distribute
the cost of that over-sized system.

B. Reimbursement shalI be in an amount estimated by the City
to be a proportionate share of the cost for each
connection made to the sewer by property owners outside
of the development, for a period of ten (10) years from
the tine of installation of the se$rers. The boundary of
the reimbursement area and the method of determining
proportionate shares shall be determined by the City.
Reimbursement shall only be made as addltional
connections are made and shall be collected as a
surcharge in addition to normal connection charges.

5 .403 SERVICE AVAII,ABILITY

Approval of construction plans for new facilities pursuant to
Section 6.200, and the issuance of building permits for nest
development to be served by existlng se!.rer systems shall
include certification by the Clty that existing or proposed
sewer facilities are adeguate to serve the development.

CHAPTER 6
16

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 596



5 .500

6 .501

WATER SUPPLY

6.502 DESIGN STANDARDS

A

B.

REQUTRED TIIIPROVEMENTS

l'ater lines and fire hydrants conformJ.ng to cit.v. ?''d Fire
District "t"tJ"tAi 

shali be installed to serve aI1 building
sites in a prlp-"""J Aeveftpt*"t. All waterlines shall be

connected to efisting water mains'

5.502.01 CaPacitY

water llnes provlding potable y?t9r supply -shall be sLzed'

construc;;;,'io."t.d-uia installed at -slandards consistent
with this code, the w"t.i service plan Map, attached as

AppendixDrChaPter-ToftheCommunityDevelopTgntPlan'and
wlth other appllcanfe tft'--standards and speCiflcations' in
order to adeguately serve the proposed development and allow
for future extensions'

6.502.02 Fire Protection

Allnewdevelopmentshall,complywiththefireProtection
requi.rem".L" of Secti-on 

- 
O . ZOO, ifre appllcable portions of

Chapter 7 of rhe Cor*iinfiy Oevelopmeit Plan, and the Fire
District.

5.502.03 Over-Sizing

V|henwatermainswitt,withoutfurtherconstruction,
directly ""r.r"-fiop"rty 

outside a proposed development,
gradual reimurirS"^6"t niay Ue used to equitably distribute
ihe cost of that over-sized system'

Reimbursement shall be in an amount estimated by the city
to be the proportionate share of the cost of each

connection *.a" to the water mains by propelt'y 
- 
owners

o"["iO" the devetopment, for a period of ten (10) years
from the time "i i"-itallation of the mains ' The boundary
of the relmbursement area and the method of determillng
proportionate "ni"." 

shall be determined by the city.
Reimbursement 

- snaff only be- - made as additional
connections .t" maOe and shal1 be collected as a

,oi"n"rg" in addition to normal connection charges.

CHAPTER 5
L7

I

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 597



6. s03 SERVICE AVATI,ABILITY

Approval of construction plans for new water facillties
pursuant to Sectlon 6.200, and the issuance of building
permits for new development to be served by existing
water systems shall include certification by t,he City
that exlstlng or proposed water systems are adequate to
serve the development.

CHAPTER 6
18

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 598



6 .600

5 .601

STORM I{ATER

6.602sToRMtfATERsYsTE!|II|PRoVEMENTFEES(sIF)

6.502.01 PurPose

TheslFshatlbereservedandusedexclusively'forthe
acquisition, expansiorl,_extension, and capital developnent or
redeveloittl'iitt- "i 

puUiic storm water conveyance systems '
specJ.flc'Jtreet improvernenis designed to direct and control
storm water flows, sLorm water tieatment facilities' storm

water detentLon or retention ponds ' ot other storm water
facilities, designed ;-;;;.tia"-extra system capacity' and as

designate-' on fne stoim Drainage PlLn Map, attached as

Appendl.xE,inChaptqr?oftheCommunityDevelopmentPlan,or
in the pii"" of liashingiott Coonty's storm water management

authority. The sIF *;il_a-l:o-be utilized for expenditures
relatingtorepalrment-ot.aentforsuchimprovements.TheSlF
may not -te 'uJea f or storm water 

"_y-"^t:l_. 
preservatlon

inprovenents or for routine storm water syJtem maintenance and

operations.

6.602.02 Schedule of Charges

sIF's shall be assessed agal.nst new devel0pment in the city to
supporr ."lri-"upacity sglrm.water. improvemelts.. The SIF for
storm water sharr ne sliLv in" "s,ched-ure of DevelopTeqt-Fees"
adopted by Resolutlon of the council. This schedule is
Lncluded herein as eppenarl ,r for the purposes of information,
but is deemed to be t.pii"t. from ind-independent of this
Code.

5.502 .03 Assessment

REQUIRED II,TPROVEMENTS

storm vrater facilities, including _lpproprtate source control
and conveyan.L-- t".ilities, snltt . -O" installed in new

developmentsandshallconnecttotheexistingdownstream
drainage system; consistent with the Comprehensive Plan'

Exceptasotherwiseprovi-ded,t'heSlFisimmediatelydueand
payable and "n"if be- collected prior to the issuance of any

building permits for new constru-ction, ot for alterations or
addltions to buildings ot--"rt"" that increase the area of
impermeable surface.

CHAPTER 6
19

I

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 599



6.602.04 Deferral

Where the SIF due and payable from a single building permit
exceeds $3r000.00, an adml.nlstratlve deferraL may be granted
until an occupancy permit is issued. No occupancy permit
sha1l be issued until the SfF is paid in full.

6 .603 DESIGN STANDARDS

6.603.01 Capacity

Storm water drainage systeme shall be sized, constructed,
located, and installed at standards consistent with this Code,
the Storm Drainage Master Plan Map, attached as Exhibit E,
Chapter 7 of the Conmunlty Development Plan, other applicable
City standards, applicable !ilashington County storm water
management authority standards, and hydrologic data and
improvement plans submitted by the developer.

6.503.02 On-Site Source Control

Storm water detention and groundwater recharge improvements,
includlng but not linited to such facllities as dry wells,
detentlon ponds, and roof top ponds shall be constructed to
Iimit the site discharge of storm r"tater from a development to
a level below that produced by a twenty-five (25) year storm
on the undeveloped slte.

6.5O3.03 Conveyance System

The size, capacity and location of storm water se$ters and
other storm water conveyance lmprovements shall be adequate to
serve the development and accommodate upstream and downstream
flow. If an upstream area discharges through the property
proposed for development, the drainage system shall provide
capacity to receive the floodwater dlscharge from the upstream
area. If downstream drainage systems are not sufficient to
receive an increase in floodwater caused by new development,
provisions shall be made by the developer to increase the
downstream capacity.

5.504 SERVICE AVATI,ABILITT

Approval of construction plans for new storm water drainage
facllities pursuant to Section 6.200, and the issuance of
building permlts for new development to be served by existlng
storm water dralnage systems shall lnclude certlflcatlon by
the City that existing or proposed drainage facilities are
adequate to serve the development.

CHAPTER 5
20

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 600



6.700

6.70L

FIRE PROTECTION

REQUIRED IMPROVE!'TENTS

tghenlandisdevelopedsothatanycommercialorindustrial
structure 1s furtner than two hundied and fifty (250) feet or
any residential structure is furtner than five hundred (500)

feet from "r, uA"q""t" water suppllr f?t fire protection' as

determined by tn"'rite pfslifti,^it. developer shall provlde

flre protection-racitities necessary to provide adequate water

supplY and flre safetY'

CHAPTER 6
2L

6.7O2 STANDARDS

6.702.0L CaPacitY

Allflreprotect'ionfacilitiesshallbeapprovedbyandmeet
the speciiic.iiorr" ot-ifie-fire District, lnC shall be sized'
constructed, Iocated, "tto 

initarred consistent with this code'

chapter 
-i 'of the cornrnunity Development lI?", and other

applicable city stanaaias, in'order to adequately protect life
and prop.ity i-n ttre proposed development '

6.702.02 Fire Flow

standards published by the rnsurance services office' entitled
,,Guide f oi Determirr"Ciott of Required Fire Flows" shall
determine the capacitl--#- ti"ilities requile-d- qo furnish an

adequate f tre f low. ' Ftre pro-t'ectlon tacllltles shall be

adequate to convey qu_anliii"i of water, ds determined by Iso
standard"]-t" i"v'""tr"f i1 the system, at no less than twenty
(20)poundsper"q.,"'eincnresi-clualpressure..Watersupply
f or f ire prorecrion ;;;;;; shal I -ne restricted to that
available from the Ctty water system' Tt't". location of
hydrants shall ne tafen i-ttto accound in determining whether an

a&equate water suPPIY exists'

6.7O2.O3 Access to Facilities

Wheneveranyhydrantorotherappurt-en-anceforusebytheFire
District is required by s""tidn- 6.?00, adequate ingress and

egress shall b;t;""Ideb. 
-e".""" snait be ln the form of an

Lmproved, p.t*.tZtttly rnaintained roadway or open paved area'
or any comUinaJio' tfi"reof, Oesigned, construCted, and at aIl
timesmaintained,tobeclearandunobstructed.Widths'
height clearances, ingress and egress. shall be adequate for
Dlstrtctflre.fightingequlpment-..TheFl-reDistrictrllldY
further prohlbit ienicif "t 

pt?iing along,private accessvtays in
order to keep them clear ani-onoUitructea, and cause notice to
that effect to be Posted'

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 601



6.702.O4 Hydrants

Hydrants located along private, accessways shall either have
curbs painted yellow or otherwise marked prohibiting parklng
for a dlstance of at least fifteen (15) feet in either
direction, or where curbs do not exist, markings shall be
painted on the pavement, or signs erected t ot both, given
notice that parking is prohibited for at least fifteen (15)
feet ln elther dlrectlon.

6.703 MISCELI"ANEOUS REoUTREMENTS

6.703.O1 Timing of Installetion
When fire protection facilities are required, such facilities
shall be installed and made serviceable prior to or at the
time any combustLble constructlon beglns on the land unless,
in the oplnion of the Flre Dlstrict, the nature or
clrcumstances of said constructlon makes lmmedlate
installation impractical .

6.7O3.O2 Maintenance of Facilities
A1I on-site fire protection facilities, shall be maintained in
good working order. The Fire District may conduct periodic
tests and inspection of flre protection and may order the
necessary repairs or changes be made withln ten (10) days.

6.703.03 Modification of Facl.litles
On-site fire protection facilities, may be altered or
repaired with the consent of the Fire District; provided that
such alteration or repairs shalI be carried out in confornity
wlth the provLslons of Section 6.700.

CHAPTER 6
22

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 602



6.800

6 .801

PRTVATE IMPROVEMENTS

UTILITY STANDARDS

Prlvate utilitles shall- be
installed consist'ent with
CommunitY DeveloPment Code'
CitY standards.

6.8O2 T'NDERGROT,'ND FACTLITIES

slzed, constructed, Iocated and
this Code, ChaPter 7 of the

ana appticable utility company and

Exceptasotherwiseprovlded,.dllutilityfacilities,
including- U"l- ""t f imi'iEA to, electric power' telephone'
narural A^;; figntingl anA cabie television, shall be placed

underground, unless "i".iif"ulfy 
authorized for above ground

installation, becau""' tn" poin[,s- -of connection to existing
utilities make undergr"""O'installation impractical ' ot for
otherreasonsdeemedacceptablebytheCommission.

5.803 EXCEPTIONS

surface-mounted transformers, surface-mounted connection boxes

and meter cabinets, G.por.ry utility - service facilities
during .orr"ti,t"tion, nign ^capacity electlic and communication
feeder lines, and utiiity- transmission lines operatlng at
fifty thousand (5oro00) .r6tts or. more may be located above

ground. The Cid,y r"""i*r.s the right to approve location of
iff surface-mounted transformers'

5.804 PRIVATE STREETS

private streets are permitted only if provlsions are made to
assure prfvatJ t""p"i"lbility foriuture malntenance' Unless

otherwise specif ically authbrized, a private stre_et shall
comply wlth thtii*. s-tandards as a publlc street' A prlvate
street shalI be distinguished f iorn pub-1ic streets and

reservations or restrictl-ons relating to the private street
shall be oesciibed in land divisio-n documents and deed

records.

)

CHAPTER 6
23

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 603



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 604



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 605



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 606



CHAPTER

SI,'BDIVISIONS AND

7

PARTITIONS

Page
SectLon

1

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

6

8

9

9

9

9

10

11

11

t2

13

t3

13

13

L4

7. 100

7.LOL

7.L02

7.200

7 .20L

7.300

7.301

7.302

7 .303

7 .304

7.400

7.40L

7.402

7.403

7,404

7.500

7 ,501

7 .502

7 .503

7 .504

7.600

7,60L

7.602

GENERALLY

PURPOSE . .

PLATTING AUTHORITY . . .'

PRELIMINARY PI"ATS

GENERALLY

FINAL PLATS

GENERALLY

FINAL PLAT INFORIT{ATION

FTNAL PLAT REVIEW

CREATION OF STREETS

DESIGN STANDARDS

BLOCKS ' '

EASEMENTS

PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE WAYS

LOTS....

I,AND PARTITIONS

GENERALLY

SUBDIVISION COMPLIANCE

DEDICATIONS.....'

FTLING REQUIREMENTS

PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENTS

GENERALLY

FILING REQUIREMENTS

J

Chapter 7 Table of Contents Page I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 607



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 608



7. 100

7. 101

7.L02

7. 102 .01

A.

GENERALLY

PURPOSE

subdivision and rand partitioning regurations are intended to

promote tne puufit n"-tfth'-';;;;tt and ge.n"ra' welfare; lessen

traffrc consestlon; provraJ--iqiqFi! iisnt and air; prevent

overcrowding ii-iilta; and ?acilitate ad6quate water supply'

sewage and drainage'

PI,ATTING AUTHORITY

Planning Commission

The Commission shall be the appr'oving authoiit
prellminary ""4 

f inal nfig"'. - :f ^-subdivision'
i.itiii"n"l in-jccordance with this code'

CHAPTER 7

SI,'BDIVISIONS AND PARTITIONS

CHAPTER 7

y fox
and

B.ApprovalbytheCommissionofsubdivisionsandpartiiions
is required in t:#;;;;;;;h-this code berore a plat
for aiy such s,rnli*rision or p"ttition $aY be filed or

recorded with w."iin-gt"n co"ttiyl 
- 

Appeats 
-to a declsion

of rhe commissi"""ti#il'f;i;;"t"ttitit to Section 3' 400'

7 .LOz.02 Future Partitioning

when subdividing tracts into -rarge lol: -wtrich 
may be

resubdivided, the Co*rrii-"".ion shall t"g"itl that.the lots be of

a size and shape, 
';;J apply iJa'ition"r building site

restrictions, to allow iOr -fne 
""n""qtt"nt 

divLsion of any

parcer i;i;' rols or 
" 
"*iir"t siiz- 

-una the creation and

Lxtension of future streets

?. 102.03 Required Setbacks

Allrequiredbuildingsetbacklinesasestablishedbythis
Code, shall be shown'iri=JtJ"",,f,Ji"itio" plat or'included in
the deed r'bstrictions '

7 .LO2 "O4 ProPertY Sales

Nopropertyshal!bedisposedof.,transferred,orsolduntil
required iuuai.risior, 

-ll- J.ititi"n 
-"pptovals are obtained'

f.ti"nut,t to this Code '

J

1

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 609



7.200

7.20L

7.201 .01

D

PRELTMINARY PI.ATS

GENERALLY

Approval Required

AIr subdlvisions and ,maJor partltlons are subJect topreliminary plat approval by the Commissior,r. Approvai of thepreliminary plat shall ngt Constitute finai, acclptance of theplat for recorging., {pprovai shall however, be-binding-"il;
_the clt{ l9r the purpd'6e of preparatton of itre ftnat pi"i-oi,Ddp, and the clty may only requlre such changes in tire plator map as are necessary fqr compliance with the termJ of' ,,.preliminary ptat approval. i -

7 .2Ol.O2 Commission Action
fhe commission sharl review? preliminary plat appricationssubmitted in accordance with section -e.ioo enU approve,approve wii,th bondttionS, or deny the applicationl The actlorlof t,he commiss_Lop sharl be noied on two (2,) copies of thepreliminary plad, including references to any attached
documents- describing any conditions or restrictions. One (1)copy sharr be returned to the applrcant wlth a notlce'oideclslon_and one (1) retaLned ny-itre City along wlth otherapplicable records.

7 .2Ol.O3 Required Findings

No preliminary plat shall be approved unlegs:
A. ' Streets and roads conform t,o plats approved for adjoiningproperties as to wtdths, alignmentsr grades, ani otheistandards, unless the Commission det6rmines that thepublic lnterest is served by modifying street,s or roadpatterns.

c.

streets -?nd roads 'h"ld 'for private use are clearryindicated on the plat and atr reservations orrestrlctlons rel.ating to such prlvate roads and streetsare set forth thereon.
tThe plat complies with the comprehensive pran andapplicable zoning district regulations.,

Adequate water, sanitary sewer, and other publicfacillties exlst to suppoit the use of land propo^sed inthe plat.

CHAPTER 7

B

2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 610



E

F

G

Development of additional' contigrrous.property under the

same ownership can be "t""^piiJhed 
in accordance with

this Code.

Adjoininglandcaneitherbedevelopedindependentlyor
is provided """."" 

that 
- tiff aliow development in

"""oia"ttce 
itith this code '

Tree and woodland inventories have been submitted
iiJ-.piioveo as per section 8'304'07'

7.300 - F'*NAI,',P'LA'[st'

7.301 GENERALLY

7.301. O1 'Time Limi'ts

Within twelve (12)'months after approval' of the preliminary'
prat, . 

-iifr"i 
di;d "h;l-i- 

b; 
"t 

urit'f"a' rhe subdivider shall
submit . to' the' Gity ffr. "iilin-a1 

-a-i6wlnglF 
r'- trr-e c'loth' 

"'and
f ifteen ( 15 ) prlnts oi-in"_final p;1;. ;"e lrt .s''pplementary
,i.nfonmat,ion,regu.ired bt,,.ot n-ur5.u.ahi-i; this Code'l The final
:plat .ppil""iii"-9d1ilo" s.ibrnitted at least thirtv (30) deys

Bfior, to",thg rgo'rilnissiOn-meetlng 
.at lnni"n consideration of the

irat ls desiredti'

I

7.30L.02 Extensions

After the expiration of the twerve (12) month period following
prelirninary pI1! .ppro.rui, tn" prat irust be resubmitted for
new appr""ir. rn. commission may, ,rlot written request by the

applicant, grant -an extension up io six (6) months upon a

writtenfindingthatthefactsuponwhichapprovalwasbased
have not changed to .i""*i"t't su?ficient to warrant refiling
of the prelininary plat and that tto oirt.t development approval
would be affected'

7.301.03 Staging

TheCommissionmayauthorizeplattinganddevelopmentto
proceed 

'I"-"iuges -tnat exceed one (1) yearr but in no case

shatl the total time-p"iioa for.ali itiges be.greater than

f ive (5) years. !a.ch'"iug" slarr- confor-m to the appricabre
require*"ii"-or this code'. portions platted or developed

af ter the passalle oe one ( 1) y"at mait be - required to be

modified in accordan"" titn'"hy-change 
-to the Comprehensive

PIan or this Code'

CHAPTER 7
3

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 611



7.302

7.302 .01

B

D.

The followlng information shall be shown on the final plat:
A.

FINAL PI.AT INFORI'IJ{TION

Shown on Plat

Date of approva|, sca1e, north arrow, Iegend,controlling topography such as creeks, highwdysr
rallroads.

Legal description of the ptat boundaries.

Exl.stlng surveys related to the plat by distances
bearlngs, and referenced as follows:

c

and
and

and

4

1. The location and description of all stakes,
monuments, and other evidence used to determine the
boundaries of the subdlvisLon.

2 AdJoining corners of all contiguous subdivisions.
Section, township, range, donation land claim lines
and boundarles of any lots wlthln previously
recorded subdivision plats within or adjacent to
the plat.

3

Location and description of aII monuments found or
established in making the survey of the subdivislon
or required to be installed by the provisions of
this Code.

Tract, block and lot boundary lines, and street
rights-of-way and centerlines, with dimensions, bearings,
radii, arcs, delta angles, points of curvature ind
tangent bearings. Normal highwater rines for any creek
or other body of water sharl be shown. Error of irosureshall be wlthln the llmits of one (1) foot in four
thousand (41000) feet. No ditto marks shall be used.
Lots containing one (1) acre or more sharl be shown tothe nearest 0.01 feet. Bearlngs shalr be shown to the
nearest thirty (30) seconds wlth basls of bearings.
The width of street,s being dedicated, the width of anyexlsting rlghts-of-way, and the widths on each side oithe centerrLne. For streets on curvature, curve datashall be based on the street centerrine, and in addition
to centerline dimensions shall indicate the r:adius andcentral angle. This data may be shown in a table.
Easements withln or adJacent to the plat denoted by finedott.ed llnes, clearly identifled, Lnd, if alrea-dy of

CHAPTER 7
4

E

F

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 612



G.

H.

I

record' a recorded reference' If any easement is not of
record, u "t.i.*a"t 

of the """"*"nt 
s-howing the widths of

the easement .na tn" rength; and bearings _of the lines
thereof, and J"ifi.i""t fies thereto, shall be properly
i"i.i"n."o in"ine cerrificate of dedication.

Lot numbers beginning wi,th the number trlrr and numbered

consecutiverf i;--;;;fr block. Block numbers, Lf used'
should begih 

--with the number I'lrr and continue
consecutively without omisston or duplication' The

numbers snari b;-;;iie, ;i sufficient size and thickness
to stand ouLr-;"d --placed as not to obliterate any

figure. gfocf numUers-in addition to a subdivision of
the same name shall be a.o.iitnation of the numbering in
the Plat last filed'

Land parcers to be dedrcated for any purpose are to be

distinguished fr;; lots inlenaea for-sile, and titled to
identiiY their intended use'

The following certificates' which may be combined where

approPriate:

, 1. A certifLcate si'gned ?nd. rocknowledged by all
parties having t"y -ttJord titte interest in and to
the land subdividea, 

-consenting to the preparation
and recJrJi"g ;r,the map ana deiicating aIl parcels
oflandshownont,he-rinatmapandintendedfor
Public use.

2.An:affidavitsignedbytheengineer-o.rtheSurveyor
o""p"n"iUf.- toi the*, survey- and, final mdPr the
signatui!*-of'-"".n' 9ng-i,1e-11 j^1., "ttveyor 

to be

'acEompanled by a professionar sear'

3.Provisionsforallothercertificationsrequired..-)

7 .3O2 . 02 Submitted tlith Plat

The following' information shall be
plat:
A.

submitted with the final

error of closure,
the boundarY of the

A preliminary title report issued by a title insurance
companyinthe-""*.oftheowneroftheland'showing
the inierest of atl Parties '

Sheets and drawings showing the followinglB

I Traverse
including

data showing the
the coordinates of

CHAPTER 7
5

i
I

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 613



subdivlslon and ties to section corners and
donation land claim corners.

2 Ties to existlng monuments,
adJacent subdlvislons, street
highway stationing.

proposed
corners,

monuments,
and st,ate

c

7.303

7.303.01

D

Copies of any deed restrictions and dedications,
includlng building setbacks.

Proof that all taxes and assessments on the tract are
patd for the current year.

FINAT PI.AT REVIEW

Subdivision Agreement

'rThe subdivider shall either lnstall required improvements and'repair exlsting streets and other publlc facilities damaged in
the development of the subdivision pursuant to the Chapter 6,
or execute and file with the City an agreement specifying the
period within which all required improvements and repairs
shall be completed, and provlding that if such work is not
conpleted withLn the perlod specified, the Ctty may complete
the same and recover the fulI cost and expense thereof from
the subdivlder. Such agreement may also provide for the
constructlon of the improvements in stages.

7.3O3.O2 Performance Security

The subdivider shall provide monetary assurance of full and
faithful performance in the form of a bond, cash t ot other
security acceptable to the City in an amount equal to one
hundred percent ( 1008) of the estimated cost of the
improvements.

7.303.03 Staff Review

E.f Gtty review determines that the f inal plat is in fdII
cqnformance with the preliminary plat and this Code, the final
plat shall be referred to the Commission for final approval.
If the final plat is not ln full conformance, the subdivider
shall be'advised of necessary changes or additions.

7..303. 04 Cornrnission Approval r,

l{hen Conmlssion determlnes that the plat conforms to all
requirements, the plat shall be approved. Approval of the
plat does not constitute an acceptance by the City of the
responsibility for maintenance or development of any street or
other easement shown on the plat.

CHAPTER 7
6

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 614



,'7 . 303 . 05'' County; ennrgvaf*

Afterapprovalbythecommission,theCttyshalltransmitthe
final hap, tracing, utJ oin"t data to washington county' to
determine that there has been compllance with all provisions
of state and local staiutes. The -county may-make such checks

in the fteld as n".."".ry to - veri?y - 
tnat the map is

suf ficienrly correcr ;;rh;-;round.. when the county finds the

documents in furl """i"r*.nc6 
ana has been paid the statutory

fee for such servicer- "Jpr""uf "f 
tne p_Ia1-s!qf f be given by

apptlcanf "-i-"""ty 9qif c6is. Approvif of the f lnal plat shall
be nuII and void if the pla! is not recorded within sixty (60)

days after the date of tie last required approving signatures
have been obtained'

7.303. 05 Effective Date i

SubdivisionapprovalshatlbecomefinaluPoltherecording
with ttre county of tn"-.ppto*t"o- subdivision-plat or partition
map togetner witn .nV i"i.ift"d documents ' Development permits
may be i""""a onty aiter final approval, except for activities
at the preliminary plat phase, specificirty authorlzed by this
Code.

7.303.07 Required Findings

No:,f,inb-l subd'trvision"plat shall be approved :unJ'9ss:

publlc streetd- and floodplain areas .3t"
hout any reservation or restrictlon other

"-i"t 
p,infi" utilities and facilities'

Streets and roals neffa for private use have been approved
by the CitY.

:rllhe ptrat conplie" *itn- tn" standards'of the undgrlying
zoning'districi and other applicable standards of this
code and is rn-conrormlty wrti the approved preliminary
plat.
The plat dedicates to the p-ublic ?11 required common

improvements and areasi ittdrnding bYt not limited to
streetsrfloodplainsrparks,and-sanitaryse$ter'storm
rit"t, and water suPPlY sYstems'

Adequate water, sanitary '':sPW€r' and other public
facilitles exist to supp6rt the proposed'' use of the
subdivided rand, ds determtned by -the city and are in
compliar." ,rilii'Cit' "t.ttO"ia". 

F6r the purposes of this
section:

A

B

All required
dedlcated wit
than easement

c.

D.

E

CHAPTER 7
7

*)

J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 615



F

1 Adequate water service shall be deemed to be
connection to the Clty water supply system.

2. Adequate sanltary se!.rer service shall be deemed to
be connection to the City sevrer system.

3. The adequacy of other public facilities such as
storm water and streets shall be determined by the
Conmission based on applicable City policies,
plans, and standards for said facillties.

AdJointng land can be developed, or is provided access
that will allow future development, ln accordance with
this Code.

7.304 CREATTON OF STREETS

7.304.01 Approval

The final plat shalI provlde for the dedication of aIl streets
for which approval has been given by the City. Approval of
the final plat shalI constLtute acceptance of street
dedications.

7.304.02 Exceptions

The Councll, upon Commission recommendationr fldy approve the
creation and dedlcation of a street wlthout full compliance
with this Code. The applicant may be required to submit
additional information and Justiflcation necessary to
determine the proposal's acceptability. The City may attach
such conditions as necessary .to provide conformance to the
standards of this Code. One or more of the following
conditions must apply:

A. The street creatlon is required by the City and is
essential to general traffic circulation.

B. The tract in which the road or street is to be dedicated
is an isolated ownership of one (1) acre or less.

7.304.03 Easements

Any access which is created to allow partitioning for the
purpose of development r ot transfer of ownership shatl be in
the form of a dedicated street, provided however that
easement,s may be allowed when:

A The access is to a parcel exceeding five (5) acres in
slze, and used for agrlculture, horticulture t grdzLngt or
timber growingr or

CHAPTER 7
I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 616



B.Theeasementistheonlyre-asonablemethodbywhichthe
rear portion of i" ""tt"atly 

deep lot' Iarge enough to
warrant partitioning into t!" ,2l-ot tn-ore parcels' tnaY

obtaln access. S;;h easement stiait conform to all other
.""""i Provisions of this Code'

7.4OO DESIGN STANDARDS

7.401 BtocKs

7.401.01 Size

Thelength,wldth,?n.dshapeof.blocksshallbedesignedto
provide adequate nuiraing 

-;ii.; for the uses pro-posed, and for
convenient iccess, circu-tation, traffic control and safety'

7 .4Ol.02 tength

Bl0cks shatl not exceed one thousand two hundred (1'200) feet
in length, except nrocrs iolacent to arterial streets which

shall not exceed o."-lno"sina eight hundred (,1'800) feet'
unress adJacent subdlvisions or topographical conditions

JustifY a varlatlon'

7.4O2 EASEMENTS

7.402.OL Utilities
Easements for sewers, drainage, water mains, erectric lines'
or other utilities shaliUe O6Aicated or provided for by deed'

Easemenrs shall be u *rrri*om of t"t (1d) feet in wtdth and

centered on rear or 
-"iO" iot finesi dxcept- for tie-back

easements'whichshallresix(6)feetwidebytwenty(2ol
feet fonf'orr-"i4. tot tines at in6 cnange of direction'

7 .402.02 Dral'nages

where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainage
wdy, channel or streel, drainage elsements or rights-of-way
shall be provided "oni6tti"g 

sibstantially to the alignment
and slze of the drainage'

7.403 PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE TTAYS

Pedestrianorbicycle$'aysmayberequiredtoconnect
cul-de-sacs, divide through -an unusually r6ng -or. 

oddly shaped

block, oi-io otn"t"i"e pi-oviae adequat.e circulation'

CHAPTER 7
9

I

i

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 617



?.404 LOTS

7.404.01 Size and Shape

Lot size, width, shape, and orientation shall be appropriate
for the location and topography of the subdlvislon, and shall
comply with applicable zoning distrtct requirements, with the
following exceptions:

A. Lots in areas not served by publlc sewer or water supply,
shall conform to any speclal Washington County Health
Department standards.

7 .404.02 Access

AIl lots in a subdivision shall abut a public street.
7.404.03 Double Frontage

Double frontage and reversed frontage lots are prohibited
except where essential to provide separation of residential
development from railroads, traffic arteries, adjacent
nonresidential uses, or to overcome specific topographical or
orientation problems. A five (5) foot wide or greater
easement for planting and screeningr flldy be reguired.

?.404.04 Side Lot Lines

Side lot lines sha1lr ES far as practicabler rur at right
angles to the street upon which the lots face, except that on
curved streets side lot llnes shalr be radial to the curve of
the street.

7.404.05 Grading

Grading of building s j.tes shal.l conform to the
standards, except when topography of physical
warrant special exceptions:

following
conditions

A

B.

Cut slopes shall not exceed one and one-hatf (L L/2) feet
horizontally to one (1) foot verticatly.
FiIt slopes sha1l not exceed two (2) feet horizontally to
one (1) foot vertically.

CHAPTER 7
10

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 618



7 .500

7"501

7.501..01

I,AND PARTITIONS

GENERALLY

Approval Required

Atractoflandorcontiguoustractsunderasingleownership
shall not be partitiorrla-into two (z',) or more parcels untir a

minor partition application had been approved by the

Commission.

7.50L.02 Commission Action

The commission shall review the minor par-titi.on. applications
submitted ln accordan"" tiin Section 4'-100 and shall approve'
approve *itn tondition" oio"ny the application' The action
of the Commission snaif-be noied on-iwo (21 copies of the
partition, includlng. ttf"tences to any attached documents

describing any condiriJris Lii""triction-s. one (1) copy shall
be returned to the appii."trt with a notice of decision and one

(1) ,"r.ii!J;t th;^citv rirh other applicable records'

7.501.03 Required Findings

Minor partitions shall not be aPproved unless:

A.Nonewrights-of-way'roads'otstreetsarecreated'
"*."b1' 

-i3;-- *raenirig - of existing riqhts-of -wav'
partitions creating such ,r"t "ii""t" 

inuff 5e processed

as subdivisions'

B. The partition complie-s . with the standards of the
underlying zonl"g ri-"ltr"t and other appllcable standards
of this Code'

c.Thepartitiondedicatestothepublicatlr-eguiredcommon
imprbvementsu,,o--"'"u"incluiin9b'.!notlinitedto
streetsrparksrffooaplains'andsanitaryse!'ter'storm
water, and water suPPIY systems'

D.Adequatewater,sanltarysewerandotherpublic
facillties exist tJ supp6rt the proposed use of the
parrlrioned .lenq; ;; oeiarminea by- th-e citv and are ln
compliance with iiav siinaaras. ro.-r tne purposes of this
sectlon:

1.. Adequat'e water service shall be deemed to be

connection io the City water supply system'

CHAPTER 7
11

I

I

I
J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 619



2 Adequate sanitary sewer service shall be deemed to
be connectlon to the Ctty se!{er system tf se$rer
lines are wlthln one-hundred fifty (150) feet of
the partltlon or if the lots created are less than
15r000 square feet in area. Installation of
private ser,vage dlsposal faci.lities shall be deemed
adequate on lots of 15,000 square feet or more if
the prlvate system Ls perrnLtted by County Health
and City sewer lines are not within one hundred
fifty (150) feet.

The adequacy of other publlc facilitles such as
storm water and streets shall be determined by the
Commission based on applicable City policies, plans
and standards for said facilities.

3

is
ln

E AdJoining trand can be developed, orthat will allow future development,
this Code.

provlded access
accordance with

7.501.04 Future Developabtltty

In addition to the findings required by Section 7.501.03, the
commission must find, for any partition creating rots
averaging one (1) acre or more, that the lots may be re-partltioned or resubdivlded ln the future in ful1 compliance
wlth the standards of thts Code. The Commisslon may reguire
the applicant to submit partition drawings or other data
conflrmlng that. the property can be resubdlvlded. rf re-partitioning or resubdividing in full compliance with this
Code is determined not to be feasible, the Commission shalt
elther deny the proposed partLtion, require its redesign t ot
make a finding and condition of approval that no furtherpartitioning or subdivision may occur, said condition to be
recorded against the property.

7.502 ST'BDIVISION COMPLIANCE

7.502,0l GeneralIy

If " partitlon exceeds two (2, acres and within one (1) year
Ls r-e-partitl-oned into more than two (21 parcets, 'and 

anysingle parcel is ress than one (1) acre in size, full
compliance with the subdivlsion regulations of this Code may
be requl.red.

CHAPTER 7
L2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 620



The city's requirements for dedication of public lands as per
this Coie, inliuAing road rights-of-way and greenways, shall
apply to partitions. Actual- publlc improvements may not be

rLiuirea at the ttme of partition, at the Commission's
discretion.

7.503.A2 Dedications AccePtance

The city Manager shall accept all-public dedications by his or
her signaturi on the parttfton pf3t prior to filing with the
CountY.

?.503.03 Owner Declaration

If a property is belng dedlcated or donated for public t9"'
the mortiage'of trust -aeed holder of the prope-rty shalrl'sign
a declaration to that effect on the partition plat r ot file an
affidavit consenting to the Plat'

7.504 FTLTNG REQUTREMENTS

7.504.01 GeneraIIY

within twelve (L2l months after city approva.l ?f. . minor land
partition, a pirtition plat shalI pe submitted to Washington
County i; aCcordance titn its final partition plat and
recording requirements .

7 .504.02 Extension

After expiration of the twelve (L2l months peri.od following
part,lt,i"; "pt;oval, the partitlon must be resubmitted f or new
-approvaf . 'ine Commissibn may upon written request by the
alittcant, grant an extension up to twelve (12) months upon a

written tin6ing that the facts have not changed to an extent
sufficient to warrant refiling of the partition and that no
otherdevelopmentapprovalwouldbeaffected.

7. s03

7.503.01

7 .600

7.601

DEDICATIONS

Generally

PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENTS

GENERALLY

The City Manager or his or her designge may approYg -a property
line adiustrn6nt without public notice or a public hearing
pioviOed tnat no new IotJ are created and that the adjusted
iot" comply wftn the applicable zone requlrements. If the

CHAPTER 7
13

.)

I

I*J

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 621



property line adJustment ls processed wlth another development
application, all applicable standards of the Code shall aPPIy.

7.602 FILING REQUIREMENTS

If a property ttne adJustment is approved by the City, it does
not become final until reviewed and approved by Tfashington
County in accordance with its property Ilne adJustment
recordLng requirements.

CHAPTER 7
14

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 622



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 623



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 624



CHAPTER 8

ENVIRONT.IENTAL RESOURCES

Page
Section

8.100

I .200

8.201

8.202

8.300

8.301

8.302

8.303

8.304

8.305

8.306

8.307

8.308

8.309

8.310

8.311

PURPOSE

SPECIAL RESOURCE ZONES ' ' '

GENERALLY

FLOOD PLArN (rP) OVERLAY

STANDARDS

PROCEDURES . .

MINERALRESOURCES " " "

SOLID WASTE

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE ' ' ' '

WETLAND' HABTTAT AND NATURAL AREAS

NOrsE.."""
VIBRATION

AIRQUALITY.."'

ODORS

HEAT AND GLARE

ENERGY CONSERVATION

1

I
1

1

LL

11

L2

L4

38

57

59

60

61

62

63

64

.J

I

*t

Chapter 8 Table of Contents Page 1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 625



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 626



8.100 PURPOSE

ChapterSisintendedtoprotect,preserve'andotherwise
properry;";;g" in" citvi" ttittttal and environmental resources

for the benefit of ['tt"- f-nerar ilbllg ' t:,-resulate land

development so as to-'proi"-t lh: pulclic -fro1 natural and

environmentar hazards, ;;; to estabrish performance standards

allowing the city to ir"J.Jv 1"4. uniformly assess the impact

of residentiar, .ornrJr-Ji-J,' irrdo"tli.r, and institutional
deverop*;;t-;;e acri;;i;""' or the quality of the citv's
environment.

CHAPTER 8

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

SPECIAL RESOURCE ZONES

GENERALLY

Specialresourcezonesareestablishedtoprovideforthe
Dreservation, protection, u"a *"".gern-eni of unlque natural and

lnvironmental l""o,rr"es in in" crtv that are deemed to require
additional standards U"VottJlno-"" totttained elsewhere ln this
code. special resour." "orrl";tbe 

implemented as underlylng
or overray zones depending-on pitternJ of property ownership

and the nature of tf,e resourcel A property or properties may

be within nor! ln"r, or," ( 1) resource zone] f n addition, the

Clry may fOeirii''-specfbf' resource areas and appty a PUD

overlay zorre i" 
"a1uu"-"e 

of ""v a"".lopment in order to further
protect said resources'

FLOOD Pr,ArN (rP) OVERLAY

8.200

8.201

8.202

8.202 .OL

A.

PurPose

The fP zoning district is an overlay district that
controls ,rro'i"g;r-i.l;lrooa hazard areas, ilr order to
protect tne punfic neattn, Jafety and general welfarei to
reduce potentiii- ttooa damage 

-losses; and to protect
floodways anc--natuiir araina{err_ays ftoT encroachment by

uses which *il-;&;rsety 
- -"rr"--rt water quality and

waterflow and subseguent .tp"tt"u* or _downstream 
flood

Ievels. The ip-"o"" inurr nE-appfi"g !? all areas within
the base flood, and shatl ;;ppGment the regulations of
ine unaerlYing zoning dlstrict'

FPzoningdistrictsaredeflnedasareaswithinthebase
floodasidentifiedbytheFederalEmergencyManagement
Agency (fEMA)--itt u fiood Insurance Stuhy (FIS) and in

ChaPter I
I

)

J

I

I

I

B.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 627



c

Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) published for the City
and surroundlng areasr or as otherwise identifled ln
accordance wlth Section 8.202.01.C. These FEMA documents
are adopted by reference as part of thls Code, and are on
file in the office of the City Public Works Director.
Vfhen base flood elevatLon data is not available from the
FIS or FIRM, the City shall obtaln, review, and
reasonably utilJ.ze any base flood elevation and floodway
dat,a available from a Federal, State, or other sourccr,
and standards developed by the FEMA, in order to
admlnlster the provlslons of thls Code.

8.202.O2 Greenways

The FP zoning districts overraying the Rock creek and cedar
creek frood plalns are desLgnated greeildays in accordance with
chapter 5 of the community Deveropment Pran. All deveropment
in these two flood plalns shall be governed by the policies in
Chapter 5, and Section 8.304 of this Code, ir addition to the
requirements of Sectlon 8,202. For any new development
subject to subdivJ.sion, partition, conditional use permit t ot
site plan review as per this Code, all lands within a
designated greenbray or any other land within the base frood
shall be dedlcated outright to the public as per Chapter S,
Natural Resources, Pollcy L, and Chapter S, Recreational
Resources, Part 6, notwl.thstanding any deveropment arlohrances
cont.ained in Sectlon I .202.

8.202.03 Development Application

A. Provided land is not required to be dedicated as per
Section 8.202.O2, a conditional use permit (CUp) shall be
approved before any use, construction, fille of,
alteratlon of a flood plain, floodway, or watersourse, or
any other development begins wlthin any Fp zone, except
as provided in Section 8.2O2.O4.

B Application for a CUP for development in a flood plain
shall conform to the requLrements of Sectton 4.300 and
may include, but is not limited to, plans and scale
drawings showing the nature, Iocation, dimensions, and
elevations of the area in question, existing or proposed
structures, fiIl, storage of materlals, and dralnage
facilitles.

The followlng speclfic information is reguired in a floodplain CUP application and shall be certified and verified
by a Registered Civtl Engineer or Architect, The Cttysharl maintain such certiflcations as part of the publi-
record. All certifications sharr be baJed on t,he as-built

Chapter 8
2

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 628



elevations of lowest bullding floors'

1 Elevations in
lowest floor
structures I

relation to
( including

ChaPter I
3

mean sea level of
basement) of

the
aIl

2. Elevations in relation t-o mean sea level to which

any stru"rott ni" 
-u""" floodproofed;

3. That the floodprooflng -methods 
for -any structure

meet tn" t"eit"i?e;t'"-;tl-ir section I' 202' oB'

4.Descriptionoftheextenttowhichany!''atercourse
witl be artJieJ--or relocated as a result of the

froPosea develoPment'

5. A base flood survey- and impact study made by a
-i"gi;t.red civil Englneer'

6.Proofallnecessarynotificationshavebeensentto, and p"ti'il-" -ni"" n"eiilutained from' 'those
Federal, Sa"lJ, or other -local 

government agencies

for which prior . "pptiill- 
=of the proposed

develoPment is requireo'

7 
il{.$J,r"i:"Bi:'fl::iiif 'jt-i"'*.:;I'#i': i':t*tlii
and prop"t t!"i"t or ine application'

D.Whereelevationdataisnotavailableaspersection
8'202'01'B'of,;;;other---sourcesasDersection

8 .202' 01 ' C ' a tr""J"b};i'n - 
cul- shall be reiiewed using

otherrelevanta.-tu,.asdet.ermineobytheCity,suchas
historlcar inrorm*#l;' hiql''-tiiti' marks ' and other

evidenceofpastiiJlol-"g.6hecitymayreguireutility
srrucrures .r,a nu'uillii"' n"rriin'd iri;;i _ei&atiots r and

buirding floodpr;;;i"g; to be."l-i"""t two (2) feet above

theprobablenu".-fi"E6elevatl6'',insuchcircumstances
wnerl more oerinit-ii!-1io"o oata'is not available'

8.202.04 Permitted Uses

rn the Fp zone the f_orlowing _us-e:.are 
permitted--outright' and

do not require a cup;^;;3"iaEa Il?; r-r-JoJttv f low' or f lood

plain ""pi"itv' 
till- "-ot 

be r*p"d!a'-"" d6termined bv the

Clty, anh when g'".,,'u}-oeJr""€io" is not required as per

seclion 8 '202 'O2z

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 629



A' Agricultural use-s, provided that associated structuresare not alrowed, 
- 
except for temporary buirdin;--;;;boundary fences that co not tmp6oe L'r." movement offloodwaters and flood-carrled materLals.

B. Open -space, park and recreational uses, and minorassociated structures, if otherwise aI10wed in theunderlying zonin-g dlstrlct, that do not impede ih;movement of floodwaters and flood-carried mateiials,
c' Public streets and appurtenant structures, and above andunderground uttlttrei, subJect to the provisrons ofSectl.ons g. A0 .0Z and g.202;09.

D. other_ accessory uses arrowed in the underlying zoningdlstrlct that do not involve structures, ana rirrf not, i;the Clty's determlnatlon, materlatly altei irr" "t"uiiitvor storm drainage absorptl.on capatitity of the floo&plain
8.202.05 Conditional Uses

In the FP zone the following uses are permltted as conditionaluses, subj-ec! to the proviiions of Section g.202 and Section4'300, .ld^r^he^q greenway dedication is not required as t;;Sectlon 8,202.02t

A At{ permitted or conditional use allowed inunderlying zoning district, when located in thefringe only, as specifically defined ny tfris Code.

Prohibited Uses

Chapter 8

the
flood

8.202 .06

rn the FP zone the fotrowing uses are expressry prohibited:
A. The storage or processlng of materlals that are buoyant,frammable, contaminant;, exprosiver oE otherwisepotentialry injurious to humanr- animal or prani life.
B. Public and private sewerage treatment systems, includingdrainf ield" l septic ta-nks and individuar packagetreatment plants.
c. Any use.or activity not permltted ln the underryingzonlng distrLct,.
D. Any use or-activity that, in the city's determination,wirr materially alter the stabirlty br st,orm drainageabsorption capability of the flood fifafn

4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 630



E.

8.202.O7

A.

F

Any use or activity tl-tt'
"""fa create an immediate
p"Uii" health, safetY and
flood Plain.

in the CitY's determination'-ot Potential hazard to the
toEriar., if located ln the

Any user activity , - -o-t- 
encroachment located in the

floodway,includlngfill,''.'construction,improvements
toexistingdevelopments,-o'-otherdevelopment,except
as ot,her$ris. 

-;iior"a ny se&ron 8.202.04' and unless

certification by a negisteiJa Engineer or Architect is
provided aemoi6tratirig that the use' activity ' ot
encroachment shall not tt""rl in- any increase to flood
levels during the occurr.tt". of the bise flood dlscharge'

Flood PJ.ain DeveloPment

Flood Plaln Alteratlons

1. Flood Plain SurveY

The flood plain, including the floodway and flood
fringe "i"E"l- "naf-r 

-n"-"'"t"eyed- by a Registered
Civil Engineer, and approv-ea by-11" City' based on

the f indiil;;; tnt frobd rnsurance study ald ot'her

avairabrl'Hi.i. 
-3'J.-n-a.rinearion shall be based on

nean sea level data 
-;;a be field-Iocated from

i--ognrzed valid benchmarks'

2. Grading Plan

Alteration of the existing topography of__ll"od
plain "t"i" 

may be made upon approvat of a grading
planbythecity.rh".!r"''-inarrincludeboth
exist'ing and ptopo""d 

--iofograpny and a plan for
arternal" 

-o-r.i-"igE . Conto-nt- inlervals f or existing
and proposed topograpfiv-.;n-;t1 he- lncluded and sharl
be not more than on.-ii) f-oo! for-oround slopes up

to flve percent (5ti-hna 5or -arLas 
immediately

adjacent i,o a stream'or drainagew-dY' two (2) feet
for grounJ-"ioles.betwEtt tf.t" ind 1en percent (5t
- L081,'ina-iiit (5) feet for greater slopes'

3. FilI and Diked Lands

Proposed flood plai-n fill or diked lands may

be developed it -u 
"ite 

plan for the area to be

altered witnin tn"-iio"b plain is prepared and

certLfied uv " 
-i.gi"t"t"b Clvil Englneer and

approved by in" -6"ttnissj-on pursuant to the

"Firi."ue 
-provisions of this code'

d.

ChaPter 8
5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 631



b Vehicular access shall be provided from a
street above the elevation of the base flood
to any proposed ftll or dLke area if the area
supports structures for human occupancy.
Unoccupied filI or dike areas shall be
provlded with emergency vehicle access.

4 Alteration Site Plan

The certified slte plan prepared by a Registered
Ctvtl Engineer or Architect for an altered ftoodplaln area shall show that:
a. Proposed improvements wiII not alter the flow

of surface water during flooding such as to
cause a compounding of flood hazards or
changes in the direction or velocity of
floodwater flow.

No structure, fiIl, stordge, impervious
surface or other uges alone r ot in combination
with existing or future uses, will materially
reduce the capacity of the flood plain or
increase in flood heights.

c. Proposed flood plaln flll or dlked areas will
benefit the public health, safety and welfare
and incorporate adequate erosion and storm
drainage controls, such as pumps, dams and
gates.

No serious environmental degradation shall
occur t,o the natural features and existing
ecological balance of upstream and downstream
areas.

Ongoing maintenance of altered areas is
provided so that flood-camying capacity will
not be dininlshed by future erosion, settling,
or other factors.

5. Subdivisions and Partitions
AII proposed subdivisions or partltions including
Iand withln an FP zone shall establish the
boundaries of the base flood by survey and shall
dedicate said land as per Section 8.202.02. The
balance of the land and development shall:
a. Be designed to include adequate drainage to

reduce exposure to flood damage, and have

Chapter I
6

b

d

e

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 632



public sewerr 9ds-r electrical and other
iliii.tv systems Jo localed and consLructed to
mLnimiz" pot.ttiiit ttood damage' ds determined
by the CitY.

Provide, for each parcel or lot intended for
structures, . n"ifAing site shaIl be pnovided'
whlch is at, or ibotte, the base f lood
elevation, .nd t".t" alt setback standards of
ine unOeriYing zoning district'

8.202.O9 Flood Plaln Structures

StructuresintheFPzoneshallbesubjectto.thefollowing
conditions, 1n addition to the standafds of the underlylng
zonJ.ng dlstrict:
A. GenerallY

l.Allstructures,including-ulility'eguipment,an9
manufact,rr"A'-no""lng, shail be anchored to prevent
lateral r"*^""t , |'Lotation, or collapse du-ring
flood conditions, and shall be constructed of
flood-resisiinf materials, to stan-da1d.s approved- by

theCltyrstateStructuralandPlumbingspecialty
Coa"= aia applicable building codes'

2.Thelowestfloorelevationofastructuredesigned
f or human ;;;;;;;Y shall be at reast one and

one_half '1--7t2) -f eet above the base f lood
etevarion ""a 

-t[6 building s-i-t-e -"-n1I1 
compty with

th; frovisions of Section 8'202'07'A'

3.Thelowerportionsofallstructuresshallbe
floodprooted iccording to the provisions of the
State structuial and Piumbing Special:y C9g9- t9 "l
elevation of at least one anlo one-half (L/2) feet
iUo*t" the base flood elevation'

4.Thefinishedgrounde]evationofany-underfloor
crawl =p.". "nilff be above t'he gra-de elevation of
an adjacent street, Qt natural or approved
drainageway unless speclfically approved by the
City. A posltive means of drainage from the low
p"ii,t "f sirch crawl space sha1l be provided'

Utllltles
l.Electricalrheatingrventilationrptumbingrand

air-conditioning equipment and other service
facilities located wftrrin structures shall be

b.

B

Chapter 8
7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 633



deslgned and/or otherwlse elevated or located so as
to prevent water from entering or accumulating
wlthln the components during conditions of
flooding.

Electrical servlce equipment, or other utility
structures, shall be constructed at or above the
base flood elevation. AII openings ln utillty
structures shall be sealed and locked.

I{ater supply and sanitary sewer systems shall be
approved by the l{ashJ.ngton County Health
Department, and shall be designed to minimize or
ellminate the infiltration of floodwaters lnto the
systemsr o! any discharge from systems into
floodwaters.

c Resldential Structures

1 AtI residential structures shall have the lowest
floor, includlng basement, elevated to at least one
and one-half (1-L/2) feet above the base flood
elevation.

Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor that
are subject to flooding are prohibLted, or shall be
designed to automatically equalize hydrostatic
flood forces on exterlor walls by allowing for the
entry and exit of floodwaters. Designs for meeting
this requirement must either be certified by a
Registered Engineer or Archltect t et must meet or
exceed the following minimum criteria:
a A minimum of two (21 openings having a total

net area of not less than one (f) square inch
for every square foot of enclosed area subJect
to flooding shall be provided.

2.

3

2

b

c

The bottom of all openings shall be
higher than one (1) foot above grade.

no

Openings may be equipped with screens,
louversr or other coverings or devices,
provided they pernit the automatic entry and
exlt of floodwaters.

Chapter I
I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 634



D

8.202.09

A.

B

Nonresidential Construction

l.AllcommercJ.al,industrialorothernonresidential
structuresshallhaveeitherthelowestfloor'
including basement, elevated to the level of the
basefroodelevation;otttogetherwithattendant
utility and sanitary facilities' shall:

a. Be floodproofed so that below the base flood
Ievelthestructureiswatertightwithwalls
",rO"t"tfialfy 

imlEimeanfe to the passage of
water.

Have structural components capable
rE"i"ti"g hydrostatic ind hydrodynamic
and effects of buoYancy'

b.
of

loads

c Be certified by a Registered Professional
Engineer or nidniiect that the design and

methods of construction are in accordance wlth
acceptea stanOards of practice for meeting all
piovisions of section 8'202'

d. Nonresidential structures that are elevated,
not floodPr oofed, mus t meet same standards for

lowest floor as Per Sectionspace below the
8.202. 08 . C2 .

Additional' Requirements

Dinensionar standards for deveropments in the FP zone

shall be the =-.^" i" in the under-lyilg zoning district,
except as provided in Section 8'202'09'

ApprovalofasiteplanpursuanttoSection5.l00,nalrbe
conditioned by the city to Irot"ct.the best interests of
rhe surrounarig-;;";-;; in"-.orrnunity as a whole, and to
carry out tne-'teims of the Comprehe-n9iy" Plan' These

conditlons may it.ftta", but are not limited to:

1. Increasing the requir-ed lot sizes' yard dimensions'
street *idtn", or off-street parking spaces'

2. Lirniting the height, sLze' ot location of
buildings.

3. Controlling the locatlon and number of vehicle
access Points.

4.LimitingthenumberrsLze'Iocation'orlightingof
signs.

ChaPter 8
9

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 635



5 Requiring diking, fencing, screenl-ng, Iandscaping,
or other facilities to protect the proposed
development, or any adJacent or nearby property.

Designating sites for open space or water retention
purposes.

Construction, lmplementatLon, and maintenance of
special drainage facilities and activities.

Chapter I
10

6

7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 636



8,30O STANDARDS

8.301 PROCEDURES

8.301.01 APPlicabilitY

The standards of Section 8'300'- and applicable portions of

Chaprer S-of rhe co**,iriil' n"".jfoprnent--ptan' shall apply to

any n"t -"Jt" - ot tn"igJJ't?- :lii;i;t uses in commerciar'

industrial and instiiritional ,ott""l -except as per section

8.301.05.

I,301 .02 Confornrance

Conformancewiththe.standardsof.SectionS.300shall,€lta
minimum , ba certified i;";;iiing Pt a professional engineer

and submitred wirh th;' ippii.;tr6n- fbr site. plan review

requiredbySection-i.iool-Eg"P.-i"p"'Section8.301.05.
The writtei certification shall include:

A. Statement certifYltg - tha't
indusrriat or in#i-i,itional 4; if prbperlv managed and

operated, will ";;;'" 
;'.'. cit^Y environmental performance

standards, and - iitrng evidence supporting the

certi fication '
B' ::3lii" l', i"I"iir*iff:';"f"T%"3f"'tff' J'1"-':ffi1"'H::

with city "rrrriro'riro'Jttt-dt 
ferformance standards '

8.301 .03

A.

B.

Addltional Information

prior to accepting any.rand use application to which

section g.300 appries., th: city {1n1ser or his or her

designeer t'dy liJCJrmfne thff -'aaAf ti5naf expertise in
evaluating the applica!ion;';;" Co the complexity of its
impact o. "nrrito-'i*Lntal 

t""ottit"" ' is warianted ' under

such circumsl;;;;;; the city mav- -contract 
with a

professional engineer or oinli qnaiieiea consultant to
Lvaruate ur,a *li3';;;;*;;dations-on speci f ic appt ication
elements rerilivs to city environmentar resource

standards.

Upon the City's determ'lnatlon that additional expertise
13 needed, the applicant snafi O"po"it-a sum equal to the

estlmated cost, ds aet"rtiineo-'nv the city, of such

professional services' ii the actual cost of such

services is t;;;';na; estimate' the applicant sharl be

responsibre rJt-tnt- aitr"t";;;; nrov-igFa however' that
rhe applicanii" 

-ii"anciai---i.ip6tt"i.blIities will not

exceed ten p"l*ri-(10t1 or ln.- ""timate 
without prior

ChaPter I
11

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 637



written authorization. If the cost of such services isless than the estimate, the balance of the deposit shallbe returned to the applicant upon final action on theirland use applicatlon.
8.301.04 Referenced Statutes and Rules

The Federal, Stater or reglonal statutes and rules clted inSection 8.300 are made part of thls Code by reference. Thestatutes and rures cLted are as current at the time ofadoption of thls Code. Tf a referenced statute or rule is
amended by- F_ederal, State or regional agencies, this Code mustbe amended for Lhe new statute or rule-to take precedence.

8.301.05 Exceptlons

The City shall make an initial determination whether aproposed development is subject to any of the standards ofthis Chapter, or whether the-developmenl is exempt. The City
Manager or his or her deslgnee is authorLzed to waive all oi
some of these standards when a proposed development clearlydoes not represent a substanf,iai impact ot- the city'3envLronmental resource standards as per SectLon 8.300. ihefindings of !h-e City Manager or his or her desiqnee shall bemade in wrltlng, and copies shall be forwalded to theapplicant and the Commission. The action of the City Manageror his or her designee may be appeared as per sectlon 3.460.

8.302 MINERAT RESOURCES

8.302.01 Permitted Activities
MLneral extractlon and processing, including sand and gravelpits, rock crushers, concrete and asphart mixing prantS, arepermitted in the Gf Zone as conditional usesl -subject tosection 4.300, and the forlowing special conditions.

8.302.O2 Spectal Conditions

The following special conditions apply to mineral extraction
and processlng activities:
A. The apprlcant sharl provlde a plan for the rand fromwhich the sand and gravel will be excavated showingcontours on at least five (5) foot intervals, and all

improvements on the land and within three hundred (300)feet of the property.
B. Mineral extraction a1d processtng shall not be permittedcloser than thirty (30) feet to the boundary of adjacentproperty, nor closer than three hundred (300) feet to any

Chapter I
L2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 638



c

existing residence, unless the o!'tner or owners of such

adJacent ptoplity sig-n a. wrltten consent to a lesser
dlstance, orra 

- tn" -Comrnlsslon approves such lesser
distance. Th; commission may set^ greater separations as

wiiranted by specific slte conditions'

The Commlssion shall specify d"-p!lt' degree of bank slopes
and the distance f rom uny ptt6li'; . st:uctures ' for all
excavations made in or near itream beds. The commission
sharl determiiE-seinacrs from public rights-of-way when

excavations are near such rights-of-way'

Sandandgravelshallbeexcavatedinsuchamannersoas
to teave .r, "rrJtige 

of two (2) feet r -ot more if specified
by the commissidrr, of unai'sturueo material over the
entire "*..*ruiion 

tract. nxcavations sharl be conducted

sothatexcavatedareaswillnotcollectandretain
stagnant water.

Afterdrypitsandandgravelexcavationshavebeen
completed, tne opEiitor snifl evenly spread excess waste

materials over ln" bottom of the pii' and then shall
;;;;it-;!reaa topsotr -to a minimum depth of one and one-

hatf (L-L/21 rlei, unless evidence iJ produced that the
Iand excavated 

-h"'d -i""" than one and one-half (L-L/z;
feet or topsoil prior to commencement of operations.

Haulageroadswithintheexcavationtractshallbe
maintained in 

-" 
i"."onably dust-free condition' Hours of

;;;;;i;", ""r""" 
otnertiie spe-cified bv the Commission'

siall be irom 5:00 €l'IIl' to 7:00 p'm'

Rock crushers, concrete and asphalt mixing p-Ian-ts may be

permitted; proviaing that the crushers and plants are
accessory to tne sand and gravel operations and primarlly
use mateliats excavated on-site'

The operator shall post security it " f-orm acceptable to
the city in a 

""rn "q:oa} 
qo _the n-umber of acres within the

excavation tr"Eir--*rrrtrpried by five-hundred dorlars
($500.00), to-Ltt"nt" tuif compilance-with all of the
terns and regulations pertainiirg t-o thg extraction and

processing of ianA atta gtivel' The minimum amount of
such bond snarite two th-ousand five hundred ($2r500-00)
and the maxinnrm amount twenty f lve thousand dollars
($25,ooo.oo).

D.

E.

F

G

H

Chapter I
13

I

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 639



I The operator shall furnish evidence of Iiability
insurance of not less than flfty thousand dollars
($50,000.00) for any negligent act or omission in the
operatlon or malntenance of sand and gravel pit, and the
extraction and production of sand and gravel, and all
activities connected withr or lncidental thereto.

Prlor to Commission actlon on a conditional use permit,
the action shall be advertised as per Section 3.200, and
the property shall be posted as to the proposed use for
a perlod of fifteen (15) days. This posting shall
conslst of a sign or slgns, the number of whlch shall be
determined by the City, three (3) feet by four (4) feet,
posted in conspicuous Iocations visible from public
rights-of-way.

SOLID WASTE

J

8.303

8.303.01 Solid Waste FacLllties.
Solid waste facilltles are permitted in the General Industrial
(GI) and Light Industrial (tI) Zones as described in those
Sections of the Code. Permitted solid waste facilities are
subJect to the revLew procedures, site improvements and other
standards of SectLon 8.303.

8.303 .02 Solid lfaste Incinerators
The operatLon of solid waste lnclnerators for any commercial,
industrial, or institutional purpose is prohibited in the
City. For the purposes of this Section, solid waste is
defined as per ORS 459.005 (24) , and lncludes infectious wastes
as per ORS 459.386 (2'). Provided said inclneration or burning
is otherwise properly permitted, this prohibitlon shall not
apply to furnaces, incineratorsr ox stoves burning wood or
wood-based products, petroleum products, natural 9ds, or to
other fuels or materials not deflned as solid waste, to yard
debris burningr or to small-scale specialized inclnerators
utilizlng solid waste produced as a by-product on-site and
used only for energy recovery purposes. Satd small-scale
specialized incinerators must be integral to and part of, but
clearly anclllary secondary and incidental to, a permitted or
conditionally permltted use in the City, and cannot utilize
lnfectious wastes or any fuels derived fron infectious wastes.
This prohibition shall not apply to solid waste incinerators
lawfully permitted to operate prior to September 5, 1990, but
shall appty to any expanslon, alteratlon, or modlficatlon of
such a use or any applicable permits.

Chapter I
t"4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 640



8.303.03 Accessory Use Solid waste Facilities

Thefo].Iowingsolidwastefacilitiesarepermitted,subjectto
the applicable regulafiLns or the zone, as an accessory use to

a permitleo or-cdnaiii.""r-,r"t wiCnLrit being subject to the

coiralttonal use reviewl

l.Householdhazardouswastedepot,providedthe
facility rs--iccdssory to a public facility or to a

u"" tn ln industrial zone'

2.Smallscalespecializedincinerator-,^providedthe
facility complies- with Section 8'303'02 and does

not accepr ,5i" than twJ-nunareO and twenty (2201

pounds p"t d"V of waste from off-site'

3. Recycling drop-!9*::'-provided they also comply

"iti, secfion e'SOS'09'E'5'

8.303.04 Multiple Purpose Solid Waste Facility

A solid waste facility may ]T:l"d" more th?l one kind of

facitity as defined_'-in sLction 
-i.zoo, Definitions' An

applicari;rh;tlncruies tot" tn1" L"6 itl kind of facilitv
is permifted in a gi.rJJL". ""rv 

il ;iI br'tn" -uses 
proposed

in rhe faciliry are ;;r"ti;t"g +_lrt.f-r""". rf anv of the

usesproposedare-al.i"'"aonly""-.Londitionaluseinthe
zone, th]en all of the uses p'opoi"J snarr be considered

conditional uses'

8.303.Q5 Temporary So1id Waste Facility'

Temporarysolid.wastefacility.Thefollowingso}idwaste
facilitles may be approved as a temporary ,t?e in any zone

withour being subj".5"i"-I""Jrtionqr- use-revi'ew if the use

operate"-noi'rnor"- tn-an lnree (3) days per ca.lendar month'

subjecr only to the Oimensfonal ieqttii6nerits of the underlylng

zo^e (e.g., setback"-"-""O neidnil , ana --tI" applicable
provisionJ br section- e .10J. og, -site Improvements ' and the

appropri"l" 
--requir"rn"r,t" of ' s""ii"""' 8'303'06 through

8 .303.08:

1.

2.

3.

Household hazardous !'taste '

Resource RecoverY FacilitY'

Yard debris dePot'

ChaPter I
15

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 641



8.303.05 Application Contents

rn addrtLon to submltting land use apprLcation formsprovided by the city of sherwood, and in accordance with
other sections of this code, the applicant shall describeat least the forlowing features of, the proposed facillty:

A.

1.

2.

3.

Capacity and proJected life.
The population or lndustries to be served.

The amount of solid waste that is expected to be
accommodated at the facility from the populatlon orindustries to be served, including mafimum daily
and monthly amounts and average anhual volume an&welght of waste to be received.

4 For a landflll, planned future uses of the siteafter closure.

5. The_quantity of each type of waste stream proJected
to be acconmodated at the facility. Examples of
waste streams include domestic waste, conmercial
and instltutional waste, industrial waste,construction and demolition waste, agricultural
waste, sehrage sludge, and contaminated clean-up
naterials.

6. The operating characteristics of the facility,
including equipment used, hours of operation, andvolume, distributlon, and type of traffic
associated with the use, and a traffic study ifrequired by Section 8.303.09 of this Code

7. The kind or klnds of facirity or facilitiesproposed, based on the solid braste facilitydefinitions in Section 1.200, Definitions.
The apprlcant shalr submlt the followlng information aspart of the application, unless the tranning Directorfinds thatr- given the scale and nature of the facility,a requested item will not materially aid the approvitauthority in revlewing the proposar, lnd the item is nototherwise required to be submitted under this code.

A written description of the location of the siteyit! respect to known or easily identifiable
landmarks and access routes to and from the areathe facllity wlll serve.

Chapter 8
16

B

1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 642



4

2.

3

5.

6,

A leqal description of the tract or tracts to be

used for the facilitY'

Except for an accessory- facility' a map or maps

showing the i".iiion 6r the slte' existing and

aoproved land "-"* within _a-minrmum two hundred and

?ii;;'iisoi-i"ii-tuai"s of the boundarv or the site
inside tn" t"qionaf urban giottn boundary or within
a minimum rii-"""ri.r'tt;;;J-- ('-o I -f oot radius of the

slte oursLde'in"'-i"gton_ai uiban growth boundary;
public water ;'fuly -we11s', surface waters' access

roads wirhin ;h;fladius; niscoric sites, areas of
signific"rrt "i*tii""tn""tai- 

concern or resources' or

slgnificant """ito"t"ntal 
-ieatures identified ln

the Communrty"be-veJopt.nt piin, Part 2 ' withln the

applicabte tuai""; ot-her existlng or approved

manmade or "il"t'"f 
features rel-ating ' t'o tlg

facility; and a north arrow' bar scale' and drawing

date.

Except for an accessory use or temporary facility'
an aertal pn"lll""pn'of the site and the area

within tne rei-ev-al-rt ?adius ritn the boundary of the

site outlined'

Except for an accessory or temporary facility' a

map or maps "noti"g 
the- existini topography of the

site with .""il"i-iniervals not- to exceed two (21

feet if slope"-.* ft"" than five percent (5*)' not

to exceed rii"--tl) iJet if slopes are more than

f ive percent iI* il'and. 5ro! to exleed ten ( 10 ) feet
if slopes "t" ft,bt" than twenty percent (20t);
natural featur!"'"i the site inctriOing water bodies

and wetland";'ih; uounoary of -t\e -one 
hundred

?i6o)':t;;; ir'""a prain based on Federal Emersencv

Managem"rrt agJt;;y 
-ttl;; public easements of recordi

manmade t"atuieJ incridint building?:- utilities'
fences, to.l"r- parking areas' and dralnage
features; noiliiarf-es 

--o-- existin! waste disposal
areas and soil borrow "t"""' 

if i"{t- locations of
borings, piezometers, monitorin-g wells' test pits'
water supply-;;ll;,' and f acitity monitoring or

sampling points--ana devlces; a benchrnark; and a

northarrow,barscale,anddrawingdate.
For a landfill, data regarding average annual and

rnonthly precipilation and- evaporation and

prevailing ti"a- Olrectton and velocity' based on

data from r["- Uallonaf Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administrati;; oi other federal 0r state agency' or
from on-site measurements'

Chapter I
L7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 643



7 For a landfill, information regarding minimum,
maximum, and average annual flow rates and monthly
varLatlons of streams on the slte, based on streamgauging data collected by the U.S. Geological
Service or other federal or state agency
supplemented with reliable site specific data as
avallable.

8. A map or maps showing and describing the type and
size of existing vegetatlon on the site, and
ldentlfylng vegetatlon to be removed and retalned.

9. A gradJ.ng plan showing site elevations when grading
ls completed, inctuding any modifications to
drainage channels and any required retaining walls
or other means of retalnlng cuts or fitts.

t0. A qite plan showing prgposed structures, signs,parking, outdoor storage, landscaping, beims,
fencing, and other features of the facility.

11. Responses to the applicable standards of Section
8.303.09 of this Code.

L2, If other local, state or federal permlts
requlred for construction and operatlon of
proposed facility:
a. The appllcant shall submit a copy of such

permlt(s); or

b. The applicant shall submit:

(1) A schedule for submitting the requiredpermits; a description of the requlrements ofthe laws and regulations applicable to suchother .Iocal, state or federal permits; a
summary of how the applicant proposes to
comply with the requirements; a list of whlch
regulations requlre local land use approval;
and a list of potentlally conflictlng local,
state or federal standards; and

(2) A copy of any application filed for
another local, state or federal permit for the
proposed facility within ten ( 10) working days
after it, is filed with the local, state or
federal agency; and

Chapter 8
18

are
the

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 644



c A coPY of anY $t-rittel-.
pubf fiireO notice f rom the
iederat agency regarding
within ten ( 10 ) worKl.ng

"ppii"""t 
receives that

"-olr"" 
f rom the local '

agency.

corresPondence or
Iocal, state or

that aPPlication
days after the

correstPondence or
state or federal

8.303 .07

A

Review Procedures and' Burden of, Proof

Before acceptlng an applic.atj-on as complete' the Planning

Direcror *"V i"Eil? l-Oi-iti"".i e*pertise is warranted to

evaluate it due to "*";;ti"ttil . circumstances ' the

complexity of the proposeJ'facility' or its potential
impacts. The pi."ni"g Ofr!"ioi *.V'[tre a professional
enqj-neer with the necessary-"*p"tti.se !? make a written
eviluation of the specific Lpii-i"ution elements reguired

fursuant to this Code'

1. The written evaluations-shall. be-llailable no later
than thirty (30) 6aY? after the applj'cant submits a

deposit to-pay for the-r"tr. wr[nin t'en (L0) days

after the written """i"u[i"" 
is available' the

Planning Director "h;ii--determine 
whether the

appllcatfon-is compfeie una uottise the applicant in
writing - accorainbfy' listing 'any 

addltional
informatj.onrequiredt;-mak6theapplication
comPlete.

2. The Planning Director shatl draft a work program

and estimate the to"t- of hiring a professional
engineer--'titn the necessary expertise for the

wrltten evaluation uttJ-"n.ii- aOvise the applicant
ofthatcost,whichshallnotexceedten(10)times
the "ppii."dio" 

ree 
-ioi oller 

- 
reasonabre linit)

unless "';;;;;;J 
bv tne appricant' rhe appricant

shall deposit a sum equaf-io the estimated cost of

such ".f.ri""" 
before=-Ii"- upprication is deemed

complete-.Ifthe.o"i-ors1r-cn_servicesisless
thanestimated'thecll'sharrrefundanyexcessto
the "pprf"u"t-' 

rf i;d ;;;i of such services is
more than estimateal'--tne gity ,shall bill the

appticanl- f;; such "iariiottur 
cbst; provided' the

costofsuchservicesshallnotexcee-donehundred
ten percent ( t' 1-0t )- 9.f tne estimated cost unless the

appticanl."i_tGCityagreesinwritingtoassume
sirin addltlonar cost '

3. The provision does not authorize the City to
collect money from an-ippricant for independent

evaluation of ongoing oi6rations or performance

ChaPter I
19

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 645



B

c

D.

review of a facility. A fee may be reguiredpursuant to sectlon 8.303.08.r'. before renewal, butnot at the time of application or approval.
An appltcatlon for a sorld waste facllity under this codels complete tf any wrltten evaruatlon reguired underSection 8.303.07.A. has been completed, and if:
1 The application includes substantiar evidence thatthe_ proposed facillty wiII comply wlth theappllcable development standards in Section8.303.09 or conditions that may be necessary toensure compliance; or

2. The apprlcation includes substantiar evidence thatthe proposed facillty ls likely to comply with theapplicable development standards in Section8,303.09, identifies any necessary evidence not yetsubmitted' and provides a reasonable schedure iorlts submisslon;

3. The application includes information required to besubmitted under Section 9.303.06 of this Code,except to the extent waived by the planning
Director.

The city sharl provide pubric notice and an opportunityfor submission of written information and,/or fof a public
hearing to consider compriance within the terms ol tnis
Code.

An apprlcant for a sorld waste facitlty bears the burdenof provlng that a faclrity compries wtln this code. Theforlowing presumptions and procedures appry whenevaluating compliance with the burden of proo-f-: -

1. An appricant is rebuttabry presumed to have met theburden of proof if thq appricatlon incrudessubstantiar evidence that the Gctrity will complywith the standards for estabrishment of tnefacility in section g.303.09 and conditionsproposed by the planning Director to ensure such
compliance.

Substantial evidence can be rebutted only byevidence of equal or greater probative varue. roiinstance, testimony from a professionar englneerabout a given subJect ln whlch an enginedr hasexpertise _may be rebutted only by teJtimony orevidence from another professional- engineer br aperson similarly qualified about th;t subject.
Chapter 8

20

2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 646



3.

4

Testimony from an expert witness regarding matters
relevant to the expertise of the wltness cannot be

rebutted by t."tltiotty from a non-expert witness '
This subsection does nol limit wnat may be

introduced as-lestitony; it affects the weight to
U. uc"otded that testimony'

If evidence of equal probative value is offered
that a given iaciritv d6es itta ao"" not -comply with
a given stanaiia or ihat a proPosed cond-itlon is or
is not adequate to ensure 6"*6ffunce,. .the approval
authorlty snaii t"igni tn" L"iaence' Ldentify which

evj.dence ia ""l.ptl'ii 
tttg basis for its decision'

and exprain ;}-i*ieviaence is accepted and whv

E""tiiiv evidence is rejected'

The approval authority sha1l issue all necessary

land use computiuiirty- stut"ments to the applicant
or to applicaUt" fo"ti, state ' ot federal agencies'
and a finar 

-;;"i;i;n'wlrh appropriate fLndlngs'
conclusions ""J 

- conditions or- 
- appro-Yat, if ' af ter

the appropriate review process' 11 finds there is
substantial..'iA"tt""thatthefacilitycomplies
with alr "ppiiliiie 

provisions of this Code and

ctty raws l";;;;;iut5a bt reference' subJect to
appropri.ate conditions, and that such evidence $tas

not ef f ectiv"-I;;;fiCt"a and does not need to be

supPlemented.

Tf , af ter a publi-c hearing ( or another initial
level of revibw i tor insta-nce' the close of the
public t"totd- following pubtic notice and an

opportunfty to file writt-en?omments)' the approval
airlnorttY f inds that:

a. There i-s substantial evidence that the
facility complies with some aPPlicable
provisions of ints Code and such evidence was

not renultla and does not need to be

suPPlemented to resolve disPutes;

b. There is not substantial evidence that the
facilitf "otpfi"" 

with one or more applicable
fio"i"r6rri oi this code r ox evidence necessary
for approval was rebutted or requires
augment-i-ng to resotve disputes; and

c. It is likely that the applicant-wiII provJ-de

the remalnlng necessary-lunstantlal evldence
within "i.-j,il 

-months, ihe approval authority
shall:

ChaPter I
2L

5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 647



6.

(1) Issue a written final decision approving
the proposed facility in concept that, among
other things:

(a) Identifies standards with which the
application complies and provide findings
and conclusions showing why it complies,
based on substantlal evidence in the
record, and subJect to appropriate
conditions of approval;

(b) IdentifLes evidence the applicant
must submlt to show the proposed facility
complies wlth other appllcable provisi.ons
of this Code, imposes a schedule for its
submission, and includes any requirements
pursuant to Sectlon 8.303.07.A abovei and

(c) Describes how that substantial
evidence will be reviewed, including any
publLc notice and heari-ng requirements.

(2') Issues all necessary land use
compatlbility statements to the applicant or
to appllcable local, state, or federal
agencLes.

The approval authorlty shall issue a flnal decision
that denies the application Lf, after the
appropriate review process, it finds that:
a. The record does not contain substantial

evidence that the facility complies with aII
applicable provisions of this Code or could
comply given the imposition of conditions, in
which case the declsion shall identify the
section(s) about which the record does not
contain substantial evidencei or

There is more persuaslve and at least equally
substantial evldence contrary to evldence that
the proposed use complies with appticable
standards of this Code or could comply given
the imposition of conditions, in which case
the decisi.on shall identify the provisions for
which evldence agalnst the facility
over:r'rhelmed the evidence in favor, and

The applLcant declines to supplement the
record regarding standards identified pursuant
to Sectlons 8.303.07.D and 6. a. and b. above,

Chapter 8
an

b

c.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 648



9.303 .08

A

B

oritisnotlikelythatsubstantialevidence
necessary to addiess standards identified
pursuanttosectlons8.303.07.Dand6.a.and
b. above will be available wlthin six (6)
months after the date of the decision'

Conditions of Approval and Enforcement

The approval authority may aPprove an application-f?t u

iicifity sufl-ct to c6nditions of approval. Conditions
oi 

"ppr6val 
inatl be reasonably lelated-to impacts of-the

iicflity, the requirements of ttris Code and provisions
ir.o"poiated heretn. rn no lnstance may an approval
i,rtnoiity impose as a condition of approval a requirement
that a tacifiiy be publicly or privatety owned._ _ AtI
facilities appioved 

- pursua-nt to this Code shall be

subJect to a'6onditlon requiring that landscapitg, air
and water quatity structures- and devices, signs,
structures, iavea areas, and other features of the
facility ne miintained in good c-ondition, .t9 !ha-t such
featurel be replaced 1f tney fal1 to survlve or are
rendered ineffective over time'

conditions of approval may require_an applicant to submit
a wrltten statement or permit from state or federal
agencies responsible for adminlstering a regulation to
which the pr"p""Ea facility is subJect, tf the record
does not contdin such a statement or permit'

t. such a condition may fulfill provisions of code
sections relating tb Noise, odors, Ground and
surface water, iir Quality and Treatment and
Storagethatthefacilitycomplywithstateor
federal regulations, subJe-t to ? further condition
that the ipplicant submlt a written statement or
permrtsnowi-ngthepropoPegfacitltycomplles-wlth
tne appficable state oi federal regulation before a

building pernit is issued for the facilityi and

2 such a condltion shall require approprlate review
andallowmodificationofthedecisionand
conditions of approval regarding the a-p-plication if
a state or fedeial permiL substantially changes_ a

proposeA facillty f-rom what was approved by th9
citvinwaysrelevanttoapplicableprovisionsof
Section 8.303.09.

Chapter I
23

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 649



c.

E.

F.

8.303 .09

A

D

All facilities approved pursuant to this Code shall
comply lflth appllcable state and federal regulations as
a conattion of approval. Approval of a facility pursuant
to this Code does not preclude imposition of more
strlngent state or federal regulations adopted after the
effectLve date of thls Code.

Any facility that is required to obtain a franchise or
Iilense from the Metropolitan Service District (Metro)
shall obtai-n the franchise or license and provide a copy
of it to the City before a bulldlng permit is issued for
the facility.

The Clty shall enforce the condltlons of approval
pursuant to Section 1.101.04, Vlolatlons. If Metro
issues a franchise or license for the facility, the City
shall send to Metro a copy of any written correspondence
or notices City sends to the applicant regarding
enforcement of condttlons of approval. Metro may remedy
violatLons of conditlons of approval regarding the
facility and charge the franchisee or licensee for the
cost of such remedial action unless provided otherwise in
the franchise or license.

The City may periodically conduct a performance review of
an approvecl- facillty to determine whether it continues to
compty wlth the criteria and standards then applicable
and- to modify conditions of approval that apply to the
facillty so Ltrat it contLnues to comply. The approval
authority shall specify the time for any performance
review. The city may impose a fee for performance
review.

Site Improvements

Setbacks, Landscaping and site design impacts:

1 The facility shall conply with the setback
requirements and height, limits of the underlying
zone. However, if the facility adjoins a
commercial zone, the minimum setback sha1l be one
hundred (1.00) feet, and lf the facillty adJolns a
residential or open space zone, the minimum setback
shall be two hundred (200) feet.

Chapter I
24

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 650



2 Structures, exterior storage and.Progessing areas'
and vehicle *urr.,.*r"ting -and parkiirg tt:-prohibited
in setbacks-"-itq"it5a pitrsoant to Section
6lsos.og.e.1 above, excePt that:

a. The approval authority may reduce lle required
serback ii-it-iinds tliat i lesser setback will
not ua""t""irt-lf tect the privacy' use' or
visual cnaiicter of existing qse? on adjoining
Iand, Uasea on the scale and design of the use

or strucl-ui. t i ll landscapilg . ?"9 buf f ers ' ot
on the topography' 

- ve!-etition' or other
nituraf feadures of the slte;

b. Minor building features such as eaves'
chimneys, fire ""ttp"J' 

-bty windows' uncovered
stairs, *n"Er"hair lamis'--"ld Ytt-99^t"t"d 

decks

no more 
'til; -inr"" 

( 3 ) f eet above grade may

extend "il'-io 
- tv'tenti percent ( 20* ) into a

required setback;

c. Attached nechanical structures such as heat
punps, uir"c"ttaitiott"rs ' emergency oenerators '
and btater pumps may extena 

-into '^ required
setback, except adJoining o-r across a street
from an abutting resldential zonei

d. Fences, waIls, berms' landscaping' access

drives, "rra 
an entrv sign(s) are permitted in

the setback; and

e. Notwithstanding lht precedinl''- "ttuctures
shall be situated "o inty cornply -wit! th:
Uniform 

- g"lfdi"g Code' State of oregon

Structural Specialty Code' 6s adopted in
Oregon.

Exterior building surfaces shalI b9 finished'
Metal used orr-Jn. 

-"xterior or tn" building shall be

anodized or p.i-"t"lU--latvanized or coated steel
;ii;il-"ot be teft unPainted'

Buitdings with walls containj'ng more than twenty-
five hundred (2,500) squa; i"Jt above orade shall
incorporate f ascias, canopils ' ii""aes ' 

-or muttiple
colors or buildlng materiais-io break up large wall
surfaces visually into - tt"t" of one thousand

( t 
' 
000 ) "g,r.t-"--i6"t 

- 
"t f ess ' unless it would be

contrary to the p"tpo"".o? the wall' such as for
retalning ".r!il 

ot for structural support'

3.

4

ChaPter 8
25

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 651



6

7

I

5. Attached mechanical structures and roof-mounted
equipment shall be screened from ground-Ievel viewat adJoining public streets and property zonedresidential or open space. Screening may include
landscaping, sight obscuring fencihg or other
features.

Tlrg faclltty shall not cause glare or lights toshine off site in excess of one-half (0.5)
footcandle onto non-industrial zoned land, based ona written statement certified by a professional
engineer.

Structures shall not obstruct scenic views orvistas ldentified in t,he Community DevelopmentPIan, Part, 2, although structures may be viliUte
from off site.
MaJor activity areas of the site, such as loading
ald delivery areas, shall be oriented away from
adJoining land zoned for residential or open space
uses.

9. At least twenty percent (20*) of the facirity siteshall be landscaped with living vegetation in anappropriate medlum, such as yard debris compost.
Landscaped areas sharr have a permanent irrigition
system equipped with automatic controls. Where
landscaping is situated in required setbacks or
adJoins bulldings and other structures, it shallinclude evergreen specles at least six (6) feet
above grade at planting and situated not farther
apart than the radius of the crown of a maturespecimen. The approval authority may waive or
reduce the leve1 of landscaping where necessary toallow sight distance for vehicular traffic,- toenable views of signs or other features of thefacility that shourd be visible to enhance thefunction of the facility t ot to protect solaraccess to adJoining property. The approvalauthority may require rarger or more numerous trees
where necessary to reduce the potential adversevisuar effects of a facirity. Existing significantvegetation shall be retained, where feasible, andmay substitute for other reguired vegetation.
Landscaping in setbacks and parking lots counts
toward the twenty percent (20t).

HistorLc Resource fmpacts

The facility sharr not adversery affect historic
Chapter I

26

B.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 652



c

D.

2.

resources llsted in the communlty Developme-nt Pl-al, Part
2, (or invent-ory-or hlstoric resources adopted by the
Eitvi. A r"crritv comp_ties wirh rhis srandard if the
sire and adj;i;i;; lant do nor conrain an identified
historic resource ind are not in an historic district'
If the site or adJoining land contains such a resoutce,.
rhen rhe "ppri"inJ 

iriarr show rhe facility design
pi""".',t"" the historic resource character'

Operating ImPacts

1. Exterior activities are prohibited between 10:00
p... and 7:00 a.m. daily, elcep!.that vehicles may

continue to enter and efit the sit'e and maintenance
may be conducted at all hours if they d-o ^1ot
violate appifcaUfe provisions of Sectlons 8'304'
Noise, e.ios vibration, and sections 8.303.09 A. 6.
and I and I.2 during any hours'

For a solid waste transfer station' most solid
r""tt may be stored in an op-en pi-t^:r.floor inside
a-building foi up to twentyifour (24) hours or in a

""ii"a coitainer- on the sige for up to -seventy-two
(72't hours. S.purated recycled -materials may be

Jtoieo on the sit" for up 1o thirty (30) days in
unsealed containers.

Signage ImPacts

l.SignsshallcomplywithsignregulationsofSection
S.7OO, excePt as Provided herein'

2. If the facility is open to, !h" publ ic' - the
appricant- snhr 'provlde -a sign(s) at each public
entrance-to the -facllity that is clearly legible
and vistbie fron the adJotning public road. The

"igr, snaii identify the -name or the facility, the
name and telephone number of the operator, and
hours oi operition of t'he f acility' The entry
sign(s) *.y- n. up to thirty-t'wo- (32) -square feet
p"i siOe ind up -!o ten t fOl feet above grade'
unlessthezone-allowslargersigns.Directional
information to ori-ent drivels shall be included on

the entry sign(s) or on interior signs'

3.Asign(s)describingrecommendedaccessroutest,o
the facfiii', materfals accepted, instructions for
correct --pi.putatlon of accepted materiars,
recycling' s6rvices, and fees for disposing
material! shalt be posted at the facility. ,signs
interiortothesiteshallbecoordinatedand

Chapter I
27

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 653



4

consistent in appearance.

Slgns that use recycled materials, including
recycled plastic, are encouraged. Sign quallty and
appearance shall be appropriate to the character of
the arear ds determlned by the approval authority.

E Outdoor storage Inpacts.

1. No mixed solid waste or recovered materi.al shall be
stored outside l-n unsealed containers, except:

a In a landfill or composting facility approved
for that purposei

b. SoIid waste or recovered material that is
inerti or

c As otherwise allowed in this Section
8.303.09 E. In all circumstances' outdoor
storage of hazardous wast,e is prohibited.

2 Source-separated materials other than yard debris
and wood waste sha1l be stored in containers in an
area enclosed on at least three (3) sides and
roofed except that in a rural zone, such materials
shalt be enclosed on any side visible from
adJoining public or private property and roofed.

Wood waste, yard debris, and solid waste in sealed
containers may be stored outdoors if it complies
with the applicable dimensional and design
standards. Yard debris shall be removed from the
site on at least a weekly basis.

3

4

5

Storage areas larger than two (2) cubic yards
recovered materials shall be enclosed.

for

Drop boxes for recyclable materials on the site of
a solid waste facillty shall be painted and
maintained ln good repair, situated on a paved
surface and emptied before collected items exceed
the height of the box or within five (5) days of
becoming full. The applicant shall post a notice
on any recycllng drop box, statlng that only
domestic recyclable or reusable materials, such as
paper, cardboard, glass, tin, aluminum, plastic and
clothlng are permitted. The notice shall also
state that yard debris, appllances, or other large
items that may be repairable, recyclable or
reusable are prohlblted, unless the box ls deslgned

Chapter I
28

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 654



F

for that purpose' Th-e name and telephone number of
the opettli-t snaff also be posted on the box'

6. Outdoor storage -aT9as shall n9t be visible when

viewed from a height ot- iive (5) feet at the edge

of the property' except as provided above' A

facillty-J"f;pii"i wirn -tnis sdandard when outdoor
srorage i;;,i;i;a-"iini" a sight obscurins fence'
wall, berm, or fana-scaning at least six (6) feet
high, n#'rioJ*oi" tn"i-t-eti irol feet high' A wood

fence is siEht obscuring tn"" at-ta-ched vertical or

horizont"r-i"n""boards-areseparatedbynotmorethan on!lr;;;; - titi\- inctr' - -- A metar rence

consistiig"Ji-l'n.ii-li.;k or r^roven fabrlc is sight
obscurlng when water inO insect r-eslstant wood or
plastic 5f Ji"'ur. f*"ii"a-f tt the _fence material so

rhey "r"-??-f.raiea 
ny-noi *or" than three-eighths

(g/81 incti.--it"a""upirrl-i"- "lgnlrcbscuring 
when it

includes evergreen matdrial at least six (6) feet
htgh "rri iroJ-*oi" tn"" -t-r" (z',) feet on center at

Plantlng.
Litter ImPacts

1. For purposes of lltter control' dD area described
asthe"Primaryrmpaci;;;;sirarrbeestabllshed
around the proposed ii"i-iity' - -Tl" Primary rmpact

Area is the area within -"tttiin litter and illegally
dumped "lilJ tu"t" i-s'pi"tume! t9 be a result of
rhe pre";;;; oi i sorio-ri"i" facllltv' rlregalrv
dumped;;;i;consists-ofsolidwasteinexcessof
two tZl JuUic VarOs at' i-gi-ven-toSation' and litter
includes lesser .*o,ttrt" 6i solid waste at a given

locatlon

2.ThePrimarylnpactAreashallextendatleastone-
half (L/2) rnile froq th; facility boundarv a long
prlmary'il",it"- to the faclllty' as identif ied in
the traf f ic study' th" apprbval t'"t-l"t::I^.t"Y
expand tn. -primari r*pi.t.-ii""_based on specific
conditions or if otfrerwise warranted based on

annual review of iiiegar dumping and litter
Patterns in the area'

3. Except as specified in Subsection 5 of this
section, the applicant snari submit to city a plan
to eliminate litter 1n the Primary- I-qnac! Area'
The plari'"nu1f-inctual at least the following:

a. A proposed delineation of the Primary Impact
Area;

ChaPter I
29

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 655



d

e

b. Appropriate gates, signs and other trafficcontrol devices to direct traffic to thefacllity along approved routes that, to theextent posslble, avoid public parks,
residential and retail districts and majorpublic attractionsi

c Establishment of a patrol to remove litter
along designated routes within the Frimary
Impact Area on a schedule that, in the opinionof the approval authority, is sufficient toprevent accumulation of litter;
Provisl.ons for the removal of illegally dumped
waste within the primary impact area within
twenty-four (24) hours of discoveryi
Provisions to make available written
information that describes access routes tothe facility, fees for wastes permitted at the
facility, surcharges for delivery of uncovered
loads, if approprlate, and recycling
incentives; and

f. For a landfill, a description of measures to
be used to minimize blowing of litter from the
slte, such as perlodic application of cover
materlal, spraying with liquid r ot use ofportable fencing.

The facility operator shall be responsible for thecost of collecting, removing and dlsposing oflitter and illegally dumped waste wtttrin thePrimary Impact Area. In addition, the operatorshall take reasonable measures to assist the Cityin identifying sources of iIIegaI waste. If theCity identifies a source of iJ-Iegal waste, the City
nay take measures to reimburse the operator for thecost of collection and proper disposal of the
waste

The requirements of this Section 9.303.09.F. shallno!- apply to a facility t,hat is not, open to thepublic and receives waste only fn sealed
contalners, or to any facrrlty l-nvolved excruslvely
ln recycling.

Chapter 8
30

4

5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 656



G Vector Control ImPacts

For any facility where. solid waste could sustain or
attract rodents dr lnsects, n""u,tt" of the solid waste in
question or ln, environmental characteristics of the
site, the "ppii""rrl 

shall submit and implement a plan to
reduce the poientral for rodent and insect propagation
usJ.ng met.hoclJ--esrgnea to mlnLmlze nulsance condltLons
and health hazards.

TraffLc Circulation and Access

1. Access requirements for a facility shall be based

ont,henumberandtypeofvehicletripsgenerated
by the ru.i:rity. Tha- number of trips generated per
day snaft G 6asea on the most recent version of
the Trip Ceneiation-Manual of the Institute of
Traffic'Engineers, except that. the applicant may

submit'atripgeneratibnstudycertifiedbya
professf onJ iraitf c 

- 
";-gi"""t 

'of other simllar
facilities as the basis for trip generation by the
proposed-i."rrrtv. Tf a propoJed facility is not
listed in the Trip ceneriti6n Manual and a trip
generatron siuoy oi other similar facilities is not
availabi.l -t-n"ti the number and type- of -vehicle
trips g"iltuild nv the proposed faciritv sharl be

based on the figures for tne use most similar to
theprop-"".aracitityforwhichtheTripGeneration
Uanu-al contains data '

2. The applicant sha1l identify designated routes for
vehicular traffic a"""t"€ed. .by the proposed
facility unJ-"n.rl piovide written information to
facllity """t" 

Aeslrining and promoting use of
thoseroutes.Designated}outesshallbeselected
tominimizetrafficonnon.arterialstreetsand
shallnotincludestreetsinresidentialzonesif
nonresidential street's provide access '

3.Forafacllltythatgeneratesmorethantwohundred
(2001 .r"fri"fd trips e"i. day-' 

-11t 
applicant shall

submit a traffic stuhy uy -a 
_professional traffic

engineei that shows tne facility will not cause
traffic volumes that exceed the capacity of the
streetbasedonthecapacity-a.s.sumptionsof.the
Transpoitation Master pian of the City ' ox that
cause .il-i;i;rsection affected by that traffic to
have a level of s"itti"t E ' rf tne proposed
facility will cause "it""t 

capacity to be exceeded
or create a Level of Service g at any intersection'
the "ppfi""tt 

shatl propose street modifications

H

Chapter I
31

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 657



acceptable to the City to meet the requirements of
this subsection. Unless otherwise provided by
agreement with the City, all expenses related to
street lmprovements necessltated by the proposed
factllty shall be borne by the applicant.

4 A facility in an urban zone shall provide for a
deceleration/turn lane at proposed access polnts to
separate facillty-bound trafflc from other traffic
lf deemed warranted by the traffic study required
in Section 8.303.09. I .3. The lane shall
accommodate at least two (2, stacked vehicles and
shall taper at a ratLo of not less than twenty-five
Ln one (25rL) to match the standard roadway wldth.

I Odor Impacts

The appllcant shall demonstrate that the facility
meets the requirements of Section 8.309 and:

WitI incorporate the best practicable design
and operating measures to reduce the
potentlals or odors detectable off-site from
such thlngs as waste stored or being processed
on site, spillage of waste, venting of dust,
residual amounts of waste in operating areas
of the site, and vehicle odors in stacking,
maneuverlng and stagJ.ng areas i and

WiII not cause unusual or annoying odors.
considering the density of the surrounding
populatlon, the duratlon of the emissLons, and
other factors relevant to the impact of such
emissions.

2, Open burning of solid waste will not be allowed
unless:

a Open burning is consistent with standards of
the DEQ; or

1

a

b

b The facility ls outside the area where
burning is banned, and a permit is
required by DEQ.

Chapter I
32

open
not

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 658



J. Ground and surface water imPacts'

1. The appticant shall demonstrate that the facility
will:

from Production,
and vehicles, and
harge the water to

€l . Collect all waste stater
*ri"ni"g down of equiPrnent
;;;i1# activities and disc
;;;bii" sanitarY ser^ter if :

z.

3

(1) The sewer adJolns or can be extended to
the site based "" "ppffcable 

rules of the
selter service Providert ano

(21 The sewer has the capacity to accommodate

tu"t!-"-Jti"i from the facility as

determined by tne-sewer service provider
o' ni...i..pi"ii,""ional civil engineer i or

b. Incorporate an alternative sanitary waste

disposar *Jtnod that i;;; wirl be approved by

DEQ;or

c. Incorporate an alternative waste disposal
method that is ""t'J"tlt't 

ti!I- apPlicable
$tater g"-uift'V- standards and wlII not cause

drinking'iltttit suppfi!t-to violate applicable
water qualitY standards; or

d. Not generate waste water' an-d 
' 
wiII divert

and/or contain storm *"ttt so that it does not
enter sotid waste on the site'

Prior to construction of the facility' the

applicant tn"ii--obtain -- tff required permits

rerating to il""n"igii. "t 
waste water and storm

water from th; ittirity'' rn" operator of the
facility snari-ctttpiy t:tn "fr direttives of state
and federal agencles relateJ t" ptgtection f ground

andsurface,"iterresourc""pot"ittiallyaffectedby
the facilitY.
At the request of the apptoval- -1Y:-ltritv' 

the
applicant "n.f 

i "'''n*ft 
to -the approval authority

copiesofanygroundwaterself.monitoringprograms
and anaryses "?- *;;1"1 surface and oroundwater

impacrs ,"rutJi # rfi-f".irit' that "t5" required
l;-;; submitted to the DEQ'

ChaPter I
33

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 659



4 At _!h. request of the approval authority, anappllcant for a landf ill, mixed waste c6rnpostfacillty, wood wagte recycling facillty, V.iAdebrls depot or processlng facility shatf-s,rlmiicopies of lts leachate colrection and treatmentplan and program prepared by a professional civil
englneer for submlttal to the DEe, if one has beenrequired by the DEe.

An applicant for a household hazardous waste depot,
hazardous waste treatment and storage faclfity;material recovery facility, solid waste depot a;transfcr station shall submlt and tmpJ"ement L pranand program prepared by a professional clviIenglneer to collect, pretreat and dtspose wastewater from the floor or operating area of suchfacirity and to prevent suriace wa-ter from mixingwith solid waste spills.
The applicant shall submlt and implement a planprepared by a professional civir engineer to reducethe amount of waste water caused by hosing downequipment, ttpplng areas, platforms and otherfacility features, such as by using highpressure/Low flow washing systems, compresled airor vacuum equipment for cleaning.
The applicant shall submit and implement a planprepared by a professional clvil engineer or
landscape architect to corlect storm watel from allimpervious areas of the site and to properly manage
storm water. The applicant shalr compry wilh stafeand federal regurations governing Jtorm waterdischarges, and obtain iequlred storm waterdischarge permits in a timely fashion, To theextent consistent with a storm water dischargepermit issued for the facility, storm water snaltbe managed ln the followlng manner:

a. Storm water disposal shall comply with the
Storm Drainage Master plan of the City.

b, If a storm selver with adequate capacity is notavallable, the applicant sha1l:

(1) Retain storm hrater on site; and,/or

(2) Detall storm water on-slte and dLschargeit from the site at no greater rate thinbefore development of the facility i or

5

6.

7

I

Chapter I
34

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 660



8.

(3) Discharge storm water at full rate to
, - ' public -dralnage features' such as a

to.O"ia" ditch or regional drainage
raciiiiy, Lf there is adequate capacity
to acc6mmodate it as determlned by a

professional clvlt englneer or landscape

"""ni[."t. 
rf dischaiging water at full

rate would exceed Lne caPacitY gf
dowistrean drainage features' the
aPPllcant shall:
(a) Provide a detention po-nd-or ponds 9o

"ont.t''waterinexcessotthesystem'scaPacitYi and/or

(b) Identify lmprovements to downstream
drainaqe features necessary to
u"tottndA.t. the increased volume or rate
of 

- ii"t without adversely affecting
adjotnlng ProPertY and either:

(i) Provide such imProvements
ieiore operation of the facility, ot

( ii) Contribute necessary fynds-. to
ine'City and USA so that the CitY
and USe can undertake such
improvements.

(c) If off-site imProvements are
required to accommodate storm water from
tne site, prior to issuance of a building
permit tof the facility, the applicant'
the CltY and USA shall execute an
agreement to pay back the applicant for
the .o"t of improvements to the extent
those improvements exceed the storm
Orainage ieeds generated by the facility'

Exceptasotherwj-seprovidedbythestormdrainage
;;;;;; piun "i in" city and usAr rhe collection and
aispo""i system shall be sized to accommodate peak
flows from a twenty-five (25) year s.torm event'
based on the f10w f-rom the area that lncludes the

"il" and the -Uisin that drains onto it, assuming
p"itfii"a aeveropment -of-that area, Es determined
&- ;- jrofessionlal civil engineer or landscape
architect.

9 Before storm water is
into the ground, the

Chapter I
35

discharged from the site or
applicant wiIl direct it

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 661



K

through features to remove sediment' etrease and
olls, and vrater soluble materlals ln the r^tater.
Such f,eatures shall comply with the storm drainage
standards of the City and USA.

10. The applicant shall subml.t and lmplement a plan
prepared by a professlonal civil engineer or
Iandscape architect to reduce the potential for
erosion along natural and constructed dralnagebtays
and across slopes during and after construction.

11. For a landfill, the approval authority may require
that the applicant submit a copy of lts closure
plan as prepared for submlttal to the DEQ.

Methane Gas Impacts

1

2.

The applicant shall
professlonal engineer
generate significant
emissions; or

submit a statement from a
that the faclllty wiII not
quantities of methane gas

vented,
for a

The applicant shall submit and implement a methane
gas control program prepared by a professional
engineer that describes how:

a. The faciltty will not generate methane gas in
excess of twenty-five percent (25t) of the
Iower explosive llmit for methane ln facility
structures or in excess of the lower explosive
limlt at the facility boundary;

b.

c Methane w111 be measured ln structures and at
the facillty boundary, consistent with
applicable DEQ standards.

L. Alr Quallty Impacts

A facility shall not cause detrimental air quality
impacts. A facility complies with this standard if the
appllcant obtalns all required Atr ContamLnant Dlscharge
Permits and the facility is operated in conformance with
Sectlon 8.305 and a1l applicable DEQ air quality
st.andards and requirements.

The gas shall be collected and
lncinerated, or put to or PrePared
productive use; and

Chapter I
36

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 662



M Treatment and storage Facilities (Hazardous I'faste)

The applicant for a proposed treatment and storage
i."iril' snar-r ""rprv_ 

ylari oregon Administrative Rules
Cnipt"r'34g, pivisi-on fZO, and any o,ther applicable state
or federal i;;;- nV "Utiining "*f - 

state and federal
permits ,r".""J."y f-or operation of the facility'

Chapter I
37

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 663



8.304 PARKS AND OPEN SPACE

8.304.01 Purpose

Section 8.304 Is intended to assure the provision of a systemof public and prlvate recreation and open space areal andfacllitles consLstent with thts Code and applicable portions
of Chapter 5 of the Community Development plan.

8.304.02 Parks and open space system rmprovement Fees (srF)
A. Purpose

The srF sharl be reserved and used excrusivery for theacquisition, expansion, and capital development or
redevelopment of greenr"rays , parks, open space r or
recreatlonal factrtties, designed to provide extra systemcapacity, and as designated on the Natural Resourcei and
Recreation Plan Map, attached as Appendix C, or in
Chapter 5 of t,he Communl.ty Development plan. The SIF may
arso be utllized for expendltures rerating to repalrmentof debt for such improvements. The SIF miy not be usedfor parks system preservation improvements or for routineparks system maintenance or operations.

Schedule of Charges

SIFs shall be assessed against new residential
development ln the City to support extra-capacity parks
and open space improvements. The SIF for parks and openspace development shall be set by the "Schedule of
Development Fees" adopted by Resorution of the council.
This schedure ts lncruded herein as Appendix J for thepurposes of information, but is deemed to be separate
from and independent, of this Code.

C. Assessment

B

D

Except as otherwise provided, the SfF is due and payable
and sharl be colrected prior to issuance of any ouirdingpermits for new residential construction t ot foiarterations or additions to buildings that increase the
number of residential dwelling units.
Deferral

Where the SIF due and payable from a single buildingpermit exceeds $3r000.00, an administrative deferrar maybe granted untll an occupancy perrnit is issued. No
occupancy pernlt shall be lssued untir the srF is paid infulI.

Chapter I
38

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 664



E

8.304.03

A.

Waiver

Whenaproposeddevelopmentcontainsla_ndsdesignatedon
the Narural nllolr-r.." 

-"rrA 
-nJJi"-"tio" 

PI-an Mdp' attached

as Appendlx 
:dJ--ot- r" c;;;Jt" - 5 'T 

the communltv

Development ptan, fof gt"";tiyi' garks' open space ' ox

recreational iitifiti"J' ""tn'fina 
may be dedicated to

the city in riJt'-;;;-;e.u-iiaieni portion of the srF' or

in the case "f-;"It1-i"tttirv 
?;;l;t1:l:' in lleu of the

equival"rrt poition of co'nm6n open ipl:"' as per section

8.304.03. Th; value -oi" ;[; olotcitron- sharl be

established by
deveropers .J"i' , -bY count-v Aisessors records ' ot some

orher merhod J.L*"a'"cceptJu;-;;-;;i .qi."' rhe value of

the dedication, as O.t"rri-""a 'UV the tfty, shall be

dlducted from the SIF'

Multi-Fami IY DeveloPments

Standards

Except as otherwise provided' recreation and open space

areas sharl i!-ir""ihea_ it'i6*-*oiti-r"*iIy residentiar
deveropments 

'io'ln"- ior towing standards :

1. OPen SPace

A minimum of twenty percent (208] of the site area

shall be retained in common open sPace' Required

yard, parking' or 'n""Lo*'"ring 
are-as may not be

3uUstitutea for oPen 6Pace'

2. Recreation Facilities

A minimum of fifty percent (50g). of the required
commonopenspace";;lI--Le.suitableforactive
recreationar use ' R;;;t;ionar' sDaces sharr be

plantedingrasso'"|ilI'u'rsesurtablyimproved.A
minimum iiti or eisht-i;;;e;;a ( 89-0') siuare reet and

a minimum width "f ;;;[;;;'(lsi fLet shalr be

Provided'

3. Minimum Standards

Common open sPace. and recreation areas and

facilitieJ shall Ue-- ctearly shown on site
development plal-s- t"i-"nt-ii ut'pnv"ically situated
soastobereadlly-accessiuletoLndusablebyall
residenls of the develoPment'

ChaPter 8
39

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 665



8.304.04

A.

4. Terms of Conveyance

Rights and responsibirities attached to common openspace and recreation areas and facilities shall-becrearly speclfled Ln a legarry binding ooc"mentwhich leases or conveys titre, - incr"aingbeneficial 
_ ownership to a home association, orother legar entity. The terms of such rease orother lnstrument of- conveyance must includeprovisions suitable to the clty for guaranteeingthe contlnued use of such land Lnd fadtttttes forits intended pur-pose; continuity of propertymaintenalge; and, when appiopr!.ate-, theavailablllty of funds regulred toi-suitr maintenanceand adequate insurance piotection.

Visual Corridors

Corrldors Required

New developments with frontage on Highway 99!{, orarterLar or collector streels desigiatel on theTransportation plan Map, attached as Ap-pendix c, or insection vr of the community Deveropment--ptan, shati bereguired to establish a randscaled visuai corridoraccording to the following standards:

Category Width

Highway 99tf
Arterial
Collector

rn residential. deveropments where fences are typicarrydesLred adJoinlng-the Lbove descrlbed najor stre6is,- thecorridor may !e praced in the road righf-of-way beiweenthe property line and the sldewalk. -

Landscape Materials

The required vlsual corri.dor areas shall be pranted asspeclfled_,by the commlssion to provlde a Lontinuousvi.suar and/or acousticar buffer betieen major streets anodeveloped uses. - Except as provided for ab5ve, fences andwalls shall not be substitul,ed for randscaping within tnevLsuar corrldor. unLformry pranted, droughi resistantstreet trees aqd ground covei, as speclfi6d in sectlon8.304.06' shalr -be pranted in tha corridor by thedeveloper. The improvements sharr be incruded in thesubdlvicion compllance agreement.

Chapter 8
40

25
15
10

eet
eet
eet

f
t
f

B

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 666



c.

8.304 .05

A.

D

Establlshment and Malntenance

Designated visual corridors shall be established as a

portion of tanAscaping requirements pursuant to Section
5.200. To ."""t.'conlinuous malntenance of the visual
corridors, ti;- Ctmnfssion may require that the

development rights to the.corridoi areas be dedicated to
t,he city or th;tiestrictive covenants be recorded prior
t,o the issuance of a building permit '

Required Yard

visuar corridors may be estabrished in required yards'
except that where lne t"q"ii9A- vilyal corridor width
exceeds the ;;il;t"d--v"to'-*iatn, the visual corridor
requirement snait take pt"""d"nce' In no case shall
buildings be sited or treei-te removea from within the

required visual corridor'

Density Transfer and Park Reservatlon

DensitY Transfe&

1. When a proposed development j'ncludes lands
designated'on-the Natural ResourCes and Recreation
Plan MdPr attached tt-App"ndix-C' or in Chapter 5

of the Community Oevel6ilel-t 
-PIa'n ' 

fot the uses

speciflea-fi secilon e'g0+ '02'E' densLty transfers
may be autfiorized to "in"t 

portions of the site in
exchange-i"i-in" dedication of those lands.

2. Residential densities as a result of density
transfersshallnotexceedthemaximumallowedfor
thezonefn-wnicnthedevelopmentisproposed'as
measured "gui"it 

the area of the site prior to
dedication.

3. Non-resldential densities shalI as a result of
densiry iiirr"fers noc-"ice"a eighty percent -(80*)
building coverage on buildablJ portions of the
site.

4. Density t'rangfels shaltr be allpved only when the
portj.bn uf tfr" site to-wnicn aeniity is transferred
can u".orn^nait" the- addit-l.onal: density without
causing ,rnO"" adverse eiiects on the ""T:9:.tdingarea,inaJ;lf;gpubficfu"irftresandpervice'b'and''
is oilie#ilE-l3r,ip"tlbie with the appricable zonins
district, "" detLrmined by the City'

Chapter 8
4L

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 667



B. Park Reservations

Areas designated on the Natural Resources and Recreation
PIan Map, attached as Appendix C, or in Chapter 5 of the
Community Development Plan, which have not been dedicated
pursuant to Sectlon 8.304.02 E or 8.202.02, may be
requlred to be reserved upon the recommendation of the
City Parks Board, for purchase by the City within a
period of time not to exceed three (3) years.

8.304. 06

A.

Trees Along Public Streets or on Other Publlc Property

Trees Along Publlc Streets

Trees are required to be planted by the land use
applicant to the follow1ng speclfications along public
streets abutting or within any new development. Planting
of such trees shall be a condition of development
approval. The Clty shalI be subJect to the same
standards for any developments involving City-owned
property, or when constructing or reconstructing City
streets.

Tree location: On private property within the
front yard setback area or withLn public street
right-of-way between front property Iines and
street curb lines. The land use applicant [6y, at
thel.r optlon, provide for a mlnimum four (4') foot
deep contlnuous planter strlp between curb and
sidewalk for the purposes of street tree planting.
The City may grant a corresponding reduction in
right-of-way or street widthr or equivalent on-
street parklng requlrements.

Tree size: A minimum trunk diameter of two (2"1
inches DBH and minimum height of six (6') feet.
Tree spacing: A minLmum of one (1) tree for every
twenty-five (25') feet of publlc street frontage,
or two (2) t.rees for every buildable lot, whichever
yields the greater number of trees. Double
fronting lots shalI have a minimum of one (1)
street tree for every twenty-flve (25') feet of
frontage. Corner lots shall have a minimum of
three (3) street trees.

For mLnor arterial and maJor collector streets, the
City may 'fequire planted medians in lieu of paved
twelve ( 12') foot wide center turning lanes,
planted with trees to the specifications of Section
8.304.06.A.

Chapter I
4?

1

2

3

4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 668



B

5. Tree tyPes: As per Appendix J of this Code'

Prohibited Trees and Shrubs

Chapter I
43

1. Poplar, conitet, cotton$rood' willow' ailanthus' any

other natlve tree species' and fruit and nut trees'
are proniniteO along public-:t:^"".ti as such trees
tend t" gi", G sucn-mlnner as to interfere with or
damage plUff" streets and utilities' or cause an

unwarranted lncrease in ine maintenance costs of
same.

2. Poplar, cottonwood, and willow trees are prohibited
on other poUfit'ot private-property nop Slotg
public "ttd.t", 

when' in tn" Cfty's determlnation'
such tr"." -r"rl tend- to interfeie with or damage

pubtic "lt""i" 
and utilities' or cause an

unwarrantedincreasein-tnemaintenancecostsof
same. 

";"gii-"h - i;t' no:,r.1 . . and Hi-nalavan
blackberries are "iJ.i 

pronfbitea on public
ProPertY.

Removal and Cutting of Trees

1. For the purposes of. thls Section' "removal and

cutting" 5h;fi b" aefined as the falling or removal

of a ar"J,'-Ji u"v "tn.r 
deliberate action by any

person, thL natttrif t"t"ft L't tnl"n i" to cause the
death "J" ""n"iittti"f 

destruction of the tree.
Prohibitedremova}andcu,ttinga.ctivitiesdonot
include normal tti**iig 

- or prun.ing wh_en .1q1" in
accordance with gtt'"iiiry aiceptea arborcultural
practfces' rn" afithorlzalions required by sectlon
8 . 304 . 06 . C shall ttot apply t-o - any removal' 

' 
or

cutting issociatea witti- d-evelopment activities
authoriz"a-lv- Ln" Iand use appro_vals contemplated
by sectt"n g.'30e . oz . 

's."irott 
a. ro+.05. c shall only

govern tne iemoval or "ottfttg 
of t-rees along public

streetsoroftrees-.'.awoodlandsonpublic
property ""t 

pitt of a land use application'

2. Any tree located on public property or along public
streets, 

--J"-- p"t lnis Sict-ion, shatl not be

subsequently t"*o*'"d or cut without the
authorization of the parks Advisory Boardt u1|ess

removal "i-""tiing 
is necessitated by the tree:

E. Dying, becoming severely diseased' or infested
ordiseasedso;;todhreatenthehealthof
other trees, of,

c.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 669



b

d

c.

Obstructing public ways or stght distance so
ag to cause a safety hazard, or

Interfering with or damaglng public or private
utllitles, or

Being defined as a nuisance
nuisance abatement ordinances,

as
or

per City

e Otherwise becomlng a hazard to Iife
property, in the Cityrs determination.

All requests for authorization to remove or cut
trees or woodland'shall be made in writing stating
the reasons and circumstances necessitating said
removal or cutting. The Parks Advisory Board shalI
consider the request in open session at any duly
convened Board meeting. Any Board authorization
for the removal and cuttlng of such trees or
woodlands shall be made Ln writing, setting out the
reasons for the removal or cutting, and any
Iimitations or condit,ions attached thereto. Such
wrltten authorlzatlon shall be issued to the party
requesting the removal or cuttlng, and maLntained
in City recordsr ds per other Notices of Decision
required by this Code. Any tree or woodland
removed as per this Section shall be replaced with
a ne!{ tree or trees selected from Appendix J of
this Code. The party inttiating the request for
tree or woodland removal shall be responslble for
all costs of said replacement, including
installation. This Sectlon shall appty to any
party requesting tree or woodland removal or
cuttlng, lncludlng the Ctty.
fn the speciflc circumstances listed in Section
8.304.06.C2 only, the City Manager or his or her
deslgnee may admlnlstratlvely authorlze the
immediate removal of such trees or woodlands
without Parks Advisory Board review. Any
adninistrative authorization for the removal or
cutting of such trees or woodlands shall be made in
writlng setting out the reasons for the removal or
cutting, and any limitations or conditions attached
thereto. Such written authorization shall be
lssued to the party reguestlng the removal or
cutting, and maintalned in City records as per
other Notices of Decision required by this Code.
Any tree or woodland removed as per this Section

or

3

4

w a new ree or se ec
from Appendlx J of thls Code.

Chapter I
44

The party inttiating

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 670



D

8.304 .07

E

the request for tree or woodland removal shall be

t""por,"riiJ ?; arl to"t" of said replacement'
includini-i""t"Ilation.-- rnf" Section shall apply
to any pJra-v'1l?-""ai"g _tree or woodland removal or

cuttt-ng, intLudlng the CitY'

Trees on Private ProPertY

Any tree, woodland or anY other vegetation located on

prlvate ptop"it-i,--tgsttg-"""- or spdcles or sLze' that
interferes with or damag"" poUfi" itreets or utilities'
or causes ur, 

-,tttttriat't-tO increase in the maintenance

costs of same, tndy be order.J-i"*o*red or cut by the city
Manager or nis 

"'oi ner des-ignee ti!|"-:-l Parks Advisory
Board review. Any order foi tne removal or cutting of

such trees, ,"oodiJtds or otier vegetatio.nr shall be made

and processed';;;;; appricaur" iity nuisance abatement

ordinances.

Penaltles

The abuse, destruction, de-facingr-^^cuttingr removal'

mutilationorothermisuseofanytreeplantedonpublic
property ot 

"t-o]iS " nypfig street as per this Section'
shall be subj;;; Jo ^ rhe p.n"rtrrs def ined by sectlon
1.101.04, and other p"ttuiliEs defined by applicab]e
ordinances and statutes ' provided 

- !ht-t' each tree so

;;;;a ;hall ;; deemed a seParate offense'

Trees on ProPertY
Applications

SubJect to Certain Land Use

A. GeneralIY

ThepurposeofSectionS.304.0Tistoestablishprocesses
and standards ;hi.h rirr minrmrze cuttino or destruction
of cerrain tr."" -"nit- woooi;;JJ within ['n" citv ' This

section is rntl-nl"a 
-io neri piotect.the_scenic beauty of

rhe city; to 
-i"tii" a rivaire environment through the

beneficialeffectoftreesonairpollution,heatand
glare, soundr--io"t"i qu"f ity' - and 

- surface water and

erosion control i to 
""tootug-d tht -T::.tt',!,tot 

and planting
of tree "p""iE! 

native to'-trre willamette valley and

western oregon; to provtde Ln attractive visual contrast
to the urban eirvironment, "tto 

to sustain a wide variety
and distribur;;; via6f e 

--ir.." 
and woodlands in the

communlty over tlme'

L AII
2.20
and

Planned Unit Developmenls subject -to Section
;;';-;-;; aeveropments- suu-ie-ct to section 5 '202 '
subdtvislons ",iUj."t 

to Section 7 .200, shall be

ChaPter I
45

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 671



2.

required to preserve trees or woodlands, as definedby this Section to t,he maximum extent feasible
wlthin t,he context of the proposed land use plan
and relatlve to other policles and standards of the
City Comprehensive PIan, as determined by the City.
SectLon 8.304.07 shall not apply to any PUD, site
development or subdivislon, or any subdivision
phase of any PUD, having received an approval by
the Commission prior to the effectlve date of
Ordinance No. 94-99L, except for Subsection
8.304.07.C5, whlch sha1l apply to all building
permLts issued after the effective date to that
Ordinance.

For the inventory purposes of Section 8.304.02, a
tree is a living woody plant having a trunk
dlameter as speclfied below at four and one-half
(4-L/2'I feet above mean ground level at the base
of the trunk, also known as Diameter Breast Height
(DBH). Trees planted for commercial agricultural
purposes, such as nut and fruit orEhards and
Christmas tree farms, are excluded from this
definition, and from regulatlon under Section
8.304.07, as are any living-woody plants under five
(5") inch DBH.

d. Douglas tLr,
cedar, whlte

ponderosa
oak, btg

pine, western red
leaf maple, American
inches or greater

3

chestnut ..Ten (10")

b A11 other
greater

tree species..Five (5") inches or

In addition, any trees of any species of five (5")
inch or greater DBH that are proposed for removal
as per the minimally necessary development
actlvltles deflned ln Section 8.304.07.C3 shall be
inventoried.

For t,he inventory purposes of Section 8.304.07, a
woodland is a biological community domj.nated by
trees covering a land area of 201000 square feet orgreater at a density of at least fifty (50) treesper every 201000 square feet with at least fiftypercent (50t) of those trees of any species having
a five (5") inch or greater DBH. yfoodlands planted
for commercial agricult,ural purposes, such as nut
and fruit orchards and Christmas tree farms, are
excluded from this definition, and from regulation
under Secllon 8.304.07 .

Chapter I
46

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 672



B. Tree and woodland InventorY

L. To asslst the ctty l.n maktng 1!9 determinatlons on

the retention of Lrees and woodlands, the land- use
applicationsreferencedinsectionS.304.oT.Ashall
includeatreeandwoodlandinventoryandreport'
inbothmapandnarrativeform,addressingthe
standards itr section 8.304.07.C, and a written
report by an arborist, fotester' landscape
architecir' botanist, or other qualified
pio-tssionaf, ES determined by the City' that
ieneratly evaluate_s the nature and quality of !h"
6xisting trees and woodlands on the site and also
provideS irrtorrn"tion as to the extent and methods
by which trees and woodlands will be retained. The

inventory--"nif f lnclude a resume detailing t'he
quallfiei pr"i""sional's applicab_le background and

dxperiencel The city Tuv 3l"o require the
submissi.on or additional infoimation as per section
8.301.03.

2.Inadditiontothegeneralrequirementsofthis
Section,thetreeand-woodlandinventory]s.mapping
and reports shall include, but are not limited to,
the toffowing ;pecific iniormation' Mapping shall
include i- "i"*iosite 

BaP, illgstratJ.ng as -much
iequired lnforriation as -possible whLle retalning
maP readabilttY.
a. The location of the property subJect to--the

land-use application- anh tree and woodland
lnventory, including street addresses'
assessors'mapandt-axlotnumbers,anda
vicinitY map.

b. Mapping indicating the location of trees and
,oooaiifias, as defined by Section 8.304.07.A2-
3. Mapping shalt include typical !re-e root
zones, liven tree species, size, condition-and
Iocation. For an' woodland, inventory data
and mapping is required only for the group'
rather-inan on a tree by tree basis'

c. Mapping and other inventory data -shall
includ6, but is not limited to, the boundaries
and/or tYPes of soiIs, wetlands' and
floodplain-J underlying the tree or woodland;
site hydrology, - draindg€, and slope
characteristics; the condition, denslty, form,
rootzoneandaspectofthetreeorwoodland,
lncluding in tne case of a woodland'

Chapter 8
47

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 673



d.

associated understory.

Mapping and other inventory data shall be of
sufficient detall and specificity to allow for
field location of trees and woodlands by the
City, and shall include but is not limited to'
existing and proposed property lines,
topography at the lntervals otherwlse
specified for the type of land use application
being considered, and any significant man-made
or nitural features that would tend to aid in
such fleld location.

e. The number, size, species, conditionr and
Iocation of trees and woodlands proposed for
removal, the timing and method of such
removal, and the reason(s) for removal.

The number, sLze, species, condition' and
Iocation of trees and woodlands proposed for
retention, and the methods by which such trees
and woodlands shall be maintained in a healthy
conditlon both during and subsequent to
development activlty.

g, Proposed mitlgation and replacement efforts as
per Sectton 8.304.07.D, lncluding a
description of how proposed replacement trees
will be successfully replanted and maintained
on the site.

C. Tree and Woodland Retentlon

1 The Commission, or in the case of Planned Unit
Developments (PUD), the Councll actlng on the
Conmisslon's recommendation, shall make findings
identifying all trees and woodlandsr ot additional
trees not inventoried, that merit retention.
Alternatively, the Ctty may require planting of new
trees ln lieu of retentLon as per Section
8.304.07,D1-3r or acquire said trees and woodlands
as per Section 8.304 .07 .D4. Prior t'o making any
such determinations or recommendations, the
Commission and Council shall receive and consider
the recommendations of the City Parks Advisory
Board. Special consideration shall be given in
making these determinations to the retention of
replanting of trees native to the Willamette Valley
and western Oregon, except in areas where such
trees are prohibited as per Section 8.304.06.8.

Chapter I
48

f

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 674



2 To require retention of trees or woodlands as per
i""ifo1n 8.304 .O7.8, the Commission or Council must
mare specific flndings that retention of said trees
o, wo6dlands iurtneis the purposes ?nd groal-s 

_ 
of

this section, is feaslble and practical both within
the context of the proposed land use plan ald
relative to other poticies and standards of the
City ComPrehensive Plan, and are:

a. vfithin a Significant Natural Area, 100-year
f Ioodplain, City greenway, j-urisdictional
wetland or othei eiisting or future public
park or natural area designated by the City
ComPrehensive PIan, or

b. A landscape or natural feature as per
ipplicable policies of the city comprehensive
PIan, or are necessary - to keep other
identlfiedtreesorwoodlandsonornearthe
slte from being damaged or destroyed due to
wLndfall, erosfon, disease or other natural
processes, or

c. Necessary for soil stability anq the control
of erosion, fot managing and preserving
surfaceorgroundwaterquantitiesorquality'
or for t-he maintenance of a natural
drai.nageway, as per Unified Sewerage Agency
storm!,rater- managehent plans and standards or
the CitY ComPrehensive Plan, or

d. Necessary as buffers between otherwise
i_ncompatiore land uses, or f rom natural areas,
wetlands and greenways, ot

e. otherwlse merit retention because of unusual
slze, historic association or species type'
habitat or wltdlife Preservation
considerations t ot some combination thereofr
as determined bY the CitY.

In general, the City shall pernit- only the removal
of trees, woodlandl, and associated vegetation'
regardless of sLze and/or density, minimally
neEessary to undertake the development activities
cont.mprit"o by the land use application under
consld-eration. For the development of PUDs and
subdivisions, minimally necessaiy activities will
i'picaff' entail tree ienoval for the purposes of
c6istruciing City and private utilities' streets'
and other fnfrastructure, and minimally required

3

Chapter I
49

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 675



4

site grading necessary to construct the development
as approved. For site developments, minimally
neceEsary activities will typically entail tree
removal for the purposes of constructing City and
prtvate utllitles, streets and other
infrastructure, minimally required site grading
necessary to construct the development as approved'
constructi.on of perrnitted buildings, and City
reguired site improvement,s such as dri.veways and
parklng lots.
The Notice of Decision issued for the land use
applications subJect to this Section shall indicatc
whlch trees and woodlands wtll be retained as per
Section 8.304.07.C2, whlch may be removed or shall
be retained as per Section 8.304.07.8, and which
shall be mitigated as per Section 8.304.07.D' and
any llmltations or conditlons attached thereto.
The appllcant shall prepare and submit a Final Tree
and l{oodland Plan prior to issuance of any
construction permits, illustrating how identified
trees and woodlands wiII be retained, removed or
mitigated as per the Notice of Decision. Such Plan
shall specify how trees and woodlands will be
protected from damage or destruction by
construction activities, including protective
fencing, selective pruning and root treatments,
excavation techniques, temPorary drainage systems,
and like methods.

At the time of building permit issuance for any
development of a site containing trees or woodlands
LdentLfted as per Section 8.304.07C, the Building
Official sha1l permit only the removal of trees,
woodlands and associated vegetation, regardless of
size and /or density, minimally necessary to
undertake the development activities contemplated
by the building permit application under
consideration. The permit shall specify how trees
and woodlands will be protected from damage or
destruction by construction activities, including
protectJ.ve fenctng, selective prunlng and root
treatments, excavation t,echniques' temporary
drainage systems, and Iike methods. Minimally
necessary activities will typically entail tree
removal. for the purposes of construction of City
and prlvate utllitles, streets and other
inf rastructure, minimaiiy requireri siLe gradirrg-
necessary to construct the development as approved,
constructton of permlt,t,ed bulldlngs, and Clty
required site lmprovements such as driveways and

chapter I
50

5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 676



6,

parking lots. A fee for thls inspection shall be
istablished as per Section 3.301, provided however
that said inspe-tion is not deemed to be a land use
actlon.

when a tree or woodland within an approved site
plan, subdivision or Planned unit Development
!t,U"6q,r"ntly proves to be so located as to prohibit
the o€nerwise lawful siting of a building or use,_

retention of said trees or woodlands may be deemed
sufficient cause for the granting of a variance as
p.r Section 4.4O0, subject to the satisfaction of
iff other applicable cfiteria in Section 4'400'

All trees, woodlands, and vegetation located on any
private property accepted ior dedication to the
Cfty for public parks and open spacer-. greelways,
iidlif icanl Natur:al Areas, wetlands, f loodplains,
or for storm water management or for other
purposesr ds a condition of a land use approval,-snaif be retained outright, irrespective of sLze,

"p..i.", condition or olher factors' Removal of
airy suctr trees, woodlands, and veget,ation prior to
actual dedication of the property to the City shall
be cause for reconsideraiion of the land use plan
approval.

Chapter 8
5t-

7

D Mitigation

1. The City may requlre mitigation for the removal of
any trees a-na wbodlands identifled as per Section
a.ro+.07.cLf,intheCity'sdetermination,
retention is not feasible or practical within the
context of the proposed land use plan or relative
to other porrcreJ and standards of the clty
Comprehensile Plan. Such mitigation shall not be
reqirired of the applicant wh_en removal is
neiessltated by the installation of City utilities,
streets and otfrer infrastructure in accordance with
adoptedCitystandardsandplans.Provided,
however, that the City may grant exceptions. to
established city street utility and other
lnfrastructure standards in order to retain trees
or woodlands Lf, in the city's determinatlon, such
exceptions w111 not significantly- compromise lh"
funclioning of the slreet, utility or other
infrastrucfure being considered. Mitigation shall
be in the form of ieplacernent by the planting of
new trees.

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 677



2 Replacement trees required as part- of -mitig.ation as
pei tnts Sectlon shalt, ds determlned by the Clty'
be generally of a substantlally similar specles,
size- and quantity to those trees proposed for
removal, taking into account soils, slopes'
hydrology, slt-e area, and other relevant
ciraract5iistics of the site on which the nltigation
is proposed. In consideration of the foregoing
factorJ the City may require replaceme{rt trees to
be replanted at-greiter than a 1:1 ratlo. Exotlc
or noh-natlve tr-ees shall generally be replaced
wlth spectes native to the gfillamette valley or
western oregon, except where such native trees are
prohibited ' by Seltion 8.304.06'8.2' Said
ieplacement tr:ees shall be in addltion to trees
atbng pubtlc streets requJ.red !V Sectlon
8.304.0g.e. Standards for trees along public
streets may be dlfferent than those for trees
required f6r retention or replacement under this
Section.

If replacement trees of the species, sLze or
quantiiy belng removed are- not available, or cannot
6e succiessfuliy replanted due to soils, slopes 'hydrology, site area, ot other relevant
ciraract6iistics of the site, the City many require:

a. Different species of trees to be submitted or

b. Replacement trees to be planted on another,
moie suitable site within the City, or

c.Cashpaymentsequivalenttothefalrmarket
value - o-f the otherwLse required replacement
trees, lncludlng estimated lnstallation cost6t
said payments to Ue set aside by the City it 1
aedicltbd fund for eventual purchase and
plantlngoftreeswhensultablesltesbecome
available.

The Commission may also make recommendation to the
council, based on tne reconrmendation of the Parks
Advisory Board, that trees or woodlands identlfied
." per inls Sectlon be purchased by the City, If
such trees cannot othervrlse be retalned as part of
in" ptoposed land use plan, obtained as a parks and
open aPac€ or other dedlcation to the Cityt or
oinenrfse be mltlgated as per Section 8.304.07.D.

3

4

Chapter I
52

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 678



E Penalties

Violations of Section 8'304'0? shall be s9!j9c! to the

;;;;lir;J o.trrlJny-sect-ron 1. 101. 04, provlded that each

i.iignut"O tr"" -ot'toodland unlawfully removed or cut
shali be deemed a separate offense'

Chapter I
53

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 679



APPENDIX J

City of Sherwood
Recommended Street Trees

Acer - Maple

Acer platanoldes cavalier - Cavaller Norway Maple
cleveland - Cleveland Norway Maple
cleveland Cleveland If Norway Maple
columnare Columnar Norway Maple
falrway - Falrway Sugar Maple
olnsted - Olmsted Nonvay Maple
summershade Summershade Maple

Acer rubrum red sunset Red Sunset Maple (OId Town)
E. royal red Royal Red Maple
r. gerling - Gerling Red Maple
r. tilford - Tilford Red Maple

Carpinus - Hornbeam
Carpinus betulus pyramidals Pyramidal European Hornbeam

b. columnaris Pyramidal European Hornbeam
b. fastlglata - Pyramidal European Hornbeam

Cercidi I um- t a Tree
c. apon cum - Katsura Tree

Cercix, canadenis Canadian Red Bud

Fraxinus - Ash
americana - Whlte Ash
americana - Autumn Purple Ash
angustifolia dr. pirone - Dr. Pirone Ash
oxycarpa flame Flame Ash
ralmoodi Ralmood Ash
Iatifotia Oregon Ash

Ginkqo
bilboa - Maidenhair Tree
bilboa - Autumn GoId
bilboa - Fairmount

Gleditsia
triacanthos sunburst Honey Locust

Liquidamber
elrrrani f I rra Amari nan Qwaatnrrm

LLrl-odonrod

Chapter 8
54

p
p
p
p
p
p

tuliplfera - Tulip Tree

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 680



Maqnolia
%#ndif rora vars Evergreen- Magnolia

;;;;diilora - southern Magn"l13 --
kobus Or.-nerrifl - Dr' Merrill Magnolia

Platanus
%riflora - l,ondon Prane Tree

Purnus

Tilia LI

P um

avium ena Double Flowering CherY
avium scanlon Scanlon Globe CherrY
serrulata vars (nonweeping) Japane se CherrY
okame - Okame CherrY
blireana - Btireana PIum
cerasifera newPort NewPort Plum
pissardi - Plssardi Plum
[n""O"tcloud - Thundercloud Plum
vesuvius - Krauter's Vesuvius Flum
maacki - Amur Chokecherry
serrula - Redbark CherrY
;;a;; alterti - Alberti cherrY
Spaethi SPaethi CherrY
vlrginiana var. mellanocarpa canada red - Chokecherry
piarl" EuroPean BirdcherrY
crrandiflora - Bigflowered Birdcherry
6"rg Rancho BirdcherrY
p"ti"t". - PurPleleaf BirdcherrY

Ouercus" pelustris - Pin oak
tunra Red oak

n
amer cana American Linden
cordata Little Leaf Linden
I lenleven Glenleven t,inden
r edmond Redmond Linden
euchlora Crimean Linden
tomentosa Silver Linden
bicentennial BicentenniaI Linden
greensPire GreensPire Llnden
salem Salem Linden

ChaPter I
s5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 681



PROHTBITED STREET TREES

Acer, Silver Maple
Acer, Boxelder
ALlanthus, gladulosa Tree-of-heaven
Betulai conmon varl.eties of birch
Ulmusi conmon varleties of eln
Morusi conmon varieties of mulberry
Sallx; conmon varieties of wlllow
Conlferous evergreen (Flr, plne, Cedar, etc.. )

Chapter I
56

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 682



8.305 WETI,AND' HABITAT AND NATURAL AREAS

8.305.01 GenerallY

Unless otherwise permit,ted, commercial, industrial, and

insrirurional uses i" Til" iiiv snari conprv- ti.tl the f otlowing

wetland, habj.tat and natural area itanAlr-As if applicable to
the site as ldentiriea'on-th; clty's wetland rnventory and the

Compreh"rrE*tt PIan Natural Resource Inventory'

8.305.02 Standards

A. The appllcant - shall ldentlfy and- describe the

signirl?-ance ana r.rncii"nar varue of wetlands on the site
and prorecr $,""J-rJfiiiia" 1..* adverse ef fects of the

development.Afacillty.ompri""'itnthisstandardif
tr complies ,iui-Je-cii.in 8,-30s .02.L a or 8'305 'az'L b

below:

1. The facilitv will not reduce the area of wetlands

on the sitei "]iJat;tr"prn"tt 
wirr be separated from

such wettaridJ" nV 
-"- 

^ftti*"* 
of sixty ( 60 ) feet'

whlch shalr T" ,tturneo 
-in rts exlstino condltion

or enhanced fot compatiiirity wi-tfr. 'ttie wetland'
The setback may be reaucea to as litt1e as twenty
(20) feet ii:'tnl applicant shows such lesser
setback wrri- noi aovdrs-erv affect- rhe wetrand,
provLded s"oii"" -A 

' SOg ' 09 'A- does not require more

rhan tfre re{u-e!-ila "Ltn""f 
. Lack of adverse effect

can be aemoistrated by showing the following among

other means:

a. A naturar condj.tion such as topography., "?lll
*r"gtt.lio" ot other feature isolates the area

of aevefottn"ttt from the wetland'
b. Impact mitlgation.tnei""t"" wlII be designed'

i.mpremeni;d,----an9.-- monrtored to provide
errectivJ--itot"ction against harm to the
wetland from sedimentatibn' erosion' loss of
surfacE lt- gt""no otu-Gi suppry ' ot physicar

c. it"f.n"Ti; setback complies .Yilh f ederal and

state permits , ox siin'Oaras that will apply to
state :;;";;eLtir permits ' Lr required'

2.Whereexistingwetlandsareeliminatedbythe
facility, tn"-ipplic-ant wilt develop or enhance an

area of tet,ia"A-6tt the site or in the same drainage
basin that-l; at teasl- equa-r- to .the area and

functionar .tJiu"-ot wetlands ellminated'

ChaPter 8

57

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 683



B. rf" applicant sharr provide appropriate plans and t,extthat identify and describe the significance andfunctional value of natural features on the site (ifidentified in the community Development pran, part 2) indprotect those features from impacts of the development ormitlgate adverse effects that wilr occur. A iacility
complies with this standard if:
1. The site does not contain an endangered or

threatened plant or animal species or a criticalhabitat for such species identlfied by Federal or
State government (and does not contaln significantnatura] features identifled ln the Community
Development Plan, part 2, NaturaL Resources and
Recreation plan).

2. The facility will comply
requirements of the zone.

with applicable

3 The appllcant wilt excavate and store topsoil
separate from subsurface soil, and shall replacethe topbotl over disturbed areas of the sit,e not
covered by buildings or pavement or provide other
appropriat,e medium for re-vegetation of those
areas, such as yard debris compost.

The applicant will retain significant vegetation j.n
areas that will not be covered by buildings orpavement or disturbed by excavatlon for thefacility; will replant areas disturbed by thedevelopment and not covered by buildings orpavement with native species vegetation unlessollrgr vegetatlon is needed to buffer the faciltty;will protect disturbed areas and adjoining habitit
from potential eroslon until replantea vegetation
is establLshed; and will provide a plan or plans
tdent,tfying each area and its proposed use.

Development associated with the facility witl beset back from the edge of a significant naturalarea by a minimum of sixty (60) feet, and thesetback area shall be retained in its existingcondltlon or enhanced for compatibility wlth th;natural area. The setback may be reduced to asIittle as twenty (20) feet if tne applicant shows
such lesser setback will not adversely affect thenatural area, provided Section 8.303.09.A does notrequire more than the requested setback. Lack ofadverse effect can be demonstrated by showing the
same sort of evLdence as ln Sectlon 9.305.02.A.L
above.

Clrapter I
58

4

5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 684



8.306

8.306 .01

NOISE

GenerallY

Atlotherwisepermittedcommerclal,industrial.institutional
uses in the city snari comply *iin the noise standards

contained in OAR f+O-:S-OgS' 
- fire City may require proof of

complianl"-riin oan li6-is:ols in -ine'rorir of copies of all
applicabte Srare p.trii"-lt-.Lttificition by a professional

acousticalengineerthattheproposeduseswillnotcause
noise in-exceJs of State standards'

8.306.02 Noise Sensltive Uses

Whenproposedcommercialandindustriatusesdonotadjoin
landexclusivelyincommerciator-industrialzones,otwhen
said uses adjoin "p""Jif 

.;;, f""iit"tional , ot parks and

recreational taciliti""l-"t other uses that are' in the City's
determination, sensiti"L to noise impacts' then:

A.Theapplicant.shallsubmittotheCity.anoiselevel
studv prepared #--e ;;Ji:::i'onal acoustical engineer'

sald study shall ierinl noise revers at the boundaries of

the site in all directions '

B.Theapplicantshallshowtha!'theusewillnotexceedthe
noise standard"'l""liinea in-oen 340-35-035' based on

acceptednoisemodelingproceduresandworstcase
assumptionswhen"rrn6isesourcesonthesiteare
oP"raiing simultaneouslY'

c.Tftheuseexceedsapplicablenoisestandardsasper
secrion g.306 .02;, rh-.; the ippricant sharl subnit a

nolse mitigation program' pttt'u?tO ?y ' 
t- orofessional

acoustical engin."f tniut snots 
-now and when ihe use will

"o*!-rni"-""'6rii"."withsaidstandards.
8.306 . 03 ExcePtions

SectionS.30Sdoesnotapplytgnoisemakingdeviceswhichare
maintained and utiti;d 'solely as warning or emergency

slgnals, 
-or io noise 

-caused ny -autornobiles, 
trucks ' trains t

aj.rcrafr, and orher "i;ii;; 
.r6ni.r"" when said vehicles are

properlv' '*i"tuined- 
-t"i- 

"peiated 
and are using properly

designated rights^-ol-;;; l?a""r -*tvi' 
flightp-aths or other

routes. Section 8.305-ii"o does noi appf^V 
-to hoise produced

by humarr"-ot inirnafs.'-N;;hing in St"tititi g'f OO shalI preclude

the ctty from abating any norle.probrem as per appricabre city
nuisanc" "t'a 

public saf ety ordinances '

Chapter I
59

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 685



8.307 VIBRATTON

8.307.01 Generally

All otherwise permitted commercial, industrial andinstitutional uses shall not cause discernable vibrations that
exceed a peak of 0.002 gravity at the property line of theorlglnatlng use, except for vlbrations that last five (5)minutes or _ less per d"y, based on a certification by' ;professional engineer.

8.3O7.02 ExceptLons

section 8.307 does not appry to vibration caused byconstruction activities incruding vehicles accessingconstructlon sites t ot to vlbrations caused by automobltesltrucks, tralns, alrcraft, and other similar vehlcles when saidvehicles are properly malntained and operated and are usingproperly designated rights-of-way, travelr^rays, flightpaths oiother routes. Nothing in section 8.302 shall pr-ecruae thecity from abatlng any vibratlon probrem as per applicable citynuisance and publl_c safety ordinances.

Chapter I
60

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 686



8.308 ArR QUALTTY

8.308.01 GenerallY

AIl otherwise permitted commercial, industrial,
instttutional uses "n"ri--comply 

with applicable state
gualitY rules and statutes:

A. All such uses shall comply wtth standards for dust

emissions as Per oAR 340-21-060.

ChaPter 8
61

and
air

B. rncinerators, if-otherwise permitted by section 8'303'02'
shalt comply wrtn"a; "lu".iutd;;;t 

f6rth ln oAR 340-25-

850 through- 340-25-905'

c.UsesforwhichaStateAirContaminantDischargePermit
is required as n;-oAR 

- 340-io:-it0 thro-u.g-h 340-20-160

shall -comply 
'rtf,=i,n""-"tu;-thlra-" "r 

oan 34-0-220 through

340-20-27 6 '

8.308.02 Proof of ComPliance

ProofofcompliancewtthairqualitystandardsasDerSection
s.308.01 snarr be in ri. -ioi* 

"r '";;#;-:!_ 4t appricable

State permits r ot t it permii"-1111 not'been issued' submission

by the applicant, tle acceptan"", uv tn" City' of a report

cerrified by a prorJ"i'o-rrEi engin6er indicitino that the

Proposea_ us6 witl ";;i;-;i!1 ''-.-".;- "ii- 
q"alitw- standards .

Dependinq 
-on the natu-rE and size of the use pioposed' the

appricanl il]y,"-'ir,';;;-ciiy'" determination, b6 required to

submit to the city a report or repotl"-""r"tantia11y identical
to that required rof issuance oi siate Air contaminant

Discharge Permits'

8.308.03 ExcePtions

NothlnginSectionS.-30sshallprecludetheCityfromabating
any air quallty problem as p.t "ppti"iur. 

citt nuisance and

Pu6tic safetY ordinances'

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 687



8.309 oDoRs

8.309.01 Generally

Arr otherwise permitted commercial, industrial andinstitutlonal uses shaIl incorporate the best practicable
design and operatlng measures so that odors prodrlced by the
use are not discernable at any point beyond the boundaries ofthe development site.

8.309.02 Standards

The applicant shall submit a narrative explanation of thesource, tlpe and freguency of the odorous emisslons produced
by the proposed commercial, lndustrial or institutional use.In evaluatlng the potentlat for adverse impacts from odors,the City shall consider the density and characteristics oisurrounding populations and uses, the duration of any odorousemissions, and other relevant factors.

8.309 .03 Exceptl.ons

Nothing in Section 8.309 sha1I preclude the City from abatingany odor problem as per applicable City nuisance and publi!safety ordlnances.

Chapter I
62

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 688



8.310 HEAT AND GI"ARE

Exceptforexteriorlightingl..allotherwisepermitted
commercial, industrial, 

-a-nt- initf.t"tional uses shall conduct

any op"t"1io"" prgoyging--"*"""1iY" heat or glare entirely
within encrosed uuriJi-igs. nxterior lighting shall be

directed away from ao:oining properties, and -the use shall not

cause such glare or fiqhl" i"-shine off site in excess of one-

half (.5) foor candle il;; loi.i"i"g propetties are zoned for
residentlal uses'

8.310.01 ExcePtions

NothinglnSectlonS.3l0shallprecludetheCityfromabating
any heat and glare. problem as p"t "pliicanle 

citt nuisance and

Puntic safetY ordinances'

Chapter 8
63

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 689



8.311 ENERGY CONSERVATION

8.311.01 Purpose

section 8.311 and appricable portions of chapter 5 of the
Community Development Plan provlde for natural heating and
cooling opportunities ln new development. The requirements of
Section 8.311 shall not result in development exceeding
allowable denslties or lot coverage r ot the destruction of
existing trees.

8.311.O2 Standards

A. Buildlng Orlentation
The maximum number of buitdlngs feasLble shall receivti
sunllght sufficLent for using solar energy systems for
space, water or industrial process heating or cooling.
Buildings and vegetation shalI be sited with respect. to
each other and the topography of the site so that
unobstructed sunlight reaches the south wall of the
greatest possible number of buildings between the hours
of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.n. pacif ic Standard Time on
December 21st.

B. Wlnd

The cooling effects of prevailing sunmer breezes and
shading vegetation shalL be accounted for in site design.
The extent solar access to adJacent sites is not
inpaired, vegetation shall be used to moderate prevailing
winter wind on the site.

8.311.03 Variance to Pernit So1ar Access

variances from zonlng distrlct standards rerating to height,
set'back and yard requirements, approved as per section 4.400,
may be granted by the commission where necessary for theproper functioning of solar energy systems t ox to otherwise
preserve solar access on a site or to an adJacent slte.

Chapter 8
64

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 690



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 691



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 692



CHAPTER 9

HISTORIC RESOURCES

Page
Section

g. 100

9.200

9.20L

9.202

9 .300

9.301

9 .400

9 .401

9 .500

9 .501

9.502

9 .503

9 .504

GENERALLY

Old Town

PURPOSE......

SPECIAL RESOURCE ZONES

1

1

1

1

6

6

9

9

13

13

16

L9

20

(OT) Overlay and HlstorLc District

LANDMARKS ADVISORY BOARD

GENERALLY " "

I"ANDMARK DESIGNATION

DESIGNATION STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

I,ANDMARK ALTERATION

PROCEDURES

ALTERATION STANDARDS

VARIANCES TO ALTERATION STANDARDS

LANDMARK DESIGNATION INCENTIVES

Chapter 9 - Table of Contents Page 1-

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 693



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 694



9.100

9.200

9.20L

CHAPTER 9

HISTORIC RESOURCES

PURPOSE

Chaptergisintendedtoprotect,preserve,andotherwise
property r.n.gJ ih;-aiit;s nistoric-anld cultural resources for
the benefit and educatlott oi-in" general public' to retain and

strengthen th; community's hisioric heritage and unique
identity, and io establisf, peltormance standards allowing the
City to properly ald- u-ntformly assess the impact of
residentlal,' cominercial, 

----i-ndust:rial, and institutional
development .rra- ictlvities on the quality of the City's
historic and cultural resources'

SPECIAL RESOURCE ZONES

GENERALLY

Specialresourcezonesareestablishedtoprovidefor,the
preservationr--piot."tio.n, .and management of unique historic
and cultural r6sorrrces 1n tne Cf tV itrat -are deemed to require
additional standards ueyond--inose'contained elsewhere in this
code. special resout"" ,on"" *"v be implemented as underlying
or overlay zones depending on pltterns of property ownership
and the nature of the resource.- A property Or properties may

be withi. ,nor! tn"r, on. (1) resource zone. rn addition, the
City may iaeitiFy- "l..iif 

resource areas and apply a PUD

overlay zone ir,-"Oluu"Le of any development in order to further
protect sald resources'

9 .2O2.Ol PurPose

The oT zoning district is an overlay distr.ict generally
applied t" c6mmerci.lt zonea..property, and to adjacent
resiOentiat pioperti;s' supportiirg - and.. complementing !l'"
commercial area and pio"iJiiig a diverslty of uses' itr the
Smockville SubdivisiJ;. ut"o- known as OId Town' The OT

overlay zone ,ecogni=.s the unique and significant
characteristics of Ofi- totnr drd is- intended to provide
deveropr""i ttexiuiliit vlith- tes.pect to uses, site sLze,
setbacks, n"tgnt", und site design elements, in order to
preserveand-enhancethearea's-commercialvlabilityand
historj.c character. rne oT overlay_ -zone- 

is-,designated a

historicdistrictaspersectionsg.400and9.500.

g.2o2oldTown(or}overlayandHistoricDistrict

Chapter 9
1

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 695



9.2O2.02 Permitted Uses

The followlng uses are permltted outright, provided such uses
meet the appllcable envlronmental performance standards
contained in Chapter 8:

Uses permitted outright in the RC zone, Section 2.L08.02,
and the MDRL zone, Section 2.LO3.02 provlded that uses
permltted outrlght on any glven property are limLted to
those permltted in the underlying zoning district, unless
other:vrise specif ied by Sections 9 .202 , 02 through
9 .202.O4.

In addition to the home occupations permitted under
Section 2.203.02, antique and curio shops, cabinet
making, arts and crafts galleries, artists cooperatives,
and bookshops, are permltted subJect to the standards of
Sections 2.203 and 9.202, in elther the underlytng RC or
MDRL zones.

c Boarding and rooming houses, bed and breakfast lnns, and
slmilar accommodatLons, contaLnlng not more than five (5)
guest rooms, in either the underlying RC or MDRL zones.

D. Motels and hotels, in the underlying RC Zone only.

E ResLdentlal apartments when located on upper or basement
floors, to the rear of, or otherwise clearly secondary to
commercial buildings, in the underlying RC Zone only.

Other slmllar commercial uses or slmilar home
occupatlons, subJect to Section 4.600.

9.202.O3 Conditional Uses

The following uses are permltted as conditional uses, provided
such uses meet the applicable environmental performance
standards contalned in Chapter I, and are approved in
accordance with Section 4.300.

A. Uses permitted as condltional uses in the RC zone,
Section 2.108.03, and the MDRL zone, Section 2.L03.03,
provided that uses permitt,ed as conditional uses on any
given property are limited to those permitted in the
underlylng zonlng district, unless otherwise specLfied by
Sectl.ons 9 .202.02 through 9 .202.04.

Chapter 9

A

B

F

2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 696



9.202.04 Prohiblted Uses

The following uses are expressly prohibited in the OT overlay
zone, nothrithstanding wheiner su-cn uses are permitted outright
or conditionalty in Lhe underlying RC or MDRL zones:

A. Adu1t entertainment businesses'

B. Manufactured homes on individual lots'

C. Manufactured home Parks'

g.2O2.OS Dimensional Standards

In the oT overlay zone, the dimensional standards of the
underlyfnt nC and MDRi "on." 

shall aPPIY, with the following
excePtions:

A. Lot Dimensions

Minimumlotarea(Rczonedpropertyonly):Twenty.five
hundred (2,500) square feet'

B. Setbacks

Minimum yards (RC zoned property only): None' including

"troci,rrlr 
aojbining a iesiaenliar zone, provided that

Uniform Buildi-ng Code, Fire District, regulations, and the
sfte-Jesfg"-"tuiOlras' of thls Code, not otherwlse varled
bY Section 9.202, are met'

C. Height

The maxlmum helght of structures on RC zoned property
shali n" three tgl stories or forty (40) fggt, whichever
is less. Limitaiions in the RC lone to the height of
commercial structures adjoinlng residential zones, and
allowances for addttional building helght as a

conditionaluse,shaltnotapplyintheoToverlayzgng.-
chi;;;tsl-sorar and wind energy devices, radio and Tv
antennis, and similar deviies may exceed height
ffnftiiions in the oT overlay zone by twenty (20) feet'

Coverage

Home occupations permitted as per section 2.203.02 a
g.202.O2 may oct"py up to fifty percent (50t) of t
entlre flooi area of a1f buildings on a lot'

D

nd
he

Chapter 9
3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 697



9.202.06 Community Design

Standards relating to off-street parking and Ioading,
environmental resources, landscaping, historic resources'
access and egress, signs, parks and open space, on-site
storage, and site design as per Chapters 5, 8 and 9 shall
apPly, with the followlng exceptlons:

A Generally

In reviewing site plansr ds required by Section 5.100,
the Clty shall utllize t,he deslgn guJ.delines originally
contained in the "sherwood Old Town RevitalLzation Action
Plan"r ds subsequently adapted and made a part of this
Code by reference, and attached as Appendix I, and, when
applicable, the standards of Sections 9.400 and 9.500.

B. Landscaping

1

2.

3

Perimeter screening and buffering,
5.203.01, ls not required for
occupations.

as per Section
approved home

Minimum landscaped areas are not required for off-
street parkJ.ng for approved home occupations.

Landscaped strips, ds Per Sections 5.2O3.A2 and
8.304.04A, may be a minimum of five (5) feet in
wLdth, except when adJoining alleys, where
Iandscaped strips are not requlred.

4 Fencing and interior landscaping, as per Section
5.2O3.O2, are not required.

Off-Street Parking

L. Required residential, home occupation' and
commercLal off-street parking spaces may be located
on the same property as the use which the parking
serves, or off-site within five hundred (500) feet
of the use served. Off-site parking shall be
permitted only if satisfactory evidence is
presented to the City, in the form of deeds, leases
or contracts, establishing control of the sLte by
the proposed use for vehicle parking purposes.

2. Except as otherwise provided in this Section
minlmum standards for off-street parklng spaces for
commercial uses and home occupations shall be one-
half (t/2) of the standards established under
Section 5.302.028.

Chapter 9
4

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 698



3

4

5

D.

2.

E. Signs

For Blocks 1 and 2, and the southern halves of
Blocks 5 and 6, all on washington county Assessors
r'lip 2S1 328C, off-street parking is not required.

Minimum requirements for off-street parking
established 6V Section 9.202.06C2, may be further
reduced by a percentage equal to the- number of
p"nii. of i-str6et parking spa-ces provided within
the oT overlay zone, compared to the total off-
street parking for existing and propos.ed uses, dS
-ornp,rt"i by ine City, that would otherwise be
required in the OT overlaY zorLe,

up to fifty percent (50!) of required off-street
pirking spatei may have minimum dimensions of eight
?st i;6t in width and eighteen (18) feet in length'

Off-Street Loading

1. Off-street loading spaces for commercial uses may
be shared and lgglegatea in one or several
locations in a srngre- block, provided that the
mlnimum area of all loading spaces in a blockr when
takentogether,shallnotbelessthanfifty
percent [sot) of the minimum standard that is
-otnerwtse' required by Section 5 ' 303 ' 018'

For Blocks 1 and 2, and the southern halves of
Blocks 5 and 6, all on washington county Assessors
Map25L32Bc,off-streetloadlngtsnotrequired.

In addltion
occupations,
sign, uP to
surface area,
occupation.

to signs otherwise permitted for home
as per Section 2.203.0L' one (1) exterior
a miximurn of sixteen (16) square feet in

may be permitted for each approved home

F Non-conforming Uses

when a nonconforming lot, user or, structure within the oT
overlay zone has -been designated a _landmark as per
Sectioir 9.400, or when a noncohforming lot within the OT

overlay zone is vacant, and the proposed change will, ir
the City's deterntnatlon, be fully consistent with the
goafs arid standards of the OT overlay zone and other City
iuidelines to preserve, restore, and enhance historic
resources, nonionforming use restrlct'ions contained in
Section 2.206 may be waived by the Commission'

Chapter 9
5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 699



9.300

9.301

A.

D.

LANDMARKS ADVISORY BOARD

GENERALLY

The City Landmarks Advlsory Board shall consist of seven
(71 members to be appol.nted by the Council for terms of
two (21 years. Tvro (2) members may be non-residents of
the City, provided they reside within the Sherwood
portion of itre Urban Growth Boundary. Landmarks Board
members shall recelve no compensatLon for thelr servlces'
but shall be reimbursed for duly authorized expenses.

A Landnarks Board member may be removed by a maJorJ-ty
vote of the Council for misconduct or non-performance of
duty, as determined by the Council. Any vacancy sha1l be
filled by the Council for the unexpired term of the
predecessor in office.

Landmarks Board membership may be drawn from all segments
of the community, provided however, that the Council
shall strive to appoint individuals in a variety of
professlons to the Landmarks Board, and shall give
preference to o$tners of historic properties, architects,
Leal estate brokers, attorn€YSr builders, historians, and
other professions providing background and expertise
relevant to historic preservation.

No more than two (2) Landmarks Board meinbers shall be
engaged prlncipally in the buying, selling, or developing
of real estate for profit as individuals, or be members
of any partnership, or officers or employees of any
corporatl-on that is engaged principally in the buying,
sellingr or developing of real est'ate for profit. No
more than two (2) members shall be engaged in the same
kind of business, trade t ot profession.

9.301.01 Officers, Minutes, and Voting

A The Landmarks Board shalt, dt its first meeting in each
odd-numbered year, elect a chair and vice-chair who shall
be voting members and who shall hold office at the
pleasure of the Landmarks Board.

Before any meeting of the Landmarks Board, public notice
shall be glven as requlred by State Statute and thls
Code. Accurate records of aIt Landmarks Board
proceedings shall be kept by the City, and maintained on
file in the City Recorder's office.
A majority of menbers of the Landmarks Board shall
consLiLuLe a quorum. A maJority vote of those members'

chapter 9
6

B

c

B

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 700



9 .301 .02

A.

B.

9 .301 . 03

not less than a quorum' present at an open meeting of the

Landmarks goard'"nurr be necessary to_-legally ""1 ol-any
matter uerore fn"-iu"a*arrs 

-g;rd. rhe r,andmarks Board

may make ano arlei i"r"" "f ;;i;ot11? cortslstent with the

laws of the stlte of oregon-r- the clty charter, and city
ordinances.

Conflicts of Interest

Landmarks Board members shall not participate in any

Landmarks Board proceedilrg-;;;ction-in which they hold
a direct o, "riU"fu"ifal 

fiiancial interest, or when such

interestis-heldbyu.m"^uer'sl.mmedlatefamily.
Additionally, 

'i *tOtt shall not participate when an

actioninvolvesanyuusinessinwnicntheyhavebeen
employed within the previous two (2' years ' ot any

business witn'-wnicn 
-tn'ev have a prospective partnership

or emPloyment.

Any actual or potenLial-interest by a- Landmarks Board

member in an altion as pe; -Slction 9.303.03A shall be

disclosed by tnai-memuer af tne meetlng of the Landmarks

Board where tr," u.tro" is 
-reing 

taken-. Landmarks Board

members snari-irso dlscrose any- pre-hearing or ex-parte
contacts with .ppti".nts, officlrs, agents, employees' or
any other parties to an .ppf-i.ltioh fefore the Landmarks

Board. Ex-pailL contact;-;itli a Landmarks Board member

shall not rn*r-.iia"i" a final- decision or action of the
Landmarks Board provided tnit-in. member receiving the
contact inaiciie" lnt subs,tance of the content of the ex-
parte communi!;;i.; ind of in" rtght-of parties to rebut
said content it the first nearin! where action will be

considered or taken

Powers and Duties

Exceptasotherb'iseprovidedby}aw.,theLandmarksBoardshall
be vested with all po$rers and'duties, and shall conduct all
business, ." .LU torin in tne- faws of tne State of Oregon' the

city charter,-""o-ciiv oraini"""". The Landmarks Board shall:

A.RecommendtotheCouncilthedeslgnationofcertain
hlstoric-"ro cuttural resources, structures, buildings'
places, JG", tanas"tpt" and areas as tandmarks or
historic dlstricts, in'accordance with section 9'400'
subject to the .ppto*rir of the council, the Board may

employ tn-;- seivi;;; or ie"uritilg architect or hist'orian
in the designation pror'""". The landmark alteration
criteria containea in-Seciiott 9.500 shall only apply to
designat"a-iandmarks or historic districts.

Chapter 9
7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 701



B Review and take action t ot make reconmendationsr on
building alteratlon applications for designated landmarks
and in designated hlst,orlc dlstrlcts, ln accordance with
Sectlon 9.500, and If the building alteratlon involves a
site plan application as per Section 5.100, the Board
shall substitute for the Planning Commission and act as
the approving authority for such applications.
For any land use appllcatlon, other than site plan
review, that is for a designated landmark or in a
designated historic district, the Board shall provide
formal written recommendatlons to the planning
Commisslon, prior to t,he Commlsslon's declsLon on the
application.

Cooperate with and enlist the assistance of persons,
organizations, corporations, foundations, and public
agencies in matters involving historic preservation,
rehabilitation, and reuse.

Advise and assist owners of landmarks on the physical and
financlal aspects of historic preservation,
rehabllitation, and reuse, especiatly with respect to
publishing or making available guidelines on historicpreservation, and identifying and publicizing tax
beneflts and grant and loan opportunttles.
Determine an appropriate system of marks and signs for
designated landmarks and historic districts.

Chapter 9
I

c.

D.

E

F

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 702



9 .400

9.401

9 .401 .01

A.

B.

9 .40t.02

A

B

c.

I.ANDMARK DESIGNATION

DESIGNATION STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES

GenerallY

The Landmarks Board shall make recommendations on the
designationofstructuresrbuilditrgs'places'landscapes
and sites, n""i"g "pl"i"f 

historical' archi'tectural ' ot
cultural "igrriiiE"tE", 

as historic landmarks or historic
districts.

SubJect to the pr-o-cedures and standards of
gle6r. og and gl+01.04, historic resources
o.iittut"a as landmarks having Primary or
;i;;i;i;"t". based on the historic' architectur
and use 

"ttuf 
,tutf ott criteria contalned ln

9.401.04.

Effect of Designation

Any historic resource designated^as p9T Section 9'400'
shatl be suulecl io sectioi 9'500' except a-s otherwise
provided by this Code' Any bui-lding or site that is
considerea for iandmarks designation, but rejected as.per
section g.400r-*uv-"ot be feconsidered for a minimum

period of thro (2i years. The classification of any

designated landmlrk 6nce establi.shed as per Section 9.400
may not ue recon"iaerea for a minimum period of two (21

years.

Thelandmarkalterationcrlteriacontainedinsection
9.500 shall ippiy only to designated landmarks or
historic aistiidtJ. giitoric resources designa-t-ed as

randmarks or 
-eitner primary or secondary significance

;h;a are wlthin a special hlstoric resource zone or
hlstoric aist,iiE ire suuject to section 9.500. Historic
resources aesi-gnatea as iandmarks of either Primary or
secondary sig-niiilutt". th_at are not within a special
historlc ,""oiir-.. zone or htstorlc dlstriqt shall not be

subJecttos_""tron9.500'except.thatsuchPrlmary
resources snaif-be subject io an advisory and non-binding
review by the ioara prior to issuance of any building or
other aPPlicaUle CttY Permits'

Notwithstanding its llsting and ratlng ln' or omisgion
from, a historic resources inventory, or its designation
or rejection i" a landmark, dtry structure, building'
place, landscdP€, slte, o.t.area witntn a speclal hlstorlc
resource ,ott"-#y-ie subject to the standards of that
zone. Any strudture, UuttOing, place' site ' ot area

ChaPter 9
9

Sections
may be

SecondarY
dI, site,

Section

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 703



within a designated historic district shall be subJect to
Section 9.500 where so required by this Code, and may be
subject to the standards of that district.

9.401.03 Procedures

Except as otherwise provided herein, the CounciI,
Commission, Landmarks Board, the owners of a potential
landmark, or a citlzen may inltlate hlstoric landmark or
dlstrict designat,ion in accordance with Section 9.401.
Application for landmark designation shall be made on
forms provided by the City. A proposed designation shall
be processed as a plan amendment,. The Landmarks Board
shall, conduct a public hearing concerning the proposed
designation and provlde public notlce in accordance with
Section 3.200 of this Code. The Landmarks Board shatl
provide a report and recommendation on the proposed
deslgnatlon to the CouncLI.

B Initiatlon of conslderation of a new historic district
designation, or amendment to any established historic
district, may be initiated by the Council, Commission, or
Landmarks Board, or by petltlon speclfylng a proposed
dlstrict boundary and sLgned by at least twenty-fLve
percent, (25t) of the property owners within the proposed
district. A proposed designation shall be processed as
a plan amendment. The Landmarks Board shall conduct a
publlc hearing concernlng the proposed designation and
provide public notice in accordance with Section 3.200 of
this Code. The Landmarks Board shall provide a report,
and recommendation on the proposed designati-on to the
Council.

Upon receipt of the report and recomnendation of the
Landmarks Board, the Council shall conduct a further
public hearing as per Section 3.200. Approval of the
landmark or district designation shall be in the form of
an ordinance. Lf a resource or area is approved for
designation by the Council, it shall be listed as a
designated historic landmark or district in the Community
Development Plan element of the City Comprehensive Plan.

Chapter 9
10

A

c

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 704



D Once Clty actLon on historic district deslgnatlon is
-ompfeter- the designation shall not go into effect until
th;'City has adopted design guidelinep _and standards for
tne disi,rict, siilLar to those adopted for the Smockville
OId Town Historic District, Appendix I. Unless otherwise
irprictica]-, historic district design guidelines and
stindards should be developed and considered concurrently
with historic district designation.

9.401.04 Standards

In determining whether historic resources or- groups - 
of

historic resouices should be designated as landmarks of elther
prlmary or Secondary signlficance -or as historlc districts,
the f,andmarks goard and- Council shall make written findings
wj.th respect to the following factors '

A. That the potentlal historic resource has a quality or
significarice in American or local history, architecture'
arineotogy, engineering, or_ culture' and retains its
hist,orictritegrity in teims of location, design' setting,
materials, wo-rrma-nship, feeling and association, and:

1. Is assocl-ated with events or persons signifLcant in
American or local historYi ot

2. Embodies the dlstlnctl-ve characteristics of a type'
styterP€f,lodrormethodofconstructlonor
arihitectule, ox represents the work of a master
craftsperson, architect or builder, or possesses
significant artistic, aesthetic or architectural
values; or

3. Has yielded, or may be likely to y_ield, information
impoltant in American or local prehistory or
hlstory; or

4. Is listed on the National Register of Historic
Places.

B. The Board and Council shall also examine and make
findings regarding speclfic uses allowed in the zoning
distri6ts where tne- proposed landmark lies' identify
consistencies and/or cbntlicts with the allowed uses and
proposed deslgnation, and determine the economic, socialt
environmental and energy (ESEE) inpacts of designation on
the proposed landnark and adjacent allowed uses.

Chapter 9
11

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 705



c The Board, after considering
9.401.04A of this Section and

the crLteria in Sect'ion
the ESEE analysis required

by section 9.401.048, shall recommend to the council
approvat of the landmark's deslgnation as a Primary or
Selondary historlc resource approval with conditions' or
determine that the resource should not receive any
landmarks designation. The Council's final decision on
the Board's recommendation shall be in the form of an
ordinance amending the Community Developnent Plan element
of the City Comprehensl.ve PIan and llsting the resource
as a designated historic site, approving the designation
wlth condltions, or determining that the resource should
not receive any landmarks desJ.gnation.

Chapter 9
L2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 706



9 .500

9 .501

9 .501 .01

A.

B

c.

LANDMARK ALTERATTON

PROCEDURES

Alteration APP1ication

Appticationforanyalterationofadesignated].andmark,
exceptasp"'-s."t.io''9.50l.o3,shallbemadeonforms
provlded bY the CitY'

The followtng information shalI be required in an

ippri"iii"" f6r atteration of a landmark:

1. The applicant's name and address'

2. The property owner's narne(s) and .address(es) ' if
differentfromtheapplicant''saldastatementof
authorization to act dn uenarf of the owner signed
bY the ovtner.

3. The street address or other easil-y understood
geograpnical reference to the landmark property'

4. A drawlng ot site map itlustrating the location of
the landmark.

5. A statement explaining - c-ompliance with the
apptrcaule ipptottir crlte?ia 9'500' as appropriate'

6. Ten (10) sets of plan drawings to include site'
landscapin!- and eldvations, drawn to scale'

T.Photographsofthelandmarkwhichshowallexterior
features.

8. A list of owners of proPerty (fee title) within one

hundred fioo;, re6t - of - rhe subjec-t property
together olf tn {'neir current mailing addresses '

g.AnyotherinformationdeemednecessarybytheCity
Manager or his or her deslgnee'

TheLandmarksBoardshallconductapubllc-hearing
concerning tnl JroJosea landmark arteration and provide
public notice i; iccordance with section 3.200 of this
code. If tne aifeiatton involves site plan review as per
Section 5.100, the Board shall also act for the
Commission ."-in" "it. 

plan approving authority' The

Landmarks Board declslon shati-Ue based on compliance
withthereviewstandardsinSectiong.S02andshall
consider tne- &rgi;;i findlng made in the landmark

ChaPter 9
13

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 707



D

designation process as per Section 9.400

In any alteration action, the Landmarks Board shall give
fuII conslderatlon and welght to the importance of the
landmark, its landmarks classification and designation,
any adverse economic or visual impacts on adJacent
landmarks, speclal historic resource zones t ot hl.storic
districts, and, if the proposed landmark is within a
special hlstoric resource zone or designated historic
district, the standards and guidelines of that, zone or
district,

9.501.02 Appcals

A decision rendered by the Landmarks Board regarding approval,
approval wlth conditLons, or denlal of a permit for
constructlon, alteratlon, removal t ot demolitlon of a
designated landmarkr rrdy be appealed to the Council as per
Section 3.400.

9.501.03 Exceptions

A. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to prevent the
maintenance or repair of any exterior architectural
feature which does not involve a change in design,
material or appearance of such featurer of, which the
Bullding Official shall determine Is required for the
public safety due to an unsafe or dangerous condition.
Except as otherwise provided in t,his Chapter and Section
9.501.038, if no City building permit or land use
approval ls otherwlse requLred, facade alteratlons which,
in the City's deternination, adversely lmpact or lessen
a landmarks hlstorlc character, shalI be subject to
Iandmark alteration review. Such alterations subject to
revl-ew could lnclude, but are not llmlted to palnting of
facade elements or construction of materials normally
Ieft unpainted within the historic context of the
Iandmark; replacement of windows, transoms, awnings,
doors, exterior 1ighti.g, or other exterior features; the
addition and replacenent of exterior heatlng, ventilating
and air conditloning equipment, except for temporary
equipmenL such as portable in-window air conditioners; or
any overlay of an exist,ing facade with new siding
materials.

B. Normal maintenance and repair of historic resources are
not subJect to landmark alteration review, except as
r'pecrIreq rn u€lctron y. JUI. uJA. Normar malrlLenarlce artu
repair actlvities generally exempted from Section
9.301.01 shall lnclude, but are not llmlted to:

Chapter 9
t4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 708



I Repairing or providi ng ", 1tt f oundation ttrat does

not result in raising or lowering the building
elevation provided however that the Cit'y mus! find
that foundatlorr-rit"rtals and craftsmanshlp do not

contribute to tne historical and architectural
signiticance of the landmarki

Installation of storm windows and doors'
insulatlon, caulklng, weatherstrlpping and other
#;;-;iiicient imfrovements which complement or
match the exiJl"g ;-"1"t, oetair and proportions of
the tandmark;

Painting, sandblasting, chemical treatments' and

related exterior surflce preparatioil'--except for
surface pt"p.iiiio"" that "relutt in the landmark
becoming rurtri&- rlrnoveo from its original historic
appearance, tn"i" ln" landmark wotlld not have been

oriqinalfV pui"i"A, or where the preparation could
damige exterior surfaces'

Repair or replacement of electrical' plumbing'
mechanical systems, sewer' water and other utility.si;ffi; 

, 
- 

""d 
- l-diit""t 

- 
wrrrcn does not alter a

a6"iil"i"a landmirli's exterlor appearance'

Repair or replacement of building and slte features
when work i" i""" itt fina to cloJely rnatch existing
materials ana-ioim.- Such features include fencing,
roofing, ventJ fiorcnes., cornices' siding' doors'
balustrades, 

-Jtiit", trim, wj.ndows, dri-veways '
parklng areas; 

-;;Qinltg walls ' signs ' awnlngs '
gutters and root drain -systems' hahd rails and

guardrails.

Necessary structural repairs' ds determined by the

clry Bullding 
-o-.f 

f i;;i'tnit' ao not signif icantlv
alter or destroy the landmark's historic
apPearance.

Masonry repai'r or cteaning' inc-Iudilg repointing
and rebuilding chimneys, {i mortar is matched to
orlginal compdsition, 

-and 
n"ryit.teshtn-g= if done at

ro-f,ot" than 600 psi with mild detergent'

3

2.

4

5

6.

7.

Chapter 9
15

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 709



8. Any other exterior repair, replacement or
malntenance that, in the City's determination, does
not result in the landmark becoming further removed
from its origlnal historic appearance.

c. Landmarks designated as Primary historic resources as per
Section 9.401 that are not within special historic
resource zones or historic districts shall be subject to
landmarks alteration review, but such review shall be
advlsory and non-blndlng. Landnarks designated as
Secondary hlstoric resources as per Section 9.401 that
are not within special historic resource zones or
deslgnated historlc dlstrlct.s shall noL be subJecL to
Sectlon 9.500 review or compliance.

D Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter, interior
alterations not visually or structurally modifying a
designated landmarks external appearance or facade shall
not be subJect to landmarks alteration review, unless the
Lnterior is specifically cited as part of the reason for
the landmarks designationr ds per Section 9.401.04.

E Signs shall be subJect to Section 5.700 only, provided
that the City Manager or his or her designee finds that
the proposed slgn or sLgns comply with the standards of
Section 9.500 and the guidelines and standards of any
applicable special historic resource zones or designated
historlc districts. These findings shall be prepared and
reviewed as per Section 9.501.018.

9.s02 ALTERATION STANDARDS

The following general standards are applied to the review of
alteration, construction, removal, or demolition of designated
Iandmarks that are subject to Section 9.500. In addition, the
standards and guidelines of any applicable special resource
zone or historic district shall appty. In any landmark
alteration action, the Landmarks Board shalt make written
findings indicating compliance with these standards.

9.502,01 Generally

A. Every reasonable effort has been made by the property
owner, in the City's determination, to provide a use of
the landmark which requires minimal alteration of the
structure, siter or area.

El . in cases where the physicai or siructurai int,egrity of a
landmark is questionable, that the proposed alterati-ons
are the minimum necessary to preserve the landmarksphyslcal or atructural integrity or to preserve the

Chapter 9
15

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 710



D

E

F.

9 .502.O2

A.

feasibllityofthecontinuedoccupationoruseofthe
iina;*k given lts structural condition'

In cases where the landmark has been , significantly
iitereO in thJ past, that it is technically feaslble to
unAertake atteritiott" tending to renovlte, rehabilitate,
i"piir or fmpio"e -the landirark to historic sLandards
giien those Prior alterations'

The compatibiltty of surroundilg-Iand uses' and the
underlying ";i"g' 

deslgnation of the pr:operty gT which
the hlstorlc r"-sorrrcd is sited, with the historic
resourcescontinueduseandoccupatigt'andwith-the
renovation, rehabilitation, repair, or improvement of the
resource to historic standards'

Alterations shall be made in accordance with the historic
character of ine landmark as suggested by the historic
resources invlnioiy and other hlstoric resources and
records. Alteradions to landmarks wlthin special
historic disiricts shall, itl addition, be lade in
iccoraance wiih the standards and guidelines of that zone
or distrlct.
Alterat.ions that have no histori-c basis and that seek to
create a tnemJic or stylistic appearance unrelated to
the landmark's or hiJtorlc di-slrict's hlstory and
oiigfnaf or tlter signlficant additions architecture
snalt not be Permitted.

Architectural Features

The distinguished origlna'l qualiti_es or character of a

landmark snait not be deJtroyed. The removal or
alteration oi any historic miterial or distinctive
iichitectural feadures shall be avoided. Distinctive
styllsttc or archltectural features or examples of
skilled craftsmin"nip which characterLze a landmark shall
be preserved.

Deteriorated architectural features shal} be restored
wherever possible. In the event replacement lS

"""""""xy, 
tne-new materials should match the material

neing reliaceA in composition, design, color' texture'
and other visual qualities'

Repalr or replacement of misslng arc-hltectural features
shbutd be -based, wherever bossible, on accurate
duplications of said features, substantiated by hi'storic,
phlsical, or pictorial - evidence, rather than on
l"i,j""tural designs or the avaLlability of different

B

c.

Chapter 9
L7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 711



architectural
structures.

elements from other buildings or

D

E

The surface cleanlng of landmarks shall be undertaken
using methods generally prescrlbed by qualified
architect.s and preservationists. Sandblasting and other
cleaning methods that will damage historic building
materLals shall not be undertaken.

Contemporary deslgn for alterations and additions to
Iandmarks may be allowed when such alterations and
additions do not, in the Clty's determination' destroy
slgnlflcant historical, archltectural, or cult'ural
features, and such design is compatlble with the size,
scale, coLor, material, and character of the designated
Iandmark or hlstorlcal dlstrlct.
Whenever posslble, neld additions or alterations to
landmarks shall be done in such a manner that, if such
additions or alterations ritere removed in the future, the
historlc form and integrlty of the landmark would be
unlmpaired.

Chapter 9
1B

F

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 712



9.s03

9.503 .01

A.

B

GeneraLly

Any variances to landmark alteration standards shall be
coirsidered as per Section 4.400, provided however, that
the Commission shalI first receive and consider a report
and recommendation of the Landmarks Board, in addition to
considering the criteria sPecified |n Section 9.503.018'
Variances tb landmark alteiation standards as per Section
4.400, shall be considered only if the landmark has been
subJect to the full landmark alteration revieht procedure
as per Section 9.501.

rn any variance action, the Landmarks Board and the
Commiision shall give full consideration and weight to
the importance of the landmark, its classificatl-on and
designition as a landmark, the standards and guidelines
of any appllcable special historic resource zones or
aesigfateb- nlstoric districts, the standards of Sectlon
9.505, and to any adverse economic or visual impacts and
any variance on adjacent landmarks, special historic
resource zones r ot designated historic districts.

VARIANCES TO ALTERATION STANDARDS

Chapter 9
19

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 713



9 .504

9 .504. O1

LANDMARK DESIGNATION TNCENTIVES

Generally

To facilitate the purposes of this Chapter and in recognition
of the extraordinlry costs sometimes associated with the
appropriate preservation of historic resources' incentives
sniff-be rnade avallable at the tlme such resources undergo an
alteratlon subject to Section 9.500. Such incentives shall be
in addition to the activities of the Landmarks Board required
by Section 9.301.03D-8.

9.504.02 Incentlves

Any landmark designated as per this Chapter, whether Primary
or Secondary, or wlthin oi outside of a special historic
resource zone or historic dist,rictr RdY be granted one or more
of the following incentives, provlded that in exercising or
accepting any incentlve contained herein, a landmark not
otherwise subJect to Section 9.500 shall thereafter be subject
to aII the telms and conditions of that Section. Incentives
sha1I be granted only if the proposed alteration has undergone
IandrnarkJ alteratlon revlew and is fully conslstent with
Section 9.500 and the landmark's designation as per Section
9.400. Monetary incentives, such as property tax rebates and
fee waivers, miy be granted in any combination, as determined
by the Landmarks Board, provided however, that the total
amount of the monetary incentives shall not exceed the
additional cost of the historically appropriate alteration
over that of a more conventional improvement, also as
determined by the Landmarks Board.

Property Tax Rebates!

t. A property owner who has expended funds for labor
anA mateftals necessary to conply with Section
9 .5OO r RdY apply to the Cit'y f or rebate of the
City's poition of real property taxes levied and
collected by the vlashington county Department of
Assessment and Taxation for the fiscal real
property tax year following the tax year in which
Lne- investment for labor and materlals was made by
the owner, and for each subsequent tax year
thereafter for not to exceed ten (10) tax years.
In no event shall the total rebates paid by the
city to the applicant exceed the total cost of the
Iabor and malerials expense necessary to comply
with section 9.500. The applicani shail submit
with the application, on a form to be provided by
the Ctty, Juch verificatlon of t,he expendltures for'
labor Lnd materiala, as shatrI be determined

Chapter 9
20

A

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 714



B

2.

3.

City
t.

sufficient bY the CitY.

No rebates shall be allowed for any property for
which real property tax payments are delinguent,
nor shall leUates continue to be paid for a
property which ceases to meet the standards of thLs
|rdinanie as a quallfying hlstorlcal resource. No

rebates sharl bA allowed for tax payments made in
-h" y"rr the funds are expended for compliance with
Section 9.r500 or any year prior thereto'

Nothing ln this section shalt be deemed to obligate
the Ci[y to rebate any taxes levied and paid for_
the uenerit of any other governmental entity' ald
shall apply only to real property- taxes assessed,
leviedr-ini payiote to the city of sherwood by the
t{ashlngton Corinty Department of Assessment and
Taxation.

Fee Waivers

The city Building official shall waive all building
permit fees established by - the current uniform
building Code Fee Schedule that would normally be
applicaUle to a landmarks alteration'

The city Planning Director shall waive all required
iina ,rsl apptic6itton fees established by thg City
that would- normally be applicable to a landmarks
alteration, includfng any fees for processing the
landmarks alteration application itself '

2.

Building Code Variances:

Consl-stent with Section 104 (f) of the Unlform Building
Code, the City Building Official is authorized to permit
alterations tb designated landmarks without conformance
to alI requirements of tne Uniform Building 9o9" or other
applicable codes adopted by the City provided:

1. The landmark has been designated as per section
9.400, and the alteration is fully consistent with
Section 9.500, and

2 The altered landnark wtll
based on life safetY' fire
than the existing landmark.

3. The alteratlon ts approved by the Landmarks Board.

Chapter 9
2L

be no more hazardous
safety and sanitation

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 715



Appendix I

OLD TOIIN DESIGN GUIDELINES

Introductl.on

Purpose
The goal of these Design Guidelines is to maintain the small town
charicter of Sherwood OId fown while recognizing the changes in use
and growth that will need to occur to revitalize the district.
This goal can be accomPlished bY:

* Returning existing examples of historic architecture to
their o?tgtnal -character, and rehabilitating and
improvlng otner bulldings, focusing on exterior painting
and repair.

* Using consistent themes of design, sca1e, ornamentation,
cotoi, materials and signing to unify OId Town and
achieve a coheslve, yet individuallzed identity.

The Guidelines provide a framework and general d_irection to the
City, building 6wners, developers, met:chants, and residents, and
are-not a set-of prescrlptlve-and absolute requi_rements. Instead
the Guidelines piovide a comprehensive list of design elements
which should be considered when a building renovation or new
construction is proposed. These Guidelines are intended to
supplement existing orafnances and are specifically applied to Old
Town, not other areas of Sherwood.

Each business in Old Town is at once an individual enterprise
providing a serviCe for customers, and a part of a larger bqsiness
iommuniti, surrounded by older resldentiat uses. These Guidelines
are dire6tea at preserving the indivlduality found in OId Town and'
at the same €tne, imliroving the district's appearance and
marketability.

* Design Guidelines are not law, but will be used in
conjunct,ion with City ordinances.

*

*

Design Guidelines glc
of l-ndlvldual express

absolutely inhibit the freedom

Design Guidelines do not prohibit growth
construction.

or new

not
16

* Deslgn Guldellnes gre ldeas about what is approprlate to
an area.

* Design Guidelines * performance crlteria which assure
that construction wlft ne in keeping with the character
of the dlstrict.

Appendlxl-Pagel

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 716



* Design Guidelines do establish criterla that buLld upon

the existing chaiac-teibr tn" dlstrlct, and guar_d against
random decisiorir--- iu*roritism, and a lack of
pt"Ji"tanirrty in reviewing proposars'

*DesignGuldeltnesdolndicatewhatcanbedoneaswellas
whatisdiscouragffwithinthedistrict.

The Outdoor Room
walking through the old Town area, imagi'ne an outdoor "room" ' The

size of the ,,ioom" is narrow itta iottained, iD the- area around the
intersection Lg- rit"t anO 

-Washington Streets, and wider and more

open moving o.rt from the "Ji" aiea. The "floor" is made up of
concrete and asphalt. The "waLls" are of different helghts'
materials, and iolors, Uui- generally. one and two stories with
stucco or brick the preaomina-nt ftniin material in the core' and

wood finishes elsewhere'

Homes and offices are made comfortable through simplicity in colors
and patternsr--"nfifcient al"ot"t1"" objectJ on the walls to make

for interest without clutter, and by v-aried places where you can

sit and talk,--G- entertained and generally f9.l a-t ease" on a

dif ferent level, this Oesciines ifre potential for OId Town'

However, the OId Town ,,room,i do."t't havL much furniture, and not
many places to sil and ta1k. The "room" seems cluttered because

signs are so dominant, ." o'"rr as utility lines and poles.

As with a room, how and where you errter can add to usefutrness and

character. Old Town has *.iot'entrfes at North Sherwood Boulevard
and oregon sJreJ, ina min6i entrtes at s'w' and N'W' Washington

street and N.w. Main streei.- By improving these entries, the
iJentity or the district will be strengthened.

In a rrouse there are rooms where everyone sociali3es' The old
Town, the main-intersection .i ll.w. was-ni-ngton and.First Streets'
and along Rallroad Streeu, are those.pla?es. The addition of
special pubtic improvet"rri" 

-around these areas, and extending
toward Pine street, couptea with development along Vfashington

Street, wiII strengthen the OId Town core'

ffiIr::;*isT"T commercial buildinss_ in old rown which should receive
speciat attention: the UoiiOin.i housing the Old Tow-n Pub at N'W'

tfashington and Rallroad sir-eeiJ, the o-uiraing housing the Round

Tabre Tavern at N.W. Wasninlion'ano First stieets, the buirding
housing Smocfvif ie Station A'ntiques -a!.N.W' Washington and First
Streets, the OiO ll"tth Chuicn-o"'t'lortn Pine Street' the former post
offlce on Rallroad Street,_ ana 91ty. HaIl at N.w. Park and Flrst
Streets. fheie are also severaf other older buildings that are
important to the o1d Town ii"^, including the- oriental Theater and

severar residential buirdings. appiopriate_ remodeling tttq
landscaping could have a tfemendouJ 

- imlact in enhancing and

enlivening-the district "room" '

AppendLxl-Page2

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 717



District Character
The district can strengthen its identity and character by:

1. Removing unslghtly signs and unused sign supports, and
installing signs oriented to pedestrians.

2. Using common building materials and removing out-of-character
materials.

3 Uslng colors whlch compliment each other and tie buildings
together.

4 Emphasizing first floor storefronts with the use of color,
signs, awnings, windows, and archi.tectural detailing.
Installing shared or connecting canopies, lights, and,/or
cornices where appropriate.

Developing new buildings to the front property line.

5

5

7, fnstalling street trees along property lines where buitdings
are now set back.

8.

9.

10.

1.1 .

L2.

Design Guldelines

Generally
The following considerations should appty in
development, construction and use proposals:

Improving major vehicular and pedestrian entries.
Improving alleys as pedestrLan circulation areas.

Developing a public lmprovement program.

fnitiating and maintaining a public area maintenance program.

DevelopJ.ng common design elements whlch reinforce the small
rural center ldea, lncludlng low wooden fences around the
resLdential buildings housing businesses, common design of
street address numbers, and a select, range of exterior colors.

L

2

3

reviewing all

Uses should be compatible with the building housing the use,
and require minimum alterati.on to the building and surrounding
property.

Rehabilttation work should notqualities or character of the
property.

destroy the dist,inguishing
building anci surrouncilng

DeterLorated historical architectural features should be
repaired rather than replaced.

Appendixl-Page3

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 718



Distlnctive styllstic features or examples of skilled
craftsmanshlp which characterLze older structures and often
predate the mass production of building materials, should be
retained and restored.

AII existlng buildings should be recognized as products of
their own time, and alterations creating an appearance
inconsistent with the original character of the building
should not be undertaken.

6. Contemporary deslgns for new buildings, and additions to
existing buildings, should be encouraged when such design is
compatible with the historic size, scaIe, color, material and
character of OId Town.

7. New additions or alterations to buildings should be done in
such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential
form and integrity of the original building would not be
impaired.

A structural soundness survey should be obtained prlor to any
substantial rehabilitation, including analysis of primary and
secondary structural elements (foundations, bearing walIs,
columns, beams, floors, toot, non-Ioad bearlng walls, windows
and doors, stairs, utilities, finish materials, roof
coverings, siding, ceilings, etc. ) and the ext.ent of
deterioration for each element.

Butldtng Height and l{idth
Both new and altered existing structures:

t Should not exceed the height and width of traditional bullding
styles

2 Should maintain the
building styles.

scale and proportions of traditional

3. Shou1d be visually compatible with adjacent buildings.
Visual Integrity
The vertical lines of columns and piers, and the horizontal
deflnltlon of spandrels and cornLces, and other prlmary structural
elements are an lmportant element of the character of Old Town.
Structural lines should be restored if previous alterations have
substantially changed these elements

Scale and Proportion
The scale and proportion of bullding elements, particularly the
relationship of "voids" to "solids" (such as doors and windows to
walls and columns) shall be visually compatlble with traditional
building styles. An important element is the physical
accommodatlon of pedestrlan scale activities, characterized by wood
porches, canvas awnings or permanent canopies. This relationship
at pedestrian level should be reestablished, particularly through

4

5

8

Appendixl-Page4

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 719



well-designed storefronts, signs, entries' and canopies'
in their snape, 

-iii", placen6nt and decorative trim are
major element.

ArchLtectural Detail
In most cases, architectural detailing should come as a result of
an extension of the craft"t"n"nip of tne builder or deslgner' . "ttg
expregs the styles-of tne-Uuifdlng's or distrlct's historical
origins. A we-1t chosen i"a execufea paln-t scheme' along with
complimentary storef ront signs-, -ar6 f reguently adequate '
Decoratlve architecturaf Oetaffi siroufO be cleaned and restored to
their original charact"r.na-loiu"t"nt"d by painting in contrasting
colors. Guidelines to follow are:

1. Palnt,ed wood or dark flnlshed metal wlndow and door frames are
preferred over bare aluminum'

2. Canvas awnings or permanent canopies should be lnstalled to
provide shelfer foi pedestrians from weather'

3.Simplifystorefrontmaterialsbyremovingou!ofplaceand,,added-oni materiaf s 
--iL""" or below slorefront windows '

especially those inconsistent with primary building materials'
In some cases, it ,o,tiO look better to ule the same material
below tne-windor "" in neighboring buildings'

4. In buitdings with little architectural character' remodeling
should incorporate ,noi" aetaiteA window systems' awnings'
consistent materials ."a tti., and naturaL material colors'

5.Avoidlargepanesofglass.Smallerpanes.aleTgrelnkeeping
with p"OJ"1if.r, ""uf'J, 

-it" -"ottsistLnt with the historical
origins of the aisiiict, and create a more attractlve
appearance.

6. Avoid a fake, "revlval" facade or other thematlc deslgns out
of keeptng with tne aclu.t ni"torical origlns of the distrl-ct'

7. Retain or restore similar exterior materials on the first and

second floors of building and carry structural lines (columns'
piersrwindowpatterns)--fro-m-ro.gftosldewalk'Iflower
storefront materlals oiigft*ify Afffered' use stmllar colors
and forms to tie the first and second building floors
together.

Materl.als and Texture
TheoldTowncoreareatraditionaltyutilizedexteriormaterials
which tend toward a medium-rough - iex.ture and harri appearaRee '
Textured stucco, brick, "t";;, 

-i"O mitted wood siding were :Y:h
materials. n-iL-UeO pfyvrbod, aluminum and plastic.s.idings srerg 1?t'
and detract from tradittotaf U,tffding styl-es' Gul'delines to follow
are:

Windows
also a

Appendixl-Page5

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 720



1 Use materials which are conpatible with historic choices:
stucco, brick, stone and wood. Consider wood primarily as an
accent material at store entries for commercial buildings, and
as a major material in residential rehabilitation.

Leave materials such as brick or stone in their natural color
and appearance, and repaint previously painted surfaces.

Use wood or anodized aluminum window and door frames and
window systems. Don't use bare aluminum in door and window
frames.

Use materlals which have a texture and pattern (such as brick)
to give the feeling of smaller scale to the district.

Use awnings or canopies for rain and sun protectlon at entries
and along pedestrian sldewalks,

Remove out-of-context siding materials such as aluminum' sheet
metal or pl1nrood.

Remove coverings from boarded up windows.

DOn't use materials whiCh glve a "taCked oll"r "revival" Ot'
artificial appearance.

Don't use more than trdo or three materials on the exterior.
Keep exteriors simple, and in certain cases, use materials
similar to neighboring buildings to unify building groups.

2

3.

4

5.

6

7

I

9

Color
Generally colors should be kept within a unified range of hues.
Hard suriaced building materials should reflect the natural color
of the product. fof large painted surfaces, warm but neutral
colors ale most desirable. Trlm colors on mouldlng, roof flashing
caps and architectural detailing can be brighter and darker for
accent. Accent colors should be compatible with the basic wall
color and with neighboring buildings. Guidelines to follow are:

1. Use warm neutral col-ors for major building surfaces.

2. Coordinate colors with other buildings within a block.

3. Generally use lighter base colors wlth darker trim. A darker
base color with ltgnter trim can be successful, if done with
regard to adjoining buildings.

4. Paint objects such as mechanical 9ri11es, pipes, and
electrical connections to match base wall colors.

5. Don't use too many colors. UsuaIIy one wall color and one to
t'wo accent colors is enough. Matte finishes for wall colors'
and matte or semi-gloss for trim is recommended.

Appendixl-Page6

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 721



Rear and SLdes of Buildlngs
The rear and sides of buildings are visible' and should be

aitractively maintained. This can be done in a much simpler way

and with less expense than the storefront side. Guidellnes to
follow are:

l.Removeunusedpipes,brackets,conduitsandsimilar
appurtenances.

2, $creen garbage dumpsters, air conditioners, and other
necessary obJects and appurtenances'

3. Add walks, Landscaping, llghtsr and slgns leadlng to rear
customer and service entrLes.

4. Clean and refinish side and rear building walls t'o show
orlglnal bultdlng naterlals.

5. Add paving, landscapi.g, curbs, striping' and other
improvrementl to rear vehicular parking areas.

StgnS and GraPhics
Desirable attributes for signing in Old Town are excellence of
lettering, color coordinati6n if tn buildings r- simple mou-nting
devices, readabillty, use of materials compatibte wtth buI-ldings'
and moderate, unobtiusive lighting. Guidelines to fo1low are:

1. Remove signs that are too large, that proJect too far from
buildings, that cover architeEtural delailing, that flash,
rotate t ot blink, ot are made from materials that are not
within the tradiLl0ns of the district' historic character'

2. Signs should be oriented to the pedestrian: smaller in size'
ffit against buildings, and indirectly lit'

3. Unused or out-of-date slgns and sign supports should be
removed.

4 Use the traditional painted commercial signs
sides of older butldlngs that lndicate the
business, otherwise avoid "supergraphics"'

Use the "symbol sign" such as the barber pole, a mortar and
pestre for the drug store, a camera for a photograp-hy store'
i turg" pair of sclisors for a fabrLc store, a shoe for a shoe
store, and so forth.

Install "Historical Plaques" containing informa-tion orr the
building, the farnily who has owned the original business, or
other interesting historical facts '

Do not use the type of buslness name slgn as ls typically
provided by soft aiinf and beer companies'

found
name

the
the

on
of

5

6.

7

Appendixl-Page7

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 722



8. fntegrat,e business signs into awnings or canopies.

9. palnt buslness names on wlndows uslng decoratlve types, along
wlth borders and other graPhlcs.

10. Use business names which have historical ties.

Appendixl-PageB

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 723



ACCESSORY USES 2-75

ADDITION^A.L SETBACKS 2.79

ADMIMSTRATIVE PROCEDI]RES 3.7

ADMIMSTRATIVE VARIANCE 4.I5;
Authorization to Grant 4-15; Criteria for
Variances 4-l5j Procedures for Variances 4-16

ADULT ENTERTAIhIMENT 2.76

AIRQUALITY 8-61; Exceptions 8-61; Proof
ofCompliance 8-61

APPEALS 3-12; Basis of APPeal 3-12;
Eligibility 3-12; Exception 3-12

Appeal Deadline 3-12
Petition for Review 3-13
Council Action 3-13

APPLICATION AVAILABILITY 3-2;

Continuance 3-2; Public lnspection 3-2

APPLICATION CONTENT 4.7

APPLICATION FEES 3-ll; Exceptions 3-11

APPLICATION MATERIALS 3-l; CoPies

3-l; Form 3-l

APPLICATION RESUBI/flSSION 3-3

APPLICATION SUBMITTAL 3.1;
Acceptance 3-2; Deadlines 3-l

BICYCLE PARIilNG 5.13

BICYCLE PATHS 6-15

CHIMNEYS, SPIRES, AI\TENNAS AI\D
SIMILAR STRUCTURES 2-81; Heights 2-

8 I ; Parapets 2-8 I ; Perrrit Required 2-81

CLEAR VISION AREAS 2.78

COMMT]NITY DESIGN AND
APPEARANCE 5.I

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAI\ 1-2

CONDITIONAL TISES 4-ll; Application and

Fee 4-l l; Authorization 4-l l; Changes in

Conditional Uses 4-l I

CONDITIONAL USES (cont)
Permit Approval 4-11; Additional
Conditions 4-12: Commission Action 4-11;
Final Site Plan 4-l l; Findings of Fact 4-12;
Revocation 4-13; TimeLimits 4-13

DEFINITIONS 1.7

DESIGN STANDARI'S 7.9

Btocks 7-9; Length 7'9; Sizn 7-9
Easements 7-9; Drainages 7-9;

utilities 7-9

Lots 7-10; Access 7-10; Double Frontage

7-10; Grading 7-10; Side Lot Lines 7-10;
Size and ShaPe 7-10

Pedestrian and BicYcle WaYs 7-9

DUAL USE OFREQUTRED SPACE 2-82

ENERGY CONSERVATION 8-64; PurPose

8-64; Standards 8-64; Variance to Permit
Solar Access 8-64

EFIVIROI\MENTAL RESOT]RCES 8.1

EFTVIRONMENTAL STAI{DARDS 8.1 T

Procedures 8-11; Additional Infor:nation
8-l l; Applicability 8-ll; Conformance
8-l l; Exceptions 8-12; Referenced

Statutes andRules 8-12

FENCES, WALLS AND HEDGES 2.79

FINAL PLATS 7-3; Extensions 7-3; Staging
7-3; Time Limits 7-3

Creation of Streets 7-8; Approval 7-8;

Easements 7-8; ExcePtions 7-8

Final Plat Information 7-4; Shown on

Plat 74; Submitted with Plat 7-5

Final Plat Review 7-6; Commission
Approval 7-6; CountY APProval 7-7;
Effective Date 7'7; Performance Security
7-6; RequiredFindings 7-7; StaffReview
7-6; Subdivision Agreement 7'6

FIRE PROTECTION 6-21

Required Improvements 6-21

Standsrds 621; Access to Facilities 6-21;

Capacity 6-21; FireFlow 6-21; Hydrants
6-22
Miscellaneous Requlremenls 6'22;
Maintenance of Facilities 6-22;

Modification of Facilities 6-22;
Timing of lrrstallatiort 6'22

II\[DEX

INDEX

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 724



FLOOD PLAIN OVERLAY 8-l; Addirionat
Requirements 8-9; Conditional Uses 8-4;
Development Application 8-2; Flood Plain
Development 8-5; Flood Plain Structures 8-7;
Greenways 8-2; Permitted Uses 8-3;
Prohibited Uses 8-4

GENERAL COMMERCTAL (GC) 2-35;
Community Desigrr 2-39 ; Conditional Uses
2-36;Dimensional Standards 2-37; Flood plain
2-39; Permitted Uses 2-35; Prohibited Uses
2-37; Purpose 2-35

GETYERAL TNDUSTRTAL (GD 2-45;
Community Design 2-48; Conditional Uses
247;Dimensional Standards 2-48; Flood Plain
2-50; Permitted Uses 2-45; Prohibited Uses
2-47;Pwpose 2-45

GENERALPROVISIONS 1.I

HEATAIYDGLARE 8-63

HISTORIC RESOI]RCES 9-I

HOME OCCUPATIONS 2-6t; Conditions
2-61;Home Occupation Permit 2-62; Permitted
Uses 2-61; Prohibited Uses 2-61

IMPROVEMENTPLAIYREVIEW 6,2
Preparation and Submission 6-2;
Engineering Agreement 6-2;
Review Fee 6-2
Construction Permit 6-2; Approval 6-2;
Easement Documents 6-3; Improvement
Guarantees 6-3; Permit and Fee 6-3
Construction 6-3; As-Built Plans 6-4;
Initiation of Construction 6-3; Inspection
6-4; Suspension of Improvements
Activity 6-4
Acceptance of Improvements 6-4; Final
Inspection 6-4; Maintenance Bond 6-4;
Notification of Acceptance 6-4

INSTITUTTONAL AtrD PUBLTC (Ip) 2-s0;
Community Design 2-52; Conditional Uses 2-
50; Dimensional Standards 2-51; Flood plain
2-52; ProhibitedUses 2-51; Purpose 2-50

INTERPRETATION OF SIIVIILAR
usEs 4-19

Application Content 4-19
Approvals 4-19

INTRODUCTION I-I

HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HDR)
2-18; Community Design 2-21; Conditional

Uses 2-19; Dimensional Standards 2-t9;
Flood Plain 2-2|;Permifted Uses 2-18; purpose
2-18

LAIID PARTITIONS 7-11; Approval
Required 7-ll; CommissionAction 7-ll;
Future Developability 7-12; Required Findings
7-tt

Dedications 7-13; Dedications
Acceptance 7-13; OwnerDeclaration 7-13
Filing Requirements 7-13;
Extension 7-13
Subdivision Conpliance 7-12

LAI\D USE AND DEVELOPMENT 2.I

LAIYDMARK ALTERATION 9-13
Procedures 9-13; Alteration Application
9-13; Appeals 9-14; Exceptions 9-14
Alteration Standards 9-16; Architectural
Features 9-17
Variances to Alteration Standards 9-lg
Landmark Designation Incentives 9-20

LAI\DMARK DESIGNATION 9.9
Designation Standards and Procedures
9-9; Effect of Designation 9-9;
Procedures 9-10; Standards 9-ll

LAIYDMARKS ADVISORY BOARD 9-6 ;
Conflicts of Interest 9-7; Officers, Minutes,
and Voting 9-6; Powers and Duties 9-7

LANDSCAPING 5-5
Installation and Maintenance 5-7;
Deferral of Improvements 5-7;
Maintenance of Landscaped Areas 5-7
LandscapingMaterials 5-5;
Establishment of Healthy Growth and Size
5-5; Existing Vegetation 5-5; Non-
Vegetative Features 5-5; Varieties 5-5
Landscaping Plan 5-5
LandscapingStandards 5-6; Parking and
Loading Areas 5-6; Perimeter Screening
and Buffering 5-6; Visual Conidors 5-Z

INDEX
II

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 725



LIGHT INDUSTRHL (LD 2'40; Community

Design 2-44; Conditional Uses 2-41;

Dimonsional Standards 2-43; Flood Plan 244;
Permitted Uses 2-40; hohibited Uses 2-42;

Purpose 2-40

LOT SIZES AND DIMENSIONS 2.79;

Cul-de-Sacs 2-79; GenerallY 2'79

LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (tDR) 2-5;

Community Design 2-8; Conditional Uses 2-5;

Dimensional Standards 2-6; Flood Plain 2-8;

PermittedUses 2-5; Purpose 2-5

MANUFACTI.IRED HOMES 2.64;

Miscellaneous Use of Manufactured Hones
2-69; Anlndividual Residential Lots 2'64;
Manufactured Home Parks 2-65

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL HIGH
(I|DRI{) 2-13; Community Design 2-17;

Conditional Uses 2-14; Dimensional Standards

2-15; Flood Plain 2-|7;PernittedUses 2-13;

Purpose 2-13

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTHL LOW
(MDRL) 2-9; CommunitY Desigt 2'12;
Conditional Uses 2-10; Dimensional Standards

2'l l; Flood Plan 2'12; Permitted Uses 2-9;

Purpose 2-9

MINERAL RESOURCES 8.12; Permitted

Activities 8-12; Special Conditions 8-12

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (NC)

2-25; Community Design 2'29; Conditional

Uses 2-25; Dimensional Standards 2-28; Flood

Plan 2-29; Permitted Uses 2-25; Prohibited

Uses 2-26; Purpose 2-2S;SpecialCriteria 2-27

NOISE 8-59

NON-CONFOR]VIING USES 2.70;
Conditional lJses 2-7 4;Exceptions 2'70;
Non-Conforming Lots of Record 2-70;

Non-Conforming Stmctures 2-72; Non-
Conformho l-Ises of Land 2-71; Non-

Conforming Uses of Snuctvres2-72; Permitted

Changes to Non-Conformities 2-73

oLD TOWN (OT) OVERLAY AND
HISTORIC DISTRICT 9-l; CommunitY

Desrgn 9-4; Conditional Uses 9-2; Dimensional

Standards 9-3; PermittedUses 9-2; Purpose

9-l; ProhibitedUses 9-3

OFF.STREET PARKING AND LOADING
5-8 ; Defenal of Improvements 5'8; Drainage

5-9; Joint Use 5-8; Location 5-9; Marking 5'9;
Multiple Uses 5-8; OFSteet Parking Required

5-8; Parking and Loading Plan 5-9; Prohibited

Uses 5-9; Repairs 5'9
Olf-Street Loading Standards $14;
Minimum Standards 5-14; Separation of
Areas 5-14
Off-Street Parking Standards 5-10;
Minimum Standards 5-10; Miscellaneous

Standards 5-12

oFFrcE CoMMERCIAL (OC',t 2-22;

Community Design 2'24; Conditional Uses

2-22;Dimensional Standards 2'23; Flood Plain

2-Z4;PermittedlJses 2'22; Prohibited Uses

2-23; Purpose 2-22

ON-SITE CIRCULATION 5'15; Access to
Major Roadways 5-15; Connection to Streets

5-15; Joint Access 5-15; Maintenance 5-15;
Maintenance of Required Improvements 5-15

Service Drives 5-16
Minimum Non-Residential Standards
5-17; DrivewaYs 5'17; Sidewalks and

Curbs 5-18
Minimum Residential Standards 5-16;
Driveways 5-16; Sidewalks and Curbs

5-17

ON.SITE STORAGE 5-I9
Material Storage $20; Hazardous

Materials 5-20; Standards 5-20

Outdoor Sales and Merchandise
Display 5t20
Recreational Vehicles and
Equipment 5-19

Solid Waste Storage 5-19

ORDINANCE l-l; Conflicting Ordinanccs l-2;
Conformance Required l-l; lnterpretation l-2;
Purpose l-l; Savings Clause l-2; Title l-l;
Violations l-l

OTHER LAI\D USE ACTIONS 2-77

INDEX
Itl

oDoRs 8-62

PARISNG STANDARDS 5.IO

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 726



PARKS AND OPEN SPACE 8.38;
Applications 8-45; Density Transfer and Park

Reservation 8-4 I ; Multi-Family Developments
8-39; Parks and Open Space System

Improvement Fees (SIF) 8-38; Trees Along
Public Streets or on Other Public Propefiy 8'42;
Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use

8-42; Visual Conidors 8-40

PLAN AMEIYDMENTS 4-9; Amendment
Procedures 4-9; Initiation of Amendments 4-9

Review Criteria 4-10; Map Amendment
2-10; Text Amendment 2-10

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)
2-53; Final DevelopmentPlan 2'56; General

Provisions 2-57; Non-Residential (Commercial

or tndustrial) PUD 2-59 ; Preliminary
DevelopmentPlan 2-53; Purpose 2-53;

Residential PLjD 2-58

PLANNING COMMISSION 1-4;
Appointnent and Membership l-4; Conflicts of
lnterest l-5; Officers, Minutes and Voting l-5;
Powers and Duties l-6

PLANNING PROCEDURES 4.1

PRE.APPLICATION CONFERENCE 3.I

PRELII{INARY PLATS 7-2; APProval
Required 7-2; Commission Action 7-2;
Required Findings 7-2

PRIVATEIMPROVEMENTS 6.23
Underground Facilities G23
Exceptions 6-23
Private Streets 6-23

PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENTS 7-13

Filing Requirements 7 -14

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 6.I;
Future Improvements 6-l ; Improvement
Procedures 6-l; Standards 6-l

PUBLIC NOTICE AND HEARING 3-4;
Failure to Receive Notice 3-6; Form of Notice
3-4; Mailed Notice 3-5; Newspaper Notice 3-4;
Posted Notice 3-5

Conduct of Public lfearings 3-8; Ex parte

Contacts 3-9; Hearing Disclosure
Statements 3-8; Hearing Record 3-9;
Persons Testiffing 3-9

PUBLIC NOTICE AND HEARING (cont.)
Content of Notice 3-6; Public Hearing
Notices 3'6
Final Action on Permit orZone
Change 3-10
Notice of Decision 3-10
Planning Staff Reports 3-8
Registry of Decisions 3-10

REGIONAL, STATE & FEDERAL
REGULATIONS I-2

RETATL COMMERCIAL (RC) 2-30;
Community Design 2'34; Conditional

Uses 2-31; Dimensional Standards 2-33; Flood
Plan 2-34: Permitted Uses 2-30; Prohibited

Uses 2-32; Purpose 2-30

SANITARY SEWERS 6-16;
Design Standards 6-16; Capacity 6116;

Over-Sizing 6-16
Required Improvements 6-16

Service AvailabilitY 6-16

SIDEWALKS 6-14; Required Improvements

6-14; Sidewalk Design Standards 6-15

SIGNS 5-22; Abandoned Signs 5-24;
Additional Setbacks 5-24; Constuction and

Maintenance 5-25; Exceptions 5-22; Non-
Conforming Signs 5-24; Sign Application 5'22;
Sign Permits 5-22; Yiolations 5-23

Prohibited Signs 5-25; Directional S-igns

5-26; Illuminated Signs 5-25; Obstructing
Signs 5-25; Off-hemise Signs 5-25;
Rotating or Revolving Signs 5-25; Signs on

Sfieets 5-25; Unsafe or Unmaintained
Signs 5-25
Sign Regulations by Zone S-27 ;
Commercial Zones 5-28; Industrial Zones

5-30; ResidentialZones 5'27

SITE PLAN REVIEW 5-2; APProvals 5-4;
Exemptions 5-2; Plan Changes and Revocation

5-3; RequiredFindings 5-3; Review Required
5-2; Time Limits -4

SITE PLANNING 5-T

INDEX
lv

I

-J

SOLAR ACCESS 8-64

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 727



SOLID WASTE E-14 ; Accessory Use Solid
Waste Facilities 8- l5; Application
Contents 8-16; Conditions of Approval and

Enforcement 8-23; Multiple Purpose Solid
Waste Facility 8-15; Review Procedures and
Burden of Proof 8-19; Solid Waste

Facilities 8-14; Site Improvements 8-24; Solid
Waste Incinerators 8-14; Temporary Solid
Waste Facility 8-15

SPECIAL RESOT.IRCE ZONES 8.I

SPECIAL USES 2-53; General Provisions 2-53

STOR]VIWATER 6-19
Design Standards 6-20; Capacity 6-20;
Conveyance System 6-20; On-Site Source

Control 6-20
Required Improvements 6-19
ServiceAvailability G20
Storm Water System Improvement Fees

(SIF) 6-19; Assessment 6-19; Defenal
6-20; Purpose 6-19; Schedule ofCharges
6-19

STREETS 6-5 ; Creation 6-5; Street Names

6-8; Street Name Standards 6-7; Street Naming
6-5; Sfeet Renaming 6-5

Location and Design 6-11; Future Street
Systems 6-11; Underground Utilities 6-l I
Required Improvements 6-9; Exceptions
6-10; Existing Streets 6-9; Extent of
Improvements 6-10; Proposed Streets 6-10
Street Design Stendards 6-11; Alignment
6-12; Buffering of Major Streets 6-13;
Cul-de-Sacs 6-13; Curbs 6-14; Future
Extension 6-12; Grades and Curves 6-13;
Intersection Angles 6-12; Median Islands
6-14; Reserve Strips 6-12; Right-of-Way
and Pavement Width 6-l I ; Steets
Adjacent to Railroads b-tl; trafiic
Controls 614; Transit Facilities 6-14
Street System Improvement Fees
(SIF) 6-8; Assessment 6-9; Defenal 6-9;
Purpose 6-8; Schedule of-Charges 6-9

SUBDIVISIONS & LAI\D PARTITIONS 7.7
Platting Authority 7-l ; Future
Partitioning 7-l; Planning Commission
7-l; Property Sales 7-l; Required Setbacks
7-l

TEMPORARY USES 4-17; Application and
Fee 4-17; Purpose 4-17

Permit Approval 4-18; Ad ditional
Conditions 4-18; Findings ofFact 4-18;
TimeLimits 4-18

TREES &42
Atong Public Streets 8-42; rQ1 Private
Property 8-45; Penalties 8-45; Prohibited
Trees 8-43; Removal and Cutting 8-43

On Property Subject to Land Use
Applicatlons 8-45; Mitigation 8-51;
Penalties 8-45; Tree Inventory 847; Tree
and Woodland Retention 8-48

Recommended Street Trees' 8-54

VARHNCES 4-13; Application Content 4-14;
Approval Criteria 4-14; Authorization 4-13;
Revocation 4-15; TimeLimits 4-14

VERY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
(W,DR) Community Design 2-4; Conditional
Uses 2-2; Dimensional Standards 2-3; Flood
Plan 2-4; PermittedUses 2-l;Purpose 2-l;
Special Density Allowances 2-4

VIBRATION 8.60

WATER STJPPLY 6.17
Design Standards 6-17; Capacity 6-17;
Fire Protection 6-17; Over-Sizing 6-17
Required Improvements G17
Service Availability 6-18

WETLAND, HABITAT AND NATURAL
AREAS 8.57

YARD REQUIREMENTS 2-80; Corner Lots
2-80; Exceptions 2-80; Through Lots2-80

ZONING DISTRICTS l-3 2-l; Boundaries
l-3; Establishment l-3; Official Map l-3;
Urban Growth Area l-4

GeneralCommercial 2-35
Generallndustrial 2-45
High Density Residential 2-18
Light Industnal 2-40
Low Density Residential 2-5
Medium Density Residential High 2-13
Medium Density Residential Low 2-9
Neighborhood Comnrercisl 2-25
Oflice Commercial 2-22
Retail Commercial 2'30
Vcry Low Dcnsity Regidential2-4

INDEX
v

ST]PPLEMENTARY STAI\DARDS 2-78

Exhibit D10

Packet Page 728



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 729



Exhibit D10

Packet Page 730



ocT 1? 2ØØ2 r3=Ø2 FR PERKINS COIE LLp 5Ø3 727 2222 Tt 95Ø36255524
s€nI' Èfy: fYñN¡ ¡¿ËÐ¡rs¡t,

olJLú¡ræ. lc' ¡D-e9?
l¡lrrl zD¡ t9Ðt
t.g. I

CftY of thcrrroodr oI99en
Oidl¡rrnca No- 95-997

AH oRDtnât{c¡ trDDndrrlrc A REstDENTr,Af. pråNrüD IINrtr DEuStoPtts¡IT (PlrD]

rt¡ER¡Àt zonruc õ¡grn¡cr Eor-îå¡f lÆl 2oo, ttÂstlrNGroN couNrY TÀ¡r

åssDssoRÉ tlAP 281 zsct Tàt lûÎs goo ' â¡Ð- eo1'---v{i-l4IIG19N cour¡rr
AggEgEoBÉ ttlp zgt 2gg, Àtrp ;!¡Ë rgr'- ¡oO' ïAéffNG¡¡pN collNlrÍ TÀ¡(

AssEsßoRs t{åp 2sl 2gui Ar¡lo Ißtt¿Wil rs sHentrooD vrl'lÀGE, c€NsrsrING
os tZ1 AcREs üõnE õi fuSS; $E¡-¡g'g¡I¡IEHTNG àll EFEESTIyE I¡AlrE '

P.2Ø/22

flEEnEA3, :fâx Lot 200, ?f¡ehJ.ngton county t[ax Ag¡cssgls ldap 2tl1

2ec, rrar f.,or,s 90ö;;ã 5õi, nÃã;iltgrãn eognrir eÈx âÊÉêÊ-"-1Ï ¡{åP 2s1

29Bt and Tax I¡oÈ 300, WËshtngtõã õãunty lax-àssessors Map 2Sl 29D'

hereúnafter ctlled, qtx l.oÈs, "ðót ttta a-onelacre yetfa¡ct ldentlfled
ln the Congtehããtl.vã pian,-oñà woÈlandg tðenttttea 1n the Cfty'ø
wctland lnuentõry, and-ia'porllons oÊ thts property are shown ag

part of, the CttY-greenwÊYt and

fnERFåSr Ta* I¿ot,ß are snuau¡l and warranu ê maÊtar devolo¡ment
plan þcsaurc oi|io"r-?I"t Oliie'rent zonfng clesstflcatlonet and 1l
tn the ceûter of Shenrood, eu"iounded bV ãxfetlng devolo¡ment and

¡aJor roedwaye; and

¡ltEngßs'thoolterrtllconnocct¡'onaJorplannedcollector
atrerts lnto two éti"tfng a=tcriãl roadwtys t á¡d provtdeu a varletY
of land u¡c ""ã iut", ÉCesîifen ã"¿ bfeyclc clreulatlon l-n the
cenÊrtl Pêlt of the CltY; ând

tlüSRlrf,lt, lfax Lots are rylthln Che urban grort'h Þoundary and the
Clty Ll¡tlt¡ and

truEREAs,thecomDunltyDevelog¡BentanduontngCode6ectlon
2.2O2.2A spsctft€s that "PitD;-thqfi only be congldered on gftee
thaÈ ¡r. unua""lltçonstralnã¿ ot ltnttêd in develoE¡nenù-Potential'
;- ;;poi"¿ to cther land wtth the a€¡!¡€ unéerlyllg^,331119
desLonatlon, becauae Of¡ natural f,eaüuros FUOþ as floodpl-alnr
iããiilõ;;"d e¡(Èren6 to¡rogsaphy, or 

- 
man-nade f eatures . such as

F;cãf-¿änftguratlon antt iuiroun-Utng dovelopment. r' ¡ and

nltREAgr the PlanntnE Cosmlalton r¡celved t'he PUD appllcatfonr
and rhâ reportî';i-tË-õitÍËÞrannlng Stef f , and Èhe Coru¡J.eslon
fully con¡ldercd ¡atd neterfela¡ and

fl¡tEREAgr ühe Plannlng con¡nlgglon conducted _public hearinEs^on
rhe propossd ptfD for Tax rctl, -ÀnI- after fr¡Il ¡nd due constderaÙton
of the cnfdence, rcPortBf ¡n¿ tesÈlnonY praEê-ntedr afoptSd fE
ifa¿i-nlc of ried outilnec fn üre Plannlng- sttf f ryP-9rls f,or Pt¡D

ói-r cãte¿ Fâbñ;rî -il; r-ggl, and recomnericea appfqvtl of the PUD

Ere).1¡ln¡ry Oâvetoþent PlËItr rrrbJect to cert,aln condltlons as

;ñ;;ãËå'rn th; ñtiae ot näctelõn daÈed Aprll 261 1s93; and

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 731



ocT 1? 2Ø22 t3tØ2 FR PERKINS CltE LLP 5Ø3 727 2222 TD 95Ø36255524
aElll ey. lYns¡ UE.¡IulI; OUr¡fllÈ'¿ÐUU; VUL.IÐ-Lr¿ +¡UurMi

oÉt¡¡D{ lê. 
'¡t-rÐ'lg8¿l z5r t9tt

vlf.2

P.2I/22(?tuë tlo

gmnEls, the Ctty couücll ha¡ ¡ocetved the ortglnat
appllcatton naüerLlle. the Cfty,e Planning Staff reports, the
lfotlca of Declglon, the nLnute¡ of Che Plannlng counlstlõnr and Èhe
Counqll has rÊvlewêd the naùertal gubultted and the tactis of thepropoorl; and

flEEREAsr Èhe Çfty Counol¡ flnda- th¡g lo= !.nproved bufferlng
þefween dltÉerenÊ l¡nd uB€E¡ Phaee 6 ehould þe dertgnaÈecl LIghÈ
lndugtrlal (Lrl and Phaee 5 ahoulü Þe de¡lgnated RetatJ- Co¡rrnerclal
(RCl .

IIOÎII ITÍEREFORE. TE CI!qY ORDAINS AfI FOLTOTIS:

Sect,l.on l. Conmise lon Rcvter. thet the eppllcatton forappro pnent Þlan toi-nix lott wa¡
eubJect to a full and propetr revler anq puËttc hearlngs þefore the
Clty Pt¿nnfng ConnLsslon on February 2t. 1995.

g€ctlon 2, .publtc HçqF*FJL, lthat a publlc hearlng on the pUD
Prol held beïorc- Lt J crif Counct t on
March 28, 1995r ând all Lnterasted partLer úrere ãfforded an
oplrorBunlty Èo l¡s heaÌd, and to pre¡enc and roDrit eytdencê.

Soctfon 3'.,.,,Flnd!.nøE. !I'hât after full and due conal,deraË,Lqn
of ùh staff r€portg; the record, ffnclfnga,
¡nd recomendatlon of the Connlgeloni ênd of the evlde¡¡ce preaented
at the publlc hearfngsi the Çouncll llnds, dus to ftg unlquenatural fcatur¡¡, that Îalr r.ot^E arc unusually conEt¡aÍnod tn
dcvelo¡luent potentr.ar ât conpered to other Isrd wrth the aalüt
unúe:lylng zonlnE dcrlgnatlon, and thcrcforc the Councll adopt¡ the
flndlngs of faet contarned ln 6taff rcpof,Er for pttD 93-t, ràld
report! made part of thls ordlnanse Þy rsferense.

Sectfon 4. ÀoorovaL fhat {¡ aequest for a PUD Prellnlnarlruevel 6 conslstfn'g of 1ZS acràs nore or lesgl1¡ hesoÞy åPPRSITED subJect, Êo thê condltLone attached ae Exhtbtt
rrÀrr.

fhe Clty Manager ie directcd
to ü¡¡Xe such actJ.on at BtT þe negesråE1z Èo dosumont thls anendnent,
tncludlng Drolttlâtlon of a certlflcd l¡odlfteatlon of the OfftctalCfty 2ontnq I!¡, aE such tlne ¿s all condttlons oÉ tho approval
have been fully satl"sfled In acgordanee wtùh Ctty ordlnanðés and
regulatlonr, aa detemrLned by the Clty ltanager,

Secùlon 6. Effectlve Date. ßhl€ ordlnanqe Êhalt becoaeeffec Flnal Developrnent pian has bsen
ÂÞprsved .tn accardance with cod€ sectlon 2.202.07, and
ccrtlfLcaÈLon bry èhe Clty !,fünaEer tnaÈ all condltlons of approval

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 732



ocT 17 2ØØ2 r3tØ2 FR PERKINS C0tE LLP 5Ø3 ?27 2222 rO 95Ø36255524
eEtrl uy. rrnu strÐÅt¡N, 3uu.t tHzcluui ucI- l3-u¿ c;uurlu;

have þeen aatl.cfled or co{¡pleted, or ghat a eatísfactory
Berforna ee bond or other seøurlty uccegtable to the Clty has been
poct€d guarantcclng cou¡rletlon of, all condftlonsr but J.n any rvent
th.La O:r:llnance ¡hall .not becone effectLve earller than thlrty (30)
dayg qiter psÊsage and approval.

Pä33od by vote of the Cf ty CouncJ,I th.[s 25th day of åprt1 1995.

Àpproved Þy the ìfayor Bhlð zrÈn day of Aprtl 1995.

P.22/22
Page u/ð

ó00fr.1{
ter ,

ÃITEST I

J"[y' . RapÞi W Managsi/Recotcter

ÀYE llÀy

AanoId
Foyte
coÈÈIe
Httcücoclc
ßennedy

o¡Él¡.¡o ¡o. t!-ll?
I9slI 25, l9ll
t¡r ¡

Is
É

It

xx TOTÊL PÊGE.22 >K,k

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 733



T

I
I
I
I
l
I
t
I
I
I
I
I
I
t
I
I

j

I

I

ûcT 1? 2ØØ2 I3tØ1 FR PERKINS COIE LLp 5Ø3 72? 2222 TO 95Ø362sss24 P .15/22

æA\ñt

------l--

,t I

I
¡I

I

I

tl
lr

t-**-----

L-------:

I

I

!

f

I

I

lrlcw4flE . !t Èttll¡ic . ÞIfmrtrlc Ð491trt3 Zol.lllg
afrî oP 6¡.Hæ, ur¡¡ta¡0{iTltr Øt{rl. eågrcô¡

I

t. l

r--*--l

lilxsçn+s
r€ÍrDÊÊli!¡

ta
B'+ID¡I

tor= H

LøÎ
tpúúInt¡r
,æ 'tÛ.{rl4D T!

Lrørft
tqslË¡¡-
b.J/¡ál\15e

It9Dt¡f ÞE¡úfÎr
FBC[)ÞÌÎIA'. Hl3H

É,¡l .q¡r-
íart e

[-kHr
IqEIlÜA
rr!.1Ë fljl

ttbG

lt I

I

LEll
Er.ÞtËÁL
l¡aft.cn'tLl-.

|ßl
rt¡

¿tat

-?l¡|rr¡æc .,

I

t

+E

'MÑE^ilffi{il1il$i#"lu9hlñ^r4 rú 
'., HEI !:t:ti

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 734



ff)
tf

T.Í.'{.,.
4

æ^\ñt
200 0 r00 200 400lEt¡t=¡r__---

Pr.lasE I
LIwm ¡e h!!

*!b

PI]AsE 1

LI

i.
?t1a3E 6

LI

[ñ

I

ADA¡15 DRIVE

tllr

PHAgE 4
Lf

,9-

?J

t.

'.'Þi

FI{AgE 5
RC

t

RC

s_-a

-t

çOPEN

I

I

I

I

I
1
j

.'s
.9:

:l

2 PI{AgE I

I.IDR

t",

a
I

è
"1-Ì

I

APPROVED
CIÍ OF SHEtræO

*.-P<---**tl-!ç

CASEFUA No. PUD 95-1

PIIA9E 2
RC.
æE

,*-./l

I
I

I

Pr"rAgE 3
ItDR

af
L

Zz

ur#Ð
tTs'
1gõ
î Lõ-r-g
\i> H33

o?$
0 rH
o io
J "5
OL

tu
ï
rf)

4

ËÉ

EÀ;
!s*

Ê-B
üiã

zz
f

z
ts

F

trl
14<r
)q
àz
ul{
r'¡ ã

Þã

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 735



Ê
!

90 NW Park Street
Sherwood, Oregon 97140

503/625-5522 tr FAX 5031625-5524

EXHIBIT .A.
ORDINANCE NO. 95-997

NOTICE OF'DECISION

IVIAP AM TA>( IÆT Nos:
Tax Lot 2OO, Map 2Sl 29C
Tax Lots 9OO and 9O1,
Map 2Sl 298
Tax Lot 3OO, Map 25 I 29D

CASE No: PUD 95-1
DATE MAILED: April 26, 1995

TO: Martha Stiven Clarence D. I-anger
Planning & Dev. Services 15585 SW TlralatÍn-Sherwood Rd.
L462O Uplands Drive Sherwood, Oregon 97L4O
Lake Oswego, OR 97034

Weigel Froperties rül/estlake Consultants
6.249 SW Canyon Court 15115 STW Sequoia Parkrvay, #l5O
Portland, OR 97221 Tigard, OR 97224

On April 25, 1995, the City Council of the City of Shen¡¡ood, Oregon,
dectded to approve your application for PUD 95-1 Sherwood Village
Preliminary Development Plan.

The decision \¡/as based on ttre following major ffndings:

See Staff report dated February 22, L995.

The following conditions were placed on approval of the application:

Phase 6 shall be designated Light Industrial (LÐ and Phase 5 shall
be designated Retail Commercial (RC). Remove the Century Drive
extension east of Adams Avenue.

2 Prior to issuance of any permits for Phase 1, the City and applicant
shall execute a applicant's parks maintenance agreement. The
agreement shall include a provision that when the residential areas
are fully developed, the City has the option to take over the
maintenance responsibilities of the Park.

PT,JD 95-1
Page I

1

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 736



3. The owner shall dedicate to the City the wetland and wetland
buffer delineated in tl:e applicant's wetland delineation report,
prior to issuance of permits for Phase I of the development. A+V
wetland modifications shall be submitted by tJ:e developer for
review and approval by tlle Division of State Lands and the Corps
of Engineers.

At each phase of development, and with each site plan submitted
to the Clty, the appticant shall provide a traffic impact analysis for
City, County and ODOT review and approval. Recommended
traffic safet5r and road improvements shall be considered by tJre
City and may be required with each phase.

Revise the Design Guidelines for all residential and commercial
development to increase the number of structures required to have
porches and recessed gara$es.

Adams Avenue shall be constructed from Century Drive north to
TUalatin-Sherwood Road prior to completion of Phase 3. Ttrose
improvements shall include curbs, gutters and sidewalks and 28
feel of paving on ttre west side of the street. Adams Avenue shall
be constructéd by the developers to connect to Oregon Street (not
across railroad tracks) upon completion of Phase 6, and where
necessar5¡ the City will acquire road right-of-way to complgte_the
connectión. Sidéwalks on all portions of Adams Avenue shall be
constructed in the same meandering design as approved for
Century Drive.

At the time of individual site plan review, consider comments from
Tfi-Met reconunended in their letter dated March 27, 1995.

Prior to Final Development Plan submittal, modiff the plan to the
City's satisfaction so that the pedestrian link to the Sherwood
Plaza is a sidewalk built to City standards.

In Phase 1, water serwiee shall be looped to Tualatin-Sherwood
Road from Century Drive via a public easement in the Adams
Avenue alignment.

Modiff the plan to incorporate a pedestrian link from Phase 3 to
Phasé 5 at tJ'".e end of the planned cul-de-sac. Alignment is to be
finalized during site plan approval of Phase 3.

As a part of the Phase I Site Plan submittal, provide a forty_(40')
foot wide pedestrian easement from Century Drive to Lan$er Drive
that incluães pavement widttr, landscapin$ and street furniture for
City approval. Align the pathway so that it coincides with the
ad¡-oining phase tinès. The pathway sha-ll be constructed by the
delelopei with the completion of Phase I development.

5

6

4.

ro.

11.

PUD 95-1
Page 2

7

I

I

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 737



L2. Provide and construct a twent¡r-four (24'l foot wide public vehicle
access easement from Phase I to Langer Drive, alignment and
specifications to be determined at the time of Phase I Site Plan
submittal. Upon a subsequent evaluation, this access may be
abandoned when the connection to Tualatin-Sherwood Road vÍa
Adams Avenue is constmcted.

This Preliminary Development Plan approval is valid for one (1) year.

Signed:
Carole rñ/. Connell
Planning Dtector

X Final Action
Additional Required Action

PI,JD 9ST
Page 3

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 738



Sf,ATE OF OREGON

ïl/ashinglon County

I, I(atlry Car5r, Deputy City Recorder of the City of Shen¡¡ood, State
of Oregon, in lVashlngton CountSr, the duly constituted and appointed
custodian of the records Ín sald City, do hereby certtfy tJ:at the Notice of
Decision on Case No. PUD 95-1 was placed in a U.S. Postal receptacle on
April 26, 1995.

In testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and official seal
of ttre City of Sherwood this 26th day of April f995.

1l"rtn"- e* )\t-)?-
f"tny Carf) Deputy Ci$ Recorder
Cþ of Sherwood

)

)
)

PUD 95-r
Page 4

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 739



()() NW P.rrk Strect
5lrcrrv<rrrcl, Oregon 97'l 40

503/62i-:,322 i .l FAX 50 -ll6'2!t -5524

NOÎICD OF DECISION

Tl\X LOTS: 9OO & gOt
MAP NO: 25 rW 29D
CASE NO: pUD 9S-r
DATE MAILED: Aug B, 1995

TO: Len Schelsþ
Westlake Consultants
f 5f 15 SW Sequoia parkway, Suite l5O
Tigard, OR 97224

Clarence Langer
I 5585 SW Ttratatin-Sherwood Road
Sherwood, OR 9Zl4O

Qn Augugt l, 1995, the Planning commission of the city of sherwood,
-o_19gon.{gcided 

to approve your application for puD g5-i sherwood
litlage PUD Final Development pËn for a mixed-use planned unit
Development on Centur5r Drive.

The decision was based on the following major findings:

See Staff Report dated July 25, tggS

The following conditions were placed on approval of the application:

1. TTre owner shall dedicate to the City the wetland and wefland
buffer delineated in the applicant'jweiland delineation report,
prior to issuance of permits for phase g of the developmeni. any
wetland modifications shall be submitted by the developer for
review and approval by the Division of State Lands and the Corps
of Engineers.

2. Prior to Phase 1 approval, revise the Design Guidelines for all
residential and commercial development tã increase the number of
structures required to have porches and recessed garages.

3. Adams Avenue shall be constructed from Century Drive north to
Tualatin-sherwood Road prior to completion of Éhase 3. Those
lmprovements shall include curbs, gutters and sidewalks and 28
feet of paving on the west side of thé street. Adams Avenue shalt
be constmcted by_the developers to connect to Oregon Street (not
across the railroad tracks) upon completion of phaJe 6, and where
necessary thqc¡tv will acquire road right-of-way to complete the
connection. Sidewalks on all portions of Adams Avenue shall be
constmcted in the same meandering design as approved for
Century Drive.

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 740



4- At the time of individual site plan review, consider the comments
from Tri-Met reconunended in their letter dated March 27, Lgg1.

5. In Phase 1, water service shalt be looped to Tiralatin-Sherwood
Road from century Drive via a publieeasement in tlre Adams
Avenue alignment.

6. 4" I part of tlle Phase 1 site Plan submittal, provide a forty (4o)
lgot wiag p_edestrian easement from Century Drive to Langer Drive
that includes pavements width, landscaping and street fulniture
for Cþ approval. Align the pathway sothãt it coincides with the
adjoining phase,lines. The pathway shall be constructed by the
developer with the completion of Phase I development.

7 Frovide and conslto"t a twenty-four (24') foot wide public vehicle
access easement from Phase I to Langer Drive, alignment and
specÍfïcations to be determined at the time of phaãe 1 site plan
submittal._ Upon a-subsequent evaluation, ttris access may be
abandoned rvhen the connection to Tualatin-sher-wood Roãd via
Adams Avenue is constructed.

At gach phase of development, and with each site plan submitted
!o the_cit5r, the ?p_p!ic_ant shall provide a trafTïc imþact analysis for
City, Count¡r and ODOT review and approval. Recómmendeä
traffic "{.ty and road improvements bhall be considered by the
City and may be required \Mith each phase.

Appeal
Persons who are a party to the decision and who have a basis for an
SPpeal based on an issue that has been raised, are eligible to appeal this
decision not more than 21 days after the date on whiih the action took

8

place. For the applican
decision was mailed.

t, the 2l days are counted the date this

Signed
Carole W. Connell
Planning Director

X Final Action

PUD 95_1
Page 2

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 741



STATE OF OREGON

Washington Count¡r

)

)
)

I, Kathy car¡r, Deputy city Recorder of the city of sher-wood, state
of Oregon, in Washington Count5r, the duty constituled and appointed
custodian of the records in said City, do hereby certi$r that the Notice of
Decision on Case No. PUD 95-f Sherwood Village pUD Finat
D_evelopment Plan was placed in a u.s. Postal rèceptacle on August B,
1995.

of the City of Sherwood this 3rd day of
In testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and official seal

r995.

ty Recorder
City

PUD 95-I
Page 3

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 742



STA¡'F REPORT

TO: City of Sherwood
Planning Commission

DATE MAILED: July 25, L995

FROM: Carole W. Connell
Planning Director

FILE NO: PUD P5-1 Final Plan

RE: Shenvood Village PUD Final Development Plan for a mixed-use
Planned Unit Development on Century Drive.

I. PROPOSAL DAÎA

Applicant: Len Schelsþ
Westlake Consultants
151f 5 SW Sequoia Parkrvay Suite 15O
Tigard, Oregon 97224

Owner: Clarence Langer
15585 SW Tualatin-Sher-wood Road
Sherwood, Oregon 97L4O

Location: Located on Century Drive, Tualatin-Shenr¡ood Road, Langer
Drive and Shenvood Blvd., further described as Tax Lat2OO, Map 25 1

29C: TaxLots 90O & 9O1, Map 25 f 298; andTaxLotSOO, Map 25 I
29D.

II. SHERWOOD COMPREHENSTVE PLI\N PROVISIONS

A. Community Development Code, Section 2.2O2.O3 Final Development
Plan:

- Upon approval of the PUD overlay zoning district and preliminary
development plan by the Council, tJle applicant shall prepare a detailed
Final Development Plan as per Sections 2.202 and 4.lOO, for review and
approval of tJle Commission. The Final Development Plan shall comply
vrith all tlle conditions of approval as per Section 2.202. In addition, the
applicant shall prepare and submit a detailed site plan, if applicable, for
review and approval, pursuant to the provisions of Section 5.100. The
site plan shall be processed concurrently with the Final Development
Plan.

ilI. FINDINGS OF FACT

PUD 95-lF
Page I

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 743



A. The Request: On April 25, L995 the Sherwood City Council
approved by Ordinance # 95-997 Sherwood Village PUD Preliminary
Development Plan. The applicant has submitted this request for
Planning Commission approval of the Sherwood Village Final
Development Plan. The request does not include a site plan because an
individual site plan will be submitted for each phase of development. A
site plan for Phase t has been submitted to the City and is pending
Commission review.

This submittal includes three sheets of blueprints illustrating:

Sheet 1

Sheet 2
Sheet 3

Final Land Use and Phasing
Master Utility Layout
Pedestrian Circulation Plan

According to the applicant, all other conditions of approval will be
addressed by the individual site plans.

B. Response to Prellminar5r Development Plan Conditions of
Approval:

1. Phase 6 shall be designated Light Industrlaf (LI) and
Phase 5 shall be designated Retail Commercial (RC). Remove the
Centur5r Drive extension east of Adams Avenue.

As illustrated on Sheet 1, the phases have been revised according
to the above condition of approval required by City Council.

2. Prlor to lssuance of any permlts for Phase 1, the City and
the applicant shall execute a parks maintenance agreement. The
agreement shall lnclude a provision that when the residential areas
are fully developed, the City has the option to take over the
maintenanee responsíbiHties of the park.

The subject agreement has been executed as is attached to this
report.

3. The owner shall dedlcate to the City the wetland and
wetland buffer delineated in the applicant's wetland delineation
report, prlor to lssuance of permits for Phase I of the development.
Any wettand modlfrcations shall be submitted by the developer for
revlew and approval by the Division of State Lands and the Corps of
Englneers.

Since this condition is relevant to Phase 8, it should remain as a
condition of approval.

PUD 95-TF
Page 2

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 744



4. At each phase of development, and with each site plan
submitted to the City, the applicant shall provide a trafftc lmpact
analysis for City, County and ODOT review and approval.
Recomrnended traffïc safety and road improvements shalt be
considered by the Cíty and nay be required with each phase.

To be required with each phase, therefore needs to remain a
condition of approval.

5. Revíse the Deslgn Guidelínes for all residential and
commerclal development to increase the number of stnrctures
requÍred to have porches and recessed garages.

The Design Guidelines have not been revised according to the
condition, and should remain a condition of approval.

6. Adams Avenue shall be constnrcted from Century Drive
north to î[alatÍn-Sherwood Road prior to completion of Phase 3.
Those irnFrovements shall include curbs, llutters and sidewalks and
28 feet of paving on the west side of the street. Adams Avenue shatt
be constnrcted by the developers to connect to Oregon Street (not
across railroad tracks) upon completion of Phase 6, and where
necessary the City wíll acquire road right-of-way to complete the
connection. Sidewalks on all portions of Adams Avenue shall be
constnrcted in the same meandering desig! as approved for Century
Drlve.

The above condition is relevant to certain phases and should
remain as a condition of approval

7. At the time of individual sÍte plan review, consider
comments from Tli-Met recommended in their letter dated March
27, t995.

The above condition is relevant to all phases and should remain a
condition of approval.

8. Prior to Final Plan submíttal, modify the plan to the
City's satisfaction so that the pedestrian link to the Sherwood Plaza
is a sldewalk buttt to City standards.

As illustrated on Sheet 3, there is a pedestrian/bike pathway in
Phase 1 linking Century Drive with the SherwoodPlaza shopping center.
Further, the Sunfield Apartments site plan submittal pending
Commission review illustrates the pathway, although slightly west. The
location should specifically be reviewed with the Phase I Sité Plan to
ensure tJle pathway is appropriately located.

PUD 95-TF
Page 3

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 745



9. In Phase 1, water senrÍce shall be looped to Tualatin-
Sherryood Road from Century Drive via a publÍc easement ln the
Adams Avenue allgnment.

This applies to Phase I and should remain as a condition of
approval.

lO. Modtfy the plan to incorporate a pedestrian lÍnk from
Phase 3 to Phase 5 at the end of the planned cr¡l-de-sac. Alignment
is to be finalized during site plan approval of Phase 3.

The pathway is conceptually illustrated on Sheet 3 and will be
reviewed more closely at the time of site plan review for that phase.

11. As a part the Phase I Site Plan submlttal, provide a forty
(4O') foot wide pedestrian easement from Century Drive to Langer
Drive that lncludes pavement u¡idth, landscaping and street
furnltr¡re for Ctty approval. Align the pathway so that it coincldes
w¡th the adjotnÍng phase lines. the pathway shall be constructed by
the developer vrith the completion of Phase I development.

The above condition applies to Phase I and should remain a
eondition of approval to ensure lt is met. Sheets I and 3 conceptually
illustrate ttre pattrway as required.

L2. Provide and constnrct a twenty-four (24'l foot wlde
public vehicle access easement from Phase 1 to Langer Drive,
alignment and specificatlons to be determined a.t the tlme of Phase
I Site Plan subrrittal. Upon a subsequent evaluation, this access
may be aba¡rdoned when the connectlon to T[alatin-Shemrood Road
via Adams Avenue is constructed.

Sheet 3 conceptually illustrates a stubbed driveway access from
Langer Drive to the south end of Phase 2. This should remain a
condition of approval so that it is provided in Phase l.

rV. RECOMMÞNDAÎION

Based on the above findings of fact, Staff recommends approval of
Sherwood Village PUD 95-1 Final Development Plan subject to the
following conditions:

1. Ttre owner shall dedicate to the City the wetland and wetland
buffer delineated in the applicant's wetland delineation report, prior to
issuance of permits for Phase 8 of the development. Any wetland
modiftcations shall be submitted by the developer for review and approval
by the Division of State Lands and the Corps of Engineers.

PUD 95-1F
Page 4

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 746



2. Prior to Phase I approval, revise tJle Design Guidelines for all
residential and commercial development to increase the number of
structures requted to have porches and recessed garages.

3. Adams Avenue shall be constructed frorn Century Drive north to
Ttralatin-Shenvood Road prior to completion of Phase 3. TÏrose
improvements shall include curbs, gutters and sidewalks and 28 feet of
paving on the west side of the street. Adams Avenue shall be constructed
by the developers to connect to Oregon Street (not across the railroad
tracks) upon complelion_of Phase 6, and where necessary the city may
will acquire road right-of-way to complete the connection. Sidewalks-on
all portions of Adams Avenue shall be constructed in the same
meandering design as approved for Century Drive.

4. At the time of individual site plan review, consider the comments
from Tri-Met reconunended in their letter dated March 27, Lgg1.

5. In Phase 1, water service shall be looped to Tualatin-Sherwood
Road from Century Drive via a public easement in the Adams Avenue
alignment.

q. As a part of the Phase I Site Plan submittal, provide a forty (4O)
foot wide pedestrian easement from Century Drive tb f,anger Drive that
includes pavements width, landscaping and street furniture for City
approval. Atign tlle pathway so that it coincides with the adjoining
phase lines. The pathway shall be constructed by the develõper witfr tne
completion of Phase 1 development.

7. Provide and construct a twenty-four (24'l footwide public vehicle
access easement from Phase I to Langer Drive, alignmenland
speciff.cations to be determined at tJre time of Phase I Site plan
submittal. Upon a subsequent evaluation, this access may be
abandoned when the connection to Tualatin-Shen¡øood Road via Adams
Avenue is constructed.

8. At each phase of development, and with each site plan submitted
!o the City,_the applicant shall provide a traffic impact anaþsis for City,
Count5r and ODOT review and approval. Recommended trafiic safety añd
road improvements shall be considered by the City and may be required
with each phase.

PUD 95-1F
Page 5

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 747



90 NW Park Street
Sherwood, Oregon 97140

so3l625-5522 0 FAX 503162s-5524

NOrICE Or. DEICISION

IvIAP AÌ{D TAX LOT Nos.:
Tax Lot 2OO, Map 2SI 29C
Tax Lots 9OO and 9Ol,
Map 2Sl 298
Tax tot 3OO, Map 2Sl 29D

CASE NO.: PUD 95-1
DAîE IVÍAILED: Marctr 1, 1995

Clarence D..Ianger
15585 SfV TUal¿tln-She¡:wood Rd.
Sherwood, Oregon 97LÆ

T0: Ma¡tln Süven
Planntng & Dev. Services
f462O Uplands Drive
I"ake Oswqio, OR 97034

PUD95.I
Fage I

V/elget Properifes \ñt'estlake Consultants
62Aö SWöanyon Court 73'æ S\ñr HunzCker, Sutte 2O4
Portland, OR-97221 Tigad, OR 97223

On Febnraryr 28, 1995, tJre Planning¡ Comrdsslon of tJre_- City of
She¡wood, dregon, declded to approve -your applicatlon for Sb'eru¡ood
Village PUD PretimÍnary Derrelopment Plarr.

The declston was based on ttre followiag maJor ffndings:

See Staffreport dated Februar5r 22, L995.

The followfng condiüons were placed on approval of the applicatlon:

t. Ilre land designated Hfgh Denslty Residenttal $IDR) as tdentlfied
on tlre Pretimñrary Dwe.iopment Plan shall be dweloped as multt-
family housilg atâ density of slxteen (16) dwelllng units per acre.

2. prior to issuance of arry perrrits for Phase I, tlre City shall agree to
the applicarrt's parks maintenance agreemenl

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 748



L2. Provide a secondarJ¡ aecess from Phase I to Langer Drive,
alignment and speciftcations to be deterrnined at the tlme of Phase
I Site Plan submittal Upon a subsequent er¡aluatlon, ttrls access
may be abandoned when the connectlon to T[alatl¡r-Sheru¡ood
Road via Adams Avenue Ís consbrrcted.

This Preliminary Development Plan approval ls \rahd for one (1) year.

Appeal

Persons who are a part¡r to thÍs decision a¡¡d who have a basis for an
appeal based on an issue that has been raised, are eltgfble to appeal t]rfs
decision not more than 2l days after the date on which tJre acüon took
place, For the applicarrt, ttre 21 days are counted from the date this
decislon was mailed

Signed:
Carole ït/'. Co¡rnell
PlannÍrg Dlrector

FinalAction
X Additional Required Action

Revieu¡ Body:

Planning Commission

X City Council

Date of Meeting:

Tentatively March 28. 1995

PUD 95-I
Page 3

Exhibit D11

Packet Page 749



Exhibit D12

Packet Page 750



CITY OF SHERWOOD 
Staff Report & Notice of Decision 

Brad Kilby, Senior Planner 

Date: June 21, 2012 
File No: SUB 12-02 
Langer Farms Subdivision 

Pre-App. Meeting: 
App. Submitted: 
App. Complete: 
120-Day Deadline: 

December 12, 2011 
March 30, 2012 

April27, 2012 
September 1, 2012 

Proposal: The applicant has requested preliminary subdivision approval to divide~ 55.09 
acres into five individual lots and two tracts for future development consistent with the Sherwood 
Village Planned Unit Development, File No. PUD 95-1. The Planned Unit Development was 
approved in 1995 without a preliminary plat. 

I. BACKGROUND 
A. Applicant/Owner: 

Langer Family, LLC 
14958 SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

Applicant's Representative: 
AKS Engineering & Forestry 
13910 SW Galbreath Drive 
Suite 100 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

B. Location: The property is located on the south side of SW Langer Farms Parkway, West of 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and east of SW Oregon Street. The property is identified as tax lot 
300 on Washington County Assessor Map 2S129D. 

C. Parcel Size: The subject property is approximately 55.09 acres in size. 

D. Existing Development and Site Characteristics: 
The existing use of the site is agriculture. The current crop appears to be a grass or 
grain crop. The property is generally rectangular in site, and includes a gently rolling 
landscape. There is a delineated natural resource and buffer area in the southeast 
portion of the site. The buffer and resources includes some trees and riparian landscape 
materials. This specific proposal does not include any physical impacts into the resource 
area. 

Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) and Portland General Electric (PGE) have power 
lines and associated easements through the northeast corner of the site. The subject 
property has frontage onto SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and SW Langer Farms 
Parkway. SW Century Blvd. stubs into the property from the east and west. Finally, the 
property contains two existing storm water ponds. One of the ponds is located in the 
north east portion of the site, and the other is located in the south and west portion of the 
site. The existing ponds serve off-site developments. 

Page 1 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 751



E. Site History: The site has been owned and farmed by the Langer family since the late 
1800's. This particular piece of property is made up of phases 6, 7, and 8 of the 
Sherwood Village PUD that was approved by the Sherwood City Council in 1995. All 
future development is subject to the conditions of the approved Planned Unit 
Development and any subsequent amendments. 

F. Zoning Classification and Comprehensive Plan Designation: The property is zoned 
PUD-LI . Although the property carries a Light Industrial zoning designation, the City 
Council, at the request of the property owner, approved a modification to the PUD in File 
number PUD 07-01. That decision confirmed that the PUD could elect pursuant to 
Section 16.32.020.H. of the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code 
(SZCDC), to develop Phases 4, 6, 7, and 8 with uses that would have been allowed 
under the Light Industrial (LI) base zone text applicable on August 3, 1995 (when the 
City approved the PUD Final Development Plan). At that time, Retail Commercial (RC) 
uses were also allowed in the Light Industrial zone. Although no specific land uses are 
proposed with this subdivision request, the applicant has attended two pre-application 
conferences with the City about developing the property with commercial uses. 

G. Adjacent Zoning and Land Use: The subject site is currently being farmed. Properties to 
the south and east of the site include lands that are zoned Light Industrial. Billet 
manufacturing is located directly south of the site, and there are two light industrial uses 
adjacent to the northeast property line. The remaining properties to the east of the site 
are zoned Ll and are not currently developed. Properties located to the west of the 
property, on the west side of SW Langer Farms Parkway, include lands developed with 
commercial, residential and public and institutional uses. Some of the commercial and 
residentially developed properties to the west were developed in earlier phases of the 
Langer PUD. 

H. Review Type: According to section 16.72.010.2.i, subdivisions between 4-10 lots require 
a Type II review with a decision made by City Staff after consideration of public 
comments. An appeal would be heard by the City of Sherwood Planning Commission so 
long as the person appealing had provided comments during the 14-day public comment 
period, and it is filed within (14) days after the decision has been mailed. 

I. Public Notice and Hearing: Notice of the application was mailed to property owners 
within 1 000 feet, posted on the property and in five locations throughout the City on April 
25, 2012 in accordance with the notice provisions of Section 16.72.020 of the SZCDC. 

J. Review Criteria: Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code, 16.40(Pianned 
Unit Development), 16.58.010 (Clear Vision), 16.70 (Administrative Procedures), 
Division VI - 16.104-16.118 (Public Infrastructure), Division VII 16.120 (Subdivisions), 
16.128 (Land Division Design Standards), and Division VIII 16.144 (Wetland, Habitat 
and Natural Areas). 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public notice was mailed, posted on the property and in five locations throughout the City on 
April 25, 2012. Staff has received the following comments. 

Page 2 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 752



R. James Claus of 22211 SW Pacific Highway submitted comments opposing the subdivision 
proposal. Mr. Claus alleges that the proposed subdivision violates the PUD Code requirements. 
Specifically, he maintains that the City can only allow changes in the plan that are necessary 
with the terms of the preliminary approvals, that the code requires that the preliminary 
subdivision be processed concurrently with the PUD, that the time has passed to allow them to 
submit a subdivision proposal, that the traffic survey used to gain approval did not contemplate 
the traffic that could result from future commercial development of the site, that the City has 
modified the original PUD without citizen input, and that a staff level review is not the correct 
process for processing the proposed subdivision. A copy of Mr. Claus' full comments is 
incorporated into the record. 

Staff Response: Staff will address each one of the items raised in Mr. Claus' below: 

• The City can only allow changes in the plan that are necessary with the terms of the 
preliminary approvals ... 

Staff Response: Mr. Claus is referring to Code section 2.202.02(E) which is now Section 
16.40.020(E), which states, "Approval of the Preliminary Development Plan shall not constitute 
final acceptance of the PUD. Approval shall, however, be binding upon the City for the purpose 
of preparation of the Final Development Plan, and the City may require only such changes in 
the plan as are necessary for compliance with the terms of preliminary approvals." This 
provision is titled the Effect of Decision under the overall heading for Preliminary Development 
Plan. First, the City is not requiring the proposed subdivision, and the Final Development Plan 
was approved in 1995. It is unclear why Mr. Claus feels that this is relevant to the proposed 
development. 

• The code requires that the preliminary subdivision be processed concurrently with the 
PUD 

• The time has passed to allow them to submit a subdivision proposal 
• Staff Level review is not the correct process for processing the proposed subdivision 

Staff Response: This proposal does not constitute a substantial change to the PUD, rather, it is 
a subdivision of land which routinely happens in commercial and industrial developments. The 
subdivision was not filed at the same time that the PUD was processed in 1995, but that should 
not preclude a property owner from dividing their property if it meets the standards the 
community puts into place. Had there been a subdivision requested at the time the PUD was 
being considered in 1995, the City would have requested that it be reviewed concurrently. 

According to the City Attorney's office, "A PUD decision under 16.40 is a separate and distinct 
decision from a subdivision decision under 16.120. Section 16.40.020.8.5 states, "If the PUD 
involves the subdivision of land ... " Apparently, this particular PUD did not when it was 
approved in 1995 - it was a straight PUD that did not include a subdivision. The code section 
goes on to say that when the PUD also involves a subdivision, the two decisions shall be 
processed concurrently. This affirms the interpretation that they are separate decisions, albeit 
when they are proposed concurrently, they need to be processed concurrently. In fact, the City 
has reviewed other subdivisions within this same PUD since the final development plan was 
approved. 

Furthermore, the PUD approval is an overlay zone that is applied to a property. In this instance, 
the boundaries of the PUD are not changing, the applicant is not asking for any land use that 

Page 3 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 753



would be inconsistent with the prior approvals, and the prior approvals did not identify which 
land was devoted to a specific use. There is not an increase in density because it is not a 
residential development. Therefore, this does not constitute a modification to the PUD. It is 
simply a subdivision of land. According to 16.120.030.1.a, "A subdivision application for 4-10 
lots will follow a Type II process." Subdivisions are processed in accordance with the 
administrative provisions spelled out in Section 16. 72. 

Therefore, this application does not constitute a major or minor modification to the approved 
PUD, and the subdivision can be reviewed as a Type II staff level subdivision. 

The traffic survey used to gain approval did not contemplate the traffic that could result from 
future commercial development of the site 

Staff Response: All newly proposed developments within the boundaries of the PUD have 
been required to provide a traffic study, and there is no reason that the City would not require a 
traffic study for any future proposed developments. This subdivision, in and of itself, does not 
generate any new traffic. Certainly, future development will be required to provide a traffic study 
at the time of application consistent with the developers' agreement. Given the pace of growth in 
the Portland Metro area over the past 20 years, it is highly unlikely that the information provided 
within the original PUD could still be relied upon. 

The City has modified the original PUD without citizen input 

Staff Response: The only modification that staff is aware of to this application is file number 
PUD 07-01. That decision confirmed that commercial uses would be allowed, and spelled out 
the community's expectations for future improvements associated with the PUD. That 
application was processed in accordance with the development code Section 16.40.040.8.2 
which specifies that minor changes to a Final Development Plan may be approved by the 
Council without further public hearing or Commission review, provided that such changes 
do not increase densities, change boundaries or uses, or change the location or amount of land 
devoted to specific uses. It is not clear to staff how this is germane to the proposal at hand 
which is in fact, being made after a public comment period in which one public comment was 
received on this matter. 

Ill. AGENCY COMMENTS 

Staff sent e-notice to affected agencies on April 25, 2012. The following is a summary of the 
comments received. Copies of full comments are included in the record unless otherwise noted. 

SHERWOOD ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT: 
Engineering staff has reviewed the information provided for the above cited project. Further 
review will occur with individual land-use applications for the subdivided lots. The project(s) will 
need to meet the standards established in the City of Sherwood Engineering Design and 
Standard Details Manual and Clean Water Services (CWS) Design & Construction Standards 
Manual, in addition to requirements established by other jurisdictional agencies providing land
use comments. City Engineering Department comments are as follows: 

Transportation 
There are no improvements proposed with the subdivision, although the subdivided lots must 
have the ability to access public rights-of-way per the development code of the applicable 
agency prior to recording of the finai subdivision plat map. Individual traffic studies will be 

Page 4 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 754



required with each subsequent development land-use application. All traffic impact analyses 
shall address the City of Sherwood Capacity Allocation Program (COS Ordinance 2000-1104 
codified by SMC 16.107.070) while considering the Development Agreement as amended and 
restated by Sherwood Resolution 2010-033. Development Agreement term H.4 (Highway 99W 
Capacity Allocation Program) states: 

For purposes of calculating whether the trips associated with the regulated activities in Phases 
6, 7, and 8 of the PUD exceed the trip limit of ZCDC 6.306.D.4 (renumbered as ZCDC 
16.1 07 .070), the City shall aggregate the trips and acreage of all such phases. As a result, the 
trips associated with the regulated activities of a single phase may exceed the trip limit that 
would otherwise apply if that phase were calculated individually, provided that the trips 
associated with all regulated activities for Phases 6, 7, and 8 do not exceed the trip limit in the 
aggregate. At each phase of development of the PUD, the number of reserve trips for the 
remaining phases will be identified in the applicable Trip Allocation Certificate. 

Prior to City approval of the subdivision, the applicant shall submit a plan identifying the 
separate acreages of PUD Phases 6, 7 and 8, less the 100-year floodplain and the SW Century 
Drive right-of-way. City staff will use the information shown on the plan to aggregate the CAP 
trip limit for comparison during future site plan reviews. 

It is suggested that the applicant evaluate the intent of and any discrepancies between the 
original and amended PUD decisions, amended & restated Development Agreement, and the 
City Transportation System Plan, particularly: the location of public streets, site access points, 
vehicular and pedestrian circulation, traffic study areas, if subsequent traffic studies for Phases 
6/7/8 consider whether the North Extension has been planned or funded prior to development or 
redevelopment, and editions of the ITE Trip Generation manual. 

A public right-of-way and eight foot wide public utility easements shall be shown on the 
preliminary and final recorded subdivision plat map for the extension of SW Century Drive. 

See comments from Washington County DLUT on right-of-way dedications, improvements and 
access to/from SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 

Staff Response: Planning staff discussed these comments with Engineering staff, the 
discrepancy lies in the issue that the approved Final PUD Plan showed three access points from 
SW Langer Farms Parkway into the site. This proposal shows three access locations, and the 
extension of SW Century Blvd. The Engineering Division is not opposed to the access locations, 
but felt that it should be pointed out that there are realistically four accesses into the site. 
Certainly, the applicant was not aware that the extension of SW Century Blvd was going to be 
placed into the Transportation System Plan, and there were no specific discussions in any of the 
staff reports or decisions for the preliminary or final PUD approvals discussing the limitations of 
the access points along SW Langer Farms Parkway. 

Furthermore, there is plenty of language within the PUD file to suggest that many of the 
decisions related to traffic would be deferred to review of individual development proposals as 
they were submitted to the City. Since the applicant could not have anticipated the 
reintroduction of the extension of SW Century Blvd. into the Transportation System Plan (TSP), 
it is completely understandable that there would be at least three accesses from SW Langer 
Farms Parkway into the site. 

Sanitary Sewer 

Page 5 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 755



There are no sanitary improvements being proposed with the subdivision application, although 
the subdivided lots must have the ability to connect (by gravity) to the public sanitary system 
when development occurs. All public conveyance easements, if required for gravity service, 
shall be shown or referenced on the subdivision plat map. Prior to recordation of the final plat 
map, the applicant shall submit detailed plans that clearly label each lot number's connection to 
the public system and elevations that show gravity service is achievable. 

If retaining walls or slopes are necessary to support the public sanitary system, then wall and/or 
slope easements shall be granted to the City with actual site development, not with the 
subdivision plat map. 

Staff Response: Sewer service has been stubbed to the parent parcel, so it is available. The 
developer will be required to determine how to best serve the site with sewer, loop and/or 
extend the system as necessary as proposals for future development on the site evolve. 

Water 
There are no water improvements being proposed with the subdivision, although the subdivided 
lots must have the ability to connect to the public water system when development occurs. The 
applicant shall submit detailed plans that clearly label each lot number and how it will connect to 
the public system prior to recordation of the final plat map. 

If retaining walls or slopes are necessary to support the public water system, then wall and/or 
slope easements shall be granted to the City with actual site development, not with the 
subdivision plat map. Public water easements must be established around water meter and fire 
flow vaults during site development. 

Staff Response: Water service has been stubbed to the parent parcel with the recent 
completion of SW Langer Farms Parkway, so it is available. The developer will be required to 
determine how to best serve the site with water, loop and/or extend the system as necessary as 
proposals for future development on the site evolve. 

Storm Sewer 
There are no storm improvements being proposed with the subdivision, although the subdivided 
lots must have the ability to connect to the public storm system (by gravity) when development 
occurs on any subdivided lot. The preliminary subdivision plat map shows a 15' wide public 
storm drainage easement over Tract 'A' and Lot 4 for the benefit of existing and future upstream 
development. The preliminary subdivision plat also shows a 15' wide public storm drainage 
easement over Lot 1 and a small portion of Lot 2, but has a note 'to be dedicated with 
development of Lots 1-3'. Development Agreement term F.1 .a (Stormwater Facility - Langer 
Commitments) states: 

Prior to issuance of a final occupancy permit for the first structures located in Phases 6 or 7, 
Langer will design and substantially construct the "Stormwater Facility" on Phase 8 (including 
any necessary portions of Phase 6), to accommodate existing stormwater detention and 
treatment for the PUD (including development of Phases 6, 7, and 8), and any detention and 
treatment associated with the South Extension and Century Drive Connection. In conjunction 
with this construction, Langer retains the right to terminate use of the Existing Facilities and any 
Temporary Facility constructed ... 

Page 6 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 756



In addition, City infrastructure mapping indicates the storm drainage easement shown over Lot 1 
and Lot 2 is intended to convey flows from existing upstream development and public rights-of
way. 

Based on the materials submitted by the applicant, the Development Agreement, and City 
infrastructure mapping, the regional storm facility will treat runoff from all of the subdivided lots, 
proposed rights-of-way, as well as existing upstream development and public rights-of-way. 
Although construction can be deferred until future site development, all of the tracts, public 
storm drainage and access easements shown on the preliminary plat map must be dedicated to 
the City with the subdivision plat. 

If retaining walls or slopes are necessary to support the public storm system, then wall and/or 
slope easements shall be granted to the City with actual site development, not with the 
subdivision plat map. 

Grading and Erosion Control: 
No early grading is proposed with this subdivision. Site grading will exceed 5 acres of disturbed 
area for all phases of development. Therefore, a 1200-C permit is required. The 1200-C 
permitting process can be initiated through the City of Sherwood Engineering Department. It is 
likely DEQ (via CWS) will require that all phases of development on and around tax lot 300 be 
authorized under the same 1200-C permit. 

The memorandum from CWS dated May 8, 2012 indicates that a CWS Storm Water Connection 
Permit (SWCP) must be obtained prior to plat approval and recordation. CWS typically requires 
a 1200-C permit prior to issuing a SWCP. Contact CWS to obtain a SWCP. 

Other Engineering Issues: 
The subdivision includes new property lines within Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) 
and/or Portland General Electric (PGE) transmission line easements. The applicant must 
coordinate with those entities to determine when they will issue a land use agreement to the 
developer, prior to final plat approval and recordation or with individual site plan review, or both. 

The applicant may be required to install infrastructure for Sherwood Broadband as noted in City 
Ordinances 2005-17 and 2005-74 during future phases of development, but not with the 
subdivision plat. 

Per CWS requirements, tracts or easements shall be established over wetlands and vegetated 
corridors with the subdivision plat. See conditions of the CWS Service Provider Letter (SPL) 
and land-use comments memo dated May 8, 2012. 

WASHINGTON COUNTY: 
1. The applicant is not proposing access to SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road. To implement the 

County's access-spacing standards, the applicant will be required to record a motor 
vehicle access restriction along the subject site's entire frontage of SW Tualatin
Sherwood Road for the purposes of implementing the access spacing standards. 

2. Consistent with statewide pedestrian circulation/linkage goals of the Transportation 
Planning Rule and the County's R&O 86-95 (road safety requirements), the County 
normally requires sidewalk installation as a minimum road safety improvement along site 
frontage of all County-maintained roads. Sidewalks further establish future street profiles, 
demarcate County or City right-of-way, and address drainage issues. Sidewalk 

Page 7 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 757



requirements are not generally waived, even when sidewalk is not currently present on 
neighboring properties. Rather, even non-contiguous sidewalk is considered to provide 
some measure of pedestrian refuge and ideally, makes possible eventual connection of 
sidewalks (as surrounding development takes place and is likewise conditioned to provide 
sidewalk). Additionally, the Washington County Road Design and Construction Standards 
require provision of adequate drainage along a site's frontage of a county road. 

The applicant is required to construct a half-street improvement, including 
illumination, to an A-2 County standard along the subject site's frontage of SW 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road OR pay a fee-in-lieu (Contact Dan Erpenbach at 503-846-
7877). 

Note: For half street improvements, an applicant shall provide street lighting consistent 
with County engineering standards and procedures and the requirements of the 
electrical utility company providing service to the area. The applicant shall ensure the 
construction, maintenance and power costs of street light facilities through the 
annexation and petition for service to an existing County service district for lighting or 
other funding method approved by the County Engineer. 

3. The statewide Transportation Planning Rule requires provision for adequate transportation 
facilities in order for development to occur. Accordingly, the County has classified roads 
and road segments within the County system based upon their function. The current 
Transportation Plan (regularly updated) contains adequate right-of-way, road width and 
lane provision standards based upon each roadway's classification. Subject right of way is 
considered deficient if half-width of the existing right of way does not meet that determined 
necessary within the County's current transportation plan. 

The applicant is required to dedicate additional right-of-way to provide 49 feet from 
centerline of SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, including adequate corner radius at the 
intersection. 

Staff Response: The comments from Washington County have been considered, and to the 
extent that they are applicable to the proposed development, the conditions of approval have 
been incorporated into this report. The request for a non-access easement along the property's 
frontage with Tualatin-Sherwood Road, according to Naomi Voegel, Associate Planner with 
Washington County Operations, is not intended to prevent the existing access location that is 
used to maintain the water quality facility on the northeast corner of the site. Because that 
location is provided with a mountable curb, Washington County does not view that as a formal 
access to the site. 

CLEAN WATER SERVICES (CWS): 
CWS provided comments that essentially require that a Storm Water Connection Permit 
Authorization be obtained. The District also requires that the application comply with the 
requirements of the Amended service provider letter 12-000162. 

Staff Response: The CWS conditions of approval have been incorporated into this report 
where appropriate. 

TUALATIN VALLEY FIRE AND RESCUE (TVFR): 
TVFR provided comments that do not specifically identify any deficiencies within the proposal, 
but rather outline the districts expectations for access, the provision of hydrants, and 

Page 8 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 758



infrastructure that would aid the district in providing services to the site. The comments are 
attached to this decision, and to the extent that they apply, the applicant will be required to 
satisfy the standards of TVFR in final design and construction of the subdivision. 

Kinder Morgan Energy, ODOT, Pride Disposal, the Tualatin Valley Water District, NW Natural 
Gas, and Portland General Electric were all provided an opportunity to comment on this 
proposal, but did not provide comments. It is incumbent upon the applicant to coordinate the 
final design of the subdivision with any of the above affected agencies. 

IV. APPLICABLE CODE STANDARDS 

Chapter 16.32 Light Industrial (LI) 

A. 16.32.020 Permitted Uses 

The following uses are permitted outright, provided such uses meet the applicable 
environmental performance standards contained in Division VIII. Incidental retail 
sales, limited to 10% of the total floor area of a business, may be permitted as a 
secondary function of a permitted or conditional use, subject to the review and 
approval of the Hearing Authority. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The property is currently in agricultural use, and the subdivision does 
not include a proposal to use the land any differently. It should be noted, that staff has 
been in contact with the applicant, and they have indicated that they do intend to submit an 
application in the near future for commercial uses on the site. Section 16.32.020.H states, 
"PUDs, new and existing, subject to the provisions of Chapter 16.40. New PUDs may mix 
uses which are permitted within the boundaries of the PUD. Approved PUDs may elect to 
establish uses which are permitted or conditionally permitted under the base zone text 
applicable at the time of final approval of the PUD." 

FINDING: At the time that the PUD was approved, general retail uses were permitted 
within the Light Industrial district, so there would be no reason that the applicant couldn't 
propose commercial development on the site in the future. Since the subdivision does not 
include proposals for any new uses on the subject site, the development complies with this 
section. 

B. 16.32.050 Dimensional Standards 

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or 
loading area, or other site dimension or requirement, existing on, or after, the 
effective date of this Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this 
Code. Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use or 
right-of-way, leave a lot or structure on the remainder of said lot with less than 
minimum Code dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as 
permitted by Chapter 16.84. 

A. Lot Dimensions 

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum lot areas and dimensions shall be: 

1. Lot area: 10,000 sq ft 

Page 9 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 759



2. Lot width at front property line: 100 feet 
3. Lot width at building line: 100 feet 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision creates five lots and two tracts. The tracts, 
Tract A and Tract B, are for the purposes of protecting the natural resource on site, and to 
establish an area for a regional water quality facility, and are not buildable lots. Lot 1 is 
13.99 acres in size, and has frontage onto three public streets. There are several front lot 
lines with the proposed lot, but the longest one is approximately 444.21 feet in length. Lot 2 
is approximately 3.65 acres and has more than 1,050 feet of frontage onto two public 
streets. Lot 3 is approximately 2.35 acres in size and has more than 700 feet of frontage 
onto two public streets. Lot 4 is 21 .97 acres in size and has more than 2,000 feet of 
frontage onto two public streets. Lot 5 is 6.93 acres in size and is provided access through 
a 40-foot wide access easement. The lot width at the front property line is more than 500 
feet. 

FINDING: It is feasible that, given the size of the lots, that the lot width at the building lines 
can be satisfied with future development on every one of the lots. Compliance with 
setbacks and heights will be verified at the time the properties are developed. The 
dimensional standards are satisfied to the extent that they apply to this subdivision. 

C. 16.32.060 Community Design 

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic 
resources, environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and 
open space, on-site storage, and site design, see Divisions V, VIII and IX. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicable standards that are listed in the Community Design 
section are addressed elsewhere in this narrative. As proposed, it is feasible that future 
development on the proposed lots would be able to satisfy the standards, and any 
proposed development will be evaluated against those standards that are found to be 
applicable. 

Chapter 16.40 Planned Unit Development 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The subject property has an approved PUD overlay. Initially approved in 
1995, development on the property is subject to the provisions of that approval, any approved 
modifications, and the associated Developers Agreement. There are no approval criteria within 
Chapter 16.40 that can be directly attributed to this proposal. The standards of this chapter are 
only applicable to review and approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, the Final 
Development Plan, and any modifications. In this instance, the property is being subdivided 
outside of the PUD process, and does not preclude the applicant from satisfying the intent of the 
PUD, nor relieve them of their commitments to make the public improvements called for in that 
approval. This constitutes a development action on Phases 6, 7, and 8 of the proposed 
development. Consistency with the applicable requirements of the approved 2010 Development 
Agreement is discussed throughout this report. Consistency with the approved development 
standards and design guidelines apply to proposals for actual physical development of the 
property, and will be evaluated at such time that those applications are filed. 

Chapter 16.58 Clear Vision and Fence Standards 

Page 10 of 33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 760



16.58.01 0 Clear Vision Areas 

A. A clear vision area shall be maintained on the corners of all property at the 
intersection of two (2) streets, intersection of a street with a railroad, or 
intersection of a street with an alley or private driveway. 

B. A clear vision area shall consist of a triangular area, two (2) sides of which are lot 
lines measured from the corner intersection of the street lot lines for a distance 
specified in this regulation; or, where the lot lines have rounded corners, the lot 
lines extended in a straight line to a point of intersection, and so measured, and 
the third side of which is a line across the corner of the lot joining the non
intersecting ends of the other two (2) sides. 

C. A clear vision area shall contain no planting, sight obscuring fence, wall, structure, 
or temporary or permanent obstruction exceeding two and one-half (2 1/2) feet in 
height, measured from the top of the curb, or where no curb exists, from the 
established street center line grade, except that trees exceeding this height may be 
located in this area, provided all branches and foliage are removed to the height of 
seven (7) feet above the ground on the sidewalk side and ten (10) feet on the street 
side. 

The following requirements shall govern clear vision areas: 

1. In all zones, the minimum distance shall be twenty (20) feet. 

2. In all zones, the minimum distance from corner curb to any driveway shall be 
twenty-five(25) feet. 

3. Where no setbacks are required, buildings may be constructed within the clear 
vision area. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision does not include any physical improvements 
that would preclude future development on each of the lots from complying with the provisions 
of this Chapter. 

FINDING: It is feasible that the development can comply with the clear vision standards stated 
above. Compliance with the provisions of this chapter will be evaluated with future development 
proposals associated with the property. 

Chapter 16.70 General Provisions 

16.70.010 Pre-Application Conference 

Pre-application conferences are encouraged and shall be scheduled to provide 
applicants with the informational and procedural requirements of this Code; to 
exchange information regarding applicable policies, goals and standards of the 
Comprehensive Plan; to provide technical and design assistance; and to identify 
opportunities and constraints for a proposed land use action. An applicant may apply at 
one time for all permits or zone changes needed for a development project as 
determined in the pre-application conference. 

Page 11 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 761



STAFF ANALYSIS: Although not a requirement, the applicant requested and attended a pre
application conference with City staff on December 12, 2011 to discuss partitioning, 
subdividing, and developing the property. 

16.70.020 Neighborhood Meeting 

A. The purpose of the neighborhood meeting is to solicit input and exchange 
information about the proposed development. 

B. Applicants of Type Ill, IV and V applications are required to hold a meeting, at a 
public location for with adjacent property owners and recognized neighborhood 
organizations that are within 1,000 feet of the subject application, prior to submitting 
their application to the City. Affidavits of mailing, sign-in sheets and a summary of the 
meeting notes shall be included with the application when submitted. Applicants for 
Type II land use action are encouraged, but not required to hold a neighborhood 
meeting. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant held a neighborhood meeting on February 8, 2012 at St. 
Francis Church to discuss the overall development of the PUD site including a partition, a 
subdivision, and potential development of the site. Approximately 25 people attended. Twenty 
one of the attendees signed the attendance roster, and the applicant has provided a summary 
of the meeting and the items raised by the public. Concerns included added truck traffic on 
Langer Farms Parkway, speeding on Langer Farms Parkway, access to Tualatin-Sherwood 
Road from the extension of Century Drive, a desire for future development to attract store 
brands that appeal to teenagers, concerns about competition with existing businesses as a 
result of any commercial development on the property, the amount of existing vacant 
commercial space in Sherwood, a desire for additional transit service, disruption of wildlife, and 
disruption of existing views. To the extent that the development code addresses any of the 
concerns, staff has taken them into consideration in this decision. 

It should be noted that SW Langer Farms Parkway is a collector intended to provide another 
route into Sherwood. Traffic laws on the right-of-way are enforced by the Sherwood Police 
Department, and currently the right-of-way does not restrict truck traffic. Future development 
proposals on the site include individual traffic impact reports that will better inform the decision 
makers on the impacts associated with those specific proposals. If the traffic in some way 
deteriorates the acceptable functionality of the street systems, then the Engineering Division 
may impose mitigation measures to help offset those impacts. The property is approved for 
commercial and light industrial type developments, and will most likely be developed in that 
manner. 

All future development proposals will be required to meet the dimensional requirements 
including heights, setbacks, and to the extent they apply, the design guidelines that were 
approved with the Final PUD approval. There are no protected scenic corridors within the 
City's Comprehensive Plan, so it is likely that any development on the subject site will affect the 
existing views of those who live adjacent to the site, and have become accustom to the views 
the existing farmland provides, but that land is within the City limits and is set aside for 
development. 

FINDING: Although not required to host a neighborhood meeting by code, the applicant did in 
fact hold a neighborhood meeting on February 8, 2012 and provided the materials along with 

Page 12 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 762



this application that demonstrate that they complied with the requirements for neighborhood 
meetings. 

Division VI. Public Infrastructure 

16.104 General Provisions 

To ensure the health, safety, and the economic stability of the community, and to 
establish a quality system of public improvements, the City shall require any buildings 
or other development for which public facilities and public rights-of-way are not fully 
provided or improved to current City standards, to install said improvements. Except as 
otherwise provided or authorized, private improvements serving substantially the same 
function as equivalent public facilities shall generally be provided and improved to the 
standards established by this Code and other City regulations. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: As agreed to within the approved development agreement, the applicant 
is required to provide the right-of-way and ultimately construct the extension of SW Century 
Blvd. from its eastern terminus at the roundabout in SW Langer Farms Parkway to the western 
terminus at the west property line. The applicant is also required to dedicate the vegetated 
corridor and Natural Resource in Tract A, and to dedicate and construct the regional storm 
water facility located in Tract B. As proposed, the applicant is proposing to dedicate all three of 
these areas, and to defer construction of the improvements until such time that they are 
constructing improvements with future development. 

16.104.020 Future Improvements 

The location of future public improvements including water, sanitary sewer, storm 
water, streets, bicycle and pedestrian paths, and other public facilities and rights-of
way, as depicted in the Transportation System Plan (TSP) Chapters 4, 5, 6 and 7 of the 
Community Development Plan are intended as general locations only. The precise 
alignment and location of a public improvement shall be established during the land use 
process and shall be depicted on public improvement plans submitted and approved 
pursuant to § 16.108 and other applicable sections of this Code. (Ord. No. 2011-011, § 1, 
10-4-2011) 

16.104.030 Improvement Procedures 

Except as otherwise provided, all public improvements shall conform to City standards 
and specifications found in the Engineering Design Manual and installed in accordance 
with Chapter 16.108. The Council may establish additional specifications to supplement 
the standards of this Code and other applicable ordinances. Except for public projects 
constructed consistent with an existing facility plan, a public improvements shall not be 
undertaken until land use approval has been granted, a public improvement plan review 
fee has been paid, all improvement plans have been approved by the City, and an 
improvement permit has been issued. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The City of Sherwood completed the extension of SW Langer Farms 
Parkway in 2012 funded primarily by Washington County Major Streets Transportation 
Improvement Program (MSTIP). As part of that construction, sewer, water, and access from 
SW Langer Farms Parkway were stubbed to the property. In accordance with the approved 
development agreement for the PUD, the right-of-way for the future extension of SW Century 

Page 13 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 763



Boulevard will be dedicated to the City with this application. When it is constructed, utilities will 
be extended through the site to accommodate future development on this site, and the 
adjacent properties. The specific locations of where and how the utilities will be provided onto 
the property will be evaluated and approved at such time that proposals for actual development 
of the lots are submitted and reviewed. 

FINDING: The applicant has either proposed, or has been conditioned through prior approvals 
to provide needed public infrastructure with proposed development of the site. Adequate water, 
sewer and access are available to the property. Stormwater for all future development on site 
will be captured and treated in a new regional stormwater facility that the applicant will 
construct as part of any future development proposal for the site. The applicant will also be 
responsible for future construction of SW Century Blvd to City standards under the 
requirements of the approved Developers Agreement. This criterion is satisfied. 

16.1 06 Transportation Facilities 

16.106.020 Required Improvements 

A. Generally 

Except as otheiWise provided, all developments containing or abutting an existing or 
proposed street, that is either unimproved or substandard in right-of-way width or 
improvement, shall dedicate the necessary right-of-way prior to the issuance of building 
permits and/or complete acceptable improvements prior to issuance of occupancy 
permits. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no physical improvements being proposed with the subdivision. 
The proposed subdivision is adjacent to two existing streets, SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, and 
SW Langer Farms Parkway. The extension of a third public street, SW Century Blvd is 
required with future development as a condition of the approved development agreement that 
is binding upon the PUD. The right-of-way for that street will be dedicated with the subdivision. 

FINDING: Since SW Langer Farms Parkway was only recently constructed, it is found to be 
constructed to standard. The developer will dedicate the right-of-way necessary for the future 
extension of SW Century Blvd. Improvements to the overall system may be warranted with 
future development. The development agreement requires the property owner to provide an 
individual traffic study for each development application. The City Engineer has determined that 
no improvements to the adjacent City streets are warranted by this proposal. 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road is a County facility and therefore subject to restrictions imposed by 
county regulations. The county recognizes that the applicant is not proposing any access to 
SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, but has requested the following conditions to ensure that the 
County's access-spacing standards, and the Transportation Planning Rule as it applies, 
through the county's regulations, to developments that front County rights-of- way are enforced. 

It should be noted that the first condition would potentially restrict access to an existing 
driveway used to access a storm water quality facility in the northeast comer of the site. For 
this reason, the condition that the county has requested be imposed has been modified by City 
staff in a manner that allows the applicant to discuss the issue with County staff. 

Conditions: 

Page 14 of 33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 764



1. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall dedicate the necessary right-of-way 
needed to construct SW Century Drive. 

2. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall establish the public right-of-way and 8' 
public utility easement for and adjacent to SW Century Drive on the face of the plat. 

3. Prior to final plat approval, the following shall be represented on the plat and recorded 
with Washington County: 
a. Dedication of additional right-of-way to provide 49 feet from centerline of SW 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 
b. Dedication of additional right-of-way to provide adequate corner radius at the 

intersection of SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 
c. Provision of a non-access reservation along SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road frontage, 

except at the existing access point(s) approved in conjunction with this land use 
application. 

16.106.030 Location 

A. Generally 

The location, width and grade of streets shall be considered in their relation to existing 
and planned streets, topographical conditions, and proposed land uses. The proposed 
street system shall provide adequate, convenient and safe traffic and pedestrian 
circulation, and intersection angles, grades, tangents, and curves shall be adequate for 
expected traffic volumes. Street alignments shall be consistent with solar access 
requirements as per Chapter 16.156, and topographical considerations. 

B. Street Connectivity and Future Street Systems 

1. Future Street Systems. The arrangement of public streets shall provide for the 
continuation and establishment of future street systems as shown on the Local Street 
Connectivity Map contained in the adopted Transportation System Plan (Figure 8-8). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: Figure 8-8 of the Sherwood Transportation System Plan (TSP) illustrates 
the future extension of Century Blvd. The approved Developer's Agreement associated with 
the original PUD calls for the dedication and ultimate construction of Century Blvd. The 
applicant has proposed to dedicate the right-of-way for Century Drive, and defer final 
construction plans, financial assurance, permits and construction of the street until such time 
that specific development proposals are provided for the property. The applicant has provided 
a preliminary plan and profile, and has demonstrated on Sheet 6, that it is feasible for the 
construction to occur within the right of way area given that the end points for SW Century 
Drive are already established by prior construction. 

FINDING: The City has evaluated the proposal and agrees that the actual construction of the 
street can be deferred until such time that physical development of the property occurs given 
that the right-of-way area is already established, and is agreeable to the applicant's dedication 
of the right-of-way on the face of the plat. 

2. Connectivity Map Required. New residential, commercial, and mixed use 
development involving the construction of new streets shall be submitted with a 
site plan that implements, responds to and expands on the Local Street 

Page 15 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 765



Connectivity map contained in the TSP. 
a. A project is deemed to be consistent with the Local Street Connectivity map 

when it provides a street connection in the general vicinity of the 
connection(s) shown on the map, or where such connection is not 
practicable due to topography or other physical constraints; it shall provide 
an alternate connection approved by the decision-maker. 

b. Where a developer does not control all of the land that is necessary to 
complete a planned street connection, the development shall provide for as 
much of the designated connection as practicable and not prevent the street 
from continuing in the future. 

c. Where a development is disproportionately impacted by a required street 
connection, or it provides more than its proportionate share of street 
improvements along property line (i.e., by building more than 3/4 width 
street), the developer shall be entitled to System Development charge 
credits, as determined by the City Engineer. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The applicant is only proposing to subdivide the property at this point 
in time. As mentioned previously in this decision, the applicant is proposing to dedicate the 
right-of-way for SW Century Boulevard. The applicant has provided a Conceptual 
Circulation Plan that generally demonstrates compliance with the Local Street Connectivity 
Map in the Sherwood TSP. It will be incumbent upon future development proposals to 
demonstrate compliance with this section as it applies to future development of proposed 
lot 4, because the TSP shows a north-south local connection. 

FINDING: As proposed, the subdivision would not preclude the owner's ability to provide a 
connection consistent with the TSP local connectivity map; however, the applicant is not 
requesting approval of any development within the area of the site that calls for the 
connection discussed above. It is feasible for future development on the property to satisfy 
this condition. 

3. Block Length. For new streets except arterials, block length shall not exceed 530 
feet. The length of blocks adjacent to arterials shall not exceed 1 ,800 feet. 

4. Where streets must cross water features identified in Title 3 of the Urban Growth 
Management Functional Plan (UGMFP), provide crossings at an average spacing 
of 800 to 1,200 feet, unless habitat quality or length of crossing prevents a full 
street connection. 

5. Where full street connections over water features identified in Title 3 of the 
UGMFP cannot be constructed in centers, main streets and station communities 
(including direct connections from adjacent neighborhoods), or spacing of full 
street crossings exceeds 1,200 feet, provide bicycle and pedestrian crossings at 
an average spacing of 530 feet, unless exceptional habitat quality or length of 
crossing prevents a connection. 

6. Pedestrian and Bicycle Connectivity. Paved bike and pedestrian accessways 
consistent with cross section standards in Figure 8-6 of the TSP shall be 
provided on public easements or right- of-way when full street connections are 
not possible, with spacing between connections of no more than 300 feet. Multi
use paths shall be built according to the Pedestrian and Bike Master Plans in the 
adopted TSP. 

7. Exceptions. Streets, bike, and pedestrian connections need not be constructed 
when any of the following conditions exists: 
a. Physical or topographic conditions make a street or accessway connection 

Page 16 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 766



impracticable. Such conditions include but are not limited to freeways, 
railroads, steep slopes, wetlands or other bodies of water where a 
connection could not reasonably be provided. 

b. Buildings or other existing development on adjacent lands physically 
preclude a connection now or in the future considering the potential for 
redevelopment; or 

c. Where streets or accessways would violate provisions of leases, easements, 
covenants, restrictions or other agreements existing as of May 1, 1995, which 
preclude a required street or accessway connection. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: This proposal does not include the creation of any new streets not 
already accounted for by the TSP. There is no identified bicycle or pedestrian connections in 
the TSP that are not already provided for within the existing right-of-way. It should be noted 
that the site is limited by the presence of the wetlands in Tract A, a major arterial to the north, 
a collector to the west, and existing industrial development directly south of the site. 

FINDING: Existing site conditions and pre-existing development on adjacent properties may 
deter full street connectivity on a portion of the site. A conceptual circulation plan is provided 
with the preliminary plans to illustrate how the site can conceptually meet the standards, 
however, the site is zoned for light industrial and commercial uses, so it is unlikely that a full 
street connection would be necessary beyond what is called for in the TSP. It will be 
incumbent upon the property owner to demonstrate that the existing conditions preclude full 
connectivity, and if so, how pedestrian or bicycle connections can be made for future 
proposals for development. These criteria are not applicable to the proposed subdivision. 

16.106.040 Design 

Standard cross sections showing street design and pavement dimensions are 
located in the City of Sherwood Transportation System Plan, and City of Sherwood's 
Engineering Design Manual. 

16.106.040.C. Future Extension 
Where necessary to access or permit future subdivision or development of adjoining 
land, streets shall extend to the boundary of the proposed development and provide 
the required roadway width. Dead-end streets less than 1 00' in length shall comply 
with the Engineering Design Manual. 

A durable sign shall be installed at the applicant's expense. The sign shall notify the 
public of the intent to construct future streets. The sign shall read as follows: "This 
road will be extended with future development. For more information contact the City 
of Sherwood at 503-625-4202." 

STAFF ANALYSIS: As discussed previously in this report, the applicant has proposed to 
dedicate right-of-way that would allow for the construction of a public street that extends from 
the east terminus of SW Century Drive to the west terminus. Once constructed, this Century 
Blvd. will be complete. 

FINDING: Because the applicant has proposed to dedicate the right-of-way with this 
application, and the signs called for in the standard above are already in place, this standard is 
satisfied. 

Page 17 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 767



16.106.040 .J. Transit Facilities 
Development along an existing or proposed transit route, as illustrated in Figure 
7-2 in the TSP, is required to provide areas and facilities for bus turnouts, 
shelters, and other transit-related facilities to Tri-Met specifications. Transit 
facilities shall also meet the following requirements: 
1. Locate buildings within 20 feet of or provide a pedestrian plaza at major 

transit stops. 
2. Provide reasonably direct pedestrian connections between the transit stop 

and building entrances on the site. 
3. Provide a transit passenger landing pad accessible to disabled persons (if 

not already existing to transit agency standards). 
4. Provide an easement or dedication for a passenger shelter and 

underground utility connection from the new development to the transit 
amenity if requested by the public transit provider. 

5. Provide lighting at a transit stop (if not already existing to transit agency 
standards). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no existing or proposed transit routes adjacent to or near this 
site. Tri-Met has indicated that due to costs, some of the existing Sherwood transit service will 
be cut. 

FINDING: Transit facilities are not necessary at this site at this time, as there would be no 
service available. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision. 

16.110 - Sanitary Sewers 

16.110.01 0 Required Improvements 
Sanitary sewers shall be installed to serve all new developments and shall connect 
to existing sanitary sewer mains. Sanitary Sewers shall be constructed, located, 
sized and installed at standards consistent 16.110. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There is sanitary sewer service in the adjacent street and available to 
the subdivision. It will be incumbent upon future development proposals to illustrate how 
service is provided for each new development proposal. 

FINDING: no public sanitary easements are required with the subdivision plat as the 
service is already stubbed to the lots. When it becomes necessary to provide service to an 
individual lot or convey existing flows from upstream development the applicant will be 
required to provide easements to accommodate the construction and maintenance of the 
line. This criterion is satisfied. 

16.112- Water Supply 

16.112.010 Required Improvements 
Water lines and fire hydrants conforming to City and Fire District standards shall be 
installed to serve all building sites in a proposed development in compliance with 
16.112. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There is water service in the adjacent street and available to the 
subdivision. It will be incumbent upon future development proposals to illustrate how 
service is provided for each new development proposal. 

Page 18 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 768



FINDING: Because the public water is stubbed to the property line for future development, 
there is no need to extend the water or provide easements with the subdivision plat. When 
it becomes necessary to provide service to an individual lot the applicant will be required to 
provide easements to accommodate the construction and maintenance of the line.This 
criterion is satisfied. 

16.114 - Storm Water 

16.114.010 Required Improvements 
Storm water facilities, including appropriate source control and conveyance 
facilities, shall be installed in new developments and shall connect to the existing 
downstream drainage system consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the 
requirements of the Clean Water Services water quality regulations and section 
16.114. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The Preliminary Subdivision Plat map shows a 15' wide public storm 
drainage easement over Tract 'A' and Lot 4 for the benefit of existing and future upstream 
development. The Preliminary Subdivision Plat also shows a 15' wide public storm 
drainage easement over Lot 1 and a small portion of Lot 2, but has a note 'to be dedicated 
with development of Lots 1-3'. City infrastructure mapping indicates this easement will 
convey flows from existing upstream development and public rights-of-way, therefore both 
portions of the 15' public storm easement will be required with the subdivision plat. If public 
storm easements are required and retaining walls or slopes are necessary to support and 
the storm infrastructure, then separate wall or slope easements shall be established with 
the public storm easements, unless approved otherwise by the City Engineer. 

Construction of a regional storm water treatment facility is required under the development 
agreement, and proposed by the applicant during the development of Phase 6, 7 or 8. 
Construction can be deferred until future site development. The Preliminary Subdivision 
Plat shows a 'Regional Stormwater Facility' at the east corner of Lot 5 located in Tract '8', a 
'20' Wide Storm Drainage and Access Easement' over Lot 5, and '26' Wide Storm Drainage 
and Access Easement' over Lot 4. 

FINDING: Since construction of the regional facility will be required for any development 
upon Phase 6, 7 or 8, particularly to convey and treat upstream flows from and across Lot 
4, Lot 1, Lot 2 and existing public rights-of-way, Tract '8', the 20' and 26' wide storm and 
access easements should be included with the subdivision plat. 

Individual Storm Water Connection Permits (CWS) will be required with subsequent 
development, not with the subdivision plat. 

16.116 Fire Protection 

16.116.020 Standards 

A. Capacity 

All fire protection facilities shall be approved by and meet the specifications of the 
Fire District, and shall be sized, constructed, located, and installed consistent with 
this Code, Chapter 7 of the Community Development Plan, and other applicable City 

Page 19 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 769



standards, in order to adequately protect life and property in the proposed 
development. 

B. Fire Flow 

Standards published by the Insurance Services Office, entitled "Guide for 
Determination of Required Fire Flows" shall determine the capacity of facilities 
required to furnish an adequate fire flow. Fire protection facilities shall be adequate 
to convey quantities of water, as determined by ISO standards, to any outlet in the 
system, at no less than twenty (20) pounds per square inch residual pressure. Water 
supply for fire protection purposes shall be restricted to that available from the City 
water system. The location of hydrants shall be taken into account in determining 
whether an adequate water supply exists. 

C. Access to Facilities 

Whenever any hydrant or other appurtenance for use by the Fire District is required 
by this Chapter, adequate ingress and egress shall be provided. Access shall be in 
the form of an improved, permanently maintained roadway or open paved area, or 
any combination thereof, designed, constructed, and at all times maintained, to be 
clear and unobstructed. Widths, height clearances, ingress and egress shall be 
adequate for District firefighting equipment. The Fire District, may further prohibit 
vehicular parking along private accessways in order to keep them clear and 
unobstructed, and cause notice to that effect to be posted. 

D. Hydrants 

Hydrants located along private, accessways shall either have curbs painted yellow 
or otherwise marked prohibiting parking for a distance of at least fifteen (15) feet in 
either direction, or where curbs do not exist, markings shall be painted on the 
pavement, or signs erected, or both, given notice that parking is prohibited for at 
least fifteen (15) feet in either direction. 
(Ord. No. 2010-015, § 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 91-922, § 3; Ord. 86-851, § 3) 

STAFF ANALYSIS: As indicated earlier in this decision, water service and hydrants were 
provided with the construction of SW Langer Farms Parkway. The land is not proposed to 
be developed at this time, and there are no structures on the existing site at this time. 

FINDING: The fire district comments do not indicate that any additional services need to be 
provided with this proposal. Their comments are incorporated into this decision for 
reference. It will be incumbent upon applicants to demonstrate compliance with this section 
with future development proposals. These criteria are satisfied. 

16.118.- Public and Private Utilities 

16.118.020 Standards 
A. Installation of utilities shall be provided in public utility easements and shall be 

sized, constructed, located and installed consistent with this Code, Chapter 7 of the 
Community Development Code, and applicable utility company and City standards. 

Page 20 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 770



B. Public utility easements shall be a mm1mum of eight feet in width unless a 
reduced width is specifically exempted by the City Engineer. 

C. Where necessary, in the judgment of the City Manager or his designee, to provide 
for orderly development of adjacent properties, public and franchise utilities shall 
be extended through the site to the edge of adjacent property (ies). 

D. Franchise utility conduits shall be installed per the utility design and 
specification standards of the utility agency. 

E. Public Telecommunication conduits and appurtenances shall be installed per the 
City of Sherwood telecommunication design standards. 

F. Exceptions: Installation shall not be required if the development does not require 
any other street improvements. In those instances, the developer shall pay a fee 
in lieu that will finance installation when street or utility improvements in that 
location occur. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There is no physical development proposed with this subdivision. 
There are utilities around the entire site that are readily available for future development of 
the site. Public utility easements will be provided where required to ensure that there is 
adequate room for franchise utilities. 

FINDING: No new utility extensions are necessary with this request. The applicant is 
showing an 8-foot public utility easement around the lots as required. Utilities are available 
to the property and will be extended as future development is proposed on the site. 

16.118.030 Underground Facilities 
Except as otherwise provided, all utility facilities, including but not limited to, electric 
power, telephone, natural gas, lighting, cable television, and telecommunication 
cable, shall be placed underground, unless specifically authorized for above ground 
installation, because the points of connection to existing utilities make underground 
installation impractical, or for other reasons deemed acceptable by the City. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: As indicated previously, there is no need for new utilities with this 
subdivision proposal. All existing and adjacent utilities were placed underground when the 
SW Langer Farms Parkway was constructed in 2011. There are above ground PGE or BPA 
powerlines along SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, that cannot be undergrounded because of 
the load they carry. If the opportunity arises in the future to underground the facilities, it is 
likely that those providers will do it themselves. 

FINDING: There are overhead utilities on the property, but they carry an electrical load that 
is not conducive to undergrounding. Future proposals for new development will be required 
to provide underground facilities when extending utilities where applicable. This criterion is 
satisfied. 

16.120 Subdivisions 

16.120.040 Approval Criteria: Preliminary Plat 

No preliminary plat shall be approved unless: 
A. Streets and roads conform to plats approved for adjoining properties as to 

widths, alignments, grades, and other standards, unless the City determines that 
the public interest is served by modifying streets or road patterns. 

Page 21 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 771



STAFF ANALYSIS: SW Century Drive is conditioned to be constructed through the PUD 
and the approved Development Agreement. As proposed, the right-of-way for SW Century 
Drive will be dedicated to the public for future construction. The design and construction of 
that right-of-way will be consistent with this section to the extent that the provided right- of
way will not preclude the construction of that future street from complying with this 
standard. 

FINDING: Because the right-of-way for SW Century Drive is being dedicated with the plat, 
SW Langer Farms was recently constructed, and the County has agreed to allow the 
applicant to either construct improvements or pay a fee in lieu of improvements to Tualatin
Sherwood Road, this criterion can feasibly be satisfied as provided the applicant meets the 
conditions of this decision. 

B. Streets and roads held for private use are clearly indicated on the plat and all 

reservations or restrictions relating to such private roads and streets are set forth 

thereon. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: As proposed or conditioned, all existing easements are indicated on 
the preliminary plat as required, and will be checked and verified again prior to the City's 
approval of the final plat. 

FINDING: The plat illustrates all of the existing reservations or restrictions for access to the 
extent that they are existing. New ones may be established with future development, but for 
now, this criterion is satisfied. 

C. The plat complies with applicable zoning district standards and design standards 

in Division II, and all provisions of Divisions IV, VI, VIII and IX. The subdivision 

complies with Chapter 16.128 (Land Division Design Standards). 

STAFF ANALYSIS: Compliance with these standards have been discussed throughout this 
decision. 

FINDING: As conditioned, the proposed subdivision can comply with the standards 
including Chapter 16.128, the Land Division Design Standards. It should be noted that this 
proposal does not include an application for physical development, so some of the 
standards listed above are not applicable to this proposal, and will need to be satisfied with 
future proposals for development on the individual lots. 

D. Adequate water, sanitary sewer, and other public facilities exist to support the use 
of land proposed in the plat. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: Compliance with these standards have been discussed throughout this 
decision. 

FINDING: As discussed earlier in this decision, all public utilities and facilities are available 
to the site. This criterion is satisfied by the proposed subdivision. 

E. Development of additional, contiguous property under the same ownership can be 
accomplished in accordance with this Code. 

Page 22 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 772



STAFF ANALYSIS: Approval of this subdivision as proposed, does not preclude any of the 
adjacent properties from being developed. 

FINDING: There are no contiguous properties adjacent to the subject site that are under 
the same ownership. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision. 

F. Adjoining land can either be developed independently or is provided access that 
will allow development in accordance with this Code. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: Approval of this subdivision as proposed, does not preclude any of the 
adjacent properties from being developed. 

FINDING: The proposed subdivision does not affect adjoining land from being provided 
with access. There are no landlocked parcels of land adjacent to this site. Future 
construction of SW Century Drive will improve access to the adjacent properties, but they 
currently have access to a public street. This criterion is satisfied. 

G. Tree and woodland inventories have been submitted and approved as per Section 
16.142.060. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: A tree and woodland inventory has not been submitted for this 
proposal because there is no physical development proposed. It will be incumbent upon 
the property owner to demonstrate compliance with these standards with future proposals 
for development on the property. 

FINDING: Because there is no physical development associated with this request, this 
criterion is not applicable. 

H. The plat clearly shows the proposed lot numbers, setbacks, dedications and 
easements. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed preliminary plat illustrates the proposed lot numbers, 
dedications and easements as required. 

FINDING: Because there is no physical development associated with the plat, setbacks are 
not required to be shown, and will be verified in future proposals for development. To the 
extent that this criteria applies to the proposal, it is satisfied. Because of the size of the 
lots, it is feasible for the setbacks to be met with future development. 

I. A minimum of five percent (5%) open space has been provided per § 16.44.8.8 
(Town home- Standards) or §16.142.020 (Parks, Open Spaces and Trees-Single
Family Residential Subdivisions), if applicable. (Ord. No. 2011-011, § 1, 10-4-2011) 

STAFF ANALYSIS: Because this property is associated with an existing Planned Unit 
Development, and is not associated with residential development, this standard is not 
applicable to the proposed development. 

FINDING: This standard is not applicable to the proposed development. 

16.128 - Land Division Design Standards 
16.128.010 - Blocks 

SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 
Page 23 of33 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 773



A. Connectivity 
1. Block Size 
The length, width, and shape of blocks shall be designed to provide adequate 
building sites for the uses proposed, and for convenient access, circulation, traffic 
control and safety. 
2. Block Length 
Block length standards shall be in accordance with Section_16.108.040. Generally, 
blocks shall not exceed five-hundred thirty (530) feet in length, except blocks 
adjacent to principal arterial, which shall not exceed one thousand eight hundred 
(1,800) feet. The extension of streets and the formation of blocks shall conform to the 
Local Street Network map contained in the Transportation System Plan. 

3. Pedestrian and Bicycle Connectivity. Paved bike and pedestrian accessways 

shall be provided on public easements or right-of-way consistent with Figure 
7.401. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: This proposal does not include the creation of any new streets not already 
accounted for by the TSP. There is no identified bicycle or pedestrian connections in the TSP 
that are not already provided for within the existing right-of-way. It should be noted that the site 
is iimited by the presence of the wetlands in Tract A, a major arterial to the north, a collector to 
the west, and existing industrial development directly south of the site. 

FINDING: Existing site conditions and pre-existing development on adjacent properties may 
deter full street connectivity on a portion of the site. A conceptual circulation plan is provided 
with the preliminary plans to illustrate how the site can conceptually meet the standards, 
however, the site is zoned for light industrial and commercial uses, so it is unlikely that a full 
street connection would be necessary beyond what is called for in the TSP. It will be incumbent 
upon the property owner to demonstrate that the existing conditions preclude full connectivity, 
and if so, how pedestrian or bicycle connections can be made for future proposals for 
development. These criteria are not applicable to the proposed subdivision. 

B. Utilities Easements for sewers, drainage, water mains, electric lines, or other 
utilities shall be dedicated or provided for by deed. Easements shall be a minimum of 
ten (1 0) feet in width and centered on rear or side lot lines; except for tie-back 
easements, which shall be six (6) feet wide by twenty (20) feet long on side lot lines at 
the change of direction. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision shows the location of all existing utility 
easements associated with the site. An 8-foot public utility easement was dedicated along 
the front and side lot lines with document No. 2011-030292, and is illustrated on the plat. 

FINDING: The Engineering division has indicated that the easement is of adequate width to 
accommodate utilities. As new proposals for development come in on the lots, it will be 
incumbent upon the applicant to ensure that adequate easements are provided to allow 
access and maintenance to future public utilities. This criterion is satisfied by the proposed 
subdivision. 

C. Drainages 
Where a subdivision is traversed by a watercourse, drainage way, channel or street, 
drainage easements or rights-of-way shall be provided conforming substantially to 

Page 24 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 774



the alignment and size of the drainage. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision is traversed by a drainage way; therefore, this 
criterion is applicable. As proposed, the subdivision includes two tracts. Tract A identifies the 
location of the drainage way and associated corridor, and Tract B identifies the location for a 
future regional stormwater treatment facility. 

FINDING: The applicant has proposed to dedicate the facilities as is conditioned in the 
Original PUD and associated Development Agreement. This criterion is satisfied by the 
proposal. 

16.128.020 - Pedestrian and Bicycle Ways 

Pedestrian or bicycle ways may be required to connect cui-de-sacs, divide through an 
unusually long or oddly shaped block, or to otherwise provide adequate circulation. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: There are no cui-de-sacs proposed with this subdivision, and as 
proposed, it is untimely to evaluate the circulation given that the sizes of the lots are so large. 
It will be incumbent upon future applications to demonstrate compliance with this standard. 

FINDING: As indicated previously in this decision, the site is not subject to this standard until 
such time that physical development is being proposed on the site. 

16.128.030 - Lots 

A. Size and Shape 

Lot size, width, shape, and orientation shall be appropriate for the location and 
topography of the subdivision or partition, and shall comply with applicable 
zoning district requirements, with the following exception: 

1. Lots in areas not served by public sewer or water supply shall conform to any 

special County Health Department standards. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: As previously discussed, the proposed lots meet or exceeds the 
applicable dimensional standards for lots within the Light Industrial zoning district. 

FINDING: The approved PUD did not place any additional lot restrictions on the property. 
This site is served by public sewer and water. This criterion is satisfied. 

B. Access 

All lots in a subdivision shall abut a public street, except as allowed for infill 
development under Chapter 16.68. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: Lots 1-4 directly abut one of the three adjacent public rights-of-way (SW 
Century Drive will be dedicated with this plat and constructed with future development). Lot 5 
has direct public access through a private 40-foot wide access and utility easement as 
allowed in Chapter 16.68. 

FINDING: Because the lots abut a public street, or are served by an easement to a public 
street, this criterion is satisfied. 

Page 25 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 775



D. Side Lot Lines Side lot lines shall, as far as practicable, run at right angles to 
the street upon which the lots face, except that on curved streets side lot lines 
shall be radial to the curve of the street. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: With the exception of Lots 4 and 5, the side lot lines of each lot run 
perpendicular to SW Langer Farms Parkway. Lots 4 and 5 are not able to be perpendicular 
because of the onsite drainage way. 

FINDING: To the extent that it is practical, the side lot lines run at right angles to SW 
Langer Farms Parkway. The proposal has satisfied this criterion. 

E. Grading 

Grading of building sites shall conform to the following standards, except when 
topography of physical conditions warrants special exceptions: 

1. Cut slopes shall not exceed one (1) and one-half (1 1/2) feet horizontally to 
one (1) foot vertically. 

2. Fill slopes shall not exceed two (2) feet horizontally to one (1) foot vertically. 

STAFF ANALYSIS: No on-site grading is proposed with this subdivision. 

FINDING: Because no grading is associated with the proposed subdivision, it will be 
incumbent upon future development proposals on the site to comply with this standard. It 
should be noted that the site is fairly flat, so it is very likely that the amount of future grading 
on this property will be minimal, and that it is entirely feasible for the standards listed above 
to be m~t given the topography. This criterion is not applicable to this proposal. 

Division VIII - Environmental Resources 

16.142- Parks and Open Space 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision is on land that is zoned Light Industrial (L-1) 
with a Planned Unit Development (PUD) overlay. The PUD required the provision of open 
space that has already occurred for those properties developed with residential uses. The 
vegetated corridor is being set aside in a tract to be dedicated to the public to meet a 
condition of the original PUD as it pertains to open space. The following criteria are the only 
provisions that are applicable in this Chapter to this request. 

16.142.030.A Visual Corridors 
A. Corridors Required 

New developments with frontage on Highway 99W, or arterial or collector streets 
designated on the Transportation Plan Map, attached as Appendix C, or in Section 
5 of the Community Development Plan Part 2, shall be required to establish a 
landscaped visual corridor according to the following standards: 

Category Width 
.-----------·.---------------------------

1. Highway 99W 25 feet 

2. Arterial 15 feet 

Page 26 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 776



3. Collector 10 feet 

In residential developments where fences are typically desired adjoining the above 
described major street the corridor may be placed in the road right-of-way between 
the property line and the sidewalk. (Ord. 2006-021) 

B. Landscape Materials 
The required visual corridor areas shall be planted as specified by the review 
authority to provide a continuous visual and/or acoustical buffer between major 
streets and developed uses. Except as provided for above, fences and walls shall 
not be substituted for landscaping within the visual corridor. Uniformly planted, 
drought resistant street trees and ground cover, as specified in Section 16.142.050, 
shall be planted in the corridor by the developer. The improvements shall be 
included in the subdivision compliance agreement. (Ord. 2006-021) 

C. Establishment and Maintenance 
Designated visual corridors shall be established as a portion of landscaping 
requirements pursuant to Chapter 16.92. To assure continuous maintenance of the 
visual corridors, the review authority may require that the development rights to 
the corridor areas be dedicated to the City or that restrictive covenants be 
recorded prior to the issuance of a building permit. (Ord. 2006-021) 

D. Required Yard 
Visual corridors may be established in required yards, except that where the 
required visual corridor width exceeds the required yard width, the visual corridor 
requirement shall take precedence. In no case shall buildings be sited or trees be 
removed from within the required visual corridor, with the exception of front 
porches on townhomes, as permitted in Section 16.44.010(E)(4)(c). (Ord. 2006-021) 

STAFF ANALYSIS: The proposed subdivision does not include any physical development 
that would mandate the need for a visual corridor. Future development of the lots will be 
required to comply with the visual corridor standards along it's frontage with SW Langer 
Farms Parkway, a collector, and SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road, an arterial. 

FINDING: Because the applicant is not proposing any physical development of the 
property at this time, and the City will have the opportunity to impose this requirement on 
future development proposals, this criterion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision . 

16.142.060. Street Trees 
A. Installation of Street Trees on New or Redeveloped Property. 

Trees are required to be planted to the following specifications along public 
streets abutting or within any new development or re-development. Planting of 
such trees shall be a condition of development approval. The City shall be subject 
to the same standards for any developments involving City-owned property, or 
when constructing or reconstructing City streets. After installing street trees, the 
property owner shall be responsible for maintaining the street trees on the 
owner's property or within the right-of-way adjacent to the owner's property. 
1. Location: Trees shall be planted within the planter strip along a newly 

created or improved streets. In the event that a planter strip is not required 
or available, the trees shall be planted on private property within the front 
yard setback area or within public street right-of-way between front 
property lines and street curb lines or as required by the City. 

2. Size: Trees shall have a minimum trunk diameter of two (2) inches DBH and 
minimum height of six (6) feet. Diameter at breast height (DBH) shall be 

Page 27 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 777



measured as defined by the International Society of Arboriculture. 
3. Types: Developments shall include a variety of street trees. The trees 

planted shall be chosen from those listed in 16.142.080 of this Code. 
4. Required Street Trees and Spacing: 

a. The minimum spacing is based on the maximum canopy spread 
identified in the recommended streettree list in section 16.142.080 
with the intent of providing a continuous canopy without openings 
between the trees. For example, if a tree has a canopy of forty (40) 
feet, the spacing between trees is forty (40) feet. If the tree is not on 
the list, the mature canopy width must be provided to the planning 
department by a certified arborist. 

b. All new developments shall provide adequate tree planting along all 
public streets. The number and spacing of trees shall be determined 
based on the type of tree and the spacing standards described in a. 
above and considering driveways, street light locations and utility 
connections. Unless exempt per c. below, trees shall not be spaced 
more than forty (40) feet apart in any development. 

c. A new development may exceed the forty-foot spacing requirement 
under section b. above, under the following circumstances: 
(1) Installing the tree would interfere with existing utility lines 

and no substitute tree is appropriate for the site; or 
(2) There is not adequate space in which to plant a street tree 

due to driveway or street light locations, vision clearance or 
utility connections, provided the driveways, street light or 
utilities could not be reasonably located elsewhere so as to 
accommodate adequate room for street trees; and 

(3) The street trees are spaced as close as possible given the 
site limitations in (1) and (2) above. 

(4) The location of street trees in an ODOT or Washington 
County right-of-way may require approval, respectively, by 
ODOT or Washington County and are subject to the relevant 
state or county standards. 

(5) For arterial and collector streets, the City may require planted 
medians in lieu of paved twelve-foot wide center turning 
lanes, planted with trees to the specifications of this 
subsection. 

FINDING: No new street trees are required for this proposal until such time that physical 
improvements of SW Century Blvd and improvements along SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road 
are constructed. The applicant has proposed to dedicate the rights-of-way and defer 
improvements until future development occurs. The County has requested that the 
applicant either make the improvements or pay a fee in-lieu of the improvements prior to 
final plat. This condition has been incorporated into this decision. Street trees were 
provided along the sites frontage with SW Langer Farms Parkway with that recent 
improvement. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision, but will be 
required with future development of any of the lots that require the construction or 
reconstruction of new public streets. 

16.142.060- Trees on Property Subject to Certain Land Use Applications 
All site developments subject to Section 16.92.020 shall be required to preserve trees 
or woodlands to the maximum extent feasible within the context of the proposed land 

Page 28 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 778



use plan and relative to other policies and standards of the City Comprehensive Plan, 
as determined by the City. Review and mitigation shall be consistent with 16.142.060 
A, 8, C and D. 

FINDING: This application is for a proposed subdivision, no physical improvements are 
proposed. This land has been farmed, and the majority of trees on site are located within Tract 
A. Future development proposals on the lots will be required to satisfy the requirements of 
this chapter. Because the property is zoned for commercial or light industrial uses, future 
development will be subject to site development review, and a more detailed analysis of how 
trees will be affected. This criterion is not applicable to the proposed subdivision. 

Chapter 16.144 Wetland, Habitat, and Natural Areas 

16.144.020 Standards 

A. The applicant shall identify and describe the significance and functional value of 
wetlands on the site and protect those wetlands from adverse effects of the 
development. A facility complies with this standard if it complies with the criteria of 
subsections A.1.a and A.1.b, below: 

1. The facility will not reduce the area of wetlands on the site, and development will 
be separated from such wetlands by an area determined by the Clean Water 
Services Design and Construction Standards R&O 00-7 or its replacement 
provided Section 16.140.090 does not require more than the requested setback. 

a. A natural condition such as topography, soil, vegetation or other feature 
isolates the area of development from the wetland. 

b. Impact mitigation measures will be designed, implemented, and monitored to 
provide effective protection against harm to the wetland from sedimentation, 
erosion, loss of surface or ground water supply, or physical trespass. 

c. A lesser setback complies with federal and state permits, or standards that will 
apply to state and federal permits, if required. 

2. If existing wetlands are proposed to be eliminated by the facility, the applicant 
shall demonstrate that the project can, and will develop or enhance an area of 
wetland on the site or in the same drainage basin that is at least equal to the area 
and functional value of wetlands eliminated. 

B. The applicant shall provide appropriate plans and text that identify and describe the 
significance and functional value of natural features on the site (if identified in the 
Community Development Plan, Part 2) and protect those features from impacts of the 
development or mitigate adverse effects that will occur. A facility complies with this 
standard if: 

1. The site does not contain an endangered or threatened plant or animal species or 
a critical habitat for such species identified by Federal or State government (and 
does not contain significant natural features identified in the Community 
Development Plan, Part 2, Natural Resources and Recreation Plan). 

Page 29 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 779



2. The facility will comply with applicable requirements of the zone. 

3. The applicant will excavate and store topsoil separate from subsurface soil, and 
shall replace the topsoil over disturbed areas of the site not covered by buildings 
or pavement or provide other appropriate medium for re-vegetation of those 
areas, such as yard debris compost. 

4. The applicant will retain significant vegetation in areas that will not be covered by 
buildings or pavement or disturbed by excavation for the facility; will replant 
areas disturbed by the development and not covered by buildings or pavement 
with native species vegetation unless other vegetation is needed to buffer the 
facility; will protect disturbed areas and adjoining habitat from potential erosion 
until replanted vegetation is established; and will provide a plan or plans 
identifying each area and its proposed use. 

5. Development associated with the facility will be set back from the edge of a 
significant natural area by an area determined by the Clean Water Services Design 
and Construction standards R&O 00-7 or its replacement, provided Section 
16.140.090A does not require more than the requested setback. Lack of adverse 
effect can be demonstrated by showing the same sort of evidence as in 
subsection A.1 above. 

C. When the Regionally Significant Fish and Wildlife Habitat map indicates there are 
resources on the site or within 50 feet of the site, the applicant shall provide plans that 
show the location of resources on the property. If resources are determined to be located 
on the property, the plans shall show the value of environmentally sensitive areas using 
the methodologies described in Sections 1 and 2 below. 

The Metro Regionally Significant Fish and Wildlife Habitat map shall be the basis for 
determining the location and value of environmentally sensitive habitat areas. In order to 
specify the exact locations on site, the following methodology shall be used to determine 
the appropriate boundaries and habitat values: 

FINDING: The applicant has identified the wetlands on site, and has provided staff with a 
CWS service Provider Letter that spells out all of the requirements for protection as required in 
the Tualatin River Basin approved HCA. According to the applicant, and as verified by the 
Service Provider Letter, the area has been delineated in accordance with the requirements of 
CWS R&O 00-7. Clean Water Services has provided comments in addition to the Service 
Provider Letter that have been incorporated into this report. The following Condition is 
warranted to ensure that the applicant continues to comply with the conditions of Service 
Provider Letter No. 12-000162. It will be incumbent upon future development proposals on 
proposed Lots 4 and 5 to ensure that their impacts to the protected resources in Tract A meet 
the requirements of CWS. 

CONDITION: Prior to any site work or final plat approval, the applicant shall provide the City 
with evidence that Clean Water Services has reviewed and approved the final plat, and met 
the applicable conditions imposed on the letter dated May 8, 2012 from Jackie Sue 
Humphreys at Clean Water Services. 

Page 30 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 780



,, 
RECOMMENDATION 

Based upon review of the applicant's submittal information, review of the code, agency 
comments and consideration of the applicant's revised submittal, staff finds that the proposed 
subdivision does not fully comply with the standards but can be conditioned to comply, 
approves the subdivision request subject to compliance with the following conditions of " 
approval. 

VI. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

A. General Conditions 
1. Compliance with the Conditions of Approval is the responsibility of the developer or its 

successor in interest. 

2. Development and construction on the site shall conform substantially to the preliminary 
plat development plans submitted by AKS Engineering and Forestry, dated April 11, 2012 
except as modified in the conditions below, (and shall conform specifically to final 
construction plans reviewed and approved by the City Engineer, the Building Official, 
Clean Water Services, Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue, Tualatin Valley Water District 
and Washington County). All plans shall comply with the applicable building, planning, 
engineering and fire protection codes of the City of Sherwood. 

3. The developer is responsible for all costs associated with any remaining public facility 
improvements and shall assure the construction of all public streets and utilities within 
and adjacent to the plat as required by these conditions of approval, to the plans, 
standards, and specifications of the City of Sherwood. The developer shall also provide to 
the City financial guarantees for construction of all public streets and utilities within and 
adjacent to the plat, as required by the engineering compliance agreement. 

4. This approval is valid for a period of two (2) years from the date of the decision 
notice. Extensions may be granted by the City as afforded by the Sherwood Zoning and 
Community Development Code. 

5. The continual operation of the property shall comply with the applicable requirements of 
the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code and Municipal Code. 

6. This approval does not negate the need to obtain permits, as appropriate from other 
local, state or federal agencies, even if not specifically required by this decision. 

B. Prior to approval of the public improvement plans: 

1. All public easement dedication documents must be submitted to the City for review, 
signed by the City and the applicant, and recorded by the applicant with the original or a 
certified copy of the recorded easements on file at the City prior to release of the public 
improvement plans. 

2. Submit the final plat for review to the Planning Department. 

C. Prior to Approval of the Final Plat: 

Page 31 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 781



1. The submittal by the applicant for final plat review and approval shall include but not be 
limited to the following: a final plat application; final plat review fee; narrative identifying 
how the required conditions of approval have or will be met; three copies of the final plat; 
and any other materials required to demonstrate compliance with the conditions of 
approval. In addition, the following specific conditions shall be met prior to approval of 
the final plat: 

2. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall dedicate the necessary right-of-way needed to 
construct SW Century Drive. 

3. Prior to final plat approval, the applicant shall establish the public right-of-way and 8' 
public utility easement for and adjacent to SW Century Drive. 

4. Prior to final plat approval, the following shall be represented on the plat and recorded 
with Washington County: 
a. Dedication of additional right-of-way to provide 49 feet from centerline of SW Tualatin

Sherwood Road. 
b. Dedication of additional right-of-way to provide adequate corner radius at the 

intersection of SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road. 
c. Provision of a non-access reservation along SW Tualatin-Sherwood Road frontage, 

except at the existing access point(s) approved in conjunction with this land use 
application. 

5. Prior to any site work or final plat approval, the applicant shall provide the City with 
evidence that Clean Water Services has reviewed and approved the final plat, and met 
the applicable conditions imposed on the letter dated May 8, 2012 from Jackie Sue 
Humphreys at Clean Water Services. 

6. Approval of the public improvement plans by the Engineering Department, and signature 
of a compliance agreement must be complete prior to release of the plat to the County for 
review. In addition, prior to final plat approval, either all on-site work must be complete or 
the improvements bonded or guaranteed with a cash deposit. 

7. The final plat shall show the following: 
a. The Community Development Director as the City's approving authority within the 

signature block of the final plat. 

b. A 15-foot wide public utility easement for any areas where a single public utility line is 
located outside a public right-of-way with an increase of five (5) feet for each 
additional utility line. 

c. Private access easements, utility easements and/or special use easements as 
required for the development of the site. A plat note shall reference an easement 
and maintenance agreement or similar document, to be recorded with the plat, for 
the joint maintenance of any common private utility lines, common driveway 
improvements, or other common amenity or perimeter fencing. The language of 
such plat note and associated document shall be reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Department. 

Page 32 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 782



VII. Exhibits 

A. Applicant's submittal with narrative and supporting documents dated 
B. Public testimony from R. James Claus dated May 11, 2012 
C. Letter from TVF&R dated May 9, 2012 
D. Letter from CWS dated May 8, 2012 
E. Engineering comments dated May 11, 2012 
F. Comments from Washington County DLUT dated May 15, 2012 

Page 33 of33 
SUB 12-02 Langer Farm Subdivision 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 783



STATE OF OREGON 

Washington County 

I, Brad Kilby, Senior Planner for the Planning Department, City of Sherwood, State of Oregon, in 

Washington County, do hereby certify that the Notice of Decision on Case File No. SUB 12-02 Langer 

Farms Subdivision was placed in a U.S. Postal receptacle on June 21, 2012. 

City of Sherwood 

Exhibit D12Exhibit D12

Packet Page 784



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 785



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 786



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 787



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 788



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 789



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 790



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 791



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 792



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 793



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 794



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 795



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 796



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 797



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 798



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 799



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 800



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 801



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 802



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 803



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 804



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 805



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 806



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 807



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 808



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 809



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 810



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 811



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 812



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 813



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 814



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 815



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 816



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 817



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 818



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 819



Sherwood Planning Commission Meeting

Date: \2_

t ¡¡eeting Packet

ø Approved Minutes

t a"quest to Speak Forms

Documents submitted at meeting

Date Approved: (t c* ¿\rat* ?3, 2 o \2_

?
Y-'L

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 820



In any City forum or meeting:
o lndividuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the staff, the applicant, or others who testifr. Complaints
about staff should be placed in writing and addressed to the City Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

a

a

Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional I minute Q & A follow-up.

The Chafu of a meeting may have the ability to modify meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis
when especially complicated issues arise, or when the body is involved in extraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair rnay also cut short
debate if, in their judgment, the best interests of the City would be served.

(l{ote: Written comments are encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mail, or at
the meeting- There is no limit to the length of written comment that may be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the eharacter of anyone will be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will furfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to comply with reasonable rules of conduct or who causes a distwbance may be asked or required to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

*fc***tÉ**tsrTcsr<**trfs**fç******trlr***{r*****tç**tçtç**rttr*tc*&*fç***lr?ttçrr**rttc****rc***tc*******

I høve reød ønd understood the Rules
t

o aæfl)'l-e6- A gend a rrem :
-Ì--

for Meetings ín the

0¿\r\ ejf

0ther
Please mark position/interest on the agenda item
Applicant:

Name:

Propon Opponent:

Address: S r
CitylStatelZipz

Email Address: G'^
I represent: Other

If want to speak to Commission about more than one

Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

()

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 821



In any Cify forum or meeting:
r lndividuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the staff, the applicant, or others who testiff. Complaints
about staff should be placed in writing and addressed to the City Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

o Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional 1 minute Q & A follow-up.

' The Chair of a meetingmay have the ability to modifu meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis
when especially complicated issues arise, or when the body is involved in extraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short. debæe if; in their judgment, the best interests of the City would be served"

[Note: V/ritten cornments are encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mail, or at
the meeting. There is no limit to the length of written comment thatmay be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone will be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to comply with reasonable rules of conduct or who causes a disfurbance may be asked oirequired to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

********* **frlcfç*tr*rr******** ** * lrtr * ****2t ***** *** ***** *** *** rrts tÉ ts*trtÉ * fr*tc** tr*rr ******

I høve reød anú understood the Rulesfor Meetíngs ín the cíty of sherwood.

Date: gfuLt"genda Item: S¿^t-,'n¿ \

Please markyour position/interest on the agenda item
Applicant:_ Proponent:,:(. Opponent:_

Name: IJ
Address: /c Su ß

Other

<-

Cityl$tatelZip: S Lw-r.rouÅ, Qû- a

Email Address: tL
^ 

Åun^r- ' Cct^

I represent: /(_Myself Other

If want to speak to Com¡nission about more than one

Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 822



In any Cify foram or meeting:
r Individuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the staff, the applicant, or others who testify. Complaints
about staff shouid be placed in writing and addressed ro the City Manager. If requeste<i by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the Citv
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

o Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional 1 minute Q & A follow-up.

I The Chair of a meeting may have the ability to modiff meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis
w.hen especially complicated issues arise, or w'hen the bod¡ is involved in extraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short
debate if, in their judgment, the best interests of the City would be served.

(lrlote: Written comments are encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mail, or at
the meeting. There is no limit to the length of written comment thatmay be submitted)

Fersons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone w-ill be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to comply with reasonable r';les of conduct or '¡'ho causes a disturbance ma)/ be asked oirequired to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

tr*Jr?t***trLtr*****l€**:?***tr*******lrtrtr**tr*tË**t<*:?tr*tr*rb*trt<**lrr<*t<tr*tÊ*:lt *Jr***trtr:'r*ìr*tÊ**t<

I have reød ønd understood the Rules
,-i

Date: u!7? Agenda ltem:

Please mark yor¡r
Applicant:_\//

for Meetings in the City of Sherwood.

i-I -'-- þ)

position/interest on the agenda item
Proponent:_ Opponent:_ Other

Name: L('

Address: lili' ì¡,J ".¡- ¡1 i ¿ 4 t'-,t1 ii {, /.- -l

CitylStatelZip:
?1': 

;-'j.-r..{ \r? J , ¿f- 'i I
Email Address: c: L. {

I represent: '/W""lt Other

If you want to speak to Commission about more than oneffiffi
Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 823



In any Cify forum or meetíng:
r Individuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the stafF, the applicant, or others who testift. Complaints
about staff should be placed in writing and addressed to the Cþ Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional I minute Q & A follow-up.

The Chair of a meeting may have the ability to modify meeting procedtres on a case-by-case basis
when especialiy complicated issues arise, or when the body is involved in extraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short
debate if, in their judgment, the best interests of the City would be served.

(Note: Written comments are encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mail, or at
the meeting. There is no limit to the length of written comment that may be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone will be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to cornply with reasonable rules of conduct or who causes a disturbance may be asked or required to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

*tç******rr*****tr***tÉ**rçts***lr*********tÉ**fs***frrç*tÉtr*trtrfr*tr*****.*lrrrt<*tstç**lcrÉ?È**tr****

I have reød and understaod the Rulesfor Meetings ín the Cíty of Sherwood.

a

a

v *e, þ[ ZQ I 2¿genda ltem :

Please mark your position/interest on
Applicant:- Proponent:X

the agenda item
Opponent:_ Other

Name:

Address: lToSâ, sW l,-øbbl" A,
CitylStatelZip: S ,lD

ñçilr ftE c)rnEmail Address: I

I represent: Myself $_Otn".
If you want to speak to Cornmission about more than one subjm
Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 824



In any Cify forum or meeting:
o Individuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the staff, the applicant, or others who testifr. Complaints
about staff should be placed in writing and addressed to the City Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional 1 minute Q & A follow-up.

The Chair of a meeting may have the ability to modiff meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis
when especially complicated issues arise, or when the body is invoived in extraordinary'dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short
debate if, in theirjudgment, the best interests of the City would be served.

(Niote: \furitten comments are encouraged, and may be subrniued prior to the meeting by mail, or at
the meeting. There is no limit to the length of written comment thatmay be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone will be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the rneeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to comply with reasonable rules of conduct or v¡ho causes a disturbaqce may be asked or required to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

a

o

*********f.L/r*lrfç*ts*tÉ*******t6**tr*lç****trtr*frtr***lr*trrk**tr*:ttç*tr*trtr*:Èrril***lràklr*tr***rrt'ç**

I have reød and understood the Rulesfor Meetings in the ciry of sherwood.

Date: Agenda ltem:

Please mark your position/interest on the agenda item
Applicant:_ Proponent: Opponent:_

Name:

Address:

CitylStúelZip:

Email

I represent: Other

If want to speak to Commission about more than one subj

Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 825



In any Cþ forum or meeting, {/* M,*,1 -. Individuals
staff, the-applicant, or otbers-whs testi$- complaints

about st¿ff should be placed in writing and addressed to the City Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional I minute Q & A follow-up.

The Chair of a meeting may have the ability to modify meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis

when especially complicated issues arise, or when the body is involved in extraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short
debate if, in their judgment, the best interests of the City would be served.

(Note: Written comments are encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mail, or at

the meeting. There is no limit to the length of written comment that may be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone will be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to cornply with reasonable rules of conduct or who causes a disturbance may be asked or required to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

trt rÉ:ltc*:T**fç*tÉ**tr***tr*tç*L*****tÉtçtrt€*rt**?'rtr**frr<*lçtc*trfÉit*fr?tts****fÉlç*?t*****fr******?ktÉlçt(ts

I høve reød ønd understood the Rulesfor Meetíngs in the Cíty of Sherwood.

Agenda ltem:

Please mark your position/interest on the item
Applicant:_ Proponent:_ Opponent:_ Other

Name:

a

a

Address:
/

CitylStatelZip

llvvttuv v -v/

Email Address:

I represent: Other

If want to speak to Commission about more than one subj

Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 826



In any Cify forura or meeting:
o Individuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the staff, the applicant, or others who testi$-. Complaints
about staff should be piaced in writing and addressed to the City Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional 1 minute Q & A follow-up.

The Chair of a meeting may have the ability to modify meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis
when especially complicated issues arise, or when the body is involved in sxtraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short
debate if, in their judgment, the best interests of the city would be served.

(lt{ote: w*ritten comments a.re encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mai1, or at
the meeting. There is no limit to the length of written comment thatmay be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone will be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fäils to cornply '¡¡ith reasonable rules of conduct or .¡¿ho causes a disturbance may be ask-ed oirequ-ired to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

/çlr* ¡?**tt ár* t<** *********fç¡l* *r< **Jrtrf.tçtr******:!** * ***lr ** *trtr lc*tr¡l ** t<rkt<tclr ***rb*t( *** *Jr***t<

a

a

I høve reød and understood the Ralesfor Meetings in the cíty of sherwood.

-i>
Date: ' ¡: 'í, Agenda ltem: ( 

^ 
.r,,?ft-t Y ,,)- -:t')

/-
Please mark your position/interest on the agenda item
Applicant:_ Proponent:_ Opponent:

\-

Other

Name:

Address

-\ t/,ø\

1tt 1, u) ( 5 ò,\t,.)', ! ),,,.,..,/) \ ;",

CitylStatelZip:
llt I
/ Ly,-1, ."1'X',Y,/

Email Address:

I represent: 0ther

If ,vou want to speak to Commission about more than oneffi
Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you,

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 827



In any City forum or meeting:
r lndividuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the staff, the applicant, or others who testiff. Complaints
about staff should be placed in writing and addressed to the City Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

a

o

Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional 1 minute Q A A follow-up

The Chair of a meeting may have the abilþ to modify meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis
when especially complicated issues arise, or when the body is involved in extraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short
debate i{ in their judgment, the best interests of the City would be served.

Qrlote: Written comments are encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mail, or at
the meeting. There is no limit to the lengfh of written comment that may be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Cgmmunity Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone will be required to stop immediately- Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to comply with reasonable rules of conduct or who causes a disturbanee may be asked or required to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

trtÊ**rk****trtr***frrrrbtr***+tÉ!lfc****trfr*¡!*¡l**tÉ*tçÍ.tç*frtrf<*tr*trlr***trr?lrfr*tr*tÊtr*tÊ*fr********fÉ**

I høve reød and understood the Rulesfor Meetings in the Cíty of Sherwood.

Date: Item: r,.' ¡ (.

e/

Please mark your position/interest on the agenda item
Applicant:_ Proponent:_ Opponent:_

Name: P. I tAC',
Other

Address:

I represent:

Email Address:

i/'

$-rvry*"r Other

lf you want to speak to Commission about more than oneHre
Please give this form to the Recording Secretary pr¡or to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 828



In any Cify forum or meeting:
o Individuals may not impugn the character of anyone else, including but not limited to members of

the community, the reviewing body, the staff, the applicant, or others who testifr. Complaints
about staff should be placed in writing and addressed to the City Manager. If requested by the
complainant, they may be included as part of the public record. Complaints about the City
Manager should be placed in writing and addressed to the Mayor. If requested by the complainant,
they may be included as part of the public record.

a

a

Comment time is 4 minutes with a Commission-optional I minute Q & A follow-up.

The Chair of a meeting may have the ability to modifr meeting procedures on a case-by-case basis
when especially complicated issues arise, or when the body is involved in extraordinary dialogue,
but only after receiving the advice and majority consent of the body. The Chair may also cut short
debate if, in their judgment, the best interests of the City would be served.

(Note: Written comments are encouraged, and may be submitted prior to the meeting by mail, or at
the meeting. There is no limit to the length of written comment that may be submitted)

Persons who violate these rules may be asked to stop their comments by any member of the body.
Community Comments beyond the 4-minute limit may not be included in the record of the meeting.
Persons who impugn the character of anyone will be required to stop immediately. Their comments will
not be included in the record of the meeting, and they will forfeit their remaining time. Any person who
fails to cornply with reasonable rules of conduct or who causes a disturbance may be asked or required to
leave and upon failure to do so becomes a trespasser.

:t tÉ:lr¡ktÉ ts:þ* lr **trrr * trrr?t trtr rs ?t trtr tr *ts tr tr * trtr fs* * ts *r! * *tr tr* * trtr trtr trtr ts tr* tr **t(tr trts **rr tr* **trtrts *tr* *tr * ts* tr

I have reød ønd understood the Rulesfor Meetíngs ín the Cíty of Sherwogd.

Date: tlUþUgenda rtem: KA - lrarye. fr,w S"r,l^/tn¡rv" fpl
Please mark vour
Applicant, K

position/interest on the agenda item
Proponent:_ Opponent:_ Other

Name:

Address: lwlrrw C"ip ['a, tllp Nt¡r) htr' Sl-t Te.'',Ih Flun

CitylStatelZip: ?otllnnl oß q+î,oq

Email Address:

I represent: Myself
-X-o,0""

If you want to speak to Commission about more than one subjI
Please give this form to the Recording Secretary prior to you addressing Planning
Commission. Thank you.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 829



SP rz-o3
Planning Commission Public Hearing
August 28, zotz (Continued from Bl:.4lzotz)

Sentinel Self Storage Annex

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 830



sro

d
F,.j

I
I

J¡
1

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 831



Sentinel Self Storage Proposal

Portion of the site is Lot 5 of the approved
Langer Farms Subdivision (on appeal)

Proposalto construct 43o Storage Units on
a pproxi mately 6.93 acres.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 832



-f-n Ëi]1ìL\_ I f Li í Í

I

ijli

rii
)),t

IJÊCETO
ME
. 6dgFE

| "*.*-'

!]¡rlwqrn
ffi|&@lffiww
?sffi¡6*Èwìç)
&@g@@tu1

q!r¡øúsitrky:
Þ**¡fFrøw'
l)i4tr*,)ç¡qil*4Ûnl

rB*ffigrurâq
@(@ws{
'&üú(¡æ!r&mtum
m1qÐffiM*@¡wl*m@imffirÌ

I
o
I
I

.nsæN6Ar4
ffiffiþtræe¡ol

æa@aagMtsJ!M

I

I

I

I
I

'. 
gffircMÞWÞXSüMdÞgffiû
¡IÞffitffioi*r rsññwfrtlssffitt
mffiffimM

¡ àúry ffi ryt&ít { ñrs.httsÍâ{[ú5rlwÞxrM¿ffi&Þ*@.
| æs$r{rBffiAsffi&nRm4âh

¡tffit6.¡wtffiffi{*.¡(ffiMS
n¡R,ûmff$.ffift

*dr'- & I

mff*EF1 @tffiot¡q
ffi@ÞÞ

f:rffi1

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 833



Staff Responses

ffi SeCOndafy Fife ACCCSS - recommended but not required

Ouestion of ownersh i p- issue is unctear

National Fish and Wildlife nocomment

ADA Access to the bathroom - require a condition

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 834



Staff Responses

¡ Fueling station regulations and licensing propane

and Diesel - No permit required from DEO unless underground tanksr TVFR will require a permit
r AKS Letter Diesel vs. Gasoline

TU fn AfOUnd Applicant has proposed add¡t¡onal signage

Permanent communicat¡on line Appticant is proposins a

la nd line

V¡d eO S U rve i I la n Ce - Applicant has proposed video surveittance

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 835



Staff Recommendation

E Approval with conditions
r May want to add a condition requiring that the

fueling be limited to patrons who have storage
units rented w¡thin the facility.

r Althoug h not necessa ry, beca use it is req u ired the
Commission could require an ADA bathroom.

r Enclosed RV wash required

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 836



SP tz-o4
Planning Commission Public Hearing (continued)
August 28, zotz

Res¡dences at Cannery Square

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 837



:"'.J*.

{ d.J

id,,*-.*,.*',

1....

,L",.,,J
v

ü,..J¡

tl

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 838



Conditions of Approval (Prior to Ëinal 5ìte Plan)

C.3 - Prior to final site plan a rova submit revised ans showingpp
la

p
ilthat the deve oper wr instal 6-foot ta ll fence, wa or everqreen

scree n a onq the east propertY ine of the east residentia build i ng,
and the west property rne the west residential build rn9.of

C.4 Obtain construction plan approva from the Enqineerinq
De a rtment for a ll ub rc rm rovem includin the on-siten
water qua itv facilitv if an a te rnative has not been aqreed upon at
time of fina l.site lan review. lf the a lica nt C¡t anî CWS reach
an acceptable aqreement to use the reqional water qua litv facility,
the a licant ma submrt revised lans showin how the äreas for
the on-site water will be otherwise landsca ed orua lit facili
utilized consistent with the a roved develo ment lans and the
enqrneennq comp rance aqree ment modified accord inq ly to
elrminate the on-site water ualit facili

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 839



Conditions of Approval (Prior to Builcling

Perm its)

that the d
C.3 - Prior to final site

eveloper will
p
rnstal
an a pp

la
rova I su bm it revised
6-foot ta I fence, wa or everqreen

lans showing

scr en al on he east property line of the east resident ia I buiiding,

p
I

t
and the west property line of the west residentia bui rng.d

C.4 - Obta in construction lan a roval from the En ineerin
De a rtment for a ll ubl tc tm rovements includin e on-sitet

ualitwate r facili if an a ternative has not been reed u on at
time o fina I ite an review. I f the a lica nt C¡ and CWS reach

a water qua litv facilitv,
the a i¡cant mã submit revised an
the on-site water ua li facili will be otherwise landsca ed or
uti I ized consistent with the a roved develo ment lans and the
enqineerinq compliance aqreement modifi ed accord inq lv to
eliminat the on-site water ua lit

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 840



Conditions of Approval (Prior to Final

Occu pa n cy)

E.6 - On-site or a re ional storm water treatment s stem that
com lies with Cit o Sherwood and CWS standards shall be either
in place, operational and any necessary connection fees paid ar rn
aqreement and assurances acceptable to 6oth the Citv oi
Sherwood and CWS shall be in a ce.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 841



Site Plan

.tT/ c9¡-f{/arA 5I
-e aas

E

I

¿.

¡

I

_T
Siv i¡ril!¿LlfììE Si

8*- -l

I:tr:

:r'S; .1Ë5rü9,\¡Ai ;tl r$
H:€ Sæf

!.]iBr$4^*\f@i
gÈru Ù4rã0

sær¡r â ffi

I

I

lx
l']
ls
lr

l-
I

I
I

I

i

I

¡
I

I

uI

B

,,åSI RiSiilËS;:.¿l Sri)C

LIiìMFÀÀÞlìi*)
È di4t û *t4o

ò

ù

1

I

4

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 842



Staff Recommendation

Approval with conditions as amended

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 843



Planning Commission Appeal Hearing
August 28, zot2

Langer Farms Subdivision
(SUB Lz-oz)

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 844



7 On June 2\ zorz, staff issued a decision to approve a preliminary
subdivision to divide + 55.09 acres into five individual lots, and two
tracts for future development consistent with the Sherwood
V¡llage Planned Unit Development, File No. PUD 95-1.

Appealed by Jim Claus on July 5, 2o!2.

The staff decision and associated attachments for SUB t2-oz
Exhibit r

The appeal materials provided to the City from Jim Claus Exhibit z

A letter from the applicant's attorney, Seth King, of Perkins Coie
Exhibit e

I

I

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 845



Flawed Original Notice of Decision containing conflicting information that staff cites

as scrivener's error.

I

Specifically, Mr. Claus claims that the following sentence found on
page 33 warrants reissuance of the NOD and resets the ap_peal
clotk. "This approval is valid for a period of one (z) years from the
date of the decision notice, per Section 16 .12o.o5o."

16.Lzo.oqo.B, "¡f the final plat is not approved within two (z)
years, the preliminary plat approval shall expire and a new plat

Staff maintains that this is a harmless scrivener's error and does
not constitute a material error in the decision.

must be submitted.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 846



T Improper Public Notice was given by staff. Staff has relied on INFILL standardsfor proposed Lot 5 to grant
waivers for the access without properly notifying the PUBLIC per Sherwood Zoning Code Chapter ú.68.o6o.

Section 16.68.o60 was not considered for approval of this development. Section 16.68.o6o
standards apply to residential developments on lots that qualify as infill. This lot does
not.
Mr. Claus contends that staff relied on section 16.68 (lnfill) to allow proposed lot 5 to
achieve the access standard that requires all lots in a subdivision to abut a public street.

The finding is correct in that all lots abut a public street, or are served by an easement to a
public street as allowed by the definition of a "Lot."

Section 16.ro.ozo defines a lot as, ')\ parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet the
minimum zoning requirements of this Code and with frontage on a public street, or
easement approved by the City..." (emphasis added).

The precedence for allowing such a provision has been set by prior subdivision approvals,
and since the Code allows for the City to determine that the frontage can be provided via
an easement approved by the City, the finding is still accurate.

I

Mr. Claus adds that the City cannot allow such a long access. He refers to the
Transportation System Plan (TSP), specifically pageTsP B-zz, stating that the access will be
a close-end street longer than zzo feet. The proposed access is a driveway and utility
easement, not a street.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 847



I

Violation of the PUD - a Major Çhange to the Final Development Plan dated Auqust of ry95. Staff is
requiring í change in the use of the lland and requirinq dedication of land in this-subdiiisío-;applííation for
pu'blic róadway ãnd right-of-*oy The land was'spec-rflcally proscri\ed from that use in the orii1inat Lanþer
PUD.The Langer PUD must be treated as having a Major Change andlhus go through the PllD approval
process noted in Sherwood Code Chapter t6.4o.

Utilizing this logic, the City would never be able to plan for future extensions of streets,
utilities, or other urban services necessary for development. Within the original PUD,
Century Drive was not going to be extended through the site.
. Subsequent to that approval, the TSP was modified in a manner that called for a future

collector in the location where the applicant has proposed to dedicate right-of-way for the
Century Drive.

' That dedication, and ultimately, the future construction of Century Drive was negotiated as
part of a Development Agreement with the City in zoro with the Langer Family. -

PUD approval is an overlay zone that is applied to a property
. the boundaries of the PUD are not changing,
. the applicant is not asking for any land use that would be inconsistent with the prior

approvals,

' and the prior approvals did not identify which land was devoted to a specific use.
. There is not an increase in density because it is not a residential development.

Therefore, this does not constitute a modification to the PUD.

I

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 848



Åssi ff n rït Ë nts *-F ffi.a"ï"mr

Staff's decision isflawed. Staff is treating the PUD as if it is outside of PUD constraintsfor part of the logic
used to grant approval to a 5--lot subdiviiion of the PUD. AIso, staff neglected to submii pe'rtineit
information to the record as part of this application which would have direct bearinq on the original staff
decision - which occurred oftr, stáff closi:d the comment period. As such t have incfuded to^r-of thot "
missing information es it is directly pertinentto this appeal. See also Exhibit 8, copyfrom the ry95 code
Section j.4o4o for appeals showing that parties may present old evidence or any additional evidence.

¡aÈ

r¡

ti!

The subdivision was not filed at the same time that the PUD was processed in 1995. Had
there been a subdivision requested at the time, the City would have requested that it be
reviewed concurrently.

According to the CityAttorney's office, ')\ PUD decision under :16.4o is a separate and
distinct decision from a subdivision decision under :.6.:..zo. See, for example, 16.4o.ozo.B.5
- "lf the PUD involves the subdivision of land ... " Apparently, this one did not when it was
approved in 1995 - it was a straight PUD that did not include a subdivision. Also, as you
point out, that same code section goes on to say that when the PUD also involves a
subdivision, the two decisions shall be processed concurrently. This affirms the
interpretation that they are separate decisions, albeit when they are proposed
concurrently, they need to be processed concurrently."

According to r6.rzo.o3o.1.a, "A subdivision application for 4-:.o lots will follow a Type ll
process." Subdivisions are processed in accordance with the administrative provisions
spelled out in Section :.6.72.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 849



Asslgnments of Error

Violation of Sherwood code Section ú.4o,o+o(A)(z), Failure to
Complete.The Planning Commission must meet to decide if the PUD
is still in the public's interest.

Section 16 .4o.o4o(AXz) states, "When substantial construction or
development of a PUD, or any approved phase of a PUD, has not
taken place within one (r) yearfrom the date of approval of a Final
Development Plan, the Commission shall determine whether or
notthe PUD's continuation, in whole or in part, is in the public
interest."

For all intents and purposes, this PUD has been under construction
in one form or another since 1995.

The CityCouncil made the decision that it was in the public's
interest when it approved a modification of the PUD in zooT and
agreeing to execute the developers' agreement that was
negotiated in 2o1o by the Sherwood City Council.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 850



Assignments of Ërror

Violation of the intent of the PUD - staff is attempting to incorrectly
administratively apply Subdivision Standards to the Langer PUD
Phases 6,7, 8, which is beyondtheir scope and authority.The Phases
are to have Site Plan Reviews with the Planning Commission/City
Council. Staff essentially has made up a new process for the PUD by
incorrectly trying to grant subdivision and land division approval
through aType Il procedure.

Th¡s approval, in no way, removes the requirement that any
development subject to site plan review be reviewed by the
Planning Commission/City Council for this PUD. As stated earlier
underthe staff response to issue #4, this is a subdivision of land
for 4-ao lots, which according to section 16 .7,2o.o3o.r.a, is
ad m i n istratively processed.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 851



Staff Recommendation

Deny the appeal and affi rm the staff decision

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 852



Exhibit D13

Packet Page 853



coPY
Origlnal Flled ln

l-ta-tø ?lo ri n rvrq ('^í1tF4
Gov. Body JDds

1"2-- 0?-
R..!ames Claus

2221L 5W Pacific Highway

Sherwood, Oregon 9774A

503-62s-s265

1a-*A
Aãñãmñ/

August 28,2012

Planning Commission

City of Sherwood

Pine Street

Sherwood, Oregon 97140

RE: File: SP L2-03

Sentinel Storage Application

Comments for the Site Plan Record

Dear Planning CommissÍon-

Thank you for leaving the record open for this application. Since the last hearing on August 14,20L2

there have been additional information submitted into the record. Also, I have additional information

for the Planning €omrnission to consider as part of this application. ln no particular order I will outline

my additional concerns.

The applicant has descríbed this application and its uses on page 2 of îts application

Thís praject ìncludes improvement af the subjeA síte to he operated as a selÍ storage business;

an annex to the exístÍng se|f storøge løcilíty located nafth af the întersectÍon oÍ SW

Tualatín-Shetwood Raod snd 5W Langer Førms Parkwoy. Proposed site Ímprovements înclude

43A sþrage units (íncluding enclased, partíalty enclosed, covered, and open). ThÍs wîll ínelude

ø míx af índaor climate eontolled uníts, non-climate controlled units, outdoor covered and

uncøvered spaces. The stomge units/spøces will be avoilable lor storage of oll kÍnds of ítems

ìncludîng, but nat límîted to household or busîness materíols, recreatìonal vehÍcles, trailers,

boots, etc,

The applicant knows that the site plan cannot be approved by the Commission in this Type lV process

unless the application complies with ALL applicable approval criteria. Per their application, p. 2:

The Cìty oÍ She¡wood Zoníng ond CommunÍty Ðevelopment Code holds thot approval of thìs

9íte Plan Review AppÍîcotion ís subject to review through ø Type lV procedure. ThÍs wrítten

statement íncludes tíndíngs ol lact demonstrat¡ng that the opplîcation complies wîth all

applícable approval *íteria.

Sentinel Storage SP- 12-03 |im Claus testimonyAugttstãB,ZtLz Page 1

&g Ñr vtn't\"*

6,r',1[;{ ¡¡ 19

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 854



ln conjunction with a previous, currently contested subdivision appIication {Langer Subdivision SUB 12-

02 also being heard on appeal August 28,20t2 at the Planning Commission) , the applicant is proposing

to subdivide the 55 acre parcel into five separate parcels. The subdivision request was heard only by a

member of the city planning staff because of a recent change in the city zoning code that allowed this

part of the Langer PUD to be altered at the staff level. As a result of this requested subdivision, now the

property owners of this part of the Langer PUD are requesting deviations from the Sherwood code

standards. Their arbitrary subdivision lines are creating self-ímposed hardships that the applicant in

turn is requesting the Planning Commission approve; yet the applicant has not gone through the

Variance Process or the lnterpretation of Similar Uses of the city code to obtain the requested for

variances or other interpretations ofthe code. {See attached}.

The existine Langer PUD is na lonser valid with arnroval of this anplication

The applicant is asking for uses and variances which are not part of the existíng Langer PUD. The original

PUD says that they may opt for permitted or conditionally permitted uses in the General Comrnercial

{GC) zone in the 1995 code per Section ?.LOg.OZ Permitted Uses and Section 2.109.03 (See attached} as

well as stated from page 5 of their application;

2AA7 Development Agreement

AGREEMENT

A. PUT' USES

7. Applîcable Code. ZCDC 76.32.020.H, pravides that "Approved PUDs may elect to

estoblísh uses which are permitted or condÍtÍonally permítted under the base zone terú dt the

tíme of final appraval of the PllD," The Langer PUÐ wss approved ond Phøses 4, 6, 7 ond I
were assîgned the Lîght lndustriol ("Lt"| bøse zone desìgnøtíon on August 3, 7995.

2. Permîtted and Canditional llses. Accordíngly, Langer elecf;s to establísh uses an the

Li-desìgnated phases af the PIJD that were permîtted or conditíonally permitted under the LI

base zone text applícahle on August 3, 7995, including: "Uses permitted outright ín the 6C

zone SectÍon 2.709.A2, except lor ødult enteftainment businesses, whîch øre prohíbíted." A

copy of the uses permítted ín the Ll qnd GC zones on August 3, 7995 ís set forth in Attachment

4 qttached hereto ønd íncorporated hereín by reference.

3. Eledíon of Uses and Acceptance. The City øcknowledges and accepts Longer's

decision to elect to develop Phoses 4 6, 7 ønd I under ZCÐC 16.32.02O,H, íncludíng the øbíliV
to develop thase phoses for General Retøíl Trøde under Sectíon 2.109.02 ol the 7995 ZCDC.

Accordingly, the current provísions of ZCIIC 76.32.A30.K, whích rcstr¡ct retaìl uses ín the Ll zone

to a maximum aî 60,(NA squsre leel wíll nat øpply to síte pløn review of the PUÐ,

ßESPOIVSE: ThÍs project íncludes the improvement of the subjed site into ø Sell

Storøge Busíness; on annex to the facílìty currently located north ol the íntersectíon al SW

TuølEtín-sherwood Roød and SW Lønger Forms Parl<way, as permitted unde¡ SDC2C 2.710.02.F

Sentinel Storage SP- 12-03 lim Claus testimony Au gust 28, 20LZ PageZ

20

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 855



There is nothing in the 1995 code or the current Ll code that allows for propane, diesel andlor

gascline fueling to the public. The applicant has said that this fueling use wculd operate as any other

fueling stat¡on in the State of Oregon {see AKS letter put in the record after the August 14,2A12

hearing.) The applicant has not requested an lnterpretation of Similar Uses per Chapter 16.88 -- which

is a separate application and proceeding ín front of the Planning Commission {with the ability to

appeal that decision) that requires the applicant to :

Chapter 16.89.020 - Application Content

The request shall þe subm¡tted with a fee pursuant to Section 1gLLl820 and shall include information on

the following characterislics of the proposed use:

Description of the activity to be conducted on the site.

Noise and odor characteristics.

Descripiion of material or product storage requirements.

Amount and type of traffic to be generated.

Description of the structures required.

The code does not outr¡ght allow the gasol¡ne, diesel and propane fueling. The PUD Developrnent

Agreements or the initial approvals did not specify any fueling uses. The appl¡cant cannot apply for a

variance for an ex¡sting PUD per Section 16.84 of the code. ln short, if the Planning Commission were to
approve this application. the entire PUD would be in violation and therefore cease to exist. This is not

the proceeding for the Planning Commission to allow staff to generête "findings of fact" that would

allow the fuelíng uses-- again, the applicant has not addressed the criteria for the proposed fueling uses

in the context of an interpretation of similar uses. There is no request for a variance. Even if these

requests were being generated by the applicant it would put the Langer PUD in jeopardy. Existing PUDs

cannot change uses and obligations mid stream without a new hearing that would remove the existing

PUD and make it conform to the current PUD standards and application proceedings. See Chapter

16.40.010 - 16.40-060 et.seq. for PUDs including non-residential PUDs.

This applícation does not explain the full nature of the proposed gasoline and propane fueling for this

site or the nature of the Oregon laws and rules governing gasoline, díesel and propane fueling. lt is
possible that other considerations would need to be in place for this site plan. Without the full

knowledge and explanation of the fueling- as well approval from the appropriate local authorit¿ thís

site plan cannot be approved by the Planning Commission.

This is also the same problem with the "mini-warehousing" that allows in the code for commercial

storage, yet the applicant in the existing storage is also storing residential oriented materials {non-
commercial or industrial). {See Claus materials already submitted at the August 14th meeting.} There

must be an "interpretation of similar uses" to clarify (allow or dísallow with right of appeal) the mini-

warehousing.

A.

B.

c.

D.

E.

Sentinel Storage SP- 12-03 fim Claus testimonyAugust 2B,20Lz Page 3

21

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 856



Additionally, the original Langer PUD specifically excluded an extension of Century Drive. {See original

conditions of approval for Langer PUD.I The extension of Century Drive is a change in USE for patt of the

PUD that was not there in the original PUD- and was specifically EXCLUDED. A parking lot is not a

collector Road. The city recognizes the difference in use and standard and has opted to pay for the

difference of a parking lot and the specifications that they want to requíre for the Century Ðrive

extension. Again- this is a major change to the existing PUD and requires å new hearîng and a new

PUD {See Chapter 16.40 et.seq.} application.

Who is the BEH workine for in this site plan application?

Beery, Elsner and Hammond are contract attorneys. They apparently work for the city in various

capacities. They even work for the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency. This property is located in the

urban renewal district. lf BEH representatives are giving advice for the record and to the staff or
planning commission, or on behalf of the Sherwood Urban Renewal Agency {SURA}, they need to state

for the record in what capacity and for whom they are working and gÍving their advice. lf they are

working for the City Council or SURA, obviously there is a conflict of interest since one of the City Council

members and one of the SURA mernbers is part of this application and part owner of the propedy in

question. (see BEH Contract for personal services.)

Subdil¡ision and partition process and standards were voted on by Citv Coqqcilçr Matt l,aneer

This application presupposes that a separate, administrative decision granting the Langer Family, LLC

subdivision of the 55 acres has been approved and all the appeals exhausted. That is not true. Not only

is the subdivision approval on appeal with the Planning Comrnission, there is a question íf Councilor

Matt Langer should have voted on the legislation that directly allowed this part of the Langer PUD

property and property that he has an actual financial interest in to then be subdivided through an

administratíve, staff review Type ll process. This applicatíon is for a site plan of 6.93 acres-- only a

portion of the 55 acre parcel. Changes to PUDs are to be heard by the Planning Commission and the City

Council. The "code clean up" Ordinance 20L1-0L1 was approved by the City Council on October 4,2OLL

(with an "Aye" vote from Councilor Langer). On or about December Ll,2At7, the Langer

representatives for the 55 acre parcel owned in part by Matt Langer attended a pre-application process

with the city for partitíoning and subdividing that 55 acre parcel at the staff level.

Annex vs. Separate Business

The applicant is try¡ng to utilize the administrative offices of a separate parcel of land, owned in

different legal ownershíp to obtain yet another variance to the standards. The applicant also stated that

these two parcels {the Sentinel Storage parcel on Phase 4} can be sold separately. Why then would the

Planning Commission allow a site plan for the "annex" that is associated with the Phase 4 parcel in the

Site Plan application, to be allowed to be sold separately and distinctly? Also, the City Counciljust
passed a Resolution to condernn a portion of the Sentinel Storage property {changing the boundaries of

the existing PUDi. ls this one business with non-contiguous lots, or are these two separate parcels that

can be sofd separately? There is no deed language being suggested that legally ties these two parcels

together, The applicant through Uncle Gary Langer has already said that it is no one's business how

Sentinel Storage SP- 12-03 |im Claus testimony August ZB, 2OIZ, Page 4

22

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 857



their family holds its property. How then can the Planning Commission allow this site plan w¡thout its

own administrative building and office?

Please ask the applicant to further clarify what they are trying to do with this application and keep the

record open for public comment on those further clarifications-- and ask them to extend the L20 day

deadline, or down this proposal tonight.

Jím Claus

{plus

Sentinel Storage SP- 12-03 |im Claus testimonyAugust?B,?}L? Page 5

23

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 858



I

I

I

i

I

ä
À

Ð
gli

H

ffi

ffi

ß

ffi

ü

n

x

fr

t

SHER\[TOOD
COMPREHET\TSTVE PLAhT

PART 3
ZOT\TING AND C OMMITI{ITY

DEVELOPMET.{T CODE

Prepared bY

City of Sherwood, Oregon
90 NW Park Street

Sherwood, Oregon VTWA
(503) 625-5522

February 2&,L995

EST . LßgZ

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 859



B

t
\I

l:

t;

lj

ti

l
I

I

2.tag GENERAL CO!{MERCTå,L (cc)

2.109.01 Purpose

The GC zonlng district provides for r+hclesale and comme¡claluses ¡'¡hich require larger parcels cf land, and or uses r*hlchinvolve product's or activi tià= -r¡i.i -r*qrri 
re speci al a rrent,i onto envlron¡nent,al lmpacts as per Chapter g,

2.ß9.A2 permitted Uses

The foll0wing uses are permitted out,right, provided suchuses meet t'he applicable énvironmental performance standardscont,ained in Chapter g:

À, Professional services,
flnancial, medical andestate. 1egal, artistlc,

i.ncluding but not limited todental, social servlcesr- realand similar uses.

E

F

c

D*

G.

H.

I

General retail trade, íncluding bakeries where productdistribution is rimrted i; retailing on the premisesonly.

Personal and business services, including day cares,preschools, and kindergartens.
Postal substations when l0cated entrrery ¡.¡Íthin andincidental to a use permitted outri;hl-.--'
Temporary uses, including butconstruction offices .rrci' reaLsubject to Section 4.500.

not limited to
estate sales

portable
offices,

Farm and ga:den 
- suppJ_y s-t,ores, and reÈail plant,nurseries, but__excluci;g ïrror."uË pù;l nurseries, andcom¡nercial farm equtpmeit and veilrirã sales r+hich areprohiblted.

Agricurturar uses such as Èruck farming and horticulture,excluding commer-efal building" ."1-"'tiïàt,rr"" t er theraising of anlmals other ttran- frouienofO lets.
Commercíal trade schools.

Motl0n picture and live theaters, but excludlng drive-inswhlch are prohibit"ed

Rest,aurants, taverns, and lounges.

CHÀPTER 2
35

J.

25

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 860



K Automotiveandotherapplianceandequipment'partssales'
but excluding junicvalãs and salvage yards which are
prohibited.

Blueprinting, printing, publishing, or other reproduction
services.

Àutomobile, recreational vehicle, motorcycle' truck'
manufactured home, boat, farm, and othe-r equipment sales'
farts sales, repaírs, rentals or service'

I
I
I
T

T

;

il
:

;
j

¡

;
I

il
I

il
:
:t
il
il
il
!:

I
i

*l

L

M

N

o

P

Wholesale trade, warehousing'
minl-v¡arehousing, excePt as
2.110.048 and 2.111.04E.

commercial storage and
prohibited in Sect'íons

l,irnited manufacturing, including only: beverage
planLs' conmercial - bakeriesf machine sho
ñandicraft manuf acturing.

bottling
psr and

o

R

Building material sales, lumberyards, contractors storage
and equipment, yuro=, uúitaing -*alntenance services, 'and

similar uses.

Veterinarian offlces and animal hospS-tals '

AgrÍcu}tural uses ínclud,ing but not ]imlted to farming'
and wholesale and retail plant nurseries, with
customarily associated commãrcial buildings and
structures Permitted.

Medical, dental, and similar laboratories'

Truck and bus Yards and terminals '

Adult entertainment busÍnesses, subject to Section 2'208'

Conditional Uses

C, Churches and Parsonages.

CHAPTER 2
36

s.
ñ
I¡

U.

2,109 .03

The f ollowing uses are pernitt,ed as condit'lonal uses, provided
such uses meeÈ the ãpplicable envj.ronmental perf orrnance

standards contained in- 
- chapter 8 | and are approved in

accordance with Section 4 ' 3Û0:

A. Special care facilit,les. 1nc1ud^ing but not limited to
träspitafs, sanltariums. convalescent' homes. correct'ional
insiitutiåns r and reside¡tiaL care facll,ities '

B. Radio, television, and similar communication sÈations,
including transmitters.

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 861



D

E

Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums '

PubIic and private utility buildings' .including Þut

limit.ed to ter;tirone exchinges' eleltric substaÈion'
resulator staiions, treatmãnt Plants, waÈer wells'
ptrÉric works Yards '

includ,ing but not linited to
po"t offices, and Police and fire

Public use buildlngs includlng but' lot llmited to
librarie", *lr".rrÃ", ão**unity cenlers and senj-or centers'

Èr,!vat,e lodges, f raternal organizations ' country clubs t

sports and raciuet clubs, .nä other similar clubs, but

ãiãi,]ãi";-g;i¡'"oot="" which are prohibited'

Motels or hotels '

Residentiar apartments when located on the uppgr floors,
in the rear ;ãr- or otherwise clearly secondary to a

commercial building'

Publicrecreationalfacilities,includingbut'not.limited
to parks, pruviiãiã", and sports and racquet courts' but
ãi.î"ãi"ä qort-.oor=u= wrriáii are prohiblted.

Publicandprivat'eschoolsprovidingeducationatt'he
elementary gchool l-evel or higher'

Any incidental Þusiness, service, process' storage or
disptay,nototherwisepermittedbySection2.l09,that
;;-ã;;å;rial t,o and cuslomarily assocíated wiÈh anv use

permitted outright'

Prohibited Uses

following r¡ses are exPressly prohibited:

Junkyards and salvage Yards'

Industrial and manufacturing uses' except a-s-späcif ically
ilñt;;ã ¡v iåãti""s 2. 10e-' 02 and 2 ' 10e ' 03 '

not
gas
and

F Government offices,
administrative of f ice'
stations '

G

H

L.

M

2 . 109 .04

The

A.

B.

ï

J

K

c.AnyotherprohibitedusenotedinSection2.l.09.03.
2 . 109 .05 Dimensional St'andards

Nolotarea,setback,yard,landscapedatea'open.sPace,off.
street parking or toaàing area¡ of other site dimension or

CHAPTER 2
37

27

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 862



require$eBt'existingon''Qrafterltheeffectivedateofthis
code shall be reduced- belor,¡ the minimum required by this code'
Nor shaLl trre 

"cãnveyånce of any portion of a rot, for other
;hã"-; tuþl!c use or right-of-*ãy. leave a lot or structure on

añ reînainder of sat-d 1ot wiin less than minimum Code

dimensions, area, setbacks or other requlrements' except as

pernitted bY Section 4.400.

A. Lot Ðimensions

Except as otherwise provided, reguired minj-rnum lot areas
and dimensions shall be:

1. Lot area¡ L0,000 square feet

2. Lot width at front property line z 7 0 feet'

3. Lot v¡idth at buitding line 2 7 0 feet

B. Setbacks

Exceptasotherwiseprovided,requiredminåmumsetbacks
shall- be:

1 . Front yard: None, unLess the lot abut's a

residentialzone,thenthefrontyardshallbethat
required in Èhe residential zaîe'

2. Side yards: None, unless abutting- a residential
zone ár public park property, then there shall be a
mLnlnrum of twent'Y (20) feet.

3. Rear Yard¡ None, unless abutting
zone, ihen there shatl be a minimum of twenty Qa)
feet.

4. Exist,ing resid,entia] uses shall rnaintain setbacks
specified in Section 2 ' 105 ' 04 '

C. Height'

Exceptasotherwiseprovided.,.thlmaximumheight'of
st,ruðtures shalt be flfty (50) feet.' except structures
wtthin one hundred (f00) feet of a residential zone sha1l
be limit.ã io tfre heighé requirements of that' resident'ial
area. Structures over fifiy {50) feet, in height may be
permitted as conditional usesr' subjecÈ t'o Section 4'300'

CHAPTER 2
38

28

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 863



2. 109.06 Community Design

2.109.07 Flood PlaÍn
Except, as otherwise provided, Sect.ion 9.2A2 shall_ apply.

CT{APTER 2
39

For standards relating to off-sÈreeÈ parking and roading,energ'y conservatJ.on, historic resources, - environmentãl
resources, landscaping, access and egress, signsr pãrks and
open space, on-site storage, and site design, see Chapters 5,I and 9. t

I

:

i

'lI
;
l

I

I

t
I

I
I

29

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 864



2.110 LfcHT INÐUSTRTÀ,L (Lr)

2.110.01 Purpose

The Lr zoning district provides for the manufacturing,processing, assemblinq, paèkaging and treatment of proouciåwhich have been previously þre-pared from raw materials.IndustrÍa1 establishments - shall not have objectionableexternal features and shall feature well-landscapeä sites andattractive architectural design¿ âs determined by th;Commission,

2.!L0,02 Permit,ted Uses

The folrowing gles-are permitted outright, provided
meet' 

. 
thl applicabre environrnentar þertormancecontained in Chapter B.

such uses
standards

A. Veterinarians offices and animal hospit,als.

c.

contractor's offices, and other offices associated witha use permitt,ed ln t,he LI zone,

Pullic and private utilities including but, not, limited totelephone exchanges, erectric subst,at,ions, gas regulatorst'ations, sewage treatment planls, water wel-ls and-publ_icworks yards.

Ð. Glass installation and sales.

B

E.

G.

H

E Government offices, including but not limitedst,ations, administ,rative õttices, police
stat.ions.

to
and

postal
fire

Aut,omobile, boat,
storage.

lrailer, and recreational vehicle

Laboratories for Lesting and medical,photographicr or motion pièture processing,prohibited by Section 2.L10.048.

Industrial hand tool and supply sales,wholesaled to other industrial- firrns or
workers.

dental,
except as

primarily
industrial

I

I

I

I

I

I

r

J

Other similar
4.600.

light indust,rial uses subject to Section

uses permitted outríght in the GC zone, section 2,Le9,a2,except for adult entertaånment, businesses which areprohibiÈed.

CHAPTER 2
4A

30

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 865



ll
;rl

I

I

I

x' Ðwell¿rg unit to.:r1 (1) .securi.ty person emproyed on thepremisesr añd their inrméoiaiã_iamify
L' puÐs' subject to the provi.sions of secti an 2.202.M' Temporary uses, including but not -li¡¡rited to construct,ionand ¡eat esraLe =ãr*"_;;ii;::,.iuai."r ro s"å!ior, 4.s00.2. 110.03 CondítianaL Uses

The forrowing uses are permitted as conditionar_ uses providedsuch uses meet tñ; - appr_icaui*-"*ìrrironmentãr 
Jertormance:::::ååi:" ;îi;"¿::f,,*ï_.Ìm:"Jå i. ;;;...=åî;. .f;i.o,,*a in

A. Manufaet.ure,
packaglng,
warehousing
products:

. compoundlng,

_ 
treatment,

or storågË of

1

r"bPå:"."i:t;e' -ñåï333i ilå;the folJ.owing articfes --åí

Food producrs: 
f:l_"ding but :ror, Iimit,ed ro candy,dairy productË,_beverag"t;ìotfee, 

".rrr,"ã goods andbaked goods, jn{ . ;#t-'*iq 
- 
postrry, - .""*pt asprohibired by section-?l l:î, o:.

åppliances, i11lloinS bu! - nor limired ro,ref rigerarors , . freezerã. washrnj- ,""r,i,iåî, dryers;smaL1 electronl" *Jt-o"ï,.rrä=g*rr.rators i heat{ng andcoori-ng eguipment; rããn'ä$ers, rotot,Íllers, andchaLn sawsi vending *ãåh:;ä; and sinirãî pracucrsand associar,ed 
"*"í:-IJii;:'

Cosmetics, 
1:un":- .pharmaceut,ical,chemj.cals and si¡nif ai products,Prohibited by sect¿ãn ìii.ro.o¿.

2.

3
toiletrÍes,
except as

4 Electrica1, radio, teLevisi_onr opt,ical, scientific,heari ng a i ds,_ 
_".r "ttr-olitï ?orpu, *., c om¡nuni c a t i o nsand similar ins.trume*i;;to*por,*nls, appliances and

;i:13T"' 
and st¡nilai prtJ"-.t" and assoõlarea smalr

Building components and household fixtures,including but not limitãä 
1o_jlrniÈure, cabinets,;iÍ..i:1":î:::"i- lÀãGiI; 
-mar,rressês, doors andp;d;;; äå":"3å.orÍåã5'åLïiî::H:*' ",ìo s¿m¿iar

Recreational vehicles and eguipment¡ includÍng butnot limited to t^icvcr;; ràcreat¿oá.i- *ärercrafr,exercise eguipmen{, unC 
- similar products and

5

6

CHAPTER 2
41

31

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 866



associated smal1 parts, but
equipment unless ot.herwise
2.110.02 or 2.110.03.

excluding motorized
permitted by Section

7

I
Musical Ínstruments, toys and novelties,
Pottery and ceramics, linÍt,ed to products
previously pulverized clay

using

9. Textiles and fiber products.

10. Other s¡nal1 products and t.ools manufactured frompreviously prepared or semi-finished materials,
includlng but not limited to bone , f.ux, leather,
feat,hers, textiles, plastics, glass, wood product,s,
metals, tobacco, rubber, and precious or semi-
precious stones

Laundry, dry cleaning, dyei.ng or rug cleaning plants.
LÍght metal fabrication, machining, r+elding and
electroplating and casting or molding of semi-finiéhed or
finished metals.

Offices assocíated with a use conditionally permitted in
the LI Zo^e.

E. Sawmills.

2. 110.04 ProhibÍted Uses

Ehe following uses are expressly prohibited:
À. Adult. Entertainment BusÍnesses.

B.

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I
I
I

B

c

Ð

c

D

E

Any use permitted or conditionally permitted under
Section 2,L1,i. that is not specifically listed in this
Section, and any use listed ln Section 2.111.04.

Aut,o wrecking and junk or salvage yards.

Ðistfllat.ion of ail, coal, wood or tar compounds and the
creosote treatment. of any products.

Manufacture, compounding, precessing, assembling.packaging, treatment, fabricatlon, wholesale,
warehousing, or storage of the following product,s of
substances, except, for any incj-dental business/ service,
process, storage, or display that is essential lo and
customarily associaled, in the City,s determination, with
any otherwíse permitted or conditionally permitÈed use:

CHAPTER 2
42

32

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 867



F
ï

ff

I
l-

2"

Abrasives, aclds, disj.nfectânts, dyes and paints,
bleaching powder and soaps and similar product's.

Ammonia, chlorine, sodium compounds, toxics, and
similar chemicals.

3. CelluloÍd or PYroxYlin.

4. Cement., lime' gypsllm' plaster of Paris , cLay,
creosote, coal and coke, tar and tar-based roofing
and waterproofing materÍal-s and similar substances.

5. Explosives and radioactive materials '

6. Fert,ilizer, herbicldes and lnsect poison'

Mefal rolling and exlraction mil1s, forge plants'
smelters and blast, furnaces.

PuIp rnills and PaPer mil-Is.

slaughter of lÍvestock or poultry, the-manufacture of
animal by-products or fat rendering.

Leather tanneries.

General purpose sotid waste tandfills, incinerators, and
other solid waste facilities.

2. 110.05 Dimensional Standards

No lot area. Setback, yard, Iandscaped area, open space, off-
street parking or loaãing arear of other site dimensi-on.9r
requlrement, áxist,íng on, -or after, the effective date of this
Coáe sha1l be reduced belot t.he minimum reguired by thfs C99e'
Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a Iot, for other
than a public use or right-of-wâY, l-eave a lot or structure on

the remainde¡ of saiã lot, v¡ttn less t,han mlnimum Code

dimensions. area, setbacks or other requiremenÈs' excePt as

permÍtted bY Seetion 4.400.

A. Lot Dimensions

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum lot area
and dimensions shall bel

1. Lot areal 10'000 sq' feet

at, front ProPerty llne; 100 feet

at building line: 100 feet

CHAPTER 2
43

2, Lot, v¡idth

F

\J

H

I

JT

E
lr
h
h
h
¿

î1

3. Lot t'¡idth

33

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 868



3. Setbacks

Except as othen¡rise provided, required minimum set'backs
shall be;

I

2

Front yard: Twenty (20) feet, except, when abutting
a residentlal zone or public park, then there shall
be a minimum of forty (40) feel
Side yards: None, except when abutting a
resídential zone, then there shall be a minimum of
forty (40) feet.

c.

2.110.06

3 Rear yard: None, except when abutling a
residential zone, then there shall be a minimum of
forty (40) feet,

4 Corner lots: ?wenty (20) feet, on any side facing a
street, except when abutÈing a residential zonet
then there shall be a minimum of forty (40) fêet.

Height

gxcept as otherlrfse provlded, the maximum height shall be
f tf ty ( 50 ) f eet., except that structures wit'hÍn one
hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited
to t,he height requirements of the residentiaL zone.

Communíty Deslgn

For standards relating to off-street parkÍng and loadingt
energy conservation, historic regourcesr environrnental
resources, Landscaping. access and egress, sÍgns, parks and
open space, on-síte storage, and site design, see Chapters 5,
I and 9.

2.110.07 Flood Plain

Except as otherwise provided, Section 8.2A2 shaLl apPly.

CHAPTER 2
44

t
:

I

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 869



4.60û

4.601

INTERPRETATION OF SIII{ILAR USES

GENERATLY

where an int,erpretatlon Ís required as to the applicability ofthe provisions of this code t,o a proposed rand use which isnot specifically listed or otherwise clearry indicated as
a11owed, conditionally allowed or prohibited, a written
reguest for an interpretation may be submitted to the
Com¡rission.

4.602 APPLICATION CONTEMT

fhe reguest, shall be submitt.ed with a fee pursuant t,o Section
3.342 and shal1 include information on the following
charact^eristics of the proposed use:

A. Ðescription of the activity to be conducted on the slte.
B. NoÍse and od'or characteristics.
C' ÐescriptÍon of material,or product storage reguirements.

Ð. Amount and type of traffic to be generated.

E. Description of the structures reguired.

4.603 APPROVALS

The Commission shall conduct a public hearing pursuant to
Section 3.200 and Èake action to approve, approve with
conditions, or deny t,he reguest f or an int,erpret.ation c¡f a
similar use. The action of the com¡Rission may be appealed to
Ëhe Council Ín accordance with Section 3.400.

CHÀPTER 4
l_9

35

:i

:i

':

,t
l:l

.;

:!
:l
,l

¿a
I

1!

{
1;

ii

'{

', 1í

.1.
,ritt
r: l;

.,ì
t1

I

,l
¡í

'I

l

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 870



naÍled to the address shown on Èhe application.
3.403 PETITTON FOR REVIETÍ

Every petition for review shall include the date and a
descript,ion of the land use action, including adopted findings
of fact, a statement of how the petitioner is aggrieved by the
aclion, the speclfic grounds relied upon in requesting a
review, and a fee pursuant to Section 3,301. The record of
the land use action shal1 be considered.

3.404 COTJNCIL ACTION

The review of the appealed land use action shalL fnclude a
public hearing conducÈed by the Council at which time all
parties to the action, as per Section 3.205,A2t may present
o1d evidence or any additionaL evidence. Public notj-ce and
hearing procedures for appeals shall be identicaL to the
procedures used in initlally taklng the land use action r"¡hich
is being appealed. The Council may act. to affirm, reverse,
refer or amend the action being reviewed. the act,ion of the
Counci] sha1l be flnal, except insofar as further appeal to
the St,ate Land Use Board of Appeals {LUBA) may be allowed by
the 1aw of the State of Oregon.

CHAPTER 3
13

36

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 871



3,400

3.401

3.401,01

À.

B

3.401.02

APPSALS

GENERåLLY

Basis of Appeal

Any issue wl¡ich may be the basis for appeal of a land use ;aclion t,o the Countil or to the StaÈe Land Use Board of
.ê,ppeals (LUBA) sha1l be raised not later than the close

iï.1* :*:l l;1"åIåîs"oJ;Jp"";T"1",'iå",iliîååä:'ii ;
Fallure to raise an issue¡ or failure to raise an íssue
with sufficient speclficity so as to provide the clty'
applicant, or othèr partÍes to the applicat^ion with a

rãåsonaU1e opportunity to respond, wiIT precJ-ude appeal
on said issuã- to the Ôouncil or to LUBå. Any aggrieved
pârty appealing a land use action must exercise the right
ãf pêtit-ion toi revlew to t,he Couacil prior t,o making ?ly
appäal to LUBA, excep¿ as provided in Section 3.401.03.

Appeal EligibålitY

;

I
I

It
t

l

;

t
;

I
t
T
t
;

t
I
;

Except as otherwise permÍtted hereín. only persons-who were a

party t.o the actiori being_appealed, as defined by SectÍon-l.ZAi.OZ, át" eLigÍble to-fllã for a petitio-n -for review by
the Council. ff {ne potential appellant is judged not to Þe

a party to the actionl or the isËue(s) that- are_th-e basÍs of
thê appeal !.rere not raised as per Section 3.401.01' as
determined, by Èhe City, the Council shall refuse to hear the
appeal and ãirect Èhat the appellant be so notlfied ín
writing.

3.401.03 ExcePtion

If t,he City either takes a land use action without providing
a hearing ãs required by thls Code, or takes a land rrse action
which ls substa-ntlally differenl than indicated Ín notlce of
t,he proposed^ action ãs per Section 3.203.01' an aggríeved
party may, as provided by Èftt law of the state of oregon'
ãpp"åf Oirectfy Èo Stat,e r,and Use Board of Appeals {LUBÀ) .

3.402 APPEàL DEADLINE

Land use actions t,aken pursuant to this Code shall be final
unless a petit,fon for révtew is filed wit,h the City Recorder
not more [.tran twenty-one (21] caLendar days after the date on
which the CommíssÍoä or Côuncil t,ook final action on the l-and
use application, In the event the aggrieved Pgrty is th?
appliiãnt, the twenty-one (21) calendar days shall be counÈed
tróm the date when wrltten notÍce of the actlon has been

CHAP?ER 3
L2

37

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 872



Chapter 16.32 - LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (Lll-'#-

Sectíons:

16.32.010 - Purpose

16.32.020 - Permifted Uses

16.32.030 - ifional Uses

16.32.040 - P hibited Uses

16,32.050 - Dimensional Standards

10.32.060 - ComTnunitv Desion

16.32.070 - Floodplain
+

16.32.010 - eurpose í21

The Ll zening district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, packaging and trealment of products

which have been previously prepared from raw materials. lndustrial establishments shall not have objectionable

external features and shall feature well-¡andscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the

Commission. {ord 9}e64 g 3; od. 8e-851)

f¡)
ß32-a2O - Permitted lJsesØ-.

The following uses are permitted outright, provided such uges meet the applicable environmental

performance standards contained in Division Vlll. lncidental retail sales, limited to 10% of ihe toial floor area of a

business, may be permitted as a secondary function of a permitted or conditional use, subject to the review and

approval ofthe Hearing Authority. {ord.2001-11ts, S 1; s3-964)

A. Contractols offices and other offices associated with a use permitted in the Ll zone.

B. Public and private utilities, including but not limiied to telephone exchanges, electric

substations, data centers, gas regulator stations, sewage treatment plants, water wells and public work

yards.

C. Glass installation and sales.

D. Laboratories for testing and medical, dental, photographic, or rnotion picture processing, except

as prch¡b¡ted by Seclion 16.32.040(E).

E. lndustrial hand tool and supply sales pr¡marily wholesaled to other industial firms or industrial

workers.

F, Other similar light industrial uses subject to-.lihsgteL!6.ì99

G. Þwelling unit for one (1) security person employed on the premises, and their immediate family.

H. PUDs, new and existing, subject to the provisíons of..1l¡êpþflglg. New PUDs may mix uses

which are permitted within the boundaries of the PUD. Approved PUDs may etect to estaþlìsh uses which

are permitted or conditionally permitted under the base zone text applicable at the time of final approval

of the PUÐ. (ord. s8-1051 S 1; od. 86-851)

1 | Sherwood Zoning Code Light lndustrial Chapter 76'32'OL0 - !632-A7a {online 8-28-20121

38

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 873



l. Temporary uses, including but not limited to cons{ructiqn and real estate sales offices, subiect

to Chaoter'16-.86

J. Wireless communication antennas co-located on an existing tower or on an existing building or

structure not exceeding the rosf of the structure provided the applicant can demonstrate to the

satisfaction of the City thai the location of lhe antenna on City-owned property would be unfeasible.

(OrC. 97-1019 S 1)

K. Business and professiona! offices associated directly with anoiher permitted use in this zone

and do not cater to daily customers (such as financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and denlal

offices). iArc!. No.2o10-05. S 2. 4-6-2A10)

L. Business and professional offices in buìldings that received land use approval prior to January

1 , 2010 or that are not des¡gnated "industrial" on Melro's 2008 Title 4 Map that cater to daily customers

isuch as financial, ínsurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices). (ord. No. 201ça5, S 2.4-6-201a)

M. Business and professional offìces in buildings that received land use approval after January 1,

2010 that are designated "industrial" on Metro's 2008 Title 4 Map and that cater to daily customers (such

as financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices) shall not occupy more than 5,000

square feet of sales or seryice area in a single outlet and no more than 20,000 square feet of sales or

service area in multiple outlets in the same development project. (Otd. No. ?ala-05, S 2,4-6-2ua)

N. Training facilities whose primary purpose is to provide train¡ng to meet ¡ndustriâl needs.

(Crd. Na. 2t1a-05, S 2, 4-6-2ua)

O. Tool and equipment rental. lord Na.2a10-05, S 2,4-ç2a10)

p, Blueprinting, printing, publishing, or other reproducfion services. prd No.2010-05, S 2, 4-&2ua)

a- Fa¡m and garden supply stores and retail plant nurseries ilimited in size similar to M. above),

but excluding wholesale plant nurseries, and commercial farm equipment and vehicle sales which are

prohibited. (o¡d. Na.2üo-aí, S 2,4-6-2a1a)

R, Medical, dental and similar laboratories. lo¡0, No. 2a1a-05, S 2' 4-6-2üa)

S. Manufacture, compound¡ng, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication,

wholesaling, warehousing or storage of the following articles or products:

1. Food products, including but not limited to candy, dairy producls, beverages, coffee,

canned goods and baked goods, and meat and poultry, except as prohibited by Section

10.3?,040

Z. Appliances, including but not l¡mited to refrigerators, freeze¡s, wash¡ng machines,

dryers. small electronic motors and generators, heating and cooling equipment, lawn mowers,

rototillers, and chain saws, vending machines, and similar products and associated small parts.

3. Cosmetics, drugs, pharmaceuticals, toiletries, chemicals and similar products, except

as prohibited by Section 16.32.93Ç

4. Electrical, radio, teievision, optical, scientific, hearing aids, elec{ronic, computer,

communicationE and similâr ¡nstruments, components, appliances and systems, and similar

products and associated small parts.

2 | Sherwood Zoning Code Light lndustrial Chapter 16'32'010 ' L6-32'074 {online 8-28-2A72t

39

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 874



5. Building components and househofd fixtures, including but not limited to furniture,

cab¡nets, and upholstery, ladders, mattresses, doors and windows, signs and display

structures, and simila¡ products and assoc¡ated small parts.

6. Recreational vehicles and equipmenl, including but not limited to bicycles,

recreational waterøaft, exercise equipment, and sirnilar products and associated small parts,

but exctuding rnotorized equipment unless otherwise permitted by Section 16.32.020 or

16.32,030

7. Musical ¡nstruments, toys and novelties.

8. Pottery and ceramics, limited to prcducts using previously pulverized clay.

9. Texiiles and fiber products.

1CI. Other small prgducts and tools manufactured ftom previously prepared or semi-

finished materials, including but not limited to bone, fur, leather, feathers, textites, plastics,

glass, wood products, metals, tobacco, rubber, and precious or semi-precious stones.

prd. No. 201a-05, s 2, 4-6-2010: otd. 2002-1136 S 3; 2001-1 119; 9&1051: 93-964; 91-922; O¡d. 86-851)

'/l/16.32.030 - Conditional Uses'*f

The following uses are permítted ¿s Conditional Uses provided such uses meet the applicable

environmental performance standards contained in Division Vlll and are approved in accordance with Ghaoter

le!?:

A. Laundry, dry cleaning, dyeing or rug cleaning plants.

B. Líght metal fabrication, machining, welding and electroplating and casting or molding of semi-

finished or finished metals.

C. Offices associated with a use conditionally permitted in the Ll zone.

D. Sawmills.

E. Radio, television and similar communícation stat¡ons, including transmitters and wireless

communication towers, except for towers located within 1 ,000 feet of lhe Oid Town District which are

prohibited.

F. Restauranls without drive-thru limited in síze similar to 16.32.02-0.M.

{Ord. No,2410-05, S 2, 4-6-2üa)

G. Hospítals and emergency care facilities.

H. Automctive, recreational vehicle, motorcycle, truck, manufactured home, boat, farm and other

equipment repair or service.

L Commercial trade schools.

J. Wholesale building material sales, lumberyards, conlrac'tors storage and equipment yards,

building maintenance services, and similar uses.

K. Retail uses for warehousing or manufacturing operations, limited to 10% of the total floor area

and not to exceed 60,000 square feet of gross leaseable area per building or business. The retail area

shall be physically separated by a wall or other barrier Fom the manufacturing or warehous¡ng operatíon.

Warehousing ââd storage areas shall not be used as showroorns. {ard. 2000-1ce2, S 3)

3 | Sherwood Zoning Code Light lndustr¡al Chapter 76.32.01A - 16.32.070 {cnline 8-25-21nl

40

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 875



L. Power generation plants and associated facilities.

M. Veierinarians offices and animal hospitals.

N. Automobile, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage. lord e3-e64 S sJ

O. Daycares and pre-schools, if fully integrated with and secondary to a use elsewhere permitted

in Sectíon*!6.:l!¡!!Q or10.32.039

P. Government facilities, including políce, fire and vehicle testing stations.

O. Public recreational facilities including parks, playfields and sports and racquet courts on publicly

owned property or under power line eagemenls. ford- No.20ag-a09,7-21-2009; otd. z0a2-1136 S J;2001-111s;

S8-1A51; 93-964)

4 Sherwood Zoning Code Light lndustrial Chapter 16.32.010 - 1632.A7O {online 8-28-2012}

41

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 876



Ghapter 16.88 - INTERPRETATION OF SIMILAR USES.#

Sections:

16.88.010 - Generally

16.88.,020 - Application Content

16.88.030 - Approvals

.4\

1 6.88.01 0 - Generally /'Ë

Where an interpretation is required as to the applicability of the provisions of this Code to a proposed

land use which is not specífcally listed or otherwise clearly indicated as allowed, conditionally allowed or

prohibited, a written request for an interpretation may be submitted to the City Manager or hislher designee' {añ.

9&1953 S l: Oró. 86-851)

-rì:,
16.88.020 - Application Content iff--

The request shall be submitled with a fee pursuant lo Section 16.74.02Q and shall include information on

the following characteristics of the proposed use:

A.

B.

Û.

D.

E.

(Ord. 86-85t, S s)

16.88.030 - Approvals

Description of the activiiy to be conducted on the site.

Noise and odor characteristics.

Description of material or product storage requirements.

Amouni and type of traff¡c to be generated.

Description of the structures required.

æ
The City Manager or hislher designee may authorìze a use to be included among the allowed uses, if the

use 1) is similar to and of the same generaì type as the uses specificalfy allowed; 2) is consistent with lhe

Comprehensive Plan; and 3) has similar intensity, density, off-site impacis and impacts on community facilities as

uses permitted in the zone. The action of fhe City Manager or hislher designee may be appealed to the

commission in accordance with chaoter 16'76' fo¡'d es-1053 s 1; Qrd s&851)

i I 
Sn"t*ood Zoning Code Chapter 1.6:88 lnterpretation of Uses {onlíne 8'28'2?12l

42

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 877



SECTIONS

16.84.010 - Purnose

1 6.84,020 - Applicabilitv

16.84.030 - Tv of Variances
l¡ì

¿/ L'
16.84.010 - Purpose îl:-

This Chapter provides standards and procedures for variances, which are modifications to land use or

development standards that are not otherwise permitted elsewhere in this Code as exceptions to Code standards.

This Chapter provides flexibility, while maintainíng the puçoses and intent of the Code. No variances shall be

granted to allow the use of property for a puçose not authorized within the zone ¡n which the proposed use is

located. ln granting a variance, conditions may be imposed when necessary to protect the best interests of

sunound¡ng properties and neighborhoods, and otherwise achieve the purposes of the adopted Comprehensive

Plan, the Transportation System Plan, and other Code provisions'

{Ard. Na,2O11-aæ, S 2,4-5-2o't1}

Chapter 16.84 - VARIANCES "rÌ[29

16.84.020 - ApplicabilitY

À

*.
. +^l¿'

Exceptions and Modifications versus Variances

A code standard or approval criterion may be modified without approval of a variance if the applicable

code section expressly allows exceptions or modifications. lf the code provision does not expressly

provide for exceptions or modifications then a variance is required to modify that code section and the

provisions of t¡38!e¡l-ê.84 apply.

B.

Combíning Variances with Other Approvals; Permit Approvals by Other Agencies.

Variance requests may be combined with and reviewed concurrently by the City approval body wÌth other

land use and development applícations (e.g., development review, site plan review, subdivision,

conditional use, etc.); however, some variances rnay be subject to approval by other permitting agencies,

such as ODOT in lhe case of State Highway access.

Adjustments and variances cannot be applied to change any existing Planned Unit Developmeni {PUD]'

(Ord. Na. 2011-003, S 2,4-5-2411)

16.84.030 - Types of Variances
a'rl
\ä_

As provided ¡n th¡s Section, there are three types of variancæs: Adjustments, Class A variance and Class

B variance; the type of variance required depends on the extent of the variance request and the d¡scre{ion involved

in the decision making Process.

1 | 
Sherwood Municipal Code Chapter 16.84 Variances (online 8-28-2ALZ\

43

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 878



A-

B,

Adjustments

1.

Class B Variances

1.

d

fuplicability: The following variances are reviewed us¡ng a ïype I procedure, as governed by

Chåoter 16.72, using the approval criteria in Subsection 2, belsw:

a.

Front yard setbacks Up to a 10 percent change to the front yard setback standard in

the land use district.

b.

lnterior setbacks Up to a 10 percent reduction of the dimensional standards for the

side and rear yard selbacks required in the base land use district so long as the three

foot seiback is maintained based on Build¡ng Code reguirements where applicable.

Landscape area Up lo a lAYa reduction in landscape area (overall area or interior

parking lot landscape area.

A 5olo reduction in other Code standards or dimensions not otherwise specifically

identified in this section and not applicable at the time of the subdivision or partition

approval.

Approval Criteria: Adjustments shall be granted if the applicant demonstrates compliance with

all of the following criteria:

é.

The adjustment requested is required due to the lot configuration, or other conditions

of the site;

b.

The adjustment does not result in the removal of trees, or it ís proposed in order to

preserve trees, if trees are present in the developmenl area;

c.

The adjustment will not result in violation(s) of any other adopted ordinance or code

standard: each code standard to be modified shall require a separate adjustment

request.

An application for an adjustment is límited to one lot or parcel per application.

2.

d.

e.

No more than three adjustments may be approved for one lot or parcel in 12 months

2 | 
Sherwood Municipal Code Chapter 16.84 Variances {online 8-28-20L2',

44

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 879



a.

b-

Generally

The Class B variance standards apply to individual platted and recorded lots only

A variance shall not be approved that wauld vary the "perm¡tted uses" or "prohibited

uses" of a land use zoning district.

Front yard setbacks: Up to a 20 percent change to the front yard setback standard in

the land use dislricl.

lnterior setbacks: Up to a 20 percent reduction of the dimensional standards for ihe

side and rear yard selbacks required in the base land use district so long as the three

foot setback is maintained if required by the Building Code requirements.

e.

A2AYI ar less reduction in other Code standards or dimensions not otherwise

specifically identified in this sect¡on.

Approval Prqcess: Class B variances shall be reviewed using a Type ll procedure. ln addition to

the application requirements contained in Chapter113.2ã11!, the applicant shall provide a

written nanative describing the reason for the variance, why il is required, altetnatives

considered, and compliance with the criteria in subsection 3.

Approval Criteria: The City shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny an application for a

Class B Variance based on the following criteria:

a-

The variance requested is required due to the lot configuration, or other cond¡t¡ons of

the site;

b.

The variance does not result in the removal of trees, or it is proposed in order to

preserve trees, if trees are present in the development area;

The var¡ance will not result in violalíon(s) of any other adopted ordinance or code

standard; each code standard to be modífied shall require a separate variance

request.

An application for a Class B variance is limited to three or fewer lots per application

The variance will have minimal impact to the adjacent properties.

c.

d.

2.

J,

d.

e.

t

3 | 
Sherwood MunicípalCode Chapter 16.84 Variances {online 8'28-20L2l.

45

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 880



The variance is the minimum needed to achieve the desired result and the applicant

has considered alternatives.

c.

Class A Variances

1.

Generally

â

b.

The Class A variancæ procedure may be used to modify a standard for three (3) or

fewer lots, including lots yet to be created through a partition process'

An applicant who proposes to vary a standard for lots yet to be created through a

subdivision process may not utilize the Class A variance procedure. Approval of a

Planned Unit Development shall be required to vary a standard for lots yel to be

created through a subdivision process, where a specífic cûde sec't¡on does not

otherwise permit exceptions.

A Class A Variance shafl not be approved that would vary the "permitted, conditional

or prohibited uses" of a land use d¡strict.

Apprcval Process:

Class A Variances shall be processed using a Type lV procedure, as governed by

Chapter 16.84, using the approval criteria in subsection 3, below.

ln addition to the application requirements contained in ChaPter-16.2ã0'!!' the

applícant shall provide a written narrative describing the reason for the varíance, why

it is required, alternat¡ves considered, and compliance with the criteria in subsec{ion 3.

Approval Criteria: The City shalt approve, approve with conditions, or deny an application for a

Class A Variançe based on the following criteria:

a.

The proposed variance will not be malerially detrimental to the purposes of this Code,

to any other applicable policies and standards, and to other properties in the same

land use district or vicinitY;

A hardship tc development exists which is peculiar to the lot size or shape,

topography, or other simifar circumstances related to the property over which the

applicant has no control, and which are not applicable to other properties in the

vicinity (e.g., the same iand use district);

¿.

a.

b.

J.

4 | 
Sherwood MunicipalCode Chapter 16,84 Variances {online 8-28-2OLz

46

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 881



c.

The use proposed will be the same as permitted under this title and Ci$ standards will

be maintained to the greatest extent that is reasonably possible while permifting

reasonable economic use of the tand;

d.

Existing physical and natural systems, such as but not limited to traffic, drainage,

natural resources, and parks will not be adversely affected any morc than wou¡d occur

if the development occuned as specified by the subject Code standard;

A

The hardship is not self-imposed; and

f.

The variance requested is lhe minimum variance that would alleviate the hardship.

(Ard. No- 2a11-003, ç Z 4-l2A1l)

FOOTNOTE{S}:

tzat Edttor's not*-Añ. No. 2a11-9t3, 5 2, âdopte| Aptît 5, 2A1 1, amendad the Code by repeálíng farner Ch. f 6.e4 $S 16.84.a10 and

16.A4.A20, and adding a new Ch. 16.84. Fauner Çh. lö.84 peìained tô sirn¡làr sub¡ect rnâtter, and deived frcîj Ords. 86-851, 91-922,

92-943, and 2ao3'1í48: and çrd. Na.aüA-U5, adopted October6,201t. lBackJ

5 | 
Sherwood Municipal Code Chapter 15.84 Variances (online 8-28-20721

47

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 882



Chapter 16.56 - OTHER LAND USE AGTIONS*#

Sectlons:

16.56.010 - Other Land Use åctions

d-t)

16.56.010 - Other Land Use Actions ff

Proposed land use actions or aciivities for whích specifc procedures and standards for application and

review are not included in this Code shall be submitted to the Commiss¡on, on a form determined by the City and

with a fee pursuanl to Section 16,74.010. The Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or

denial of the reguest to the Council. The Council may approve, approve with conditiens, or deny the request, or

may elec* to refer the request to a more appropriate approving authority'

Prd. a6-851, S 3)

1 | 
Sherwood Zoning Code Chapter 16:56 Other Land Use Actions {online 8-28-2A12

48

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 883



Chapter 16.76 - APPEALS*æ

Sections:

16.76.010 - Generalli¡

16.76.020 - Appeal Deadline

16.76.030 - Petitiqn fsr BeYiçlv
16,76.040 - Appeal Autho

1 6.76.01 0 - eeneralty'-8

A. lssues on APPeal

The only issues which may be raised on appeal are those issues which were raised on the record before

the Hearing Authority with sufficient specificity so as to have provided the City, the applícant, or other persons with

a reasonable opportunity to respond before the Hearing Authority.

B. Persons Eligibte to APPeal

Except as othen¡¡ise províded in this Code, only those persons who submitted written comments or

appeared in person before the Hearing Authority may appeal the decision of the Hearing Authority.

C. Dismissal on APPeal

lf the Appeal Authority determines that the appellant was nst a person to the action before the Hearíng

Authority, or the issue(s) that are the basis of the appeal were nol properly raised per this Section, then the Appeal

Authority shall dismiss the appeal of that appellant or those issues, in writing.

D. Ëxception

lf the City either takes a land use action without providing a hearing as required by this Code, or takes a

land use action wh¡ch is substantially different than indicated in notice of the proposed action as per Section

16.7?.030, an aggrieved person may, as provided by the laws of the State of Oregon, appeal directly to the Siate

Land Use Board ofAppeals {LUBA).

(ord. No.2a1a-015, S 2, 1A-5-2A1A; OrC.2003'1148, S3;2001'1119;99-1079;91-922)
¡,+,\

16.76.020 - Appeal DeadlineØ-

Land use actions taken pursuant to this Code shall be final unless a petition for review is filed with the

planning Ðirector not more than fourteen (14) calendar days after the daie on which the Hearing Authority iook

final action on the fand use application, and written noticê of the astion has been mailed to the address ptovided by

the person in the record. lf the person did not provide a mailing address, then the appeal must be filed within

fourteen {14) calendar days after the notice has been mailed to persons who did provide a mailing address. lorø.

20A3-l148, 5 3; zau-1119; 11-922)

1 | 
Sherwood Zoning Code Chapter t6:76 Appeals (online 8-28-20t2l

43

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 884



tr#
16.76.030 - Petition for ReviewÍl-,

Every petition for review shall include the date and a description of the land use action, including adopted

findings of fact, a stätement of how the petitioner is aggrieved by the act¡on, the specific grounds relied upon in

requesting a review, and a fee pursuant to Section 16.74.01 0. The land use decision, supporting findings and

conclusions, and evidence available upon the close cf the record of the land use action and any City Staff review

of ihe issues subject to the appeal shall be made a part of the record before the Appeal Authority. (ord. 2003-1 148, S

3:2A01-1115;91-922)

16.76.040 - Appeal Authority Action
^|ü

Except as otherwise provided or required by state law, the review of the appealed land use actíon shall

include a public hearing conducted þy the Appea¡ Authority, as determined by Section '16.72.01.0, at which time

only those persons wha testified before the Hearing Authority or subrnitted written comments may present

evidence and argument relevant to the approval crìteria. The record before the Appeal Authority shall include only

the evidence and argr¡ment submitied on the record before the Hearing Authority (including all testimony, all

materials submitted at any previous stage of the review, staff reports and audio tape or transcript of the minutes of

the public hearing. New evidence rnay not be entered into the record.

Êxcept for the hear¡ng being on the record and no new persons being allowed, the public notice and

hearing procedures for appeals shall be identical to the procedures used in initially taking the land use action which

is being appealed" The Appeal Âuthoríty may act to affirm, reverse, remand, or amend the action being reviewed.

The action of the Appeal Authority shall be the ftnal City of Sherwood aciion on the appfication, unless remanded

to the Hearing Authority. Upon remand, the decision of the Hearing Authoriiy shall be the final City of Sherwood

aciion. lor¿. No. z0I 0-a15, 5 2, 10-l2010; otd. 2003-1 148, S 3; 2001-1 119; 99-1079; 91-922)

Z I 
Sherwood Zoning Code Chapte r 16:76 Appeals {online 8-23-2012}

50

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 885



,þ, t of I h. T! ûla IÌ q Rt'R Nd ¡ ùtal Wí ld I ite Rttqgc

oRD|NANCE 201f -{}{l

AN ORÐINANCE AMENDING IIIULTIPLE SFCTIONS OF THE ZONING AND COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT CODE INCLUD|NG D|V¡S¡ONS ¡lt, V, Vl, ANÐ Vll

WHEREAS, The Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Gode has not been
comprehensively updated in many years; and

l,tfHEREAS, the City has undertaken a multi-phase, multi-year program to
comprehensively update the development code to ensure that it is clear, consistent, and current;
and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission helped guide the development of proposed
amendments after extensive public outreach and opportunity for public input; and

WHEREAS, this phase includes amendments to DivÍsions lll, V, Vl and Vll, specifically
related to the public infrastructure, land divisions, site plan modifications and administrative
process; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were reviewed for compliance and consistency
with the Comprehensive Plan. regional and state regulations and found to be fully compliant;
and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were subject to full and proper notice and
review and a public hearíng was held before the Planning Commission on August 23,2911; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Ccmmission voted to forward a recommendation of approval
ta the City Councilforthe proposed Ðevelopment Code modifications; and

WHEREAS, the analysis and findings to support the Planning Commissíon
recommendation are identified in the attached Exhibit 1; and

WHEREA$, the City Gouncil held a public hearing on September 20,2011 and
detennined that the proposed changes to the Development Code met the applicable
Comprehensive Plan criteria and continued to be consistent with regional and state standards.

NOIIII, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHTRWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section f . Findinqs. Afrer full and due consideration of tha application, the Planning
Gommissibn recommèndation, the record, findings, and evidence presented at the public
hearing, the Council adopts the findings of fact contained in the Planning Commission

Ordinance z0fi-A11
October4,20ll
Page I of 2, with Exhibits 1-Planníng Commission Recommendation (4 pgs) and 1-4, Code Amendments {55 pgs)

51

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 886



recommendation attached as Exhibit 1 finding that the text of the SZCDC shall be amended as
documenied in Exhibit 1-4.

Section 2. Aporoval. The proposed amendments for Plan Text Amendment (PA) 11-03

ídentified in Exhibits 1-A is hereby APPRQVED.

Section 3 - llllanaqer Autho$3ed. The Planning Department is hereby directed to take
such action as rnay be necessary to document this amendment, including notice of adoption to
DLCD and necessary updates to Chapter 16 of the municipal code in ascordance with City
ordinances and regulations.

Section 4 - Apolicabilitv. The amendments to the City of Sherwood Zoning and

Community Development Code by Sections I to 3 of this Ordinance apply to all land use

applications submitted afterthe effective date of this Ordínance.

Section 9 - Effe.ctive Date. Thís ordinance shalt become effective the 30e day after its
enactment by the City Council and approval by the Mayor.

Duly passed by the City Council this 4ü day of October 2Ol1'

Mays,

Attest:

Sy Murphy, tMC,

Çlark
Langer
Butterfield
Folsom
Henderson
Grant
Mays

AYE
Lr-

tl

NAY

Ordinance 2c11-A11
October4,201'l
Page 2 of i, with Exhibits l-Planning Comrnission Recommendation {4 pgs) and 1-4, Code Amendments {55 pgs) 52

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 887



O¡dinance 2011-011, Exhiblt 1, Planning Commisshn Recommendãton
October4 2011, Paç 1 ol4

Gity of Sherwood
Staff Report Following Planning Commission
Recommendation to the City Council
File No: PA ,I{-03 Land Divisions, Publie
Modifications

September 9, 2011

lnffastructure and Site Plan

t.

Proposal: Amendments lo the Development Code on this phase of the "Code Clean-Up" proiec't include
updates to: 1) site plan modifications, 2)public infrasiructure with added, tables and figures, and the 3) the land
division process including subdivisions, partitions and lot line adjustments.

The Planning Comrnission held a hearing on August 23, 2ù11. Afrer discussion af the various topics
within the sections, the Commission recommended several minor alteratíons to the proposed language.
Afler consideration of the public testirnony and staff recommended changes, the Commission voted to
fon¡¡ard the proposed amendments to the Councilfor approval-

BACKGROUND

A. Anplicant: This is a Çity-initiated text amendment; therefore the applicant is the City of
Sherwood.

B. Location: The proposed amendment is to the text of the development code and, therefore applies
citywide-

C. Review Type: The proposed text arnendment requires a Type V review, which involves public
hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council. The Planning Commission will make a
recommendation to the City Council who will make the final decision. Any appeal of the City
Councildecisíon would go directly to the Land Use Board of Appeals.

Ð. Public Notice and Hearirlg: Notice of the August 23,2011 Planning Commission hearing on the
proposed amendmentwas published in lf¡e Gazette on 8/1/11and Tñe Ïimeson 8/18/11. Notice
was posted in 5 public locations around town and on the web site on7122111. Regular updates were
provided in the City newsletter.

tffhíle this does apply citywide, it does not afiect the permissible uses of any property; therefore
Measure 56 notice was not required or provided. DLCD notice was provided7l1l11.

E. Beview Criteria:
The required findings for the Plan Amendment are identified in Section 16.80-030 of the Sherwood
Zoning and Community Development Code (SZCDC).

F. Backqround:
The city began the comprehensive code clean-up project in 2010 as a way to update all sections of
the code to provide clarity to citizens and developers and to address any local, county, regional or
state standards that have gone into effect and that require changes to the code. The Planning
Commission has revier,ved and the City Council has adopted multiple sections of the Code recently
including the topics: ¡esidentíal uses, variãnces, streel trees, and open spâce requirements for
subdivisions.

Exhjbit 1 - Staff Report to City Gouncil
PA 11-03, Public lnfraslructuæ, Subdivisions and Partitions, and Site Plan Modificafions Page '1 ol4

53

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 888



[.

Ordißance 201 1-01 l. Exhlbit l, Planqing Commlss¡on Recom$Fndat¡on
October 4, 2011, Page 2 of 4

AFFECTED AGENCY, PUBLIC NOTICE, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS

Aqencies:
The City sent request for comments to the standard agency notification list. The City has received no

responses to date.

Public:
No formal public comments have been received to date on the proposed amendments; however the
City and Commission have received input from the public during informal listening sessíons and via
public surveys. ln addition, siaff held a "bro\,vn bag" lunch meeting with private consultants and
developers to get feedback on lhese issues.

III. REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR A PLAN TEXT AMENDMËNT

The applicable Plan Text Amendment review miteria are 16.80.030.1 and 3

16.80,030.1 - Text Amendment Review
An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon the need for such an
amendment as identified by the Gouncil or the Gom¡nission. Such an amendment shall be
consÍstent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, and with all other provisions of the Plan
and Code, and with any applicable State or City statutes and regulations.

Need ldentified
As discussed briefly above, the following proposed Code amendments were identified to clariñ7 and
create greater flexibility and organízation for those that are seefcing land use approval or modifications to
existing site plans. The Planning Commission held a series of work sessions to discuss the proposed

changes and considered public input before the changes were recomrnended. The following analyzes
separately how the relevant chapters and divisions meet the need requirement.

Síte Plan Modificatían Ç 16.94.030
Currently, the Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code, Section 16.90.020.3.0, requires
all "proposed changes" to approved site plans to be "submitted for supplemenlal review together with a
fee equal to one-half (1/2) the original site plan review fee". This ambiguous, one-size-f¡ts-all language
has been a stumbling block to developers making changes, including improvements, to approved site
plans. lt has also resulted ín staff reports in excess of 30 pages for a simple change to the parking
layout or addítion of a very small, accessory building to the site. While some proposed modifications to
approved plans do warrant a full re-review, others can be processed quickly and efüciently at little cost
to the developer or the community.

Diviqion V-1. Public lgÍnsJructure
This chapter regulates and describes standards for public improvements to the City's infrastructure
when development occurs. Several of the provisions included in this chapter need reorganizing,
updating or rernoval because they are better suited in other sections of the Municipal Code or are
technicat design standards better addressed in the Engineering Design and Standards Detail Manual.
For example, the Street Renarning procedure is Council policy design and not a land use decision. The
Street Design Modifications process is arbitrary and confusing so a clearer process that is initiated at
the tíme of land use subrnittal has been developed.

Other steps that have been taken to improve the clarity of the document include:
. Technicalstreet design standards have been removed
. Language was inserted to refer to the Transportation System Plan and Engineering Design

Manual instead of a specific criteria described in the deve[opment code
r Language requíring a rough proportionality finding
. New requírements for when a Transportation Study is required

Êxhibit 'l - Staf Report to City Council
PA 1{-03, Public lnfastructure, Subdivisions and Partitions, and SÍte Plan Modifications Page 2 of 4

54

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 889



Ordlnance 201 1-0f 1, Exhib¡t 1, Planning Commisslon Recommendat¡on
October 4, 201 1 , Page 3 of 4

Ðivisian Vll. Subdívisions, Partitions and Lot Line Adiustments
The current chapters are divided between the preliminary plat approval and the final plat approval.
There is also a property or lot line adjustment chapter along with a chapter on lot design standard
requirements. This has led to confusion regarding which standards and criter¡a apply to partiiions,
subdivisions and lot líne adjustments. The proposed Code amendments reorganize these chaplers into
"subdivision" "partition" and "lot line adjustment" rather than "preliminary plat,' 'Tinal plaf' and
"partitions." Currently, there is no specific subdivision chapter and the requirements for subdivisions are
intermixed among the three chapters, causing confusion and misinterpretation of the requirements and
order of the process for the particular land division process. By reorganÞing the chapters, it will make
the submittal requirements, process and criteria easier for the applicant to locate based on the type of
land dîvision requested. lt also helps to clarify the appropriate process for recording the final plat at
Washington County and provides the appropriate deadlines for pracessing these applications. Other
changes help provide greater flexibility in the development process including allowing the entire
subdivision to have an overall "average lot size" rather than a m¡nimum lot size for each individual lot.
The provisions retain a maximum amount ttlat a lot size can be "flexed" to ensure that lot sizes do not
get reduced þelow a buíldable or acceptable amount. The proposed changes also allow smaller
subdivisions (4-10 lots) to follow a Type ll {stafi review) process. Finally, a ne\¡v process was developed
for re-platting and vâcat¡ng plats to help make the process clear as the currenl code is silent on the
issue.

Upon review of the Comprehensive Plan, the following policies or strategies relate to all or some of the
proposed amendments:

Gomprehensive Plan and Code
Chapter 6 Transportatían Goal 2
Develap a transpoftation system fñaf is consrsfenf with the Çity's adopted comprehensíve land use
plans and with the adapted plans of slafe lacal and regianaljurisdict¡'ons. The proposed amendments
to the public infrastructure chapter were evaluated to ensure that they were consistent with the adopted
local, state and regionaljurisdic{ions. Specífically, the amendrnents provide for added reference to the
Transportation System Plan and clearer requirements for transportation studies.

Applicable Regional (Metro) st?ndards
There are no known Metro standards that this proposed arnendment would conflict with.

Consistencv with Statewide Planning Goals
Goal 1- "CitÞen lnvolvemenf
The purpose statement of Goal 1 is 'Io develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for
citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process.'

The proposed code changes do not include changes to the City's citizen involvernent program, which is in
compliance with Goal 1. Public outreach fur this project includes informal listening sessions and staff held
a "brown bag" lunch meeting wíth private consuttants and developers to get feedback on these issues.

Goal 2- "Land Us€ Plannins"
The purpose statement of Goal 2 is Io establish a land use planning process and policy f¡amework as a
basis for all decision and actions related to use of land and to ensure an adequate factual base for such
decisions and actions".

The proposed code changes aflect the land use process by making it easier to follow and use but do not
change the way the land use application Code requírements are applied or the policy famework for which
they are established. The Gity's land use planning process and policy framework, which are in compliance
with Goal 2, wifl not change.

Exhibit 1 - Staff Report to City Council
PA 1143, Public lnfrastructure, Subdivisíons and Partitions, and Site Plan Modifications Page 3 of4

55

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 890



Ofdinance 201 1-01 1. Exhlblt 1, Plenning Commlssion Recomrrendation
Ootober 4, 201 1, Page 4 of4

16,80.030.2 - Transportation Planning Rule Consistency
A. Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities.
Proposals shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a trensportation facillty,
in accordance with OÂR 660-f2.0060 {the TPR}. Revlew is required when a development
application includes a prcposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use
regulations.

FINDING: The amendments will not rósult in a change of uses otherwise permitted and will have no
impact on the amount of traffic on the transportation system; therefore this policy is not applicable to the
proposed amendment.

Exh¡bit 1 - Staff Report trc City Council
PA 11-03, Publíc lnfrastruclure, Subdivisions and Parlitions, and Site Plan Modifications Page 4 of4

56

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 891



Ordinance 2011-01 1, Exhibit 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Pege 1 of 55

Added Code language to the chapters are identified with bk{g underlinç and deletions are identified
with a+ed+*rike+h+er¡gh Movíngtext from one section to another is identified with g+eenJa+É{c

¡*¡*++tngtrfh and where the language moved to is identifled with ercen-dst¡blesn*rline.

16.90.020 Site Plan Reviewj

A. Site Plan Review Required

Site Flan íeview shall be reçuirçd nrior tç anv sub¡tantial ehanee to a site or use, irsuance of büildlng

Bermits forg irew building or siructure., or for the gubstantial alteration of ¡n êxlstTne structure or use,

end nrior tc thqissuance of3çien oerrnítfor the ere!!.isn sr congtructicn of a siÊfi

For the purposes of Sectíon 16.90.020, the term "substantial ål+åFet¡eechansg" and "substantial

alteration" shall rnean any development act¡v¡ty as defined by this Code that generally requires a

building permit and may exhibit one cr more of the following characteristics:

1. The act¡vity alters the exterior appearance of a structure, building or property and is not considered

a modification.

2. The activity involves changes in the use of a structure, building or property from residential to
commercial or industrial andjs not considered

3. The actlvity ínvolves non-conforming uses as defined in Chapter 16.48.

4. The activ¡ty constitutes a change in a City approved plan, a-per Section 16.90-020_ançlþ_¡o'!

considered a .mgdification.

5, The activity involves the cutting of more than five {5} existing mature trees per acre, per calendar

year.

6. The activity is subject to site plan review by ather requirements of this Code.

7. The açjivilt' lncreases the size of the bul!Êliog bv more tha¡*19û% fl.e- the þuildiqe morE than !þsþleE
ig si¿el, resardle:! *l lvhether lt wpuld be considered a maior q: nrinsl rngdiflcajlion

7, Revlew ef any prsp€se&ad¡vity icdl€rtes thsÈ the pfajesèdse.s fist Fneet the FtanCardÉ.sf.teÊ'tien

+æÆ3S

B. Exemotiol¡ tg Slte Plan Reouirement

1. Sinele and two famifu uses

2. Manyfactured hsmes lcca.ted on individual residential lots per Section 16.46.010. but includirs

manufactured home parks.

3. Maior modifications

4. Minor modifications

57

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 892



Ord¡nance 2011-01 1, Ëxhib¡t 1'A
October 4, 201 1, Page 2 of 55

C-+xe+Ff¡isflt

iaat¡ç¡n*¡¿þeth*@s-*4i$å-pLãæ¡e\4Ær
xhetåer the preieet-tå $rêrnpt.Th+GitlaMÊ{rager er hi*er-her de'ignee is astheri¡ed lÈwalve sit€ Flan

*ev¡ev¡wher¡ a prepssåd CeveleFrnent ¡Êt¡v¡tv elearly deer net represent a cuktantiai alÈe¡at¡en lo the

31*¡ldtng-û+-*+*.¡F*/slve.*+h*{iãd¡n€,r+S+he-g¡tpM*nagererh}¡'*¡r-her-dsiSneæhall-åe'mad+{*+irlting

fe+he*pplie*aa-+he-a*iør++ltha€¡tT-l4i*geç€+e¡e€FhåÊ.d€åigfieè#*+åe'eppealed€5-peí-C¡raÊ¡€r
lå7&

and Revocatìon

*4, çhaageåyqd¡ficatións to AP

dei¡etsFfirertÈ ag¡v*¡€ç thål¡ be ÊerÍ

*rs+st¡n Btåv'â¡æF*hât

eÈh€nuis€ mi"l €erÉlkt.with t

1. Maior Modificatiois to Annroved Site ?la¡s

*. Detined. Tte revlew ¿uth*¡:i!v sþall deterl¡jine that a q'lgior m*difiq-qtiontsì review is resuired il

one or mole of the cha.nees listed below are propq5ed:

{11 A cþange in land use {i.e, residenti¿l to commercial- cg.m.m.ercial.to industrial. etc.l;

l?l An increase in densitv bv more thgÍ ten l1$'ì percent. orcvised tlq.res{lt¡ne dens¡tv. does

not exceedjh?t allowed bv the lar¡d use d¡strict:

{3} A chatîse in setbaçls or lpt csyeraqe bv morq than 10' percent' qrovided"thé' result¡ne

setback sr lot coveraEe does not exceed that-allowed bv the land. use. dìstrict'

{4'l Â çhanqe in thç tvne and/or lscatio¡ of access-W-avs,-drives or oarki$s afèas ñesð!¿lelv

affeçlb{gf+ite traffic ar in*easíne Aver¡lËe ûallv Trios {ADT! bv $Qre than 10û;

{51 Aû Increase ln the flasr aree gr heieht.Qfoqetedjor non-resideûtîa} us€ bV ÍlAre tha¡ 1Q

percent;

16l A reductlÇn ef more than-lO gerceqlof the area reçe rved fsr comrnon QSen ¡oace; or

{71 Chanse_ !p a cond{tioa o{ qporoval that was çnçcificallv acnlied to this apar*Y?l {i.e' PQt ¡
'itandard 'conditio-n"Ì,.-gr a ch¡ÉgLsimilqr- to ite{ns {1ll?l as dete-rminqd' Þv the Êeview

Authoritv.

58

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 893



Ordinance 201'l-011, Ëxhibit 1-À
October4,2011, Påge 3 of55

b. Approvql Criteria. nn appiicant r¡av recue:! ? maior mqdification as follows";

{1} lJnon the rer¡ierrr ar¡?haritv r{p}er¡rtinins that ihp mnrlifi¡;¡tinn ic a maíor

* modif¡cat¡on. ïhq ap.olicant lhall submit an açplic¿tion form. fíline&e ¡nd narralive, önd 3 qite

olan usinp the ¡. *l¡n fn¡mai ¡c ln fhp nricinal ãnorovâ|. Tfie =r¡lhnrilv mev rpr¡r¡ife

nlher relpva nt informatian. nêrsr(âru tn ev¡lrratp the rpnuesf-

{3i The aosllc-?tiçn_sha_llb_e s{þiect tg the sqme revi€v{ prpceCUre Fv¡e ll, lllor lV}. deeision

makins bodv. aÊd aoprova! criteria.ü.sed fcr the initiai praiect approval,Jxeesl that adding a

canditional use ta an asnroqed proiect Fhall be reviewed usine a Tvpe lll-ltocedure.

i3Ì The seq.Ag,of review shall be llnliled ro thejrodifi¡atlon request and-does ñot oppn tbe

e*tlre:ite us for a4djtic¡nal re-Uigw urless imoacted bv the pro*gsed modtlicatîan, Fc¡r exajÌr¡le.

a rcque¡t to mçdifu a sqrkine lot s*þll reqgile slte desien rsview onlv for the or*oosed parkine

lg:.an4-anv cjaqaes to associafe{ ¿ceess. clrculation..n¿thwevc. ligþtins,-Eees, aÉd landscacine"

f 4Ì -.,jtloiice shalf be nrovided þ accorda¡cq u¡ith Chaoter 16.71"02û.

{51 The decþlon maker sh4llapprove, denv. or a¡prave r¡¡ith csnditions an aoplication fcr maior

modiflcation based.arl written findinss of the criteria.

2. Minor Modífications to AnProved Sìt¿ Ptans

a. A Minôr Modif¡catign ¡s ¿nv mod¡f¡cat¡Õn to ð ¡and use riëcisiÕLr or ãpgrpved dev-etoDment nlãn

that is nst within the descriptîqn of 4lnaior rnodification as orovided, altove.

b. M¡nor iYlsdificatian'Review lrocedufe. An anclicatio-n fol iÊplsval of a nìlnor modificstiqP shall

be revien¡ed bv-the review authoritv usine a Tvne I review procedure u.ndgt lgct¡gn-16,72.01QÅ

Ivlinor modifications shall invgb,e onlv clear and sbiective csdg standsfds.

c' Minor Modlfication Ãerllcations. . An ,anoliçation for minor mqdification shall include an

Êrnlication fo¡In. filine fge and narrative" updated Clean Water Såryices {CWSI Service Prov¡CSÍ

letterj!.ecuivalent aclfnawied*ement f¡sç CWS, ¿nd A.site sþ{-usins the samç3lan format a5 irl

tlre orisin¡l apsr*val if qossible. The review authoriiy mav reaglre other relêVant lnfarrnalion. ¡s

n_ecessarv. to evaluate the request.

d" Mino¡ Modification Apçroval Criteria. The revíew authoritv shall appr-ç-v-e; denv. ar asurove with

conditisns an aspllcatiün.for rflinar modificatian based on written fi+dinss thAt the modification is in

cgrlpliance with all anolicable reo¡¡irements of the Deveiso$enr Code and cgnditions sf apprsv¿l

pn the originaI decision, and the modi{ication is nol a maior modlficatìon as above.

þ. Revocation

Any departure from approved plans shall be cause fi¡r revocatisn of applicable building and occupancy

perm¡ts. Furthermore if, in the City's determination, a condition or conditions of site plan approval are

not or cannot be satisfied, the s¡te plan approval, or building and occupancy permits, shall be revoked.

59

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 894



Ordinance 2011-011 , Erh¡b¡t 1-A
Cctober4, 201 1, Page 4 of 55

Division Vl.

I pus¡-tc ¡Me*€uEå¡E¡¡TsrNFRAsrRUcruRE
Chapter 16.104

I
I

GENERAL PROVISIO¡,IS*

Sections:
16. 104.010 ¡en*ar* P qsoåe
16. 104.020 Future lmprovements
15.104.030 lmprovement Procedures
* Editor's Note: Sorne sections may not contain a h¡story.

16.104.010 5t¡nderdlPuæsgC

To ensure the health, safety, and the economic stability of the community, and to establlsh a qual'rty

5ystemofpublicimprovements,theCityshallrequireg!r@bulldingsðnc*r
other development for which public facilities and public rights-of-way are not fully provided or improved

1ocurrentCitystandards,toinstâtlsaidímprovements.ã+h{€Ë@
xcept as otherwise Provided

or authorlzed, private ímprovements serving substantially the same function as equivalent publÍc

I facilitiesr shall generally be provided and improved aÈls the standards established by this Code and

other City regulations.

Green Street elements such as bioswales and porous pavement are encouraged where appropriate and

feasible. Where a specific design standard supporting a green street concept is not included in the

@ãnsinee,rlns Dgliisî and Standard Þetãil$ Man¡¡*l f tnqirlserinå Delien

Manuall, the des¡gn will be considered by the Engineering DepartmenÇ provided additional

documentation is provided to the Eng¡neer¡ng Department that documents the design is appropr¡ate,

has a design life equal to a traditional paved street, and the mai¡tenance costs to the Citv are

conlpårable to trÈdit ion a l streets.

{Ord.20û5-021; 2005-006 S 5; Ord. 86-8s1}

15.104,020 Future lrnprovements

The location of future public improvements including water, sanitary sewer, storm \ tãtet streets,

bicycle and pedestrian paths, and other public facilities and ríghts-of-way,-as depicted in the

Transportation Svstem Plan {TSP} Chapters 4 5, 6 and 7 of the CommuniÇ Development Plant are

intended as general locations only. The precise alignments and locationc of a -public improvements shall

beestabfishedduringthe@proce5sandshallbedepictedonpublic
improvement plans submitted and apprcved pursuant to S 16,f96-a+$0S ancl other applicable sections

of this Code.

{Ord. 2005-006 5 5; ord, 86-851}

15.104.030 lmprovernent Procedures

60

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 895



o¡dinance 201 1{1 1 , Exhibit 1-A
OctobBr 4. 201 1, Page 5 of 55

Except as otherwise provided, all public improvements shall conform to City standards and specìfications

fosnd ln the Ensineerins Ðesjst Manual.and sha.llåe-installed in accordance with Chapter 16.10¡å5.9è

the eql¡Âeikra1¿eåfë¡.li:h.add¡tionalsÉ€cif:sgttqgSla-s!Êe!Êoeåt the $ândã.td5 gf t
anplicaUe-gdiûaff:Ss.fxcept for egblic.aroierts co$structed conslslent with an existï*efaciiitv glan.

lþeg public improvements shall not be undertaken until l?[d Uçe aogr.oval has been erar*ed, aã€
oublic improvement plan review fee has been paid, all improvement Blans have been approved by the

City, and an improvement permit has been issued.

{Ord. 2005-006 S 5; Ord.86-851i

-C¡eptee¡¡.1$5

IMPROVEMENT PtAN REVIEW*

Sectieãç;

@¡ss¡e"
ffi
4€*t66$39€ens+ru+¡e+*

* Sditgr's ¡'¡ete:Seme se€t¡€nç rriåy net g€ntaln e hlstertå

nequ;re*¡sterove¡+e@ if,Ë

Â, fteview Fee

--Flaa-rev¡eg*feer¿r+æþ{at+C€€-e-ps+€eç1tåa
are.s€t by the ¡'SehedCe sf Devet€F¡re¡t+nC Susines¡ Fee¡" adopla*bï*€sðlÐ+ls"-â{*he

dedå€r€A*fu Ff h@&-¡ü¡¡s.dê€ã€¿*€+c
separele frsrn and independent.€f th¡s ÇeCe=

-* eep-' ef o* ¡greement er €enlËâÊ+ between the apFli€ân¡ ãnC ReglgtêrÉd Givil Snglneer fer¡

l Sun¡eyingsuffieient.teprepareeen+lrset¡e+plans,

l treFar¡tien ef conrtr¡¡6t1€n plens end *pee ¡fl€e'¡€rc,

3, eenstruêienrtakingÉndadequeteinspeetiek

4' CanstÉHsÊien retes suffieient te devereF ice*råte ar bulll Flans,

61

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 896



Ordinance 2011-011. Exh¡blt 1-A
octoþer 4, 20ll, Page 6 of 55

5, Brawing sf aeesrrte a¡ bsilt Fkñs end subfiissien ef rep¡edseible mYlår¡ t€ theÇitY.

#¡efi*

{€rd, $e, 39*0 015¡ s?; 19 5 3t&Ë; Êrd' 9}933¡ $ 3; €rc'85 85&¡ }3)

M

- - The Ê¡tl{Jl¡l rêtsrn ene [q åeÈef Flane te the epplkanÌ ma*€C-:bpFra+edÉ 8r "rrsdÍfY ånC

re¡ubmlt," Flanç H!ðrked fer re submlttal rnusÈ b€ €srre€ted in aeesrCafiee wlth n€*at¡s¡r5 er

- - inçt¡uetiens, Àfter eã{re€tien anC appreval? add*¡snal Flans ¡håll þe FrevideC the G¡ty f€F €fflÊ€'

ueer fle{d lncpedlsn+nd subm¡ttel te affe€ted ag€nei€6"

- B' Permit ¡nd Fee

UÞenaFFrevalthe ¡pFlie¡nt shallebtãln a ean¡¡rË€tien Ferm¡t' Th€ eãfistrsc*iâo Þe*mit,f€€ b

¡et br/ the "5eheCülEef,ÐeveþFrrenl Fees"r adepl€d by ñe5€lutie+âf thê €aun€il- This s€hedËle

¡ç includeCåerel¡+{€r th€ psrpeåð+af infermat¡srb but l¡ deern€*tçåe teFffâte fm¡rgnd

@
Ç, É¡gemeRt Þseuments

Neee¡sar,l.canstrustienasC/er perm¡çen!€asåfienl' ¡h¡ll be previded in ¡ ferm aÊ€eFteble tê

the Gity prier t+iesuanee ef a esättruetien permiç

-.- frla¡ te ¡.cuanee ef+€onâtrs*iepp€rgit the appll€ãnt shall file the fellewlnFde€sFÊêrrts wiÈh

--+ae+¡ttç#
Gvidenee el gsblþll¿btllÈy *nC prepertfdsmege¡¡sgr¡nç€ adeqs*te þ Prer€ct the aFp¡íeant

anr the €¡ty frEm ell eþims far damage sr Fersanal iniurY-

2, Ferferrnânee Bend

. Te¡.sure frll an*falthfslf*rerminee ln t+le €ong*rud¡€fl sf reg*ired lmPrevema¡tc in

.. aeesrdåfl€e wiÈh ¡FFrsvecleoñgt¡sgtle*plansr the aFpliÊent shallprwlCe secgf¡ry irHfl-amssnÈ

equal te en*hsnd{eC perÊBnt (l0g%} of ¡he est¡mateC eest el th€ kñFrevamentt' lfi theêvent

tllc ¡pBlieðñt faiþte €ðny est all frev¡5isñ5 sÊtle a

hae nen re¡rnbursed cssE er expenf4çresulting frarn sueh fsllsfer the ciry ¡hàll ællen tàe

¡eeurlty fEr re¡mberçemenÈ Seeurity m¡y b+prsvideC ln the ferm ef+€tretY band e¡eÉuteébY

62

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 897



Ordinance 2011-011, Exhlblt 1-A

Octobet 4, 2011, Fage 7 ef 55

æT-a
-- - etherferm efseesritY ae€sptabþtÐthe êitY'

¡å;g¡5€¡e{€ã5*#t¡€+¡{et+

¡1= - lnitiatien ef €snctrsetisn

*€t{¡ãl{çnprov i.R

+¡r¡t¡ËÉ

#

ÊârrrÊlåarlee w¡th åFprðtr€{t plåíË€r*d

imprevements are eemFlete, The ç¡Ëf may ¡eq*ire ehaoga¡ ln tyBiGtls.ëEtlene ¡nd Cstell& f unussll

M

Æ

-. Ð, $s*pensien ef lrnprevements A€tivity

+h*4i@ ¡ss'af€*Ë¡tl*efiFÉ

Æ¡ea

63

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 898



Ordìnance 2911411, E)fiib¡t 1-A
Ociober 4, 201 1, Page I of 55

@
reenr (fÊ96l ef.t

is+ng; w¡th¡ncae{+l+ea+aft e*

@mflf€\re*entr
{Ord, Ne, 30Å0 0tr5; ã ?¡ l0 5 301Q Ord,86 851, 5 3}

-çheptersJ38

@
TRåNSPORTATIOIì¡ FAC|UT|ES

Sections:

16.f0¡j!98.010 General ly

16.¡OS306.02:]0 Required lmprovemenrs

16.¡93196.0{+0å0 Location

1 6.¡0¡18Ê.050g!()tt*ae+Design
1 6.rs8jlgg. c¡o{5gSi dewa }ks

15.å08109.979.{t60 Hwy. 99W Capacîry Allocation progrÐm {CApl
16,¡S¡399.08{,-o7gBike Paths
r EditEr's Note: Some sect¡ons may not contain a history.

16.¡S8:99.0 10 Generally

A. Creation

Public streets shall be created in accordance with provisions of thas Chapter. Except as otherwise
provided, all street improvements and rights-of-way shall conform to standards for the City's functional
streêt classificat¡on e+Êå¡d-É{#€€ts, as shown on the @ Map ¡¡g[t-shew+¡+t
Figure 1, of Chapter 6 sf the Community Development Plan, and i+other applicable City standards. The

followinE table deplcts the guidelinçs fg¿The ¡treqt cþareserisliçl

64

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 899



Principal
A*erial{99W}

5',6' L4'122' 4-6 12' Proh¡bited 6'

60-
to2'

72' Limited 6 feet 6-8 f' L4'if
required

5'Arterial 2-5

74',

median
turn lane

Colleetor 6-8', 5',58-92', 2-3 L1' ' 8'optional 6'

40'
Commercialllnd
strial
Nst Exceeding
30ül vehicles
per day

5'264', z0', none 6', none8'

sd
Commercial/
lndustrial
Exceeding
3000 vehicles
per day

64' 2 12' g' 5' 6', 5', none

Neighborhood
1,000 vehicles
per day

5'with 1'
buffer

g' 2 1g' None g' none8'

8'on one
slde only

5'with 1'
buffer

Local 52' 2 L4' None Þ none

One side if
2A,

nonenone none noneAlley 16-25', L-2 \O-Lz',

llowntown
Street
Standard

tz'
pedestria

n zone

4'

{included
in

pedestrian

zone

11',60' z 7', none none

Type of Sreet Right Number
of of Lanes

way
width

Minimum
Lane

width

On Street
Parking
width

Bike
Lane

width

Landscape
Strip

{exclusive
of Curb)

Sidewalk
W¡dth

Median
W¡dth

Ordinance 2011-011. Exhibä 1-A
October4, 201'1, Page I o{ 55

B. Street Naming

I t. All streets created by *he-subdivision or partition pre€€€+will be named prior to submission of

the final plat.

Any street created by a public dedication shall be named prior to or upon acceptance of
the deed of dedication.

An action to name an unnarned street in the City may be initîated by the Council or by a

person filing a pet¡tion as described in this Section.

2,

3.

65

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 900



Ordnance 2011-011, Exh¡b¡t 1-A
Ociober 4. 201 1, Page 10 of 55

4, All streets named shall conform to the general requirements as outlined in this Section.

5. ¡+¡va*+treetsr-¡At the request of the owner(s), *{*be+e+n.@
withthe appravar af tfte Çh.fhe Citv mav aqprove a grivate street name and address, Private streets are

subject to the same street name standards as are public streets. All private street signs will be

provided at the owner{s} expense.

Public Places

- 1, Àn aetien te renarne e street in*ire €itÏ may be lnltiatcC by theÇssnc¡l¡

b, lf a Fer¡e+flles a Fet¡tien aç deçcr'bed in thic cectle'l ac€empânieC by a fee reaç€riebly

3, rtpetition fer na¡ning er ren¡mk¡g a street ¡halljrclsCe th€ felþw¡ng;

a- { ataternent e[the re¡¡sÊeferthe prsp$ed name çhenge'

þ, Tþe narnes-a¡d aCdre-se- sf all Feruen+ewnirE any real prepertï abuË¡ing the râed

e Jlgn¿tsreçef elthe r ewnerå sf sixty F€rçent {6096} sf the lanC abutting the ssbj€€èread

er çlxtV Feree nt {599á}+f*h€ alvners ef lanC abutÈing the ¡ubúeÊt- rea4

Æ¡nC

a, \rr¡hen a prseeeC¡ng.hãã.been idt¡ð¡e4+mder thb segtlen-the GeÞFeil ¡h¡l| eståLlþlFe
* tl¡ne and place fer * hearing te censlder whethar the Frepes€d nârne ehanBe l* in the Fubllc

-¡å+€'regth -åt least ten {48} days prier re ùhe Cate g[ hearinFn€tkê ef thefrop€¡ed narnÈehanÊe

(*i Net'ree by Be"tlng ln ne les then t¡ye {3i eer¡¡Þieueu¡ plaeec abutting.lhe ¡uIe* read;

-----------åtìd

, {31 Natiee by pgbllcãtþ*in a ¡}eyrspaper-ef gerer¡+eirÊelatien in the ar€a ef.the ssbie€t

------reã+

e Burlet er befere a heering u¡rder tåls se*ien; any p€rsen FßaFfìlê lnforrnatiên witþ the
, €sunc¡lthat all€ger ¡ny new m¡tÈer re¡€vsnt ts the preteedingç er eentÍaverE any matter

@

66

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 901



Ðe.

t.

Ordinance 2011-0'l l, ExhibÍt 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Pâge '1 1 of 55

C, Âfter cEnslderihg*he metter; F¡esented snCer th'r€ se€¡ien¡ the Csueçit-hall deternrlne

- - whether.*he name ehange ls iß-the publlc-¡

e When the erCinanee beesmer finalrthe Cecne¡l s\all eause the €rd¡mn€e Èe be

Þe^eÉ+nenÈef Publlc W'erks¡ the gepartment ef Âåsesáfient anC Taxatisn and with the Ceunty

---------Su+æye+

f, Fer th€ p"Teçeç ef this 5€€l¡€n-llev*nerj'fiean' t'he re€erC trelder ef ,lef¡l tllle t+lhe
lend, exeept tbat if there ls a Furehaser+f the land ae€Êrding te a,reserCed lãnd såle eentra€ç

@
Street Narfie Standards

Al[ streets named or renamed shall comply with the following cr¡ter¡a:

a. Major streets and highways shall ma¡ntain a common name or number for the ent¡re

alignment.

b. Whenever practicable, names as specified ¡n this Sect¡on shall be utilized or retained.

c. Hyphenated or exceptionally long names shall be avcided.

d, Simifar names such as Faruiew and Fairview or Salzman and Saltzman shall be avoíded.

e. Consideration shall be given to the continuation of the name of a street in another
jurisdiction when it is extended into the City.

The following classifications {suffixes} shall be utilized in the assígnment of all street namesl

a. Boulevards: North/south arterials providing through traffic movement across the

community.

b. Rsads: East/west arterials providing thrcugh traffic movement across the comrnunity.

c- Avenues: Continuous, norlh/south collectors or extensions thereof.

d. Streets: Continuous, east-west collectors or extensions thereof,

e. Ðrives: Curvilinear collectors {less than 180 degrees) at least 1,000 feet in length or

more.

f. Lanes: Short east/west local streets under 1,0û0 feet ¡n length.

C. Terraces: short northlsouth local streets under 1,000feet in length.

h. Court: All east/west cul-de-sacs.

2

67

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 902



Ordlnance 2011-011, Exhib¡t 1-A
Octob€r 4, 201 1, Page 12 of 55

i. Place: All north/south cul-de-sacs.

j. Ways: All looped local streets iexceeding 180 degreesl'

k. Parkway: A broad landscaped collector or arterial.

3. Except as provided for by this section, no street shall be given a name that is the sarne

as, similar to, or pronounced the same as any other street in the Cky unless that street

ís an extensisn of an already-named street.

4, All proposed street names shall be approved, prior to use, by the City.

€q. Preferred Street NamÊs

Whenever practicable. historical names will be considered in the naming or renaming of public roads.

Historicalfactors to be considered shall include, but not be limited to the following:

L. Original holders of Donation Land Claims in Sherwaod.

2. Early homesteaders or settlers of Sherwood.

3. ' Heirs of original settlers or long-time (50 or rnore yean) residents of Sherwood.

4, Explorers of or having to do with Sherwood.

5. lndian tribes of Washington County.

6. Early leaders and pioneers of eminence.

7. Names related to Sherwood's flora and fauna.

8. Names associated with the Robin Hood legend.

{Ord, No. 2010-015, S 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2005-006, S 5; Ord. 92-947, $ 1; Ord' 9l-922\t

Note: Section 15.108.020, Street Systems lmprovement Fees {5lF} was repealed by Ordinance

9l-922 5 19) and permanently relocated in the Municipal Code).

16,¡S¡119å.9¡l&9!0 jRequired lmprovernents

Generally

Except as otherwise provided, all developments containing or ãbutting an existing or proposed

street, that þ either unimproved or substandard in right-of-way width or improvernent, shall

dedicate the necessary right-of-way prior to the íssuance of building permits and/or complete

acceptable improvements prior to issuance of occupancy permits. The following figure provides

A.

68

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 903



Ordinance 20'l l-011, Exhibit 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Page 13 of 55

the depiction sf the functional classification of the street network as found in the Transportation System

Plan, Figure 8-1.

Clty olSlrøuoad
T rt n E ørildtüon SYrtrn Plan

rtgr-
Læ

l[ffi

Legend

F.falbí¡Clã

I

ï

FSrrârH
lrd

ffi
ÊËaú*
Xd4t rd
ñFatldútd
td

ffi
lkqúürtt

J¡

ffi.n i A
''tlg \ úf.QrtW .l o'*t: .tr.¡Ebø¡t ,

FlguÞE-l
FUf{CnOilALCl.lgs

B, Existing Streets

Except as otherwise provided, when a development abuts an existing street, the improvements

requ¡rement shall apply to that portion of the street right-of-way located between the

centedine of the right-of-way and the prope*y line of the lot proposed for development. ln no

event shall a required street improvement for an existing street exceed â pavement wídth of
thifi (30) feet.

Proposed Streets

Except as otherwise provided, when a development includes or abuts a proposed street,

in no event shall the required street improvement exceed a pavement width of forty {40} feet.

Half Streets: When a half street is created, a minimum of 22feet of driving surface shall be

provided by the developer.

Extent of I rn proverîents

Streets required pursuant to this Chapter shall be dedicated and improved consistent with
Chapter6oftheCommunþDevelopmentPlan,the@and

c.

1.

z.

D.

I

69

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 904



Ordinance 2A1l411, Exhibit 1-A
October4, 201 I, Page 14 of 55

applicable City s+andads-an4specificat¡ons included in the City of Sherwood Construction
Standards,--e*C Streets shall include curbs, sidewôlks, catch basins, street lights, and street
trees. lmprovements shall also include any bikeways designated on the Transportation System
Plan map. Âr++Ååpqlicants may be recsireÇ. to_Cedic¿te Iand,åg+bt¡¡4for reauired oubTic

improvements onlv whenJhe exaction is directly related to and roughly proportionalto the
impact of the developrnent.

2. tf the aoplic:nt is reo?ired to orovide Stree!

-_=¡rnÊrovements, 

tbg]elilEn€i[qe]"nE:¡j¡cce¡llê_fu!u.re imnrovernents süarantge ¡n lisu gf

a. A oartial imorovement is not feasible due to ihe inabilitv-ts açhieve Þroaèr desieri st;tndards;

b. A rartlal imÊrçvernent mav create a sotentlal safetv lra¡ard to mqtarists o¡ æll-estrians-

c. Ðue to the nature ofgxistinq devqlcnmenlg! idþcent nroperties it is unlikelv thal strÊet
Ineroveæe¡$-woulçl
with tlie proiect undeJ review does not. bv itself. orovide a sienificant imorovement to street
safetv or capacitv;

d. The imovovement woufd be in conflict with an aElgple{canitalimorovemènt slan;

e, Th.e improveqent ís alsociated wilh an a*rroved land.p-artiticn on proplr-tv roned resj$etlSiat

use a0d the prgrsged land partition doec not creatÊ-ânv new stfeets: or

f. AdditþJ.al pfanni¡s work Is required to define the aoprporlate desian st¡ndardF {sr the streel
and the annlicatiql is fqr a pr*iect $Êhkþ.that would contribute 4nlvaminornortionçf
anticipated future traffic on the street.

6aèch b¡cins shall be installed and eenn€€'teC te 5Ê€ff!, ser¿rer5 and dr¡¡nage wrys' UF€n €EmFletiån sf

¡fie¡m

fublie+treat ¡ñt€rs€elien and all pelnts ef Hrvature and pelnts ef tangenE ef thek eenter llnê¡' Street

ç¡

esC€rÊ{€Ìrâ+5€es€c-st+$pp@nes¡a+tredavelopmeat-a+*ao*-ü nd*+g{€€ñd'

E. S++eeçfransportat¡on fac odifications

1. {gModificat¡ons to a standards contaíned within th¡s Chapter and Section 15.58,010 and the

standardcrosssectionscontainedinChapter8oftheadopted@

--+la¡-iTSP) 

may be granted in accordance with the procedures and criteria set out in this section.

2. Typ€r sf M€dif l6etþnr, &€$'eçte fåll-wlthlo the fol¡orving:tw€ Êategår¡eså

i,¡*@equests
concerng a deviation from the eenstrsetien ef faeilities¡ rather thsn the¡{ general design

70

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 905



Ordinance 201ïAfi, Exh¡b¡t 1-A
October 4, 201 f , Page 15 of 55

stã.ndards for ef-pubtic facilities, âfld ãre limlted t€ t iåg

MinthisChapter,5ection-16.58.Û10,tåqlor-châpter8
eenra+n*+-;ln the adopted Transportation System Plani.The fellgl¡¡i*ß stqldards lhat

-¡¡¿y 

bç nodified th¡s'@tndude bul are not limiled toi

(tr) Surfaeing materíal+fer reeds er pedectrían fa€ilities'

(3] ¡lsphalt and/er base rec& thtekness lesçthan reqsired'

i'l) Ëxeeedine,@

i5) Type andler leeatien ef signage.

#¡efi'

{7i l¡rtemeg'llenlnleriaranÊ¡e¡ard curbea'd¡¡J€;'Ëthan reqslr€C'

{81 Utlll¡hg the eu¡rent ¡aì 6f ct¡ndarC' ln lieg ef *he çtandarCr thãt uere l+F¡as€ nh€n

the applieant's prepes€d prejeet wãå vesteC,

tg) lleeesg reþ+ed medíficâtiens ente=ê€lle*er¡, art€rbls¡ anéstâte rsutes Prwided ethef

--*¡¡bst*aiivs+d+€Fþr@lied 

eece¡e pslntgare r*É; aaC FrçviCed

fuûher thet aeeees ¡e a lecser clas¿iflÊr¡ien €f read ls net avallable,

f 191 Needed eh¡ñge+ as a res¡{l+ of +field investi¡Tatb* during €€nstrc*ien,

{11} Sirnilar revi¡ieas te the standads'

.- b- .. gesign llodífìeatlens, OeciÊÍ.m€difiÊåtiene Ceel whþthe vefti€al and heri¡sntal
*.õ'eometrkranC.¡¡ft$y ¡elateC ists€+'ÐÊ'C-å*€l ¡*

. . €hapter, 5eetien *6,5S'âlÊ er €haFter 8 eress se*iens in the ¡CsFteC Trånspertatíen System

------Pta¡d+)

a. Reduced sight distances.

{¿þ. Verticalalignment.

t$S. Horizontalalignment.

{41d. Geometric design (length, width, bulb radius, etc.),

t$e. Design speed

i5li. Crossroads.

+lg. Access policy.

71

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 906



Odinance 2011-01'1, Exhibit 1-A
October4, 201 1, Page'16 of 55

S.b. A proposed alternative design which provides a plan superior to these standards'

i. Access Management Plans

3, Prs€€dsre, 11 rieCifi€€tien reqse¡t ¡hall be e¡åssified ag a* adm¡nlctrativeCe€iei€n bY

Æ
#
. e, ACrninis*rat¡ve ¡!1sC¡fiæ¡¡ên'J\Crnhbtrât¡ve mÈdif¡Getlens mðy-be regs€åted 3¡ ¡nY tirFê

¡nd are frececceC.ðÉityFsll apFl¡€atbnå unless Ceân€C under {Cl{¿l belew' The aFFlkatþn

chall*rs¡gd*guffkient+eehni€¡i-enalysi¡ te enðble rree¡sned Ceei¡isÐil'C sh¡ll inslude e letÈer

ef eenegrreney frern the €itY EnÊineer.

*b3. 
----Ðesie+ModificationProcedurea. ÐesignålmA modificationc shall be proposed with the s$bm+t+al€pgf |.c-atiqn for land use

a P.n rovâ l.þåd+5€{PFr€¡raL-

in eanisn€Èien wltl' the apFlleatierrfsr the undêrþlÊg

b. A Tå€-modificqt¡on is processed as a Type llf application. Ð€Êign#Modification requests

shall 
-be 

processed in conjunction with the underlying development proposal.+rnJes+

it¡çc*bs*+e+
++eAe$en-m€d¡fi€a+ien- eppli€å+¡e"€åa¡t

in thÊ FnÊitesrins Desisn Manual'the modif¡cqt¡on process will aoolv' but the

mod f¡"e wlll hc waived.

wsuld make apBrsval ef the requ€st{easenabl*

{3} lnelcde ejetter ef €sneurreneY frem the €it" Engineer'

{¡4 ge+eeernPanied by a mep shewlnê Èhèåppllcable ex¡rting €snC'*¡en*end PrsF€¡€d

esnstrueúien sesh as esnteu*r wgtlanC.ç¡ s¡gnifiÊenttrÊes; laftes¡ streame and rivel+7 stilitieSl

FreF€rty l¡nes, existing:and prop€iéC r€ads{nd dr¡r'iewt'yg¡ ex¡Eùing ¡nd prejEcted traffl€

{41 +n rhe ease €f f,nsdlfîl¡tisr requestç ba¡eC up€n alleged disPrÊFertienålíFÊ+nçlude an

- engheerlng analyslç ef th€ çtandarC sesght te be rned#ied whiÊt¡ sentrests felevantstraffie

impaets frenrtåe deve{eFment wtth the eest ef eem'lv+ng wi+h-the ¡tandard'

72

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 907



Ordinance 2011-011, Exhibii 1-A
October 4, 201 1 , Page 1 7 of 55

# ¡så
. *ha{l inejsde infarm¡tb+lrdl€åtinË wh€ther tå€¡e ¡re €ggÉraFhi+er ether fadere *rhkh render

ee¡rn e etienf se m pletisn ef tie read snf easibl e'

4. -_._Criteria for Modification:Street@may be granted when criterion 4a

and any one of -criteria 4b_through 4l4e are rnet:

is€ ¡Ëâee. {

a. glsgtueåJç,8!_blir

5¡f#--dgraþdÊlt cost of ma¡ttenance çace' an¿ ottier ao

tactg_Isr-åuch€åto adv¿ n ce th e soa lffi s n erwoo¿ Co mnrett e n

.aad:ranqpprfa@" anv'm.qdifiçafig¡$åll-bsJhe'gi$&ue-
neceg¡arv to altev¡ate

b, Topography, right-of-way, ex¡st¡ng constructiôn or physical conditions, or other

geographic conditions irnpose an unusual hardship on the applicant, and an equivalent

alternative which can accomplish the same design purpose is available.

c. A minar change to a specification or standard is required to address a specific design or

construction probtem which, if not enacted, will result in an unusual hardship. Self-

imposed hardships shall not be used as a reason to grant a modification request.

An alternative design is proposed which will provide a plan equal to or superior to the

existing street standards,

Application of the standards of this chãpterto the development would be grossly

disproportional to the impacts created.

Ê Jn,rcrirïr¡ng *,
d@ðä€er*tft€tîÊ

***ffþe¡aç-..qñygtad*fiÊrti€"r---th*gÈ*tit*#ir*'ñT¡t*as€€.eit*'t€-ÐlhuieAÊtå'e.Fard*hif€t
d*p#êf€*þ"djgp{* (Ord. No. 2010-015, 5 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; Ord. 2005-009 5 5; Ord. 91-

922; Ord. 86- 851, $ 3)

16.*s8106.ro0 Locatïon

A. Generally

The location, width and grade of streets shall be considered in their relation to existing and planned

streets, topographical conditions, and proposed land uses. The proposed street system shall provide

adequate, convenient and safe traffic and pedestrian circulation, and intersection angles, grades,

tangents, and curves shall be adequateforexpected traffic volumes. Street alignrnents shall be

consístent with solar access reguirements as per Chapter 16.156, and topographical considerations.

d.

e.

73

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 908



B.

L.

Ordinance 201 1{1 1, Exh¡blt 1-A

Octcber 4, 20 I 1 , Pãge 18 of 55

,a;l

2.

Street Connectivity and Future Street Systems

Future Street Systems. The arrangement of publíc streets shal! provide for the continuêtion and

establishment of future street systems as shown on the Local Street Cannectivity Map contained

in the adopted Transportation System Plan {Figure 8-8i.

D¡lS.Assocrbl¿s

_t !

I,r :

'.

le#lffiJ
i; :¡

t

ar

,.j.";;1t I
--4

!
,:.f

:, \
,. '1
¡it,t:

!

J'.

{fìi
39gJ

A
Flgun 0{

LOCAL 3I¡E€T COXNËCTMW

Connectivity Map Required. New residential, commercial, and mixed use development

involving the constructisn of new streets shall be submitted with a s¡te plan that implements,

responds to a nd expands on the Local Street Connectivity map contained in the TSP.

a. _A project is deemed to be consistent with the Local Street Connectivity map when it
provides a street connection in the general vicinity of the connectlcn(s) shown on the

rnap, orwhere such connection is not practicable due to topography or other physical

constraints; it shall provide an alternate connection approved by the ßeview-
@.
b. _Where a developer does not control all of the land that ís necessary to complete a

planned street connection, the development shall províde for as much of the

designated connect¡on as practicable and not prevent the streetfrorn continuing in

the future.

g. Where a developrnent is disproportionately irnpacted by a required street connection,

or it provides more than ¡ts propoft¡onate share of street improvements along property

74

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 909



3.

4.

Ordinence 2011-C11, Exhib¡t 1-A
Odober 4, 201 1, Page f9 of 55

line (i.e., by building more than 3/4 width sÍeet), the developer shall be ent¡tled to
System Development charge credits, as determined by the City Engineer.

Block Length, For new streets except arterials, block lengh sha ll not exceed 530 feet. The

length of blocks adjacent to arterials shall not exceed 1,800 feet.

Where streets must cross waterfeatures identified in Title 3 of the Urban Growth

Management Functional Plan (UGMFP), provide crossings at an average spacing of 800 to 1,200

feet, unless habitat quality or length ofcrossing prevents a full street connection.

Where full street connections overwaterfeatures identified in Title 3 of the UGMFP cannot be

constructed in centers, main streets and station communities {including direct connections from
adjacent neighborhoods!, or spacing of full street crossings exceeds 1,200 feet, provide bicycle

and pedestrian crossings at an average spacing of 530 feet, unless exceptional habitat quality or
length ofcrossing prevents a connection.

Pedestrian and Bicycle Connectivity. Paved bike and pedestrian accessways consistent with cross

section standards in Figure 8-6 of the TSP shall be provided on public easements cr_ríght-

of-way when full street connections are not possible, with spâcing between connections of no

more than 300 feet. Multi-use paths shall be built according to the Pedestrian and Bike Master

Plans in the adopted- TSP.@.

Exceptions, Streets, bike, and pedestrian connections need not be constructed when any ofthe
following condltions exists ;

a. Physical or topographic conditions make a street or accessway connection

ímpracticable. 5uch conditions include but are not limlted to freeways, railroads, steep

slopes, wetlands or other bodies of water where ã cûnnection could not reasonably be

provided.

Buildings or other existing development on adjacent lands physically preclude a

connection now or in the future considering the potential for redevelopment; or

c. Where streets or accessways would violate provisions of leases, easernents, covenants,

restrictíons or other agreements existing as of May 1, 1995, which preclude a required
street or accessway connectíon.

C. Underground Util¡ties

All public and private underground utilities, including sanitary sewers and storm water drains, shall be

constructed prior to the surfacing of streets, Stu bs for service connections shall be long enough to avoid

disturb¡ng the street ¡mprovements when service connections are rnade.

{Ord. No. 2010-015, S 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2006-021; Ord. 2005-017 $ 5; Ord, 2005-009, $ 5; Ord. 9t-922;
ord.85-851.1

ç

5.

7

b.

75

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 910



Ordinancê 201 1{11, ã(hibít 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Pege 20 of 55

D. Additional Setbacks

I Generally Addfti6p¡þd6¡1¡6¡6¡ 5etbacks apply when the width of a street right-of-way abutting a

development is lessthan the standard width underthe functional classifications in Section Vl of the
Community Development Pl¿n. Additional setback are intended to provide unobstructed area for
future street right-of-way dedication and improvements, in conformance with Section Vl. Addit¡onal
setbacks shall be measured at right angles from the centerline ofthe street.
TABLE INSET:

16-1{8¡gÉ.s50ffLÊr#es+Design

Standard cross sections showing street design and pavement dimensions are located in the City of
SherwoodTransportation5ystemPlan.andCftyofSherwood's.@andStandard
D-eta i ls €eç¡t¡u+tþ* M a n u a l.

A. Reserve Strips

I neserue strips or street plugs controlling access or extensions to streets shâ{lare not bsallowed unless

necessary for the protection of the public welfare or of substantial property rights. All reserve strips

shall be dedicated to the S¡+Tapprotrr¡ate iurifd

B. Alignment

All proposed streets shall, as far as practicable, be in alignment with existing:tr€ets. ln no case shall the

staggering of streets create â "T" intersection or a dangerous condition. Street offsets of less than one

hundred (100) feet willgre not b+allowed.

C. Future Extension

Where necessary to access or permit future subdivision or development of adjo¡ning land, streets shall

extend to the boundary ofthe prooosed develogment and provide ethe

w¡dt.Dead-endstreet5lessthan100'inJenÊfhshalleitheç
comply wíth
tir+ñarg

eefifi€dl&rñåÈthe E neineerine Desisn Ma nua l.

Classification Addit¡onal Setback

1. l¡aier-!¡igcjgle.A rteria I lpgv$ 51 feet

7. l¡lire¡Arterial 37 feet

3. Collector :Saeer3?_tCC!

4. {,eeal- Neiphborhood Route ¡SJeet-¡Z fee!-

5. Local 26 feet

76

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 911



Ordlnance 2011{1 1 , Exh¡bit 1-A
Oclobar 4, 20'11, Page 21 of 55

I A durable sign shall be installed at the applicant's expense. These signs shall notify the public of the

intent to constfuct future streets. The sign shall read as follows: "This road witl be extended with future

devetopment. For more information contact the City of Sherwood at5O3-625-42A2.!

D, lntersection Angles

----------l-Streets shall interse{t äs nearto ninety i90} degree angles as practical, except r¡r¡þs¡g 

-
---..=--*opagraphv 

requires a,lesser angle. ln a+gllçases.ltrg-ap.pllca$-fuJl-comply with +êfu¡

t+the Engineering 0esisn tYlanual.

*¡tlogt€ñåp

te al¡ew fer a rgãdì¡¡ay edge råCiur ef twerly {39i feet and maintel* a gniferm width betv'reenthe

@i*e-
A. -. 

^Ê€rþ1, 
c€l{e€t6rçtfeet9, eÊne¡åhbçråq€C rêut€i iÊterseéidE w¡th ðnether street tha¡l hâvt¡t

þatÊ+nehsn n6'n@ireåa

¡Ê+€{€e*¡etr*

E. Cul-de-sacs

1.

z.

Allcul-de-sacs shatl

be used only when exceptional topographical

constraints, existing developrnent patterns, or comp[iance with other standards in this code

preclude a street extension and circulation. A culde-sac:Ên*shall not-be nemore than Wo
hundred {Z€Lfee! ir lencth and shal not ¡:roYld*access to more tban ?5 dwelliqs unig'

All cul-de-sacs shalIterminate with a s¡+

urnaround in accordance with the

specifications in the Eneineerins Design anC Censtrsetien-Manual. The radius of circular

turnarounds may be larger when they contain a landscaped island, parking bay in their center,

Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue submits a written request, or an industrial use requires a larger

turnaround for truck access,

t$e *ear side ef the intersesting street te the fe¡thest pâiÊt ef ìhe su4'&Public easements,

tracts, or right-of-way shall provide paved pedestrian and bicycle access wavs at least 6 feet

wide where 4cul-de-sacs or dead-end streetsafr-!å planned, to connect the ends of the streets

together, connect to other streets, aRdfor connect to other exist¡ng or planned developments in

accordance with the standãrds of this Chaptef', ttre f5Þ.

S*a¡da¡d+SejgltManual sr gthe.L¡Iovlsions identified in this Codq fsr the særyrvation of in

er4ler-*e*rÊfe¡¡ètrees.

F. Grades and Curves

77

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 912



Ordinance 2011-01 1. Exhiblt 1-A
Ociober 4, 201 I, Page 22 of 55

6r¿des sþ¿ll be evaluated by. the.Fitv Eûglgeer and.comply with the tngineerins Oesisn Manual.*êt

B*€eef s¡x perËent{6#,} Í€r d

l¡gglfÊet f€r ãrËerials ersne+undred (lggl feet fsF sÈher str€ets' Where €,+¡5t¡nF{þnd¡tJsBrrtgcbaE

@
Flnis\ed streÊt grades sh¿llhava a minlrt{rm sþpêel-âne half per€€flt t #3t6},

G. Streets Adjacent to Railroads

Streets adjacent to railroads shall run approximately parallel to the railroad and be separated by a

distance suitable to allow landscapÍng and buffering between the street and railroad' Due consideration

shall be given at cross streets for the minimum distance required for future grade separations and to

provide sufficient depth to allow screening of the railroad.

H. Buffering of Major Streets

Where a developrnent abuts Highway 99W, or an existing or proposed principal arterial, arterial or

collector street, or neithborhood route, adequate protection for residential properties shall be provided

and through and localtraffic shall be separated ¿nd traffic conflicts minimized. ln addition, visual

corridors pürsuant to Section 16.L42.030, and all applicable access provisions of Chapter 16.96, shall be

met. Buffering may be achieved by: parallel access streets, lots of extra depth abutting the major street

with frontage along another street, or other treatment suitable to meet the objectives of this Code,

t. Mþdian lslands

As il,ustrated in €hapter+eåthe adopted Transportat¡orf System Plan, Chaoter 8. median islands may be

required €5e+an arterial or collector streets for the purpose of controlling access,gþþgþ
pedestrian +eafetv o[ for aesthetic purposes.

! Transit Facilitíes

Developments along 4existing or proposed transit routes, as illustrated in Figure 7-2 in the TSF, åhal{

b+jr required to prov¡de areas and facilities for bus turnouts, she¡ters, and other transit-related facilities

to Tri-Met specifications. Transít facilities shall also rneet the following requirements:

1. Locate buildings within Z0 feet of or províde a pedestrian plaza at major trans¡t stops.

78

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 913



2.

3

Ordinance 2A11411, Exhibit 1-A
October 4. 201 1, Page 23 of 55

Provide reasonably direct pedestr¡an ænnecttsns between the transit slop and building

entrances on the site.

Provide a transit passenger landing pad accessible to disabled persons {if not already

existing to transit ag€ncy standards).

Provide an easement or dedication for a passenger shelter and underground utility

connection from the new development to the transit amenity if requested by the public

transit provider.

5. Provide lighting at a transit stop {if not already existÍng to trans¡t ãgency standards}

+(. Traffic C¡ntrols

t. Fe¡J!$ apollcatian fgr¿oraposed residqntial developmen-tçthat y¡ill generate more than {¡ritl}

e{€Êan estimated 200 avqrage dailv vehþle trips {ÁDll

@icsmust include a traffíc impact analysis to determine the

_number and types of traffic conüols necessary to accommodate anticipated traffic flow. Sseh

E¡æ
Z. For ell other orocpsed develcoments includine comrnercial, iqdustrlal ¡r insTitutional

uses wfth_gvet a¡ estimated 4t0 ADT. or âs othen¡,¡ise fecuired bv-the Cltv Ëneineer.-Lhe

application must inck¡de a tæff¡c lmnact anelltsis to deiermiEthe nllrqber and tvoes of traffíc.

controls necessarv tg accommodate antlcioated traffic flow.

-ML. Traffic Calrning

-l_ The following roadway design features, including internal circulation drives, may be

requíred by the City in new construction in areas where tr¿ffìc calming needs are

antic¡pated:

a. Curb extensions {bulb-outs},

b. Traffic diverters/circles.

c. Alternative paving and painting patterns.

d. Raised crosswalk, speed humps, and pedestrían refuges.

e. Other methods demonstrated as effective through peer reviewed engineering studies.

With approval of the €ity Engineer, traffic calming measures such as speed humps and

addltíonal stop signs can be applied to mitigate traffic operations andlor safety

problems on exist¡ng streets. They should not be applied with new street construction

unless approved by the City Engineer and Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue.

4-

2.

79

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 914



Ordinance 2011-011, Exhibit 1'A
October ¿t, 201 1, Page 24 ol 55

M.¡t Vehicular Access Management

All developments shall have legalaccess to a public road. Access onto public streets shall be permitted

upon demonstration of compliance with the provisions of adopted street stãndards in the €¡tY-sf

5¡e*¡¡s,sd-T+ã.n6pe4ðt¡e++e€ååi€åls+ãnda¡dç*a*tåe++ande+cs-ef+hiss¡siç¡,on fuclleed!ß-De5igry

Manual.

L. Measurement: See the following access diagram where R/W = Right-of-Way; and P'l' =

point-of{ntersection where P.l, shall be located based upon a 90 degree angle of

intersection between ultimate right-cf-way li nes'

ã. Mínimum right-of-way radius at intersections shatl conform to city standards'

b. All minimum distances stated in the following sections shall be governed by sight

distance requirements according to !¡re C¡sl4glneellls Design 3åd4€nstrsdieR---_-

ual.

All minimum distances stated in the following sections shall be measured to the nearest

easement line of the access or edge of travel lane of the access on both sides of the

road.

All minimum distances between accesses shall be measured from existing or approved

accesses cn both sides ofthe road.

Minimum spacing between driveways shall be measured from Point "c" to Point "C" as

shown below:

GRAPHIC UNAVAILABLE: Click here

Roadway Access

No use will be permitted to have direct õccess to a street or road except as specified below'

ACcess spacing shall be measured frcrn existing or approved accesses on either side of a street

or road. The lowest funetional classification street available to the legal lot' including alleys

within a public easernent, shall take precedence for new access points'

a. Local Streets:

Minimum right-of-way radius is fifteen {15}feet. Access will not be permitted within ten (10}

feet of Point ,'8,,' if no radius exísts, access will not be permitted within twentyjive (25) feet of

point',4.,' Access points near an intersection with a Neighborhood Route, Collector or Arterial

shall be located beyond the influence of standing gueues of the intersection in accordance u¡ith

AASHT9 standards. This requirement may result in access spacing greater than ten i10] feet'

c.

d.

e.

¿.

b, Neighborhood Routes

80

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 915



ordinanse 2011411, Exhlbit 1-A
Odober 4, 201 1, Page 25 of 55

Minimum spacing between driveways (Point "C" to Point "C") shall be fifty {50} feet with lhe

exception of single family residential lots in a recorded subdivisisn. Such lots shall not be subject

to a minimum spacing requirement between driveways {Point "C" to Point "C"}. ln all instances,

access po¡nts near an intersection with a Neighborhood Route, Collector or Arterial shall be

located beyond the influence of standing queues of the intersection in accordance with AASHTO

standards. This requirement may result in access spacíng greater than fifty {50} feet'

e. Cof lectors:

All commercial, industrial and institutional uses with one-hundred-fifty (150) feet or more of

frontage will be permitted direct access to a Collector. Uses wíth less than one-hundred-fifty

(150) feet of frontage shall not be permitted direct access to Collectors unless no other

alternative exists.

+h€+e,!Uhgls joint access is available it shall be used, provided that such use is cons¡stent with

Sect¡on 16,96.04O, Joint Access. No use will be permitted direct access to a Collector within one-

hundred {100} feet of any present Point "A." Minimum spacing betr¡¡een driveways {Point "C" to

Point "C")shall be one-hundred {100}feet. ln all instances, access points nearan intersection

with a Collector or Arterialshall be located beyond the influence of standing queues of the

¡ntersect¡on ín accordance with AASHTO standards. This requirement may result in access

spacing greaterthan one hundred (100) feet.

d. Arterials and Highway 99W - Points of ingress or egress to and from Highway 99W and

arterials designated on the Transportat¡on Plan Map, attached as Figure 1 of the Community

Development Plan, Part ll, shall be limited as follows;

(1) Single and two-family uses and manufactured homes on individual residential lots

developed after the effective date of this Code shall not be granted permanent driveway ingress

or egress from Highway 99W or arterials. lf alternative public access is not available at the time

of development, provisions shall be made for temporary access which shall be discontinued

upon the availability of alternative access.

(21 Other private ingress or egress from Highway 99W and arterial roadways shãll be

minimized. Where alternatives to Highway 99W or arterials exist or are proposed, any new or

altered uses developed after the effective dête of this Code shall be required to use the

alternative ingress and egress. Alternatives include shared or crossover access âgreement

between properties, consolidated access poínts, or frontage or backage roads. When

alternatives do not exist, access shallcomply with the following standards:

(a) Access to Highway 99W shall be consistent with ODOT standards and policies per OAR

734, Division 51, as follows: Direct access to an arteríal or principal arterial will be permitted

províded that Point 'A' of such access is more than six hundred {600) feet from any intersection

Point'A' or other access to that arteríal {Point'C'}.

81

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 916



3

Ordinance 2011{11, Exh¡bit 1-A
October 4, 201 1 , Page 26 of 55

{b} The access to Highway 99W wif I be considered temporary until an alternat¡ve access to

public right-of-ways is created. When the alternat¡ve access is available the temporary access to

Highway 99W shall be closed.

{3) Alt site plans for new development submitted to the City for approval after the effective

date of this Code shall show ingress and egress from existing or planned local, neighborhood

route or collector streets, including frontage or backage roads, cûnsiste*t with the

Transportation Plan Map and Chapter 6 of the Community Development Plan.

Exceptions to Access Criteria for City-Owned Streets

a, Alternate points of access may be allowed if an access management plan which

maintains the classified function and integrity of the applicable facility is subrnitted to

a nd *evie,¡eda*C-*¡ pproved by the City En gineer-@
@asTthe access manaeement plan must be included as oart

of the säÊ€&land use sub'mtttal or an ¡rplicatian for msdìficatlon as described Jn Ë

16. 106, 0?0 E. f Trãnspcrtatjon +ãcilitiçs M rdiflcãtioqs@ l
Mansa{.

medifieatlen åfld Cemofirtrate tåðtthe nedÉieatien m¡intå¡fi5the clasålfled fun€tlefl.tnd

Ma*a€e*rest ÂFFlieatien she¡tbe inçluded $íith tbeaFflkaÈ¡erÞ inc¡udkg¡citatiefiå'Ëåfuþers
ef engineerh'E publ¡€etiens uE€d te dernÐflçtrate eaølPlhû€e

. -. e,, r1n aeee¡+ñan^æn¡ent pþn çhall adCre¡c the safqty and eperaÊienal'Frebl€fiç wl"k=h

wesld be enes$ntered sheulC a rneClflêät¡âfi t€ th€ aeeer¡ tpaeint standarCs b€ graatrd, Âå

aeeess mäõaËernent plan ehall be FreFareC and eertlfìed bt- ¡ trafË€ er eivilengineepreBict€|€d

in the Stete sf Êregen, /un a€€ess manageñ€nçBla¡+ shal¡ õt minimsm ssntain lhe fÉllsvtlsF

{lt The nrìâìmsm sÊsCy are¡ shall-ln€lcdsth€ lengh ef the site'rfrsntããe Plss th€ diçt¡nêe

- ef the aFfl¡eable aeeer rFae¡fig*tandarC on eaeþside ef t+ìe rubie€ì preFertþ as 5et f€rth in

Sed¡er ¡¡J,9¡,950,Hå mea¡ured frem the Frspe*y lines sr aeeess FsinÈÍ5}r whkf}ever l+

greeter, Fer ex¡mple, a preperty wtlh 5Q0 feet ef frentaEÊenan arterial {requked 590 feo!

aecess sF¡eelng standardl ghall haye a mln¡mum €ludy aree whl€bb *¡798 t1;189 t 5g0l feet in

---¡eneth
{?} The aeeese maneærnenÈBþn ghalladdress tfte pâtential¡*fety and e*êråtiênâl

p¡eþlems asseel¡ted wfth tbe Frafesed aæes.epeint, Th€ ¡ccess man-Eement Plarlåhal¡-revlew
t eth e¡¡isting and future ae ee's fer etl praFertles within the-sts'Cy are a as deflned aþve'

- {3}. The¡€€es¡ rflanaÉement p¡an shall lneluCe ¡ eeñiFarlson-€fallal¡Brnat've5 e}tamlned, /it

a+nlnlmu& the aeeee+menagemenl Flan rhall ev¡lua¡êth€ prepe:ed meCilieatien te th€ aceess

spaeing ¡ta¡Cerd and the impastå ef * pþn utill+¡ng tåe €ognty stendard fer ac€€s& ¡pa€inê=

82

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 917



Ordinance 201 1-0r I , Exh¡bit 1 -A
October 4, 201 1, Page 27 ûf 55

*,, SFee¡Êeallyråhe aece¡¡ maneg*rnent plan shall :denti*any imPaets en t\e gFeretlsnc an#er

¡Yes'

{4.} The acees+managernen+ Flan shall irCude a llst ef knFrevements¿nd reeemmendãlien5

aeeess¡ryte¡n¡ple#nenÈthe Brepesed ec€es¿fi€d;fieatien; sFe€¡fiÊâl¡Y adCressiFg all tafetf aÉd

{5} Netice fer a preFeçed aeçess rfianagement Fla* shall-¡*clude ell FreP€rty evrne+s'w¡tå¡*

þ., Access in the gld Town {OT} Overlay Zone

3= Access points in the OT Oveday Zcne shown in an adopted plan such as the

Transportation System Plan, are not subject to the access spacing standards and do nat

need a variance. However, the applicant shall submit a partial access management plan

for approval by the City Engineer. The approved plan shall be implemented as a

condition of development approval.

{1} ¡\ parGial aeeess manaÊement-plan shall inelcde:

la) grawings ideÊ*ifYíng prsF€sed €r msdlfied aGG€sá Faints'

- {+ 
^ 

l¡st ef ¡mprevementâ an4r€€Êmrendatþns nêG€ssery te imp¡err¡ent tt¡e ÞreFe¡ed Êr

rneCified aceess,

- , {e} , n wrltten+ratemen+ ¡dsnt¡fyingimpaÊ!5 te and mit¡gatien stratÊgies lsr-fe€illtia¡ releted

- te the Frep€e€d ãccess Fslñtå esFesþlly{ãsnt¡d€F¡ng safety impaet= te ell tra¡úel mgdeg'

sp€r"t¡Ën-, aÊ+the slregtscäFe ¡nclgd¡ng en stfeet pa*¡n&tr:€€ sFaclng an¿¡egês*ríã"

and bilte facl'¡t¡et' The-le$rest f gn

- ¡ri€iuC¡nÊãlleys, with¡n a FHbl¡èeãE€meñt¡ sha¡ltake pre€€c€æe fer n€w ãcÊets Fe¡nts'

Fl t eeeçs Ferrniu sha{l-be required eveß.ff ne €+h€r land sse aFptev¿l ls+eque*€*

igrd, No.2010-015, S 2, 10-5-201Û; Ord. 2AA6'AZt;Ord.2005-009, S 5; 2005406' I 5; Ord' 86--851)

¡"5+18,059N. Pr¡Yate Streets

L, @rlyajeÃtreç¡*Jegllg3åiåslebJs¡lliç5.id-elli4l-devejg4JFênt¡
:--=drat[&* is-pro-hibjte.d ,¡¿nlel¡tlfpgvides- q':inc!pa!,acce¡s-tq-l-wç-*rlqt¿e,¿ ßsi.d-enfii]l.lç.å

s-r:p-a-tcelslle-fl as,þlrL

) P chall ha made tn ¡ ra nrívafe r¡cnnn<ihilif v fllt¡lrp acrplç and

throueh recorded paqempnt-ç- llnless snecificallv ã

ctreet shall com ¡lv wlth the same ac a nublic

- -communitv neveþpr*e¡r_çgde-andjtre-Irai$açrtsfiqû,5vsfçj8glãe

idpntified in the

83

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 918



Ordinance 2011-011, E Õibit 1-A

Oc{ober4, 2011, Page 28 of 55

I g. 

-Âfftvãlelrreetfhillle-di$isss¡s¡edJrgsJlJbticåtnç{ãênd-Ie5€gdb5-0å 

--
--:.rsrt-{Jtiq!5-rÊlati!gle-ihepr¡laterlreel$ÊU-þei-gselib:edjllAldJjvis¡sr!-dscttsrÊe15=-

and recar¡lc.

*.-aj¡:ivaF,ãlresJ*þe1le$s-be 5is¿9d=dt&Jesï"-uJrsc4-Frlþllcélrfers-arråi¡clud-g-lhç.le-çrd5----...---

16.r0glq€.o60 Sidewalks

A. Required lmProvements

1. Except as otherwise provided, sidewalks shall be installed on both sides of a public

street and in any special pedestrian way within new development'

2. For Highway 99W, *aþre++¡noearterials,
maY

-¡ 

l1s¡natlve pedestrian routes are available.

or in speclal industrial districts, the

approve a development without sidewalk if

ln the case of approved cul-de-sacs serving less than fifteen {15} dwelling units,

sidewalk on one side only may be approved by the Re¡¡leu¡'AuÈhgf¡tïÇitv Manaeef or

designeq,

B. Side¡*alþDesign Sta ndards

Arterial and Collector Streets

Arterial and colleclor streets shall have minirnum eight {S} foot wide sidewatks/multi-

use path, located as required bythis Code.

Local Streets

Local streets shall have minimum five {5} foot wide sidewalks, located as required by this Code'

Handicapped RamPs

sidewalk handicapped ramps shall be provided at all intersections,

Pedestrian and BicYcle Paths

Provide bike and pedestrian connections on public easements or right-of-way when full

street connections are not possible, with spacing between connecl¡ons of no more than 330 feet

except where prevented by topography, barr¡ers such as railroads or highways, or

environmental constraints such as rivers and str€ams-

(Ord. No. 2010'015, g 2,1O-5-2O10; Ord' 2005-009, S 5; 2000'1103; Ord' 86-851)

3

L.

z.

3.

c.

84

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 919



Ordina¡ce 2Ofi-A11, Exhibit 1-A
Oclober 4, 2ol I , Page 29 of 55

:F!esleúÉl$$E&

TMPROVEME.NI PLAN Bru

seslrsrs.

låJåSlOE.Arg Preçarãtion and

1$.39t1t8.0?0 const

I g,¿gS:OA:q3qçû.rst r u€

1Ë,¡nff0g.040Acce@
1ldjtort Ngte; sÕmeJe$sc

r 6 "¡e€9&Al4ryesafaÌ¡pû a-ndå¿þlctslia¡

kË*Ëe*A{ irnprcitemçilt-ÞlênÉshilj-beüep¿red¿¡d stamseåb.v-så3l¡is.rff-ede¡qlErsl¡e€leeÉffþg

@s "Jg$l¡e!i-aj #¡e-pjær:þa fl-Þe-rgþtritte.d-to i[e-Ç¡lYlç¡

reviexr.An ii¡nsr.e ia&

¿-:-¡gicgleg

- 
--.Plan 

¡qvie E$$ated,total-cqs-!*al¡mp&veJ.n.e¡tåS04

-érÊåe!-h{l¡re5çhcdsLs-slp-Êudpps-e$ågdgsgssg:.f 

å€d:¿4p@
-"...---ça$ncilJ¡.iss{ãeC-u1ç-i¡.ircisdedjlercinlsltbgesrpeseåsÉjtris.rmêrl?n,-but is d"Êe

s,eÞa rate from ê¡Ld indepe¡de¡tçlthii--esd-e

B. Eneineerine Agreement

-:=JsgË*g[,a¡ aar.*.err1.ent-.o¡-cûntråd-b-e-Llyeç¡Jbe-¡ppli-c¡¡t"a¡d"Bseisle¡ed$iv"il"gBs,i.&e$j-q¡

-L--lg qcvi¡e é!Í¡sre¡. llo.-presä-re_çgislßt-ctie n-Êlaaå.

.å.-=-ËIEpa rallÕ¡ -alc.q!åg{$Ësååþi¡ggd .$.¡¡-e.c.Éic¡tiq.!a

3-. . -Co.ç-sJr-qcliott,slaki¡eæItåAåe$Cë¡3lnlgec!,-rqe

_,4.-* y$1gâ-e.rcl¡r.q sã5*lr,illt¡?r].$:

| ;:-:pra"g.ras gl¡-qq!àrate-aebuiitsJa¡¡¡q4dgÞEåFsi*&-afueggf-ggibjemvters for fin?ls *-
the Citv.

=ç*=-ÇesifjEalgåt¡Ese-tþa.tc.o-Írs-Lq¡{Êr-aluggrsç-eslçle*¡I'3gåuggwgugqggd-ekåË-
and sBecificatisns.

- *to4.--rys=¿q!Q;æ5"S:-åqä?Q!9-Qdt9&92?*gã-qdåFq¡L-5-3-i

t g -*e61CI8.t?û CqFgir-uct¡en .

A. Aonroval

85

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 920



ordinance 2011-011, Exhibit f-A
October4,2011, Page 30 of55

fL Ppüeanlfflkedipproved¿':er-"apÛrove

"mod¡tu and resubm¡ rå-s1ùfiilìals¡:slleÆr¡edgdjÊaççerdacrâ 34rhj-qlårigût
gu.nstructlosi*&f:ç¿cerllctçn-a*d-asB¿âg-a-l.igditiaælplarLstlallbe-Ptqglde=djhtçjgtÊLoüçç-u!ç"

f içl4j$Eejtlse3¡dl!-h rruttållqê& rted-a geûtie5"

B. Permit and Fee

Up-qæpprsv.ðJ-tþ.LÊ-¡?rlicînrs,l¡s!l=g-þ.!g{Jsgstt=usl!sÀCggqj1J,þ,cs-e¡"åt{u-ç1içn-*€-rqÊj. te.å$åe-LbviLe

Sle$$estpeysepmecr¡eEs*:¡dpste--d*þl-8f.åelutts¡-eübÊ"çqstciLlhi:rcbed$lg"iti!Ëludedlterelq
f-q¿fu;plgRÊSq.afur¡rçrgtalrs!*þ!å¡Ldseqegi-gleJËpêßrelrqql!¡g-iådepe4dssrpllbiåçadg'

C. . Easement PCcgFen$

He a.ll-bç-plgvj3"e.djc q fe.g. ac-cq-ü!aÞ1ç'.!g

ihe ñriñr 1^ ic< r r encp ¡tf r ¡¡tinn normi!

Ð. lmffayçfisal-Eüjlr¡¡ntees

p.dç,rlçjji.q.?Igç-qlå.c. fr.u4içaåqr$it¡[-LgÊptirêúsbqlljilglþsjsllggissdoçrrss¡S-w"il]Jtlg-cjrv:

1. Li¡bilitv lnsu rance

af ^ul't!c li¡hilitv nnd rñnáÌirr ¡{=m:rp incll a¡lanrr=io tn nrntp¡'t thP

---=-*:gf¡g&itat*arld.Jb -dl-çlgisåfq¡-dasâse-arperranaliaiue.

2. Ferforrnance Bond

Tn rra full rnd f:ifhfrrl nerfn en¡a in lho eanctr¡ nf ra¡rlirer{ imn ìn

- a.çqo$aÐ.cg:gsþ.apgqycd-cqn!,rrqdroåplåqt lbe-appllgêsåhellB¡gvide sec-$!!v-!9.?.n-..

nt ¡'¡¡ual tô nnê hlndred ¡prreal'ßA412qol^l nf fhâ estimated cost of theãmÕu

nl:nq enr{ fhc h¡c nnn-¡aimhr ¡rcc¡{ rn ^r.Ynênrêq reslrlïing

çl ¡¡h f¡ih¡ra fhp l-itr¡ ch:ll ¡:ll lho <arr¡rilv {nr reimh¡l {p¡rlritv mav he

-_--=-._€ferid*d*&Jbq¿c{s}-of.t-9urÊtv-bqnd-ers$*ed-þy-a.turetv-cpggalyållbÊdu.qdJ=o*

___Jransæt&g*-rn-e¡¡jÈthel¡&*lgfæçg,e*-alaåL-deÊsi¡L or irrevscêble sJandbv letter of

: cred¡r# asËeÊþh@-*à*€¡Bt

tQrd, tlg..,z$g-0$ é:l
!E {H108.Ç3ff pnrrë¿s3¡gr

A. ln¡tiatio-tr dlonslruction

| 4,ciu¡! esnsrruction of llBprE¿gnqsls=åhpll nql b.egilr-üttflg di:åCIElEgênç,e--þ-aJ9:!?rted u¡lillþ
eilui¡-n:orLf içdiqwriti¡s'

ð---Jlsp€çtiqq

86

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 921



Ordínanae 2û1't-01 1 , Exhibit 1-A
October4,201'1, Page 3f of55

aecif ic*tio¡s.åejLtv¡haltoeds¡gt joso-eçtia3¡JLqeri&

Ëç$SJEgcegjgþp$.rgue4riêËåêg.{lhaJl}ïa¡.g*+$n4liqåeeÉiqrcl:trers-nsuul+iQu-arn¡qLìinsaå{þ9
¡rgp4g@¡a¡ilgquire-cÞAgær.i¡-fvB:Ëa-Lre-cflsoqsÊddsfqll¡.jllJnu¡sd
@
å=-=__gs:Lu_i*llaFr

I AseåSeters-5eþflgs{t-ÉucrÞte-plaa¡ an¡ an electronic cow
ghauiaslte€t¿þlittrurqgsgaestra.å,þqilßhal-b-eJi!e,d-tv.&L!be-@
¡äg{EææËsIL

PÞ:-**5råsrleeriorc Lleprqyggsg$-&çl¿yiU

l lhe -çjlv- ffi mav ciusg .a-¡qtp-en5ro¡ .?f -

.whe&jftlhe-çd$¡qp.efJhLcltv^-*1çljEiå"ssl-ÞFing-dffslolhe.citYlrçJiJfa'lfo!-

LÇ¡d-¡ls,åq1,0J1,5*-â. ¡, J9:s¿n:0;-Ard-Êå$51,,S¡l

16J&t108.040Ácceptence cf lmsrovemertts

#lpeseçlþs
¿it-S.u¡ftå¡¡æ-qrallp¡Sliçjllp.rçv.ç¡¡eutt,.e¡-gçqt,the:q-sæcillcellv,apËrçr¿ed fÊ-r"later-inst¡¡.bt!gn.båv-e

ueenr.r¿rp&letcd-tÞ4=8.Êpliçãnl$-ail¡atj eg& e- -ss-

.Þ,--*S.EtiÍræf ie¡-sf .ÀËcgÉIalrqe

I l{ie*c-3y:s}ellsisesrllier"taÉ}f;FçþËn{}t¡cealthåagåepJatrqe iLl*iispta$e&C$blqpgji&iþg,¡S$
Lhgj'pd$êltb¡s-ßet-llrq¿e.qgrrg,ûtegis-oj-tþiU;haÊte¡-¿4Éibe-¡qecifiçalians-g,f-al qps¡P$ç-d-nl¡l$.

Ç.-.---llsidtgËatçeiÊûd

Fr¡orto&*hç**m*:afÇilv¡sçfala-nresfpu,hlic-1rÐp-ro.,-ç.eeålL-91-e-.p,aÊlica!:.5@
Ëif[3-majl*qa.¡-çs-&âdçç,"fî¿uçd-.aLt€tr pe¡sånÎll0?6ï qf. e. tg{g$lg$fefotlhg
ourpose of carrectine @nyjefectly,çJf,ar¡-offTlaiatqn.ancF-thal kgqjxesrnfi

agpqrÊsigffr¡re!&..lg.Ublp-çsÊtwo tå¿laÊa{E-r&ÊLtiårþsærtâfiçsslthe-olaÞ!çÆprpv-effen!&

{Ord. No, 2010-015, 5 2, 10-5-2010; Ord' 86-851, E 3}

87

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 922



Ord¡nênce 2011-011, Exhibit 1-A
Odober 4, 20'l I , Page 32 of 55

Divisi on Vl l.;l-.¡![D Q!!!!!Q!!!

su B D rvl s¡oNsL AÞ¡&PART|T| oNs' LoT u N E .qpJgsJMENTS A N

Chapter L6.LZ0

Sect¡ons:

16.120.010 Purpose

16.120.020 General Subdivision Provisions

16.120.030 tlasint4rtåc¡ri*Apnroval Protedure: Preliminarv Plat

15.120.1)40 Asoroval Criteria: Preliminarv Plat

15.120.050 Final Subdivision Plat

15. 120.060 lmprovement Agreement

16.120,9-?0, Bo.nd

15.120.080 Filinr and Recordins

* Editor's Note: Some sections may not conta¡n a history.

15.120.010 Purpose

Subdivision ac¿-¡an¿-pa**¡e*¡sgregulations are intended to prornote the public health, safety and

general welfare; lessen traffic congestion; provide adequate light and air; prevent overcrowding of land;

and facilitate adequate water supply, sewage and drainage.

{Ord. 86-851, $ 3}

16.120.020 General Subdivision Provisions

& Anoroval of e jiubdivision occurå throuah a two-steo srocess: the ureliminarv plat ald the final plai.

1. The ereiimj4arv.plat rhall be approved bv the Apsrpy¿lAuthoritlbeferglf'tgfnelgbLæn-be
s_u bmltted for aooroval consideratioÊLand

?- The final"cla{ s!.rall rgftect all c.ondltions ota*provàl sf rhe srelïminarv çlat,

I 8 Allsubdiv¡sion sro-posaf: shall¿onform tg aflE¡ate requhtiant 5et farth in OSS Chapter 92,

Subdivisions and Partitions,

Ç Future re-divisiq(t

When !qbdirridinp tracts into lâree lgts¡ !h€ ArqrÕval Authûr¡tv thall iearilrg that the lÕis be of sqch si¡g

¡*d sllape as ts facilitate future ¡e-division ín accordaûre with th¿.req-uirerne¡ts of the :onin* district

and this Divisicn,

88

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 923



Ordlnance 2011€11, Exhibit 1-A
Qetober 4, 201 1 , Page 33 of 55

D. Future Partítioninp

-Vfheårç-Þr{ividjFãlrr-c$Ju -ð.tsg.!gt lshic¡iåau-bs.reåqbdigised;h*Cilv-¡¡.ãJlßq"ç-i{e-.Th,¿t-the,lçJlb-Ê
ofuj.i;e-a¡4-E$aae.-a-¡rd ap,dv=a-dçlillgaeLþ¡jlEli¡e$tere¡3ilcJiqnÐJqJlls-,s-lill[e$hgrïi¡r,d-i.v.lsicn,d
a nv ¿e¡cet ¡nto tots-of s

E. Lot averagins

Lot size mey b_e avefaeed to a!low iots less th¿n !þç minimum lat si;e-allowed h the uml*l:lvjlË ¿onine

district subiect to tbe follewine reeulations:

- 1" The averaee lat atga for all lots ¡s not less than allowed by the unCerlvine zonine district,

2. No lot çreated under this provision shall" be leSS tþe¡ 90 % of the mi¡imum lot size allqu€djn

the underlvine ¿onine district.

3- The maximurn lot size cannct be sroatpr ih:n 1O ol nf th¡¡ minimrrm lnt cire-

F. Resujredåetb¡tks,

åll-rsgulre.d _b,i{ldinr"s-e-tþ¿ck-tire-¡-as,estaþliç&cd}y-tiri:-C,qdc*s}.ãll-bajb-ctrynin-t}e. nrellmi¡prv

s q Þ-d ivj.5rqq.nl atp**Ëþd@
Ê6. Prorertv Sales

$g:qtqçecv-iba!l=þ-Ê*d-isË.EâSl$tl&g5f-c{.ced-=s-Lrgld-gl1$l.ces!riæ-g ,sqb$is!¡-Lcn*a"aÞ-m-v-ajs-q¡e-ç"bt#¡,gd"

ûursuânt to this Code.

f.5.120.û;l3039 ¡l¡t¡ing-Â¡¡theCaYA$orovãl Prócedurc

A. Approval AuthoritY

1. The approving authority for pretiminary and final plals of subdivisions-shall be in acçordance

with Section 16.72.010 of this Code.

a Âc¡ :nnlir*li¡n inr i.-11ì lntr r*¡ill fnllnr¡¡ r ll Biriã¡¡, ñrñrãci

_ b. A subdivisio Jyse lll-rcvieyyilgggls.

- c. A subdivision qpslicalion.fqr over 5S lqts will follsw a ïvpe lY revlew crocggs'

Z, Approval of subdivisions sndfe+ti+iens-is required in accordance with this Code before a plat for

any such subdivision €+.peá:i+ieÞmay be filed or recorded yvi¡þ tAk5þia¡gteÞCounty. Appeals to a

_decision may be filed pursuant to Chapter 16.76.

89

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 924



Ordinance 2011-011, Exhibit l-A
October 4, 201 1, Pâge 34 of 55

*il+ec¡¡iBe#r*ildjr¡*ec**Ag¡pe**bfi*åeé F+r

*¡#*d{**åe*aed*e{*dig3iså€r

8---kep€++T€e¡€ã

B. Phased Ðeveloprteål

1. .. Tþe ÂnprovalAuthqritv mav aoprgve a timglçh.e-dule.-for develoain{a subd}visìon in ohases, bul
in no case shailShe actual co*strqction time period for anv ohase.þe greate¡ th4:two vears

without reaoplvins for a preliminarv olat.

I. The ciiterJêfor aoprsvtns q ph¡çed suHivisio¡ review prososalare:

" ¿, The public facilities shall be scheduled to be constructed in conìun4ipn w-ith stldo¡ tgiggh
ohase to ensu¡e-srovision of public facilities oricr to buildine tccupancv:

b. The development and occuogncv of qnv ohase slrall not be depend,ent on the use of
tem Ðorarv oublic facilíties;

(11 Fgr surnsses of thiÞ sgb¡ection ¿ tempgrarv pqblic facjlitv is En i¡teJìm facilitv not
cûnstructed to the appl¡cåble cjrv q¡ dlstrict st

. {2}The phesed develorment shall not result in rgquirine tLq.Çîly or otharJ}rooegv avvners tg
con:truct.publ¡g, facilities tha¡ werç r.esuired a¡ a g!* of_the a.cproval of thç prqlirninary,plat.

3. ThB anolica¡ion lor ohased develonment ao*rqv¡l sJrall be rqviqwed concurrênî

_ prelimlnarLplat apolicatiop and the decision mav be appealed in thesême manner as thq

oreliminarv plat.

No prelimlnary plat shalt be approved unlessl

I +¿, Streets and roads conform to plats approved for adjoining properties as to widths, alignments,t-
grades, and sther standards, unless the City determines that the public interest is served by modifying

streets or road patterns.

90

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 925



Ord¡nance 201 1-011. Exhib¡t 1-A
October 4, 201 1 , Page 35 of 55

:9. Streets and roads held for private use are clearly indicated on the plat and all reservations or

restrictions relating to such private roads and streets are set forth thereon.

3C,, The plat complies whh apniicable zqnlne dj5Sric! standirds and design stëElajds ln Þivisic¡ ll

and all nrovisions sf Sivisions 14 Vl. Vlll and lX. The subdivision ccmplies with (haoter 16.128 {Land

Division Desien StandardsÌ.'

40.. Adequate watsr, sanitary sewer, and other public facilitie3 exist to support the use of land

proposed in the plat.

9å Development of additional, contiguaus property under the same ownership can be

accomplished in accordance with this Code.

68. Adjoining land can either be developed independently or is provided access that will allow

development in accsrdance with this Code.

76. Tree and woodland inventories have been submitted and approved as per Section 16.142.060.

.tþ The prelimin*rfplat clearly shows the proposed lot numbers, setbacks, dedications and easements,

q.J. A minimum of five percent (5%! open space has been provided per 5 16.44.8.8 (Townhome-

Standards) or $16.142.020{Parks, Open Spaces and Trees-single-Family ResidentialSubdivisions}, if
applicable.

{Ord. No. 2010-015, S 2, !0-5-2010; Ord.98-1053. $ 1; Ord" 94-99I, S 1; Ord. 9L-922,9 3; Ord. 86-851}

Claeter-¡S¡¡¿

PREUMIN/\RY Fþ1T5*

Secti¡¡ns;

f¡.f::¿fS€€n€r¡¡¡V

' Ed¡t€r'l N€t€i Seme se€t¡snF¡nãy Fet €Ërttair¡e hhteÍlr

¿+f¡*g¡€-€.eñe+e[T

@

Iype lV revlerr pre€esse+'.ñFF¡svâl ef thepr€llminary plat shåll net eensÈitrite final aeeeFtanee Ëf the

errççbeåíêdtn6-pBo++¡eC*f çaetþepcÉpås€-sþr€påratis*sf

91

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 926



O¡dinance 2011-011, Exhibít 1-A
Oc{ober 4, 201 1, Page 36 of 55

&----Ádien

The 6ity shal'revhw FrelininarÈplat appFeatiensçubmitt€C lrraeeerd¡nee ivith Seê¡er 15JÈ*nC

apBra+æpprerer+itþ€eaCl+ieâçæ+¿esy+X¿pB

SïEtsm fhn sr th€ ¡€n¡

Wpfdañz{aeluClng refere n ee5 te a ny atÈaeheC deeunnefl te Ceserlbing¡aâY

Cla'p+e¡-¡.ç¡a+

Ftr.¡r\t P!ÂTsr'

S'e€tie*s;

l"Ç13t'0¡^9€€n€¡etlT

15 131,839 Final Plat Review

ffi
* Editer's tlete'$em€ ¡e€ti€n' rËy neteentah a f'bt€F¡,r

45¿24Sfg€€å€iðilT

16_,120.050 Finaf Subdivision Flat

A. Time t¡m¡tsProcedure

L. Unless othen+,ise noted beþw.
fin*tplet+hall.be rubrnit*a*finalsu_bdivision approval includes meetine allcsndilioq: frcm"lhe l9nd.trsp

aoproval, review and approval by Countv, and thelignature of the mylar.

Thesubdividershallsubmit@hefinalplat,andallsupplementary
information required bV the Plannine Deoad ursuant to this Code.

Upon approval of the fìnal plat drawing the applicant may submit the mylar for fínal

signature.

All_reguirernents for ¡ienature of the Fvlar shall be comp.le¡e d within tws (?1 veqtr çf apntcval

ofthefinal olat.

Extensions

aoprovalshall eJpire and a new nlat must bê submitted. However, {!he City may, upon written request

.,

3.

4.

B.

92

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 927



Ordlnance 2011-011, Exhiblt 1-A

octcber4, 2011, Pãge 37 of55

by the applicant, grant a s¡ngle extens¡on up to one (1) year upon â written finding that the facts upon

which approval was based have not changed to an extent sufficient to warrant refilíng of the preliminary

plat and that no other development approval would be affected. For preliminary plat approvals granted

I ""€r+*Õ*betgrselanuary 
3.,2Ot7 threc€þand December 3'L,2OA9,the approvalshall be extended

until Ðecemb er 37, 2413,

C-----S+agirlg

The ç¡¡!¡, ma,/ astheFi¡e pl*tting and develeFm€nt te Freeeed in ¡tð€Ês thåt exEee4t"ú9 t3] Tetr* bHl in

pe-æ¡e+Xalt+hs-Èelð++l

*€+¡ì€-appl¡Ëabþ+€q{¡ke*e**s{+h¡ p¡sçage"s**¡¡"e{å}

ïears rnay be requ¡red te be med¡f¡ed isåÊ€s{Canee,¡vith any ehanÊe ta the €cmprehentiYe-Flan er-thir

€êd*

Þ9, 5r{¡e

îheJati,owl¡1gìsfe#sãÈíÈÊ€hå|}&e**rc*¡q*-ec.+he$n¿lplaþgv ñÉgns Úf a TYÞe

revi,ew the final olat baçed on findings reeðrCine camnllance w¡th the fsllÕwinq

l. The fjn¡l clat is consistent in de{gn lg.s., numþer and dintenlion: of lsts. easûments, trSct{.

r¡Eht-ãf-lvavì with tlTe êporaved Ðreliminary Þlat, ànd all crjditiün$ of ãpÞrÐval hãve be€n

salsfitd;

A. . ¡,lt nublie imsrovqments required bv the oreliminanlplat have been installed and PÊFrÇved bY

{Le C¡tv En&eer or;Êtrrooriate service provider le.a.., road authcritvl. dtèrrì?tivelv, ìhQ

develaoRli¡as srouided a per{crmance suarantee.in accordance with S 16.120.9J0"

3, The streets and raads for Bublic usç are dedíc¿ted v¡ithgr¡t reservajion ar restfietion sther -th-än

reversiçnãrv t¡ghtt qson va{å

4. The plat a,nd deedjant"aln a dedication to. the nublic alali cubliç improvement$. includiQE but

not lirniçed to sjreets, nublic pathwavs a¡d trails, aceess reseryt*rlps' a¡rk5tew?se dlsÊo5ã1,

stcrm drã¡nãee ãnd watel sugplv svst€rns;

5, The agpl¡cånt has prov¡ded cop¡es ol all reçord€d-¡omeowîërs ãssociat¡on Coven-ðlts'

Conditiçns ðnd Restrictions lCi&R's!: deed rqrtrictionsi-Fr¡vãlg easÐerìTs,,ãnd aÊre"eqeÊts

{e.s.. fçr acre.ss, cornmon ,a,re*å qarkinq. etc'i: and sther recÕrded dêçg$3¡"19!Ê

common imorovenrents recarded and {eferenced on the sl?t;

6-. Jþe nlêt cqllp,lieç with ths a$el¡cable Sect¡ons cf this cqde ll.e., therê hãYe been gô qlla!ñ3t ¡n

land us_e order¿eloornenl¿qs_!¡ltinFþ fl cgde vlolation sincç.çreliminarv Þlat ¡oûrsva.|):

7, _Csrtif¡çgtion bv lhe Citv ûr senfice diltr¡ç|.. a$ ãpplicable, thãt w4!er and san¡tarv sewer service ¡s

nrsvided b'v the srrbdlvider/sartiticner !o the Citv that sq-ch serviÊçs will be installed in

icgs!úance Aiv¡sion Vl of this Codq. and the bond requireæf¡ts of 15.12ü.Ç70'T¡te amount of

93

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 928



Ordinance 2011-01 1, Exh¡b¡t 1-A

October4,2011, Page 38 of55

the bond. iontract or other arsurance bv the suldivider/-oartitioner shall be determined bv a

regiqter*d professional eneifreer, subiest to review and aporovalþv the Citv;

g. The plÈt contains an affidavit bv the sulvÊvor who surveved the land. regresgg[ed sn the olat to
thq effect the land was correctlv surveved and marked witþ proper monumgnts as provided bv

ûR5 Chaoter 92. indiçptins the initj?l çoint-sf lhe survev, and slvin{the dlmensions and gìd sf
such mongBent and its r.eference ta ssmE corner establishe{bv the U.S. €esloeical SulveI.-qI
s¡vinstwo or rÌ¡ore oermaneût ob¡sctç fgr ident¡fvinq ks lpçatiûn,r, Glate ef apFre'Jab s€åle; nerth arravì¿rkË€ËdÉnd eentrelling tepegraphy sseh as ereek+

¡¡Sh,.vaTsran+raik€adt

2, legal descriFtiepef the plat bessdaçþs,

3, E¡risdngsurveys related te the plat by dlstances ¡nd bearinÊå and F€fereneed as fal,lãw¡i

a The leeat¡{¡n ¡nC Ceserlg¡ls*ef ¡ltetåkeå rnenurnents, arC Ether ev¡dence us€êts

determine the beundaries ef the subdivisien.

b, 'ldieinlng eernere ef ail seatlgues++sb'divis¡€ns,

a Sestlen, tewnshlpr rarìge, den*tþn l¡nd clah* llnes and besnCarie+ef any letc wlthii
prevlsuclÏ reeerded cubdlv¡s¡en plats v\ritålß€r adlacentte th€ plat,

d" þcaÈir¡n ¡nd Ceseriptlen ef ¡ll msnum€nt€ fes€C.er'€ståblished ln raeking lhe ssrvey€{

-the s¡*bCivisien eF-requlreC ts b€ inslalled Ly the Frevþlenscf Chle €ede"

4, Trasl, bleek ¡nd lst beundary.lineå and ¡tree,1 r¡ght¡ eÊw¡y andeenterlines¡ witbdrmemlanå

any ereeic er ether bsdy ef ¡flater *h¿¡t b€ 'h€w* Err6I ef cle¡sFe rhðll be $'hhln th€ lim¡tr ef ene {a}

feet ln fes¡ tþesrðnC {1,90€l feetél+Citt+mark¡ rhe¡¡ bê uâ€d, Èets c€ntainlnã ene{t'} acçe er mere

ba€¡+€fåe€+iâgs1

and k+aggi¡¡en ts €er*e

sås$J*+â€+able"

6- Easenrentrwíìhi*eradiaceo! t*the plat Ceneted by fine C€t¡€C lineå, elearly ldentified¡ arC; lf
rlmedy ef reca"* a rec€rd he€esêÐ€ff'l

the+*e¡-rhÊl

94

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 929



Orcl¡nance 2911411, Exhibt 1-A
Oclober 4, 2û11, Page 39 of 55

sså+€'€b¡¡tå@ llå*-a

ees¡insat¡

3"---*--l*n*pareeb tp b*dèdic¿ted fur eny"psrpêre aretebedist¡€Ës¡çhedftsñJ€leirrtecd€dJâra*le
¡et

S--{åeJÊl f e*ing+e C{e*tesy+r hien-ma¡be*arnå}reêrryhe+e€ÊgrePÉiå+*

---€---å{€+*¡f i€ã t+51êRed,å{*+a€kÊ€¡¡rleCg€$å*ãtt"pa*¡e+¡¿ç¡@¡e
# ¡ngsåthe*a*end

--d€Cl 
€å+hg*lþ¿rçeleoii**d*hevrn'a@r-P$þtiêuç€ï

Æ@ nd4¡åå¡

@
e, P.rov¡e{eng.fersllêlhercer¡ifieatiençrequir€4

¡*n

in*

Æi
t¡e.,€sbC¡v¡s¡t

þr T]es ts e*ísting msnsrÉ€rrE#rspÊaÊC menumentsr ådjãGsnttubC¡v¡ÊleñE strd€t

eerners¡ aRd state hÎghì¡/ay sta+þning.

& çsF¡es af âny d€ÊC restr¡êt¡ens enC CedlÊåt¡ener ¡n€lsdlnË bdildlng setþðÈfrg:

& Freef th¡t all taxeÊ, anÊ¡ eâæs*ñerTtçen lhe ttaÊÈ are FailËl fsf.the eurrent Yeff:

(ord. No. 2010-0L5, S 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. No. 2010-06, S 2,4-6-2010; ord' 2003-1148, $ 3; Ord' 98-1053

S 1; Ord. 85-851, I 3)

L6J30-. 05O lm p rove m-eJ-t AFree m e nt

95

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 930



Ordinance 21fi-Afi, Exh¡blt 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Fage 40 of 55

15'1310'G Final Plat Review

A. Subdivisicn Agreement

The subdividet shell e¡ther install required improvements and repa¡r ex¡sting streets and other pub¡ic

facilities darnaged in the development of the subdivision pursuant to the Division Vl, or execute and file

with the City an agreement specifying the period within which all required improvernents and repairs

shall be completed, and providing that if such work is not completed within the period specified, the City

rnay complete the sãme and recoverthe full cost and expense thereoffrom the subdivider. Such

agreement may also provide for the construct¡on of the improvements in stages.

B. Perfsrmance Security

The subdivider shall provide monetary a5surance of full and faithful performance in the form sf a bond,

cash, or other security acceptable to the City in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%i of the

estimated cost of the improvements.

¡------,qfp+eYa+

The ftnal Blat shall pravide fsr the ded;Êrtieñ ef ¡ll ¡tre€ts fer-rvh¡ch{pFreral has þeerF€iven bT

C---€*€ep+i€fi.â

Tt¡e€esnelb u peâ-reçornFnendatién bT4å€ CitT ñ'lemger:' rÞay aBpreve lhé crËtien-enc

stan¿ar¿g sf th¡ç

a, TheÊr¡d in ,¡hich Ìhe read sr Flresl Þ te,b€ deChteC is an iiEht€d ewneiEhlFef€ne

{+}ee¡+-e+¡e:*

C-------€e¿emes+s

ewnerhiF shall be inth*ferm sf ¡ dedicãte*'treet;prevldeC hsweverthet easeãìents maY bs

ailer$êdr¡rå€i+å

1, The aeceçs l* lea Fareel e*¡ceedinB få'¡e {5i ae res in si¡er and u+ed fpr aEirieulturq

þertieslture; grazing¡ er tinber årswing¡ er

l, -The ea¡erner¡* iothe enftr'¡easenablen¡etl^ed b" whieh the rear Partien ef an snssually

¡Ën¡ng ¡ntetwð {3}s
qu€¡t easernert shal¡

96

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 931



Ordinance 2011-01J, Exh¡bit l-A
October 4, 201 1 . Page 41 of 55

{trd-F¿s-3Ë19S15'qf¡

q:#

ef the drainaee,

lOrd, Ne, 204+€tr5, å ", 10 5 201Or OrC, 86 851,6 3ì

16.120.070 Bond
A. PerformancgJqgarantee required. As resuired bv Section 16.120.060. the subdivider shall file with the.

aqreement an assur,ance of oe&r¡na¡çe suspcrted bv one of the fçlþw.ix&

1. A sufeEbsnd executed þy ¿ suretv camnaryv authctized to trailsact þusiness in lhe gtate of
0_reeon which remains in foree until the sr.ret1 ço.{saov is notified bv the Çjlllin wr¡tina th¿t it
mav be terrninated or cash.

Determlnation gf sum. The assuranee of perfarman

City Eneineer as reaqjgid g¡ Êov--ef the co5¡ of the irflnrovement-! ¡nd resairs, includir¡g related
eneineering and incîdental expenses.

Itemized irnorovement estimate. The subdivider sh o the Cilv Ensineer an jtemized

imorovemeñt estirnate. certified bv a reaistered cir¡il englneer, t"ç .assist the Citv lnëifteçr itÌ
calculatins the arnount of the pedgr.rfì?nce. assuFnçç.

ìÅ/Þen subdlv-idet failç tó perfann. ln thP event the subdivìder falls to cårrv out alf brqvisions of
the agreement and the Citr¡ has u¡-reimbursed costs or expenses resulting from tuch fai{ure. the
Citv shall call on the bond, cash denos¡t for reimbursement.

Te{mlnatlon cf_pedsrmÊnce.Fuarantgq. Th.e :uÞdivider lhall not cause Terrninatiqn of nor allow
sxolratjon pf ¡aid sgara$tÊglgithout"!,ravíls fi¡st sscurqd written authorizÊtig! from the Citv,

ê--{+¡{+n€#hlt¡

þ

final plat ie net ln fslteenfeãrian€e¡ the ç¡rbdlvlCer ihall-b€ adv&€d ef Geee¡sar/ ehangeeer aCdit¡ens.

2.

3.

L-

5-

97

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 932



Ordinance 201 l-01 1 , Exhibit 1-A
Octob€r4, 2011. Page 42 ot 55

16.120.080 Filins and þordin¡ of FfnalSubdivision Plat

#+App{€¡rå{

A, Countv Review

When the C¡ty Sa+*agêr*.¡5lh€rdesigs€+determines that the plat conforms to all requirements, the

plat shall be authofized for review bv the Counw'FPrsved.

aeeeptance by the Gity ef th€.re¡psnsibility fer mainlenan€e er €levelppmerÉ$ånY súree+cr atåe

M
€8.@
After approval, the C¡ty shall authorize the transmlttal of the final map, tracing, and other data to

@todeterminethattherehasbeencompliancew¡thallprovisionsof5tate
and local statutes. Th€ G€unt|¡.ff{åy ¡n¡¡€ És€h ch€€k;¡lrt}ie ffeld å8 neÊessårf 19 v€r¡fT that+hÊfieF ¡s

st¡+Scie*¡y+e

êf{¡€€ãrApprovat of the final plat shall be null and void Íf the plat is not recorded within sixty {60} days

after the date ofthe last required approving signatures have been obtained.

5ç. Effective Date

Subdivision approval shall become final upon the recording with the County of the approved subdivision

plat or partition map together with any required documents. Ðevelopment permits may be issued only

after final approval, except for activ¡ties at the prêl¡mlnary plat phase. specifically authorized by this

Code.

_@
lf+flnal rubdivi-ien plat shãil bE ¡Ppr€ÉreC unresgr

reçtricse¡ ether than eaeement¡ fer'puhlie util¡tiet and fe€llllies'

{t -Th€ Flet d€Cket€s te t¡r€ FÉblk ell reqþ¡red Êsrnm€Ê lmPre'remêntænd âreãcã lnc¡edh$ bHt net

å, 
^Cequät€ 

wâter, san¡tåfi! s€vrêr ¡nd ether psb¡¡e faÊ¡l¡t¡€s ex¡st ts {HFpeFt tllg FreFssed uÊe ef

the¡ubC¡v¡deC landr¡5 d€t€rrn¡flêd by the çitf end rrÊ ln€€mplian€e vrith G'rÈy st¡nCarCt' FeÉth€

@

98

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 933



Ordinance 2?fi411, Exhíbit 1-A
Oclober 4, 201 1. Page 43 of 55

a, ,¡rdeguate waler ler¡lce shallbe deemed te be eeefieçtien tethe gtY wåt€'s€FFlY,.sYstem,

¡-*deqsate sanitary sewe

e , The adeguaÊT eÉeth€i p*b¡¡efã€¡l¡tieç such as çtçrm *at€r and çÈr€et¡ ¡hall-be d€termined bT

@e€lt¡¡*cl¡e¡
ç=_-*Cþi9¡içgJðÊ{f-câñåeder¡elep.Êdrafat-p¡svld€s.ð€€€cÊ-th*+,*lllallç.¡¡t*¡ts¡€defel€pm€*¡*r¡*l
#
i0rd. No. 2010-015, S 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 98-1053 I 1;94'991; Ord. 86-851, $ 3)

@

-Claptef.{5#[6

ÐESl€Ð¡óTANlt'qßÐSÉ'

Sectiens:

lådi¡Ê,9lt0-Sl€€l€

¡'s-gl6$3{¡.Eef'em€Fts

15,1t5'9ilt PeCestrien anC BicYele Way¡

¡,â;ilìs,gtg+els

* Editer's NeteiSeme Eeetþns{gy net €enta¡n a hist€rþ

¡'6';t35$+&Btesl€

*---Cenneet¡v¡ty

kr*ha{l-b*des{gn€C-Èq*rov+dædeqså+€

¡'------S¡sck{ee5¡¿¡.9}sÊ&¡€e€Èh-s+ãådafd5.*hãl¡åe-ìe*eeer.dane+¿*it}r"5ee¡¡€,Ê46á*&Sas.€êåer+}li?

bleel€ shall ne¡ exseed five hsncred thk+y {530} feet in length; exeepþbreeks aCjaeert te F{nFiF+l

arèer¡al, whieh çhall nat e¡teeed ene the

ck*¡hallænfs¡+¡*¡E+heteeat.5tÊeet+t*täÉtb€åêe-€ênta¡ne+ln+le+¡ansperiat¡o*

Sp+em*¡an'

3, pedestrian and Éíel.€le s¡n€,€tiv¡ty,+aved b¡ke and pede€triarlaeeeså¡¡raYs shall be pfsvided en

99

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 934



Ordinance 2011-011 , Exhibit 1-A
October 4, 201 1 , Page .14 of 55

@

€B¡\PHl€ UNAV/rltABtEr Cliek here

{g+d-¡¡

feli¡t$S30{¡¡eneentr

*-----lJtiJ¡t¡es

€,----S+e¡segeå

l4h+¡e-*€{rbdiviriÐn ir çraveraed hy a-rvatereaur¡e; drainagèrÅrs}?+hä¡+ãefçrç*¡ee+rdtõ¡Êaêê€eåepeåtå

c++¡@d-csãfê¡äi"Ëå$bçið"ti,

¡eå'

isrd'{æsl*3)

{"6J¿5,effif-e*

*---+i¡e¿nd+nape

@-s¡¡€*tå{i@t&elecat¡çr++nA-+cps6rephY-s,f +hå

suåCivisienre*d ¡iell eå¡nnFly,wltb applieable reninB-distri€t reqirire$entç¡ with the fsllewEg

€n€ep+iensr

&,, , tpts in,eress n€t cerveåby Þsblie sewer er water sspBly.- çhå¡kêfiferm ts anT speeíË+

\4tas

&---**-.Aeees+

-q1t-let*'i*a-s¡*bdivic¡es-se*¡!¿ga¡+pt*b ep*¡e¡*us¿er-Ctap+e¡

+gé&

@

100

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 935



Ordinance 2011-011, Exhibil 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Page 45 of 55

+eã

ef-¡esiCe*tia{develapmeat-f rcm-raiireadsrÊ*e$riea Êeriet+dþeen**e*@

s€r€€fi¡åg#ã|Àåe+€q{*ir€ê

Ð----€ide+ot{iee*

SiCe let lires shallr as far as ^ractiÊâblefun at riËlit angles ts the street upen h¡hishtha ¡€ts fase; exeePt

thst an eurued streetç side let lines sl"all be redial te tþe esrve ef the sÈreeÈ,

*-++ag¡ne

€iqCkg€fåuüCh6+;ter+ba$eonla*nn*e+åeJåtlã#¡Fg{*ãe@*r¡p*v-++p¡ï¿si€å}
@¡e"*
l, Ggt^slepes ¡hall net.ex€€ed ene an*en€'half {+{l4 f€e*.heri¡entally ts ene {4 fest vert'r€?ll|ç

Chapter 16.#¡8Xæ

LAND PARTTTIONS*

Sections:

16.¡¡8112.010 Generally

16. 12 2.02O Aoproval Criterla : Prellmi narv Partitìon Plat

16.112.03O Apnrjval Ctheriar Final Plat

16.ï¡S122.@empliance

16.fi!8122.9¡1È.S5gDed ications

16.li¡e1Ze.0d0{90 f¡llng Requlremerts

* Editor's Note: Some sections may not conta¡n a history.

16.$¡S122.010 €enerally

A, Approval Required

A tract of land or contiguous tracts under a single ownership shall not be partitíoned into two i2) or

more parcels until a partition application has been approved by the City Manager or his/her designee.

B. City Actlon

101

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 936



Ordinance 2011-01 I, Exhibit 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Page ¡t€ of 55

The City Manager or his/her designee shall review the partition applications subm¡tted in accordance

with Section 15.70 and shall approve, :¡pprove with conditions er deny the application. The aetien ef the

€itT+4anagererhElhe¡ desigflee shallåe+sted entwe (11 cep¡es af the paFtitienrineludirÉteferen€€¡

te any srttãehe4deesmenÈs-de¡er¡blng any €€nd*iens eF{eçtristisns' One tl} GâP}"+hal¡ be returnedte

the appliea$ with+netke eÊd€€¡5¡s$åndene {1}realn€C.by the €lty with ethersppl't€ab¡e re€sds'

€, r 6'ü2.020 FEr¡hed{lndl¡rßpArprovel CJiteria: Irelimina!'v Flat

Partitions shall not be approved unless:

14. The partition complies with aFcllcable zonìng district staldards and design slandards in DivlsÌolì

It. and all provisions of tivhions lV. Vl, Vtll and lX. and comolies with Chanter 16.128 {LëIìd DiYision

Þesien Standards). r+ità+h*{*affrlsrdsaf-+h€+Êd€rty¡sS+€c¡ågd

tå¡s4ede,

¿Ë. The partítion dedicates to the public all required common improvements and areas including

but not limited to streets, parks, floodplains, and san¡tary sewer, storm water, and water supply

systerns.

39. Adequate water, sanitary sewer and other public facilities existto support the proposed use of

thë partitioned land, as determined by the City and are in compliance with City standards. Forthe

purposes of this sect¡on;

a!. Conpeqtie_n to the CiW water ¡upnlv svstem ¡hall be deemed to be êdequâtÞêdsggglgwater

service+hallåedeesed te be eennestien te *he €ity n'ater suPFly sYst€m.

bL Connectïon þ thq Citv ¡ewe¡ sv,Ttem shall be deemed tc be adsouate åCeqtat*sanitary sewer

service if sewer lines are within ese-

etofthepartitionorifthelotscreatedarelessthan
15,000 square feet in area. lnstallation of private sewage disposal facilities shall be deemed

adequate on lots of 15,000 square feet or rnore if the private system is permitted by County

Health and City sewer lines are not within et.

eJ. The adequacy of other public facilities such as storm water and streets shall be determined by

the C¡ty Manager or his/her designee based on applicable City policies, plans and standards fsr
said facilities.

I ¿o.t- Adjoining land can be developed, or is provided access that will allow future deve[opment, in

accordance with this Code.

ÐE. Future Development Ability

ln addition to the findings required by Section 16.¡¿3¿22.010, the City Manager or his/her designee

must fínd, for any partition creating lots averaging one (1) acre or rnore, that the lots may be re-

partitioned or resubdivided in the future in full compliance with the standards of this Code. The City

102

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 937



Ordinance 2Q11-Afi, Exhibit 1-A
tctober 4, 201 1, Page 47 of 55

Manager or his/her designee may require the applicant to submit paft¡t¡on drawings or sther data

confirming that the property can be resubdivided. lf re-partitioning or resubdividing in full cornpliance

with this Code is determined not to be feasible, the Ci¡f Manager or hislher desþnee shall either deny

the proposed partition, require its redesign, or make a finding and condition of approval that no further

partîtioning or subdivision may occur, said csndition to be recorded against the property.

{Ord. No. 2010-015. $ 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. 2tA6-02!; Ord' 98-1053 , 5 7;97-922,5 3; Ord. 86-851i

16.122.03_0j final Partit¡on Flat

8v means ni a Tvpe igrocedgÍe, t¡eËirv-F!rali review the final plat based on fiadinqs reeêrdlng

comoliance.with the followi¡e crilg.lriã:

Â- The. final olat is cansistant ïg desien le.e.. number, area, di¡rìerytions of lq!.:. eesÊments.".tfãcts.

rieht-of-wavi.ïdÌth the acproved nrsliminary plat. and all conditions of asprçval ¡aYe been

satisfied;

B. All puþlic ¡mJrrovernents resulred bv the prelimiq¡grv ?lat lrave been instSlled ¡nd aÞproved bv

the.Citv Ensinggr or atrrooriate seffice provider {e-s.d'o¿.d authoriill. Alternativelv, the

devgloper, has ofovicied a gerfsrräançe guara-rì3qg in accqrdance wlltl$ l6JlÛ'070'

C- The stjeets and rsads for publie fise are dedlcated without reservatiçn or restÍçJion other than

leversionarv rights upg$ vacatiof¡ çf anv such street or roag and easeneúts for publ¡c utiliTies:

D. Ji¡e slet"and deed csntain a dedication ts the public of al! publlc Im¡rgvernents. includine bU!

nst lirnìted ta streets" public pathways and trails. access leáerve sg!ûs.oar.}(s. sewêAe disoo$al

storm drainaee and water sun$lv sústems:

f . The aÊplicånt has sravided cooies sf ait retglded homeowners associatio¡-çÊv€-Bs¡:5,

çcnditions Êllj ñestrlrtioi¡s {CC&R's); deed regtrictjons; sriv¡tç easements *n43€reeñenl.!

{e.e., for acq.ess. çomqro¡: a{eas" parkine, etc-}; and other recafded document! ÞertaiÊlnq to

common imorovements recorded and referenced on thç. plat:

F,. The.plaï comol¡es lvitl¡ thgg:plicarþle SgI:tions of this code {i,e-,.there hêve-been no chãnees ii
land_us-e eI develûpment rqçu&i*e in a cade vlolstian since plf:timin"ary plçt ¡porovg!};

G, The plat csntains an affidavit bv the survevor who surveved tl"!e land,.represenled on the Ëlat to
the pffeglt the lald was correctlv surveved and ma-rked with proper monurne¡ts ¿F prsvided bv

ûgS Chaster 9?. indicati4e the initial soint of the.suryev.. and qivine the dirflqn:ions and kind of

sqch monurnent aåd its reference to some carner es-tablished3 the U-5. Geoloqlcal 5urvey, ûr

siy!ìe twc or mcre permenent obiecls for lde¡tifuinq, its ìocation.

15.$¡S1Z¿.9¡e040 Eglure ;subdivision Compliance

,C-----€€å€ra+¡y

103

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 938



Ordinance 201 1-011, Exhibit 1-A

Octobe¡ 4, 201 1, Page 48 of 55

lf a partition exceeds two {2i acres and within one il.l Vear is re-partitioned into more then two (2}

parcels, and any single parcel is less than one {1} ãcre in size, full compliance with the subdivision

regulations of th¡s Code may be required.

{Ord. No. 20L0-015, S 2, 10-5-20LÛ; Ord. 86-851, 5 3}

l5.ß&$¡e8€d¡€et¡€{r5

*----Ce*erc¡ly

T+re.Çlþ/'s, requ¡re*nents fer dedleat¡e* ef psblþlartds as+EpthlEËede¡ lnelsdinë râad ri8htf alwaYand

- l-¡îtütr

iOrd. No, 2010-015, S ¿ 10-5-2010; Ord. 98-1053 5 1; Ord. 86-851, S 3i

16.fi[¡122.84&950 Filing-dRecordïnx Requirernens

A. Generally

Within twelve (12) months after City approval of a land partition, a partitlon plat shall be submitted to

f¡¡aç¡¡n*s+lhe-County in accordance with its final partition plat and recording requirements.

B, Tirne Limit

Ths aÊpi¡gaf,t shallsubrnit the gÕgv of the reccrded Ðart¡tion tc thÊ Citv w¡thÍn 3ü dãys of recordinq.qnd,

shåll þe crmgJeted prlûr tc the lssua¡tce üf any b{Jild¡nÊ.Lerm¡ts ûn the-l'e-confiqured lots,

C. Extension

After expiration of the twelve (L2i rnonths period following partition approval, the partition must be

resubmitted for new approval. The Cty Manager or his/her designee may, upon wr:tten request by the

applicant, grant an extension up to twelve (12) months upon a written finding that the facts have not

changed to an extent sufficient to warrãnt refiling of the partítion and that no other developrnent

1A4

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 939



Ord¡naric€ 201 1-011, Exh¡bit 1-A

October 4, 201 1. Page 49 of 55

approvâl would be affected. For paditions granted êa€++fterbelgeen January 1, 2007 e¡elth¡ssÊþ

December 3t,2OAg, the approval shall be extended untll December3t'2t13,

{Ord. No. 201û-û15, $ 2, 10-5-2010; Ord. No. 201.0-06, E 2, 4-6-2010; Ord. 86-851, 5 3}

Chapter 16.1¿9!?4

FROPERTY LINE AÐJUSTMENTS AND LOT CONSOLIDATIffi

Sections:

!6.124.010 APProval Process

r6.t30r¿4.
16.¡¡C$!.O;ISOJ0 Filing-and-Bgcordins Requirements
* Editor's Note:Sorne sections may not contain a history,

16.r¡s1¿9.01û@
A. The City Manager or his or her designee may approve a property line adjustment rviråeu+pubüe

{r€ti€F.€"-r.p$b¡i@ bv ñeanÉ of a Typ* Êrgceelure al sovened bv Ch?oter 16,72,

using an-oloval criterla contained in this Ch¡oter.

g. Time Ljmit on Approval

Thç rrçser,ty line æûlstmant decision shall þe-cffective for onq vêar frÕrä the date of aÉnrovat

C. Extensio! o.[ÁPP@!

¡f th€ ädiustment i5 not r€corded with the Cûuntv withiq qn

rnust bB resubmittçd. The Cftv f\4ênaBeJ o!hìslher dçiisnee mav. uûon wr¡tten teqgest bv the êpplicanT,

Erânl ån e¡tËn$ion uq to one Veär u¡Õn a written fiodin{, thãt the fãcts have not chãnse{to an gxterll

srrfflcignt to tfafrant refíl¡ne of the tropertY lin€ ãd¡t¡stment a+4thät n0 sther dev

would be affected.,

16.124.020 Aooroval Criteria

A. The C-itv Mataser.or hislherjleslsnee-sþall approv€ çr denv a ¡eque¡t fçl-a P¡aûertv liñe

adíÈstment ic wriiine þased o.rÌ findinss that thgfollowínq crite*a are såtisfied:

t. No new fots are created

The adjusted lots comply with the applicable zone requirements.

The adjusted lots continue to comply ì,vith sther regulatory agency or department

requirements.

lf the property line adjustment ís processed with another development application, all

applicable standards of the Code shallapply.

2.

B,

105

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 940



OrdÍnance 2011-0'11, Exhibit 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Page 50 of 55

{16.l,t8!]4.9¡S@Filing gnd RecordinÉRequiremenls

A. Recordine Requirements lf a property line adjustment is approved by the City, it does not

become final until reviewed and approved by*hså¡ng+en-County in accordance with its

property line adjustment recording requirements.

B' Time Llmit ihe anllic¿¡rt ¡hell submït the cosv af the recerded srapeü'¡ line adiustment lurvev

r¡ap ta tle Citv within 30 d¿vs of reca¡dinq and shall bç ceÍ]"*leted orier tq,lhe-issr:ance of anv

bulldine permits on the re-confisured lols.

{Ord. No. 2010-015, $ 2, 10-5-2010; Ord, 86-851, S 3}

16.126 REPI¡TT¡N€. LOT CON5OilÐAT¡OÍ'¡S ANp VACATIqN OEFLATS

16,126.û10. 6-enerallv

16.126.020 Basis for Penial.
15.116.030, Timine of Vacat¡ons.

f.6.126.040 After Sale of Lot¡.
15. 126.050 Lot €onsolidations

1_6, 125.010, Generallv
A. Aev ¡fat or oortion thereof mavie re-gþtted. ca¡¡glidaled ar vacated upon rgcçivine an

apslication siprle-d Þv atlgf She,owngr: as aooearins an the {ged.

B. Âll application* far a olat shall be made in a-ccor$¿q,ce r¿'ith the :u.bdivlsion or thg Parlition

nrsvisionp within this Þivisi.on and orocersgd undÊllhe Tvpe I pracedure.

15.126.020. gasis for Denial

The analication nrpv be denied Íf it ebride.,es or destrg$-gnv*publll-cgl!.t. i¡ anv of its P!¡blic {5e{,
improvgments, st_reets or allevs.

16.126.030. Timins of Vacat¡ons
All aparaved pl¡t saçglig!åjThall be reçorded i¡ acqerdance-wit.h Sectìqn.15.1?2.010:

Or.¡c.e rqcorded,_the vaætio-LsllellgLeiratelg elimin¡te the f*rce and eflert of the, Élat s¡ior tc
vacationr and

The vacation shdl also divegt all.E¡uhlic.rielrts in lhe streets, allevs and Fublic qrounds, a$d ãll

dedications laid sut or described on the olat.

16.126.040 After Sale of Lots

When lsts have bee¡ solrf, the plat rnav be vac¿te{ i¡ the manner hergit Êrovíded bv +11 of the olqnerg

of lots within the platted area,

A.

B.

16. 126.050 Lot Cottsglidatiqns

106

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 941



Ordinance 2Q11-811, Exh¡b¡t 1-A
October 4, 2Û11. Page 51 of 55

Upcn aporoJgl of a Tvce I lot conssliclation bv lhelli¡Lli¡lsllåggr c-r desisnee, anr, u$9nÉ9mo-¡stFting

camplianc.e v{ith ãoÞrova I ccnditions:

A. :Fçr !þe consa¡id¿tion cf lots o¡ oarcels of a r€corCgd olat. the lgl consolidation shall be.

finalized bv a renlat the qr¡helivicinn or narlition.

B. 

-The 

Countv mav cg¡solidatÊ.parceþ çrtraeq sf laed that q,fe nat githin a recorded Êlat.

¡5.1ff129,0$-gþcLs
1fi.;l¡[12S.020 Pedsstr¡an and Bicvcle Waw
å51¡$¿gàû3o1ets
+ E4itqr's No!g: Some "v ngt$-olttaiñ a histô|y.

f6Æ1lg"0lg.Elsgþ

A. Connectivitv

1. Block Size,

rtrç'lleseü. widtbi arfd st!êqÈai chs thailåeiååie$eçljç-nrai¿idftd.eçuêteiuildlnes:lF5-fsr

tbegs-e5-erûae¡ert"¿ltd-lar-ãçsy3Ijerlþsçsi5*sirßdê¡ip-o*tl3"trhIal*rç14{}rllêtele

2------E!oe4!sseth

gþc,b,te¡erþstau-dards-åb:all-þejß-acqpril-anqe*wjih 5ec!jg¡J44Ès*S39*9çner¡Jlv.,"Þlç"Çh*.rhili

ÐEfg;eed fr¿e":¡!¿4re{tbl¡ìv-153,ûl,f*el.ialenFth, e¡ceat-blqçkdådiêçe"ÊlJ4-Êrlsçlaalitrþ.gd

u¿hiql¡.+bqll¡gl-exçeed-Englharærd.F¡ehf ,tlundrg*&$gQlfaeå-The s¡gßsf.¡freellaa{1

the f*rpalþtigf þlocks-5¡¡j nfarn-dlllÍ1e

Iiens psÉêtigI.å\#3en .Plã!'

q=-- jede¡rl1 æç$€+wavå$39þsgg&dgå
n¡rhlír ntc or riøhtsf-urrv rnnciqlent Fisr¡re 7 d'lll

fi eute-730j-::-Bþck.Co!¡eqtllitY

,{grd. J{aÈ3910j-0.X5å&¿&5:?glQLQtd-,20g6:SaJ":*eüI}å0QSi,5i ?g-qüj1}.0,3-å3jJQd-gggåJJ-+l

À8. Utilities

F a ç e m e nr ç f o r r e w e r $. rJ r a i n s s e. wê tg r-,m aiff ,€!.egtqiçJin eå o-f ot¡sl*@
*_*Ë:.ryr-i---

p¡svlde,dJa¡_þ-v-depd.Jas-e-nssss-hdlÞe-a"-niÛnuu-Çf-te¡.!19U-ect-La-widjb¡.qd-Ç.s'!lg-$'d-p-t'¡sÞr'o!

si$.çSr-tlins-s:erc-eBt ic¿-tlg:ha¡Ísas€Jìle.fl"ts-yrhlchlhâll-be $¿t6Ue-et,¡¿idgbvlpentv fåQUegf,l-altrge

ii¿e toU, iaqåai the cha iqfi,

107

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 942



Ordinance 201'1-0'l 1, Exhibit 1-A

October 4, 201 1, Page 52 of 55

åc Draifrasâs

Wbsre*q¡s}diy¡r-ip-lriåt:të{e¡¡eq}uåJgêSlIc*}¿Iåe*$$inêgel¡¿aj,.ÇhAn¡e1-qtrJæel.df4tnass-eêie!CIe[t*

srjiqþ}*råwåLåhqüåe.c¡cyidedJa¡tglsiqsEuþeßll!-allv.lsjlsitrR*¡te$!3tldl'lÊ$tth+dgl!ËÉe=

tOrd, r'J?Jt10-015,

16.4fa12S.02f1 Pdest

Le.desidan,a:å.igy-clåeãÞrÊXåelsqui.rsijrçEô!*SÊ¡td$-saË,iir:de-thlgllÊfr¡$-tt$1r$rallvlgûse{
addiuùâped blgck.-çr to o

lsd-e6-851-5ê

15.r¡5128-010_LatE

A--5t4cixd Jh!Êe

rni¡¡¿e*gld:ljhaæ-a-rukr¡içrLtãtiq$b-all[esrorgerlat{, içllbålatatiolr ÃdJnqgeß*[Y-altl]e

:çþj¡,,-Lrisq pr aartit¡qn.-a'd-$ha!!-çq!ûÊlv*ùttris-a¡ieableJqslns diã!{Et=ts.qçir$fgealå r&llhlbe

is[qglne€xsÊiliors

L Lafg-iæx$ailoå¡erye{åv-s1rþ¡¡c se-wçrcr w?ler-s-upo¿Y 5h {sesiE} !g LhiPsee*

eggåt@g&rds
B- Access

%-in¡_suådjy¡çisn shall¿brttä-suþl¡c,street,-e-x-c-ecÎ¡çallqluççljsilrtJilldgllelQÞm.€.q!_u.Þder

Qa.*-c.:Jå-6&

L Dry$e rrorìtagg

sqgþl#ïa$LaFeéLd-{€geÉedjfalltãselgF,ÊJs-pieåÌ!*üs--*c"xçegldlslp-ç€ås¡,tia!-tp"pr9l'l-de

rgB#risn*J¡e5ideåt¡ãL-dÊydsq$SnJ-[r$þ¡aj]rcãd.å..lt+tfiæderies,3di*cs4.Í nçnæerd-ggq'þl

.. s.rçç, o{*rqrytrrqlqe-.5Þeç.úlgtqp-qsrnr¡&a!.qr-o-ûeqlatigirpf*qbleü$,åfkçJ5U-q-aå-wldgg

-- . - Flç-atsr:.ñsen er¡tJsr*elatting-êlnd*5qeg¡l-ns tllav-L9-rgru*ed"r

thr¡

street"

E:---gradi¡s

-:--çrad¡¡s-tli-&ildlae:.ites 
shall c-çsiarqÊ*rojtlef* s-llsg¡¡e sås,Ê-*¡duexåe-lrlwþe4ågsgeg4Ëbv-ç-f

: I ¡nn¡litinnç we rra nt-ç I ovrÊn*innc:

l--:*-E{lålûBçå5hålLgqt-çäqçgå9åe-€.td-s¡Sa1!{"L}¿et&sl.hsr--içglaljvåa$,a*UJa. r$s*icaüv'

llsqti{edçglL

108

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 943



Ordinânce 201 1-01 1, Êxhib¡t 1-A
October¡t,2A11. ,Page 53of 55

109

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 944



Ordinance 201 1-01 1, Exh¡b¡t 1-A
OctobeÍ 4, 201 1 , Page 54 of 55

Chapter 15.72 PROCEDURES FOR PROCESSING DEVELCIPMÊNT PERMIS*
Sections:

L5.72.010 Generallv
15.72.020 Publlc Notice and Hearinp

16.72.030 Content sf Ngtice
15.72.0¿t0 Pjannins Staff Reports
16.72.05! Conduct of Publlc Hearlnss
16.72.060 Notice of Deci¡ion
16.72.070 ReFif tIv _of Decisïons
16.72,080 Final Action on Permlt or Zone Chanre

76,72,A!0 Generally
A. Classifications
Except for Final Development Plans for Planned Unit Developments, which are reviewed per Section

15.40,030, all quasi-judicial development permit applications and legislative land use actions shall be

classified as one of the following:

1. Typel
The following quasi-judicíal actions shall be subject to a Type I review process:

a. Signs

b. Property Line Adjustments
c. lnterpretation of Similar Uses

d. TemporaryUses
e. Final subdivision and partition plats

f. FinalSite Plan Review
g, Time extensions of approval, per Sections 16,90.020; 16.124.010

h. Class A Home Occupation Permits
i. lnterpretive Declsions by the City Manager or his/her designee
j. Tree Removal Permit - a street trees over five {5) inches DBH, per Section 16.142.050.8.2 and 3.

k. Adjustments
l. Reolatti ne. Lot Consolid at i gç-s a nd-Y-âqation s ofj lats

m. Mi[or Mogllflc-ations to Aoproved Site Plans

2. Type ll
The following quasi-judicial actions shall be subject to a Type ll review process:

a. Land Partitions
b. Expedited Land Divísions - The Planni*g Director shall make a decision based on the information
presented, and shall issue a development permit if the applicant has complied with all cf the relevant

requirements of the Zoning and Community Ðevelopment Code. Conditions may be imposed by the

Planning Director if necessary to fulfill the requirements of the adopted Comprehensive Plan,

Transportation System Plan orthe Zoning and Communíty Development Code.

c. "Fast-track" Site Plan review, defined as those site plan applications which propose less than 15,000

square feet of floor area, parking or seating capacity of public, institutional, commercial or industrial use

permitted by the underlyÊng zone, or up to a total of 20% increase in floor area, parking or seating

capacity for a land use or structure subject to conditional use permít except as follows: audìtoriums,

theaters, stadiums, and those applications subject to Section LS.7L.O];O.4, below'

d, "Design Upgraded" Site Plan review, defined as those site plan appl¡câtions which propose between

15,001 and 40,000 square feet of floor area, parking or seat¡rìg capacity and which propose a minimum

110

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 945



Ordinance 201 1-01 1, Exhibit 1-A
October 4, 201 1, Page 55 oi 55

of eighty percent {80%} of the total possible points of design critería in the "Commercial Design Review

Matrix" found in Section 16.90.020.4'G.4.

e. lndustrial "Design Upgraded" projects, defined as thûse site plan applications which propose

between 15,001 and 60,000 square feet of floor area, parking or seating capacity and wh¡ch meet all of

the criteria in 16.90.020.4.H.1.
f. Class B Variance

e. Street De'åisn Mbdification
h. Subdivislgns!çtween 4-10 lots

3. Type lll
The following quasFiudicial actions shall be subject to a Type lll review process:

a. Conditional Uses

b. Site plan Review -- between 15,001 and 40,000 square feet of floor area, parking or seating capacity

except those within the Old Town Overlay District, per Section 16.72.A10.4, below.

I c. Subdivisions@S0lots.

4. Type lV
The foltowing guasi-judiclal actions shall be subject to a Type lV review process:

a. Site plan review and/or "Fast Track" Site Plan review of new or existing structures in the Old Town

Overlay Districl.
b- All quasi-judicial actions not otherwise assigned to a Hearing,quthor¡ty underthis section,

c. Site plans -- Greater than 4û,000 square feet of floor area, park¡ng or seating capacity.

d. Site Plans subject to Sectiûn 16.90.020-4.G.6'

e. lndustrialSite Plans subject to Sect¡on 16.90'020.4'H.2.

I t. SuUAivis¡ons - M€{€+heÊovel50 lots.

g. Class A Variance

I
5. TypeV
The following legislative actions shall be subject to a Type V review processl

a, Plan Map Amendments
b. Plan Text Amendrnents
c. planned Unit Development - Preliminary Development Plan and Overlay D¡strict.

111

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 946



&-,jid,
^. (lit.'tit ' r
Sh.erqroo$()rrt¡t>rr

Clty of Sh.rwood

JIJN - { 20t2

Recordefs Otñce

REQUEST FOR RECORDS
City of Sherurood

22560 SW Pine St.
Sherwood, OR 97140

Fax (503) 625-5524
Phone (503) 625-5522

Website: www.ci.sherwood,o¡.us

u
I 2c 7

CLn

,tñ oÍtk T!&ú' nttÊ {ùtd tÜürt *JÍ'*

ARS ß2-42A aüows þr the rìght "of every persan" to inspect atry navrexempt publÌc record of a

pubtic body in Oregon. The City tlill resporcd ta record requests withinþe (5) busíness døys

and'v+,íll provìde records withtn twent! (2t) business days. Time reguíred wìII depend upon the

volume af records requested, tlw øvaìlable staffto responã to the request, and the dffieuÌty írt
determinìngwhether the records are exemptfrom disclosure- ?he City's need ¡o consultwith

other ogencîes may also need to be taken into account. Submìt yoar request to a specìtic
department or the Cíty Recarders olflce íf unßnown-

Tod*y's Date:

Name¡

Address:

Phone:

zz:+{ S ^i ?n. tl * I S ¡t€'1, vt ar, {J
Street
'*3-æ5--SàL; 

Emait:

City zip

C Lfi r4Ssr- 4þ L,CÞy¡t,

Record (s) DescriptÍort @etail may reduce
se*rch time, att¡ch ailditional page if needeif

Records Request (s):

. View a Record {on site)
PhotocopieS (. t5 singlel.Z5 doubtc süled)

- 

(E.sxtl)

^A.udio/Video/Data Disk $25 each

Bç
Êrt l.ri

Estimated ['ees: -&*- DepositAmo¿rnt:

Dat¿ Record (s) Picked IIp: fltTtcr ^L t ,Q. Customer fnitials:

Stuff OnIy:

yç1

r
\sCkon
thc 5

(Þvg

.þ.,1
9ø

ialatJd

",4*tír-,'ts
t'ø' )L*Cs

7_

,.*a-$

Stafftime is billed in lS-minute increments according to the calculatio¡rs shown on the current fes
schedule, availabie on the Cify of Sherwood website listed above. An esti¡aate of charges will be

calculated and a 50% deposit required upon receipt cf request. Balance wiil be due upon picl+up of
record(s] requested.

-t?n\
LT

#
Check#

RequestReceived By:

Name

VisâAVfC
YisailUC

DepositPaid
Bala¡æP¿id

112-

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 947



TI{IS AGREEMENT made and entered into tnisy' Aay of t&E ,2003,by and between

CITY OF SIIERWOOD, a municipal corporation sf the State of Oregon, hereinafter called

CITY, and BEERY & ELSNER, LLP, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR.

\ryITNESSETH

CITY OT'SHER\ryOOD
P. ERSONÅL SERYICES CONTRÀCT

IYHEREAS, CITY has need for the legal services of a law ñrm with the particular ¡'¿ining,
ability, knowledge, and experieuce possessed by CONTRACTOR, and

\ryHEREAS, CITY has determined that CONTRACTOR is guaüfied and capable of
perfcrming tbe professional services as CITY does hereinafter require, ¡¡nder these terms and

co¡ditions set forth,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenânts contai¡red herein, the parties

agree as follows:

1, LEGAL SERÏICE$ TO BE PROYIÞED;

CONTRACTOR will be responsible for CITY legal representation as authorized by
the Mayor, City Councf and/or City Manager or lbeir designees.

Unless otherwise specified by CITY, CONTRACTOR will:

Draft and/or review ordinaaces, resolutions, coûtracts, orders,
agreements, and other legal documents.

t

1

3

4

Conduct legal research, prepã¡e memoranda, and provide advice to the
CITY.

Be responsible for representing CITY in litigation and administrative
proceecijngs.

Attendmeetings of the City Council onthe fourth Tuesday of each
month. Attend other City Council, planning Commissio¡¡ Staffand otber
municipal meetings on request.

Assist in the development of legislatian and administrative policies.

Ensure that all CITY's ordinances a¡e in compliance with state statutes.

A.

B.

5.

6.

Page 1 B PERSONAL SERYICES CONTRACT

113

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 948



2. CO-MPENSATION:

A

B

Payment will be Bâde to the CONTRACTOR for the services identified based

upon a detailed monflly billing showing work perforrned.

Hourly rates:

Partners
Senior Of Counsel
Associates
Paralegals
Legal A.ssistants

$165.00
$165.00
$135.00
$ 90.00
$ 75.00

Tbe direct cost for zuch items as long distance chrrges, mileage, messerger
services, printing, copy charges and the like will be billed to CITY.

PaymenË by CITY shall release CITY from any firrther obligation for pa)¡ment to
CONTRACTORfoT services performed or experses ingurred as of the date of and

included in the statement of services. Payment shall aot be co¡sidered acceptance

or approval of any wo¡k o¡ waiver of any defects tlerein. CONTRÁ'CTOR may
impose a ñ¡ance eharge af 1.07a on unpaid balaaces net 45 days.

E. CITY certifies that sufficient fi¡ads are available and authorized, or will be

authorized, for expenditure to finance the cost of this ConEact.

3. CO.NTMCT9RIDENTTFTÇÁ.TrON:

CONTRACTOR's Employer ldentification Number (8n9, as desigaated by the
Iatemal Revenue Serviee is 93-1234801.

CONTRé"CTOR sbail be ao independent CONTRACTOR for all purposes aad shall be

entitled to no cor¡rpensation otber rhan the competsation provided for under paragtaph? of
tbis Conuact.

ST]BCONTR,{CTING:

CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract its work under tlis contract, in whole or in part,
without the written approval of CITY.

TERM AND_TERMINATION:

C"

Ð,

4.

5

6.

Page 2 B PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRA.CT

114

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 949



At any time with or without cause, CITY or CONTRACTOR shall have the right to
terminate this Contract. If CITY terminaæs the Coatract it shall deliver frrll payment to
CONTRACTOR for servicæ rendered to the date of termination. Temrination by
CITY must be done by resolution of the City Councit. If CONTRACTOR terminates

rhe contract, it shall provide CITY with not less than sixty (60) days' written notice.

7. INDEMMTY AND INSURANCE:

4,. Indemnity: CONTR A.CTOR acknowledges reqponsibility for any and a1l liability
arising out of the performance of this contract and agrees to hold CITY harmless
from and indemnify CITY for any aud all Liability, settlements, loss, costs, and

expenses in couneetion with any action, suit, or claim resulting or allegedly
resulting &om CONTRACTOR's acts, omissions, activíties or services in the
course of performing this Contract.

B. Rofessional Liability lasurance: CONTRACTOR shall maintaia professional
tiabilþ inswance which shall provide coverage as required by the Professional
Liability Fund of the Oregon Søte Bar to proteet CONTRACTOR from any and all
claims, demands, actions and suits for malpractice arising from CONTRACTOR' S

work performed under this contract.

8. NOTTCES:

All notices shall be made in writing and may be given by personal delivery or by rnail,
addressed as follows:

CITY Ross Schultz, City Manager
City of Sherwood
20 NW Washington St.
Sherwood, OR 97140

CONTRá.CTOR: Paul C. Elsner
Beery & Elsner, LLP
Suite 380
1750 SW Harbor Way
Portland, OR 97201

9. WORK IS PROPERTY:

All work, iacluding, but not limited to documents, drawings, papers, electonic media,
and photographs, performed or produced by CONTR.{.CTOR uuder this Contract, shall
be the property of the CITY.

Page 3 s PERSONAL SERYICES CONTRÁ,CT

115

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 950



10. COMPLIANCE IilTTH LAWS:

CONTRå,CTOR shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances
appiicable to public contracts as to tbe work to be done under tbis Contract.

11. INTEGRATION:

This Contract cûntaiûs the estbe agreemeût between ihe parties and supersedes a1l prior
written or oral discussions or agreements regarding fhe sa¡ne subject.

IFI ïIITNESS THEREOF, CITY has caused this Contractto be executed in duplicate originals by
its duly authorized undersiped agent and CONTRÁ.CTOR has executed this Contact on the dates

below.

CITY OF'SEERWOOD

DATEÐ: s /ur

t"lw lçt

BY: t/àor 8"
CONTRACTOR

DATED:

Sherwood/fi ¡a¡cc/p¡e0 1

BY

Page 4 B PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

116

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 951



lD_1tr:Lr
T,.LJ I I Beery Elsner

ô{-

March 7,2012

Pamela J. Beery

PJB/sb

LLP

Tom Pessemier, Iuterim City Manager

City of Sherwoad
22560 SWPine Steet
Sherwood, OR 97140

Re: Legal Cor:nsel Services

Ðea¡ Tom:

It is our pleasrue to coatinue ts servs ns legal counsel for.the cþ of sherwood' 1üfe are in the

;;;#p.rf"*i.g * annual revisw:fþ {*y existing service-agreTtttq to be sure lhey

are up-to-dãt*. a* ãÃat costraçtruíth &e city beeame Jffectivs in 20t3 and continues r:ntil

lerminated rsderf3e terss ofthe agreement'

'we write to let you krow tbat we bave desided to f*rgo anl reqlest- lnr a rale i:rcrease for the

åscal year ZOfZ+O:i. Hlcwever, in order far us to knep up with rising-ccsts and inflatian' a

futr¡¡e ,ute adjusuneJ i, iit uly lo zo r :-ic t 4. 'TVe hope tbat sru defe.rat sf a rate adiustnent this

;;-"l t;*t11i" ro-* r*Jit***" belp the City mamge its budg*t ir the coming yes¡'

please feel frse to call witb aay questions, and our sincere thanks for the opportunity to provide

serviceto the CitY of Sherwood'

Sincerel¡

å*'

-rTra-
c 5{i3.226.7'l91
f solaaztaa

Ê lnfo@govJowcom

1750 5W Hcùor \Â/oY Sulte 380

Portlend OR 97201-510ó
vrww.gov-low.corn 117

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 952



' Tl'T-t -rr'm:*r BeeryElsner
&.

Ma¡sh 12,201t

Jim Patterson, City Manager
Ciþ of Sherwood
2256A S\YPine Street
Sherwood, OR 97140

Dear Jim:

it has beer our pleæure to continue to serve as legal counsel for the Cþ of Sherwood. 'rù/e 
a¡e in

the process of performing an annual review of all of ow eristiag service agreements .to be sure

they are up-to-date.

Our surrent rates have been in place since 2008. In consideratioa of that fact and of our valued
relationship with the City, but Bindful of increasirig costs, rile are $¡riting to allow the City to
co¡sidar a proposecl hourly rate increase to be effective, if approved, on July 1, 20100 as follou¡s:

LLP

Parhers and Of Counsel:

Associates:

Paralegals:

Legal Assistants:

Êom $180.0û to $20û.0û

üom $165.00 to $175.00

to remain $125.00

to rçmain $95.00

'We highly value ou¡ working relationship with you and your staffl, and while our sosts are rising,
$re are still mindñ:l of the City's budget. 1Ve will continue to monitor our billings and make

efficient use of our staff. Tfe me committed to keepiag the Cþ's costs dol1'n while maintaining
quality service.

m0786fl1,Ðoc

r 503.22óJr9l
f sçllzt.zs*

e lnÍc@gav-lo*com

1750 SW Horhor Way Suite 380
Podlond SR 9720ì-5106
www.govlow.com

T-r
lr

118

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 953



Mæch 12,2010
Page 2

please fcel Ëee to call to discuss this proposàl or if you bave æy questions. Tbank you for the

opportunity to provide service to the Cìty of Sherwood.

Sincerely,

&rt^-
PamelaI. Beery

PJB/sb

î._t¡
0$nB68l.DOC

119

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 954



January ZL,ãQA9

SENÎ VIC. ÜS MATL

Jim Patlerson" City Macager
Cþ of Sherwood

. 20 NW Washiagfon Sheet

.Çþprwpq{, on ?,?119:7lT}

DearRoss:

It is ar¡r pleas.ure to coatiaue to serve as legal coti¡ssl for the City of She'rwood. Wc a¡e in the

procsss, of performïog an annaa: ¡eview oJ all of our existing service-agreements to be sure tbey
ãte"p-io-*"tq. : '' ""',."'...,''' '

' tt, -. '-., -'i '1.'. -'.'.r,;.;..- l , ' 
'

ìüitb particular consideration sf the óurènt natio¡ral and regional econonic conditious, rûe are

$niting to let you kncw th¿t we have deeiðed to forgo ary rsqlresl fsr a rate insreåse for the

fiscal year 2009¿010. Sfe hope that our defen-¿l of a rate adjusûnent Îåis fisclal yea¡ will in
some small meas¡$€ heþ the City get througb 1te coming year aqd prwide the cl:aace to review
theCity'sfisçal aiter¡atþes going"forr.g{,,,' .,','.,','i,, - 1,

r'. t. '- "'.. ".. '

Please feel &ee to call with any questions, aná tha¡k you foi the pppoiti:::ity to povide service to
tbeCityofShe¡wood. ."':: -' .

Siacerely,

Paul C. Elsirer

PCE/sb

{00021 146; I }

1.20

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 955



]D:Clu
-UtIrIl BeeryElsner

&- Harnmandi-i-p

March 17,2008

Ross Sclult4 City Manager
City af Sherwood
20 N$f ïVashington Stect
Shennood, OR 97140-?85 1

Ðea¡Ross:

Itbas been our pleasure to continue to sÊrve as legal counsel forthe City of Sherwood. 'We are in
tbe process cf perforrning ¿¡ s¡nual review of all of ow existing service agreements to be sure
they are up-to-date.

The cur:ent iates havs been in place since July 2006. In consideration of tlat fact, and of our
valued relationship with the City, but mindful of inffeasing eosts, we are w¡iting to allow ths
City to consider a limited proposed hourly rate increase ts be effective; if approved" on July 1,

2008, as follows:

Parb,ers and 0f Coun$el: from $165.00 to $180.00

from$145.00 to $165.00

frsm $90.00 to $125.00

Êom $75.00 to $95.0û

.,{ssooiates:

Paraiegals:

Legal Assistants:

'We bigbly value our working relationship with you and your staff, and while our costs are rising
u¡e aÍe still nindful of tbe City's budget. 'V/e wili contisue ts monitor sur þillings, make

efficieot use cf ou¡ stafl and are committed to keeping the Çity'g cssts do$Ð whil9 maintaining
quality service.

tltAdninÌBillíng & R¡ltsl?00[ì2008 R¡tc L¡tts¡\Sb¡rwood ¡¡le ltr'doc

TJ-I.Lr 5B3,2t6Jl9t
f so¡.*¿.æ¿e

€ lnfc@gov-la*,com

'175t SW Horbor Woy Sulte 380
hrtlond gR t72OI-5lOó
www.govJow.com

F

121

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 956



March 17,2008
Pagc2

Please feel Êee to call to diseuss this proposal or if you have any questions, and tbank you for the
opportrmity to provide sen¡ice to the City.

Sincerely,

Pa¡nela J. Beery

PJBlsb

ss: Jim Patterson

E:lÄrlilinlEüllng È, trd¡c\2008l2008 nd¡ kttcal$ler¡o¡d ¡¡lc h.dos

122'

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 957



BEenY, EISNÐR & H¿uUoND, T,m
ArroRNEYs AT L¡'w

P¿rm:nJ. BEÊRy*
PA{r. C. ELslusR
Jo¡r¡t H. HnMMoro, Jn
* Álso Ldoittrd

inWashington
t 0f Cor¡r¡.sel

1750 SW H¡{*soRWAY, SurE380 FoRfl,ânD, OREso}¡ 9?201-5164
'¡btEpHo¡¡E {503} 216-7191 FAcsrMrLE {stgi 226-9348

ï¿rylLcov-LÂw,c._oM

T¡rou¿s SPol¡sLER t
ÐevroF, DOUGHMåN

Spsxcpn Q. PARsoNs
MAlTEswJ. M¡CHEL

Marsh 23,2çA6

'Ross Schultz, Cíty Manager
City of Shenn'ood
20NWWashington Sl
Sherwood" OR 9? 140-785 1

RE: Personal Services Agraenugnt-Special Legal Coru¡sel

Ðea¡Ross: ' '

It is our pleasure to continue to serve as special legal cor:nsel for the City of Sherwood. We are

i¡.the prociss of perforniag an annual review of all of our existiag sErrice agreÊtents to be sure

they are up to date.

Or¡r cdr¡ent contrast witå the City of Shen¡vood became effeçtirrÊ l:s.{ay 29,2003 strd.continues
r¡nti1 temaimted rnder tbe terms of the agreement. Wa have aot sought a rate iacrease in t!¡ee
years (the surrent rates have been in place since 2003). However,.oür costs have increæed
considerably and we are writing at this time to allow tbe Cþ to consider the following proposeú

hourly rate increases to be effective, if approved, on Juþ 1, 2006, with any contract extension the

Cþ wishes to granÍ

Partners aad Of Counsel:

Senior.Associates:

å¡nior Associates:

Paraiegals:

Legal Âssista:¡ts:

ta remaí:a at $165.00

from $135.ûû to $145.t0

frgm $125.00 ts $135,00

to remain at $90.00

to remaia at $75.t0

We valus oruworking relationship with you and.yorr staffhighly, and while ou¡ ccsts are rising
we are still mindful of the City's budget. We will contirue ro moaitcr our billings, make

efficient use of ow staf, and are comæittsd to keeping the Cþ'q costs dolvn while maintaining
quality ssrvice.

O¡låd¡¡1nlgllmg & Rlluln¡lÉ lét]!¡¡Lsfi rf,lod trlE lcÊf 2!fi¡'dæ

123

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 958



{
Bgnnr. Ers¡rnn & I{å¡¡g\douÐ r,r.P

ÀTtoñìEYs ÁT ¡¡âv

I'f¡xú23,2006
Page?.

}lease feel &ee to call to discuss this proposal or if you hav€ any questions, and thaak you for the
opportunity to provide sewice to the City of Shenarood.

SincerelY.

'øÉ'
PqmelaJ.Beery

PIB/sc

Ënâ&bìBlllh¡ Ê l¡¡dü¡tt ldldrglFrf!'¿ E ! ld¡t:!06.d0e

124

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 959



BegRY, EISNER e Hen¿¡,toND, i,le
ATToRNEYS AT LAw

PåùrEf.A.J- BsERt'
PåIJL C. E¡"sNER
Jor¡NH, H.AMMoND, JR.

r ålso ado.itted
ia üashnrgtoc

I OfCounse!

1750 SW HArsoR li'åy, SunE 380 PoRrLÅri¡Ð, ORE:G0N 9?201-5164
TErEpl¡oilE {sosl 226:7t91 FÂcsrM&E {503t 226-2348

lWVW,ÊOV-lJlW,COM

Tnoní¡s Spoì¡slsn i
ÞAv¡D F. ÐouoqM¡,N
SexllceeQ, P¿nsous

May 20, 20û5

Ross Sch¡ltz
Cþ Manager
Cily of Sherwood
20 hnf Wasbington St.
Sherwood, OR97140

RE: ' Pemonal Serr¡ices Agreenaent - Cþ Àttomey Services

DearRoss:

It is orn pieasurc to continue to serve as City Attomey fgr Sherwooil.

'Wc 
are in tba process ofperformiug an aanuel reyiew of all of our oxisting seryise agreemants to

be sr:re they are up-to-date. Our oontract ì\'ith the City became cffective May 29,2003 aad
continues until teminated under the terms of the agreement

'We âre w¡iting to let you }crow that, based on the Cityls guffent budgei situadorU we have
decided to forgo any request for a¡ate i¡crcase for the fisoal year 2005-2û06. We hope tåic rrill
in some suall measure belp the City get through the coming year aad provide the oha¡rce to
review the Cit¡fs fscal allematives.

Please feel free to call with any questicns, and thank you for the opportunity to provide servics to
Sher,¡¡ood.

Sincerelv-

{*t'--
Pa¡aelaJ. Beery

FJBlec

f:l$mrllFborr\f twood P5À ld¡snx!5.¡bc

125

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 960



V
INUTE

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 961



City of Sherwood, Oregon
Planning Commission Minutes

August 28,2012
Commission Members Present:
Chair Allen
Commissioner Copfer
Commissioner Griffin
Commissioner Cary (via phone)
Commissioner Clifford (via phone)

Staff:
Julia Hajduk, Planning Manager
Brad Kilby, Senior Planner
Tom Pessemier, Community Development Director
Bob Galati, City Engineer

Commission Members Absent:
Vice Chair Albert
Commissioner Walker

Council Liaison: Councilor Clark
Legal Counsel: Chris Crean

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Chair Allen called the meeting to order and Julia Hajduk called the roll and stated that
Commissioners Cary and Clifford would vote via conference call when needed for a quorum.

2. Agenda Review
Chair Allen stated he would dispense with the consent agenda, and move directly to Council
Liaison comments, staff announcements, and community comments, then get Commissioners Cary
and/or Clifford on the phone for the business before the commission and finish with the consent
agenda.

3. Council Liaison Comments
Councilor Clark commented that the City Council passed a resolution certifuing the explanatory
statement for the Tonquin Employment Area Annexation to accompany the ballot title previously
passed by Council which will go on the November 20L2ballot Council also passed a resolution
declaring the need to acquire property and establish agreements for the connection of SW Langer
Farms Parkway to Hwy 99.

4. StaffAnnouncements
Planning Manager Julia Hajduk reminded the Commission of the Sherwood Town Center Open
House on October 3, 2012, commented regarding the sign code amendments that have been
adopted by Council and a brochure that Senior Planner Brad Kilby is distributing, and solicited
attendees for Planning Commissioner training being offered by the Oregon City Planning
Director's Association to be held September 27,2012.

5. Community Comments
Robert James Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, Sherwood. Mr. Claus commented regarding the
rules of the Oregon Commission of Ethics, economic interest, and conflicts of interest. Mr. Claus
commented regarding the value of land and zoning, transparency of City processes and the

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page I of l7

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 962



boundaries of volunteering for public office. Mr. Claus cited law cases concerning bad tendencies
and political speech and commented on first amendment rights in Oregon.

Julia Hajduk connected Commissioner Cary via conference call

6. Old Business

^. Public Hearing- Sentinel Self Storage Annex (SP 12-03) Continued from 8ll4ll2 Ptanning
Commission meeting.
Chair Allen conferred with Julia Hajduk regarding the wording for the Public Hearing statement
and stated that because the public hearing had been held at the previous meeting he needed only to
ask for any ex parte contact, bias or conflicts of interest. Commissioner Cary disclosed that he
had ex parte contact with Wes Freadman regarding the project and that it did not have any bias on
his decision.

Brad Kilby, Senior Planner stated that the hearing had been continued from August 14 to August
28 for additional public testimony. Brad showed a presentation (see record, Exhibit 1) and
reminded the commission that the subject property was approximately 55 acres that was bound by
Langer Farms Parkway, a railroad, Oregon Street, and farmland to the south of the site. Brad
added that the property was a portion of Lot 5 from the approved Langer Farms Subdivision that
was on appeal later in the evening. Brad commented that the proposal was to construct 430
storage units on approximately 6.9 acres and stated he will speak to issues from the previous
hearing.

Showing the Site Plan, Brad stated there was a secondary fire access included in his memo. Brad
added that a secondary access is always recommended by Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue
(TVF&R) and Deputy Fire Marshall John Wolffe stated that with this case the secondary access
was not required. Regarding ownership Brad commented that the code requires the property owner
to sign the application so they are aware that an application has been filed for land use on their
property. Brad stated the manager Erin at the Tualatin River Wildlife Refuge was the liaison for
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service who indicated that the area is not in their acquisition area, even
though it might be a tributary to Rock Creek and they would not have any comments over and
above Clean Water Services for storm water and resource protection. Brad stated that Sherwood
Building Official, Scott McKie, had indicated that a 6' x 6'bathroom was probably too small for
ADA Access as the occupant needs to have a turning radius inside the stall and sink area, but the
area may not need to be too much larger, possibly 7' x 7'. Brad said the applicant's
representative, Chris Goodell, confirmed that the fuel would be diesel and propane as indicated in
the testimony at the previous meeting and the fuel would require permits from TVF&R, but not
the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ. Brad explained that the DEQ is concerned
about underground tanks and air quality. DEQ's local representative confirmed that gasoline
requires permits, but not diesel and propane. Brad commented that he further questioned the
applicant regarding who would use the fuel and was told it would not be open to the public but to
renters in the facility who will have to preanange a time to fill up with an attendant. Brad
expounded on the TVF&R permits for the fuel stating that the seismic loads, stability of the
structure, emergency shut off and spillage issues will be reviewed prior to permitting. With
respect to a turn around, the applicant has proposed additional signage and a permanent land line
to call the offrce to provide access through the gate, but TVF&R will not require a turn around.
Brad added that video surveillance is not required by the code, but the applicant has maintained

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 2 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 963



that it is a common practice in the industry and they will have video surveillance of various
components of the storage facility.

Brad stated that staff continues to recommend approval with conditions and suggested that if the
Commission is not comfortable with the language they could add a condition requiring that the
fuel access be limited to patrons who have rented space in the facility, require an ADA bathroom,
even though the Building Ofhcial will require it. Brad added that the RV wash has to be designed
so that the storm and sewer do not mix per Clean Water Services, water from washing vehicles is
put in the sewer system, and it cannot be open above because rain mixes with the sewer.

Chair Allen stated the record was left open for testimony and asked Brad for written testimony.
Brad entered and read Exhibit K, a leffer from Jim Haynes; Exhibit L, aletler from Scott Haynes;
Exhibit M, an email from Casey Overcamp supporting the project, and Exhibit N, a letter from Jim
Claus. As Mr. Claus was present the five page letter was not read. Julia added that a letter from
the Chamber was received (see record, Exhibit O), but as they were also present to testiff the letter
was not read. Chair Allen opened the hearing for public testimony.

Robert James Claus, 22211SW Pacific Hwy, Sherwood. Mr. Claus expressed his astonishment at
the testimony and commented regarding the 1995 code and gas stations being prohibited as an
accessory, incidental, or main use. Mr. Claus commented regarding the application getting an
exception and if permits are issued they are revocable. Mr. Claus commented regarding a mini
warehouse becoming a ministorage, a lumber yard becoming Home Depot, and the annex being an
extension of a non-conforming use which, he stated, the code bars you from doing. Mr. Claus
commented regarding clarifying language in the code before Council and disqualifying the PUD,
and stated it would be administering variances for self-imposed hardships because of the
parceling. Mr. Claus commented on the rush to get revenues, overlooking the 95 code, and
previous City Manager, Jim Rapp's dislike for mini storage, self-service, and car lots. Mr. Claus
commented on the last facility of this type that came before the Commission that was "refused
because it did not meet the design standards" but had the same application in a general commercial
zone that staff said it conformed to the code. Mr. Claus stated there were two laws in Sherwood;
laws for people that curry political favor particularly within the urban renewal boundaries, and
laws for the rest of us outside of it. Mr. Claus commented that the code, fire problems, and
drainage problems were being ignored and the PUD was given in order to ignore the zoning. Mr.
Claus stated he would appeal the decision and he would try his best to terminate this PUD, even if
it takes a lawsuit.

Leanna Knutson, 17052 SV/ Cobble Court, Sherwood. Ms. Knutson stated she was President of
the Sherwood Chamber of Commerce and was present to give support for the Sentinel Self-
Storage expansion project on behalf of the hundreds of members the Chamber represents. Ms.
Knutson commented on the mission of the Chamber and stated that business development and
expansion creates jobs, fuels the City's tax base, and promotes the standard of living that we love
about Sherwood. Ms. Knutson commented that the Chamber supports the expansion because it
supports local opportunities. Ms. Knutson commented regarding the Residences at Cannery
Square stating that the Chamber wanted to offer its support for that project and like the Sentinel
Self-Storage expansion the apartment complex harmonizes the economic aspirations of our
community.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 3 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 964



Chair Allen commented that the public testimony has been closed for the Capstone project and the
commission cannot take that part of her testimony into consideration.

Gary Langer, 17384 SW Timber Crossing Lane, Sherwood. Mr. Langer asked if there were
enough commissioners to make a decision. Chair Allen affirmed that there was a fourth
Commissioner participating by phone. Mr. Langer commented that there has been a lot of
research for the development of this project, it will be a state of the art facility, and he wanted to
share some of the positive aspects of the project. Mr. Langer commented that there was a lot of
community support, where he lives you cannot have boats, cars and RV's out, and this facility
works really well for the city of Sherwood. Mr. Langer commented on the design and planning
for the project and facilities in Tigard, Tualatin, Wilsonville, and the new one on Cipole Road
adding that RV repair can be done on site. Mr. Langer stated he wanted to address some
objections raised by previous testimony. Mr. Langer commented regarding Home Depot and
Sentinel being illegally built and stated the projects were done over ten years ago and done by
code and he was unsure why the issue keeps reoccurring. Regarding sewer spillage into the water,
Mr. Langer stated that the facility will have a safe dump station because of design, grading and
structure. Mr. Langer commented that Sentinel has been in business since 1997, has a lot of repeat
customers, and is at capacity much of the time. Mr. Langer commented that there was no water
stored in the farm field and there was not a well near the site that it was set up for drainage and the
wetland area. Mr. Langer commented on the landscaping ordinance not being met because of the
use of the term annex and stated that the application meets all of the code requirements which
have been approved by staff. Mr. Langer commented that 90%o of the RVs will be covered and the
site will be clean as he lives in Sherwood, too.

Sandford Rome, 14645 SW Willamette Street, Sherwood. Mr. Rome commented on the term
standing and testimony received from residents outside of Sherwood. Mr. Rome commented that
he would like to see this project go forward with the added conditions for approval. Mr. Rome
commented regarding long term residents, standing, and the things he has seen in this town over
the years. Mr. Rome commented regarding having to pay additional taxes for repairs or changes
in the City and long term residents who have also had to pay. Mr. Rome commented regarding
building a state of the art facility and not having it come back to the citizens and asked how the
Commission might correct the problems that arise and said the City should have an addressable
procedure for fixing any unforeseen problems immediately. Mr. Rome referenced streets that
were not completed properly in the past. Mr. Rome commented on the standing of the Langer
family and their rights to develop their property. Mr. Rome commented on the Cannery square and
standards that were not met. Mr. Rome repeated his comments regarding problems being solved
and stated if it is the City's dollar it is his dollar.

Chris Goodell, representing the applicant, Langer Family LLC, from AKS Engineering, 13910
SW Galbreath Drive, Ste. 100 Sherwood. Mr. Goodell stated he prepared a memo regarding the
questions from the Commission at the last hearing that was included in the packet which included
business operations. Mr. Goodell commented that the fuel in question will be diesel and not gas.
Mr. Goodell stated there were project engineers, and the owner/ operator and applicant, were
present to answer any questions. Mr. Goodell asked for the Commission's approval.

Wes Freadman,21315 SW Baler Way, Sherwood. Mr. Freadman stated he was a supporter of the
project and commented that all of the problems have been addressed. Mr. Freadman commented
that Sentinel was at maximum capacity and if Sherwood residents did not want a storage facility it

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 4 of l7

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 965



would be empty. Mr. Freadman commented that the facility will be a good neighbor, good use of
the land and tax revenue and he thought it should be approved.

With no one else signed up to testifu, Chair Allen closed the public testimony and asked for any
questions from the Commission.

Chair Allen asked regarding the code that applies to the project and referenced the Permitted Uses
in the General Commercial Zone which states it "includes wholesale trade, warehousing,
commercial storage, and mini warehousing". Mr. Allen commented that he would have thought
commercial storage as a "business that sells storage" and asked if he was reading it correctly and
in the correct version of the appropriate code. Brad confirmed and stated he wanted to clarifr that
under the Langer PUD, the applicant is allowed to construct in phases 6, 7, and 8, uses that were
permitted in 1995, as well as uses that would be permitted under today's code. Brad stated this
was his understanding of what council agreed to and was the intent in the 2007 minor
modification. Brad stated that in the Staff Report it says that mini storage is a permitted use at the
time that the PUD was approved and staff believes it is an allowed use in this zone.

Brad continued by commenting on the issue raised regarding Home Depot and the Sentinel
Storage being illegal uses and stated that Home Depot was approved by the courts through a writ
of mandamus and Sentinel Storage was approved through another action, that people had the
opportunity to appeal, but those uses are allowed and in affect today.

Chair Allen commented on the issue of stonding and stated that from a legal standpoint his
understanding was standing was the ability to come and testify and if you do not like the decision
to go appeal it. Chair Allen added that Land Use in Oregon is broad and everyone the
Commission has heard from, has standing to be able to come and testify and carry their arguments.
Attorney Chris Crean confirmed and stated that under Oregon law, at this level, any person may
participate in a local land use proceeding and anyone who participates then has standing to appeal
that decision. Chair Allen commented that the point being made regarding standing was more
broad in that, irrespective of legal standing, some opinions may be entitled to different weight than
others and his opinion was that any time someone comes to the Planning Commission he does not
think of it as standing, but considers what their interests are. Chair Allen commented regarding a
previous storage decision brought up in earlier testimony and stated his recollection differs from
the testimony that was heard as the only one he could recall was the one that was built. Chair
Allen stated the Planning Commission was rebuked by members of SURPAC for allowing it.

Chair Allen commented that he did not think additional conditions were necessary as they were
adequately dealt with in other regulation. Chair Allen asked if other Commissioners had
comments or questions. None were provided.

Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission to approve the
application for the Sentinel Self-Storage Annex (SP 12-03), based on the applicant testimony,
public testimony received, and the analysis, findings, and conditions in the Staff Report;
seconded by Commissioner Griffïn. All Commission members present voted in favor.
(Commissioner Cary voted yes by phone, Vice Chair Albert and Commissioners Clifford and
Walker were absent.)

Chair Allen called a five minute recess and the call with Commissioner Cary was terminated.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 5 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 966



b. Public Hearing Residences at Cannery Square (SP 12-04 Continued from 8ll4ll2
Planning Commission meeting.
Chair Allen reconvened the public hearing for SP 12-04 and stated that public testimony had been
closed. Chair Allen asked the Commissioners regarding any ex parte contact, bias, and potential or
actual conflicts of interest.

Julia added that Commissioner Clifford was on the phone via conference call and there was still a
quorum with a different commissioner.

Commissioner Griffin declared that he had a short conversation with Jeff Sacket from Capstone
regarding the look of the buildings following the previous meeting that would not affect his vote.

Chair Allen stated that the public testimony had been closed, but there was written testimony that
was received in a timely manner but was not in the record. Chair Allen stated they would enter the
letter verbally into the record and re-open the testimony for anyone who wished to testifu on any
issues raised by that comment. Chair Allen stated he would give latitude to the responses, but
asked that no new information be entered into the record because they should not be considered by
the commission and will complicate matters.

Brad Kilby read the letter from John and Jackie Bolton, 22515 SW Lincoln Street, Sherwood (see

SP 12-04, Exhibit J) which commented on raising their family in a historic house on Lincoln
Street, the unofficial collaboration between the developer and the City, and changes in zoning
laws over the years that allow an apartment building in the middle of a neighborhood. The
Boltons stated that they were adamantly opposed to the building and questioned having a three
level apartment building in the middle of one of the oldest neighborhoods in the city, adding that it
will change the dynamics of Old Town Sherwood in a negative way. The Boltons commented on
congestion in downtown Sherwood, traffic on \Millamette street from the Old Town Field House
and that an apartment complex will worsen the problem. The Boltons commented on the concem
for safety the of children in the neighborhood who walk to school and the effect of a hundred more
cars on the road. The Boltons commented on changing Old Town area with a structure that does
not fit in and asked for consideration of the negative impacts to the families that live in the
neighborhood. The Boltons commented that just because zoning codes allow it to be built, does
not mean it is a good thing to be built and residents in the area most affected should be taken into
consideration when making the decision. The Boltons commented that the complex will not keep
Sherwood and old town going in a positive direction and commented on voting for ballot measures
and council members that help Sherwood be great and fair to citizens.

Chair Allen opened public testimony for the limited purpose of hearing testimony in response to
the issues raised in the letter.

Sandford Rome, 14645 SW Willamette Street, Sherwood. Mr. Rome commented regarding the
project being harmonious with the neighborhood stating he has been working with Brad Kilby
regarding language to be forthcoming. Mr. Rome commented that there was no way to build a
four story building in a two story neighborhood and keep it harmonious. Mr. Rome commented
on the number of cars in the neighborhood and suggested that with one hundred units there will
be more than one hundred additional cars. Mr. Rome commented that the traffic study was
provided by Capstone and if you study any apartment complex in town by the number of trips in

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 6 of l7

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 967



and out for seven days you would see that a 54 unit apartment, such as the Murdock Apartments,
does something over 300 trips a day. Mr. Rome challenged the credibility that the traffic study
was objective in studying apartment complexes in the city. Mr. Rome commented regarding
pictures that he had submifted at a previous Planning Commission meeting regarding Lincoln
Street improvements and remaining road problems and lack of sidewalks. Mr. Rome commented
regarding putting drivers onto Tualatin Sherwood Road or Oregon Street and taking the most
direct route, which is provided by Lincoln Street. Mr. Rome commented that it was difficult to
drive by Willamette Street as the road ends at Murdock with a round-about. Mr. Rome
commented that the project was like two army barracks with car parking underneath and the city
has tried for two years to make it a viable project, disregarding comments and design standards.
Mr. Rome commented on how the project was being financed and stated it was a dormitory type
structure, with 51 units in each building, on roughly an acre. Mr. Rome commented on the need to
provide for the neighborhood to make it harmonious and suggested two stories with fewer units or
another building on the property. Mr. Rome asked how the city was going to pay property owners
back for the damages done when the project is finally finished and opponents were right again.

Chair Allen closed the public testimony. Planning Manager, Julia Hajduk inquired regarding
procedure to receive the applicant's final testimony. Chris Crean stated the applicant should have
testified during the public testimony. Chair Allen reopened the public testimony in case there was
any lack of clarity to receive the applicant's testimony with a five minute time limit.

Jeff Sacket, Capstone Partners, 1015 NW 1lth Ave, ïte.243, Portland. Mr. Sacket commented
that he disagreed with regards to the project being incompatible with the neighborhood and stated
the project has conformed with every regulation whether it was from the Code, the Planning
Commission, or the Architectural Planning Book approved by the Planning Commission and City
Council. Mr. Sacket commented that the project was handsome and he expects the project to be a
welcome addition to Old Town and Sherwood as a whole. Mr. Sacket commented regarding the
traffic engineer's analysis and stated DKS is a reputable local and regional traffic engineer that is
beyond reproach adding that Capstone hired them to evaluate the traffic situation as they saw fit as

well as respond to the City Engineer's requests. Mr. Sacket commented that Capstone is not
traffic experts, but hire traffic experts and do as they advise.

Chair Allen closed the public testimony and stated there were updated staff comments.

Brad Kilby commented on the reputation of DKS and the number of traffic studies they perform
and stated that the traffic studies were based on the 8th edition of the International Traffic
Engineers Manual which is the accepted manual used by cities, counties and traffic engineers in
determining traffic counts. Brad showed a presentation with the conditions of approval (see

record, Exhibit 2) and commented that they were provided in the Planning Commission packet,
with the exception of two conditions in the presentation. Brad stated that the first conditions of
approval added are prior to final site plan approval which included in C.3 the verbiage "or
evergreen scresn" to the condition, from the last hearing, that required the applicant to install a 6-
foot tall fence, wall or evergreen screen along the east property line of the east residential
building, and the west property line of the west residential building. Brad explained that another
condition was C.4 which contained language discussed regarding meeting Clean Water Services
(CWS) requirements within the City in the event that the regional storm water quality facility
came online and is to obtain construction plan approval for those facilities prior to final site plan
approval or in the event that they were not required to do that a compliance agreement had to be

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
PageT of17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 968



put into place to eliminate the water quality facility. Brad read the condition for the benefit of
Commissioner Clifford who was on the phone: Obtain construction plan approval from the
Engineering Department for all public improvements including the on-site water quality facility tf
an alternative has not been agreed upon at time offinal site plan review. If the applicant, City and
Cï/'S reach an acceptoble ogreement to use the regional water quality facility, the applicant may
submit revised plans showing how the areas for the on-site water quolity facility will be otherwise
landscaped or utilized consistent with the approved development plans and the engineering
compliance agreement modified accordingly to eliminate the on-site water qualityfacility.

Brad commented that the next set of conditions were to be completed prior to building permits but
they appeared to be the same as prior to frnal site plan approval and he moved on to conditions of
approval prior to final occupancy. Brad read the condition 8.6 which read On-site or a regionol
storm water treatment system that complies with City of Sherwood and CWS standards shall be
either in place, operational and any necessary connection fees paid or an agreement and
assurances acceptable to both the City of Sherwood and CWS sholl be in place.

Chair Allen asked Brad to read the conditions of approval prior to building Permits from the
revised staff report. Brad read D.l Prior to issuance of building permits þr the east and west
residential buildings, the applicant shall submit revised drawings that illustrate an enhanced
decorative treatment of the southeast portion of the building and/or sites facing SW Willamette
Street. Such architectural revisions shall involve variations of texture, materials, patterns, and
color which are distinct yet complementary to the building, or shall include brick or stone
elements which serve to add visual interest to the portion of the project visible from Sl(
Ilillamette street and stated that this language was requested by the commission. Brad read D.8
which states Provide a set of plans that clearly demonstrates compliance wíth the pitch of the roof
as permitted by the approved architectural pattern book and commented that this was opposed to
what the code called for.

Brad concluded and stated staff would recommend approval as amended.

Chair Allen commented on being harmonious with the neighborhood and said he was considering
this issue. Chair Allen commented regarding what the neighborhood is, what it is to be
harmonized with, and what is the aim to have it be. Chair Allen commented that the area was a
transitional are; it was not Old Town or the lower density residential area nearby. Chair Allen
commented that this area has been on track for years and was included in the Old Town Overlay
five or six years ago. Chair Allen commented that we had the Cannery PUD a couple of years ago
and now have this site plan, adding that the Commission is considering an area that is at least a
transitional area between the existing residential and Old Town and at most an extension of Old
Town proper in relation to Cannery Square and the Community Center. Chair Allen commented
that the applicant has done a good job in trying to address that issue and make it harmonious in
that transitional way. Chair Allen commented regarding traffic and street improvement issues and
stated his opinions about those issues are on the record from the Commission's previous
recommendation to Council regarding the PUD. Chair Allen commented that the narrower
question is if this plan is consistent with that approved PUD and he believed it did and the
revisions to the conditions strengthened that.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 8 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 969



Commissioner Copfer stated he agreed with Chair Allen and wanted Sanford Rome to know that
the Commission did hear regarding Lincoln Street, however it is the Commission's responsibility
to look at if the application meets the PUD and it does.

Commissioner Griffin commented regarding the changes to the southeast side of the building and
that he thought the comments from citizens were heard. Mr. Griffin commented regarding the
traffic study being done by request from concerned citizens and the retention of a reputable
company to perform the study. Mr. Grifflrn commented that the application was solid and it will
add traffic to Old Town that may spark some activity in the area perhaps for Saturday Market or in
new restaurants.

Commissioner Clifford commented (via phone) that he agreed as far as the application meeting the
code and that he had looked over the plans and accompanying documents. Mr. Clifford
commented on his concem regarding parking and the amount provided. Mr. Clifford commented
regarding the application being a good project to bring together people using fewer vehicles,
walking more, using public transportation, and utilizing the Old Town area. Mr. Clifford
commented regarding the trash area in the interior of the building being an asset to keeping the
project clean and orderly and on the enhancement of the southern portion of the buildings with
more architectural detail.

Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission to approve the
application for Residences at Cannery Square (SP 12-04) based on the applicant testimony,
public testimony received, the analysis, finding, and conditions as revised in the Staff Report,
seconded by Commissioner Russell Griffin. All Commission members present voted in favor.
(Commissioner Clifford voted yes by phoneo Vice Chair Albert and Commissioners Cary and
Walker were absent.)

Chair Allen called a brief recess; the call with Commissioner Clifford was not terminated.

7. New Business

^. Public Hearing- Langer Farms Subdivision Appeal (SUB 12-02)
Chair Allen opened the public hearing on the appeal on the Planning Manager's decision of SUB
12-02 by reading the public hearing statement which stated the appeal was filed by Jim Claus.
Chair Allen asked for the disclosure of any ex parte contact, bias or conflicts of interest. Chair
Allen stated as it was legislative, ex parte did not strictly apply, but disclosed a conversation with
Jim Claus the previous Friday regarding a courtesy advisory that he (Mr. Claus) was sending an

email with a number of issues raised that did not pertain to the Langer Farms Subdivision Appeal.

Legal Counsel, Chris Crean clarified that the hearing was quasi-judicial, not legislative

Commissioner Griffin disclosed that he had contact with the Clauses through piano lessons and
church but it would not affect his ability to make a decision.

Chair Allen asked for the Staff Report.

Brad Kilby gave a presentation (see record, Exhibit 3) explained that the hearing was for the
appeal of SUB 12-02 the Langer Farms Subdivision, he would summarize the application, and

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 9 of l7

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 970



then go through his understanding of the appellant's assignments of error. Brad stated that the
Planning Commission packet contained the all of Mr. Claus's testimony and Stafls responses.

Brad stated that on June2l,2012 a decision to approve a subdivision of five lots and two tracks
for a 55.09 acre site known as the Langer property was issued and the Sentinel Storage application
approved earlier in the evening was a 6.93 acre portion of lot 5 of the subdivision. Brad stated that
the decision was appealed in a timely manner by Jim Claus on July 5,2012. Brad commented that
the staff decision and associated attachments were in the Planning Commission packet as Exhibit
1, the appeal materials provided by Mr. Claus were Exhibit2, and a letter from the applicant's
attomey, Seth King of Perkins Coie, was Exhibit 3.

Brad commented on the assignments of error and began by stating that Mr. Claus believed there
was a Flawed original Notice of Decision containing conflicting information that staff cites
as scr¡vener's error. Brad explained that the Scrivener's error included language that stated
"this approval is valid þr a period of one (2) years from the date of the decision notice, per
Section 16.120.050. " Brad commented that 16.120.050 states that if the final plat is not approved
within two years, the preliminary plat approval shall expire and a new plat must be submitted.
Brad commented that this was a harmless Scrivener's error and it did not constitute a material
error in the decision.

Brad commented that the second assignment of error was that lmproper Public Notice was
given by staff and staff has relied on INFILL standards for proposed Lot 5 to grant
wa¡vers for the access without properly notifying the PUBLIC per Sherwood Zoning Code
Chapter 16.68.060. Brad stated that 16.68.060 applies to infill development standards which
only apply to residential properties and not to light industrial or general commercial. Brad
commented that Mr. Claus contends that staff relied on this section to allow the proposed lot to
achieve the access standard when in fact the definition of a lot allowed staff to make that call
adding that a lot is a parcel of land of at least sfficient size to meet the minimum zoning
requirements of this code and withfrontage on the public or easement approved by the City. Brad
commented that there is precedence within the City for allowing lots to be accessed via an access
easement and staff believes that the finding remains accurate. Brad added that there was a
reference to 16.68 in the staff analysis but it was not relied upon for making the finding that the
applicant could propose to access the site through an easement. Brad commented that Mr. Claus
added that the City cannot allow such a long access and stated that the proposed access is a
driveway and utility easement, not a street so it is not subject to the TSP.

Brad commented that the third assignment of error was that the application was a Violation of the
PUD - a Major Change to the Final Development Plan dated August of 1995. Sfaff rs
requiring a change in the use of the land and requiring dedication of land in this
subdivision applicat¡on for public roadway and right-of-way. The land was specifically
proscribed from that use in the original Langer PUD. The Langer PUD must be treated as
having a Major Change and thus go through the PUD approval process noted in
Sherwood Code Chapter 16.40. Brad stated staff disagrees and commented that Mr. Claus is
contending that by extending and requiring the right-of-way dedication for the continuation of SW
Century Boulevard that staff has changed the use of the land. Brad commented that utilizingthat
logic the City would never be able to plan for future street extensions, explaining that SW Century
Drive came subsequently after the PUD and was added to the TSP as a connecting street. Brad
commented that the dedication and future construction was agreed to in a modification of the PUD

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 10 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 971



and the Developer's Agreement in 2010. Brad commented that the PUD approval is an overlay
zonethat is applied to a property and in order to constitute a major change a threshold had to be
met. Brad explained that the boundaries of the PUD are not changing by requiring the road; the
applicant is not asking for a major change that would be inconsistent with prior approvals; the
prior approvals did not identify which land was devoted to a specific use; and the final
development plan is only a phasing plan with some proposed accesses for this portion of the site
off of what was North Adams Ave at the time, which is now SV/ Langer Farms Parkway. Brad
added that there is not an increase in density because it is not a residential development and
therefore does not constitute a modification in the Planned Unit Development.

Brad commented that the next assignment of error was Sfaff's decision is flawed. Sfaff ls
treating the PUD as if it is oufsrde of PUD constraints for part of the logic used to grant
approval to a 5-lot subdivision of the PUD. Also, staff neglected to submit pertinent
information to the record as part of this application which would have direct bearing on
the original staff decísion - which occurred after staff closed the comment period. As
such I have included some of that missing information as ,T ,s directly peftinent to this
appeal. See a/so Exhibit B, copy from the 1995 code Section 3.4040 for appeals showing
that parties may present old evidence or any additional evidence. Brad stated that the
subdivision is not subject to 3.4040 but subject to standards in the code today as it was not filed at
the same time that the PUD was processed in 1995, therefore it was not required to be processed at
the same time as the PUD was approved. Brad stated that according to the City Attorney's office
"a PUD decision under 16.40 is a separate and distinct decision from a subdivision decision under
16.120.' Brad referred to language in 16.40.020.8.5 which states "If the PUD involves the
subdivision of land ..." and pointed out that if was the key word. Brad stated that this PUD did
not involve the subdivision when it was approved in 1995 and [per the attorney] "this affirms the
interpretation that they are separate decisions, albeit when they are proposed concurrently, they
need to be processed concurrently." Brad stated that if we were to work under this assumption
that you could not ever come back and subdivide your property then businesses or large
commercial complexes like Albertsons would not be able to go in and subdivide their property
because it was not considered at that time; or Safeway would not be able to take off the small
commercial portion where Starbucks and those businesses are. Brad stated that this is a common
practice in commercial development to divide the land for the purposes of financing and selling
the property and, as long as they meet the standards, then staff would review any subdivision
application under today's regulations. Brad added thaf a subdivision application for four to ten
lots will follow a Type II process and Mr. Claus maintains that staff did not have the ability to
review this application and it should have been reviewed at a higher level and staff disagrees.

Brad stated that the next assignment of effor was a Violation of Sherwood code Section
16.40.040(A)(2): Failure to Complete. The Planning Commission must meet to decide if
the PUD rs sf/ in the publ¡c's interest and staff disagreed. Brad commented that the actual
language for 16.40.040(AX2) states, "When substantial construction or development of a PUD, or
any approved phase of a PUD, has not taken place within one (1) year from the date of approval
of a Final Development Plan, the Commission shall determine whether or not the PUD's
continuation, in whole or in part, is in the public interest. " Brad commented that this PUD has

been under construction since 1995 with subsequent modifications to the PUD and City Council
has reviewed and approved changes and modifications to developer agreements since 1995. Brad
commented that staff believes that the City Council made the decision that was in the public's

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 1l of17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 972



interest when it approved the modifications in 2007 and agreed to negotiate the developer's
agreement in 2010 by the Sherwood City Council.

Brad stated that the next assignment of error was a Violation of the intent of the PUD - sfaff ls
attempting to incorrectly administratively apply Subdivision Standards to the Langer PUD
Phases 6, 7, B, which is beyond their scope and authority. The Phases are to have Site
Plan Reviews with the Planning Commission/City Council. SfarTessentially has made up
a new process for the PUD by incorrectly trying to grant subdivision and land division
approval through a Type Il procedure. Brad commented that staff believes the appellant is
wrong because this application is a distinct application and not a PUD, but a subdivision of the
PUD. Brad commented that the applicant is still required to come in and file for site plan review
on each one of these lots as they come in to develop. Brad added that per the language referenced
earlier 16.120.030.1.a which says that subdivision of land for four to ten lots is administratively
processed meaning that it gets decided by the Planning Manager.

Brad stated that staff recommends denial of the appeal and an affirmation of the staff decision.

Chair Allen asked for questions of staff, seeing none Chair Allen called for applicant testimony
from Seth King. Julia Hajduk set the timer for 30 minutes to time the applicant.
Seth King, Land Use Attorney at Perkins Coie, I120 SW Couch Street, Portland. Mr. King stated
he was present on behalf of the applicant, Langer Family LLC, with members of the development
team including Matt Grady from Gramor Development, Alex Hurley project engineer, Keith Jones
the project planner, and several members of the Langer family. Mr. King stated that the applicant
believes there is substantial evidence in the whole record to support the conclusion that this
subdivision application satisfies all of the applicable criteria and therefore should be approved.
Mr. King referred the Commission to the letter dated July 17, 2012 which is part of the packet.
Mr. King offered to answer any questions and asked to reserve the remainder of the time for
rebuttal.

Chair Allen asked for any questions from the Commission. Having none, Chair Allen asked for
public testimony for or against other than the appellant. Seeing none, Chair Allen asked for
testimony from the appellant, Jim Claus.

Mr. Claus inquired about having 30 minutes to testify. Chair Allen confirmed.

Robert James Claus, 22211 SW Pacific Hwy, Sherwood. Mr. Claus stated he would add to the
record items containing the ordinance where Mr. Langer, as a City Councilman, voted on the
ordinance that allowed this subdivision occur and the City contract with Beery, Elsner, and
Hammond (see record, Exhibit 4). Mr. Claus commented that he would give an overview of what
he saw wrong with this process and spoke of his years teaching at the University of British
Columbia where he was asked to debate against a man named Eric Todd; one of those rare people
who had a doctorate in law from Harvard. Mr. Claus commented that Mr. Todd would turn about
how the American Constitution protected Americans better than the Canadian system and said that
Mr. Claus would see the complete comrption of Oregon's Land Use Planning because there is
nol4th amendment requirements and protections to any real degree. Mr. Claus commented
regarding British Columbia using the British North American Act that has specific language that
says "we loath to give govemment officials discretionary power for fear we will comrpt them" and
Mr. Todd's guarantee of comrption of the system in Oregon because there is no sales tax and will

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August28,2012
Page 12 of 11

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 973



not be driven by good land use decisions but political decisions. Mr. Claus commented that there
was a PUD on Langer's farm ground in order to borrow tax money to support staff and that he
believes the parceling to be the worst denegation he has seen in this town. Mr. Claus commented
regarding the tax base, excess, and new taxes going to the City. Mr. Claus commented on when
he worked in San Francisco on Urban Renewal Plans where the Mayor used imminent domain to
take property where the money was to be paid back in ten years so that everything then goes back
on the tax roll. Mr. Claus added that the money was paid back in nine and a half years due to his
math. Mr. Claus commented that the farm ground is being taken and the excess value is used to
borrow bonds to run this city. Mr. Claus referred to the statements from Mr. Todd regarding
comrption and staff eventually becoming an entity in and of themselves and alluded it wasn't just
the union he worked for which manipulated elections.

Mr. Claus commented that the government workers had become an entity in and of themselves
and are concerned as a stakeholder. Mr. Claus commented regarding the subject property and
people like Wal-Mart being told where to build because they originally wanted to build on
Broadhurst's and Shannon's property. Mr. Claus commented regarding the Broadhurst and
Shannon property being a superior location at a lower price and the Mayor not wanting Wal-Mart
or Opus there, adding that it would have been a lifestyle mall. Mr. Claus commented on the
zoning being driven by financial needs not the enabling statute and was no longer promoting or
protecting health, safety, and welfare, and aesthetics, but hnancing for the staff. Mr. Claus
commented that City Hall stands as a monument to waste, fraud and abuse and stated it was
where much of the urban renewal money went. Mr. Claus commented on the plaza andregarding
old town being a the only classic central business district left in Oregon until it was tumed into
the Spanish Plaza model that it is now. Mr. Claus commented that it was centered on government
and he maintained that the Cannery Square park was built so the staff would have a place to have
lunch and suggested it was not built for children because it was without a bathroom. Mr. Claus
commented that we have seen this system easily comrpted in Sherwood because we have a strong
City Manager form of govemment. Mr. Claus commented regarding council person's stating "we
have a good stafl and the City Manager having a group of staff that works for him adding that if a
City Councilor talks to staff their job is threatened, and they can be called upon to resign. Mr.
Claus commented on the City having a contract attorney that represents the City Manager, the
Council, and the Mayor and commented regarding no attorney representing the interests of the
City although the charter calls for it. Mr. Claus commented regarding getting rid of the City
Attorney and staff operating ultra vires-ly and beyond the scope of their authority. Mr. Claus
commented that code never intended to allow staff to make the discretionary interpretations they
are making in a PUD. Mr. Claus commented on the location of Home Depot and a former City
Manager calling it a lumber yard, deeming the application complete, the City Council finding out
about it 120 days after, the subsequent lawsuit, and commented that it was the first shift from our
plan to moving our retail on to light industrial. Mr. Claus added that the land across the street
from Home Depot is light industrial and the buildings were not supposed to be there. Mr. Claus
commented that we have drifted down that road to discretionary powff for salaried government
officials that is only constrained by the 14th Amendment and federal court, not constrained in
Oregon. Mr. Claus commented regarding having four minutes to testify at meetings, but if you
ask for answers and do not leave, you will be escorted out. Mr. Claus commented that this is
being done because the only way that staff can move to that money is to be given discretionary
power.

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 13 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 974



Mr. Claus commented regarding the commission not reading the 95 Code and that most do not
have a copy and he does. Mr. Claus stated that the request on a PUD to make variances is not
permitted in that code or in the latest edition, yet if you look at these subdivisions you have
variances. Mr. Claus referred to Ambler Realty vs. The Village of Euclid and commented
regarding the fifth amendment being set aside, a substantial benefit and value left in the property
then referred to Nectow vs. Cambridge regarding having an exception in a code. Mr. Claus
commented that the PUD was written so you could not have exceptions because you have already
given away half of the world in the zoning. Mr. Claus commented regarding the code not
allowing fueling and mini-storage because staff made discretionary decisions to finance this town.
Mr. Claus commented regarding appealing to LUBA and it not being able to stop it.

Mr. Claus commented on a man named Jim Roberts from Madison who said the world spins
because of dumb and if we don't have enough dumb we will all fall off of it and not stopping
dumb but creating a record. Mr. Claus referred to Kelo vs. Newhaven where the Institute for
Justice fought the suit because a big pharmaceutical company wanted the land and the city wanted
money to increase the tax base, so kicked everybody out of an area that was not blighted. Mr.
Clause commented that the pharmaceutical company waited until they won the case and never
built. Mr. Claus commented that the case went to the supreme court, and this is a case study of
urban renewal destroying zoning. Mr. Claus commented regarding the same litigation in Norwood
and his involvement with the Small Business Administration's concern for taking people's
property and the city paying the true price of what that property was worth, adding that the Ohio
supreme Court said the enabling statute does not allow that kind of taking. Mr. Claus commented
that Sherwood is moving toward a staff with a vested interest to keep the money coming in,
having discretionary power to make decision, and freezing the rest of us out of business. Mr.
Claus commented that the zoning has to be run by the staff so they can build the Downtown
Center after destroying the Robin Hood Theater which was a better gift and there was no reason to
destroy it as it represented historic buildings. Mr. Claus commented regarding the City needing
money to build in Old Town .

Mr. Claus commented that the subject property was no longer a PUD but a catch as catch can
subdivision and put forward that a mass merchandizer will come in and get staff to say it meets all
of the requirements turning 13 Acres into Wal-Mart just like it did in Corvallis. Mr. Claus
commented that the citizens will live with it because it generates lots of tax dollars but that it was
a zeÍo sum tax game except it puts money into our staff and into politician's hands and cheats
school children. Mr. Claus repeated that Wal-Mart and Opus wanted to go on the highway, and
Fred Meyer will go on the highway and stated that once they go there you won't build another
one. Mr. Claus commented that the City is putting its value over there and using it up and
explained that retail is the classic zero sum game; meaning somebody gains and somebody loses.

Mr. Claus called Wal-Mart the merchant of death because they come into a trade area and they
take the business from everybody else. Mr. Claus commented that there was $475 billion on
groceries and supermarket sale and once you put in Wal-Mart and Fred Meyer on urban renewal
you are going to kill Safeway and Albertsons, thus killing your own tax base. Mr. Claus added
thaf this means you are not going to have enough money to pay the school children back in
twenty years, because you have denigrated your own tax base. Mr. Claus stated he did not believe
this was a PUD for a number of reasons which staff outlined and he believed the Langer's have the
political influence which they did for SherwoodPlaza. Mr. Claus stated this was simply a mission
in getting people to see what is going on and to say to institute of justice they need not worry
about New Haven, Oregon has them beat cold. Mr. Claus asked if the Commission understood

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August28,2012
Page 14 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 975



that what has been done is taken something that was originally Fred Meyer, which Metro stopped,
and turned it into RV parking, Wal-Mart, and a Target, and swinging business over there. Mr.
Claus commented that the next step is part of a conspiracy to restrain trade and his conversation
with Chair Allen regarding Cedar Brook Way.

Mr. Claus commented regarding the property near Cedar Brook Way being class A as it has
everything it needs, including visibility, accessibility, and parking which are the location, location,
location of retail. Mr. Claus stated that if they don't stop they will never build this area out and
commented regarding a road through his property that cannot be built on because of the size of
parcel and what can be put there. Mr. Claus commented about the eight hour American Bar and
Appraisal classes and people talking for eight hours. Mr. Claus commented regarding LUBA
seeing the non-disclosure and of people thinking their financial interests don't impact their elected
members and their family. Mr. Claus commented regarding LUBA looking at this as stealing
from school children or saying the application is not a PUD. Mr. Claus commented that it was a
clever way to combine sick eminent domain proceedings with police power proceedings and
turning the zoning of general commercial and retail over to the staff and certain elected officials.
Mr. Claus commented that it was the end of market driven zoning as we know it, because there is
no competition when staff tells buyers and retailers where to go. Mr. Claus commented regarding
sovereign immunity, not being able to sue, and that a citizen only gets the rare privilege of pure
political speech in front of the Commission. Mr. Claus commented that the staff has the privilege
all of the time and it is called sovereign immunity. Mr. Claus commented that what is going to
happen is it will lead to a suit and depositions will be taken. Mr. Claus commented regarding
being able to build on Columbia because of the footprint and the new owner being able to build
after he sold the property for a giveaway price. Mr. Claus commented regarding having urban
renewal of all of the zoning in this town and reiterated that the subject property was not a Planned
Unit Development. Mr. Claus commented regarding the cannery, the contract attorney signing a
contract with Capstone LLC, the layout of the site and the public not knowing and the inability to
appeal. Mr. Claus commented that citizens cannot complain regarding the work the attorneys do
for the Mayor or the City Manager, but a City attorney would have had to report it. Mr. Claus
commented that this will be a wonderful case study about how a town converted farm ground into
a major industrial retail commercial center, shut down more competitive property, and had the
staff determine where you will build. Mr. Claus commented that there are all of the technical
reasons in the code to not approve the application but it was comical to see what has been done
with it. Mr. Claus commented regarding every family owning land in the town that has tried to
develop and being put out of business by the process. Mr. Claus commented regarding Metro
running a pathway on his property and the rash people will get. Mr.Claus commented regarding
the property on Columbia that was sold and the McFall subdivision watershed. Mr. Claus stated
that nobody can live with that and in the end the City is putting money out there to dump 20% of it
to staff. Mr. Claus stated he will appeal the decision even though he won't win and something
will have to turn around. Mr. Claus commented regarding being insulted, using police and said
the City must have something to hide.

Chair Allen asked if any commission members had questions. Seeing none, Chair Allen thanked
Mr. Claus and asked how much time the applicant had remaining for rebuttal. Julia Hajduk
replied that the applicant had 28 minutes and 4I seconds.

Seth King, on behalf of the applicant, Land Use Attorney at Perkins Coie, I 120 SW Couch Street,
Portland. Mr. King commented that the appellant spoke for approximately 28 minutes without

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 15 of17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 976



addressing a single approval criterion applicable to preliminary subdivision plat or carrying the
burden on any of his appeal issues. Mr. King commented that Mr. Claus did not present any
substantial evidence that undermined the substantial evidence that is already in support of
approval of the application. Mr. King stated there was no request for a continuance or that the
record be held open. Mr. King commented that on the basis of those items the appellant has not
carried its burden to present any reason to deny the application. Mr. King stated that conversely,
based on the applicant's materials, staff presentation, and the letter from Perkins Coie dated July
17,2012, there is substantial evidence in the record to support approval of the application subject
to the conditions included in the original staff decision. Mr. King stated that because there was
no request for a continuance or that the record be held open, the Planning Commission would be
able to reach a decision tonight. Mr. King commented on Mr. Claus's concern that f,rnancial needs
were driving land use decisions in the City and stated that there was no evidence of this being the
case for this application. Mr. King commented regarding Mr. Claus's references that there was no
right to request variances in the 1995 Code and stated that the 1995 Code is not at issue in this
application and the code that was in effect at the time the application was submitted is applicable.
Mr. King commented regarding Mr. Claus's attacks on the potential uses and end users of the
property and stated this application does not concern the particular uses or end users and there is
no evidence relating to what uses or end users there might be therefore it is not relevant to the
decision. Mr. King commented regarding the issues Mr. Claus raised regarding the Planned Unit
Development and its processes and stated that this application does not concem the Planned Unit
Development as it is a subdivision application independent of the PUD. Mr. King concluded his
rebuttal testimony by requesting that the Commission deny the appeal and affirm the staff
decision.

Chair Allen asked for questions of Mr. King. Mr. Claus asked for rebuttal to Mr. King's
testimony. Chris Crean noted that there was no provision for appellant rebuttal and explained that
the ordinance requirements for an appeal hearing allow the applicant to split his time between
presentation and rebuttal, but there is no provision for appellant rebuttal which is reserved
exclusively for the applicant.

Chair Allen closed the public testimony and moved to final staff comments. There were no final
staff comments.

Mr. Claus stated (from the back of the room) that Susan Claus would like to testify (inaudible).
Chair Allen stated he called earlier for testimony for and against and no one came forward to
testifli.

Chair Allen called for a discussion on the appeal and remarked on a comment that the
Commission does not have or has not read the 1995 Code and observed that the 1995 Code was
courteously provided by the appellant, it is part of the record of this decision, and the Commission
has had access to it for a number of weeks. Chair Allen stated he had looked through the relevant
portions of the 1995 Code in considering his decision.

Chair Allen commented regarding the wide range of issues addressed in the testimony, whether
staff had the authority to divide a big lot into smaller lots, if the correct code was followed, and
whether staff made the correct decision under that code adding that he did not find anything
persuasive in the written materials or in the testimony. Chair Allen commented that the correct

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28, 2012
Page 16 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 977



code was followed and it was a subdivision decision, not a PUD decision, and he could not find a

basis to overturn the staff decision.

Commissioner Copfer added he would agree and stated he had read the 95 code and materials
provided several times, that staff has completed the work, and he sees nothing to stop the
subdivision.

Commissioner Clifford stated that he has reviewed the submittal documents, studied the plans
provided, and read the letters and appeal documents. Mr. Clifford commented that staffs
responses to the appeal were clear and the application did meet code requirements.

Commissioner Griffin commented that staff has done an adequate job in researching and making
sure that what they do on behalf of the City is correct and legal. Mr. Griffin commented on the
using the advice of an attomey and the path used to reach a decision. Mr. Griffin commented that
the decision could be appealed to a higher board and he did not have anything at this level to say
no to this application and perhaps City Council would feel differently.

Chair Allen inquired regarding if the proper method was to approve the application or to deny the
appeal. Julia Hajduk deferred to legal regarding the proper method and clarified that the next level
of appeal would be to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA).

Chris Crean commented that the motion would be two parts: to uphold the appeal and reject the
staff recommendation or, conversely, to deny the appeal and affirm the staff recommendation.

Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission To Deny The Appeal
Of Langer Farms Subdivision (SUB 12-02) And Uphold The Staffls Findings, The Staff Decision
To Move The Subdivision Forward, seconded by Commissioner Russell GriffTn. All Commission
members present voted in favor. (Commissioner Clifford voted yes by phone, Vice Chair Albert
and Commissioners Cary and Walker were absent.)

8. Consent Agenda
The consent agenda consisted of various minutes from March 13, March 27, April 24, }l4ay 22,
and July 10,2012.

Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission To Adopt the Consent
Agenda as Written, seconded by Commissioner Russell Griffin. All Commission members
present voted in favor. (Commissioner Clifford voted yes by phone, Vice Chair Albert and
Commissioners Cary and \üalker were absent.)

Chair Allen commented that the next meeting was September ll, 2012 which include the Cedar
Brook Way TSP. Julia confirmed and added that it also included the Langer Phase 7 commercial
development project.

9. Adjourn
Chair Allen

Submitted by

adjou5ned the meeting.

V*Á*6- 0-U*^^
Kirsten Allen, Department Program Coordinator

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28,2012
Page 17 of 17 Aûnp^ot -L rn *úJ¡" 6,(21øf\r-¿d, Nov 21,7otL "

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 978



code was followed and it was a subdivision decision, not a PUD decision, and he could not find a
basis to overturn the staff decision.

Commissioner Copfer added he would agree and stated he had read the 95 code and materials
provided several times, that staff has completed the work, and he sees nothing to stop the
subdivision.

Commissioner Clifford stated that he has reviewed the submittal documents, studied the plans
provided, and read the letters and appeal documents. Mr. Clifford commented that staffs
responses to the appeal were clear and the application did meet code requirements.

Commissioner Griffin commented that staff has done an adequate job in researching and making
sure that what they do on behalf of the City is correct and legal. Mr. Griffin commented on the
using the advice of an attorney and the path used to reach a decision. Mr. Griffrn commented that
the decision could be appealed to a higher board and he did not have anything at this level to say
no to this application and perhaps City Council would feel differently.

Chair Allen inquired regarding if the proper method was to approve the application or to deny the
appeal. Julia Hajduk deferred to legal regarding the proper method and clarified that the next level
of appeal would be to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA).

Chris Crean commented that the motion would be two parts: to uphold the appeal and reject the
staff recommendation or, conversely, to deny the appeal and affirm the staff recommendation.

Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission To Deny The Appeal
Of Langer Farms Subdivision (SUB 12-02) And Uphold The Staff s Findings, The Staff Decision
To Move The Subdivision Forwardo seconded by Commissioner Russell Griffin. All Commission
members present voted in favor. (Commissioner Clifford voted yes by phone, Vice Chair Albert
and Commissioners Cary and Walker were absent.)

8. Consent Agenda
The consent agenda consisted of various minutes from March 13, March 27, April 24, }l4ay 22,
and August 10,2012.

Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission To Adopt the Consent
Agenda as Written, seconded by Commissioner Russell Griffin. All Commission members
present voted in favor. (Commissioner Clifford voted yes by phone, Vice Chair Albert and
Commissioners Cary and \ilalker \ilere absent.)

Chair Allen commented that the next meeting was September ll, 2012 which include the Cedar
Brook Way TSP. Julia confirmed and added that it also included the Langer Phase 7 commercial
development project.

9. Adjourn
Chair Allen adjourned the meeting.

Submitted by l¿"ñ- +'åJ-,,"-
Kirsten Allen, Department Program Coordinator

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28,2012
Page 17 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 979



code was followed and it was a subdivision decision, not a PUD decision, and he could not find a

basis to overturn the staff decision.

Commissioner Copfer added he would agree and stated he had read the 95 code and materials
provided several times, that staff has completed the work, and he sees nothing to stop the
subdivision.

Commissioner Clifford stated that he has reviewed the submittal documents, studied the plans
provided, and read the letters and appeal documents. Mr. Clifford commented that staffs
responses to the appeal were clear and the application did meet code requirements.

Commissioner Griffin commented that staff has done an adequate job in researching and making
sure that what they do on behalf of the City is correct and legal. Mr. Griffin commented on the
using the advice of an attorney and the path used to reach a decision. Mr. Griffin commented that
the decision could be appealed to a higher board and he did not have anything at this level to say
no to this application and perhaps City Council would feel differently.

Chair Allen inquired regarding if the proper method was to approve the application or to deny the
appeal. Julia Hajduk deferred to legal regarding the proper method and clarified that the next level
of appeal would be to the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA).

Chris Crean commented that the motion would be two parts: to uphold the appeal and reject the
staff recommendation or, conversely, to deny the appeal and affirm the staff recommendation.

Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission To Deny The Appeal
Of Langer Farms Subdivision (SUB 12-02) And Uphold The StafPs Findings, The Staff Decision
To Move The Subdivision Forward, seconded by Commissioner Russell Griflin. All Commission
members present voted in favor. (Commissioner Clifford voted yes by phone, Vice Chair Albert
and Commissioners Cary and \ilalker were absent.)

8. Consent Agenda
The consent agenda consisted of various minutes from March 13, March 27, Aprll24,IN4ay 22,
and,&ugust*0;2:012. .

i^.r"""J-'"Jo-\., CVrtr'ç \ö \*!'Ò lo, 2orz-
Motion: From Commissioner James Copfer for the Planning Commission To Adopt the Consent
Agenda as Written, seconded by Commissioner Russell Griffïn. AII Commission members
present voted in favor. (Commissioner Clifford voted yes by phone, Vice Chair Albert and
Commissioners Cary and \ilalker \ilere absent.)

Chair Allen commented that the next meeting was September II,2012 which include the Cedar
Brook Way TSP. Julia confirmed and added that it also included the Langer Phase 7 commercial
development project.

9. Adjourn
Chair Allen adjourned the meeting.

l¿"*+"- +kU-^"-Submitted by
Kirsten Allen, Department Program Coordinator

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
August 28,2012
Page 17 of 17

Exhibit D13

Packet Page 980



5/2/22, 10:34 AM Sherwood, OR Code of Ordinances

1/6

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

I.

J.

Chapter 16.32 - LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI)*

Sections:

16.32.010 - Purpose

The LI zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing, assembling, packaging and treatment of products

which have been previously prepared from raw materials. Industrial establishments shall not have objectionable

external features and shall feature well-landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as determined by the

Commission.

(Ord. 93-964 § 3; Ord. 86-851)

16.32.020 - Permitted Uses

The following uses are permitted outright, provided such uses meet the applicable environmental performance

standards contained in Division VIII. Incidental retail sales, limited to 10% of the total floor area of a business, may be

permitted as a secondary function of a permitted or conditional use, subject to the review and approval of the Hearing

Authority.

(Ord. 2001-1119, § 1; 93-964)

Contractor's offices and other offices associated with a use permitted in the LI zone.

Public and private utilities, including but not limited to telephone exchanges, electric substations, data

centers, gas regulator stations, sewage treatment plants, water wells and public work yards.

Glass installation and sales.

Laboratories for testing and medical, dental, photographic, or motion picture processing, except as

prohibited by Section 16.32.040(E).

Industrial hand tool and supply sales primarily wholesaled to other industrial firms or industrial workers.

Other similar light industrial uses subject to Chapter 16.88

Dwelling unit for one (1) security person employed on the premises, and their immediate family.

PUDs, new and existing, subject to the provisions of Chapter 16.40. New PUDs may mix uses which are

permitted within the boundaries of the PUD. Approved PUDs may elect to establish uses which are

permitted or conditionally permitted under the base zone text applicable at the time of final approval of

the PUD.

(Ord. 98-1051 § 1; Ord. 86-851)

Temporary uses, including but not limited to construction and real estate sales offices, subject to Chapter

16.86

Wireless communication antennas co-located on an existing tower or on an existing building or structure

not exceeding the roof of the structure provided the applicant can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the

City that the location of the antenna on City-owned property would be unfeasible.

(Ord. 97-1019 § 1)

Exhibit D14

Packet Page 981

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


5/2/22, 10:34 AM Sherwood, OR Code of Ordinances

2/6

K.

L.

M.

N.

O.

P.

Q.

R.

S.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Business and professional offices associated directly with another permitted use in this zone and do not cat

customers (such as financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices).

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Business and professional offices in buildings that received land use approval prior to January 1, 2010 or

that are not designated "industrial" on Metro's 2008 Title 4 Map that cater to daily customers (such as

financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices).

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Business and professional offices in buildings that received land use approval after January 1, 2010 that

are designated "industrial" on Metro's 2008 Title 4 Map and that cater to daily customers (such as

financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices) shall not occupy more than 5,000

square feet of sales or service area in a single outlet and no more than 20,000 square feet of sales or

service area in multiple outlets in the same development project.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Training facilities whose primary purpose is to provide training to meet industrial needs.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Tool and equipment rental.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Blueprinting, printing, publishing, or other reproduction services.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Farm and garden supply stores and retail plant nurseries (limited in size similar to M. above), but

excluding wholesale plant nurseries, and commercial farm equipment and vehicle sales which are

prohibited.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Medical, dental and similar laboratories.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication, wholesaling,

warehousing or storage of the following articles or products:

Food products, including but not limited to candy, dairy products, beverages, coffee, canned goods

and baked goods, and meat and poultry, except as prohibited by Section 16.32.040

Appliances, including but not limited to refrigerators, freezers, washing machines, dryers, small

electronic motors and generators, heating and cooling equipment, lawn mowers, rototillers, and

chain saws, vending machines, and similar products and associated small parts.

Cosmetics, drugs, pharmaceuticals, toiletries, chemicals and similar products, except as prohibited by

Section 16.32.040

Electrical, radio, television, optical, scientific, hearing aids, electronic, computer, communications and

similar instruments, components, appliances and systems, and similar products and associated small

parts.

Building components and household fixtures, including but not limited to furniture, cabinets, and

Exhibit D14

Packet Page 982

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


5/2/22, 10:34 AM Sherwood, OR Code of Ordinances

3/6

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

H.

I.

J.

K.

L.

upholstery, ladders, mattresses, doors and windows, signs and display structures, and similar

products and associated small parts.

Recreational vehicles and equipment, including but not limited to bicycles, recreational watercraft,

exercise equipment, and similar products and associated small parts, but excluding motorized

equipment unless otherwise permitted by Section 16.32.020 or 16.32.030

Musical instruments, toys and novelties.

Pottery and ceramics, limited to products using previously pulverized clay.

Textiles and fiber products.

Other small products and tools manufactured from previously prepared or semi-finished materials,

including but not limited to bone, fur, leather, feathers, textiles, plastics, glass, wood products,

metals, tobacco, rubber, and precious or semi-precious stones.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010; Ord. 2002-1136 § 3; 2001-1119; 98-1051; 93-964; 91-922; Ord. 86-851)

16.32.030 - Conditional Uses

The following uses are permitted as Conditional Uses provided such uses meet the applicable environmental

performance standards contained in Division VIII and are approved in accordance with Chapter 16.82:

Laundry, dry cleaning, dyeing or rug cleaning plants.

Light metal fabrication, machining, welding and electroplating and casting or molding of semi-finished or

finished metals.

Offices associated with a use conditionally permitted in the LI zone.

Sawmills.

Radio, television and similar communication stations, including transmitters and wireless communication

towers, except for towers located within 1,000 feet of the Old Town District which are prohibited.

Restaurants without drive-thru limited in size similar to 16.32.020.M.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Hospitals and emergency care facilities.

Automotive, recreational vehicle, motorcycle, truck, manufactured home, boat, farm and other

equipment repair or service.

Commercial trade schools.

Wholesale building material sales, lumberyards, contractors storage and equipment yards, building

maintenance services, and similar uses.

Retail uses for warehousing or manufacturing operations, limited to 10% of the total floor area and not to

exceed 60,000 square feet of gross leaseable area per building or business. The retail area shall be

physically separated by a wall or other barrier from the manufacturing or warehousing operation.

Warehousing and storage areas shall not be used as showrooms.

(Ord. 2000-1092, § 3)

Power generation plants and associated facilities.

Exhibit D14

Packet Page 983

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


5/2/22, 10:34 AM Sherwood, OR Code of Ordinances

4/6

M.

N.

O.

P.

Q.

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

F.

G.

H.

I.

J.

Veterinarians offices and animal hospitals.

Automobile, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage.

(Ord. 93-964 § 3)

Daycares and pre-schools, if fully integrated with and secondary to a use elsewhere permitted in Section

16.32.020 or 16.32.030

Government facilities, including police, fire and vehicle testing stations.

Public recreational facilities including parks, playfields and sports and racquet courts on publicly owned

property or under power line easements.

(Ord. No. 2009-009, 7-21-2009; Ord. 2002-1136 § 3; 2001-1119; 98-1051; 93-964)

16.32.040 - Prohibited Uses

The following uses are expressly prohibited:

Adult entertainment businesses.

(Ord. 86-851, § 3)

Any use permitted or conditionally permitted under this Chapter that is not specifically listed in this

Section, and any use listed in this Section.

Auto wrecking and junk or salvage yards.

Distillation of oil, coal, wood or tar compounds and the creosote treatment of any products.

Manufacture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication, wholesale,

warehousing, or storage of the following products or substances, except for any incidental business,

service, process, storage, or display that is essential to and customarily associated, in the City's

determination, with any otherwise permitted or conditionally permitted use:

Abrasives, acids, disinfectants, dyes and paints, bleaching powder and soaps and similar products.

Ammonia, chlorine, sodium compounds, toxins, and similar chemicals.

Celluloid or pyroxylin.

Cement, lime, gypsum, plaster of Paris, clay, creosote, coal and coke, tar and tar-based roofing and

waterproofing materials and similar substances.

Explosives and radioactive materials.

Fertilizer, herbicides and insect poison.

Other similar products or compounds which are determined to be detrimental to the health, safety

and welfare of the community.

Metal rolling and extraction mills, forge plants, smelters and blast furnaces.

Pulp mills and paper mills.

Slaughter of livestock or poultry, the manufacture of animal by-products or fat rendering.

Leather tanneries.

General purpose solid waste landfills, incinerators, and other solid waste facilities.

(Ord. 93-964 § 3)

Exhibit D14

Packet Page 984

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


5/2/22, 10:34 AM Sherwood, OR Code of Ordinances

5/6

K.

L.

M.

A.

B.

Restaurants with drive-thru facilities.

Business and professional offices in buildings that received land use approval after January

1, 2010 that are designated "industrial" on Metro's 2008 Title 4 Map and that cater to daily

customers (such as financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices) that

occupy more than 5,000 square feet of sales or service area in a single outlet and no more

than 20,000 square feet of sales or service area in multiple outlets in the same development

project.

(Ord. No. 2010-05, § 2, 4-6-2010)

Retail trade, except as permitted by Section 16.32.020 above.

(Ord. 2001-1119, § 1)

16.32.050 - Dimensional Standards

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or loading area, or other site dimension

or requirement, existing on, or after, the effective date of this Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by

this Code. Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use or right-of-way, leave a lot or

structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements,

except as permitted by Chapter 16.84.

(Ord. 91-922, § 3)

Lot Dimensions

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum lot areas and dimensions shall be:

1. Lot

area:

10,000 sq ft

2. Lot

width at

front

property

line:

100 feet

3. Lot

width at

building

line:

100 feet

Setbacks

Except as otherwise provided, required minimum setbacks shall be:

Exhibit D14

Packet Page 985

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


5/2/22, 10:34 AM Sherwood, OR Code of Ordinances

6/6

C.

1. Front

yard:

Twenty (20) feet, except when abutting a residential zone or public park, then there shall

be a minimum of forty (40) feet.

2. Side

yard:

None, except when abutting a residential zone, then there shall be a minimum of forty (40)

feet.

3. Rear

yard:

None, except when abutting a residential zone, then there shall be a minimum of forty (40)

feet.

4. Corner

lots:

Twenty (20) feet on any side facing a street, except when abutting a residential zone, then

there shall be a minimum of forty (40) feet.

Height

Except as otherwise provided, the maximum height shall be fifty (50) feet, except that structures within one-

hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the height requirements of that residential zone.

(Ord. 86-851, § 3)

16.32.060 - Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic resources, environmental

resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and open space, on-site storage, and site design, see Divisions V,

VIII and IX.

(Ord. 91-922, § 3; Ord. 86-851)

16.32.070 - Floodplain

Except as otherwise provided, Section 16.134.020 shall apply.

(Ord. 2000-1092, § 3; 88-979; 87-867; Ord. 86-851)

Exhibit D14

Packet Page 986

https://library.municode.com/


of

Homc oJ ¡hemalat¡n Nw Natiml llìldlfe RSge

oRDtNANCE 2012-011

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF THE ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CODE INCLUDING DlVlSlON, ll and lV, RELATING TO COMMERCIAL, INDUSTRIAL, AND
INSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC USE CLASSIFICATIONS

WHEREAS, The Shenruood Zoning and Community Development Code has not been
comprehensively updated in many years, and

WHEREAS, the City has undertaken a multi-phase, multi-year program to comprehensively
update the development code to ensure that it is clear, consistent, and current; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission helped guide the development of proposed
amendments after extensive public outreach and opportunity for public input; and

WHEREAS, The amendments are specifically related to the uses within all Commercial,
lndustrial, and Public and lnstitutional zoning classifications; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were reviewed for compliance and consistency with
the Comprehensive Plan, regional and state regulations and found to be fully compliant; and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were subject to full and proper notice and review and
a public hearings were held before the Planning Commission on May 22,2012 and June 12, 2012;
and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted to fon¡rard a recommendation of approval to the
City Council for the proposed Development Code modifications; and

WHEREAS, the analysis and findings to support the Planning Commission recommendation
are identified in the attached Exhibit 1; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on August 7,2012 and determined that the
proposed changes to the Development Code met the applicable Comprehensive Plan criteria and
continued to be consistent with regional and state standards.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section l. Findinqs. After full and due consideration of the application, the Planning
Commission recommendation, the record, findings, and evidence presented at the public hearing, the
Council adopts the findings of fact contained in the Planning Commission recommendation attached
as Exhibit 1 fínding that the text of the SZCDC shall be amended as documented in Exhibits 1-A
through 1-D.

Ordinance 2012-011
August 7,2012
Page I of 2, with Exhibit 1 PC Recommendation (5 pgs), Exhibits 1-A (7 pgs), 1-B (8 pgs), 1-C (4 pgs), 1-D (10 pgs)

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 987



Section 2. Approval. The proposed amendments for Plan Text Amendment (PA) 12-01
identified in Exhibits 1-A through 1-D is hereby APPROVED.

Section 3 - Man Authorized. The Planning Department is hereby directed to take such
action as may be necessary to document this amendment, including notice of adoption to DLCD and
necessary updates to Chapter 16 of the municipal code in accordance with City ordinances and
regulations.

Section 4 - Applicabilitv. The amendments to the City of Shenruood Zoning and Community
Development Code approved by this Ordinance apply to all land use applications submitted after the
effective date of this Ordinance.

Section 5 - Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its
enactment by the City Council and approval by the Mayor.

Dufy passed by the City Gouncil this 7th day of August 2012.

ys, Mayor

Attest

Sylvi urphy, CMC,

AYE NAY
Clark
Langer
Butterfield
Folsom
Henderson
Grant
Mays

L-

_¿_

l--'

1¿-

Ordinance 2012-011
August 7,2012
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1 PC Recommendation (5 pSs), Exhibits 1-A (7 pgs), 1-B (8 pgs), 1-C (4 pgs), 1-D (10 pgs)

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 988



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-PC Recommendation
August 7, 2012, Page I of 5

Gity of Sherwood July 20, 2012
Planning Commiss¡on Recommendation to the Gity Gouncil
File No: PA 12-01 Commerc¡al, lndustrial, Public, and lnstitutional Uses

Recommendation: The Planning Commission Recommends that the City Council amend Chapters
16.22 (Office Commercial), 16.24 (Office Retail), 16.26 (Neighborhood Commercial), 16.28 (Retail
Commercial), 16.30 (General Commercial), 16.31 (Employment lndustrial), 16.32 (Light lndustrial),
16.34 (General lndustrial), and 16.36 (lnstitutional and Public). The overall objective of this proposal is
to eliminate barriers to good quality development, and to clarify the language in a manner that is easier
to understand. The proposal would accomplish five objectives. First, it would consolidate the
Commercial Chapters into Chapter 16.22, and the lndustrial Chapters into Chapter 16.31. Second, it
will ensure that the nomenclature of uses is consistent throughout the use tables. Third, the
amendments would ellminate Chapter 16.24 (Otfice Retail) since there is not any property within the
City Limits with that zoning designation. Fourth, the changes would clarify how multi-family uses are
permitted within commercial zones. Finally, the amendments would establish a use classification
system within Chapter 16.88 lnterpretation of Similar Uses.

I. BACKGROUND

A. Applicant: This is a City initiated text amendment.

B. Location: The proposed amendment is to the text of the development code and, applies
citywide.

C. Revlew Tvpe: The proposed text amendment requires a Type V review, which involves
public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council. The Planning
Commission considered the matter on May 22,2012 and June 12,2012. At the close of the
hearing, the Planning Commission decided to fon¡¡ard a recommendation to the City Council
for their consideration on the matter. Any appeal of the City Council's decision relating to
this matter will be considered by the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals.

D. Public Notice and Hearinq: Notice of the ltlay 22, 2012 Planning Commission hearing on
the proposed amendment was published in The Times on 5/1 0112, and published in the May
edition of the Gazette. Notice was also posted in five public locations around town and on
the web site on 512112.ln addition, a separate notice was sent to all commercial, lndustrial,
and Public and lnstitutionally zoned properties in town consistent with the provisions of ORS
227.186. The Planning Commission continued the hearing to June 12,2012 at their May
22nd hearing.

DLCD notice was mailed on April 18,2012.

E. Review Criteria
The required findings for the Plan Amendment are identified in Section 16.80.030 of the
Shen¡vood Zoning and Community Development Code (SZCDC).

F. Backqround:
The City undenruent periodic review in 1989-1991 and the Zoning and Community
Development Code was comprehensively reviewed and updated as part of that process.

PA12-01 Commercial, lndustrial, Public and lnstitutional Zones Page 1 of 5
Staff Report to Planning Commission - May 8, 2Q12

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 989



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-PC Recommendation
August 7, 2012, Page 2 of 5

PA 12-01 Commercial, lndustrial, Public and lnstitutional Zones
Staff Report to Planning Commission -May 8,2Q12

Since that time, there have been a number of updates to comply with regional and state
laws, and to address local issues, but over time, the changes have been inconsistent with
other language in the Code, or have often times put different sections of the code at odds
with other sections. Beginning in late 2009, City staff and the Planning Commission began
to review and identify issues with the development code that needed to be amended, and/or
clarified. The City Council, Planning Commission and staff identified the need to conduct a
comprehensive update of the Development Code. As a result, a number of Code "clean-up"
items were identified and placed into a work program for review and consideration.

Th is particu lar recom mendat¡on accomplishes five objectives includ ing :

1. Consolidating three industrial chapters into one, and four commercial zoning
chapters into one chapter, similar to what was accomplished with the Residential
Zoning Chapter.

2. lt would also include clarifying the "use" classifications within the use tables of each
commercial, industrial, and public and institutional zone. Currently, the nomenclature
for uses varies from one chapter to the next. Under this proposal, the uses would be
uniformly labeled to the extent that it makes sense for each zone type.

3. The amended language would eliminate Chapter 16.24 (Office Retail) from the
Sherwood Zoning and Community Development Code. Currently, there are no
properties within the city that carry that designation. Furthermore, the zone itself is
so similar to the retail commercial zone that it does not make sense to have both
when one can perform the same function as the other.

4. The amended language would clarify how residential uses on commercially zoned
properties are regulated as currently it is inconsistent among zones, and they are
permitted as either a PUD or Conditional Use. Currently, multi-family developments
located within the commercial zones are permitted through a planned development
at densities of 16.8 to 24 dwelling units per acre. This is within the range of the
prescribed density for the High Density Residential (HDR) zone.

Residential apartments are also possible in the commercial zones through the
conditional use process; however, there is a stipulation that requires the units to be
located on the upper floors, in the rear of, or othenruise clearly secondary to a
commercial building. The language is essentially the same in all zones except in the
Office Retail zone; which is proposed to be eliminated.

The Retail Commercial (RC) and General Commercial (GC) zones stipulate, "The
residential portion of a mixed-use can be considered clearly secondary to
commercial uses in mixed-use developments when traffic trips generated, dedicated
parking spaces, signage and the road frontage of residential uses are all exceeded
by that of the commercial component, and the commercial portion of a site is located
primarily on the ground floor."

The proposal would allow higher density residential uses as a permitted use within
the commercial zones subject to the provision that already exists within the RC and
GC zoning districts throughout all commercial districts. This would eliminate a barrier
by simplifying the process while maintaining the requirements and presumably the
community's desire to allow residential uses on commercially zoned land when it is
ancillary to the commercial use.

Page 2 of 5

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 990



Ordinance 20'12-011, Exh 1-PC Recommendation
August 7, 2012, Page 3 of 5

5. Finally, the amended language would establish a use classification system. The use
classification system would be located within chapter 16.88 lnterpretation of Similar
Uses. The use classification system attempts to describe the general characteristics
of a use type, and provide examples of the uses that would generally fall within the
category. This is a system that is used in quite a few other jurisdictions within the
region, and generally serves two distinct purposes.

This change helps to give staff some clear direction on the types and characteristics of uses
that are generally accepted by the community in making interpretations on uses that may be
unlisted. The second benefit of a use classification system is that it allows the use tables to
be much more abbreviated, and only requires that a specific use be listed when it is not
intended to be included within a specific zoning district.

The current code language resides in Division ll Land Use and Development, and Division
lll Planning Procedures. The Chapters within the Sherwood Zoning and Community
Development Code (SZCDC) that would be affected by this proposal include Chapters
16.22through 16.36 and Chapter 16.88, lnterpretation of Similar Uses.

AFFECTED AGENCY, PUBLIC NOTICE, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS

Aqencies:
DLCD notice was sent on April 18,2012. The City has not received any comments to date on
the proposed amendments.

Public:
There has been extensive public outreach and opportunities for the public to provide their
personal opinions and comments on Commercial/lndustrial/Public and lnstitutionalzones over
the past year.

The consolidation and use classifications were discussed with the Planning Commission at
length in several work sessions and meetings over the past year, and discussed with the public
at the November Code Clean-up Open House.

The proposed language was "tested" in September of this past year. ln order to test the
language that the Planning Commission and staff developed, 132 businesses throughout
Sherwood in the commercial, industrial, and institutional and public zones were surveyed. Staff
utilized company websites and city permits to determine the use of each business and tried to
match it up to the uses that would be permitted under the revised language. One obvious
objective was to ensure that we were not creating a lot of non-conforming uses by implementing
the revised language. The other objective was to determine if the use classifications were
appropriate for what was actually occurring within the underlying zones.

Of the 132 businesses surveyed, 12 of the existing business would not be permitted, or would
be considered existing non-conforming uses for a variety of reasons. Eleven (1 1) of those 12
uses are found in the industrial districts, and are either in conflict with the metro language for
industrial services in that they occupy too much of the building, or are unlisted, and would fall
within a use category that is more readily associated and permitted within a commercial zone.
The 12th non-conformity was a single family residence in the Retail Commercial zone. lt was
determined that the proposed changes did not increase nonconformities.

Approximately 418 ballot measure 56 Notices were mailed to all owners of Commercial,
lndustrial, or lnstitutional and Publicly zoned lands within the City on May 2nd. Staff has
received several telephone calls and counter calls, but once the changes have been explained,

PA 12-01 Commercial, lndustrial, Public and lnstitutional Zones
Staff Report to Planning Commission - May 8,2012

Page 3 of 5

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 991



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh l-PC Recommendation
August 7, 2012, Page 4 o'l 5

the people have generally been supportive or not interested. No one from the public has voiced
any objection to the proposal as of the date of this report.

III. REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR A PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT

The applicable Plan Text Amendment review criteria are 16.80.030.A and C

16.80.030.A - Text Amendment Review
An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon the need for
such an amendment as identified by the Council or the Gommission. Such an amendment
shall be consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, and with all other
provisions of the Plan and Code, and with any applicable State or City statutes and
regulations.

While this specific proposal does not include changes to the text of the Comprehensive Plan, it is
a proposalthat would amend language of a document that implements the Comprehensive Plan
and is reviewed in that light. There are no specific standards other than ensuring that the
language is consistent with the existing Comprehensive Plan and any applicable State or City
Statutes and regulations. The proposed language continues to implement the Land Use goals
and policies as they apply to Commercial, lndustrial, and Public and lnstitutional zoning uses.

There do not appear to be any comprehensive plan requirements that would conflict with the
proposed code language.

Applicable Reqional (Metrol Standards
There are no known Metro standards that would conflict with the proposed language. The Functional Plan
does place limits on the amount of commercial uses that would be allowed in Employment areas. The
proposed use tables are consistent with Title 4 lndustrial and Other Employment Areas in that they limit the
amount of retail and personal service uses within the lndustrial and employment lands as applicable.

Consistencv with Statewide Planninq Goals
Because the comprehensive plan policies and strategies are not changing and the comprehensive
plan has been acknowledged by the State, there are no known conflicts with this text change. Staff
is not aware of any other state or local regulations that the proposed amendment would conflict
with. The language has been drafted in a manner that strives to provide clarity within the Code to
staff, property owners, and developers.

The proposed amendments have been discussed in several public venues, and staff has always
been available to discuss the proposed changes, and has invited public comments throughout the
course of the discussion. As a whole, the proposed amendments are consistent with Goal 1 (Citizen
Participation) and Goal2 (land use planning).

Formal notice was also published in the newspaper two weeks prior to the hearing, published in the
May issue of the Gazette, has been posted around town in several conspicuous places, and is
provided on the City's website.

A Ballot Measure 56 Notice was also provided to all property owners of Commercial, Public and
lnstitutional, and lndustrially Zoned property, and was published in the City Newsletter (the Archer).

FINDING: As discussed above in the analysis, there is a need for the proposed amendments in
order to clarify the Shenruood Zoning and Community Development Code. The proposed
amendments are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and applicable City, regional and State
regulations and policies.

PA 12-01 Commercial, lndustrial, Public and Institutional Zones
Staff Report to Planning Commission - May 8,2Q12

Page 4 of 5

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 992



IV

Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-PC Recommendation
August 7, 2012, Page 5 of 5

16.80.030.3 - Transportation Planning Rule Consistency
A. Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities.
Proposals shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a transportation
facility, in accordance with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is required when a
development application includes a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or
changes to land use regulations.

FINDING: The proposed amendments are not tied to any one development application and do
not affect the functional classification of any street. Rather, the proposed amendments are
provided to clarify existing language within the existing development code. The proposed
amendments will have no measurable impacts on the amount of traffic on the existing
transportation system; therefore this policy is not applicable to the proposed amendment.

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the above findings of fact, and the conclusion of law based on the applicable criteria,
The Planning Commission recommends approval of PA 12-01as amended on June 12,2012.

V. EXHIBITS

Exhibit 1-A: Proposed CommercialZone Code Amendments "Clean Copy"
Exhibit 1-B: Proposed lndustrialZone Code Amendments "Clean Copy"
Exhibit 1-C: Proposed Public and lnstitutional Zone Code Amendments "Clean Copy"
Exhibit 1-D: Proposed lnterpretation of Similar Uses Code Amendments "Clean Copy"
Exhibit 1-E: Proposed CommercialZone Code Amendments with "Track Changes"
Exhibit 1-F: Proposed lndustrialZone Code Amendments with "Track Changes"
Exhibit 1-G: Proposed Public and lnstitutional Zone Code Amendments with "Track Changes"
Exhibit 1-H: Proposed lnterpretation of Similar Uses Code Amendments with "Track Changes"

PA 12-01 Commercial, lndustrial, Public and lnstitutional Zones
Staff Report to Planning Commission - May 8,2012

Page 5 of 5

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 993



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-A
August 7, 2012, Page 1 ol 7

Chapter 16.22

COMMERCIAL LAND USE DISTRICTS*

Sections:
16.22.010 Purpose
16.22.020 Allowed Uses
16.22.030 Development Standards
16.22.040 Special Criteria
16.22.050 Gommunity Design
16.22.060 Floodplain
* Editor's Note: Some sections may not contain a history

16.22.010 Purpose

A. Office Commercial (OC) - The OC zoning district provides areas for business and
professional offlces and related uses in locations where they can be closely associated
with residential areas and adequate major streets. (Ord.90-921, S 1)

Note: The Office Commercial (OC) zone was originally established by Ord. 86-851; the zoning
district designation was repealed in its entirety by Ord. 87-870. The zone was re-established by
Ord. 90-921, and fuñher amended.

B. Neighborhood Commercial (NC) - The NC zoning district provides for small scale, retail
and service uses, located in or near residential areas and enhancing the residential
character of those neighborhoods. (Ord. 87-870, S 5; Or¿. 86-851)

C. Retail Commercial (RC) - The RC zoning district provides areas for general retail and
service uses that neither require larger parcels of land, nor produce excessive
environmental impacts as per Division Vlll. (Ord.87-870, S 5; Ord. 86-851)

Note: Ord. 87-870 established the Retail Commercial zone, which repealed and replaced the
former Community Commercial (CC) zone.

D. General Commercial (GC) - The GC zoning district provides for commercial uses which
require larger parcels of land, and or uses which involve products or activities which
require special attention to environmental impacts as per Division Vlll. (Ord. 86-85f, S 3)

Note: it is proposed that the entire Office Retail (OR) chapter be deleted in its entirety.

16.22.020 Uses

A. The table below identifies the land uses that are permitted outright (P), permitted
conditionally (C), and not permitted (N) in the Commercial Districts. The specific land use
categories are described and defined in Chapter 16.88 Use Classifications and
lnterpretations.

B. Uses listed in other sections of this code, but not within this specific table are prohibited.
C. Any use not othenruise listed that can be shown to be consistent or associated with the uses

permitted outright or conditionally in the commercial zones or contribute to the achievement

Exhibit 1- A Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 1-

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 994



Ord¡nance 2012-01 1, Exh'1-A
August 7, 2012, Page 2 of 7

of the objectives of the commercial zones may be permitted outright or conditionally, utilizing
the provisions of Chapter 16.88 Use Classifications and lnterpretations.

D. Additional limitations for specific uses are identified in the footnotes of this table.

1 See special Criteria for the NC zone, 16.22.050
' The residential portion of a mixed use development is considered secondary when traffic trips
generated, dedicated parking spaces, signage, and the road frontage of residential uses are all
exceeded by that of the commercial component and the commercial portion of the site is located

"primarily 
on the ground floor. (Ord. 2002-1136 S 3; Ord. 87-870, g 5)

" Except in the Adams Avenue Concept Plan area, where only non-residential uses are permitted on the
ground floor.

RESIDENTIAL
Multi-family housing, subject to the dimensional
requirements of the High Density Residential (HDR) zone
in 16.12.030 when located on the upper floors, in the rear
of, or othen¡rise clearly secondary to commercial
buildings.2'3

a

P P P P

Residential Care Facilitiesa N N c c
Dwelling unit, including a manufactured home, for one (1)
security person employed on the premises and their
immediate family, and other forms of residence normally
associated with a conditional use, as determined by the
City.

a

P P P P

GIVIC

Hospitalsa N N c c
Correctional i nstitutionsa N N N c
Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums.a N N c c
Police and fire stations and other emergency servicesa N c c c
Vehicle testing stationsa N N N c
Postal services - Publica N c c c
Postal substations when located entirely within and
incidentalto a use permitted outriqht.

a
P P P P

Public use buildings, including but not limited to libraries,
museums, community centers, and senior centers, but
excluding offices

a

C c c C

Public and private utility structures, including but not
limited to telephone exchanges, electric substations, gas
regulator stations, treatment plants, water wells, and
public work yards.

N N c C

Small-scale power generation facilitiesa P P P P

Large-scale power generation facilities.a N N N t-
Public recreational facilities including parks, trails,
playfields and sports and racquet courts on publicly
owned property or under power line easements

a

c N c c

ocN RC GC

Exhibit 1- A Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page2

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 995



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-A
August 7, 2012, Page 3 of 7

provided it occuoies less than 50% of the total area

Rel igious I nstitutions, Private F raternal Organ izations,
Lodqes and secondary uses,

a c N P P

Public and private schools providing education at the
elementary school level or hiqher

a c c c c

Commercial Trade Schools, commercial educational
services and traininq facilities

a c N P P

Entertai nmenUrecreation

Adult entertainment business, subject to Section 16.54.010a N N N P

Motion picture and live theaters within enclosed buildinga N N P P

Drive-in motion picture theatersa N N N N

Country clubs, sports and racquet clubs and other similar
clubs.

a
N N c c

Golf coursesa N N N N

lndoor recreation facilities such as arcades, mini-golf, or
bounce house facilitiesa

a
N N P P

Hotels and motels c N P P

Motor Vehicle related

Motorized vehicle and sport craft repairs and servicea N c c P

Motorized vehicle and sport craft repair and service clearly
incidental and secondary to and customarily associated
with a use permitted outright or conditionally.

a

c c P P

Motorized vehicle, sport craft and farm equipment rental or
sales and display area with more than 5% external sales
and displav area, up to a maximum of 5,000 square feet.

a

N N N c

Motorized vehicle, sport craft and farm equipment rental or
sales and display area primarily within entirely enclosed
building with no more than íYo ot 5,000 square feet of
outdoor display area, whichever is less.

a

N N c P

Automotive, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storagea N N N N

Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilitiesa N N c P

junkyards and salvage yardsa N N N N

Manufactures home sales and display areaa N N N N

Office and Professional Support services
Business and professional offices.a P P P P

Medical and dental offices and urgent care facilitiesa P P P P

oc Nc1 Rc cc

Exhibit 1- A Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 3

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 996



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-A
August 7, 20'12, Page 4 of 7

5 All activities are required to be within an enclosed building

6 Animal boarding/kennels and daycare facilities entirely within an enclosed building are considered "other
personal service"

Business support services such as duplicating,
photocopying, mailing services, fax and computer
facilities

a

P P P P

Any incidental business, serv¡ce, processing, storage or
display, not otherwise permitted, that is essential to and
customarily associated with a use permitted outright,
provided said incidental use is conducted entirely within
an enclosed buildinq

a

c c C c

Childcare
Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens, when clearly
secondary to a permitted use

a
P P P P

Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens as a stand-alone
use. N P P P

General Retail - sales oriented
General retailtrade, not exceeding 10,000 square feet of
gross square footage.

a
P P P P

General retail trade greater than 10,000 square feet of
gross square footage

a
N P P P

Tool and Equipment Rental and Sales, lncluding Truck
Rental

a
N N c P

Retail plant nurseries and garden supply stores (excluding
wholesale plant nurseries)

a
N N P P

Wholesale building materialsales and servicea N N N P

Retail building materialsales and lumberyardsa N N c5 P

Personal Services
Health clubs and studios less than 5,000 square feet in
size. P P P P

Health clubs and studios greater than 5,000 square feet in
size N N c P

Personal services catering to daily customers where
patrons pay for or receive a service rather than goods or
materials, including but not limited to financial, beauty, pet
qroominq, and similar services.

a

N P P P

Public or commercial parking (non-accessory)a c C P P

Veterinarian offices and animal hospitals.a N N c P

Animal boarding/Kennels and daycare facilities with
outdoor recreation areas6

a
N N c c

Eating and Drinking establishments

oc Nc1 Rc cc

Exhibit 1- A Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 4

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 997



Restaurants, taverns, and lounges without drive-thruza P c P P

Restaurants with drive-thru servicesa N N P P

INDUSTRIAL

Limited manufacturing entirely within an enclosed building
that is generally secondary to a permitted or conditional
commercial use

a

N c c P

Medical or dental laboratoriesa N N c P

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES

Radio, television, and similar communication stations,
including associated transmitters.

a
N N N c

Wi reless com m u nication towers a nd transm itters8 c C c c

Wireless communication facilities on City-owned propertya P P P P

Wireless communication antennas co-located on an
existing tower or on an existing building or structure not
exceeding the roof of the structure

a

P P P P

OTHER

Agricultural uses including but not limited to:

. Farm equipment sales and rentals
o Farming and horticulture N N P P

Truck and bus yardsa N N N P

oc Nc RC GC

Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-A
August 7, 2012, Page 5 of 7

1 6.22.030 Development Sta ndards
A. Generally
No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or loading area, or
other site dimension or requirement, existing on, or after, the effective date of this Code shall be
reduced below the minimum required by this Code. Nor shall the conveyance of any portion of a
lot for other than a public use or right-of-way, leave a lot or structure on the remainder of said lot
with less than minimum Code dimensions, area, setbacks or other requirements, except as
permitted by Chapter 16.84. (Variance and Adjustments)

B. DevelopmentStandards
Except as othen¡¿ise provided, required minimum lot areas, dimensions and setbacks shall be
provided in the following table

t Limited to no more than 10% of the square footage of each development in the Adams Avenue Concept
Plan area
8 except for towers located within 1,000 feet of the Old Town District which are prohibited

Exhibit 1- A Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 5

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 998



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-A
August 7, 2012, Page 6 oÍ 7

16.22.060 NC Special Criteria

All permitted and conditional uses shall be found by the Commission to conform to the purpose
of the NC zone, and:

A. Shall be conducted entirely within enclosed buildings, except for:

Exterior sales, display and storage for horticultural and food merchandise
provided said exterior area does not exceed five percent (5%) of the
gross floor area of each individual business establishment.

2. Circumstances where the nature of the permitted or conditional use

s Existing residential uses shall maintain setbacks specified in the High Density Residential
Zone (16.12.030)

10 Maximum height is the lessor of feet or storiestt Solar and wind energy devices and similar structures attached to buildings and accessory
buildings, may exceed this height limitation by up to twenty (20) feet.

1t Structures within one-hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the height
requirements of that residential area

1a Structures over fifty (50) feet in height may be permitted as conditional uses, subject to
Chapter 16.82.

Lot area 10,000 sq. ft 1 acre (for single
district)

5,000 sq. ft 10,000 sq. ft

Lot width at front property
line 60ft 85ft 40ft 70ft
Lot width at building line 60ft 100 ft 40ft 70ft

Front yard setbacke 0 20ft 0 0

When abutting
residentialzone 0 0

Same as
abutting

residential
zone

Same as
abutting

residential
zone

Side yard setbacks 0 0 0 0
when abutting
residentialzone or
public park

10ft Same as abutting
residentialzone 10ft 20

Rear yard setbacke 0 0 0 0
when abutting
residential zone or
public park

20 10ft 10ft 20ft

Corner lote 0
20 ft on any side

facinq street

Heightro'11
2 stories or

30ft

Least restrictive
height of abutting
residentialzone

50 ft 13,14 50 ft13, 
14

Exhibit 1-_lL Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 6

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 999



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-A
August 7, 2012,Pa}e7 of7

clearly makes total enclosure impracticable, such as in the case of
automotive service stations, provided that the exterior area shall be the
minimum necessary to effectively conduct the use, as determined by the
Commission.

No more than four (4) permitted or conditional uses may be established within
any single NC zoning district, and each use or establishment may occupy a
maximum of four thousand (4,000) square feet of gross floor area, including any
permitted eferior business areas.

No single NC zoning district shall be greaterthan one (1) acre in area, and each
district shall have a minimum width of eighty-five (85) feet at the front property
line, and one-hundred (100) feet at the building line.

Permitted and conditional uses may operate only between the hours of 7:00 AM
and 10:00 PM. (Ord. 87-870, S 5)

16.22.040 Gomm unity Design

A. For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic
resources, environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and open
space, on-site storage, and site design, see Divisions V, Vlll and lX.

16.22.050 Floodplain

Except as othenruise provided, Section 16.134.02O shall apply
(Ord. 2000-1092, S 3; 88-979; 87-870)

B

c.

D.

Exhibit 1- A Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses PageT

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1000



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh l-B
August 7, 2O12, Page 1 of I

Chapter 16.31

INDUSTRIAL LAND USE DISTRICTS-

Sections:
16.31.010 Purpose
16.31.020 Uses

16.31.030 Development Standards
16.31.040 Employment lndustrial (El) Special Restrictions
16.31.050 Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions
16.31.060 Community Design
16.31.070 Flodplain

*Editor's Note: Some sections may not contain a history

16.31.010 Purpose

A. Employment lndustrial (El) - The El zoning district provides employment areas that are
suitable for, and attractive to, key industries and industry clusters that have been
identified by the State of Oregon and the City's economic development strategy as
important to the state and local economy. The following are preferred industry sectors for
areas zoned El: Clean Technology; Technology and Advanced Manufacturing; and
Outdoor Gear and Active Wear.

Land zoned El shall provide for large and medium-sized parcels for industrial campuses
and other industrial sites that can accommodate a variety of industrial companies and
related businesses. Areas zoned El are also intended to provide the opportunity for flex
building space within small- and medium-sized industrial campuses and business parks
to accommodate research and development companies, incubator/emerging technology
businesses, related materials and equipment suppliers, and or spin-off companies and
other businesses that derive from, or are extensions of, larger campus users and
developments. Retail and commercial uses are allowed only when directly supporting
area employers and employees.

lndustrial establishments and support services shall not have objectionable external
features and shall feature well-landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as
determined by the Hearing Authority. (Ord. 201 0-014, S 3, 10-5-2010)

B. Light lndustrial (Ll) - The Ll zoning district provides for the manufacturing, processing,
assembling, packaging and treatment of products which have been previously prepared
from raw materials. lndustrial establishments shall not have objectionable external
features and shall feature well-landscaped sites and attractive architectural design, as
determined by the Commission. (Ord. 93-964 S 3; Ord. 86-851)

Exhibit 1- B Proposed Industrial Code Language Page 1

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1001



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-B
August 7, 2012, Page 2 of I

C. General lndustrial (Gl) - The Gl zoning district provides for the manufacturing,
process¡ng, assemblíng, packaging and treatment of products from previously prepared

or raw materials, providing such activ¡ties can meet and maintain minimum
environmental quality standards and are situated so as not to create significant adverse
effects to residential and commercial areas of the City. The minimum contiguous area of
any Gl zoning district shall be fifty (50) acres. (Ord. 86-851, S 3)

16.31.020 Uses

A. The table below identifies the land uses that are permitted outright (P), permitted

conditionally (C) and not permitted (N) in the industrialzoning districts. The specific land
use categories are described and defined in Chapter 16.88.

B. Uses listed in other sections of this code, but not within this specific table are prohibited.

C. Any use not otheruvise listed that can be shown to be consistent or associated with the
uses permitted outright or conditionally in the commercial zones or contribute to the
achievement of the objectives of the commercial zones may be permitted outright or
conditionally, utilizing the provisions of Chapter 16.88

D. Additional limitations for specific uses are identified in the footnotes of this table.

1 See special criteria for the El zone, 16.31 .030 and the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), 16.31 .O4O

P
. Dwelling unit, including a manufactured home, for one (1) security person

employed on the premises and their immediate family
P P

Hospitalsa c N N

¡ Police and fire stations and other emergency services c c c
¡ Vehicle testing stations c c c

Postal services - Publica c c c
c c c. Postal substations when located entirely within and incidental to a use permitted

outright.

P P P
o Public and private utility structures, including but not limited to telephone

exchanges, electric substations, gas regulator stations, treatment plants, water
wells, and public work yards.

P P P. Small-scale power generation facilities.

c P c¡ Large-scale power generation facilities
o Public recreationalfacilities including parks, trails, playfields and sports and

racquet courts on publicly owned propertv or under power line easements
c c c

Exhibit 1- B Proposed Industrial Code Language Page2

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1002



. CommercialTrade Schools, commercial educational services and training
facilities P P c

Entertai nmenUrecreation

. Country clubs, sports and racquet clubs and other similar clubs c C C

. lndoor recreation facilities such as arcades, mini-golf, or bounce house
facilities2'3 c c C

Motor Vehicle related

Motorized vehicle and sport craft repairs and servicea c c N

. Motorized vehicle and sport craft repair and service clearly incidental and
secondary to and customarily associated with a use permitted outright or
conditionally.

P P P

. Automotive, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage c c N

. Vehicle fueling stations or car wash facilitiesa c c c
o junkyards and salvage yards N N N

. Manufactures home sales and display area N N N

Office and Professional Support services
Business and professional offices.sa P P P

o Business support services^such as duplicating, photocopying, mailing services,
fax and computer facilitieso

P P c
. Any incidental business, service, processing, storage or display, not otherwise

permitted, that is essentialto and customarily associated with a use permitted
outright, provided said incidental use is conducted entirely within an enclosed
buildinq

c C c

Childcare
. Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens, when clearly secondary to a

permitted use P P P

Day cares, preschools, and kindergartens as a stand-alone use.6a c c c
General Retail - sales oriented
¡ lncidental retail sales or display/showroom directly associated with a permitted

use and limited to a maximum of 10 % of the total floor area of the business.'
c P

. Tool and Equipment Rental and Sales, lncluding Truck Rental.T P P P

Uses LI GI EI

Ordinance 2012-01'1, Exh 1-B
August 7, 2012, Page 3 of8

'lf use is mixed with another, such as a restaurant, it is considered secondary to that use and permitted,

^provided 
it occupies less than 50% of the totalarea

' Limited in size to 5,000 square feet in a single outlet and no more than 20,000 square feet in multiple
outlets in t

o L¡mited to blic retail fuel sates.
u Limited in single outlet and no more than 20,OOO square feet in multiple
outlets in the same development project.

u Limited in size to 5,000 square feet in a single outlet and no more than 20,000 square feet in multiple
outlets in the same development project.

Exhibit 1-_L Proposed Industrial Code Language Page 3

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1003



. Retail plant nurseries and garden supply stores (excluding wholesale plant
nurseries). P P N

Wholesale building material sales and servicea c P N

¡ Retail building material sales and lumberyardsT c P N

PersonalServices
. Health clubs and studios less than 5,000 square feet in size P P P
. Personal services catering to daily customers where patrons pay for or receive

a service rather than goods or materials, including but not limited to financial,
beauty, pet grooming, and similar services.T

c c c

. Public or commercial parking (non- accessory) N N N

. Veterinarian offices and animal hospitals c c c

. Animal boarding/Kennels and daycare facilities with outdoor recreation areasT c C C
Eating and Drinking establishments
. Restaurants, taverns, and lounges without drive{hru7 c c c
. Restaurants with drive-thru services N N N

¡ Limited manufacturing entirely within an enclosed building that is generally
secondary to a permitted or conditional commercial use

P P P

. Medical or dental laboratories P P P

o Laboratories (not medical or dental) P P P

mini-warehousing or self-storagea N P N

Distribution, warehousing and storage associated with a permitted usea P P P

o Research and development and associated manufacturing P P P

Contractors' storage and equipment yards, building maintenance services, and
similar uses.

a
c P N

Laundry, dry cleaning, dyeing, or rug cleaning plantsa c P N

cture, compounding, processing, assembling, packaging, treatment, fabrication, wholesaling,
or storage of the following articles or products:

Manufa
warehousi
o Food products, appliances, textiles and fiber products, pottery, glass and

previously pulverized clay ceramics, small electronics, communication
equipment, instruments, toys, novelties, electronics components, maintenance
equipment, vending machines, cosmetics, chemicals and other small products
and tools manufactured from previouslv prepared or semi-finished materials.

P P N

¡ Pharmaceuticals in facilities up to 50,000 square feet building size P P P

. Pharmaceuticals in facilities la rger than 50,000 square feet building size N c N

o Building components, furniture, fixtures, signs. P P N

o Non-motorized recreational vehicles and equipment P P N

Uses LI GI EI

Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-B
August 7, 2012, Page 4 ot I

7 Limited in size to 5,000 square feet in a single outlet and no more than 20,000 square feet in multiple
_ outlets in the same development project.
7 An¡mal boarding/kennels and daycare facilities entirely within an enclosed building are considered "other

personal service"

Exhibit 1- B Proposed Industrial Code Language Page 4

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1004



. Manufactured homes, farm equipment, and greenhouses N P N
o Any non-toxic materials or products made of metal, paper, wood, plastic, stone,

fabric or other materials or products not othenruise permitted in the zone.
P P N

. Renewable energy/energy efficiency, sustainable environmental products,
advanced manufacturing, high technology, biotechnology, sports apparel and
other recreational products.

P P P

o Acids, paints, dyes, paints, soaps, ammonia, chlorine, sodium compounds,
fertilizer, herbicides, insecticides and similar chemicals.

N c N

¡ Toxins or explosive materials, or any product or compound determined by a
public health official to be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the
community.

N N N

Sawmillsa c c N

Pulp and paper mills.a N N N
o Distillation of oil, coal, wood or tar compounds and the creosote treatment of

any products. N N N

¡ Metal rolling and extraction mills, forge plants, smelters and blast furnaces N N N

. Meat, fish, poultry and tannery processing N N N

. Sand and gravel pits, rock crushing facilities, aggregate storage and distribution
facilities or concrete or asphalt batch plants. N c N

. Solid waste transfer stations N c N

. General purpose solid waste landfills,-incinerators, and other solid waste
facilities. N N N

o Manufacture of biomedical compounds as regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration. N c N

Radio, television, and similar communication stations, including associated
transmitters. c c c

Wireless communication towersS and transmittersa c c c
. Wireless communication facilities on City-owned property c c c
. Wireless communication antennas co-located on an existing tower or on an

existing building or structure not exceeding the roof of the structure
P P P

Agricultural uses including but not limited to:

. Farm equipment sales and rentals N N N

. Farming and horticulture P P P
r Raising of animals other than household pets N N N

. ïruck and bus yards N P N

Uses LI GI EI

Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-B
August 7, 201 2, Page 5 of I

I Except for towers located within 1,000 feet of the Old Town District which are prohibited

Exhibit 1- B Proposed Industrial Code Language Page 5

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1005



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-B
August 7, 2012, Page 6 of 8

I 6.31.030 Development Standards

A. Generally - No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking
or loading area, or other site dimension or requirement, existing on, or after, the effective
date of this Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this Code. Nor shall
the conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use or right-of-way, leave a
lot or structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code dimensions,
area, setbacks or other requirements, except as permitted by Chapter 16.84 (Variances
and Adjustments).

B. Development Standards

Except as othen¡uise provided, required minimum lot areas and dimensions and setbacks
shall be:

e Lots within the El zone that were legal lots of record prior to October 5,2010 and smaller than the
minimum lot size required in the table below may be developed if found consistent with other applicable
requirements of Chapter 16.31 and this Code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than three (3) acres

.^shallbe prohibited unless Section 16.31.050 applies. (Ord.2010-014, S 3, 10-5-2010)
'' When a yard is abutting a residential zone or public park, there shall be a minimum setback of forty (40)

feet provided for properties zoned Employment lndustrial and Light lndustrialZones, and a minimum
_. setback of fifty (50) feet provided for properties zoned General lndustrial.
" Structures located within one-hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the height

requirements of that residential zone.

Lot area- lndustrial Uses: 3 acrese 10,000 sF 20,000 sF

Lot area- Commercial Uses
(subject to Section
16.3r.050):

10,000
SF

10,000 sF 20,000 sF

Lot width at front property
line: 100 feet

Lot width at building line: 100 feet

Front Yard Setback" 20 feet 20 feet None

Side Yard Setback'u None None None

Rear Yard Setback" None None None

Corner lot street side11 20 feet 20 feet None

Heightll 50 feet

Development Standards by
Zone

EI GILI

Exhibit 1-_L Proposed Industrial Code Language Page 6

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1006



OÍdinance 2012-011, Exh 1-B
August 7, 2012, Page 7 o1 8

16.31.040 Employment lndustrial (El) Restrictions

A. Use Restrictions

2.

Retail and professlonal services that cater to daily customers, such as restaurants and
financial, insurance, real estate, legal, medical and dental offices, shall be limited in the
El zone.

a. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services
shall not occupy more than 5,000 square feet of sales or service area in a single
outlet and no more than 20,000 square feet of sales or service area in multiple
outlets in the same development project, and

b. New buildings for stores, branches, agencies or other retail uses and services
shall not be located on lots or parcels smaller than 5 acres in size. A
"development project" includes all improvements proposed through a site plan
application.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 16.31.050 "Commercial Nodes Use
Restrictions", commercial development permitted under 16.31.050(1)(a) may only be
proposed concurrent with or after industrial development on the same parcel.
Commercial development may not occur prior to industrial development on the same
parcel. (Ord. 2010-014, S 3, 10-5-2010)

1

B. Land Division Restrictions

1. Lots of record prior to October 5,2010 that are smaller than the minimum lot size
required in the El zone may be developed if found consistent with other applicable
requirements of Chapter 16.31 and this code. Further subdivision of lots smaller than 3
acres shall be prohibited unless Section 16.31.050 applies.

2. Lots or parcels larger than 50 acres may be divided into smaller lots and parcels
pursuant to a Planned Unit Development approved by the city so long as the resulting
division yields at least one lot or parcel of at least 50 acres in size.

3. Lots or parcels 50 acres or larger, including those created pursuant to subsection (2)
above, may be divided into any number of smaller lots or parcels pursuant to a Planned
Unit Development approved by the city so long as at least 40 percent of the area of the
lot or parcel has been developed with industrial uses or uses accessory to industrial use.

16.31.050 Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) Commercial Nodes Use Restrictions

A. Within the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA), only commercial uses that directly support
industrial uses located within the TEA are permitted as conditional uses.

B. Commercial development, not to exceed a total of five (5) contiguous acres in size, may
be permitted.

C. Commercial development may not be located within 300 feet of SW l24thAvenue or
SW Oregon Street, and must be adjacent to the proposed east-west collector street.

Exhibit 1- B Proposed Industrial Code Language Page 7

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1007



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-B
August 7, 2012, Page I of B

(Ord.2010-014, S 3, 10-5-2010)

16.31.060 Community Des¡gn

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic resources,
environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, signs, parks and open space, on-
site storage, and site design, the applicable provisions of Divisions V, Vlll and lX will apply.

(Ord. 2010-014, S 3, 10-5-2010)

16.31.070 Floodplain

Except as otheruvise provided, Section 16.134.020 shall apply

(Ord. 2010-014, S 3, 10-5-2010)

Exhibit 1- B Proposed Industrial Code Language Page B

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1008



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-C
August 7, 2012, Page 1 ot 4

Chapter 16.36

INST|TUT|ONAL AND pUBLtC (tp) LAND USE D|STR|CT*

Sections:

16.36.010 Purpose

1 6.36.020 Permitted Uses

I 6.36.030 Conditional Uses

1 6.36.040 Prohibited Uses

1 6.36.050 Dimensional Standards

I 6.36.060 Community Design

16.36.070 Floodplain

* Editor's Note: Some sections may not contain a history

16.36.010 Purpose

The lP zoning district provides for major institutional and governmental activities such as
schools, public parks, churches, government offices, utility structures, hospitals, correctional
facilities and other similar public and quasi-public uses.

(Ord. 86-851, S 3)

I 6.36.020 Permitted Uses

A. The table below identifies the land uses that are permitted outright (P), permitted
conditionally (C), and not permitted (N) in the Commercial Districts. The specific land use
categories are described and defined in Chapter 16.88 Use Classifications and
lnterpretations.

B. Uses listed in other sections of this code, but not within this specific table are prohibited.
C. Any use not othen¡rise listed that can be shown to be consistent or associated with the uses

permitted outright or conditionally in the commercial zones or contribute to the achievement
of the objectives of the commercial zones may be permitted outright or conditionally, utilizing
the provisions of Chapter 16.88 Use Classifications and lnterpretations.

D. Additional limitations for specific uses are identified in the footnotes of this table.

Exhibit 1-C Commercial,lndustrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 1

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1009



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-C
August 7, 2O12, Page 2 of 4

1 except for towers located within 1,000 feet of the Old Town District which are prohibited

RESIDENTIAL

Dwelling unit, including a manufactured home, for one (1)
security person employed on the premises and their immediate
family, and other forms of residence normally associated with a

conditional use, as determined by the City. (Ord. 97-1019 $ 3;
Ord. 86-851)

c

ctvtc

Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums. C

Police and fire stations and other emergency servicesa c
¡ Administrative Offices-Government c

¡ Postal services - Public c

Public use buildings, íncluding but not limited to libraries,
museums, community centels, and senior centers.

a c

Public and private utility structures, including but not limited to
telephone exchanges, electric substations, gas regulator
stations, treatment plants, water wells, and public work yards.

a
c

Public recreational facilities including parks, trails, playfields
and sports and racquet courts on publicly owned property or
under power line easements

a
c

Religious lnstitutionsa c

Public and private schools providing education at the
elementary school level or higher

a c

COMMERCIAL

Gommercial Trade Schools, commercial educational services
and training facilities

a N

¡ Public Golf courses c

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES

Radio, television, and similar communication stations, including
associated tra nsmitters.

a c

Wireless comm u n ication towers and tra nsm ittersra
c

Wi reless commun ication facilities on City-owned propertyo
P

Exhibit 1-C Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 2

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1010



a Wireless communication antennas co-located on an existing
tower or on an existing building or structure not exceeding the
roof of the structure2

P

Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-C
August 7, 2012, Page 3 of 4

1 6.36.050 Dimensional Standards

No lot area, setback, yard, landscaped area, open space, off-street parking or load¡ng
area, or other site dimension or requirement existing on or after the effective date of this
Code shall be reduced below the minimum required by this Code. Nor shall the
conveyance of any portion of a lot, for other than a public use or right-of-way, leave a lot
or structure on the remainder of said lot with less than minimum Code dimensions, area,
setbacks or other requirements, except as permitted by Chapter 16.84.

1 6.36.060 Community Design

For standards relating to off-street parking and loading, energy conservation, historic
resources, environmental resources, landscaping, access and egress, site design,
parks and open space, on-site storage, and signs, see Divisions V, Vlll and lX.

(Ord. 91-922, S 3; Ord. 86-851)

2 Provided the applicant can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City that the location of the
antennas on City-owned property would be unfeasible.

Lot Dimensions Except as otheruvise provided, no minimum lot areas or dimensions
are required.

Front yard setback None, except that when the lot abuts a residential zone or public
park property, the setback shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet.

Side yard setback None, except that when the lot abuts a residential zone or public
park property, the setback shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet.

Rear yard setback None, except that when the lot abuts a residential zone or public
park property, the setback shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet.

Height

Except as otherwise provided, the maximum height of buildings in
the lP zone shall be fifty (50) feet, except that structures within one

hundred (100) feet of a residential zone shall be limited to the
height requirements of that residential zone.

(Ord. 91-922, $ 3)

Exhibit 1-C Commercial, lndustrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 3

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1011



Ordinance 2012-011. Exh'1-C
August 7, 2012, Page 4 ot 4

16.36.070 Floodplain

Except as otherwise provided, Section 16.134.020 shall apply

(Ord. 2000-1092, S 3; 88-979; 87-867; Ord. 86-851)

Exhibit 1-Ç Commercial, Industrial, Public and Institutional Uses Page 4

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1012



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 2012, Page 1 oÍ 10

Chapter 16.88

INTERPRETATION OF SIMILAR USES*

Sections:
16.88.010 Generally
1 6.88.020 Application Gontent
16.88.030 Approvals
16.88.040 Uses
" Editor's Note: Some sections may not contain a history

16.88.010 Generally

Where an interpretation is required as to the applicability of the provisions of this Code to a
proposed land use which is not specifically listed or othenruise clearly indicated as allowed,
conditionally allowed or prohibited, a written request for an interpretation may be submitted to
the City Manager or his/her designee.
(Ord. 98-1053 S 1; Ord. 86-851)

1 6.88.020 Application Gontent

The request shall be submitted with a fee pursuant to Section 16.74.02O and shall include
information on the following characteristics of the proposed use:

A. Description of the activity to be conducted on the site.

B. Noise and odor characteristics.

C. Description of material or product storage requirements.

D. Amount and type of traffic to be generated.

E. Description of the structures required
(Ord. 86-851, S 3)

16.88.030 Approvals

The City Manager or his/her designee may authorize a use to be included among the allowed
uses, if the use 1) is similar to and of the same general type as the uses specifically allowed; 2)
is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan; and 3) has similar intensity, density, off-site impacts
and impacts on community facilities as uses permitted in the zone, and described in section
16.88.040 below. The action of the City Manager or his/her designee may be appealed to the
Commission in accordance with Chapter 16.76.
(Ord. 98-1053 S 1; Ord. 86-851)

16.88.040 Uses

This chapter classifies land uses and activities into use categories on the basis of common
functional, product, or physical characteristics. The use categories provide a systematic basis
for assignment of present and future uses to zones. The decision to allow or prohibit the use

Exhibit 1-D Commercial,lndustrial, and Pubìic and Institutional Uses Page 1

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1013



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 2012, Page 2 of 10

categories in the various zones is based on the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan.
Uses are assigned to the category whose description most closely describes the nature of the
primary use. A primary use is the activity, or combination of activities of chief importance on the
site, and the main purposes for which the land or structures are intended, designed, or ordinarily
used. Accessory uses are uses or activities which are a subordinate part of a primary use and
are clearly incidentalto a primary use on site.

A. Residential Use Types

1. Residential uses are intended for habitation by one or more individuals on a wholly or
primarily non-transient basis. These uses usually include accommodations for cooking,
sleeping, bathing, and similar common areas typically associated with habitation.
Residential uses include, but are not limited to the following housing types:

(1) Single-family detached - A structure consisting of a single dwelling unit which is
for occupancy by one or more persons on a single parcel or lot.

(2) Single-family attached - A structure consisting of one or more attached single
dwelling unit which is for occupancy by one or more persons on separate parcels
or lots. Examples include but are not necessarily limited to townhomes and
rowhouses.

(3) Two-family- A structure consisting of two dwelling units on the same parcel or lot.
Two family homes are commonly referred to as a duplex.

(4) Multi-family - A structure consisting of (3) three or more dwelling units on the
same parcel or lot. Multi-family homes include, but are not limited to garden

apartments, apartments, condominiums, and in some cases attached townhomes
or rowhouses on a single lot or parcel.

(5) lnstitutional and Residential Care Facilities - A facility licensed by or under the
authority of the Department of Health and Human Services under ORS 443.400
to 443.460 which provides residential care alone or in conjunction with treatment
or training or a combination thereof for six (6) to fifteen (15) individuals who need
not be related. Examples include residential care homes, group homes, halñvay
homes, etc.

B. Civic Use Types

Civic uses are basic governmental and private services intended to provide for the basic
living, religious, educational, recreational, cultural, protective, and other similar needs of
all citizens within the community. Examples include but are not limited to:

(1) Churches, Mosques, Temples and other religious facilities

(2) Hospitals

(3) Schools

Exhibit 1-D Commercial,lndustrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page2

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1014



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh'1-D
August 7, 2012, Page 3 of 10

(4) Major and minor utilities

(5) Transportation facilities

(6) Police and fire stations

(7) Post offices

(8) Senior centers

(9) Community centers

(10) Libraries

(11) Museums

(12) Fraternal lodges

('1 3) Veterans organizations

(14) Public parking garages

(15) Cemeteries and crematory mausoleums

(16) Public gardens, parks, trails, and playfields

(1 7) Government offices

(18) Treatment plants

(19) Public works yards

2. Wireless Communicafion uses are uses that are associated with the provision of cellular,
broadband, or other communication types that involve the placement of towers, relay
stations, and similar infrastructure to provide service. Generally, wireless
communication facilities include:

(1) Towers

(2) Transmitters

(3) Antennae

(4) Similar infrastructure intended to be protected by the Telecommunications Act
of 1 996.

Gommercial Use Types

1. Commercial use types are uses that include the sale or rental of goods and services
that are customarily associated with those businesses that are not considered to be

c

Exhibit l- -D Commercial, Industrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page 3

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1015



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 2012, Page 4 oI 10

civic or industrial uses. Examples of commercial use types can be identified through
several different subcategories as follows:
a. Ente¡Tainment and Recreation uses establishments providing participant or

spectator recreation or entertainment, either indoors or outdoors, for a fee or
admission charge. lllustrative examples of commercial recreation and
entertainment uses include:

(1 ) Adult entertainment businesses

(2) Theaters or Cinemas

(3) Drive-in theaters

(4) Country clubs

(5) Recreational vehicle parks

(6) Private sports and racquet clubs

(7) Golf courses

(8) Arcades or electronic game centers

(9) Health and fitness clubs

(10) Bowling alley

(11) lce/roller skating rinks

b. Hospitality and lodging uses are uses that provide temporary, short term lodging
including:

(1) Bed and breakfast means a dwelling unit that offers guest rooms or suites for
a fee for a limited period of time not to exceed thirty (30) days, with incidental
eating and drinking service provided from a single kitchen for guests only.

(2) Hotel means an establishment that provides guest rooms or suites for a fee to
transient guests for sleeping purposes. Access to units is primarily from
interior lobbies, courts, or halls. Related accessory uses may include
conference and meeting rooms, restaurants, bars, and recreational facilities.
Guest rooms may or may not contain kitchen facilities for food preparation
(i.e., refrigerators, sinks, stoves, and ovens). Hotels with kitchen facilities are
commonly known as extended stay hotels.

(3) Motel means an establishment that provides guest rooms for a fee to transient
guests for sleeping purposes. Guest rooms do not contain kitchen facilities. A

Exhibit 1-D Commercial,lndustrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page 4

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1016



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 20'12, Page 5 of 10

motel ¡s distinguished from a hotel primarily by direct independent access to,
and adjoining park¡ng for, each guest room.

c. Motor vehicle related uses include the sales, servicing, rental, and storage of
motorized vehicles including automobiles, trucks, motorcycles, boats, recreational
vehicles, trailers, helicopters, airplanes, scooters, construction equipment,
tractors, semi-trucks, and similar type uses. Th¡s category includes:

(1) Motorized vehicle and sport craft repairs and service

(2) Automotive, boat, trailer and recreational vehicle storage.

(3) Vehicle fueling stations

(4) Car wash facilities

(5) Junkyards

(6) Salvage yards

(7) Manufactured home sales and display areas.

d. Office and Professional Seruices uses are uses where business services are
provided to the general public, or in some cases, where professional services
(e.9., accounting, architectural, engineering, legal, planning, psychological,
psychiatric, etc.) are provided. Office and Professional Services generally provide
clerical, duplicating, photocopying, mailing services, fax and computer services,
executive, management, or administrative services for private firms or
organizations. Office and Professional Services uses do not include medical and
dental offices. Examples of office and professional services include, but are not
limited to:

(1) Law offices

(2) Architecture and engineering offices

(3) Accounting offices

(a) Callcenters

(5) Financial, insurance, and realestate offices

e. Medical and Dental Office uses are offices that provide personal health services
including prevention, diagnosis, treatment, and rehabilitation services provided by
physicians, naturopaths, dentists, physician assistants, physical therapists,
chiropractors, massage therapists, and similar uses. Medical laboratories are
allowed under this classification as an accessory use. Examples include, but are
not limited to:

Exhibit 1 -D_ Commercial, Industrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page 5

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1017



Ordinance 20'12-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 2012, Page 6 of 10

(1) Clinics

(2) Veterinary offices

(3) Animal hospitals

(4) Dentist offices

(5) Doctors'Offices

(6) Urgent care facilities

f. Childcare uses are uses that provide nonmedical care for children on less than a
twenty-four (24) hour basis that are regulated under the most current Oregon
Revised Statute ORS 657A. Childcare uses do not include facilities providing care
that is primarily group athletic or social activit¡es sponsored by or under the
supervision of an organized club or hobby group Childcare uses include the
following uses:

(1) ln-home daycare means any use that provides day care to fewer than six (6)

children within the care givers primary residence.

(2) Daycare Facility means any facility that provides day care to six (6) or more
children, including a child day care center or group day care home, including
those known under a descriptive name, such as nursery school, preschool,
kindergarten, child playschool, child development center, except for those
facilities excluded by law, and family day care providers as defined by this
code. This term applies to the total day care operation and it includes the
physical setting, equipment, staff, provider, program, and care of children.

g. General Retailuses are uses that engage in the sale or rental of commonly used
merchandise and goods that are consumed for everyday living. The City of
Sherwood classifies general retail uses into large format and small format. Large
format facilities are 10,000 square feet or greater and small format are retail
facilities that are less than 10,000 square feet. General Retail uses may include
but are not limited to:

(1) Grocery Stores

(2) Department Stores

(3) Convenience Stores without fuel sales

(4) Furniture Stores

(5) Hardware Stores

(6) Pharmacies

Exhibit 1 -D Commercial, Industrìal, and Public and Institutional Uses Page 6

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1018



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh l-D
August 7, 2012, Page 7 oÍ 10

D

(7) Book Stores

(8) Electronics Stores

(9) Auto Parts Stores

(10) Sporting Goods Stores

(11) Toy Stores

(12)Jewelry Stores

h. PersonalSerurbes uses are uses that people come to rely on for their personal
needs, but are not necessarily required on a daily basis. Examples of Personal
Service uses include, but are not limited to:

(1) Barbershops and beauty salons

(2) DrV cleaning pick-up stores with limited equipment

(3) Laundromats (self-service laundries)

(4) Locksmiths

(5) Shoe repair shops

(6) Tailors and seamstresses

(7) Health and fitness clubs

(8) Dance or music studios

(9) Pet grooming

(10) lndoor pet daycare

i. Eating and Drinking Establishments are uses that sale prepared food and
beverages for consumption on or off of the site on which the business sits.
Examples include but are not limited to:

(1) Restaurants (including drive{hrough, fastfood, and sit-down)

(2) Taverns and lounges

(3) Coffee shops

(4) lce cream shops

(5) Sandwich Shops

lndustrial Use Types

Exhibit 1 -D Commercial, Industrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page 7

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1019



Ordinance 20'12-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 2012, Page I of 10

1. Distribution, warehousing, and storage uses are uses that engage in
warehousing, storing, or distributing goods primarily to retailers; to industrial,
commerc¡al, institutional, or professional businesses. Generally, these uses are
not open to the public. Uses within this category, may include but are not limited
to:

(1) Moving companies

(2) Mini-storage

(3) specific retail storage and distribution

(4) Freight delivery

(5) Beverage distribution

2. Laboratory uses are facilities that primarily engage in the research, development,
and controlled production of electronic, industrial, medical, dental,
biotechnological, and scientific commodities.

3. Metal Fabrication and Engineering uses are uses that involve the design and
processing of metals to create new products. Examples include but are not
limited to:

(1) Machine shops

(2) Fabrication shops

(3) Welding Shops

4. Small-scale lndustrialServlce uses are uses that manufacture finished parts or
products primarily from previously prepared materials; and provide industrial
services within an enclosed building. These uses include the outdoor storage of
products, materials, equipment, or bulk fuels. Examples include uses that
assemble and process food products, appliances, textiles and fiber products,
pottery, glass, small electronics, maintenance equipment, vending machines,
cosmetics, and tools. This category may also include:

(1) Contractor's storage and equipment yards

(2) Laundry and dry cleaning plants

(3) Fabric dyeing facilities

(4) Auto dismantling within an enclosed building

(5) Manufacture of stone works and concrete products (excluding concrete
ready-mix plants)

(6) Commercial bakeries

Exhibit 1-D Commercial,lndustrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page B

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1020



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 2012, Page 9 of 10

(7) Small scale energy facilities include facilities, such as solar panels, that
produce energy but are generally not visible from neighboring properties, with the
exception of facilities attached to a building that do not exceed the height limits of
the underlying zone and do not exceed the building height by more lhan25o/o.

5. Large-scale lndustrial Seruice uses are uses that use mechanical or chemical
transformation of materials or substances to manufacture or process new products. The
land uses engaged in these activities are usually described as plants, factories or mills
and characteristically use power-driven machines and materials handling equipment.
Establishments engaged in assembling component parts of manufactured products are
also considered under this classification. Also included, is the blending of materials such
as lubricating oils, plastic resins, or metals. Examples of large-scale lndustrial Service
uses include, but are not limited to:

(1) Sawmills
(2) Pharmaceutical manufacturers
(3) Pulp and paper mills
(4) Distillation of oil, coal, wood, or tar compounds and the creosote

treatment of products
(5) Metal rolling and extraction mills
(6) Forge plants
(7) Smelters
(8) Blast furnaces
(9) Sand and gravel pits
(10) Rock crushing facilities
(11) Aggregate storage and distribution facilities
(12) Concrete or asphalt batch plants
(13) Solid waste transfer stations
(14) Large Scale energy facilities are facilities that generally exceed the

impacts associated with a small-scale energy facility, and may
include power plants, solar farms, and other similar uses.

6. Hazardous Facilities are uses that manufacture, process, or dispose of chemicals and
compounds that are determined by a public health official to be detrimentalto the health,
safety, and welfare of the community and may include acids, paints, dyes, toxins,
explosive materials, ammonia, chlorine, sodium compounds, fertilizers, herbicides,
incesticides, and similar chemicals or compounds.

E. Agriculture Use Types

1. Agriculturaluses are uses that facilitate farming and horticulture. Allowed uses include
the sales and rental of farm equipment, farm activities as defined by ORS 215, which
states, ""farm use" means the current employment of land for the primary purpose of
obtaining a profit in money by raising, harvesting and selling crops or the feeding,
breeding, management and sale of, or the produce of, livestock, poultry, fur-bearing
animals or honeybees or for dairying and the sale of dairy products or any other
agricultural or horticultural use or animal husbandry or any combination thereof. "Farm

Exhibit 1-D Commercial,lndustrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page 9

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1021



Ordinance 2012-011, Exh 1-D
August 7, 2012, Page 1 0 of 1 0

use" includes the preparation, storage and disposal by marketing or othenruise of the
products or by-products raised on such land for human or animal use. "Farm use" also
includes the current employment of land for the primary purpose of obtaining a profit in
money by stabling or training equines including but not limited to providing riding
lessons, training clinics and schooling shows. "Farm use" also includes the propagation,
cultivation, maintenance and harvesting of aquatic, bird and animal species that are
under the jurisdiction of the State Fish and Wildlife Commission, to the extent allowed by
the rules adopted by the commission. "Farm use" includes the on-site construction and
maintenance of equipment and facilities used for the activities described in this
subsection."

Exhibit 1-D Commercial,lndustrial, and Public and Institutional Uses Page 10

Exhibit D15

Packet Page 1022


	01 05.10.2022 PC Meeting Packet Cover
	02 05.10.2022 PC Regular Agenda
	03 04.26.2022 PC Meeting Minutes_DRAFT
	04 LU 2021-025 Continuance and 120-Day Extension
	Continuance Request Email
	Time Extension Form_signed

	05 LU 2022-004 Staff Memo and Exhibits for WEB
	Staff Memo 5-3-22
	All Supplemental Exhibits for Web 5-3-22 at Noon
	Exhibit D5 Resolution 2007-081
	Exhibit D6 Resolution 2010-033
	Exhibit D7 Jim Claus Testimony
	Exhibit D8 Jim Claus Testimony
	Exhibit D9 Susan Claus Testimony
	Exhibit D10 Susan Claus Testimony
	Exhibit D11 PUD 95-1
	Exhibit D12 SUB 12-012 and Appeal NOD
	Exhibit D12 Appeal Cover Page
	Exhibit D12 SUB 12-02 NOD

	Exhibit D13 August 28 2012 PC Minutes
	Exhibit D14 Light Industrial Code in Effect March 2012
	Exhibit D15 Light Industrial Code Update August 7 2012





